
 
Agenda – Regular Board Meeting June 2, 2021       Page 1 of 3 
Published to district website: May 27, 2021 
 

Please mute your phone/tablet/computer unless speaking. 
 

AGENDA 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

THREE VALLEYS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
1021 E. MIRAMAR AVENUE, CLAREMONT, CA 91711 

 
Wednesday, June 2, 2021 – 8:00 a.m. 

 
SPECIAL NOTICE OF TELECONFERENCE ACCESSIBILITY 

Pursuant to the provisions of Executive Order N-29-20 issued by Governor Newsom in response to the COVID-
19 outbreak and as a precaution to our Board of Directors, staff and the public, Three Valleys MWD will hold its 
Board meeting via teleconference. The public’s physical attendance at the district is not allowed. The public may 
participate in the teleconference by clicking on the link below: 
 

https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/8377024476001974032 
(Dial-in instructions are provided after registering at the link above) 

 
Any member of the public wishing to participate in Public Comment may do so by filling out the speaker’s card 
at the following link:  https://arcg.is/0z5GqO or by sending an email to naguirre@tvmwd.com 

 

The mission of Three Valleys Municipal Water District is to supplement and enhance local water 
supplies to meet our region’s needs in a reliable and cost-effective manner. 

Item 1 – Call to Order Kuhn 

Item 2 – Roll Call Aguirre 

Item 3 – Additions to Agenda [Government Code Section 54954.2(b)(2)] 
Additions to the agenda may be considered when two-thirds of the board members 
present determine a need for immediate action, and the need to act came to the 
attention of TVMWD after the agenda was posted; this exception requires a degree 
of urgency. If fewer than two-thirds of the board members are present, all must 
affirm the action to add an item to the agenda. The Board shall call for public 
comment prior to voting to add any item to the agenda after posting. 

Kuhn 

Item 4 – Reorder Agenda Kuhn 

Item 5 – Public Meeting FY 2021/22 Standby Charge 
The Board will convene a public meeting to consider any comments or testimony 
regarding the FY 2021/22 Standby Charge. Final action to adopt the standby 
charge will not be taken at the public meeting; adoption will be considered by the 
Board following the public hearing scheduled for June 16, 2021 at 8:00 a.m. 
Pursuant to Government Code 6063, this public meeting was noticed in 
newspaper(s) of general circulation, Inland Valley Daily Bulletin and San Gabriel 
Valley Tribune, on April 28, May 5 and May 12, 2021. Copies of the notice are 
available upon request. 

A. Open public meeting 
B. Request staff report 
C. Public testimony 
D. Close public meeting 

 

https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/8377024476001974032
https://arcg.is/0z5GqO
mailto:naguirre@tvmwd.com


 
Agenda – Regular Board Meeting June 2, 2021       Page 2 of 3 
Published to district website: May 27, 2021 
 

Item 6 – Presentation 
Mr. Andy Malone, Principal Geologist at West Yost, will provide an update on the 
subsidence issue in the Pomona area. 

Litchfield 

Item 7 – Public Comment (Government Code Section 54954.3) 
Opportunity for members of the public to directly address the Board on items of 
public interest within its jurisdiction. The public may also address the Board on 
items being considered on this agenda. TVMWD requests that all public speakers 
complete a speaker’s card and provide it to the Executive Assistant. 
We request that remarks be limited to three minutes or less. Pursuant to Government Code 
Section 54954.3, if speaker is utilizing a translator, the total allotted time will be doubled. 

Kuhn 

Item 8 – General Manager’s Report Litchfield 

The Executive Leadership Team will provide brief updates on existing matters 
under their purview and will be available to respond to any questions thereof. 

 

8.A – Resolution No. 21-06-DRAFT for FY 2021/22 Standby Charge – 
[enc] 
The Board will review Resolution No. 21-06-DRAFT regarding the imposition 
of a Water Standby Charge for FY 2020/21. 

Linthicum 

8.B – Government Finance Officers Association Award – [enc] 
Three Valleys MWD has been awarded the GFOA Certificate of 
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for its comprehensive 
annual financial report for FYE 2020. 

Linthicum 

8.C – Review of FY 2021/22 General Manager’s Work Plan – [enc] 
The Board will review the General Manager’s Work Plan for FY 2021/22. 

Litchfield 

8.D – Miragrand Well Equipping Improvements Project, Project No. 
58463 – [enc] 
The Board will review bids for the Miragrand Well Equipping Improvements 
project. 

Kellett 

8.E – Draft TVMWD 2020 Urban Water Management Plan – [enc] 
The Board will receive an update on the Draft 2020 Urban Water 
Management Plan. 

Kellett 

8.F – Projects Summary Update 
The Board will be given an update of ongoing District projects. 

Peralta 

  



 
Agenda – Regular Board Meeting June 2, 2021       Page 3 of 3 
Published to district website: May 27, 2021 
 

Item 9 – Closed Session 
Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation [Government Code 
Section 54956.9(d)(1)] 
Name of Case: San Diego County Water Authority v. Metropolitan Water 
District of Southern California, et al., San Francisco County Superior Court 
Case No. CPF-10-510830 (Consolidated with Case No. CPF-12-512466) 
Name of Case: San Diego County Water Authority v. Metropolitan Water 
District of Southern California, et al., San Francisco County Superior Court 
Case No. CPF-14-514004 
Name of Case: San Diego County Water Authority v. Metropolitan Water 
District of Southern California, et al., San Francisco County Superior Court 
Case No. CPF-16-515282 
Name of Case: San Diego County Water Authority v. Metropolitan Water 
District of Southern California, et al., San Francisco County Superior Court 
Case No. CGC-17-563350 
Name of Case: San Diego County Water Authority v. Metropolitan Water 
District of Southern California, et al., San Francisco County Superior Court 
Case No. CPF-18-516389 

Kuhn 

Item 10 – Future Agenda Items Kuhn 

Item 11 – Adjournment and Next Meeting 
The Board will adjourn to a regular Board Meeting on Wednesday, June 16, 2021 
at 8:00 a.m. 

Kuhn 

 
 

American Disabilities Act Compliance Statement 
Government Code Section 54954.2(a) 

 
Any request for disability-related modifications or accommodations (including auxiliary aids 

or services) sought to participate in the above public meeting should be directed to the 
TVMWD’s Executive Assistant at (909) 621-5568 at least 24 hours prior to meeting. 

Agenda items received after posting 
Government Code Section 54957.5 

Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted after distribution of the agenda 
packet are available for public review at the TVMWD office located at, 1021 East Miramar 
Avenue, Claremont, CA, 91711. The materials will also be posted on the TVMWD website 

at www.threevalleys.com. 

Three Valleys MWD Board Meeting packets and agendas are available for review on its 
website at www.threevalleys.com.  

http://www.threevalleys.com/
http://www.threevalleys.com/


For Action  Fiscal Impact  $ 

Information Only Funds Budgeted: 

Staff Recommendation: 

The Board will conduct a public meeting regarding the imposition of a water 
standby charge for FY 2021-22. 

Discussion: 
TVMWD is to convene a public meeting regarding the imposition of a water standby 
charge prior to conducting a public hearing on possible adoption of the water standby 
charge scheduled for June 16, 2021.  This public meeting required proper notice, which 
was done in the Inland Valley Daily Bulletin and the San Gabriel Valley Tribune on April 
28, May 5, and 12, 2021. 

Attached is the draft resolution that will be considered for approval at the Board meeting 
on June 16, 2021.  The rate and methodology for the standby charge are described in the 
draft Engineer’s Report, which is “Attachment A” of the resolution. 

Strategic Plan Objective(s): 

3.3 – Be accountable and transparent with major decisions 

Attachment(s): 

Exhibit A – Resolution No. 21-06-DRAFT Adopting Procedures to Fix, Adjust, Levy, and 
Collect a Water Standby Charge 

To: TVMWD Board of Directors  

From: Matthew H. Litchfield, General Manager 

Date: June 2, 2021 

Subject: Public Meeting Regarding the Imposition of a Water Standby 
Charge for FY 2021-22 

Board of Directors 
Staff Report 

Item 8.A



  Page 2 
 
 

Meeting History: 

Board of Director’s Meeting – March 3, 2021, Information Item Only 

Board of Director’s Meeting – April 7, 2021, Information Item Only 

Board of Director’s Meeting – April 21, 2021, FY 2021-22 Budget Adoption and Board 
Approval of Resolution No. 21-04-892 Initiating Procedures to Fix, Adjust, Levy and 
Collect a Water Standby Charge 

 

NA/LC 

Item 8.A



Resolution No. 20-06-DRAFT 
Page 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 21-06-DRAFT 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE THREE VALLEYS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

ADOPTING PROCEDURES TO FIX, ADJUST, LEVY, AND COLLECT 
A WATER STANDBY CHARGE 

WHEREAS, the Three Valleys Municipal Water District (“the District”) is a municipal 
water district organized and operating pursuant to Water Code Section 71000 et seq. 

WHEREAS, under the Uniform Standby Charges Procedures Act, Government 
Code Section 54984 et seq. (“the Act”), the District is authorized to fix before August 10 of 
any given year a water standby charge on land within its jurisdiction to which water service 
is made available for any purpose by the District, whether the water services are actually 
used or not. 

WHEREAS, under the Act the Board may establish schedules varying the charge 
according to land uses, benefit derived or to be derived from the use, availability of facilities 
to provide water service, the degree of availability or quantity of the use of the water to the 
affected lands, and may restrict the assessment to one or more improvement districts or 
zones of benefit established within the jurisdiction of the District, and may impose the 
charge on an area, frontage, or parcel basis, or a combination thereof. 

WHEREAS, on July 10, 1996, the District’s Board of Directors adopted Resolution 
No. 7-96-361 which established a standby charge under the Act that was designed to fund 
the Readiness-to-Serve (“RTS”) charge imposed upon the District by the Metropolitan 
Water District of Southern California (“MWD”) and related administrative costs incurred by 
the District in connection therewith. 

WHEREAS, Resolution No. 7-96-361 expressly provided that the District’s standby 
charge was based upon the report of a qualified engineer which fixed that amount of the 
standby charge for the 1996-97 fiscal year at $5.92 per equivalent dwelling unit (“EDU”) 
and provided for the adjustment of that standby charge during subsequent fiscal years 
according to the actual amount by which the RTS charge increased, and subject to a 
maximum assessment amount of $29.41 per EDU. 

WHEREAS, Water Code Section 71639(b) authorizes the District to adjust the 
amount of its standby charge if the adjustment is made in the same manner as provided 
for taxes, fees, and charges in Government Code Section 53750(h)(2), which provides that 
a tax, fee, or charge is not deemed to be increased by an agency action that does either or 
both of the following:  (A) adjusts the amount thereof in accordance with a schedule of 
adjustments adopted by the agency prior to November 6, 1996; or (B) implements or 
collects a previously approved tax, fee, or charge, so long as the rate is not increased 
beyond the level previously approved by the agency, and the methodology previously 
approved is not revised by the agency. 

WHEREAS, Water Code Section 71639(c) further authorizes the District to adjust 
the amount of its standby charge if all of the following conditions are met:  (1) the amount 

Item 8.A - Exhibit A



Resolution No. 20-06-DRAFT 
Page 2 
 

of the assessment does not exceed $29.41 per EDU; (2) the revenue raised by the 
assessment, including its annual adjustments, is used exclusively to fund the RTS charge, 
or equivalent charge, imposed upon the District by MWD, and related administrative costs; 
and (3) The District adjusts its water rates to its retail agencies by an amount necessary to 
prevent surplus funding of the RTS charge imposed upon the District by MWD.  
 
 WHEREAS, Water Code Section 71639(c) further provides that in order for the 
District to fix a standby charge pursuant to the Act, the District’s Board of Directors must 
adopt a resolution to initiate such proceedings, cause notice of intent to adopt the 
assessment to be published in accordance with Government Code Section 6066 prior to 
the date set for adoption thereof, and, at the time and place set forth in said notice, conduct 
a hearing on the assessment and hear and consider any and all objections thereto.  
 
 WHEREAS, on April 21, 2021, the District’s Board of Directors adopted Resolution 
No. 21-04-892 initiating proceedings to fix, adjust, levy, and collect a water standby charge 
in accordance with Water Code Section 71639 and scheduling of a public meeting on June 
2, 2021, and a public hearing on June 16, 2021. 
 

WHEREAS, beginning on April 28, 2021, the District published a joint notice of the 
public meeting and the public hearing by placing a display advertisement of at least 1/8 
page in a newspaper of general circulation within the District at least three times and five 
days apart. 

 
WHEREAS, on June 2, 2021, at 8:00 a.m., at the District offices located at 1021 

East Miramar Avenue, Claremont, California, the Board of Directors of the District held a 
public meeting via teleconference regarding the imposition of the charge. 
 
 WHEREAS, beginning on or about June 2, 2021, the District published a Notice of 
Public Hearing and Intent to Adopt a Water Standby Charge in a newspaper of general 
circulation within the District once a week for two successive weeks pursuant to Water 
Code Section 71639(c) and Government Code Section 6066. 
 
 WHEREAS, on June 16, 2021, at 8:00 a.m., at the District offices located at 1021 
East Miramar Avenue, Claremont, California, the Board of Directors of the District held a 
public hearing via teleconference to hear and consider any and all objections or protests 
regarding the imposition of the charge, which hearing was duly conducted in the manner 
set forth in the Act. 
 
 NOW, THERFORE, the Board of Directors of the District does hereby find, resolve, 
determine, and order as follows: 
 
  1. The public interest and necessity requires the Board of Directors of the 
District to adopt this Resolution hereby fixing, adjusting, levying, and collecting standby 
charges pursuant to The Act and Water Code Section 71639 in order to meet the RTS 
financial obligations imposed upon the District by MWD and all administrative costs related 
thereto. 
 
 2. The written protests received by the District’s Board of Directors which were 
not withdrawn at the time of its determination represented less than fifteen percent (15%) 
of the parcels subject to the charges set forth herein. 

Item 8.A - Exhibit A



Resolution No. 20-06-DRAFT 
Page 3 
 

 
 3. The standby charge hereby levied by the Board of Directors of the District is 
based upon the report of a qualified engineer, Harris & Associates, which is attached hereto 
as Attachment A (“the Engineer’s Report”).  The content and findings of the Engineer’s 
Report are hereby adopted in full by the Board of Directors of the District and are 
incorporated herein in full by this reference, including, but not limited to, any and all 
statements and determinations specifically relating to each of the following: 
 

a. A description of the charge and the method by which it is 
to be imposed; 

 
  b. A compilation of the amount of the charge for each parcel 

subject to the charge; 
 

c. A statement of the methodology and rationale followed in 
determining the degree of benefit conferred by the service 
for which the charge is made; 

          
  d. The District’s legal ability to fix and adjust a standby 

charge, the amount of the charge, and the properties 
affected thereby; 

     
e. A description of the lands upon which the charge is to be 

imposed; and 
 

f. The amount of the charge for each of the lands so 
described.  

 
4. All adjustments in the amount of the standby charge set forth in the attached 

Engineer’s Report are in compliance with the requirements of Water Code Section 
71639(b) since the adjustments are made in the same manner as provided for taxes, fees, 
and charges in Government Code Section 53750(h)(2), which provides that a tax, fee, or 
charge is not deemed to be increased by an agency action that does either or both of the 
following:  (A) adjusts the amount thereof in accordance with a schedule of adjustments 
adopted by the agency prior to November 6, 1996; or (B) implements or collects a 
previously approved tax, fee, or charge, so long as the rate is not increased beyond the 
level previously approved by the agency, and the methodology previously approved is not 
revised by the agency. 

 
5. Additionally, all adjustments in the amount of the standby charge set forth in 

the attached Engineer’s Report are in compliance with the requirements of Water Code 
Section 71639(c) since (a) the amount of the assessment does not exceed $29.41 per 
EDU, (b) the revenue raised by the assessment, including its annual adjustments, is used 
exclusively to fund the RTS charge, or equivalent charge, imposed upon the District by 
MWD, and related administrative costs, and (c) the water rates adopted by the District and 
levied upon its retail agencies have been calculated so as to prevent any surplus funding 
of the RTS charge imposed upon the District by MWD.  

 
  

Item 8.A - Exhibit A



Resolution No. 20-06-DRAFT 
Page 4 
 

 
 6. The District’s General Manager is hereby authorized to take any and all 
actions necessary to carry out the intent of the District’s Board of Directors as is stated 
herein, and to cause the standby charge hereby adopted to be collected at the same time, 
and in the same manner, as the levying of property taxes by the County of Los Angeles 
and/or as is otherwise available under the Act and applicable law. 
 
 7. If any charge hereby adopted becomes delinquent, the amount of the 
delinquency, together with any interest and penalties thereon, shall constitute a lien on the 
affected property upon the filing of a certificate in the Office of the Los Angeles County 
Recorder, which lien shall have the same force, effect, and priority as a judgment lien. 
 
 ADOPTED and PASSED at a meeting of the Three Valleys Municipal Water 
District’s Board of Directors held via teleconference, on this 16th day of June 2021, by 
the following vote: 

 
AYES:    
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 
 

       Bob G. Kuhn, President 
        
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
Carlos Goytia, Secretary 
 
 
SEAL:  
 

Item 8.A - Exhibit A



THREE VALLEYS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

WATER STANDBY CHARGE ASSESSMENT 

2021/2022 ENGINEER’S ANNUAL LEVY REPORT 

INTENT MEETING: APRIL 21, 2021 

PUBLIC HEARING: JUNE 16, 2021 

May 2021 

PREPARED BY 

22 Executive Park, Suite 200 

Irvine, CA 92614 
www.weareharris.com 

Attachment A Item 8.A - Exhibit A

lcohn
Draft



Three Valleys MWD 

2021/2022 Engineer’s Report 

Water Standby Charge Assessment 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

Engineer’s Certification .................................................................................................  i 

Executive Summary ....................................................................................................... 1 

Introduction .................................................................................................................. 1 

 

Part I – Description of the Proposed Parcels and Assessment Boundaries.................. 2 

Part II – Cost Estimate .................................................................................................. 3 

Part III – Description of Assessments ............................................................................ 5 

A. Legal Requirements ............................................................................................... 5 

B. Assessable Parcels.................................................................................................. 6 

C. Equivalent Dwelling Units ...................................................................................... 7 

D. Assessment Rates ................................................................................................ 10 

E. Amount of Assessment ........................................................................................ 12 

F. Accuracy of Data .................................................................................................. 12 

 

Exhibit A – Sample Calculation for Various Land Uses ............................................... 13 

Exhibit B – Assessment Roll for Fiscal Year 2021/2022 .............................................. 14 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 8.A - Exhibit A



Three Valleys MWD 

2021/2022 Engineer’s Report 

Water Standby Charge Assessment 

Page i 

ENGINEER’S CERTIFICATION 

AGENCY: THREE VALLEYS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

PROJECT:  WATER STANDBY CHARGE ASSESSMENTS 

TO:  BOARD OF DIRECTORS of THREE VALLEYS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

 

ENGINEER’S REPORT 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 54984 et seq. of the Government Code of the State of California, 

being Chapter 12.4, “Uniform Standby Charge Procedures Act” (the “Act”), and in accordance with 

Resolution No. 7-96-361 of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Three Valleys Municipal Water 

District (the “District”), adopted on July 10, 1996 establishing a Water Standby Charge Assessment, I, 

Alison Bouley, P.E., duly authorized representative of Harris & Associates Inc., consultant to the District, 

submit this Engineer’s Report for Fiscal Year 2021/2022 consisting of the following parts and exhibits: 

Part I 

A description of each parcel of property and the boundaries of the area proposed to be subject to the 

levy of the uniform standby charge assessment. 

Part II 

An estimate of the costs of water services to be financed from the proceeds of the uniform standby 

charge assessment. 

Part III 

A description of the uniform standby charge assessment including: 

• A description of each lot or parcel of property proposed to be subject to the assessment. 

• The amount of the assessment for each lot or parcel. 

• The assessment methodology describing the basis of the assessment. 

• A description specifying the requirements for written and oral protests and the protest 

thresholds necessary for requiring a vote on, or abandonment of, the proposed assessment. 

 

DATED this ___ day of April 2021 

      ___________________________________________ 

      Alison M. Bouley P.E., Assessment Engineer 

      R.C.E. No. C61383 

      Engineer of Work 

      County of Riverside 

      State of California  

Item 8.A - Exhibit A



Three Valleys MWD 

2021/2022 Engineer’s Report 

Water Standby Charge Assessment 

 

Page 1 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

A. Introduction 

 

Harris & Associates submits this Report, consisting of (3) parts, for the Water Standby Charge 

Assessment adopted on July 10, 1996 by the Board of Directors of Three Valleys Municipal Water 

District in accordance with Resolution No. 7-96-361 under the Uniform Standby charges Procedures 

Act, Government Code Section 54984 et seq. (“the Act). The Act gives the District the authority to fix 

in any given year a water standby charge on land within its jurisdiction to which water service is 

made available for any purpose by the District, whether the water services are used or not.  The 

District established the standby charge in 1996 to fund the Readiness-to-Serve (“RTS”) charge 

imposed upon the District by the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California and related 

administrative costs related to the standby charge. The report provides the information in the 

following parts: 

Part I 

Description of the Proposed Parcels and Assessment Boundaries.  

Part II 

The estimate of costs including the administration of the assessments and the Readiness-to-Serve 

charge imposed by the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California for the fiscal year 

2021/2022.  

Part III 

The description of assessments includes the methodology developed to establish the basis of 

assessment for apportioning the cost of providing water services, and the facilities needed to provide 

water services. 

  

Item 8.A - Exhibit A



Three Valleys MWD 

2021/2022 Engineer’s Report 

Water Standby Charge Assessment 

 

Page 2 

 

 

PART I – DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSED PARCELS AND 

ASSESSMENT BOUNDARIES 

The proposed uniform standby charge assessment is entitled: 

 

THREE VALLEYS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT WATER STANDBY CHARGE 

ASSESSMENT 

 

The boundaries of the area proposed to be subject to the levy of the Water Standby Charge 

Assessment are contiguous with the boundaries of the District. The lines and dimensions of each lot or 

parcel within the District Boundaries are those lines and dimensions shown on the maps of the 

Assessor of the County of Los Angeles for the year when this report was prepared and are incorporated 

herein by reference and made part of this Engineer's Report. 

 

All future annexations to the District shall be included in the Water Standby Charge Assessment. In 

future years, if any new parcels are created as a result of the division or consolidation of land, re-

computation of the assessments will be conducted and the new parcels will be included within the area 

of assessment. 

  

Item 8.A - Exhibit A



Three Valleys MWD 

2021/2022 Engineer’s Report 

Water Standby Charge Assessment 

 

Page 3 

PART II – ESTIMATE OF COSTS 

The Water Standby Charge Assessment revenue will be used for the purpose of meeting the 

Readiness-to-Serve (“RTS”) charge imposed by the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California 

(“MWD”), and for related administrative costs. 

 

The following table lists the projections for the RTS Charge, Administration Cost and Estimated 

Maximum Total Assessment to be funded by the assessment. 

FY 

2012/2013 

FY 

2013/2014 

FY 

2014/2015 

FY 

2015/2016 

FY 

2016/2017 

FY 

2017/2018 

FY 

2018/2019 

FY 

2019/2020 

FY 

2020/2021 

FY 

2021/2022 

RTS Charge $5,541,364 $6,022,555 $6,371,116 $6,074,192 $5,537,230 $5,233,954 $5,274,931 $5,363,969 $5,494,518 $5,872,377 

Assessment 
 

$49,832 
 

$50,332 
 

$51,056 
 

$51,675 
 

$52,057 
 

$52,709 
 

$53,383 
 

$52,074 
 

$51,635 
 

$64,024 

Administration           
Est. Maximum           
Assessment $5,379,146 $5,374,162 $5,375,222 $5,441,758 $5,445,359 $5,443,845 $5,425,678 $5,431,833 $5,450,397 $5,867,266 

 

The estimated RTS charge through the year 2002 was based on the schedule provided by MWD shown 

in the chart below. Years 2003 through 2011 were based on the projected RTS charge of $5 million. 

The 2012 through 2021 RTS charges are based on the amount approved by the Southern California 

Metropolitan Water District Board for each year. 

Item 8.A - Exhibit A



Three Valleys MWD 

2021/2022 Engineer’s Report 

Water Standby Charge Assessment 

 

Page 4 

 

The amount budgeted to be generated by the assessment for FY 2021/2022 is $4,075,749.87 as 

calculated in Section III. 

Administration of the assessment is performed annually. This administration includes updating the 

annual assessment roll to ensure consistency with the assessment methodology detailed in this 

Engineer's Report. The administration also includes an analysis of the revenues and expenditures from 

the previous Fiscal Year and preparation of an annual report for submittal to the Board of Directors for 

approval of the proposed Fiscal Year’s assessments and expenditures. The table below provides a 

comparison of the assessment between fiscal years. 

 

FY 

2020/2021(1)
 

FY 

2021/2022 
Difference 

(2)
 

Percentage 

Difference 

Parcels 135,607 136,443 836 .62% 

EDU's 186,373 199,499 13,126 7.04% 

Rate/EDU $19.90 $20.43 $0.53 2.66% 

Est. Revenue $3,708,519.36 $4,075,749.87 $367,230.51 9.90% 

(1) Totals for FY 2020/2021 are based on the final applied levy by the Los Angeles County Auditor-Controller’s Office. 

(2)  Note:  Difference between Revenue, EDUs and parcels resulted from audit of parcels and land use designations. 

 

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

3

4.2
4.7

5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
5.5

6 6 6
5.5

5.2 5.3 5.4 5.4
5.8

R
T

S
 C

h
a

rg
e

 (
$

M
il

li
o

n
s)

Three Valley's Share of the MWD's Readiness-to-

Serve Charge

Item 8.A - Exhibit A



Three Valleys MWD 

2021/2022 Engineer’s Report 

Water Standby Charge Assessment 

 

Page 5 

PART III – DESCRIPTION OF ASSESSMENTS 

This section of the report describes the methodology developed to establish the basis of assessment 

for apportioning the cost of providing water services, and the facilities needed to provide water 

services, to each lot or parcel based upon the type of use or potential use of each property. The basis 

of assessment was developed by Berryman & Henigar based upon information provided by the District, 

standard and member agency design criteria, and the requirements of Section 54984.2 of the Uniform 

Standby Charge Procedures Act. The following sections review the requirements of the California 

Government Code and describe the recommended assessment methodology. 

 

A. LEGAL REQUIREMENTS 

Chapter 12.4 "Uniform Standby Charge Procedures Act" of the California Government Code states that 

any local agency that provides water services may, by resolution adopted after notice and hearing, 

determine and levy an assessment for water services pursuant to this chapter. 

The California Government Code further requires that the agency establish a methodology, which is 

related to the benefit received from the water services for calculating the assessment to be levied on 

each parcel. Section 54984.2 provides that: 

“...The governing body of the agency which fixes the charge may establish schedules varying the 

charge according to land uses, benefit derived or to be derived from the use or availability of facilities 

to provide water, sewer, or water and sewer service, or the degree of availability or quantity of the use 

of the water, sewer, or water and sewer services to the affected lands, and may restrict the 

assessment to one or more improvement districts or zones of benefit established within the 

jurisdiction of the agency. The charge may be imposed on an area, frontage, or parcel basis, or a 

combination thereof.” 

All assessments described in this Report and approved by the Board are prepared in accordance with 

the Act and are in compliance with the provisions of the California Constitution Article XIIID (enacted 

by the passage of Proposition 218 in November 1996). 

Pursuant to the California Constitution Article XIIID Section 5, certain assessments that were existing 

on July 1, 1997, the effective date of Article XIIID, are exempt from the substantive and procedural 

requirements of Article XIIID Section 4 and property owner balloting for the assessments is not 

required until such time that the assessments are increased. Exempt are any assessments imposed 

Item 8.A - Exhibit A



Three Valleys MWD 

2021/2022 Engineer’s Report 

Water Standby Charge Assessment 

 

Page 6 

exclusively to finance the capital costs or maintenance and operation expenses for sidewalks, streets, 

sewers, water, flood control, drainage systems, or vector control. 

In May of 2005, Senate Bill 376, was enacted to add Article 2.7 (commencing with Section 71639) to 

Chapter 2 of Part 5 of Division 20 of the Water Code, relating to water. This bill authorizes the agency 

to adopt the standby charge rate with a schedule of annual adjustments, and to adjust the standby 

charge rate in relation to the change of the MWD imposed RTS charge, subject to the maximum 

assessment amount of twenty-nine dollars and forty-one cents ($29.41) per Equivalent Dwelling Unit 

(“EDU”). 

B. ASSESSABLE PARCELS 

The table below summarizes the number of parcels and the total acreage by land use type. This 

information is based on the records of the Assessor of the County of Los Angeles. 

Land Use Category 
Number of 

Parcels 

Dwelling Units 

(DU’s) 
Acres 

Single-Family  Residential (SFR) 108,766 108,663 N/A 

Multi-Family  Residential  and Condominiums 18,085 42,959 N/A 

Mobile  Homes 91 7,055 N/A 

Commercial 3,784 N/A 5,658.96 

Churches 259 N/A 483.36 

Industrial 2,065 N/A 5,493.34 

Recreational  Camping Facilities 2 N/A 8.13 

Vacant Residential 2,487 N/A 7,519.13 

Vacant  Non-Residential 904 N/A 1,574.45 

Exempt 0 N/A 0.00 

Total 136,443   

 

The land use classifications are defined as follows: 

Single-Family Residential - parcels designated as single-family residential per the Los Angeles County 

Assessor's Roll. 

Multi-Family Residential (including Condominiums) - parcels designated as multi-family residential, 

which includes duplexes, apartments, condominiums or other dwelling units with common party walls, 

per the Los Angeles County Assessor's Roll. 

Mobile Homes - parcels designated as mobile homes per the Los Angeles County Assessor's Roll. 

Item 8.A - Exhibit A



Three Valleys MWD 

2021/2022 Engineer’s Report 

Water Standby Charge Assessment 

 

Page 7 

Commercial (including Churches) - parcels designated as commercial, institutional or recreational per 

the Los Angeles County Assessor's Roll. 

Industrial - parcels designated as industrial, utility or other miscellaneous uses, per the Los Angeles 

County Assessor's Roll. 

Recreational Camping Facilities - parcels designated as camps per the Los Angeles County Assessor's 

Roll. 

Vacant - parcels designated as vacant residential that have no dwelling units, or parcels designated as 

vacant commercial/industrial that have no commercial/industrial structures on them, per the Los 

Angeles County Assessor's Roll. 

Exempt - Exempted from the assessment would be any parcel owned by a public agency or within the 

area of public streets and other public properties, utility easements, right-of-way, public schools, 

public parks, and common areas or un-developable parcels of land. 

C. EQUIVALENT DWELLING UNITS 

To determine the benefit to the individual parcels with their varying land uses, an equivalent dwelling 

unit system was established. Each parcel is assigned equivalent dwelling units (EDUs) in proportion to 

the estimated benefit the parcel receives from the availability of water services. The total number of 

EDUs is then divided into the annual revenue requirement to determine the cost per EDU. The 

assessment for each parcel is then determined by multiplying the number of EDUs for each parcel by 

the cost per EDU. 

Since the assessment is based upon the use of the property and the potential water usage of the 

property, the assessment methodology has been developed based on land use. The assessment 

methodology developed determines the number of EDUs to be assigned to each parcel. In determining 

the number of EDUs assigned, three factors are considered: parcel size, land use (intent of 

development), and the water use design factor of the land use of the property. 

Equivalent Dwelling Unit (EDU) factors have been established to indicate the estimated benefit 

received by each parcel within the District. This method of assessment has established the single- family 

residential parcel as the basic unit for calculation of the assessment and is defined as one EDU. All 

other parcels within the District are assigned a proportional EDU based on a formula that equates the 

properties specific development status (land use) and size to that of the single- family parcel. 

The assignment of EDUs to each of the different land uses is as follows: 

Item 8.A - Exhibit A



Three Valleys MWD 

2021/2022 Engineer’s Report 

Water Standby Charge Assessment 

 

Page 8 

Single-Family Residential (SFR). The single-family parcel has been defined as being 1.0 EDU. 

Multi-Family Residential. Multi-family or condominium parcels are converted to EDUs based on the 

number of dwelling units on each parcel. Due to population density and size of structure relative to the 

typical single-family residence, each dwelling unit defined as multi-family residential, including 

condominiums is 0.75 EDU. Water availability benefit does not increase proportionately as the number 

of units increase on a multi-family parcel. By decreasing the equivalency as the number of units 

increase, a reasonable benefit assessment is achieved. Therefore, the equivalency is reduced to 0.5 

EDU per dwelling unit, for apartment buildings with 5 units or more. Parcels with 5 or more units are 

considered "high density" as opposed to the "medium density" of duplexes, triplexes and four-plexes, 

and the Los Angeles County Assessor's land use codes segregate these parcels out. 

Mobile Homes. Mobile home parks, and mobile homes located within mobile home parks, are 

converted to EDUs based on the population density and size of structure relative to a single-family 

residence. Therefore, mobile home parks and mobile homes located in mobile home parks are 

assessed 0.5 EDU per mobile home. No decrease is applied to this factor, as mobile homes are all 

separate dwellings with no common walls. 

Studies have consistently shown that the average apartment unit impacts infrastructure approximately 

75% as much as a single-family residence, and the average mobile home unit impacts infrastructure 

approximately 50%, (Sources: Institute of Transportation Engineers Informational Report Trip 

Generation, Fifth Edition, 1991; Metcalf and Eddy, Wastewater Engineering Treatment, Disposal, 

Reuse, Third Edition, 1991). Trip generation and wastewater usage are functions of population density. 

It is concluded that other infrastructure will be similarly impacted at a reduced level. The smaller 

average unit size of multiple residential and mobile homes and their reduced impact on water use 

result in a lesser benefit per unit to property. 

Commercial/Industrial. Commercial and industrial parcels are converted to EDUs based on the lot 

size of each parcel of land. The number of equivalent dwelling units per acre for commercial/industrial 

property has been equated to the average single-family residential lot size of approximately 8,700 

square feet, or 5 lots per acre. All properties that are developed for commercial/ industrial uses are 

therefore assigned 5.0 EDU's per acre for the first five acres, with a minimum of 1 EDU per parcel. 

Based upon a review of large non-residential parcels within the District, as the parcel size increases 

above five acres, the development density on the parcel generally decreases due to requirements to 

provide on-site circulation, allow for the storage of materials or equipment, provide buffers to 

adjacent land uses and other factors associated with the types of development which require larger 

parcels. Therefore, after the first 5 acres, each additional acre will be charged as vacant land as further 

described below; 25% of 5.0 EDU's, or 1.25 EDU's per acre. 

Item 8.A - Exhibit A



Three Valleys MWD 

2021/2022 Engineer’s Report 

Water Standby Charge Assessment 

 

Page 9 

Additionally, a water use factor is applied to both the commercial and industrial parcels as follows, based 

on relative average water usage as compared to single-family residential developments: 

• Commercial Water Use Factor = 1.4 

• Industrial Water Use Factor = 1.1 

Recreational Camping Facilities. Recreational camping facilities typically have large land areas 

comprised of mostly park-like open space and only a few buildings. Therefore, to more accurately assign 

EDUs to these parcels, a "theoretical area" will be calculated for each of them. The typical developed 

commercial parcel has 1/3 of its lot area covered by improvements. Using this standard, the 

"theoretical area" is computed by multiplying the improvement area of each camping parcel by 3. This 

"theoretical area" is then converted to acreage, and the Equivalent Dwelling Unit factor of 5 EDU per 

acre is applied. 

Vacant. Vacant property receives a benefit from water services availability. Water availability allows 

the parcel to develop to its maximum use in the future. Based upon the opinions of professional 

appraisers who appraise current market property values for real estate in Southern California, the land 

value portion of a property typically ranges from 20 to 30 percent; in the Three Valleys Municipal Water 

District, the average is about 25 percent. Additionally, the utilization of vacant property is significantly 

less than improved property. Consequently, vacant property shall be assessed at the rate of 25% of 

improved property. Therefore, vacant single-family residential parcels are assessed 25% of a 

developed SFR parcel, or 0.25 EDU per parcel, and vacant non-SFR parcels are assessed at the rate of 

25% of the developed commercial/industrial properties, or 1.25 EDUs per acre or any portion thereof, 

up to a maximum of 5 acres per parcel. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 8.A - Exhibit A



Three Valleys MWD 

2021/2022 Engineer’s Report 

Water Standby Charge Assessment 

 

Page 10 

A summary of Equivalent Dwelling Units and Benefit Factors is shown on the following table: 

EQUIVALENT DWELLING UNITS 

LAND USE BASIC UNIT  EDU 

FACTOR 

 USE 

FACTOR 

 EDU RATES 

Single-Family Res. (SFR) 1 DU x 1 x 1 = 1.0 EDU/DU 

Multi-Family Res. and 

Condominiums 

1 DU x 0.75 x 1  0.75 EDU/DU for 

the first 4 DU’s 

1 DU x 0.5 x 1 = 0.5 EDU/DU after 
the 4

th DU 

 

Mobile Homes 

 

1 DU 

 

x 

 

0.5 

 

x 

 

1 

 

= 
0.5 EDU/DU 

 
 

Commercial 

 

1 acre 

 

x 

 

5 

 

x 

 

1.4 

 

= 

7.0 EDU/acre for 
the first 5 acres 
(min. 1 
EDU/parcel) 

 
1 acre 

 
x 

 
1.25 

 
x 

 
1.4 

 
= 

1.75 EDU/acre 
after the 5th acre 

 
 
 

Industrial 

 

1 acre 

 

x 

 

5 

 

x 

 

1.1 

 

= 

5.5 EDU/acre for 
the first 5 acres 
(min. 1 
EDU/parcel) 

 
1 acre 

 
x 

 
1.25 

 
x 

 
1.1 

 
= 

1.375 EDU/acre 
after the 5th acre 

Recreational Camping 
Facilities 

 
1 acre* 

 
x 

 
5 

 
x 

 
1 

 
= 

5.0 EDU/acre 

Vacant SFR 1 parcel x 0.25 x 1 = 0.25 EDU/parcel 

 

Vacant Non-SFR 

 

1 acre 

 

x 

 

1.25 

 

x 

 

1 

 

= 

1.25 EDU/acre 
(min. .25 
EDU/parcel; max 
of 5 acres/parcel) 

 

D. ASSESSMENT RATES 

The total number of Equivalent Dwelling Units (EDUs) has been calculated for the District based upon 

current land use data as shown on the latest assessor's roll for Los Angeles County and the methodology 

described above. The number of EDUs by land use type is shown in the table below: 

Item 8.A - Exhibit A



Three Valleys MWD 

2021/2022 Engineer’s Report 

Water Standby Charge Assessment 

 

Page 11 

 

 
Land-Use Type 

 
Equivalent 

Dwelling Units 

SFR 108,766.00 

MFR  and Condominium 27,772.75 

Mobile Home Parks 4,027.50 

Commercial 31,607.68 

Churches 3,164.51 

Industrial 22,633.42 

Recreational  Camping Facilities 0.86 

Vacant SFR 621.75 

Vacant Non-SFR 904.68 

Total: 199,499.15 

 

Based upon the budget of $4,075,749.87 as shown in Section II of this report, the Assessment Rate for 

FY 2021/2022 per Equivalent Dwelling Unit (EDU) is $20.43/EDU, as calculated below. 

 

Total Equivalent 

Dwelling Units 

Applied 

Assessment 

Rate/EDU 

FY 2020/2021 

Total Assessment 

Revenue 

199,499.15 $20.43 $4,075,749.87 

Note: Difference in Total Assessment and EDUs multiplied by the Rate is due to rounding. 

The following table, Summary of Assessment Rates, provides the proposed Maximum Assessment and 

Applied Assessment Rates for the ten-year period beginning with FY 2012/2013. The Board may 

continue to levy the Assessment in future years (i.e. beyond FY 2021/2022) so long as MWD continues 

to impose the RTS charge upon the District. However, the maximum Assessment Rate per EDU shall 

never be greater than $29.41, nor shall the total amount assessed be greater than the sum of the RTS 

charge and administrative costs. 

 

 

 

 

Item 8.A - Exhibit A



Three Valleys MWD 

2021/2022 Engineer’s Report 

Water Standby Charge Assessment 

 

Page 12 

SUMMARY OF MAXIMUM AND APPLIED ASSESSMENT RATES 

 

Fiscal Year 2012/2013 2013/2014 2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020 2020/2021 2021/2022 

Maximum 

Assessments 

 

$29.41 

 

$29.41 

 

$29.41 

 

$29.41 

 

$29.41 

 

$29.41 

 

$29.41 

 

$29.41 

 

$29.41 

 

$29.41 

Rate/EDU           

Applied Assessments $20.46 $23.22 $25.02 $23.09 $20.16 $18.51 $18.79 $19.23 $19.90 $20.43 

Rate/EDU           

 

E. AMOUNT OF ASSESSMENT 

The amount of the proposed assessment for FY 2021/2022, based on EDUs as apportioned to each 

parcel shown on the latest roll of the Los Angeles County Assessor, is contained in the Assessment Roll 

on file in the office of the Secretary of the Three Valleys Municipal Water District. The description of 

each parcel is part of the records of the County Assessor and these records are, by reference, made a 

part of this Engineers Report. 

F. ACCURACY OF DATA 

The data utilized in developing the assessment rate calculations has been taken directly from the Los 

Angeles County Assessor's Roll. 

Some parcels that are partially improved often will appear on the Assessor's roll as improved. These 

parcels that are brought to the attention of the District, and are found to be so classified after field 

review, will have their assessment revised per this report: for that portion of the property which is 

improved, the developed land use benefit formula will apply; for that portion of the property which is 

unimproved, the vacant land use benefit formula will apply. 

Should a property owner find a discrepancy regarding a parcel, it is recommended that the owner notify 

the Three Valleys Municipal Water District by contacting the Secretary of the Three Valleys Municipal 

Water District. If warranted, the District will assist the owner in processing a correction with the 

County Assessor's Office. The District will be responsible for revisions to the Water Standby Charge 

Assessment for the property for the current Fiscal Year if the change in amount is greater than five 

percent (5%). If the change is less than or equal to five percent, then the adjustment for the following 

year will be made at the time that the annual assessments are determined for the next Fiscal Year, and 

no refund will be made for the previous year's assessment. 

 

Item 8.A - Exhibit A



Three Valleys MWD 

2021/2022 Engineer’s Report 

Water Standby Charge Assessment 

 

Page 13 

EXHIBIT A 

SAMPLE CALCULATIONS FOR VARIOUS LAND USES 

              

               Land Use              Benefit Calculation (EDU) x (Use Factor)                 
                                               

EDUs              $20.43/EDU 

 

Single Family Res. 

 

(1 DU x 1 EDU/DU) 

 

x 

 

1.0 

 

= 

 

1 

 

$20.43 

 

Triplex 

 

(3 DU x .75 EDU/DU) 

 

x 

 

1.0 

 

= 

 

2.25 

 

$45.97 

 

10-Unit Apartment 

 

[(4 DU x .75 EDU/DU) + (6 DU x .5EDU/DU)] 

 

x 

 

1.0 

 

= 

 

6 

 

$122.58 

 

90-Unit Apartment 

 

[(4 DU x .75 EDU/DU) + (86 DU x .5EDU/DU)] 

 

x 

 

1.0 

 

= 

 

46 

 

$939.78 

 

Store ¼ acre parcel 

 

(¼ acre x 5.0 EDU/acre) 

 

x 

 

1.4 

 

= 

 

1.75 

 

$35.75 

Bank/Office Bldg. ½ 
acre parcel 

 

(½ acre x 5.0 EDU/acre) 

 

x 

 

1.4 

 

= 

 

3.5 

 

$71.51 

Office Building 2 acre 
parcel 

 

(2 acre x 5.0 EDU/acre) 

 

x 

 

1.4 

 

= 

 

14 

 

$286.02 

Service Station ⅓ acre 
parcel 

 

(⅓ acre x 5.0 EDU/acre) 

 

x 

 

1.4 

 

= 

 

2.33 

 

$47.66 

Light Manufacturing ¼ 

acre parcel 

 

(¼ acre x 5.0 EDU/acre) 

 

x 

 

1.1 

 

= 

 

1.38 

 

$28.09 

Heavy Manufacturing 7 
acre parcel 

 

[(5 ac x 5.0 EDU/ac) + (2 ac x 1.25 EDU/ac)] 

 

x 

 

1.1 

 

= 

 

30.25 

 

$618.01 

Recreational Camping 
Facility 

 

[(2,500 sf x 3) ÷ 43,560 sf/ac)] x 5.0 EDU/ac 

 

x 

 

1.0 

 

= 

 

0.86 

 

$17.59 

 

Vacant SFR 

 

(1 parcel x .25 EDU/parcel) 

 

x 

 

1.0 

 

= 

 

0.25 

 

$5.11 

Vacant Non-SFR 1 

acre parcel 

 

(1 acre x 1.25 EDU/acre) 

 

x 

 

1.0 

 

= 

 

1.25 

 

$25.54 

Vacant Non-SFR 5+ 

acre parcel 

 

(5 acre x 1.25 EDU/acre) 

 

x 

 

1.0 

 

= 

 

6.25 

 

$127.69 

Note:  Total Assessment EDU may not calculate exactly due to rounding. 

Item 8.A - Exhibit A



Three Valleys MWD 

2021/2022 Engineer’s Report 

Water Standby Charge Assessment 

 

Page 14 

 

EXHIBIT B 

 

ASSESSMENT ROLL FOR FY 2021/2022 

Each Assessor Parcel Number and its assessment to be levied for FY 2021/2022 is shown on the 

Assessment Roll on file in the office of the Secretary of the Three Valleys Municipal Water District and is 

incorporated herein by reference. Reference is made to the Los Angeles County Assessor’s office for 

further description of the parcels in the District. 

 

 

 

 

Item 8.A - Exhibit A



For Action  Fiscal Impact  $ 

Information Only Funds Budgeted: 

Staff Recommendation: 

No Action Necessary – Informational Item Only 

Discussion: 

Staff is pleased to announce TVMWD has been awarded the Certificate of Achievement 
for Excellence in Financial Reporting presented by the Government Finance Officers 
Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) for its Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. This is the fourteenth 
consecutive year TVMWD has received this award. 

This certificate is awarded to government units whose Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report achieves the highest standards in governmental accounting and financial 
reporting. Receiving this award demonstrates TVMWD’s continued commitment to 
transparency and full disclosure in our financial reporting. 

Strategic Plan Objective(s): 

3.1 – Utilize and comply with a set of financial policies to maintain TVMWD’s 
financial health 

3.3 – Be accountable and transparent with major decisions 

Attachment(s): 

Exhibit A – Financial Report Award 

Meeting History: 

None 

NA/JL 

To: TVMWD Board of Directors  

From: Matthew H. Litchfield, General Manager  

Date: June 2, 2021 

Subject: Government Finance Officers Association Award 

Board of Directors 
Staff Report 

Item 8.B



5/17/2021

Bob Kuhn
President of the Board
Three Valleys Municipal Water District, California

Dear Mr. Kuhn:

We are pleased to notify you that your comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2020 qualifies for GFOA's Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting. 
The Certificate of Achievement is the highest form of recognition in governmental accounting and 
financial reporting, and its attainment represents a significant accomplishment by a government and its 
management.

When a Certificate of Achievement is awarded to a government, an Award of Financial Reporting 
Achievement (AFRA) is also presented to the individual(s) or department designated by the government 
as primarily responsible for its having earned the Certificate. This award has been sent to the submitter as 
designated on the application.

We hope that you will arrange for a formal presentation of the Certificate and Award of Financial 
Reporting Achievement, and give appropriate publicity to this notable achievement. A sample news 
release is included to assist with this effort.

We hope that your example will encourage other government officials in their efforts to achieve and 
maintain an appropriate standard of excellence in financial reporting.

Sincerely,

Michele Mark Levine
Director, Technical Services

Item 8.B - Exhibit A



Government Finance Officers Association

Certificate of 
Achievement
for Excellence

in Financial 
Reporting

Presented to

Three Valleys Municipal Water District
California

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report

For the Fiscal Year Ended

June 30, 2020

Executive Director/CEO

Item 8.B - Exhibit A



To: TVMWD Board of Directors 

From: Matthew H. Litchfield, General Manager 

Date: June 2, 2021 

Subject: General Manager FY 2021-22 Work Plan 

For Action  Fiscal Impact  Funds Budgeted 

Information Only Cost Estimate: 

Staff Recommendation: 

No Action Necessary – Informational Item Only 

Background: 

Each year, the General Manager and Executive Staff prepare the General Manager Work 
Plan (“Work Plan”) that lays out the specific projects or initiatives to meet the overall goals 
in support of the TVMWD mission outlined in the Annual Strategic Plan.   

Discussion: 
The FY 2021-22 Work Plan outlines specific projects, initiatives and activities that are 
measurable with specific performance objectives. A copy of the proposed Work Plan is 
attached as Exhibit A. All the activities outlined in the Work Plan are designed to further 
the mission of TVMWD and each activity listed is referenced back to each specific 
strategic goal outlined in the FY 2021/22 Strategic Plan.  New or significantly modified 
objectives from the previous fiscal year General Manager Work Plan are identified in the 
new plan. 

Strategic Plan Objective(s): 

3.3 – Be accountable and transparent with major decisions 
3.4 – Communicate TVMWD’s role in the delivery of water 

Attachment(s): 

Exhibit A – General Manager’s Work Plan, Fiscal Year 2021-22 

Board of Directors 
Staff Report 

Item 8.C



  Page 2 

Meeting History: 

None 

NA/ML 

 

Item 8.C



*New activity added by General Manager Litchfield
General Manager Work Plan FY 2021-22 Rev. May 2021 

1 

THREE VALLEYS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT         
GENERAL MANAGER’S WORK PLAN  

FISCAL YEAR 2021-22 
The mission of Three Valleys Municipal Water District is to supplement and enhance 

local water supplies to meet our region’s needs in a reliable and cost-effective manner. 

PLANNED ACTIVITIES 
Activity Success Measure District Strategic Objectives 

1. TVMWD Miragrand Avenue Well
Complete design and publicly bid well site improvements. 

• Complete 100% plans and specifications
• Public bidding for well site improvements
• Landscape and site design conforms to conceptual renderings

developed with the local neighbors
• Equipping and placing well into service in CY 2022

1.1, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5 
2.1 

2. TVMWD Padua Avenue Well*
Pursue purchase of a portion of property owned by Caltrans
near Baseline and Padua for a future well.

• Execute Decertification Agreement with Caltrans
• Negotiate a purchase agreement with Caltrans

1.1, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, 2.1 

3. TVMWD Emergency Electrical Upgrade*
Construction of new electrical facilities to allow a portable
generator to connect to Miramar Water Treatment Plant

• Complete RFP and publicly bid
• Construct new facilities
• Test system to be prepared for emergency electrical shutdowns

1.4,1.5 

4. Maximize Energy Production from Hydrogeneration Units
Maximize run times for all three hydro stations to maximize 
revenue. 

• Meet or Exceed budgeted goals for power production. 2.1 

5. Six Basins Operating Agreement*
Execute a new agreement for operation of Old Baldy Well and
future Durward Well on behalf of PBWA parties.

• Execute agreement with PBWA parties with Board approval
• Continue pursuit of DDW Permit Amendment permitting

TVMWD to operate the wells.

2.1 
3.3 
4.4 

6. Miramar/JWL Pump Back Agreement*
Create new agreement to memorialize pump back operations
with JWL parties.  Currently no agreement exists.

• Develop draft agreement with JWL parties
• Execute agreement with JWL parties with Board approval

2.1 
3.3 
4.4 

7. Maximize Water Sales Through Miramar
Maximizing water production in treatment plant decreases unit 
cost of water.  Includes maximizing well production year-
round. 

• Meet or exceed budgeted goals for water sales.
• Maintaining strong working relationships with Member

Agencies.

1.2 
2.1, 2.2, 2.3 

8. Monthly Key Performance Metrics Report and Strategic
Plan Activities Progress Report 
Reports for Board identifying key performance metrics and our 
progress towards achieving Strategic Plan Goals. 

• Inclusion in Board SharePoint site and update monthly 3.3 

Item 8.C - Exhibit A



*New activity added by General Manager Litchfield 
General Manager Work Plan FY 2021-22  Rev. May 2021 

2 

PLANNED ACTIVITIES 

 Activity Success Measure District Strategic Objectives 

9. District Facility Modifications 
Continue to improve office space efficiency for staff as well as 
replacement of covered parking structure. 

• Explore cost-effective options to replace or repair covered 
parking due to structural deficiencies 

• Provide covered sunscreen structures for critical infrastructure 

1.4 

10. Financial/Human Resources Software Replacement 
Planning 
Tyler Technologies is no longer doing R&D to improve our 
EDEN financial software.  Support provided by Tyler had 
degraded.  Identify options to transition from EDEN. 

• Staff will disseminate RFP that includes requirements of a new 
financial and human resources software. 

• Staff will select new vendor and establish a timeline for 
implementation, tentatively planned for fall 2022.  

3.1 
4.1, 4.5 

11. Job Continuity Guidelines 
Work with administrative staff to finalize and maintain job 
continuity guidelines for each individual job classification. 

• Provide new presentation of expectations and why needed 
• Managers will work with staff to complete handbooks 

4.2 

12. Emergency Response 
Continue to work with PWAG and conduct internal tabletop 
exercise and one “surprise” drill (Date TBD).  Implement 
additional NIMS/SEMS training and develop ICS form library 
and EOC supplies. 

• EOC hands-on drill with a total of up to three (3) drills per year 
• Train staff on specific roles in EOC 
• Schedule additional SEMS/NIMS training for staff 
• Utilize virtual training and tools for staff development 

1.4, 1.5 
3.5 

13. Geographical Information Systems (GIS) Implementation 
Develop and institute GIS District wide to improve workflow 
efficiencies and improve asset management capabilities. 

• Prepare RFP and select qualified consultant 
• Develop ESRI-based GIS applications to improve efficiency of 

operations 
• Implement Asset Management with GIS 

 

1.4 
3.1 
4.3, 4.5 

14. Information Technology Master Plan 
Develop planning documentation and institute practices for the 
management of the district’s hardware and software programs 

• Assess & align software program versions 
• Revamp hardware rotation schedule 
• Review/modify IT contracts and subscriptions 
• Manage security camera systems 
• Place physical backup server in EOC 
• Assess current cyber-attack risks and improve protections 

3.1 
4.1, 4.3, 4.5 

15. District Website Enhancements 
Investigate the need and potential for improving the District’s 
website for visual and navigational enhancements and 
improved transparency. 

• Insert all board meeting recordings on website for up to 2 years 
• Develop and publish a video on the history of TVMWD 

3.2, 3.3, 3.4 
4.3 

16. TVMWD Sponsored Legislation* 
Pursue legislation that modifies Brown Act teleconferencing 
rules and improves access to public meetings by the public. 

• Assembly Bill 703 (AB 703) successfully signed into law by 
the Governor during the 2-year legislative cycle 

3.4, 3.5 

Item 8.C - Exhibit A



*New activity added by General Manager Litchfield 
General Manager Work Plan FY 2021-22  Rev. May 2021 

3 

PLANNED ACTIVITIES 

 Activity Success Measure District Strategic Objectives 

17. MWD Rialto Feeder PCCP Rehabilitation 
Explore options to maintain service to Miramar and other 
member agencies for long term 6 to 9 month shutdowns for 
Rialto Feeder for PCCP repairs/replacement. 

• Pursue a regional project alternative that benefits multiple 
agencies 

• Develop short list of potential projects 
• Execute non-binding LOI with all parties 
• Collaborate with MWD on regional solution and funding 

mechanisms 

1.3, 1.5 
2.4 

18. MWD Regional Recycled Water Project (“Carson Project”)  
Pursue potential capacity in the Carson Project for recharge in 
the Main San Gabriel Basin 

• Execute non-binding LOI among MWD, USGVMWD, and 
MSGBWM with a potential range of capacity of take of 
advanced treated water 

• Pursue agreement with PBWA for capacity in Carson Project 

1.1, 1.3, 1.5 
2.4, 2.5 
3.4 
3.5 

19. MWD Rate Refinement* 
Actively participate in the 2021 Rate Refinement Process 
ensuring the future financial stability of MWD. 

• Participate in all workshops and committee meetings 
• Advocate for rate changes to improve MWD’s financial 

standing for long term stability in a various water demand 
environments 

• Advocate for MWD operating budget cost cutting measures 

2.4 
3.4 

20. Increase Water Storage Capabilities* 
Pursue opportunities to store additional SWP water in local 
groundwater basins 

• Pursue Storage Agreement in Chino Basin 
• Store additional water in the Main San Gabriel Groundwater 

Basin when water supplies and district finances are sufficient 
• Pursue additional sources of replenishment water in 6 Basins 

Groundwater Basin due to additional TVMWD well extractions 
including the possibility of SARRCUP water. 

• Execute Memorandum of Agreement with LA County Public 
Works and City of Glendora for PM-26A service connection 
for Big Dalton Spreading Grounds  

• Continue to work with MWD on pursuing PM-27 and PM-29 
Service Connections. 

1.1, 1.3, 1.5 
2.4, 2.5 

21. TVMWD Water Conservation Support Programs* 
Continue to promote all water conservation programs on behalf 
of our member agencies 

• Promote MWD funding for programs and rebates 
• Support Member Agency Conservation Coordinators’ 

programs 
• Provide outreach in support of conservation initiatives 

1.3, 1.6 

 

Item 8.C - Exhibit A



 

 

 For Action   Fiscal Impact   Funds Budgeted 

 Information Only  Cost Estimate: $2,800,000 

Requested Action: 

No Action Necessary – Informational Item Only 

Discussion: 

Phase 2 - Well Equipping Bids 
The TVMWD Miragrand Well Equipping Project will involve construction and installation 
of 8-inch and 12-inch discharge piping, a vertical turbine pump, 125 horsepower motor, a 
well enclosure building, a new SCE transformer to provide electrical power to the well, 
electrical improvements, and SCADA integration/programming tasks. 
 
A mandatory pre-bid meeting was held on May 3, 2021 and final bids were opened on 
May 26, 2021.  The initial bid results are shown in Table 1 below. The apparent low bid 
of $2,668,408 is $317,592 (10.6%) lower than the Engineer’s Estimate of $2,986,000. 
 

Table 1 – Bid Summary 
 

No. Company Name Bid Amount 
1 Pyramid Building & Engineering, Inc. $2,668,408 
2 Pacific Hydrotech Corporation $2,893,600 
3 Cora Constructors $2,916,000 
4 Schuler Constructors, Inc. $3,194,000 
5 R.C. Foster Corporation $3,368,000 

 
Staff is in the process of confirming the completeness and accuracy of all the bids and 
reviewing the references and financial information provided by the apparent low bidder 
(Pyramid Building & Engineering, Inc).   
 
Staff will provide a recommendation to award construction at the June 16, 2021 Board 
meeting. The construction work and related activities are anticipated to require 
approximately ten months to complete. 

To: TVMWD Board of Directors  

From: Matthew H. Litchfield, General Manager  

Date: June 2, 2021 

Subject: Miragrand Well Equipping (Project No. 58463) 

 

Board of Directors 
Staff Report 

 

Item 8.D



 Page 2

Strategic Plan Objective(s): 

1.1 – Secure water supplies that exceed the estimated annual demands by 10%. 
1.3 – Maintain diverse and environmentally responsible sources of water supplies and 
storage. 
1.5 – Prepare for long-term MWD shutdown or catastrophic event that affects 
operations. 
3.3 – Be accountable and transparent with major decisions 

Attachment(s): 

None 

Meeting History: 

None 

NA/BP/TK 

Item 8.D



 

 

 For Action   Fiscal Impact  $       

 Information Only  Funds Budgeted:  

Staff Recommendation: 
No Action Necessary – Informational Item Only 
 
Discussion: 
On June, 17, 2020, the Board authorized the General Manager to award a professional 
services agreement to Stetson Engineer’s, Inc. for the purpose of developing and 
preparing the District’s 2020 Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP). 
The District also partnered with five of our member agencies to jointly develop our 
respective 2020 UWMP documents.  The participating agencies are City of Glendora, 
Golden State Water Company, City of Pomona, Rowland Water District, and Walnut 
Valley Water District with Three Valleys MWD serving in the role of lead 
agency and providing oversight of the administrative functions for this project. 
The Urban Water Management Act (Act), which was enacted by the California Legislature 
in 1983, requires that every urban water supplier providing water for municipal purposes 
to more than 3,000 customers or supplying more than 3,000 acre-feet of water annually 
prepare and adopt an UWMP, in accordance with prescribed requirements.   
The Act also specifies the requirements and procedures for each water supplier to adopt 
a Water Shortage Contingency Plan (WSCP).  The District’s 2020 UWMP incorporates 
the District’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan.The Act requires submission of an 
updated UWMP to the California Department of Water Resources (DWR) every five 
years. The District is required to complete and submit the 2020 UWMP to DWR by July 
1, 2021.  The last submittal of the District’s UWMP (2015) was adopted by the Board on 
May 18, 2016.An UWMP is required in order for a water supplier to be eligible for any 
water grant or loan administered by DWR or other state funding. 
The current requirements for preparing the UWMP are included in the California Water 
Code (CWC) Sections 10608 through 10657.  Stetson has prepared the District’s 2020 
UWMP in compliance with the CWC and following the recommended framework provided 
in DWR’s Final “Urban Water Management Plan Guidebook 2020”, dated March 2021. 

To: TVMWD Board of Directors  

From: Matthew H. Litchfield, General Manager  

Date: June 2, 2021 

Subject: Draft 2020 Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP) and Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan (WSCP) Review 

 

Board of Directors 
Staff Report 

 

Item 8.E



 Page 2

The Act requires urban water suppliers to perform planning analyses to evaluate reliability 
as part of the development of an UWMP including: (1) a water supply reliability 
assessment, which requires development of a detailed evaluation of the supplies 
necessary to meet demands over at least a 25-year planning horizon in normal conditions, 
single dry-year conditions, and five consecutive dry years; (2) a water shortage 
contingency plan that documents the stages of actions needed to address up to a 50 
percent reduction in an agency’s water supplies; and (3) an emergency plan that defines 
the actions to be taken in the event of a catastrophic interruption in water supplies.   
In addition, the Act requires urban water suppliers to describe water supply projects and 
programs, efficient uses of water, demand management measures, implementation 
strategy and schedule, water quality impacts, and the agency’s coordination process with 
various stakeholders in preparation of the UWMP. 
The UWMP is a planning document that helps the urban water suppliers to assess 
existing and future water demands and evaluate long-term supply reliability.  The UWMP 
also evaluates potential future sources and water conservation efforts to improve overall 
reliability for a water supplier’s service area. The 2020 UWMP satisfies all the process 
and content reporting requirements mandated by the Act and provides a comprehensive 
summary of the District’s water demand and supply outlook through 2045.The UWMP 
describes the Three Valleys MWD service area, the retail water agencies served, the 
sources of water used within Three Valleys and corresponding projections of supply 
through 2045. The District’s member agencies played a part in providing data and 
comment throughout this process.  

Public Input Process 
• Pursuant to Section 10620(d)(3) of the California Water code, water suppliers are

required to send notifications to water management agencies, relevant public
agencies, and other water suppliers that the Urban Water Management Plan is being
updated and that they are invited to provide comments during the update process.
This was done on October 28, 2020 and the contact list is in Exhibit B.

• The UWMP was also discussed at several of the past monthly Member Agencies
Managers’ meetings. TVMWD incorporated comments received (as appropriate) from
its member agencies into the draft plan.

• On May 25, 2021, TVMWD sent out a Notice of Public Hearing to be held on June
16,2021, for the 2020 UWMP and the WSCP to its member agencies, cities within our
service area, Inland Empire Utilities Agency, Chino Basin Watermaster, Main San
Gabriel Basin Watermaster, Metropolitan Water District, Six Basins Watermaster,
Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District, and Los Angeles County.  All
entities are invited to attend and provide comments.  A copy of the draft 2020 UWMP
and WSCP was made available on the District’s website.

Key Reporting Points of this Plan 
• TVMWD has supply capabilities that would be sufficient to meet expected demands

from 2020 through 2045 under average year, single dry-year, and mulitiple dry-year
hydrologic conditions.

Item 8.E



  Page 3 
 
 

• TVMWD has comprehensive plans for stages of actions it would undertake to address 
up to 50 percent reduction in water supplies due to drought or catostrophic events 
through its Water Shortage Contingency Plan in coordination with Metropolitan’s 
Water Supply Allocation plan. 

• Population is only expected to grow by 9.4% over the entire Three Valleys service 
area from 2020 to 2045.   

• Total water demands on TVMWD are expected to be stable under normal conditions.  
Significant changes may occur in scenarios where extreme hydrological conditions 
alter either demands or water supplies.  This could be a wet year where demands 
decrease due to local precipitation or a dry year when demands increase to meet 
water needs.  

• TVMWD plans to increase local supplies through developing additional groundwater 
production capabilities.  The projected goal is to produce 3,000 acre-feet per year from 
groundwater sources by 2045.   

 

Strategic Plan Objective(s): 
1.1  – Secure water supplies that exceed the estimated annual demands by 10%. 
1.3  – Maintain diverse and environmentally responsible sources of water supplies and 

  storage. 
1.4  – Maintain water infrastructure to assure 100% reliability. 
1.5  – Prepare for long-term MWD shutdown or catastrophic event that affects  

  operations.  
1.6 – Support Water Conservation Programs and Water Use Efficiency.  
2.1 – Increase Miramar Treatment Plant deliveries to 60%-70% of available capacity. 
2.5 – Increase ability to store water for future use. 
3.3 – Be accountable and transparent with major decisions. 
 
 
Attachment(s): 
Exhibit A – Resolution No. 21-06-DRAFT Adopting the 2020 UWMP 
Exhibit B – Resolution No. 21-06-DRAFT Adopting the Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
Exhibit C – Draft TVMWD 2020 Urban Water Management Plan 
Exhibit D – Draft TVMWD 2020 Urban Water Management Plan Appendices 
 
Meeting History: 
None 
 
 
NA/LC/TK 
 

Item 8.E



Resolution No. 21-06-DRAFT 

RESOLUTION NO. 21-06-DRAFT 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
THREE VALLEYS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

ADOPTING THE 2020 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 

WHEREAS, the Urban Water Management Planning Act requires urban water 
suppliers providing water for municipal purposes to more than 3,000 customers or 
supplying more than 3,000 acre-feet of water annually prepare and adopt, in accordance 
with prescribed requirements, an urban water management plan every five years; and 

WHEREAS, the Urban Water Management Planning Act specifies the 
requirements and procedures for adopting such Urban Water Management Plans; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of Three Valleys Municipal Water District has 
duly reviewed, discussed, and considered the 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and 
has determined the 2020 Urban Water Management Plan to be consistent with the Urban 
Water Management Planning Act and to be an accurate representation of the water 
resources plan for Three Valleys Municipal Water District. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of Three 
Valleys Municipal Water District that, on June 16, 2021, this District hereby adopts this 
2020 Urban Water Management Plan for submittal to the State of California. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED at a meeting of the Three Valleys 
Municipal Water District’s Board of Directors held via teleconference this 16TH day of June 
2021, by the following vote:  

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

Bob G. Kuhn 
President, Board of Directors 

ATTEST: 

Carlos Goytia 
Secretary, Board of Directors   SEAL 

Item 8.E - Exhibit A



 

Resolution No. 21-06-DRAFT 
Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 21-06-DRAFT 
 
 A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
 THREE VALLEYS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 ADOPTING THE WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Urban Water Management Planning Act requires urban water 
suppliers providing water for municipal purposes to more than 3,000 customers or 
supplying more than 3,000 acre-feet of water annually prepare and adopt, in accordance 
with prescribed requirements, an urban water management plan every five years; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Urban Water Management Planning Act specifies the 

requirements and procedures for adopting such Water Shortage Contingency Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Urban Water Management Planning Act requires urban water 

suppliers to conduct an annual water supply and demand assessment (Annual 
Assessment) each year and to include in their water shortage contingency plans the 
procedures they use to conduct the Annual Assessment; and 

 
WHEREAS, the procedures used to conduct an Annual Assessment include, but 

are not limit to, the written decision-making process that an urban water supplier will use 
each year to determine its water supply reliability; and 

 
WHEREAS, Three Valleys Municipal Water District’s (TVMWD’s) water shortage 

contingency plan provides that by June of each year, TVMWD staff will present a 
completed Annual Assessment for approval by TVMWD’s Board of Directors or by the 
Board’s authorized designee with expressly delegated authority for approval of Annual 
Assessment determinations; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of Three Valleys Municipal Water District has 

duly reviewed, discussed, and considered such Water Shortage Contingency Plan and 
has determined the Water Shortage Contingency Plan to be consistent with the Urban 
Water Management Planning Act and to be an accurate representation of the planned 
actions during shortage conditions for Three Valleys Municipal Water District. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of Three 
Valleys Municipal Water District that, on June 16, 2021, this District hereby adopts this 
Water Shortage Contingency Plan for submittal to the State of California and expressly 
authorizes the General Manager of Three Valleys Municipal Water District to approve the 
Annual Assessment each year. 

 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED at a meeting of the Three Valleys Municipal 
Water District’s Board of Directors held via teleconference this 16TH day of June 2021 by 
the following vote:     
 
 
 
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit B



Resolution No. 21-06-DRAFT 
Page 2 of 2 

AYES:  
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

Bob G. Kuhn 
President, Board of Directors 

ATTEST: 

Carlos Goytia 
Secretary, Board of Directors 

SEAL 

Item 8.E - Exhibit B



MAY  2021

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 

 

FINAL DRAFT 
 

 

 
Three Valleys Municipal Water District 

 
2020 Urban Water Management Plan 

 
 
 

 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
MAY 2021 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Page 

 

  i 

CHAPTER 1 ............................................................................................................................ 1‐1 

URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN INTRODUCTION AND OVERVIEW ............................... 1‐1 

  RECOMMENDED UWMP ORGANIZATION ....................................................................... 1‐4 
  UWMPS IN RELATION TO OTHER EFFORTS ...................................................................... 1‐5 
  UWMPS AND GRANT OR LOAN ELIGIBILITY ..................................................................... 1‐5 
  DEMONSTRATION OF CONSISTENCY WITH THE DELTA PLAN FOR PARTICIPANTS 

IN COVERED ACTIONS ...................................................................................................... 1‐6 
  TIPS FOR UWMP PREPARERS ........................................................................................... 1‐7 

CHAPTER 2 ............................................................................................................................ 2‐1 

PLAN PREPARATION ............................................................................................................. 2‐1 

  PLAN PREPARATION ......................................................................................................... 2‐2 
  BASIS FOR PREPARING A PLAN ........................................................................................ 2‐2 

  PUBLIC WATER SYSTEMS .................................................................................... 2‐3 
  SUPPLIERS SERVING MULTIPLE SERVICE AREAS / PUBLIC WATER 

SYSTEMS .............................................................................................................. 2‐4 
  REGIONAL PLANNING ...................................................................................................... 2‐4 
  INDIVIDUAL OR REGIONAL PLANNING AND COMPLIANCE ............................................. 2‐5 

  REGIONAL UWMP ............................................................................................... 2‐6 
  REGIONAL ALLIANCE ........................................................................................... 2‐7 

  FISCAL OR CALENDAR YEAR AND UNITS OF MEASURE .................................................... 2‐8 
  FISCAL OR CALENDAR YEAR ................................................................................ 2‐8 
  REPORTING COMPLETE 2020 DATA .................................................................... 2‐8 
  UNITS OF MEASURE ............................................................................................ 2‐8 

  COORDINATION AND OUTREACH .................................................................................... 2‐9 
  WHOLESALE AND RETAIL COORDINATION ....................................................... 2‐10 
  COORDINATION WITH OTHER AGENCIES AND THE COMMUNITY ................... 2‐11 
  NOTICE TO CITIES AND COUNTIES .................................................................... 2‐13 

CHAPTER 3 ............................................................................................................................ 3‐1 

SYSTEM DESCRIPTION .......................................................................................................... 3‐1 

  GENERAL DESCRIPTION .................................................................................................... 3‐2 
  SERVICE AREA BOUNDARY MAPS .................................................................................... 3‐7 
  SERVICE AREA CLIMATE ................................................................................................. 3‐13 
  SERVICE AREA POPULATION AND DEMOGRAPHICS ...................................................... 3‐15 

  SERVICE AREA POPULATION ............................................................................. 3‐15 
  OTHER SOCIAL, ECONOMIC, AND DEMOGRAPHIC FACTORS ........................... 3‐17 

  LAND USES WITHIN SERVICE AREA ................................................................................ 3‐17 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
(Continued) 

Page 
 

  ii 

 

CHAPTER 4 ............................................................................................................................ 4‐1 

WATER USE CHARACTERIZATION .......................................................................................... 4‐1 

  NON‐POTABLE VERSUS POTABLE WATER USE ................................................................ 4‐1 
  PAST, CURRENT, AND PROJECTED WATER USES BY SECTOR ........................................... 4‐2 

  WATER USE SECTORS LISTED IN WATER CODE ................................................... 4‐5 
  WATER USE SECTORS IN ADDITION TO THOSE LISTED IN WATER CODE ............ 4‐6 
  PAST WATER USE ................................................................................................ 4‐6 
  DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM WATER LOSS.................................................................. 4‐7 
  CURRENT WATER USE ......................................................................................... 4‐8 
  PROJECTED WATER USE ...................................................................................... 4‐9 
  CHARACTERISTIC FIVE‐YEAR WATER USE ......................................................... 4‐11 

  WORKSHEETS AND REPORTING TABLES ........................................................................ 4‐12 
  OPTIONAL PLANNING TOOL USE ANALYSIS WORKSHEET ................................ 4‐12 
  DWR 2020 UWMP SUBMITTAL TABLES ............................................................ 4‐12 

  WATER USE FOR LOWER INCOME HOUSEHOLDS .......................................................... 4‐13 
  CLIMATE CHANGE CONSIDERATIONS ............................................................................ 4‐14 

CHAPTER 5 ............................................................................................................................ 5‐1 

SB X7‐7 BASELINES, TARGETS, AND 2020 COMPLIANCE ........................................................ 5‐1 

  GUIDANCE FOR WHOLESALE AGENCIES .......................................................................... 5‐2 
  SB X7‐7 FORMS AND SUMMARY TABLES ......................................................................... 5‐3 
  BASELINE AND TARGET CALCULATIONS FOR 2020 UWMPS ........................................... 5‐3 
  METHODS FOR CALCULATING POPULATION AND GROSS WATER USE ........................... 5‐4 
  2020 COMPLIANCE DAILY PER CAPITA WATER USE (GPCD) ............................................ 5‐4 
  REGIONAL ALLIANCE ........................................................................................................ 5‐5 

CHAPTER 6 ............................................................................................................................ 6‐1 

WATER SUPPLY CHARACTERIZATION .................................................................................... 6‐1 

  WATER SUPPLY ANALYSIS OVERVIEW ............................................................................. 6‐3 
  SPECIFIC ANALYSIS APPLICABLE TO ALL WATER SUPPLY SOURCES .................... 6‐4 
  OTHER CHARACTERIZATION CONSIDERATIONS ................................................. 6‐6 
  OPTIONAL PLANNING TOOL ............................................................................... 6‐6 

  NARRATIVE SECTIONS FOR SUPPLIER’S UWMP WATER SUPPLY 
CHARACTERIZATION ........................................................................................................ 6‐7 

  PURCHASED OR IMPORTED WATER ................................................................... 6‐7 
  GROUNDWATER................................................................................................ 6‐11 
  SURFACE WATER ............................................................................................... 6‐17 
  STORMWATER .................................................................................................. 6‐17 
  WASTEWATER AND RECYCLED WATER............................................................. 6‐18 
  DESALINATED WATER OPPORTUNITIES ............................................................ 6‐27 
  WATER EXCHANGES AND TRANSFERS .............................................................. 6‐28 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
(Continued) 

Page 
 

  iii 

 

  FUTURE WATER PROJECTS ................................................................................ 6‐30 
  SUMMARY OF EXISTING AND PLANNED SOURCES OF WATER ......................... 6‐32 
  SPECIAL CONDITIONS ........................................................................................ 6‐35 

  SUBMITTAL TABLES COMPLETION USING THE OPTIONAL PLANNING TOOL ................ 6‐35 
  ENERGY USE ................................................................................................................... 6‐36 

CHAPTER 7 ............................................................................................................................ 7‐1 

WATER SERVICE RELIABILITY AND DROUGHT RISK ASSESSMENT .......................................... 7‐1 

  INTRODUCTION ................................................................................................................ 7‐2 
  WATER SERIVCE RELIABILITY ASSESSMENT ..................................................................... 7‐3 

  CONSTRAINTS ON WATER SOURCES .................................................................. 7‐3 
  SERVICE RELIABILITY ‐ YEAR TYPE CHARACTERIZATION ..................................... 7‐6 
  SERVICE RELIABILITY – SUPPLY AND DEMAND COMPARISON ........................... 7‐8 
  DESCRIPTION OF MANAGEMENT TOOLS AND OPTIONS .................................. 7‐13 

  DROUGHT RISK ASSESSMENT ........................................................................................ 7‐14 
  DRA, DATA, METHODS, AND BASIS FOR WATER SHORTAGE CONDITIONS ...... 7‐15 
  DRAFT WATER SOURCE RELIABILITY ................................................................. 7‐16 
  DRA TOTAL WATER SUPPLY AND USE COMPARISON ....................................... 7‐19 
  OPTIONAL PLANNING TOOL WORKBOOK ......................................................... 7‐21 

CHAPTER 8 ............................................................................................................................ 8‐1 

WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN .............................................................................. 8‐1 

  WATER SUPPLY RELIABILITY ANALYSIS ............................................................................ 8‐3 
  ANNUAL WATER SUPPLY AND DEMAND ASSESSMENT PROCEDURES ............................ 8‐4 

  DECISION MAKING PROCESS .............................................................................. 8‐5 
  DATA AND METHODOLOGIES ............................................................................. 8‐6 

  SIX STANDARD WATER SHORTAGE LEVELS ...................................................................... 8‐8 
  SHORTAGE RESPONSE ACTIONS .................................................................................... 8‐11 

  DEMAND REDUCTION ....................................................................................... 8‐11 
  SUPPLY AUGMENTATION .................................................................................. 8‐24 
  OPERATIONAL CHANGES .................................................................................. 8‐26 
  ADDITIONAL MANDATORY RESTRICTIONS ....................................................... 8‐27 
  EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN .......................................................................... 8‐27 
  SEISMIC RISK ASSESSMENT AND MITIGATION PLAN ........................................ 8‐29 
  SHORTAGE RESPONSE ACTION EFFECTIVENESS ............................................... 8‐32 

  COMMUNICATION PROTOCOLS .................................................................................... 8‐34 
  COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT ............................................................................... 8‐36 
  LEGAL AUTHORITIES....................................................................................................... 8‐36 
  FINANCIAL CONSEQUENCES OF WSCP .......................................................................... 8‐38 
  MONITORING AND REPORTING ..................................................................................... 8‐39 
  WSCP REFINEMENT PROCEDURES ................................................................................. 8‐39 
  SPECIAL WATER FEATURE DISTINCTION ........................................................................ 8‐41 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
(Continued) 

Page 
 

  iv 

 

  PLAN ADOPTION, SUBMITTAL, AND AVAILABILITY ........................................................ 8‐41 

CHAPTER 9 ............................................................................................................................ 9‐1 

DEMAND MANAGEMENT MEASURES ................................................................................... 9‐1 

  DEMAND MANAGEMENT MEASURES FOR WHOLESALE SUPPLIERS ............................... 9‐2 
  METERING ........................................................................................................... 9‐3 
  PUBLIC EDUCATION AND OUTREACH ................................................................. 9‐3 
  WATER CONSERVATION PROGRAM COORDINATION AND STAFFING 

SUPPORT ............................................................................................................. 9‐4 
  OTHER DEMAND MANAGEMENT MEASURES .................................................... 9‐4 
  ASSET MANAGEMENT ......................................................................................... 9‐5 
  WHOLESALE SUPPLIER ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS ............................................... 9‐5 

  EXISTING DEMAND MANAGEMENT MEASURES FOR RETAIL SUPPLIERS ........................ 9‐6 
  REPORTING IMPLEMENTAYION ....................................................................................... 9‐7 

  IMPLEMENTATION OVER THE PAST FIVE YEARS ................................................. 9‐7 
  IMPLEMENTATION TO ACHIEVE WATER USE TARGETS ...................................... 9‐9 

  WATER USE OBJECTIVES (FUTURE REQUIREMENTS) ....................................................... 9‐9 

CHAPTER 10 ........................................................................................................................ 10‐1 

PLAN ADOPTION, SUBMITTAL, AND IMPLEMENTATION ..................................................... 10‐1 

  PLAN ADOPTION, SUBMITTAL, AND IMPLEMENTATION ............................................... 10‐2 
  INCLUSION OF ALL 2020 DATA ....................................................................................... 10‐2 
  NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ......................................................................................... 10‐3 

  NOTICE TO CITIES AND COUNTIES .................................................................... 10‐3 
  NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC ..................................................................................... 10‐6 

  PUBLIC HEARING AND ADOPTION ................................................................................. 10‐7 
  PUBLIC HEARING ............................................................................................... 10‐7 
  ADOPTION ......................................................................................................... 10‐8 

  PLAN SUBMITTAL ........................................................................................................... 10‐8 
  SUBMITTING A UWMP AND WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN TO 
DWR .................................................................................................................. 10‐9 

  ELECTRONIC DATA SUBMITTAL......................................................................... 10‐9 
  SUBMITTING A UWMP, INCLUDING WSCP, TO THE CALIFORNIA STATE 
LIBRARY ........................................................................................................... 10‐10 

  SUBMITTING A UWMP TO CITIES AND COUNTIES .......................................... 10‐11 
  PUBLIC AVAILABILITY ................................................................................................... 10‐11 

NOTIFICATION TO PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION .................................................................. 10‐12 
  AMENDING AN ADOPTED UWMP OR WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN ........ 10‐12 

  AMENDING A UWMP ...................................................................................... 10‐12 
  AMENDING A WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN ................................ 10‐13 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
(Continued) 

 
 

  v 

   

LIST OF TABLES 
 

Table 2‐1  Public Water Systems (Not Applicable) ........................................................................................ 2‐4 

Table 2‐2  Plan Identification Type ................................................................................................................ 2‐6 

Table 2‐3  Supplier Identification ................................................................................................................... 2‐9 

Table 2‐4  Water Supplier Information Exchange........................................................................................ 2‐11 

Table 3‐1  Population – Current and Projected ........................................................................................... 3‐16 

Table 4‐1  Demands for Potable and Non‐Potable Water ‐ Actual ................................................................ 4‐3 

Table 4‐2  Use for Potable and Non‐Potable Water ‐ Projected ................................................................... 4‐4 

Table 4‐3  Total Gross Water Use (Potable and Non‐Potable) ...................................................................... 4‐4 

Table 4‐4  12 Month Water Loss Audit Report (Not Applicable) ................................................................... 4‐7 

Table 4‐5  Inclusion in Water Use Projections (Not Applicable) .................................................................. 4‐10 

Table 5‐1  Baselines and Targets Summary from SB X7‐7 Verification Form (Not Applicable) ..................... 5‐3 

Table 5‐2  2020 Compliance from SB X7‐7 2020 Compliance Form  (Not Applicable) .................................. 5‐3 

Table 6‐1  Groundwater Volume Pumped ................................................................................................... 6‐17 

Table 6‐2  Wastewater Collected Within Area in 2020 (Not Applicable) .................................................... 6‐22 

Table 6‐3  Wastewater Treatment and Discharge within Service Area in 2020 .......................................... 6‐22 

Table 6‐4  Current and Projected Recycled Water Direct Beneficial Uses Within Service Area ................. 6‐25 

Table 6‐5  2015 Recycled Water Use Projection Compared to 2020 Actual (Not Applicable) .................... 6‐26 

Table 6‐6  Methods to Expand Future Recycled Water Use (Not Applicable) ............................................. 6‐26 

Table 6‐7  Expected Future Water Supply Projects or Programs ................................................................ 6‐31 

Table 6‐8  Water Supplies – Actual .............................................................................................................. 6‐34 

Table 6‐9  Water Supplies – Projected ........................................................................................................ 6‐34 

Table 7‐1  Basis of Water Year Data (Reliability Assessment) ....................................................................... 7‐7 

Table 7‐2  Normal Year Supply and Demand Comparison .......................................................................... 7‐10 

Table 7‐3  Single Dry Year Supply and Demand Comparison ...................................................................... 7‐11 

Table 7‐4  Multiple Dry Years Supply and Demand Comparison ................................................................. 7‐12 

Table 7‐5  Five‐Year Drought Risk Assessment Tables to Address Water Code Section 10635(b) .............. 7‐20 

Table 8‐1  Water Shortage Contingency Planning Levels .............................................................................. 8‐9 

Table 8‐2  Demand Reduction Actions ........................................................................................................ 8‐23 

Table 8‐3  Supply Augmentation and Other Actions ................................................................................... 8‐24 

Table 10‐1  Notification to Cities and Counties ............................................................................................. 10‐5 

 
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
(Continued) 

 
 

  vi 

   

 
LIST OF FIGURES 

 
 

Figure 1   Water Service Area 

Figure 2   Water Service Area and City Boundaries 

Figure 3   Six Basins Location 

   

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
(Continued) 

 
 

  vii 

   

LIST OF APPENDICES 
 
 

Appendix A   DWR Standardized Tables 

Appendix B   Demonstration of Reduced Imported Water Reliance  

Appendix C    Completed Plan Checklist 

Appendix D   60 – Day Notification Letters and Public Hearing Notifications  

Appendix E    Climate Change Considerations (Cal‐Adapt Data) 

Appendix F    Historical sources of water supply available to MWD  

Appendix G   Six Basin Judgment 

Appendix H   Los Angeles County All‐Hazard Mitigation Plan 

Appendix I    Water Conservation and Water Shortage Program and Regulations 

Appendix J    Water Supply Watch 

Appendix K    Water Supply Allocation Plan 

Appendix L    Resolution Adopting 2020 Plan and WSCP 

   

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
(Continued) 

 
 

  viii 

   

LIST OF ACRONYMS 
 

AB  Assembly Bill 

ACS  American Community Survey  

AF  Acre‐feet 

AFY  Acre‐feet per year 

Annual Assessment  Annual Water Supply and Demand Assessment 

AWWA  American Water Works Association 

BSA  Boy Scouts of America  

CIC  Covina Irrigating Company 

CIMIS  California Irrigation Management Information System  

CPUC  California Public Utilities Commission 

CWC  California Water Code 

DOF  Department of Finance  

Delta  Sacramento‐San Joaquin Delta 

Department  Department of Water Resources 

DMM  Demand Management Measures  

DPW  Los Angeles County Department of Public Works  

DRA  Drought Risk Assessment 

DWR  Department of Water Resources 

ERP  Emergency Response Plan 

ETo  Evapotranspiration 

FY  Fiscal Year 

GCMs  General Circulation Models 

GIS  Geographical Information Systems 

GPCD  Gallons per capita per day 

GSP  Groundwater Sustainability Plan 

GSWC  Golden State Water Company 

IRP  Integrated Resources Plan 

JWPCP  Joint Water Pollution Control Plant 

kWh  Kilowatt Hours 

LACSD  Los Angeles County Sanitation District 

M&I  Municipal and Industrial 

Main Basin  Main San Gabriel Basin 

MGD  Million gallons per day 

mg/L  Milligrams per liter 

MSAC  Mount San Antonio College  

MWD  Metropolitan Water District of Southern California 

Plan  Urban Water Management Plan 

PVPA  Pomona Valley Protective Association 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
(Continued) 

 
 

  ix 

   

PWRP  Pomona Water Reclamation Plant 

PWS  Public Water System 

RCP 4.5  Representative Concentration Pathway 4.5 

RDM  Robust Decision Making 

RRA  Risk and Resilience Assessment 

RWD  Rowland Water District  

SAWCo  San Antonio Water Company 

SB  Senate Bill 

SCAG  Southern California Association of Governments  

SCE  Southern California Edison 

SGMA  Sustainable Groundwater Management Act of 2014 

SJCWRP  San Jose Creek Water Reclamation Plant 

SWRCB  State Water Resources Control Board 

SWS  Suburban Water System 

SWP  State Water Project 

TDS  Total Dissolved Solids 

USEPA  United States Environment Protection Agency 

U.S. Census  United States Census 

UWMP  Urban Water Management Plan 

VHWC  Valencia Heights Water Company  

VOC  Volatile Organic Compounds 

WECWC  West End Consolidated Water Company 

WEWAC  Water Education/Water Awareness Committee 

WVWD  Walnut Valley Water District  

WSAP  Water Supply Allocation Plan 

WSCP  Water Shortage Contingency Plan 

WRCC  Western Regional Climate Center  

WUCA  Water Utility Climate Alliance 

 

  

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
(Continued) 

 
 

  x 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

<Page Intentionally Left Blank> 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 1‐1 

CHAPTER 1  

URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN INTRODUCTION AND OVERVIEW 

 

LAY DESCRIPTION - INTRODUCTION 

 

An urban water supplier is defined (pursuant to Section 10617 of the California Water 

Code1) as “a supplier, either publicly or privately owned, providing water for municipal 

purposes either directly or indirectly to more than 3,000 customers or supplying more than 

3,000 acre-feet of water annually. An urban water supplier includes a supplier or 

contractor for water, regardless of the basis of right, which distributes or sells for ultimate 

resale to customers.”  

 

The Three Valleys Municipal Water District (District) is classified as an urban water 

supplier because it serves more than 3,000 customers (i.e. individual metered accounts) 

and it supplies more than 3,000 acre-feet of water annually to its customers for municipal 

purposes. 

 

In accordance with the “Urban Water Management Planning Act”, which was enacted by 

the California Legislature in 1983, every urban water supplier (including the District) is 

required to prepare and adopt an Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP), periodically 

review its UWMP, and incorporate updated and new information into an updated UWMP 

at least once every five years.  

 

The District’s most recent update was its 2015 UWMP (or 2015 Plan) which was 

submitted to, and approved by, the California Department of Water Resources 

(DWR). Urban water suppliers (including the District) are required to complete and submit 

their 2020 UWMPs to DWR by July 1st, 2021. 

 
1 References to CWC Sections in this 2020 UWMP were obtained from https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/ 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 1‐2 

The current requirements for preparing the UWMP are included in California Water Code 

(CWC) Sections 10608 through 10657. The District’s 2020 UWMP (or 2020 Plan) was 

prepared consistent with the CWC and the recommended organization provided in 

DWR’s Final “Urban Water Management Plan Guidebook 2020” (Final 2020 

UWMP Guidebook), dated March 2021.   

 

The UWMP provides urban water suppliers (including the District) with a reliable 

management action plan for long-term resource planning to ensure adequate water 

supplies are available to meet existing and future water supply needs. In addition, the 

2020 UMWP incorporates water supply reliability determinations resulting from potential 

prolonged drought, regulatory revisions, and/or changing climatic conditions. 

 

The District’s 2020 Plan consists of the following Chapters:  

 

Chapter 1  Urban Water Management Plan Introduction and Overview  

Chapter 2  Plan Preparation  

Chapter 3  System Description  

Chapter 4  Water Use Characterization  

Chapter 5  SB X7-7 Baselines, Targets, and 2020 Compliance 

Chapter 6  Water Supply Characterization  

Chapter 7  Water Service Reliability and Drought Risk Assessment   

Chapter 8  Water Shortage Contingency Plan  

Chapter 9  Demand Management Measures  

Chapter 10  Plan Adoption, Submittal, and Implementation  

 

A lay description is presented at the beginning of each of these Chapters. 

 

 

 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 1‐3 

LAY DESCRIPTION – CHAPTER 1 

 

URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN INTRODUCTION AND OVERVIEW  

 

Chapter 1 (Urban Water Management Plan Introduction and Overview) of the District’s 

2020 Plan discusses and provides the following: 

 

 An overall lay description of the 2020 Plan, including California Water Code and 

Urban Water Management Plan Act requirements, is provided. The District is 

required to prepare an Urban Water Management Plan. 

 The District’s 2020 Plan was prepared consistent with the recommended 

organization provided in DWR’s Final “Urban Water Management Plan Guidebook 

2020”, dated March 2021. A description regarding the organization of the 2020 

Plan, including a summary of each Chapter, is provided. The District’s Water 

Shortage Contingency Plan (discussed in Chapter 8) is also included in the 2020 

Plan. 

 The 2020 Plan incorporates DWR’s water use and supply tables (standardized 

tables) for the reporting and submittal of UWMP data. These tables are included 

within the respective sections of the 2020 Plan and in Appendix A. 

 The District’s coordination efforts with other planning agencies are discussed, 

including coordination efforts with the Metropolitan Water District of Southern 

California and the Southern California Association of Governments. 

 The District’s eligibility to receive grants and loans administered by the State of 

California and/or DWR, as a result of preparing the 2020 Plan, is discussed. 

 Information is provided which demonstrates the District’s prior, continued, and 

projected reduction on imported water supplies obtained (either directly or 

indirectly) from the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta (Delta). The District has 

reduced its reliance on the imported water supplies for Fiscal Year 2014-15 and 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 1‐4 

Fiscal Year 2019-2020. In addition, the District is projected to continue reducing 

its reliance on the imported water supplies through Fiscal Year 2044-45.  

 The checklist developed by DWR and used by the District to incorporate the 

specific UWMP requirements is discussed. The completed checklist is provided in 

Appendix C. 

 

 RECOMMENDED UWMP ORGANIZATION 

 

The District’s 2020 Urban Water Management Plan (2020 Plan) was prepared consistent 

with the recommended organization provided in DWR’s Final “Urban Water Management 

Plan Guidebook 2020” (Final 2020 UWMP Guidebook), dated March 2021.  The District’s 

2020 Plan consists of the following Chapters: 

 

Chapter 1  Urban Water Management Plan Introduction and Overview 

Chapter 2  Plan Preparation 

Chapter 3  System Description 

Chapter 4  Water Use Characterization 

Chapter 5  SB X7-7 Baselines, Targets, and 2020 Compliance  

Chapter 6  Water Supply Characterization 

Chapter 7  Water Service Reliability and Drought Risk Assessment  

Chapter 8  Water Shortage Contingency Plan 

Chapter 9  Demand Management Measures 

Chapter 10  Plan Adoption, Submittal, and Implementation 

 

Pursuant to CWC requirements, the District’s 2020 Plan incorporates DWR’s water use 

and supply tables (standardized tables) for the reporting and submittal of UWMP data.  

DWR’s standardized tables are provided within the body of the 2020 Plan text as well as 

in Appendix A.  The District also submitted the UWMP data (standardized tables) 

electronically through DWR’s Online Submittal Tool. 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 1‐5 

The District’s 2020 Plan also provides supporting documents (appendices) including 

notification letters of the Plan update, public notice of the Plan hearing, and adoption 

resolution from the District’s governing body. Further discussions regarding these 

supporting documents are provided within the individual Chapters of the District’s 2020 

Plan. 

 

 

 UWMPS IN RELATION TO OTHER EFFORTS 

 

The District is a wholesale water agency and a member agency of the Metropolitan Water 

District of Southern California (MWD). As a member agency, the District has coordinated 

with MWD regarding the preparation of MWD’s 2021 Integrated Resources Plan (IRP) 

and 2020 UWMP. In addition, the District’s 2020 Plan has been made available for use 

to its sub-agencies. 

 

 

 UWMPS AND GRANT OR LOAN ELIGIBILITY 

 

Pursuant to DWR’s Final 2020 UWMP Guidebook: 

 

“In order for a Supplier to be eligible for any water grant or loan administered by DWR, 

the Supplier must have a current UWMP on file that has been determined by DWR to 

address the requirements of the Water Code. A current UWMP must also be maintained 

by the Supplier throughout the term of any grant or loan administered by DWR. A UWMP 

may also be required in order to be eligible for other state funding, depending on the 

conditions that are specified in the funding guidelines. Suppliers are encouraged to seek 

guidance on the specifics of any state funding source from the respective funding 

agencies. The following sections of the Water Code are pertinent to Suppliers considering 

pursuit of grants or loans.” 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 1‐6 

The District’s 2020 UWMP has been prepared to meet eligibility requirements for grants 

and loans administered by the State and/or DWR. 

 

 

 DEMONSTRATION OF CONSISTENCY WITH THE DELTA PLAN FOR 

PARTICIPANTS IN COVERED ACTIONS 

 

Pursuant to DW’R’s  Final 2020 UWMP Guidebook, an urban water supplier that 

anticipates participating in or receiving water from a proposed project (or “covered action”) 

such as a multi-year water transfer, conveyance facility, or new diversion that involves 

transferring water through, exporting water from, or using water in the Sacramento-San 

Joaquin Delta (Delta) should provide information in their 2015 and 2020 UWMPs for use 

in demonstrating consistency with Delta Plan Policy WR P1, “Reduce Reliance on the 

Delta Through Improved Regional Water Self-Reliance”. In addition, pursuant to 

California Code of Regulations, Title 23, § 5003: 

 

(c)(1) Water suppliers that have done all of the following are contributing to 
reduced reliance on the Delta and improved regional self-reliance and are 
therefore consistent with this policy: 
 

(A) Completed a current Urban or Agricultural Water Management Plan 
(Plan) which has been reviewed by the California Department of Water 
Resources for compliance with the applicable requirements of Water Code 
Division 6, Parts 2.55, 2.6, and 2.8; 

 
(B) Identified, evaluated, and commenced implementation, consistent with 
the implementation schedule set forth in the Plan, of all programs and 
projects included in the Plan that are locally cost effective and technically 
feasible which reduce reliance on the Delta; and 

 
(C) Included in the Plan, commencing in 2015, the expected outcome for 
measurable reduction in Delta reliance and improvement in regional self-
reliance. The expected outcome for measurable reduction in Delta reliance 
and improvement in regional self-reliance shall be reported in the Plan as 
the reduction in the amount of water used, or in the percentage of water 
used, from the Delta watershed. For the purposes of reporting, water 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 1‐7 

efficiency is considered a new source of water supply, consistent with Water 
Code section 1011(a). 

 

 

The District has reduced its reliance on the imported water supplies for fiscal year (FY) 

2014-15 and FY 2019-20. In addition, the District is projected to continue reducing its 

reliance on the imported water supplies through FY 2044-45. A further discussion which 

demonstrates the District’s measurable reduction in imported reliance and improvement 

in regional self-reliance is provided in Appendix B. 

 

 

 TIPS FOR UWMP PREPARERS 

 

The District’s 2020 UWMP is considered an update to the District’s 2015 UWMP.  

However, the 2020 UWMP is considered a stand-alone document. As discussed in 

Section 1.1, the District’s 2020 UWMP was prepared consistent with the recommended 

organization provided in DWR’s Final 2020 UWMP Guidebook.   

 

A checklist of specific UWMP requirements is included in Appendix C. The checklist 

includes the page number where the required elements are addressed to assist in DWR’s 

review of the submitted Plan. 

 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 2‐1 

CHAPTER 2  

PLAN PREPARATION 

 

LAY DESCRIPTION – CHAPTER 2 

 

PLAN PREPARATION 

 

Chapter 2 (Plan Preparation) of the District’s 2020 Plan discusses and provides the 

following: 

 

 The basis for preparing an Urban Water Management Plan is provided. The District 

is required to prepare the 2020 Plan because it is an “urban water supplier” (the 

District serves more than 3,000 customers and it supplies more than 3,000 acre-

feet of water annually to its customers for municipal purposes) 

 The District’s Plan has been prepared as an “individual” plan rather than a 

“regional” plan. The District’s Plan provides information specific to the District as 

well as information regarding the availability and reliability of the  water supplies it 

wholesales to its sub-agencies. 

 Information presented in the District’s 2020 Plan is provided on “fiscal year” basis 

which is from July 1 through June 30 of the following year.  

 Water quantities presented in the District’s 2020 Plan are provided on an “acre-

foot” basis.  

 The District’s coordination and outreach efforts with wholesale water agencies, 

other retail water agencies, and the community are described. The District 

coordinated the preparation of its 2020 Plan with its sub-agencies (including Cities 

within its service area) and public agencies that share a common source of supply 

of the preparation of the District’s 2020 Plan.  

 The District’s notification process to the cities and county within which the District 

provides water supplies to is discussed. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 2‐2 

 PLAN PREPARATION 

As discussed in Section 1.1, the District’s 2020 Plan was prepared consistent with the 

recommended organization provided in DWR’s Final 2020 UWMP Guidebook.   Pursuant 

to DWR’s Final 2020 UWMP Guidebook: 

 

“The California Water Code (Water Code) specifies several requirements for preparing a 

UWMP, including who is required to prepare a UWMP; how to prepare a UWMP, 

depending on whether the Supplier choses to participate in a regional or individual 

planning effort; selection of reporting year-type; and coordination, notification, and 

outreach.” 

 

Pursuant to CWC requirements, the District’s 2020 Plan incorporates DWR’s water use 

and supply tables (standardized tables) for the reporting and submittal of UWMP data.   

 
 BASIS FOR PREPARING A PLAN 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10617. 
 

"Urban water supplier" means a supplier, either publicly or privately owned, providing water 
for municipal purposes either directly or indirectly to more than 3,000 customers or 
supplying more than 3,000 acre-feet of water annually. An urban water supplier includes a 
supplier or contractor for water, regardless of the basis of right, which distributes or sells 
for ultimate resale to customers. This part applies only to water supplied from public water 
systems subject to Chapter 4 (commencing with Section 116275) of Part 12 of Division 104 
of the Health and Safety Code. 

 
CWC 10620. 
 

(b) Every person that becomes an urban water supplier shall adopt an urban water 
management plan within one year after it has become an urban water supplier. 

 
CWC 10621. 
 

(a) Each urban water supplier shall update its plan at least once every five years on or 
before July 1, in years ending in six and one, incorporating updated and new 
information from the five years preceding each update. 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 2‐3 

The District’s 2020 Plan was prepared in accordance with the UWMP Act which was 

established in 1983. The UWMP Act requires every “urban water supplier” to prepare and 

adopt a Plan, to periodically review its Plan at least once every five years and make any 

amendments or changes which are indicated by the review.  An “Urban Water Supplier” 

is defined as a supplier, either publicly or privately owned, providing water for municipal 

purposes either directly or indirectly to more than 3,000 customers or supplying more than 

3,000 acre-feet (AF) of water annually.  

 

Section 10621(a) of the CWC states, “Each urban water supplier shall update its plan at 

least once every five years on or before July 1, in years ending in six and one, 

incorporating updated and new information from the five years preceding each update”. 

As a result, DWR requires the 2020 Plans be submitted by July 1, 2021. 

 

The District is an “urban water supplier” pursuant to Section 10617 of the CWC and 

supplies more than 3,000 acre-feet per year (AFY) at wholesale for municipal purposes.  

The District’s 2020 Plan is an update to the District’s 2015 Plan. 

 

 PUBLIC WATER SYSTEMS 

 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10644. 
 

(a)(2) The plan, or amendments to the plan, submitted to the department … shall include 
any standardized forms, tables, or displays specified by the department. 
 

California Health and Safety Code 116275. 
 
(h) "Public water system" means a system for the provision of water for human 
consumption through pipes or other constructed conveyances that has 15 or more service 
connections or regularly serves at least 25 individuals daily at least 60 days out of the year. 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

As a wholesale water agency, the District is not defined as a Public Water System (PWS) 

and is not required by DWR to provide PWS information. 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 2‐4 

 SUPPLIERS SERVING MULTIPLE SERVICE AREAS / PUBLIC WATER 

SYSTEMS 

 
 
Table 2-1 Public Water Systems (Not Applicable) 

Table 2-1 is not applicable for wholesalers. 

 

The District has developed its 2020 Plan reporting solely on its service area to address 

all requirements of the California Water Code. However, based upon their 2020 water 

production and imported water deliveries, the following urban water suppliers (or Public 

Water Systems) within, or partially within, the District's boundaries may also be required 

to prepare a Plan: 

 

 City of Covina  

 City of Glendora 

 City of La Verne 

 City of Pomona 

 Covina Irrigating Company 

 Golden State Water Company- Claremont 

 Golden State Water Company- San Dimas 

 Rowland Water District 

 Suburban Water Systems 

 Walnut Valley Water District 

 

 

 REGIONAL PLANNING 

The District has developed its 2020 Plan reporting solely on its service area to address 

all requirements of the California Water Code. The District’s 2020 Plan was not developed 

as a Regional Plan. However, the District’s Plan provides information specific to the 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 2‐5 

District as well as information regarding the availability and reliability of the  water supplies 

it wholesales to its sub-agencies. The District’s Plan is available for use and reference to 

its sub-agencies. In addition, the District worked closely with its sub-agencies on the 

development of their respective 2020 Plans.  The 2020 Plans for the District’s sub-

agencies are incorporated into the District’s Plan by reference. 

 

MWD coordinated with the District regarding the development of the District’s 2020 Plan. 

Likewise, MWD’s 2020 Plan is available for use and reference by its member agencies 

and urban water suppliers within those member agencies. 

 

 

  INDIVIDUAL OR REGIONAL PLANNING AND COMPLIANCE 

As shown in Table 2-2, the District’s 2020 Plan is an “Individual UWMP”. The District has 

developed its 2020 Plan reporting solely for its service area to address all requirements 

of the California Water Code. The District notified and coordinated with appropriate 

regional agencies and constituents (See Section 2.6). 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 2‐6 

 

Table 2-2 Plan Identification Type 

 

 

 REGIONAL UWMP 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10620. 
 

(d)(1) An urban water supplier may satisfy the requirements of this part by participation in 
area wide, regional, watershed, or basin wide urban water management planning where 
those plans will reduce preparation costs and contribute to the achievement of 
conservation and efficient water use. 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
As indicated in Table 2-2, the District’s 2020 Plan was developed as an “Individual 

UWMP” and not part of a Regional Plan. 

  

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 2‐7 

 

 
 REGIONAL ALLIANCE 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10608.20. 
 

(a)(1) …Urban retail water suppliers may elect to determine and report progress toward 
achieving these targets on an individual or regional basis, as provided in subdivision (a) of 
Section 10608.28… 
 

CWC 10608.28. 
 

(a) An urban retail water supplier may meet its urban water use target within its retail 
service area, or through mutual agreement, by any of the following: 

(1) Through an urban wholesale water supplier. 
(2) Through a regional agency authorized to plan and implement water conservation, 
including, but not limited to, an agency established under the Bay Area Water Supply 
and Conservation Agency Act (Division 31 (commencing with Section 81300)). 
 (3) Through a regional water management group as defined in Section 10537. 
(4) By an integrated regional water management funding area. 
(5) By hydrologic region. 
(6) Through other appropriate geographic scales for which computation methods 
have been    developed by the department. 

(b) A regional water management group, with the written consent of its member agencies, 
may undertake any or all planning, reporting, and implementation functions under this 
chapter for the member agencies that consent to those activities. Any data or reports shall 
provide information both for the regional water management group and separately for each 
consenting urban retail water supplier and urban wholesale water supplier. 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

As indicated in Table 2-2, the District’s 2020 Plan was developed as an “Individual 

UWMP” and not part of a Regional Alliance. 

 

 

  

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 2‐8 

 FISCAL OR CALENDAR YEAR AND UNITS OF MEASURE 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10608.20. 
 

(a)(1) Urban retail water suppliers…may determine the targets on a fiscal or calendar year 
basis. 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 FISCAL OR CALENDAR YEAR 

 

The data provided in the District’s 2020 Plan is reported on a fiscal year basis, unless 

noted otherwise, as shown in Table 2-3. A fiscal year begins on July 1st of every year. 

 

 REPORTING COMPLETE 2020 DATA 

 

The data provided in the District’s 2020 Plan is provided on a fiscal year basis through 

June 30, 2020. 

 

 UNITS OF MEASURE 

 

As shown in Table 2-3, the data provided in the District’s 2020 Plan is reported in units of 

AF, unless noted otherwise. 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 2‐9 

Table 2-3 Supplier Identification 

 

 
 

 COORDINATION AND OUTREACH 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10631. 
 

 (h) An urban water supplier that relies upon a wholesale agency for a source of water shall 
provide the wholesale agency with water use projections from that agency for that source 
of water in five-year increments to 20 years or as far as data is available. The wholesale 
agency shall provide information to the urban water supplier for inclusion in the urban water 
supplier’s plan that identifies and quantifies, to the extent practicable, the existing and 
planned sources of water as required by subdivision (b), available from the wholesale 
agency to the urban water supplier over the same five-year increments, and during various 
water-year types in accordance with subdivision (f). An urban water supplier may rely upon 
water supply information provided by the wholesale agency in fulfilling the plan 
informational requirements of subdivisions (b) and (f). 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 2‐10 

 WHOLESALE AND RETAIL COORDINATION 

 

The District is a wholesale agency serving 13 sub-agencies in its service area. The 

following is a list of the District’s sub-agencies:  

 

 Boy Scouts of America 

 California State Polytechnic University, Pomona  

 City of Covina  

 City of Glendora 

 City of La Verne 

 City of Pomona 

 Covina Irrigating Company 

 Golden State Water Company (Claremont and San Dimas systems) 

 Mount San Antonio College 

 Rowland Water District 

 Suburban Water Systems 

 Valencia Heights Water Company 

 Walnut Valley Water District 

 

The District coordinated with these sub-agencies during the preparation of the District’s 

Plan.  The District also worked closely with many of its sub-agencies during the 

preparation of their respective Plans, including the City of Glendora, City of Pomona, 

Golden State Water Company (Claremont and San Dimas systems), Rowland Water 

District, and Walnut Valley Water District. As indicated in Table 2-4, the District provided 

its 2020 Plan to its sub-agencies which includes water demand and supply projections in 

five-year increments for normal, single dry, and five consecutive year drought conditions 

over the next 20 years. 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 2‐11 

Table 2-4 Water Supplier Information Exchange 

 
 
 

 COORDINATION WITH OTHER AGENCIES AND THE COMMUNITY 

 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10620. 
 

(d)(3) Each urban water supplier shall coordinate the preparation of its plan with other 
appropriate agencies in the area, including other water suppliers that share a common 
source, water management agencies, and relevant public agencies, to the extent 
practicable. 

 
CWC 10642. 

 
Each urban water supplier shall encourage the active involvement of diverse social, 
cultural, and economic elements of the population within the service area prior to and 
during the preparation of both the plan…  

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 2‐12 

The District is a wholesale water supplier that provides treated imported water to its sub-

agencies and untreated imported water to replenish groundwater supplies of the Main 

San Gabriel Basin (Main Basin) and Six Basins. The District also produces groundwater 

from Six Basins to augment imported water supplies. The District notified its sub-agencies 

(including Cities within its service area) and public agencies that share a common source 

of supply of the preparation of the District’s 2020 Plan. The District regularly hosts 

Member Agency Managers’ meetings on a monthly basis to discuss and/or provide 

updates on the District’s 2020 Plan. In addition to its sub-agencies, the District provided 

copies of the draft plan to the following: 

 

 Chino Basin Watermaster 

 Inland Empire Utilities Agency 

 Main San Gabriel Basin Watermaster 

 Metropolitan Water District of Southern California 

 Six Basins Watermaster 

 Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District 

 

As discussed in Section 10.2, the District notified these agencies, as well as the cities 

and county within which the District provides water supplies, at least sixty (60) days prior 

to the public hearing of the preparation of the 2020 Plan and invited them to participate in 

the development of the Plan. A copy of the notification letters sent to these agencies is 

provided in Appendix D.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 2‐13 

 NOTICE TO CITIES AND COUNTIES 

 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10621. 

 
(b) Every urban water supplier required to prepare a plan pursuant to this part shall, at least 
60 days before the public hearing on the plan required by Section 10642, notify any city or 
county within which the supplier provides water supplies that the urban water supplier will 
be reviewing the plan and considering amendments or changes to the plan.  

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 

As discussed in Section 10.2, notification was provided to the cities and county within 

which the District provides water supplies that the District was reviewing and considering 

amendments (updates) to the previous 2015 Plan, and as a result prepare the 2020 Plan. 

Notification was provided at least 60 days prior to the public hearing (see Appendix D).  

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 3‐1 

CHAPTER 3  

SYSTEM DESCRIPTION 

 

LAY DESCRIPTION – CHAPTER 3 

 

SYSTEM DESCRIPTION  

 

Chapter 3 (System Description) of the District’s 2020 Plan discusses and provides the 

following: 

 

 A description of the District’s service area is provided.  The District’s service area 

covers the eastern portion of Los Angeles County and includes the Cities of 

Claremont, Covina, Diamond Bar, Glendora, Industry, La Verne, Pomona, San 

Dimas, Walnut, West Covina, and unincorporated areas of Los Angeles County 

(including Charter Oak and Rowland Heights). 

 The District’s water service area encompasses an area of approximately 133 

square miles. The location of the District’s water service area is provided in Figure 

1.  

 A description regarding the District’s water service area climate is provided.  The 

monthly historical average temperatures (including minimum and maximum), 

monthly historical average rainfall, and monthly evapotranspiration (ETo) in the 

vicinity of the District’s service area is summarized. The sources of the climate 

information are also discussed. 

 The population within the District’s water service area is discussed and projected. 

The sources of the population information are also discussed. The District provides 

water service to an area with a current population of 513,623. The District is 

projected to have a population of 561,782 by Fiscal Year 2044-45. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 3‐2 

 A discussion of land use information used by the District to develop the 2020 Plan 

is provided.  The District reviewed the current and projected land uses within its 

service area. The District also reviewed data provided by the Southern California 

Association of Governments, the Department of Finance, and the United States 

Census Bureau and prepared for counties, cities, and unincorporated areas within 

Southern California.   

 

 

 GENERAL DESCRIPTION 

 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10631. 

 
(a) Describe the service area of the supplier, including current and projected population, 
climate, and other social, economic, and demographic factors affecting the supplier’s 
water management planning. The projected population estimates shall be based upon 
data from the state, regional, or local service agency population projections within the 
service area of the urban water supplier and shall be in five-year increments to 20 years 
or as far as data is available. The description shall include the current and projected land 
uses within the existing or anticipated service area affecting the supplier’s water 
management planning. Urban water suppliers shall coordinate with local or regional land 
use authorities to determine the most appropriate land use information, including, where 
appropriate, land use information obtained from local or regional land use authorities, as 
developed pursuant to Article 5 (commencing with Section 65300) of Chapter 3 of Division 
1 of Title 7 of the Government Code. 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

The District is a wholesale water agency and was originally formed in January 1950 as 

the Pomona Valley Municipal Water District under the Municipal Water District Act. The 

Municipal Water District Act provides for, “The people of any county or counties, or of any 

portions thereof, whether such portions include unincorporated territory only or 

incorporated territory of any city or cities, or both such incorporated and unincorporated 

territories…” to organize municipal water districts. With respect to water supply, the 

Municipal Water District Act allows such a district to “…acquire, control, distribute, store, 

spread, sink, treat, purify, reclaim, recapture, and salvage any water, including sewage 

and storm waters, for the beneficial use or users of the District, its inhabitants, or the 

owners of rights to water in the District.” 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 3‐3 

 

The District supplies water on a wholesale basis to its sub-agencies. The District’s sub-

agencies retail the water directly to their customers, or wholesale it to other water systems 

for resale. The District’s sub-agencies produce water from local sources; however, when 

water demands exceed these local supplies, the sub-agencies may rely on the District to 

supply their supplemental water needs. As discussed in Section 2.6.1, the District 13 sub-

agencies include the following:  

 

 Boy Scouts of America 

 California State Polytechnic University, Pomona  

 City of Covina  

 City of Glendora 

 City of La Verne 

 City of Pomona 

 Covina Irrigating Company 

 Golden State Water Company (Claremont and San Dimas systems) 

 Mount San Antonio College 

 Rowland Water District 

 Suburban Water Systems 

 Valencia Heights Water Company 

 Walnut Valley Water District 

 

The location of the service areas for these sub-agencies is provided in the figure below. 

 

The District’s service area covers the eastern portion of Los Angeles County and includes 

the Cities of Claremont, Covina, Diamond Bar, Glendora, Industry, La Verne, Pomona, 

San Dimas, Walnut, West Covina, and unincorporated areas of Los Angeles County 

(including Charter Oak and Rowland Heights). The District encompasses an area of 

approximately 133 square miles. The District’s service area is provided in Figure 1. The 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 3‐4 

District is governed by a seven-member Board of Directors who each represent one of 

seven divisions. 

 

Sub-Agency Service Areas

Source: Three Valleys Municipal Water District (https://www.threevalleys.com/member-agencies) 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 3‐5 

Division Boundaries

 
Source: Three Valleys Municipal Water District 

  

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 3‐6 

The District changed its name to Three Valleys Municipal Water District in 1981 to better 

reflect the three areas that it serves: the Pomona, Walnut and East San Gabriel Valleys.   

As identified in Section 2.6, the District serves 13 sub-agencies. The District is a 

wholesale water supplier and is one of 26 member agencies of MWD.  

 

The District obtains untreated, imported water supplies from MWD for treatment at the 

District’s Miramar Water Treatment Plant.  In addition, the District produces groundwater 

from three wells located in the Six Basins which is also treated at the Miramar Water 

Treatment Plant. Treated water from the District’s Miramar Water Treatment Plant is sold 

to the District’s sub-agencies. Treated water can also be distributed through the Pomona-

Walnut-Rowland Joint Water Line (JWL). The JWL provides treated water to the City of 

Pomona, Walnut Valley Water District, and Rowland Water District. The JWL is managed 

by elected officials representing the City of Pomona, Walnut Valley Water District, and 

Rowland Water District as a joint-powers agency. 

 

The District obtains untreated, imported water supplies from MWD for spreading and 

groundwater replenishment purposes within the Main San Gabriel Basin and Six Basins 

(through CENB-48, PM-26, PM-GWR, PM-SGP PM-SGP-01, ,and USG-03 connections). 

 

The District obtains untreated, imported water supplies from MWD for delivery to Covina 

Irrigating Company through the District’s MWD-SGP-03 connection. Covina Irrigating 

Company treats imported water deliveries at its William B. Temple Treatment Plant 

(Temple Plant). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 3‐7 

The District also obtains treated, imported water supplies from MWD for direct delivery to 

the District’s sub-agencies through the following connections: 

 

 Boy Scouts of America (PM-14) 

 Cal Poly Pomona (PM-08) 

 Covina, City of (PM-19) 

 Covina Irrigating Company (PM-SGP-03) 

 Glendora, City of (PM-06, PM-18, and PM-23) 

 Golden State Water Company (PM-07 and PM-16) 

 Joint Water Line (PM-15A and PM-15B) 

 Mt. San Antonio College (PM-01) 

 Pomona, City of (PM-11) 

 Rowland Water District (PM-09 and PM-22) 

 Walnut Valley Water District (PM-10, PM-12, an PM-24) 

 

 SERVICE AREA BOUNDARY MAPS 

 

As discussed in Section 3.1, the District’s water service area covers approximately 133 

square miles in the eastern portion of Los Angeles County. A service area boundary map 

is provided on Figure 1. The District’s water service area relative to the municipal 

boundaries within the Cities of Claremont, Covina, Diamond Bar, Glendora, Industry, La 

Verne, Pomona, San Dimas, Walnut, West Covina, and unincorporated areas of Los 

Angeles County (including Charter Oak and Rowland Heights) is provided in Figure 2. 

 

The District’s service area map was submitted online through DWR’s Population Tool in 

a “KML” file format (i.e. Google Earth format). The KML file was originally created in a 

Geographical Information Systems (GIS) shape file format and converted into a KML 

format. To the extent information was available, metadata was included in the KML file 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 3‐8 

(including map projection, contact information, start and end dates for which the map is 

valid, constraints, attribute table definitions, and digitizing base). 

 

The District is one of MWD’s member agencies and similarly, the District has many of its 

own sub-agencies. The following tabulation provides a list of the District’s sub-agencies, 

a description of each sub-agency and their water resources, and their corresponding 

service area.  

 

Description of Sub-Agency Service Area and Supply Sources 

Sub-Agency Description  

Boy Scouts of America 

(BSA) 

 The BSA is one of the three institutional agencies that 

uses imported water provided from the District. 

 The BSA owns and operates the Firestone Scout 

Reservation, a campground and wilderness facility 

located in the southern portion of the District’s service 

area. 

 The Firestone Scout Reservation uses only treated 

imported water supplies. 

California State 

Polytechnic University, 

Pomona (Cal Poly) 

 Cal Poly is one of the three institutional agencies that 

uses imported water provided from the District. 

 Cal Poly is located in the central portion of the District’s 

service area within the City of Pomona.  

 Cal Poly uses a combination of treated imported water 

and groundwater for its domestic supply. Cal Poly uses 

recycled water provided from the City of Pomona for 

irrigation purposes. 

City of Covina  The City of Covina’s service area covers the majority 

of the City of Covina, a portion of the City of West 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 3‐9 

Covina, and unincorporated areas of Los Angeles 

County. 

 The City of Covina primarily receives water supplies 

from Covina Irrigating Company, which produces 

water from local surface and groundwater sources. In 

addition, Covina Irrigating Company treats imported 

water provided by the District. 

 The City of Covina can also rely on treated imported 

water from the District when necessary.  

City of Glendora  The City of Glendora’s service area covers the majority 

of the City of Glendora, portions of the Cities of Azusa 

and San Dimas, and unincorporated areas of Los 

Angeles County. 

 Approximately 98 percent of the City of Glendora’s 

service area lies with the District’s boundaries. 

 The City of Glendora is located in the northwestern 

portion of the District’s service area. 

 The City of Glendora primarily produces its water 

supply through groundwater pumping from the Main 

San Gabriel Basin. The City of Glendora also 

purchases water supplies from Covina Irrigating 

Company. 

 The City of Glendora can also purchase treated 

imported water from the District. 

City of La Verne  The City of La Verne’s service area covers the majority 

of the City of La Verne and unincorporated areas of 

Los Angeles County.  

 The City of La Verne is located in the northern portion 

of the District’s service area.  

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 3‐10 

 The City of La Verne’s water supply sources include 

groundwater from the Six Basins and imported water 

treated at the District’s Miramar Water Treatment 

Plant. 

City of Pomona  The City of Pomona’s service area covers the majority 

of the City of Pomona and portions of the Cities of 

Chino Hills, Claremont, La Verne, and Montclair. 

 The City of Pomona is located in the eastern portion of 

the District’s service area. 

 The City of Pomona has several water sources 

including local surface water from the San Antonio 

Canyon, groundwater from Chino Basin, Spadra 

Basin, and Six Basins, as well as treated imported 

water from the District. The City of Pomona also owns 

and operates a recycled water distribution system to 

deliver recycled water for non-potable purposes. 

Covina Irrigating 

Company (CIC) 

 CIC provides wholesale water service to its 

stockholders located within the Cities of Baldwin Park, 

Covina, Glendora, San Dimas, and West Covina.  

 CIC currently obtains groundwater from the Main San 

Gabriel Basin, surface water from the San Gabriel 

River and untreated imported water from the District. 

Golden State Water 

Company - Claremont 

 GSWC is an investor-owned water company regulated 

by the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC). 

 GSWC (Claremont) serves the City of Claremont, 

portions of the Cities of Montclair, Pomona, Upland, 

and unincorporated areas of Los Angeles County. 

 GSWC water supply sources include groundwater 

from the Six Basins and Chino Basin as well as 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 3‐11 

imported water treated at the District’s Miramar Water 

Treatment Plant. 

Golden State Water 

Company - San Dimas 

 GSWC is an investor-owned water company regulated 

by the CPUC. 

 GSWC (San Dimas) serves the City of San Dimas, 

portions of the Cities of Covina, La Verne, and Walnut, 

and unincorporated areas of Los Angeles County. 

 GSWC has several water sources including CIC 

(surface and groundwater), groundwater from the Main 

San Gabriel Basin, and treated imported water from 

the District. GSWC also has a limited amount of 

surface water available for irrigation purposes. 

Mount San Antonio 

College (MSAC) 

 MSAC is one of the three institutional agencies that 

uses imported water provided from the District. 

 MSAC is located in the central portion of the District’s 

service area within the City of Walnut.  

 MSAC uses treated imported water from MWD through 

the District. MSAC also uses several small 

groundwater wells for non-potable purposes.  

Rowland Water District 

(RWD) 

 RWD is a public water district within the District’s 

service area.  

 RWD serves portions of the Cities of Industry, La 

Puente, West Covina, and unincorporated areas of 

Los Angeles County including Rowland Heights and 

Hacienda Heights.  

 RWD purchases treated imported water supplies from 

MWD through the District. RWD also has a recycled 

water system for non-potable purposes. In addition, 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 3‐12 

RWD receives groundwater produced from the Main 

Basin, Central Basin, and Puente Basin. 

Suburban Water 

System (SWS) 

 

 SWS is an investor-owned water company regulated 

by the CPUC.  

 SWS serves the Cities of Covina, Glendora, La 

Puente, Walnut, and West Covina and unincorporated 

areas of Los Angeles County. SWS is located in the 

western portion of the District’s service area. 

 SWS receives its water supply from CIC (groundwater, 

surface water and purchase imported water) and 

groundwater produced from the Main San Gabriel 

Basin. SWS also purchases treated imported water 

from MWD through the District or through Upper San 

Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District. SWS also 

operates a recycled water system to deliver recycled 

water for non-potable purposes. 

Valencia Heights Water 

Company (VHWC) 

 VHWC is a mutual water company serving portions of 

the City of West Covina and unincorporated areas of 

Los Angeles County. 

 VHWC is located in the central portion of the District’s 

service area. 

 VHWC receives its water supply from CIC (ground 

water, surface water and purchased imported water) 

and groundwater produced from the Main San Gabriel 

Basin. VHWC can purchase treated imported water 

from MWD. 

 

Walnut Valley Water 

District (WVWD) 

 WVWD is a public water district and serves the City of 

Diamond Bar, portions of the Cities of Industry, 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 3‐13 

Pomona, Walnut, West Covina and unincorporated 

areas of Los Angeles County. 

 WVWD purchases treated imported water supplies 

from MWD through the District. WVWD also operates 

a recycled water system and receives its recycled 

water from the Pomona Water Reclamation Plant and 

several groundwater production wells extracting from 

the Puente Basin and Spadra Basin. In addition, RWD 

receives groundwater produced from the Main Basin 

and Central Basin. 

 

 
 
 

 SERVICE AREA CLIMATE 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10631. 

 
(a) Describe the service area of the supplier, including … climate… 
 

CWC 10630. 
 

It is the intention of the Legislature, in enacting this part, to permit levels of water 
management planning commensurate with the numbers of customers served and the 
volume of water supplied, while accounting for impacts from climate change. 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

The monthly historical average temperatures (including minimum and maximum), 

monthly historical average rainfall, and monthly ETo in the vicinity of the District’s service 

area is summarized in the tabulation below. Historical climate information was obtained 

from the Western Regional Climate Center (WRCC), Los Angeles County Department of 

Public Works (DPW), and from DWR’s California Irrigation Management Information 

System (CIMIS). 

 

  

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 3‐14 

Service Area Climate Information  
   

Month 
Average  

Temperature 
Average Min. 
Temperature

Average Max. 
Temperature

Average Total 
Precipitation ETo

  (F) (F) (F) (Inches) (Inches) 

      

January 51.9 38.5 65.6 3.4 1.95

February 54.2 40.8 67.7 3.5 2.41

March 56.4 42.6 70.3 2.7 3.75

April 59.9 45.9 74.1 1.2 4.55

May 64.0 50.2 77.9 0.4 5.19

June 69.1 53.9 84.3 0.1 5.97

July 74.4 58.0 91.0 0.0 6.60

August 74.7 58.3 91.2 0.1 6.41

September 72.0 55.6 88.6 0.3 4.88

October 65.3 50.2 80.6 0.8 3.46

November 58.1 42.9 73.2 1.5 2.31

December 52.7 38.7 66.5 2.7 1.72
      

Annual 62.2 47.6 77.4 17.2 49.20
      

   
Source:   

Historical average monthly precipitation and temperature information was obtained from the Western Regional Climate Center 
(http://www.wrcc.dri.edu/) and is based on data collected from Station 047050 (Pomona Fairplex, California) from 1893 through 
2017.  Historical monthly average ETo information was obtained from the California Irrigation Management Information Systems 
(http://wwwcimis.water.ca.gov) and is based on data collected from Station 78 (Pomona).  

 

The historical average rainfall in the vicinity of the District’s service area is 17.2 inches.  

The District’s service area in the Pomona Valley, Walnut Valley, and eastern San Gabriel 

Valley has a Mediterranean climate and summers can reach average maximum daily 

temperatures in the high 80s to low 90s.  Although changes in climatic conditions may 

have an impact, the projected water supply demands will be based on average year, 

single dry year and five consecutive year drought, based on historical data and projected 

demands. Precipitation within the vicinity of the area receiving water supplies from the 

District is discussed further in Section 7.2. A discussion of the District’s sources of supply, 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 3‐15 

how those sources may be impacted by climate change, and the proactive actions the 

District and other local/regional water managers may take to address the potential climate 

change on water supplies is provided in Section 4.5. 

 
 

 SERVICE AREA POPULATION AND DEMOGRAPHICS 

 

 SERVICE AREA POPULATION 

 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10631. 

 
(a) Describe the service area of the supplier, including current and projected population… 
The projected population estimates shall be based upon data from the state, regional, or 
local service agency population projections within the service area of the urban water 
supplier and shall be in five-year increments to 20 years or as far as data is available. 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
The area receiving water supplies from the District has a current population of 513,623. 

Table 3-1 presents the current and projected population of the area receiving water 

supplies from the District from FY 2019-20 to FY 2044-45. The area receiving water 

supplies from the District is projected to have a population of 561,782 by FY 2044-45. 

 

The District initially reviewed the available historical populations within its service area for 

population growth trends. The District determined historical U.S. Census populations 

within its service area using DWR’s Population Tool (https://wuedata.water.ca.gov/).  The 

District’s service area boundary was uploaded to DWR’s Population Tool in a “KML” file 

format (i.e. Google Earth format). The KML file was originally created in a GIS shapefile 

format and converted into a KML format. The uploaded KML file represents the District’s 

service area boundary from 1990 to present (2020). DWR’s Population Tool utilized U.S. 

Census data from 1990, 2000, and 2010, along with the District’s service area boundary, 

to estimate the population served by the District in the years 1990, 2000, and 2010. 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 3‐16 

Population data provided by the U.S. Census and from the Southern California 

Association of Governments (SCAG) was used to estimate the 2020 population within the 

District’s service area.  The District obtained population estimates for the year 2018 from 

the United States Census Bureau's American Community Survey (ACS).  The District 

performed a GIS analysis (based on the percentage of ACS population data associated 

within the District’s service area boundaries) to estimate population within the District’s 

service area for the year 2018.  

 

Projected populations in the District’s service area (including the year 2020) were based 

on growth rate projections obtained from data provided in SCAG’s “The 2020-2045 

Regional Transportation Plan / Sustainable Communities Strategy of the SCAG", dated 

September 2020, which incorporates demographic trends, existing land use, general plan 

land use policies, and input and projections through the year 2045 from the Department 

of Finance (DOF) and the US Census Bureau for counties, cities and unincorporated 

areas within Southern California.   

 

Table 3-1 Population – Current and Projected 

 

 

 

 

 

2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045(opt)

513,623 523,167 532,888 542,790 552,204 561,782

Submittal Table 3‐1 Wholesale: Population ‐ Current and Projected

Population 

Served

NOTES: The 2020 population and the population projected through 2045 were obtained 

from data in SCAG's 2020‐2045 Regional Transportation Plan (See Section 3.4.1 and 

Section 5.4.1).

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 3‐17 

 OTHER SOCIAL, ECONOMIC, AND DEMOGRAPHIC FACTORS 

 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10631. 

 
(a) Describe the service area of the supplier, including… other social, economic, and 
demographic factors affecting the supplier’s water management planning. 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

No other demographic factors affect the District’s water management planning. However, 

increased population will have an impact on water demand. 

 

 

 LAND USES WITHIN SERVICE AREA  

 

The District is a wholesale water agency which provides both treated and untreated 

imported water to its retail sub-agencies. However, the District does not provide water 

directly to retail customers.  The District obtains a five-year projection of both treated and 

imported water demands from its customers which is updated annually. As discussed in 

Section 3.4, the District also obtained data from the Southern California Association of 

Governments document entitled “The 2020-2045 Regional Transportation Plan / 

Sustainable Communities Strategy of the SCAG", dated September 2020. Projected 

populations in the District’s service area were based on growth rate projections developed 

by SCAG. The data provided by SCAG incorporates demographic trends, existing land 

use, general plan land use policies, and input and projections through the year 2045 from 

the Department of Finance and the US Census Bureau for counties, cities and 

unincorporated areas within Southern California. The projected population was used to 

project future demand through the year 2045. As discussed in Section 2.6, the District 

coordinated the preparation of the 2020 Plan with the Cities of Azusa, Claremont, 

Diamond Bar, Industry, La Puente, Walnut, the County of Los Angeles, and other 

agencies. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 4‐1 

CHAPTER 4  

WATER USE CHARACTERIZATION 

 

LAY DESCRIPTION – CHAPTER 4 

 

WATER USE CHARACTERIZATION  

 

Chapter 4 (Water Use Characterization) of the District’s 2020 Plan discusses and 

provides the following: 

 

 The District provides water service to individual “water use categories”.  These 

water use sectors include sales to other agencies and groundwater recharge.  

Individual descriptions for these water use categories are provided in Section 

4.2.1. 

 The District’s total water demands from its sub-agencies over the past 10 years 

have ranged from 57,472 AFY to 76,723 AFY, with an average of 67,327 AFY. The 

District currently measures its water use through meter data and billing records. 

 The District’s current and projected water demands from its sub-agencies in five-

year increments over the next 25 years are provided (through Fiscal Year 2044-

45) as shown on Table 4-3. 

 

 

 NON-POTABLE VERSUS POTABLE WATER USE 

 

The Water Code requires a description and quantification of water uses within the 

District’s service area, including both non-potable and potable water. Recycled water 

(non-potable) uses are addressed in Section 6.5; however, recycled water is not served 

by the District, as shown in Table 4-3.   

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 4‐2 

 
 PAST, CURRENT, AND PROJECTED WATER USES BY SECTOR 

_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10635. 

 
(a) Every urban water supplier shall include, as part of its urban water management plan, 
an assessment of the reliability of its water service to its customers during normal, dry, 
and multiple dry water years. This water supply and demand assessment shall compare 
the total water supply sources available to the water supplier with the long-term total 
projected water use over the next 20 years, in five-year increments, for a normal water 
year, a single dry water year, and a drought lasting five consecutive water years. The 
water service reliability assessment shall be based upon the information compiled 
pursuant to Section 10631, including available data from state, regional, or local agency 
population projections within the service area of the urban water supplier. 

 
CWC 10631. 

 
(d)(1) For an urban retail water supplier, quantify, to the extent records are available, past 
and current water use, over the same five-year increments described in subdivision (a), 
and projected water use, based upon information developed pursuant to subdivision (a), 
identifying the uses among water use sectors, including, but not necessarily limited to, all 
of the following… 
 
(2) The water use projections shall be in the same five-year increments described in 
subdivision (a). 
 
(4)(A) Water use projections, where available, shall display and account for the water 
savings estimated to result from adopted codes, standards, ordinances, or transportation 
and land use plans identified by the urban water supplier, as applicable to the service 
area. 
 
(B) To the extent that an urban water supplier reports the information described in 
subparagraph (A), an urban water supplier shall do both of the following: 
 

(i) Provide citations of the various codes, standards, ordinances, or transportation 
and land use plans utilized in making the projections. 
(ii) Indicate the extent that the water use projections consider savings from codes, 
standards, ordinances, or transportation and land use plans. Water use 
projections that do not account for these water savings shall be noted of that fact. 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

The District’s current and projected water demands from its sub-agencies are provided in 

five-year increments over the next 25 years (through FY 2044-45) in Tables 4-1, 4-2, and 

4-3. The District’s total water demands were projected based on current water use factors 

incorporating recent water demands from its sub-agencies and the total population 

projections based on land use trends within the District.  

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 4‐3 

 

The District provides water service to individual water use categories. The water use 

categories supplied by the District are discussed in Section 4.2.1. The water use for each 

of these categories during FY 2019-20 is provided in Table 4-1. The projected water use 

for each individual water use categories is provided in Table 4-2 and is based on the 

percentage breakdown of water use from each individual water use categories in FY 

2019-20 (the percentages were then applied to the projected total water use). 

 

Table 4-1 Demands for Potable and Non-Potable Water - Actual 

 
 

  

Use Type                                                   

Drop down list

May select each use multiple times

These are the only use types that will be 

recognized by the WUE data online submittal 

tool 

Additional Description

(as needed)

Level of 

Treatment When 

Delivered
Drop down l i s t

Volume
2

Sales to other agencies Drinking Water 60,031

Groundwater recharge Raw Water 14,523

Other Potable Local Projects Drinking Water 2,169

76,723

Submittal Table 4‐1 Wholesale: Demands for Potable and Non‐Potable1 Water ‐ Actual

2020 Actual

NOTES:

TOTAL

Add additional rows as needed

1
   Recycled water demands are NOT reported in this table. Recycled water demands are reported in Table 6‐4.                        

2
  Units of measure (AF, CCF, MG) must remain consistent throughout the UWMP as reported in Table 2‐3.

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 4‐4 

Table 4-2 Use for Potable and Non-Potable Water - Projected 

 

 

Table 4-3 Total Gross Water Use (Potable and Non-Potable) 

 

 

 

  

Use Type 

Drop down list

May select each use multiple times

These are the only Use Types  that wi l l  be 

recognized by the WUEdata  onl ine submitta l  

tool .

2025 2030 2035 2040
2045

(opt)

Sales to other agencies 45,394 45,304 45,194 45,010 44,806

Groundwater recharge 10,982 10,960 10,934 10,889 10,840

Other Potable 1,640 1,637 1,633 1,626 1,619

58,016 57,901 57,761 57,525 57,265

Add addi tiona l  rows  as  needed

Submittal Table 4‐2 Wholesale: Use for Potable and Raw Water 1 ‐ Projected

Additional Description       

(as needed)

Projected Water Use
 2                                                            

Report To the Extent that Records  are Ava i lable

NOTES:

TOTAL
1 
  Recycled water demands are NOT reported in this table. Recycled water demands are reported in Table 6‐4.                                                                       

2  

Units of measure (AF, CCF, MG) must remain consistent throughout the UWMP as reported in Table 2‐3.

2020 2025 2030 2035 2040
2045 

(opt)

Potable and Raw Water
From Tables 4‐1W and 4‐2W

76,723 58,016 57,901 57,761 57,525 57,265

Recycled Water Demand*
From Table 6‐4W

0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL WATER DEMAND 76,723 58,016 57,901 57,761 57,525 57,265

Submittal Table 4‐3 Wholesale: Total Water Use (Potable and Non‐Potable)

NOTES: 

*Recycled water demand fields will be blank until Table 6‐4 is complete. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 4‐5 

 WATER USE SECTORS LISTED IN WATER CODE 

 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10635. 

 
(d)(1) For an urban retail water supplier, quantify, to the extent records are available, past 
and current water use, over the same five-year increments described in subdivision (a), 
and projected water use, based upon information developed pursuant to subdivision (a), 
identifying the uses among water use sectors, including, but not necessarily limited to, all 
of the following: 
 

(A) Single-family residential. 
(B) Multifamily. 
(C) Commercial. 
(D) Industrial. 
(E) Institutional and governmental. 
(F) Landscape. 
(G) Sales to other agencies. 
(H) Saline water intrusion barriers, groundwater recharge, or conjunctive use, or any 
combination thereof. 
(I) Agricultural. 
(J) Distribution system water loss. 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

As shown in Table 4-1, the District’s service area includes the following water use sectors: 

 

 Sales to Other Agencies 

(Water sales made to another agency. Projected sales may be based on projected 

demand provided by the receiving agency. There is inherent uncertainty in future 

projections, therefore, any projected sales reported in the Plan are for planning 

purposes only and are not considered a commitment on the part of the seller. This 

is a wholesale demand.) 

 

 Groundwater Recharge 

(The managed and intentional replenishment of natural groundwater supplies 

using man-made conveyances such as infiltration basins or injection wells. Water 

used for groundwater banking or storage may also be reported using this sector.) 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 4‐6 

 WATER USE SECTORS IN ADDITION TO THOSE LISTED IN WATER 

CODE 

 

The District’s service area does not include other water demand sectors which are not 

listed in the California Water Code (including exchanges, surface water augmentation, 

transfers, and wetlands or wildlife habitat). 

 

 PAST WATER USE 

 

Chapter 6 provides a discussion of the sources of water supply the District uses to meet 

its water demands. Section 6.1 provides a tabulation of the District’s historical annual 

water demands for each water supply source. Over the past ten years, the District’s total 

water demands have ranged from 57,472 AFY to 76,723 AFY, with an average of 67,327 

AFY. In addition, the District recently experienced a five consecutive year drought within 

its service area from FY 2011-12 to FY 2015-16. The District also reviewed its historical 

water demands from its sub-agencies to determine the projected water demands and 

water supply reliability (discussed in Chapter 7).  

 

 
  

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 4‐7 

 DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM WATER LOSS 

 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10631. 

 
(d)(1) For an urban retail water supplier, quantify, to the extent records are available, past 
and current water use, over the same five-year increments described in subdivision (a), 
and projected water use, based upon information developed pursuant to subdivision (a), 
identifying the uses among water use sectors, including, but not necessarily limited to, all 
of the following… 
 

(J) Distribution system water loss. 
 
CWC 10631. 

 
(3)(A) The distribution system water loss shall be quantified for each of the five years 
preceding the plan update, in accordance with rules adopted pursuant to Section 
10608.34. 
 
(B) The distribution system water loss quantification shall be reported in accordance with 
a worksheet approved or developed by the department through a public process. The 
water loss quantification worksheet shall be based on the water system balance 
methodology developed by the American Water Works Association. 
 
(C) In the plan due July 1, 2021, and in each update thereafter, data shall be included to 
show whether the urban retail water supplier met the distribution loss standards enacted 
by the board pursuant to Section 10608.34. 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

As a wholesale supplier, the District is not required by DWR to perform water loss audits 

and report distribution system water loss. 

 

Table 4-4 12 Month Water Loss Audit Report (Not Applicable) 

Table 4-4 is not applicable for wholesalers. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 4‐8 

 CURRENT WATER USE 

 

The District currently measures its water use through meter data and billing records. The 

water use for the District’s individual water use sectors during FY 2019-20 are provided 

in Table 4-1. The District does not provide recycled water supplies, however a summary 

of projected recycled water uses is provided in Table 4-3.   

 

DWR has created an optional “Planning Tool Worksheet” for water suppliers to review 

and assess monthly water use trends. However, DWR has deemed the tool as optional 

and the District is not required by DWR to use the tool. However, Section 6.1 provides a 

tabulation of the District’s historical annual water uses for each water supply source. 

During the past 10 years, the District experienced a five consecutive year drought within 

its service area from FY 2011-12 to FY 2015-16. A further discussion regarding the 

reliability of the District’s water supply sources is provided in Chapter 7.  

 

 

 

  

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 4‐9 

 PROJECTED WATER USE 

 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10635. 

 
(a) Every urban water supplier shall include, as part of its urban water management plan, 
an assessment of the reliability of its water service to its customers during normal, dry, 
and multiple dry water years. This water supply and demand assessment shall compare 
the total water supply sources available to the water supplier with the long-term total 
projected water use over the next 20 years, in five-year increments, for a normal water 
year, a single dry water year, and a drought lasting five consecutive water years. The 
water service reliability assessment shall be based upon the information compiled 
pursuant to Section 10631, including available data from state, regional, or local agency 
population projections within the service area of the urban water supplier. 
 

CWC 10631. 
 
(h) An urban water supplier that relies upon a wholesale agency for a source of water 
shall provide the wholesale agency with water use projections from that agency for that 
source of water in five-year increments to 20 years or as far as data is available. The 
wholesale agency shall provide information to the urban water supplier for inclusion in the 
urban water supplier’s plan that identifies and quantifies, to the extent practicable, the 
existing and planned sources of water as required by subdivision (b), available from the 
wholesale agency to the urban water supplier over the same five-year increments, and 
during various water-year types in accordance with subdivision (f). An urban water 
supplier may rely upon water supply information provided by the wholesale agency in 
fulfilling the plan informational requirements of subdivisions (b) and (f). 
 

CWC 10631. 
 
(d)(4)(A) Water use projections, where available, shall display and account for the water 
savings estimated to result from adopted codes, standards, ordinances, or transportation 
and land use plans identified by the urban water supplier, as applicable to the service 
area. 
 
(d)(4)(B) To the extent that an urban water supplier reports the information described in 
subparagraph (A), an urban water supplier shall do both of the following: 
 

(i) Provide citations of the various codes, standards, ordinances, or transportation 
and land use plans utilized in making the projections. 
(ii) Indicate the extent that the water use projections consider savings from codes, 
standards, ordinances, or transportation and land use plans. Water use projections 
that do not account for these water savings shall be noted of that fact. 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

The District’s projected water demands are provided in five-year increments over the next 

20 years (through FY 2044-45) in Table 4-3. The District’s projected water demands and 

water supplies during a normal year, a single dry year, and a five consecutive year 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 4‐10 

drought are provided in Chapter 7. The projected water demands for each of the District’s 

water use sectors are provided in Table 4-2. 

 

The District’s water demands from its sub-agencies were projected based on existing 

water use factors incorporating recent water demands from its sub-agencies, and the total 

population projections based on land use trends within the area receiving water from the 

District. A discussion of the District’s water supplies from MWD, a wholesaler, are 

discussed in Section 6.2.  As discussed in Section 2.6, the District has coordinated its 

water demand projections with MWD for each water use sector. 

 

As a wholesaler, the District’s water demand projections are not required by DWR to 

incorporate water savings, or “passive savings”, which are the result of implementation of 

new plumbing codes along with consumer awareness of the need to conserve water.  

 

Table 4-5 Inclusion in Water Use Projections (Not Applicable) 

Table 4-5 is not applicable for wholesalers. 

 
  

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 4‐11 

 CHARACTERISTIC FIVE-YEAR WATER USE 

 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10635. 

 
(b) Every urban water supplier shall include, as part of its urban water management plan, 
a drought risk assessment for its water service to its customers as part of information 
considered in developing the demand management measures and water supply projects 
and programs to be included in the urban water management plan. The urban water 
supplier may conduct an interim update or updates to this drought risk assessment within 
the five-year cycle of its urban water management plan update. The drought risk 
assessment shall include each of the following: 
 
(3) A comparison of the total water supply sources available to the water supplier with the total 
projected water use for the drought period. 
 
(4) Considerations of the historical drought hydrology, plausible changes on projected supplies 
and demands under climate change conditions, anticipated regulatory changes, and other locally 
applicable criteria. 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

The District’s projected water demands are provided in five-year increments over the next 

25 years (and through FY 2044-45) in Table 4-3. The District’s projected water demands 

and water supplies during a normal year, a single dry year, and a five consecutive year 

drought over the next 25 years (and through FY 2044-45) are provided in Chapter 7. 

 

The District’s “Drought Risk Assessment” (DRA) for the next five years (from FY 2020-21 

through FY 2024-25) is discussed in Section 7.3. The DRA includes the District’s 

projected annual water demands and supplies for each of the next five years and was 

prepared based on the five driest consecutive years on record. The DRA provides an 

assessment of the District’s water service reliability during a drought lasting five years. 

The DRA reflects anticipated water demands from its sub-agencies and supplies prior to 

any expected benefits associated with water supply shortage responses included in the 

District’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan (provided in Chapter 8). In addition to 

historical drought hydrology, the District considered impacts to water supplies and 

demands based on climate change conditions (discussed in Section 4.5)  

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 4‐12 

 WORKSHEETS AND REPORTING TABLES 

The District’s current and projected water demands, including the water demands for each 

of the District’s water use sectors, are provided in five-year increments over the next 25 

years (and through FY 2044-45) in Tables 4-1, 4-2, and 4-3. 

 

 OPTIONAL PLANNING TOOL USE ANALYSIS WORKSHEET 

 

As discussed in Section 4.2.5, DWR has deemed the “Planning Tool Worksheet” as 

optional and the District is not required by DWR to use the tool. In addition, the District 

has been able to provide sufficient water supplies to its customers, including during a five 

consecutive year drought and years with historically high water demands. A further 

discussion regarding the reliability of the District’s water supply sources is provided in 

Chapter 7. 

 

 DWR 2020 UWMP SUBMITTAL TABLES 

 

The District’s current water demands for each of the water use sectors during FY 2019-

20 are provided in Table 4-1. The District’s projected water demands for each of the water 

use sectors, in five-year increments over the next 25 years (and through FY 2044-45), 

are provided in Table 4-2.  The District’s total projected water demands, including potable 

water, in five-year increments over the next 25 years (and through FY 2044-45), are 

summarized in Table 4-3. As a wholesale supplier, the District is not required by DWR to 

perform water loss audits and report distribution system water loss. 

 

  

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 4‐13 

 WATER USE FOR LOWER INCOME HOUSEHOLDS 

 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10631.1. 

 
(a) The water use projections required by Section 10631 shall include projected water use 
for single-family and multifamily residential housing needed for lower income households, 
as defined in Section 50079.5 of the Health and Safety Code, as identified in the housing 
element of any city, county, or city and county in the service area of the supplier. 
 

California Health and Safety Code 50079.5. 
 
(a) "Lower income households" means persons and families whose income does not 
exceed the qualifying limits for lower income families… In the event the federal standards 
are discontinued, the department shall, by regulation, establish income limits for lower 
income households for all geographic areas of the state at 80 percent of area median 
income, adjusted for family size and revised annually. 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

As a wholesale supplier, the District is not required by DWR to report projected water 

demands from its sub-agencies for lower income single-family and multi-family 

households.   

 

  

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 4‐14 

 CLIMATE CHANGE CONSIDERATIONS 

 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10630. 

 
It is the intention of the Legislature, in enacting this part, to permit levels of water 
management planning commensurate with the numbers of customers served and the 
volume of water supplied, while accounting for impacts from climate change. 
 

CWC 10635. 
 
(b) Every urban water supplier shall include, as part of its urban water management plan, 
a drought risk assessment for its water service to its customers as part of information 
considered in developing the demand management measures and water supply projects 
and programs to be included in the urban water management plan. The urban water 
supplier may conduct an interim update or updates to this drought risk assessment within 
the five-year cycle of its urban water management plan update. The drought risk 
assessment shall include each of the following… 
 
(4) Considerations of the historical drought hydrology, plausible changes on projected 
supplies and demands under climate change conditions, anticipated regulatory changes, 
and other locally applicable criteria. 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Climate is defined as “the average course or condition of the weather at a place usually 

over a period of years as exhibited by temperature, wind velocity and precipitation2”. A 

change in the climate which produces a greater amount of precipitation (i.e. more runoff 

and/or snowpack) and lower temperatures is generally a benefit to water supplies. 

However, drought conditions which may result in decreased precipitation, decreased 

runoff, and increased temperature may adversely affect an urban water supplier’s ability 

to meet demands by potentially impacting supplies. Consequently, the focus of impacts 

of climate change is on these adverse consequences. 

 

Section 6.2 of this Plan describes the District’s sources of water supply, management 

practices associated with those sources, and the long-term reliability of those sources. 

Section 7.3 includes a Drought Risk Assessment which considers the potential impacts 

of climate change to the District’s water supply sources. Chapter 8 provides a detailed 

 
2 www.merriam-webster.com 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 4‐15 

discussion of the District’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan, including but not limited to, 

the six standard water shortage levels in the event climate change results in a reduction 

to water supplies associated with a periodic drought condition. The following is a 

discussion of the District’s sources of supply, how those sources may be impacted by 

climate change, and the proactive actions the District and other local/regional water 

managers may take to address the potential climate change impacts on water supplies.  

 

Imported Water Supplies 

 

The District provides untreated and treated imported water as discussed in Section 6.2.1. 

The District relies on MWD for those imported water supplies. MWD has prepared a 

Regional 2020 Urban Water Management Plan which includes a discussion (Section 2.6 

in MWD’s 2020 UWMP) of the reliability of its water supplies and the impacts of climate 

change and is incorporated by reference in this Plan. The following is a brief summary of 

MWD’s efforts: 

 

Resource Planning 

 

 MWD has established the Robust Decision Making (RDM) approach to identify 

vulnerabilities to its water supplies. Climate change information was applied to 

MWD’s simulated water supply scenarios to demonstrate the vulnerability of water 

supplies to climate change. 

 

 MWD altered the inflow hydrology scenarios on the Colorado River simulation 

model to reflect modified inflow to MWD’s Colorado River aqueduct. 

 

 

 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 4‐16 

Knowledge Sharing and Research Support 

 

 MWD is an active and founding member of the Water Utility Climate Alliance 

(WUCA) which includes 12 nationwide partners collaborating on climate change 

considerations. As such, MWD shares agency actions on climate change and 

adaptation. WUCA has also released numerous research papers on climate 

change. 

 

Implementation of Programs and Policies 

 

 MWD’s programs include the use of solar energy, use of ride share programs, and 

reduction of greenhouse emissions. Collectively these actions are intended to 

impact the effects of climate change. 

 

Groundwater Supplies – Six Basins 

 

The District uses groundwater produced from the Six Basins as noted in Section 6.2.2 of 

this Plan. As a subbasin to the San Gabriel Valley Basin (Basin Number 4-13 pursuant to 

DWR Bulletin 118), the Six Basins has been identified by DWR as a very low-priority 

groundwater basin partially due to the fact it is adjudicated. In that regard, the Six Basins 

is actively managed by the Six Basins Watermaster and those management activities are 

described in detail in Section 6.2.2.  

 

Recognizing the potential impacts of climate change on the Six Basins groundwater 

supplies (decreased local runoff and replenishment, along with increased groundwater 

production which may lead to decreased groundwater levels), the District has used 

climate tools available on the California Energy Commission’s Cal-Adapt website 

(https://cal-adapt.org/)  to identify potential future climate change cycles for the Six Basins. 

The Cal-Adapt website has been developed by the Geospatial Innovation Facility at the 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 4‐17 

University of California, Berkeley with funding and advisory oversight by the California 

Energy Commission and California Strategic Growth Council.   

 

To address the uncertainty in future greenhouse gas emissions, Cal-Adapt has developed 

a Representative Concentration Pathway 4.5 (RCP 4.5) scenario and a Representative 

Concentration Pathway 8.5 (RCP 8.5) scenario.  RCP 4.5 represents a scenario in which 

greenhouse gas emissions peak around 2040, then decline and stabilize.  RCP 8.5 

represents a scenario in which emissions continue to strongly rise through 2050 and 

plateau around 2100.  RCP 4.5 is a “medium” emissions scenario that models a future in 

which there is an effort made by societies to reduce greenhouse gas emissions, whereas 

RCP 8.5 is a “business-as-usual” scenario.  For the District’s climate change analysis, the 

RCP 4.5 scenario was selected. 

 

The Cal-Adapt climate tools also incorporate several General Circulation Models (GCMs), 

which represent physical processes in the atmosphere, ocean, and land surface.  These 

GCMs projected future climates under conditions such as warm/dry, cooler/wetter, and 

average simulations.  For the District’s climate change analysis, the average condition 

GCM (CanESM2) was selected. 

 

The climate tools available on the Cal-Adapt website were to simulate projected annual 

precipitation and annual average maximum temperature in the Six Basins.  An electronic 

boundary of the Six Basins was submitted online through the Cal-Adapt website in a 

“KML” file format (i.e. Google Earth format) and data using several of the available climate 

tools was generated.  

 

Based on the data generated by the Cal-Adapt simulations (see Appendix E), the average 

annual rainfall in the Six Basins is projected to be 19.50 inches over the next 25 years 

(through 2045), compared to a historical average of 17.52 inches (from 1950 through 

2019). In addition, the average maximum temperature is projected to be 81.2 degrees 

Fahrenheit compared to a historical average of 77.7 degrees Fahrenheit. Although there 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 4‐18 

may be more precipitation in the future, it may be more likely to fall as rainfall compared 

to snowfall. The simulation does not denote the duration or intensity of the storms 

contributing to the annual precipitation. Notwithstanding, the Santa Ana River watershed 

includes a complex and interconnected series of dams, reservoirs and replenishment 

basins to capture stormwater runoff. Consequently, most if not all precipitation (whether 

it is rain or snowfall) likely will be captured for use in the Six Basins area during normal 

and dry years and will not be adversely impacted by a potentially higher average annual 

temperature. 

 

Recognizing these potential impacts to local hydrology resulting from climate change and 

the resultant impacts to the groundwater supplies, the Six Basins Watermaster has taken 

(and may reinstate as needed) the following proactive actions to anticipate and 

circumvent the potential impacts of climate change. These actions will enable the District 

to use the Six Basins as a reliable source of supply. 

 

Reduce Operating Safe Yield 
 

The adjudicated water rights in the Six Basins are 19,300 AF. Through adoption of an 

annual Operating Safe Yield the Six Basins Watermaster has the ability to reduce the 

amount of water rights available to Producers before they must cease production and 

shift to more expensive imported water. The Operating Safe Yield has been reduced to 

13,000 AF which is about 67 percent of the adjudicated total. This action provides 

producers with an economic incentive to reduce demands and to avoid potential purchase 

of expensive treated imported water. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 5‐1 

CHAPTER 5  

SB X7-7 BASELINES, TARGETS, AND 2020 COMPLIANCE  

 

LAY DESCRIPTION – CHAPTER 5 

 

SB X7-7 BASELINES, TARGETS, AND 2020 COMPLIANCE 

 

Chapter 5 (SB X7-7 Baselines, Targets, and 2020 Compliance) of the District’s 2020 Plan 

discusses and provides the following: 

 

 The Water Conservation Act of 2009 (or SB X7-7) required the State of 

California  to achieve a 20 percent reduction in urban water use by the year 2020. 

 SB X7-7 required urban water suppliers, including the District, to develop a “2020 

Water Use Target” to assist the State of California to achieve the 20 percent 

reduction.  The 2020 Water Use Target represents the amount of water each 

person should use per day (i.e. gallons per capita per day or GPCD) by the year 

2020. 

 As a wholesale water agency, the District is not required to calculate a 2020 Water 

Use Target or show compliance with the 2020 Water Use Target. However, an 

assessment regarding the District’s present and proposed future measures, 

programs, and policies to assist the retail water suppliers in the District’s service 

area achieve their individual 2020 Water Use Targets is provided (in Chapter 9). 

 
 
  

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 5‐2 

 GUIDANCE FOR WHOLESALE AGENCIES 

 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10608.12. 

 
(w) “Urban wholesale water supplier,” means a water supplier, either publicly or privately 
owned, that provides more than 3,000 acre-feet of water annually at wholesale for potable 
municipal purposes.  

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

As a wholesale water agency, the District is not required to “establish and meet baseline 

and targets for daily per capita water use”, nor is the District required to submit the SB 

X7-7 Verification Form (Department of Water Resources’ Final “Guidebook for Urban 

Water Suppliers”). Nevertheless, according to the DWR’s UWMP guidebook wholesale 

agencies, such as the District, are required to “provide an assessment of their present 

and proposed future measures, programs, and policies that will help the retail water 

suppliers in their wholesale service area achieve their SB X7-7 water use reduction 

targets”. 

 

The District participates in wholesale agency programs, which provide financial incentives 

for water conservation, technical support through workshops, and available staff for 

conservation projects. The District provides financial incentives for water conservation 

through its many retrofit and rebate programs that replace high water-use fixtures with 

efficient water-use fixtures. Some of the most effective measures include, water 

conservation programs funded by MWD (via pass through by the District) and supported 

by the District and made available to its sub-agencies. In addition, the District has 

supported and/or adopted various policies to encourage demand reduction (conservation) 

in its service area. Regional programs are also in place that local agencies can participate 

in to encourage water conservation. Information regarding the District’s wholesale agency 

programs are discussed under Section 9.1.6.  

 

In FY 2019-20, the District provided more than $190,000 for communication and 

conservation programs throughout the District. The District has also assisted its sub-

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 5‐3 

agencies with outreach and public relations. These programs and messaging campaigns 

have been effective in educating the public about the importance of water conservation. 

These conservation programs have changed the public’s behavior and attitudes about 

water conservation as reflected in significantly reduced water use within the District’s 

service area.  

 

 

 SB X7-7 FORMS AND SUMMARY TABLES 

As a wholesale agency, the District is not required by DWR to complete Section 5.2 and 

subsequent subsections. 

 

Table 5-1 Baselines and Targets Summary from SB X7-7 Verification Form (Not Applicable) 

Table 5-1 is not applicable for wholesalers. 
 

Table 5-2 2020 Compliance from SB X7-7 2020 Compliance Form  (Not Applicable) 

Table 5-2 is not applicable for wholesalers. 

 

 

 BASELINE AND TARGET CALCULATIONS FOR 2020 UWMPS 

 

As a wholesale agency, the District is not required by DWR to complete Section 5.3. 

 
 
  

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 5‐4 

 METHODS FOR CALCULATING POPULATION AND GROSS WATER USE 

_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10608.20. 

 
(e) An urban retail water supplier shall include in its urban water management plan due in 
2010 pursuant to Part 2.6 (commencing with Section 10610) the baseline daily per capita 
water use, urban water use target, interim urban water use target, and compliance daily 
per capita water use, along with the bases for determining those estimates, including 
references to supporting data. 
 
(f) When calculating per capita values for the purposes of this chapter, an urban retail 
water supplier shall determine population using federal, state, and local population reports 
and projections. 
 

CWC 10644. 
 

(a)(2) The plan… shall include any standardized forms, tables, or displays specified by 
the department. 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

As a wholesale agency, the District is not required by DWR to complete Section 5.4 and 

subsequent subsections. 

 

 

 2020 COMPLIANCE DAILY PER CAPITA WATER USE (GPCD) 

_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10608.12. 

 
(f) “Compliance daily per capita water use” means the gross water use during the final 
year of the reporting period, reported in gallons per capita per day. 
 

CWC 10608.20. 
 

(e) An urban retail water supplier shall include in its urban water management plan due in 
2010… compliance daily per capita water use, along with the bases for determining those 
estimates, including references to supporting data. 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

As a wholesale agency, the District is not required by DWR to complete Section 5.5 and 

subsequent subsections. 

 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 5‐5 

 REGIONAL ALLIANCE 

 

As a wholesale agency, the District is not required by DWR to complete Section 5.6 and 

subsequent subsections. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 6‐1 

CHAPTER 6  

WATER SUPPLY CHARACTERIZATION 

 

LAY DESCRIPTION – CHAPTER 6 

 

WATER SUPPLY CHARACTERIZATION 

 

Chapter 6 (Water Supply Characterization) of the District’s 2020 Plan discusses and 

provides the following: 

  The District’s water supply sources include: groundwater pumped from Six Basins; 

untreated, imported surface water purchased from Metropolitan Water District of 

Southern California for use at the District’s treatment plant; and treated imported 

surface water purchased from Metropolitan Water District of Southern California 

 The District’s main source of water supply is imported water from MWD. 

 A tabulation of the District’s historical water supplies is provided in Section 6.1.  

 A discussion regarding the District’s imported water supplies from MWD is 

provided. Information regarding imported water connections, capacities, reliability, 

and historical production is provided. 

 A discussion regarding the District’s purchased water supplies from City of 

Pomona is provided. Information regarding purchased water connections, 

capacities, and historical production is provided. 

 A discussion regarding the District’s groundwater supplies from the Six Basins is 

provided. Information regarding basin location, adjudication, management, water 

levels, water quality, water rights, and historical production is provided. 

 The District’s proposed future projects to maximize its water supply resources are 

discussed. 

 The District’s “energy intensity” is discussed and represents the quantity of energy 

consumed, measured in kilowatt hours, divided by the volume of water, measured 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 6‐2 

in acre-feet over a one-year period.  The total energy intensity associated with the 

District’s water management processes was estimated during FY 2019-20.  

 

In this Chapter, the District will identify and describe each of its sources of water supply. 

In addition, the District will describe the following: 

 

 Management of each water supply source; 

 Current provisions of a basin adjudication or Groundwater Sustainability Plan 

(GSP), as applicable, pertaining to management of groundwater supplies; 

 Measures the District is taking to develop potential new sources of water supply 

(as applicable); and 

 Opportunities for exchanges and transfers on a long- or short-term basis. 

 

The characterization of the District’s water supply sources will account for the anticipated 

availability during a normal year, a single dry year, a five consecutive year drought, along 

with projections through FY 2044-45. 

  

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 6‐3 

 WATER SUPPLY ANALYSIS OVERVIEW 

 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10631. 

 
(b) Identify and quantify, to the extent practicable, the existing and planned sources of 
water available to the supplier over the same five-year increments described in 
subdivision (a), providing supporting and related information, including all of the following: 
 
(1) A detailed discussion of anticipated supply availability under a normal water year, 
single dry year, and droughts lasting at least five years, as well as more frequent and 
severe periods of drought, as described in the drought risk assessment. For each source 
of water supply, consider any information pertinent to the reliability analysis conducted 
pursuant to Section 10635, including changes in supply due to climate change. 
 
(2) When multiple sources of water supply are identified, a description of the management 
of each supply in correlation with the other identified supplies 
 

CWC 10631. 
 

(h) An urban water supplier that relies upon a wholesale agency for a source of water shall 
provide the wholesale agency with water use projections from that agency for that source 
of water in five-year increments to 20 years or as far as data is available. The wholesale 
agency shall provide information to the urban water supplier for inclusion in the urban water 
supplier’s plan that identifies and quantifies, to the extent practicable, the existing and 
planned sources of water as required by subdivision (b), available from the wholesale 
agency to the urban water supplier over the same five-year increments, and during various 
water-year types in accordance with subdivision (f). An urban water supplier may rely upon 
water supply information provided by the wholesale agency in fulfilling the plan 
informational requirements of subdivisions (b) and (f).  

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

The District’s water supply sources include: groundwater pumped from Six Basins; 

untreated, imported surface water purchased from Metropolitan Water District of Southern 

California for use at the District’s treatment plant; and treated imported surface water 

purchased from Metropolitan Water District of Southern California. The District’s main 

source of water supply is imported water from MWD.  A tabulation of the District’s 

historical water supplies is provided below. 

  

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 6‐4 

 

Source: Data provided by the District 
1 Includes untreated water supply from MWD that TVMWD treats for potable use (PM-21) 
2 Includes water supply from MWD used for spreading and replenishment purposes (PM-21-SASG, PM-26, 

PM-GWR, PM-SGP, PM-SGP01, USG-03, CENB-48, OC-59) 
3 Includes untreated water supply from MWD that CIC treats for potable use (MWD-SGP03) 
4 Includes treated water supply from MWD for direct use (PM-01, PM-06, PM-7, PM-8, PM-9, PM-10, PM-

11, PM-12, PM-14, PM-15A, PM-15B, PM-16, PM-18, PM-19, PM-22, PM-23, and PM-24) 

 

 

 

 SPECIFIC ANALYSIS APPLICABLE TO ALL WATER SUPPLY 

SOURCES 

 

The section below provides a discussion of the following information to the extent 

practical: 

 

 The District’s existing and planned sources of water supply are identified; 

 Each source of supply is quantified in five-year increments through FY 2044-45; 

Fiscal 
Year 

Miramar Treatment Plant Spreading To CIC 
To Other 
Agencies

Local 
Projects 

Total 
Six Basins 

Groundwater 

MWD 
Untreated 
Imported 

Water1 

MWD 
Untreated 
Imported 

Water2

MWD 
Untreated 
Imported 

Water3

MWD 
Treated 

Imported 
Water4

2010-11 855 16,281 12,265 0 33,949 1,380 64,729

2011-12 738 14,184 12,872 0 35,142 1,854 64,789

2012-13 776 19,929 10,102 0 38,555 2,184 71,546

2013-14 632 18,358 3,110 0 49,603 2,529 74,233

2014-15 1,110 16,781 2,268 0 39,444 2,753 62,357

2015-16 1,044 15,771 2,453 5,627 30,671 1,907 57,472

2016-17 945 17,613 12,884 1,825 33,610 2,413 69,289

2017-18 1,219 14,744 3,763 8,089 37,696 2,975 68,486

2018-19 968 16,706 2,310 8,419 33,236 2,008 63,648

2019-20 1,200 16,468 14,523 7,181 35,182 2,169 76,723

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 6‐5 

 The anticipated supply availability under normal, single dry, and five consecutive 

dry years, and any other water year conditions included in the Drought Risk 

Assessment (see Chapter 7) are described; 

 The management of each water supply in correlation with other identified supplies 

is described. 

 Information pertinent to the reliability analysis, including climate change effects, is 

considered. 

 

The District historically has relied on groundwater supplies from Six Basins, and untreated 

and treated imported surface water purchased from Metropolitan Water District of 

Southern California. The following descriptions summarize the District’s sources of supply 

(detailed descriptions are provided in Section 6.2). 

 

Existing and Planned Sources of Supply 

 

 Purchased Untreated Imported Water  

 

The District has historically purchased untreated imported water from Metropolitan Water 

District of Southern California, as described in Section 6.2.1. In addition, Section 6.2.1 

provides a detailed discussion of the existing and planned supply of the untreated 

imported water, including a description of the management and reliability of those 

untreated imported water supplies. Table 6-8 summarizes the actual untreated imported 

water supply for FY 2019-20. In addition, Table 6-9 summarizes the projected water 

supply, in five-year increments, through FY 2044-45 under varying water supply 

conditions. 

 

 Groundwater 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 6‐6 

The District has historically pumped groundwater from the Six Basins as described in 

Section 6.2.2. In addition, Section 6.2.2 provides a detailed discussion of the existing and 

planned supply of the groundwater, including a description of the management and 

reliability of those groundwater supplies. In addition, the District can purchase San 

Antonio Creek surface water supplies from the City of Pomona to recharge Six Basins. 

Table 6-8 summarizes the actual groundwater supplies for FY 2019-20. In addition, Table 

6-9 summarizes the projected water supply, in five-year increments, through FY 2044-45 

under varying water supply conditions. 

   

Storm Water  

 

The District has historically received groundwater from the Six Basins. Management and 

use of the stormwater runoff from the Six Basins watershed, which is crucial to 

groundwater management, is described in Section 6.2.4. However, the District currently 

does not have its own program to beneficially use stormwater runoff as a direct source of 

supply. 

 

 OTHER CHARACTERIZATION CONSIDERATIONS 

 

A description of the District’s water system along with a map of its service area is included 

in Chapter 3. In addition, the agencies which manage the water supplies used by the 

District are identified in Section 6.2.1 (imported water), 6.2.2 (groundwater), 6.2.3 (surface 

water), 6.2.4 (stormwater), and 6.2.5 (recycled water).   

 OPTIONAL PLANNING TOOL 

 

As discussed in Section 4.2.5, DWR has created an optional “Planning Tool Worksheet” 

for water suppliers to review and assess monthly water use trends.  However, DWR has 

deemed the tool as optional and the District is not required by DWR to use the tool.  

Section 6.1 provides a tabulation of the District’s historical annual water uses for each 

water supply source. During the past 10 years, the District experienced a five consecutive 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 6‐7 

year drought within its service area from FY 2011-12 to FY 2015-16. In addition, historical 

records indicate the District’s annual water demands typically have been even greater 

prior to FY 2011-12. The District has been able to provide sufficient water supplies to its 

customers, including during long-term droughts and years with historically high water 

demands. In addition, the District has been able to provide water service to meet 

maximum day water demands for these years, including during the summer months.  A 

further discussion regarding the reliability of the District’s water supply sources is provided 

in Chapter 7. 

 

 

 NARRATIVE SECTIONS FOR SUPPLIER’S UWMP WATER SUPPLY 

CHARACTERIZATION 

 

 PURCHASED OR IMPORTED WATER 

 

The District depends upon MWD for its current and future imported water supplies. MWD 

supplies imported water to the District, which in turn provides that imported water to its 

sub-agencies. Treated imported water is provided to the District’s sub-agencies for direct 

use from the District service connections off of the MWD distribution system.  

 

 Untreated imported water is delivered to the District’s Miramar Water Treatment 

Plant where it is treated and subsequently provided to its sub-agencies. Untreated 

imported water may also be delivered to replenish portions of the Six Basins.  

 Untreated imported water is delivered to the Main Basin to satisfy its Replacement 

Water obligations required under the Main Basin Judgment (see Section 6.2.2). 

The reliability of future supplies of imported water historically has been impacted 

by the sources of supply available to MWD. The reliability of these imported water 

supplies is discussed further in Section 7.1.2. 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 6‐8 

MWD discusses the historical sources of water supply in Section 1.4 of its 2020 UWMP, 

which is incorporated by reference. Appendix F provides tables from MWD’s draft 2020 

UWMP summarizing the historical sources of water supply available to MWD, its supply 

capability and projected demands for an average year, single dry year, and a five 

consecutive year drought, and its projections for the District. As shown in Appendix F, 

MWD has sufficient water supplies to meet all of the projected supplemental water 

demands for its member agencies through 2045, even during a five consecutive year 

drought. MWD’s primary sources of supply and impacts to those supplies are briefly 

discussed below. 

 

Colorado River 

 

MWD owns and operates the Colorado River Aqueduct which conveys water from Lake 

Havasu on the Colorado River to water transmission pipelines and to Lake Skinner and 

Lake Matthews for storage. MWD’s Colorado River water right historically included a 

fourth and fifth priority under the 1931 Seven Party Agreement relating to California's 

share in the Colorado River water supply. MWD is currently allotted an amount of 550,000 

acre-feet under the fourth priority right and an amount of 662,000 AFY under the fifth 

priority right, but may receive additional supplies depending on water supply conditions 

for any given year. MWD can receive water under the fifth priority right when the United 

States Secretary of the Interior determines that there is a surplus of water or if Arizona or 

Nevada does not use all of their allocated water.  

 
State Water Project (SWP) 

 

MWD contracts with the State of California, through the State Water Project, for the 

delivery of northern California water through the California Aqueduct. The State Water 

Project is a statewide water conveyance system that captures, stores and conveys water 

to 29 water agencies. The State Water Project's original total contractual commitment 

called for a capacity of 4.2 million acre-feet per year. MWD has a maximum annual 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 6‐9 

entitlement of 2,011,500 acre-feet. Each year the California Department of Water 

Resources provides MWD with an allocation to SWP water (expressed as a percentage 

of its entitlement) based on hydrologic conditions at the time. In order for the SWP to 

increase deliveries to the maximum amount of contractual commitments to water every 

year, the SWP must expand its water storage and conveyance facilities to divert greater 

flows from north of the San Francisco Bay -Sacramento River Delta area (Bay-Delta) area 

into the California Aqueduct. 

 

 

 

Water Supply Allocation Plan (WSAP) 

 

During calendar year 2007, critically dry conditions impacted MWD’s main water supply 

sources. In addition, a ruling in the Federal Courts in August 2007 provided protective 

measures for the Delta Smelt (and subsequently other aquatic species) in the 

Sacramento-San Joaquin River Delta resulting in restrictions on the availability of State 

Water Project water. As a result, MWD adopted a WSAP in February 2008 to allocate 

available water supplies to its member agencies. MWD revised the WSAP in December 

2014. The WSAP establishes ten different shortage levels and a corresponding Allocation 

to each member agency (discussed further in Chapter 8.1). Based on the shortage level 

established by MWD, the WSAP provides a reduced Allocation to a member agency for 

its Municipal and Industrial (M&I) retail demand and replenishment demand. The WSAP 

considers historical local water production, full service treated water deliveries, 

agricultural deliveries and water conservation efforts when calculating each member 

agency’s Allocation. 

 

In general, the WSAP process calculates total historical member agency demand. That 

historical demand is then compared to member agency projected local supply for a 

specific Allocation year. The balance required from MWD, less an Allocation reduction 

factor, is the member agency’s imported “Water Supply Allocation”. When a member 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 6‐10 

agency reduces its local demand through conservation or other means, the imported 

water Allocation will increase. Depending on MWD’s available supply, MWD can establish 

a specific WSAP shortage level. The shortage level causes a regional reduction and 

calculates an allocation for each of its member agency. Additional information about 

MWD’s WSAP is provided in MWD’s Regional 2020 UWMP which is incorporated by 

reference. The following is a summary of MWD’s water shortage levels: 

 

 

 

 

Level 1 – Regional Percent Reduction of 5% 

Level 2 – Regional Percent Reduction of 10% 

Level 3 – Regional Percent Reduction of 15% 

Level 4 – Regional Percent Reduction of 20% 

Level 5 – Regional Percent Reduction of 25% 

Level 6 – Regional Percent Reduction of 30% 

Level 7 – Regional Percent Reduction of 35% 

Level 8 – Regional Percent Reduction of 40% 

Level 9 – Regional Percent Reduction of 45% 

Level 10 – Regional Percent Reduction of 50%  

 

MWD did not declare any WSAP Allocations for fiscal years 2011-12, 2012-13, 2013-14 

and 2014-15. However, due to the fourth consecutive year of below average rainfall and 

critically dry conditions, MWD declared a WSAP Allocation Level 3 for fiscal year 2015-

16, which represents a regional reduction of 15 percent. MWD rescinded the WSAP for 

fiscal year 2016-17 and has not reinstated it since. 

 

The District’s imported water purchases over the past five years have been tabulated in 

Section 6.1. Over the past five years, the District purchased 56,428 AFY to 75,522 AFY, 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 6‐11 

with an average of 66,048 AFY. The District’s projected purchases of untreated imported 

water, over the next 25 years in five-year increments, is provided in Table 6-9. 

 
 

 GROUNDWATER 

 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10631. 

 
(b)(4) If groundwater is identified as an existing or planned source of water available to 
the supplier, all of the following information:  
 
(A) The current version of any groundwater sustainability plan or alternative adopted 
pursuant to Part 2.74 (commencing with Section 10720), any groundwater management 
plan adopted by the urban water supplier, including plans adopted pursuant to Part 2.75 
(commencing with Section 10750), or any other specific authorization for groundwater 
management for basins underlying the urban water supplier’s service area.  
 
(B) A description of any groundwater basin or basins from which the urban water supplier 
pumps groundwater. For basins that a court or the board has adjudicated the rights to 
pump groundwater, a copy of the order or decree adopted by the court or the board and 
a description of the amount of groundwater the urban water supplier has the legal right to 
pump under the order or decree. For a basin that has not been adjudicated, information 
as to whether the department has identified the basin as a high- or medium-priority basin 
in the most current official departmental bulletin that characterizes the condition of the 
groundwater basin, and a detailed description of the efforts being undertaken by the urban 
water supplier to coordinate with groundwater sustainability agencies or groundwater 
management agencies listed in subdivision (c) of Section 10723 to maintain or achieve 
sustainable groundwater conditions in accordance with a groundwater sustainability plan 
or alternative adopted pursuant to Part 2.74 (commencing with Section 10720).  
 
(C) A detailed description and analysis of the location, amount, and sufficiency of 
groundwater pumped by the urban water supplier for the past five years. The description 
and analysis shall be based on information that is reasonably available, including, but not 
limited to, historic use records.  
 
(D) A detailed description and analysis of the amount and location of groundwater that is 
projected to be pumped by the urban water supplier. The description and analysis shall 
be based on information that is reasonably available, including, but not limited to, historic 
use records. 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

  

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 6‐12 

SIX BASINS 

 

Six Basins - Sustainable Groundwater Management Act 

 

Six Basins is a subbasin of the San Gabriel Valley Groundwater Basin pursuant to DWR 

Bulletin 118, Basin Number 4-13.  Pursuant to the Sustainable Groundwater Management 

Act of 2014 (SGMA), the Six Basins is named as an adjudicated groundwater basin, is 

exempt from the requirements of developing a GSP and is designated a low-priority basin. 

In compliance with SGMA, the Six Basins Watermaster submits its Annual Report to 

DWR. 

 

Six Basins - Adjudication 

 

Six Basins was adjudicated in 1998 and a copy of the Six Basins Judgment is provided 

in Appendix G. Parties include the Cities of Claremont, La Verne, Pomona, and Upland; 

the Golden State Water Company (GSWC, formally known as the Southern California 

Water Company), the San Antonio Water Company (SAWCo), the District, the West End 

Consolidated Water Company (WECWC), and the Pomona Valley Protective Association 

(PVPA). The provisions of the Judgment are administered and managed by the court-

ordered Six Basins Watermaster.  

 

Six Basins - Description 

 

Six Basins is a group of six interconnected groundwater basins that underlie areas of the 

Cities of Claremont, La Verne, Pomona, and Upland, and surrounding unincorporated 

areas of Los Angeles and San Bernardino Counties. Six Basins is comprised of alluvium 

or other water-bearing formations. Six Basins covers an area of approximately twenty-

one (21) square miles and is located in the northeasterly portion of the San Gabriel Valley 

Groundwater Basin. Six Basins is bounded by the San Jose Hills to the south, the Chino 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 6‐13 

Basin to the east, the San Gabriel Mountains to the north, and the Main San Gabriel Basin 

to the west. The location of the Six Basins is provided in Figure 4.    

 

The Six Basins is comprised of the Upper Claremont Heights, Lower Claremont Heights, 

Canyon, Live Oak, Ganesha, and Pomona Basins, and their locations are described as 

follows:   

 The Upper Claremont Heights Basin is bounded by the Sierra Madre/ Cucamonga 

Fault to the north, Indian Hill Fault to the south, the Chino Basin to the east, and 

the Claremont Heights Barrier to the west. 

 The Lower Claremont Heights Basin is bounded by the Sierra Madre/ Cucamonga 

Fault to the north, Indian Hill Fault to the south, the Claremont Heights Barrier to 

the east, and the Thompson Wash Barrier to the west. 

 The Canyon Basin is bounded by the Sierra Madre/ Cucamonga Fault to the south 

and east, and by the surface trace of the bedrock and alluvium interface to the 

north and west. 

 The Live Oak Basin is bounded by the Sierra Madre/ Cucamonga Fault to the 

north, the Indian Hill Fault line to the south, the Thompson Wash Barrier to the 

east, and the Main San Gabriel Basin to the west. 

 The Ganesha Basin is bounded by the Indian Hill Fault to the north, the San 

Antonio Fault to the south and east, and the Main San Gabriel Basin to the west. 

 The Pomona Basin is bounded by the Indian Hill Fault line to the north, the bedrock 

and alluvium boundary between the San Antonio Fault and the Chino Basin to the 

south, and the San Antonio Fault to the west.  

 

A court-appointed Watermaster is responsible for the administration of the Six Basins 

Judgment. Pursuant to the Judgment, the safe yield of the Six Basins is 19,300 AFY, 

which is defined as the amount of water that can be produced from the parties on an 

annual basis to ensure long-term, sustainable groundwater production. The production, 

replenishment, and recovery of the Live Oak and Ganesha Basins (collectively referred 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 6‐14 

to as Two Basins) are reserved solely for the City of La Verne and are not subject to any 

groundwater production limitations, provided that production by the City of La Verne does 

not substantially injure the rights of any other Six Basin parties. However, the Canyon, 

Upper Claremont Heights, Lower Claremont Heights, and Pomona Basins (collectively 

referred to as Four Basins) are subject to individual Operating Safe Yields determined 

annually by the Six Basins Watermaster.  

The Six Basins Watermaster annually determines the Operating Safe Yield for the Four 

Basins based on recent and expected groundwater replenishment, production, and 

groundwater levels. The Operating Safe Yield allocation for each party is based on the 

percentage share of the adjudicated base annual production rights. The base annual 

production rights are the average annual production for each party during calendar years 

1985 and 1986. The tabulation below provides the base annual production rights and the 

percent share of the Six Basins parties for use of groundwater in the Four Basins. 

 

Six Basins 

Watermaster Party 

% Share Base Annual 

Production Right (AFY) 

City of Claremont 2.772% 535 

City of La Verne 7.601% 1467 

City of Pomona 20.798% 4013 

City of Upland 9.544% 1842 

GSWC 34.741% 6705 

Pomona College 1.850% 357 

SAWCo 7.166% 1383 

Three Valleys Municipal Water 

District 

0.130% 25 

WECWC 15.399% 2972 

Totals 100% 19,300 

 

Parties are allowed to carry-over unused portions of their annual pumping rights for up to 

one year. Carryover rights are limited to a maximum of 25 percent of the Parties’ 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 6‐15 

respective share of the operating safe yield. However, any amount extracted in excess of 

the water rights will then be deducted from the following year’s water rights. 

 

Parties are allowed to utilize storage capacity in the Four Basins, subject to entering into 

an agreement with the Watermaster. Storage agreements define the type of water that 

may be stored, acceptable locations for spreading, volume of recoverable water, and 

annual and total storage limitations. Currently, three parties have storage agreements 

with the Watermaster, including the City of Pomona, SAWCo, and the District.  

 

Each year, a party’s total allowable production right is the sum of its share of the operating 

safe yield, carryover rights from the previous year, total recoverable water in storage, 

transfers from other parties, water produced by an approved special project, and 

temporary surplus water. If a party’s total production exceeds its total allowable 

production for the year, that party is obligated to spread replacement water in an amount 

equal to the excess production.   

 

Watermaster collects and tabulates groundwater level data for wells in Six Basins, 

including data from wells maintained by Watermaster, data collected by the parties, and 

data available through the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB)’s Geotracker 

database for groundwater remediation sites. Groundwater level data are reported to 

Watermaster to evaluate groundwater conditions and support the annual determination 

of operating safe yields. Pursuant to Six Basins Watermaster Annual Reports, 

groundwater levels steadily declined during the drought period from 2012 to 2016. 

However, 2017 to 2019 were relatively wet and in combination with spreading at the San 

Antonio Spreading Grounds (into Six Basins), resulted in either a decrease in the rate of 

decline of, or an increase in, groundwater levels.  From 1999 to 2019, the annual 

operating safe yield in the Six Basins ranged from 13,000 AF to 24,000 AF. In 

consideration of the recent amount of groundwater in storage and the need to control 

groundwater levels, Watermaster set an operating safe yield of 16,000 AF for 2016, 

14,000 AF in 2017, 13,500 AF in 2018, and 13,000 AF for 2019 and 2020.  

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 6‐16 

 

The District may purchase surface water supplies diverted by the City of Pomona from 

the San Antonio Creek. In the spring of 2015, the District connected to the City of 

Pomona’s Canon pipeline that conveys water from San Antonio Creek (behind San 

Antonio Dam) to the City of Pomona’s Pedley Filtration Plant located in the City of 

Claremont. The District has the ability to purchase this surface water and direct it into 

spreading basins via spreading pipeline extensions within the San Antonio Spreading 

Grounds that benefit the District’s groundwater wells located in the Six Basins. 

 

Groundwater quality in the northerly portion of Six Basins has been observed to be 

generally good as this area includes geology and land use that promote natural and 

artificial replenishment through surface spreading. The southerly and westerly portions of 

the Six Basins generally see higher concentrations of perchlorate, nitrate, and volatile 

organic compounds (VOCs) due to past agricultural land use and industrial 

contamination. Wellhead treatment is necessary in these areas to allow delivery of the 

groundwater for potable use.   

 

Six Basins - Historical and Projected Basin Production 

 

The District currently produces groundwater from three wells located in the Six Basins. 

The District’s share of the operating safe yield, exclusive of its member agencies, is 0.130 

percent. Water produced from the Six Basin is delivered to the District’s Miramar Water 

Treatment Plant for treatment. Over the past five years, the District has produced 945 

AFY to 1,219 AFY, with an average of 1,075 AFY from the Six Basins. The District’s 

projected production from the Six Basins, over the next 25 years in five-year increments, 

is provided in Table 6-9.  

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 6‐17 

Table 6-1 Groundwater Volume Pumped 

 

 

 SURFACE WATER 

 

The District does not use self-supplied surface water sources to meet its water demands. 

However, the District purchases San Antonio Creek surface water supplies from the City 

of Pomona to replenish the Six Basins. As discussed in Section 6.2.2., the District may 

purchase surface water supplies diverted by the City of Pomona from the San Antonio 

Creek. In the spring of 2015, the District connected to the City of Pomona’s Canon 

pipeline that conveys water from San Antonio Creek (behind San Antonio Dam) to the 

City of Pomona’s Pedley Filtration Plant located in the City of Claremont. The District has 

the ability to purchase this surface water and direct it into spreading basins via spreading 

pipeline extensions within the San Antonio Spreading Grounds that benefit the District’s 

groundwater wells located in the Six Basins. 

 

 STORMWATER 

 

The District does not directly use stormwater to meet its water demands.  

 
 
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 6‐18 

 WASTEWATER AND RECYCLED WATER 

_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10633. 

 
The plan shall provide, to the extent available, information on recycled water and its 
potential for use as a water source in the service area of the urban water supplier. The 
preparation of the plan shall be coordinated with local water, wastewater, groundwater, 
and planning agencies that operate within the supplier’s service area, and shall include 
all of the following: 
 
(a) A description of the wastewater collection and treatment systems in the supplier’s 
service area, including a quantification of the amount of wastewater collected and treated 
and the methods of wastewater disposal. 
 
(b) A description of the quantity of treated wastewater that meets recycled water 
standards, is being discharged, and is otherwise available for use in a recycled water 
project. 
 
(c) A description of the recycled water currently being used in the supplier’s service area, 
including, but not limited to, the type, place, and quantity of use. 
 
(d) A description and quantification of the potential uses of recycled water, including, but 
not limited to, agricultural irrigation, landscape irrigation, wildlife habitat enhancement, 
wetlands, industrial reuse, potable reuse, and other appropriate uses, and a determination 
with regard to the technical and economic feasibility of serving those uses. 
 
(e) The projected use of recycled water within the supplier’s service area at the end of 5, 
10, 15, and 20 years, and a description of the actual use of recycled water in comparison 
to uses previously projected pursuant to this subdivision. 
 
(f) A description of actions, including financial incentives, which may be taken to 
encourage the use of recycled water, and the projected results of these actions in terms 
of acre-feet of recycled water used per year. 
 
(g) A plan for optimizing the use of recycled water in the supplier’s service area, including 
actions to facilitate the installation of dual distribution systems, to promote recirculating 
uses, to facilitate the increased use of treated wastewater that meets recycled water 
standards, and to overcome any obstacles to achieving that increased use. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Municipal recycled water is municipal wastewater that has been treated to a specified 

quality to enable it to be reused for a beneficial purpose.  For purposes of the UWMPs, 

“recycled water” is defined as municipal recycled water (i.e. water that has been treated 

and discharged from a municipal wastewater facility). Municipal wastewater must meet 

two requirements; it must be reused beneficially pursuant to Title 22 of the California Code 

of Regulations and it must be reused in accordance with a Regional Water Quality Control 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 6‐19 

Board permit. Title 22 of the California Code of Regulations defines beneficial reuse of 

recycled water as “...the use of recycled water that has been transported from the point 

of treatment or production to the point of use without an intervening discharge to water of 

the State....”;  

 

The District does not directly use or have access to either wastewater or recycled water. 

However, a number of the District’s sub-agencies use recycled water as part of their water 

resource supply. Recycled Water is an important local resource that is crucial for 

sustainable management of long-term water supplies. Currently, recycled water in 

California is limited to non-potable or indirect potable uses such as irrigation of turf and 

landscaping, agricultural uses, dust control and industrial cooling. Within the District’s 

service area, recycled water is used in its sub-agencies' non-potable distribution systems 

(designated by purple-colored pipes).  

 

6.2.5.1 RECYCLED WATER COORDINATION 

_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10633. 

 
The plan shall provide, to the extent available, information on recycled water and its 
potential for use as a water source in the service area of the urban water supplier. The 
preparation of the plan shall be coordinated with local water, wastewater, groundwater, 
and planning agencies that operate within the supplier’s service area… 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Recycled water distribution systems are located in the southern portion of the District’s 

service area. There are two water reclamation plants which provide recycled water to 

water companies within the District’s service area; the Pomona Water Reclamation Plant 

(PWRP) and the San Jose Creek Water Reclamation Plant (SJCWRP). Los Angeles 

County Sanitation District (LACSD) owns and operates both of these facilities and are the 

two sources of recycled water for the District’s sub-agencies.  

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 6‐20 

LACSD uses some of the recycled effluent from the PWRP at its Spadra Landfill. The 

remaining recycled water produced at the PWRP is delivered to Cal Poly Pomona, Forest 

Lawn Memorial Park, City of Pomona, and WVWD. The City of Pomona and WVWD 

utilize the recycled water for their respective recycled water systems to sell to their 

customers with non-potable demands. Cal Poly, who receives the majority of its recycled 

water through the City of Pomona, uses the water supply for agricultural and landscape 

irrigation purposes.  

 

A large pumping plant near the western boundary of the District’s service area was built 

to provide recycled water for the City of Industry, Rowland Water District, Suburban Water 

Systems and VHWC. Currently, Rowland Water District, Suburban Water Systems, and 

VHWC are the only sub-agencies within the District utilizing recycled water from the 

SJCWRP.  

 

6.2.5.2 WASTEWATER COLLECTION, TREATMENT, AND DISPOSAL 

 
 _______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10633. 

 
(a) A description of the wastewater collection and treatment systems in the supplier’s 
service area, including a quantification of the amount of wastewater collected and treated 
and the methods of wastewater disposal. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Wastewater within the District’s service area is collected by LACSD and treated at 

LACSD’s SJCWRP, PWRP, or Joint Water Pollution Control Plant (JWPCP). There are 

two water reclamation plants located within the District’s service area. 

 

The Pomona Water Reclamation Plant has a capacity of 15 million gallons per day (MGD) 

or about 16,800 acre-feet per year and produces approximately 9,000 AFY of recycled 

water. The majority of it is used for direct non-potable purposes including landscape 

irrigation of parks, schools, golf courses, greenbelts, etc. and process water for local 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 6‐21 

industrial manufacturing. The PWRP uses recycled water at over 210 different sites. After 

the last treatment process (disinfection), effluent is discharged over a free flowing weir 

into a small pump station wet well. This wet well acts as a splitter box that distributes 

allocated flows to the PWRP pump station. 

 

The SJCWRP, which began operations in 1971, has a treatment capacity of about 100 

MGD and provides coagulated, filtered and disinfected tertiary effluent. The SJCWRP 

plant serves a largely residential population of approximately 1 million people. On 

average, approximately 43 MGD (or 47,040 AFY) of recycled water produced at the 

SJCWRP is used at over 180 different reuse sites. Solids from the SJCWRP are conveyed 

to the LACSD’s Joint Water Pollution Control Plant for treatment.  

 

SJCWRP is located near the Cities of Industry and Whittier outside of the District’s service 

area. Because the plant is down gradient of the District’s service area, the water must be 

pumped back to be delivered into the District. The majority of the recycled effluent from 

SJCWRP is utilized downstream of the plant in the Central Basin. City of Industry owns 

and operates a large pipeline and pumps recycled water from the SJCWRP to the east 

toward the District’s service area. The method of disposal when treated recycled water is 

not used (non-recycled) is discharge to the San Gabriel River/Rio Hondo and eventually 

flows to the ocean.  

 

LACSD’s JWPCP, which began operation in 1928, currently has a treatment capacity of 

about 300 MGD. The treatment level is primary and secondary treatment with disinfection. 

Solids collected in primary and secondary treatment are processed in anaerobic digestion 

tanks where bacteria break down organic material and produce methane gas. Treated 

wastewater is ultimately disinfected prior to being discharged to the Pacific Ocean. 

Though highly treated, effluent from the JWPCP does not meet recycled water standards 

and is therefore not re-used for such purposes. However, all water discharged to the 

ocean is monitored by LACSD to ensure compliance with applicable local, state, and 

federal standards for discharge water. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 6‐22 

Table 6-2 Wastewater Collected Within Area in 2020 (Not Applicable) 

Table 6-2 is not applicable for wholesalers. 

 
Table 6-3 Wastewater Treatment and Discharge within Service Area in 2020 

 

6.2.5.3 RECYCLED WATER SYSTEM DESCRIPTION 

 _______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10633. 

 
(c) A description of the recycled water currently being used in the supplier’s service area, 
including, but not limited to, the type, place, and quantity of use. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Wastewater within the District’s service area is collected by LACSD. With the exception 

for some of the recycled water used by LACSD at the Spadra Landfill, Cal Poly Pomona, 

City of Pomona, and Walnut Valley Water District can utilize all the recycled water 

produced by the Pomona plant. The City of Pomona and WVWD then utilize the water for 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 6‐23 

their respective recycled water systems to sell to their customers with non-potable 

demands. Cal Poly, who receives the majority of its recycled water through the City of 

Pomona, uses the water supply for agricultural and landscape irrigation purposes.  

 

There are daily fluctuations in supply and demand that result in unused recycled water 

being discharged into the nearby San Jose Creek flood control channel. This unused 

portion flows into the San Gabriel River and is then used for groundwater recharge 

downstream. The amount of unused recycled water discharged downstream is expected 

to be nearly eliminated with more storage and demand for non-potable supplies.  

 

Based on LACSD’s most recent “Recycled Water Use for FY18-19” annual report, the 

plant produced 6.67 MGD (7,480 AFY) of coagulated, filtered, disinfected tertiary recycled 

water for the year. Rowland Water District took over operation of the portion of the WVWD 

recycled water distribution system that ran through its service area and has connected to 

the City of Industry system which gets its recycled water from the SJCWRP, but still 

maintains a back-up connection with WVWD.  

 

Recycled water is also transported from the SJCWRP to the City of Industry’s facilities. A 

large pumping plant near the western boundary of the District’s service area was built to 

provide recycled water flows for the City of Industry, Rowland Water District, Suburban 

Water Systems and VHWC. Currently, Rowland Water District, Suburban Water Systems, 

and VHWC are the only sub-agencies within the District utilizing recycled water from the 

SJCWRP. Based on LACSD’s most recent “Recycled Water Use for FY18-19” annual 

report, , the entire facility produced a total of 43.77 MGD (49,045 AFY) of coagulated, 

filtered, disinfected tertiary recycled water for the year. 

 

 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 6‐24 

6.2.5.4 POTENTIAL, CURRENT, AND PROJECTED RECYCLED 

WATER USES 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10633. 

 
(b) A description of the recycled water currently being used in the supplier’s service area, 
including, but not limited to, the type, place, and quantity of use. A description of the 
quantity of treated wastewater that meets recycled water standards, is being discharged, 
and is otherwise available for use in a recycled water project. 
 
(d) A description and quantification of the potential uses of recycled water, including, but 
not limited to, agricultural irrigation, landscape irrigation, wildlife habitat enhancement, 
wetlands, industrial reuse, groundwater recharge, indirect potable reuse, and other 
appropriate uses, and a determination with regard to the technical and economic feasibility 
of serving those uses. 
 
(e) The projected use of recycled water within the supplier’s service area at the end of 5, 
10, 15, and 20 years, and a description of the actual use of recycled water in comparison 
to uses previously projected pursuant to this subdivision. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

The PWRP and SJCWRP produce disinfected tertiary treated wastewater in compliance 

with the applicable sections Title 22 of the Code of Regulations. Recycled water within 

the District’s service area is for: landscape/agricultural irrigation and industrial use. Future 

use of recycled water in the District’s service area will increase as infrastructure to deliver 

the supply expands. Surface irrigation of landscaped medians/parkways, schools, parks, 

and other open areas will be potential users for recycled water.  

 

MSAC, one of the District’s institutional sub-agencies, has also evaluated its potential use 

of recycled water in the future. MSAC, which is located in the City of Walnut, is adjacent 

to WVWD’s service area. A connection to WVWD’s recycled system would allow the 

school to use the recycled water to irrigate large sports fields on campus. This would 

directly offset MSAC’s current use of potable imported water for this same purpose. 

 

 Within the next several years, there could be potential construction of infrastructure to 

deliver recycled water to the southern half of District’s service area. Because the current 

market for recycled water is not fully developed, there have been difficulty justifying the 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 6‐25 

economic feasibility. In addition to installing the main pipelines needed to move the 

recycled water, agencies must convince customers to switch to recycled water supplies, 

and then the expense of connecting individual users adds another layer to the overall 

cost. Agencies must deal with these issues to determine economic feasibility.  

 

Over the planning horizon of this Plan, the types of recycled water use projected within 

the District’s service area are expected to remain the same (i.e. landscape and 

agricultural irrigation and industrial/commercial process water). 

 
 
Table 6-4 Current and Projected Recycled Water Direct Beneficial Uses Within Service Area  

 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 6‐26 

Table 6-5 2015 Recycled Water Use Projection Compared to 2020 Actual (Not Applicable) 

 

 

6.2.5.5 ACTIONS TO ENCOURAGE AND OPTIMIZE FUTURE 

RECYCLED WATER USE 

_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10633. 

 
The plan shall provide, to the extent available, information on recycled water and its 
potential for use as a water source in the service area of the urban water supplier. The 
preparation of the plan shall be coordinated with local water, wastewater, groundwater, 
and planning agencies that operate within the supplier’s service area, and shall include 
all of the following: 

(g) A plan for optimizing the use of recycled water in the supplier’s service area, including 
actions to facilitate the installation of dual distribution systems, to promote recirculating 
uses, to facilitate the increased use of treated wastewater that meets recycled water 
standards, and to overcome any obstacles to achieving that increased use. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Table 6-6 Methods to Expand Future Recycled Water Use (Not Applicable) 

Table 6-6 is not applicable for wholesalers. 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 6‐27 

As a wholesale agency, the District is not required by DWR to complete Section 6.2.5.5. 

 
 DESALINATED WATER OPPORTUNITIES 

 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10631. 

 
(g) Describe the opportunities for development of desalinated water, including, but not 
limited to, ocean water, brackish water, and groundwater, as a long-term supply. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Six Basins 

 

The District pumps groundwater from the Six Basin which is low in total dissolved solids 

(TDS) and does not require desalination. The SWRCB-DDW recommended level is 500 

milligrams per liter (mg/L) and water can be provided for long-term domestic use with TDS 

concentrations of up to 1,000 mg/L. Recent water quality data indicates the TDS values 

for the District’s groundwater wells are less than 500 mg/L. Due to the low TDS 

concentration of the groundwater from the Six Basins, the District does not need to 

investigate the use of desalination as a long-term supply. However, there may be 

opportunities for use of desalinated ocean water as a potential water supply source in the 

future, through coordination with other agencies that have ocean desalination programs. 

 

  

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 6‐28 

 WATER EXCHANGES AND TRANSFERS 

 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10631. 

 
(c) Describe the opportunities for exchanges or transfers of water on a short-term or long-
term basis. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

6.2.7.1 EXCHANGES 

 

Pursuant to DWR’s 2020 Final Guidebook, “Water exchanges are typically water 

delivered by one water user to another water user, with the receiving water user providing 

water in return at a specified time or when the conditions of the parties’ agreement are 

met. Water exchanges can be strictly a return of water on a basis agreed upon by the 

participants or it can include payment and the return of water.”  

 

The District participates in MWD’s Dry-Year Yield Program (DYYP). The DYYP is a 

groundwater storage and recovery program where supplemental water is stored in the 

Chino Basin during surplus years and could be recovered in-lieu of imported water from 

MWD through IEUA. The DYYP allows maximum use of imported water supplies available 

during wet years and stored groundwater in the Chino Basin during dry years. The DYYP 

can store up to 100,000 AF with maximum replenishment of 25,000 AFY and maximum 

extraction of 33,000 AFY. During FY 2019-20, there was 45,961 AF within the DYYP 

account. The agreement that authorized the DYYP will expire in 2028. 

 

6.2.7.2 TRANSFERS 

 

Pursuant to DWR’s 2020 Final Guidebook, “The Water Code defines a water transfer as 

a temporary or long-term change in the point of diversion, place of use, or purpose of use 

due to a transfer, sale, lease, or exchange of water or water rights.” 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 6‐29 

The District and some of its sub-agencies have explored water transfers, especially those 

agencies more reliant on imported water. Due to the uncertainties associated with the 

reliability of imported water, it becomes essential for those with limited local water 

supplies to examine other resource opportunities.  

 

As discussed in Section 6.2.2, water rights under the Six Basins Judgment can be 

transferred by assignment, sale, contract, or lease so long as such transfers meet the 

requirements of the Judgment.   However, a Party’s right to produce, store or recover 

groundwater in the Four Basins Area may not be transferred, exchanged or exercised in 

the Two Basins Area. In addition, a Party's right to produce, store or recover groundwater 

in the Two Basins Area may not be transferred, exchanged or exercised in the Four 

Basins Area. The District and several of its sub-agencies are able to utilize the transfer 

opportunities available for Six Basins water when necessary. 

 

Some of the District’s sub-agencies have also investigated the potential to transfer water 

from water rights held north of the Delta.  These investigations are also in their early 

stages and appear promising from a cost perspective. If the completed analysis shows 

that the cost of delivering this water is comparable to alternative supplies, it could result 

in additional resources within the area served by the District. 

 

6.2.7.3 EMERGENCY INTERTIES 

 

Emergency interconnections are distribution system interconnections between water 

agencies for use during critical situations where one system or the other is temporarily 

unable to provide sufficient potable water to meet its water demands and/or fire protection 

needs. An emergency interconnection will allow a water system to continue serving water 

during critical situations such as local water supply shortages as a result of earthquakes, 

fires, prolonged power outages, and droughts.  

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 6‐30 

Emergency interconnections are not available to the District because the District is a 

wholesale water agency that provides treated imported water supplies to its sub-

agencies. However, the District has multiple connections with several of its sub-agencies 

to provide these agencies with water supplies during emergency situations. 

 
 FUTURE WATER PROJECTS 

_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10631. 

 
(f) Include a description of all water supply projects and water supply programs that may 
be undertaken by the urban water supplier to meet the total projected water use, as 
established pursuant to subdivision (a) of Section 10635. The urban water supplier shall 
include a detailed description of expected future projects and programs that the urban 
water supplier may implement to increase the amount of the water supply available to the 
urban water supplier in normal and single-dry water years and for a period of drought 
lasting five consecutive water years. The description shall identify specific projects and 
include a description of the increase in water supply that is expected to be available from 
each project. The description shall include an estimate with regard to the implementation 
timeline for each project or program. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

The District plans to increase water reliability and reduce its reliance for imported water  

by constructing additional groundwater production wells over the next several years. The 

District’s objective is to construct a new well about every two years and be able to produce 

approximately 5,000 AF per year of additional groundwater. This would enable the District 

to supply about half (50%) of the historical annual production of the Miramar Plant using 

groundwater. 

 

 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 6‐31 

Table 6-7 Expected Future Water Supply Projects or Programs 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 6‐32 

 SUMMARY OF EXISTING AND PLANNED SOURCES OF WATER 

 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10631. 

 
(b) Identify and quantify, to the extent practicable, the existing and planned sources of 
water available to the supplier over the same five-year increments described in 
subdivision (a), providing supporting and related information, including all of the 
following… 
 
(b)(2) When multiple sources of water supply are identified, a description of the 
management of each supply in correlation with the other identified supplies. 
 
(h) An urban water supplier that relies upon a wholesale agency for a source of water 
shall provide the wholesale agency with water use projections from that agency for that 
source of water in five-year increments to 20 years or as far as data is available. The 
wholesale agency shall provide information to the urban water supplier for inclusion in the 
urban water supplier’s plan that identifies and quantifies, to the extent practicable, the 
existing and planned sources of water as required by subdivision (b), available from the 
wholesale agency to the urban water supplier over the same five-year increments, and 
during various water-year types in accordance with subdivision (f). An urban water 
supplier may rely upon water supply information provided by the wholesale agency in 
fulfilling the plan informational requirements of subdivisions (b) and (f). 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

6.2.9.1 DESCRIPTION OF SUPPLIES 

 

As discussed in Section 6.2, the District’s water supply sources consist of untreated 

imported water purchased from MWD (see Section 6.2.1), treated imported water 

purchased from MWD (see Section 6.2.1), and groundwater from Six Basins (see Section 

6.2.2). The actual quantities of the water supply sources available to the District during 

FY 2019-20 are summarized in Table 6-8. The reliable quantities of projected water 

supply sources available to the District in five-year increments through FY 2044-45 during 

normal or average years are summarized in Table 6-9. The reliability of these sources of 

supply are addressed in Section 7.2.3, including during normal years, single dry years, 

and five consecutive year droughts. 

 

The order of use of the District’s projected reliable water supplies from FY 2019-20 

through FY 2044-45 in five-year increments is based on historical practices, water supply 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 6‐33 

availability, and the cost of water. It is anticipated the District will initially use purchased 

untreated and treated imported water. The District will also use groundwater produced 

from the Six Basins. 

 

6.2.9.2 QUANTIFICATION OF SUPPLIES 

 
The actual quantities of the water supply sources available to the District during FY 2019-

20 are summarized in Table 6-8. The reliable quantities of projected water supply sources 

available to the District in five-year increments through FY 2044-45 during average years 

are summarized in Table 6-9. The reliability of these sources of supply are addressed in 

Section 7.2.3, including during normal years, single dry years, and five consecutive year 

droughts. 

 

The District’s projected quantities of untreated and treated imported water supplies and/or 

groundwater water supplies are based on historical long-term averages and available 

supplies during previous dry year conditions. It is anticipated the District will have 

sufficient water supplies available to meet projected demands. 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 6‐34 

Table 6-8 Water Supplies – Actual 

 

 

Table 6-9 Water Supplies – Projected 

 
 

 

Water Supply

Drop down list

May use each category multiple 

times .These are the only water 

supply categories  that wi l l  be 

recognized by the WUEdata  

onl ine submitta l  tool  

Actual Volume* 
Water Quality
Drop Down Lis t

Total Right or 

Safe Yield* 

(optional) 

Groundwater (not 

desalinated)
Six Basins 1,200 Drinking Water

Purchased or Imported  

Water
MWD 73,354 Drinking Water

Other Local Projects 2,169 Drinking Water

76,723 0

NOTES: 

Total

Add additional rows as needed

*Units of measure (AF, CCF, MG)  must remain consistent throughout the UWMP as reported in Table 2‐3. 

Submittal Table 6‐8  Wholesale: Water Supplies — Actual

Additional Detail on 

Water Supply

2020

Drop down list

May use each category 

mul tiple times .  These 

are the only water supply 

categories  that wi l l  be 

recognized by the 

WUEdata onl ine 

submitta l  tool  

Reasonably 

Available 

Volume

Total Right or 

Safe Yield 

(optional) 

Reasonably 

Available 

Volume

Total Right or 

Safe Yield 

(optional) 

Reasonably 

Available 

Volume

Total Right or 

Safe Yield 

(optional) 

Reasonably 

Available 

Volume

Total Right or 

Safe Yield 

(optional) 

Reasonably 

Available 

Volume

Total Right or 

Safe Yield 

(optional) 

Groundwater (not 

desalinated) Six Basins 2,500 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000

Purchased or 

Imported  Water MWD 52,516 51,401 51,261 51,025 50,765

Other Local Projects 3,000 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500

58,016 0 57,901 0 57,761 0 57,525 0 57,265 0

NOTES:

Submittal Table 6‐9  Wholesale: Water Supplies — Projected

Additional Detail on 

Water Supply

Projected Water Supply*
Report To the Extent Practicable

2025 2030 2035 2040 2045 (opt)

Total

Add additional rows as needed

Water Supply           

*Units of measure (AF, CCF, MG) must remain consistent throughout the UWMP as reported in Table 2‐3. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 6‐35 

 SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

 

The District considered the issues described below when developing its planned sources 

of water supply. 

 

6.2.10.1 CLIMATE CHANGE EFFECTS 

 

Climate change has the possibility of impacting the availability of planned water supplies, 

particularly during a drought period. Section 4.5 of this Plan provides a discussion 

regarding climate change effects on the District’s various sources of supply. 

 

6.2.10.2 REGULATORY CONDITIONS AND PROJECT DEVELOPMENT 

 

The District has considered the implications of changing regulatory conditions and project 

development on the availability of planned water supplies. Section 1.4 provides a 

discussion on the reduced regional reliance on imported water supplies.  

 

6.2.10.3 OTHER LOCALLY APPLICABLE CRITERIA 

 

There are no locally applicable criteria which applies to the District. 

 

 

 SUBMITTAL TABLES COMPLETION USING THE OPTIONAL PLANNING TOOL 

As discussed in Section 4.2.5, DWR has created an optional “Planning Tool Worksheet” 

for water suppliers to review and assess monthly water use trends.  However, DWR has 

deemed the tool as optional and the District is not required by DWR to use the tool.  

Section 6.1 provides a tabulation of the District’s historical annual water uses for each 

water supply source. During the past 10 years, the District experienced a five consecutive 

year drought within its service area from FY 2011-12 to FY 2015-16. In addition, historical 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 6‐36 

records indicate the District’s annual water demands typically have been even greater 

prior to FY 2011-12. The District has been able to provide sufficient water supplies to its 

customers, including during long-term droughts and years with historically high water 

demands. In addition, the District has been able to provide water service to meet 

maximum day water demands for these years, including during the summer months. A 

further discussion regarding the reliability of the District’s water supply sources is provided 

in Chapter 7. 

 

 

 ENERGY USE 
 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10631.2. 

 
(a)  In addition to the requirements of Section 10631, an urban water management plan 
shall include any of the following information that the urban water supplier can readily 
obtain: 
 
(1) An estimate of the amount of energy used to extract or divert water supplies. 

 
(2) An estimate of the amount of energy used to convey water supplies to the water 

treatment plants or distribution systems. 
 

(3) An estimate of the amount of energy used to treat water supplies. 
 

(4) An estimate of the amount of energy used to distribute water supplies through its 
distribution systems. 

 
(5) An estimate of the amount of energy used for treated water supplies in comparison to 

the amount used for nontreated water supplies. 
 

(6) An estimate of the amount of energy used to place water into or withdraw from 
storage. 

 
(7) Any other energy-related information the urban water supplier deems appropriate. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

“Energy intensity” is defined as the quantity of energy consumed, measured in kilowatt 

hours (kWh), divided by the volume of water, measured in acre-feet for a water 

management process over a one-year period. The information used to calculate the 

estimated energy intensity associated with the District’s water system is provided below. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 6‐37 

The energy intensity information is based on readily obtainable energy and water use 

data for the following water management processes: 1) extraction or diversion of water 

supplies; 2) placement into storage; 3) conveyance to distribution; 4) treatment; and 5) 

water system distribution.  

 

The District has tabulated its energy intensity using readily obtainable energy 

consumption data obtained from monthly electricity bills from Southern California Edison 

(SCE) for the whole water system and the corresponding water use data obtained from 

available water meter readings. The District has reported the energy intensity associated 

with the water management processes which occur within its operational control.  

Because the District does not track individual energy usage for each water management 

process identified above, the District has estimated the energy intensity using the a “total 

utility approach” (i.e. sum of all water management processes). The total energy 

consumed was approximately 1,496,659 kWh during FY 2019-20.  Although the total 

energy consumption reported includes electricity usage for general administration (e.g. at 

the District’s headquarters) which is not associated with any water management 

processes, the general administration energy usage is considered negligible compared 

to overall water system use and has not been netted out.  

 

The total volume of water entering the potable water system was approximately 76,723 

AF during FY 2019-20 and is consistent with the total volume of water provided in Table 

4-1.   

 

The District’s water management processes include “consequential hydropower 

generation” where the energy generation is a direct consequence of water delivery (i.e. 

all water passing through the energy generation devices is delivered to users). The total 

hydropower produced was approximately 1,744,943 kWh during FY 2019-20. 

 

The net power generated by the District during FY 2019-20 was 248-284 kWh (or 

1,744,943 kWh less 1,496,659 kWh). Because the consequential hydropower generation 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 6‐38 

is greater than the amount of total energy consumed, the energy intensity is a negative 

value. The total energy intensity associated with the District’s water management 

processes is estimated at -3.2 kWh/AF. The energy intensity data and calculations based 

on the “total utility approach” are provided in Table O-1B below.  

 

The District’s water management processes do not include “non-consequential 

hydropower generation” where the energy generation is not a direct consequence of 

water delivery (i.e. energy could be generated even if no water was being delivered to 

water users).  In addition, the District’s water management processes do not include any 

substantial “self-generated energy sources” including solar, wind, geothermal, biomass, 

co-generation, and diesel generator sources. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 6‐39 

Table O-1B.  Recommended Energy Reporting — Total Utility Approach  

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 7‐1 

CHAPTER 7  

WATER SERVICE RELIABILITY AND DROUGHT RISK ASSESSMENT 

 

LAY DESCRIPTION – CHAPTER 7 

 

WATER SERVICE RELIABILITY AND DROUGHT RISK ASSESSMENT 

 

Chapter 7 (Water Service Reliability and Drought Risk Assessment) of the District’s 2020 

Plan discusses and provides the following: 

 

 FY 2016-17 represents an “average” or “normal” water year for the District in which 

the total amount of rainfall was similar to the historical average rainfall. 

 A “single dry” year for the District was represented in FY 2017-18, in which the 

total amount of rainfall was below the historical average rainfall.  

 A “five consecutive year drought” period for the District is represented from FY 

2011-12 to FY 2015-16, where the total amount of rainfall during each of these 

years was less than the historical average rainfall. 

 The District’s current and projected water supplies available during normal years 

in five-year increments over the next 25 years are provided (through Fiscal Year 

2044-45) as shown on Table 7-2. 

 The District’s current and projected water supplies available during single dry years 

in five-year increments over the next 25 years are provided (through Fiscal Year 

2044-45) as shown on Table 7-3. 

 The District’s current and projected water supplies available during each year of a 

five consecutive year drought in five-year increments over the next 25 years are 

provided (through Fiscal Year 2044-45) as shown on Table 7-4. 

 The reliability of the District’s water supply sources, including a review of water 

supply constraints, is provided. A single dry year or a five consecutive year drought 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 7‐2 

period will not compromise the District’s ability to provide a reliable supply of water 

to its customers. 

 A Drought Risk Assessment is provided which includes an assessment of the 

District’s water supply reliability over a five consecutive year drought period. The 

District’s DRA assumes a five consecutive year drought from FY 2020-21 through 

FY 2024-25 and includes a review of water supplies, water uses, and water supply 

reliability for each water supply source during this period. The District’s water 

system has experienced a prior five consecutive year drought with no limitation to 

its collective water supplies. However, the cost of those water supplies may have 

increased based on the mix of water supplies which are used. Consequently, the 

District has the ability to enact varying water shortage levels (see Chapter 8) to 

help educate its customers and provide an economic incentive for the retail 

customers to reduce their water consumption. 

 

 

 INTRODUCTION 

 

This section of the District’s UWMP describes the District’s ability to meet retail customer 

water demands by analyzing a variety of factors which affect the District’s water supply. 

This section assesses the District’s water service reliability during average years, single 

dry years, and during a five consecutive year drought period to meet the water needs of 

its sub-agencies. This section also includes the discussion of a Drought Risk Assessment 

which provides a mechanism for the District to evaluate the risk to its water supply under 

a drought lasting for the next five consecutive years.  

 

  

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 7‐3 

 WATER SERIVCE RELIABILITY ASSESSMENT 

 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
CWC 10635. 

 
(a) Every urban water supplier shall include, as part of its urban water management plan, 
an assessment of the reliability of its water service to its customers during normal, dry, 
and multiple dry water years. This water supply and demand assessment shall compare 
the total water supply sources available to the water supplier with the long-term total 
projected water use over the next 20 years, in five-year increments, for a normal water 
year, a single dry water year, and a drought lasting five consecutive water years. The 
water service reliability assessment shall be based upon the information compiled 
pursuant to Section 10631, including available data from state, regional, or local agency 
population projections within the service area of the urban water supplier. 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 CONSTRAINTS ON WATER SOURCES 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10631. 

 
(b)(1) A detailed discussion of anticipated supply availability under a normal water year, 
single dry year, and droughts lasting at least five years, as well as more frequent and 
severe periods of drought, as described in the drought risk assessment. For each source 
of water supply, consider any information pertinent to the reliability analysis conducted 
pursuant to Section 10635, including changes in supply due to climate change. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Information regarding the reliability of the District’s water supplies to many of the District’s 

sub-agencies is based on the historical precipitation data in the San Gabriel Valley. 

Historical annual precipitation in the San Gabriel Valley is discussed in Section 3.3 and 

is based on historical data collected from Station 047050 (Pomona Fairplex, California).  

Furthermore, Section 4.5 of this Plan notes that potential future climate change impacts 

may result in an increase in the average annual precipitation within the District’s service 

area, thus indicating use of historical data is a reasonable and conservative approach. As 

indicated in Section 3.3, the historical average rainfall in the vicinity of the District’s service 

area is 17.2 inches. FY 2016-17 represents an average or normal water year for the 

District in which the total amount of rainfall was similar to the historical average rainfall. A 

single dry year for the District was represented in FY 2017-18, in which the total amount 

of rainfall was below the historical average rainfall. A five consecutive year drought period 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 7‐4 

for the District is represented from FY 2011-12 to FY 2015-16, where the total amount of 

rainfall during each of these years was less than the historical average rainfall. Table 7-1 

summarizes these “base years” for average, single dry, and five consecutive year drought 

and provides the total amount of water supplies available to the District’s sub-agencies 

during those base years. The following discussion assesses the water service reliability 

of the District’s water supply sources. 

 

Water Service Reliability - Imported Water  

 

The District’s treated imported water supplies from MWD may be impacted during a five 

consecutive year drought or other conditions which limits MWD from delivering sufficient 

water supplies to all of its member agencies, and consequently to the District. In 

anticipation of such a reduction in supplies, MWD developed a WSAP which is briefly 

described below. The WSAP provides a means of providing reduced water supplies to 

each of MWD’s member agencies for up to 10 levels of reduction representing up to a 50 

percent reduction. 

 

During calendar year 2007, critically dry conditions impacted MWD’s water supply 

sources. In addition, a ruling in the Federal Courts in August 2007 provided protective 

measures for the Delta Smelt (and subsequently other aquatic species) in the 

Sacramento-San Joaquin River Delta resulting in restrictions on the availability of State 

Water Project water. As a result, MWD adopted a WSAP in February 2008 to allocate 

available water supplies to its member agencies. MWD revised the WSAP in December 

2014.  

 

The WSAP establishes ten different shortage levels and a corresponding Allocation to 

each member agency. Based on the shortage levels established by MWD, the WSAP 

provides a separate reduced Allocation to a member agency for its 1) Municipal and 

Industrial retail demand and 2) replenishment demand. The WSAP formula considers 

historical local water production, full service treated water deliveries, agricultural 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 7‐5 

deliveries and water conservation efforts when calculating each member agency’s 

Allocation. 

 

In general, the WSAP process calculates total historical member agency demand. That 

historical demand is then compared to member agency projected local supply for a 

specific Allocation year. The balance required from MWD, less an Allocation reduction 

factor, is the member agency’s “Water Supply Allocation” of imported water from MWD. 

When a member agency reduces its local demand through conservation or other means, 

the Allocation of imported water will increase. Depending on MWD’s available supply, 

MWD can establish a specific WSAP shortage level. The shortage level causes a regional 

reduction and calculates an allocation for each of its member agencies. Additional 

information about MWD’s WSAP is provided in MWD’s Regional 2020 UWMP which is 

incorporated by reference. The following is a summary of MWD’s water shortage levels: 

 

Level 1 – Regional Percent Reduction of 5% 

Level 2 – Regional Percent Reduction of 10% 

Level 3 – Regional Percent Reduction of 15% 

Level 4 – Regional Percent Reduction of 20% 

Level 5 – Regional Percent Reduction of 25% 

Level 6 – Regional Percent Reduction of 30% 

Level 7 – Regional Percent Reduction of 35% 

Level 8 – Regional Percent Reduction of 40% 

Level 9 – Regional Percent Reduction of 45% 

Level 10 – Regional Percent Reduction of 50%  

 

In response to a fourth consecutive year of below average rainfall and critically dry 

conditions, MWD declared a WSAP Allocation Level 3 for fiscal year 2015-16, which 

represented a regional reduction of 15 percent. MWD rescinded the WSAP for fiscal year 

2016-17 and has not reinstated the WSAP since that time.  

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 7‐6 

Water Service Reliability Summary 

 

Table 7-1 shows the water supplies during the base years (for average year, single dry 

year and a five consecutive year drought).  

 

 SERVICE RELIABILITY - YEAR TYPE CHARACTERIZATION 

 

7.2.2.1 TYPES OF YEARS 

 

The District’s base years for an average year, a single dry year, and a five consecutive 

year drought are discussed in Section 7.2 and are summarized in Table 7-1. As indicated 

in Chapter 6, the District’s water supplies sources have been sufficient in meeting the 

District’s sub-agencies' historical water demands during an average year, a single dry 

year, and a five consecutive year drought.  An average year was based on a historical 

year during the past 10 years with a total precipitation similar to the historical average 

precipitation in the vicinity of the District’s service area. Because a single dry year or a 

five consecutive year drought period will not compromise the District’s ability to provide a 

reliable supply of water to its sub-agencies, a single dry year in this Plan was selected 

based one of the driest years during the past 10 years. The five consecutive year drought 

period was based on a period of five consecutive dry years during the past 10 years.    

 

As indicated in Section 3.3, the historical average rainfall in the vicinity of the District’s 

service area is 17.2 inches. FY 2016-17 represents an average or normal water year for 

the District in which the total amount of rainfall was similar to the historical average rainfall. 

A single dry year for the District was represented in FY 2017-18, in which the total amount 

of rainfall was less than the historical average rainfall. A five consecutive year drought 

period for the District is represented from FY 2011-12 to FY 2015-16, where the total 

amount of rainfall during each of these years was less than the historical average rainfall. 

Table 7-1 summarizes these “base years” for an average year, a single dry year and a 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 7‐7 

five consecutive year drought period and provides the total amount of water supplies 

available to the District during those base years.  

 
Table 7-1 Basis of Water Year Data (Reliability Assessment) 

 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 7‐8 

7.2.2.2 SOURCES FOR WATER DATA 

 

The monthly historical average temperatures (including minimum and maximum), 

monthly historical average rainfall, and monthly ETo in the vicinity of the District’s service 

area are discussed in Section 3.3. Historical climate information was obtained from the 

WRCC, DPW, and from DWR’s CIMIS. 

 

 SERVICE RELIABILITY – SUPPLY AND DEMAND COMPARISON 

 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10635. 

 
(a) Every urban water supplier shall include, as part of its urban water management plan, 
an assessment of the reliability of its water service to its customers during normal, dry, 
and multiple dry water years. This water supply and demand assessment shall compare 
the total water supply sources available to the water supplier with the long-term total 
projected water use over the next 20 years, in five-year increments, for a normal water 
year, a single dry water year, and a drought lasting five consecutive water years. The 
water service reliability assessment shall be based upon the information compiled 
pursuant to Section 10631, including available data from state, regional, or local agency 
population projections within the service area of the urban water supplier. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

The District primarily obtains its water supply from MWD. As discussed in Section 7.3 and 

shown in Table 7-2, Table 7-3, and Table 7-4, each of the District’s water supply sources 

share the same base years. As previously discussed in Section 7.2.1, a single dry year 

or a five consecutive year drought period will not compromise the District’s ability to 

provide a reliable supply of water to its sub-agencies. 

 

As previously discussed in Section 4.2.6, the District’s projected normal year water 

demands from its sub-agencies over the next 25 years, in five-year increments, were 

projected based on existing water use factors incorporating recent water demands from 

its sub-agencies, and the total population projections based on land use trends within the 

area receiving water from the District.  The ratio of total water supplies available to the 

District during a historical normal year in FY 2016-17 (or 69,289 AF) and during a 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 7‐9 

historical single dry year in FY 2017-18 (or 68,486 AF) was used to estimate the District’s 

projected water demands from its sub-agencies during single dry years. The ratio of total 

water supplies available to the District during a historical normal year in FY 2016-17 (or 

69,289 AF) and a historical a five consecutive year drought period from FY 2011-12 to 

FY 2015-16 (or 64,789 AF, 71,546 AF, 74,233 AF, 62,357 AF, and 57,472 AF, 

respectively) was used to estimate the District’s projected water demands from its sub-

agencies during a five consecutive year drought period. The District’s projected dry year 

water supplies over the next 25 years were based on the minimum supplies needed by 

the District to meet projected single-dry year demands. Table 7-2, Table 7-3, and Table 

7-4 summarize the District’s projected water demands and supplies over the next 25 

years in five-year increments, including during normal years, single dry years, and a five 

consecutive year drought periods.  These tables indicate the District can meet water 

demands from its sub-agencies during normal years, single dry years, and a five 

consecutive year drought periods over the next 25 years. 

 

7.2.3.1 WATER SERVICE RELIABILITY – NORMAL YEAR 

 

Table 7-2 summarizes the District’s projected water demands from its sub-agencies and 

supplies over the next 25 years in five-year increments during normal years.  Table 7-2 

indicates the District can meet water demands from its sub-agencies during normal years 

over the next 25 years. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 7‐10 

Table 7-2 Normal Year Supply and Demand Comparison 

 

 

7.2.3.2 WATER SERVICE RELIABILITY – SINGLE DRY YEAR 

 

Table 7-3 summarizes the District’s projected water demands from its sub-agencies and 

supplies over the next 25 years in five-year increments during single dry years.  Table 7-

3 indicates the District can meet water demands from its sub-agencies during single dry 

years over the next 25 years. 

 

  2025 2030 2035 2040 2045 (Opt)

Supply totals

(autofill from Table 6‐9)
58,016 57,901 57,761 57,525 57,265

Demand totals

(autofill fm Table 4‐3)
58,016 57,901 57,761 57,525 57,265

Difference 0  0  0  0  0 

Submittal Table 7‐2 Wholesale: Normal Year Supply and Demand Comparison 

NOTES:

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 7‐11 

Table 7-3 Single Dry Year Supply and Demand Comparison 

 

 

7.2.3.3 WATER SERVICE RELIABILITY – FIVE CONSECUTIVE DRY 

YEARS 

 

Table 7-4 summarizes the District’s projected water demands and supplies over the next 

25 years in five-year increments during five consecutive year drought periods.  Table 7-4 

indicates the District can meet water demands during five consecutive year drought 

periods over the next 25 years. 

 

  2025 2030 2035 2040 2045 (Opt)

Supply totals*
57,344 57,230 57,091 56,859 56,601

Demand totals*
57,344 57,230 57,091 56,859 56,601

Difference 0  0  0  0  0 

Submittal Table 7‐3 Wholesale: Single Dry Year Supply and Demand 

Comparison

*Units of measure (AF, CCF, MG) must remain consistent throughout the UWMP as reported in 

Table 2‐3. 

NOTES:

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 7‐12 

Table 7-4 Multiple Dry Years Supply and Demand Comparison 

 

  2025* 2030* 2035* 2040*
2045* 

(Opt)

Supply totals 54,248 54,140 54,009 53,789 53,545

Demand totals 54,248 54,140 54,009 53,789 53,545

Difference 0  0  0  0  0 

Supply totals 59,906 59,787 59,642 59,399 59,130

Demand totals 59,906 59,787 59,642 59,399 59,130

Difference 0  0  0  0  0 

Supply totals 62,156 62,032 61,882 61,630 61,350

Demand totals 62,156 62,032 61,882 61,630 61,350

Difference 0  0  0  0  0 

Supply totals 52,212 52,108 51,981 51,770 51,535

Demand totals 52,212 52,108 51,981 51,770 51,535

Difference 0  0  0  0  0 

Supply totals 48,122 48,026 47,910 47,715 47,498

Demand totals 48,122 48,026 47,910 47,715 47,498

Difference 0  0  0  0  0 

Supply totals

Demand totals

Difference 0  0  0  0  0 

NOTES:

Fourth year 

Fifth year 

Sixth year 

(optional) 

*Units of measure (AF, CCF, MG) must remain consistent throughout the UWMP as reported in Table 2‐3. 

Submittal Table 7‐4 Wholesale: Multiple Dry Years Supply and Demand Comparison 

First year 

Second year 

Third year 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 7‐13 

 DESCRIPTION OF MANAGEMENT TOOLS AND OPTIONS 

 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10620. 

 
(f) An urban water supplier shall describe in the plan water management tools and options 
used by that entity that will maximize resources and minimize the need to import water 
from other regions. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

As noted in Section 6.2.2, the Six Basins is managed by the Six Basins Watermaster. 

During the period of management under the Judgment, significant drought events have 

occurred. In each drought cycle Six Basins has been managed to maintain water levels. 

Therefore, based on historical and on-going management practices, the District will be 

able to rely on the Six Basins for adequate supply over the next 25 years under single dry 

years and a five consecutive year drought periods. 

 
 

Section 6.2.2 provides a description of the management of groundwater resources in the 

Six Basins, as well as information on basin management. Chapter 6 also demonstrates 

the management structure of the Six Basins provides a reliable source of groundwater 

supply for the District during a normal year, a single-dry year and a five consecutive year 

drought. Historical data indicates the Six Basins has been well managed for the full period 

of the adjudication, resulting in a stable and reliable water supply.  Therefore, the 

groundwater supplies in the Six Basins are deemed reliable. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 7‐14 

 DROUGHT RISK ASSESSMENT 

 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10635. 

 
(b) Every urban water supplier shall include, as part of its urban water management plan, 
a drought risk assessment for its water service to its customers as part of information 
considered in developing the demand management measures and water supply projects 
and programs to be included in the urban water management plan. The urban water 
supplier may conduct an interim update or updates to this drought risk assessment within 
the five-year cycle of its urban water management plan update. The drought risk 
assessment shall include each of the following: 
 
(1) A description of the data, methodology, and basis for one or more supply shortage 
conditions that are necessary to conduct a drought risk assessment for a drought period 
that lasts five consecutive water years, starting from the year following when the 
assessment is conducted. 
 
(2) A determination of the reliability of each source of supply under a variety of water 
shortage conditions. This may include a determination that a particular source of water 
supply is fully reliable under most, if not all, conditions. 
 
(3) A comparison of the total water supply sources available to the water supplier with the 
total projected water use for the drought period. 
 
(4) Considerations of the historical drought hydrology, plausible changes on projected 
supplies and demands under climate change conditions, anticipated regulatory changes, 
and other locally applicable criteria. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

The District’s water supply sources include groundwater pumped from Six Basins, 

untreated, imported surface water purchased from Metropolitan Water District of Southern 

California for use at its treatment plant, and purchased surface water from Pomona. The 

following discussion provides a Drought Risk Assessment which assesses the District’s 

water supply reliability over a five consecutive year drought period. The District’s DRA 

incorporates a five consecutive year drought from FY 2020-21 through FY 2024-25 and 

includes a review of water supplies, water uses, and water supply reliability. 

 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 7‐15 

 DRA, DATA, METHODS, AND BASIS FOR WATER SHORTAGE 

CONDITIONS 

 

The District’s DRA was prepared using historical production data from the District’s water 

supply sources. The following assumptions were considered during the preparation of the 

District’s DRA for each year of the five consecutive year drought. 

 

 The five consecutive year drought period associated with the 2020 UWMP is based 

on five consecutive dry years from FY 2020-21 through FY 2024-25   

 The projected water supplies available during each year of this five consecutive 

year drought are assumed to be identical to the water supplies produced during 

each year between FY 2011-12 and FY 2015-16 (which represents the most recent 

and historical five consecutive year drought). 

 The projected demands from its sub-agencies during this five consecutive year 

drought are based on water demands from FY 2016-17 (a normal year) which were 

adjusted based on projected population within the area receiving water supplies 

from the District over the next five years along with the ratio of the normal year 

demands to actual demands over each year of the most recent and historical five 

consecutive year drought period (from FY 2011-12 and FY 2015-16). 

 The projected demands from its sub-agencies were compared to the projected 

supplies to identify potential water supply deficits which may require 

implementation of the Water Shortage Contingency Plan (discussed further in 

Chapter 8). 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 7‐16 

The following methodologies were considered during the preparation of the District’s DRA 

during for each year of the five consecutive year drought: 

 

1) Drought Year 1: The region had experienced an average to above average year 

of precipitation in the prior year. Water use in the prior year had been below 

average due to a reduced need for outdoor water use, the groundwater basin had 

been replenished from above average local stormwater runoff, and imported water 

supplies were not restricted.  

2) Drought Year 2: The region receiving water supplies from the District experienced 

a second year of below average precipitation and runoff. Sub-agencies’ retail 

customers increase water use for outdoor irrigation to compensate for lack of 

precipitation. Groundwater and imported water supplies have not been impacted. 

3) Drought Year 3: The region receiving water supplies from the District experienced 

a third year of below average precipitation and runoff. Sub-agencies’ retail 

customers increase water use for outdoor irrigation to compensate for lack of 

precipitation. Groundwater and imported water supplies have not been impacted. 

However, there is an increased demand on both groundwater and treated imported 

water.  

4) Drought Year 4: The region receiving water supplies from the District experienced 

a fourth year of below average precipitation and runoff. Groundwater supplies have 

not been impacted.   

5) Drought Year 5: Fifth year of below average precipitation and runoff. Groundwater 

supplies have not been impacted.  

 

 DRAFT WATER SOURCE RELIABILITY 

 

The District’s DRA incorporates a five consecutive year drought based on five 

consecutive dry years commencing in FY 2021-22. The quantity of water supplies 

available for each year during this five consecutive year drought period included in the 

District’s DRA is assumed to be the same as the quantity of water supplies produced by 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 7‐17 

the District (i.e. demands) during the most recent and historical five consecutive year 

drought which occurred from FY 2011-12 through FY 2015-16. Production data for those 

years have been tabulated in Section 6.1. The following describes the anticipated 

reliability of each water source for each year of the five consecutive year drought based 

on recent experience. 

 

Groundwater 

 

The District receives water supplies from the Six Basins which is actively managed by the 

Six Basins Watermaster, as described in Section 6.2.2. Each year the Six Basins 

Watermaster reviews water supply conditions including local rainfall, groundwater levels, 

local stormwater runoff available for replenishment, imported water availability and the 

amount of imported water stored in the groundwater basin for future demands.  The 

Watermaster identifies the annual amount of groundwater which may be pumped (such 

as an Operating Safe Yield) before more expensive imported water would need to be 

purchased from MWD to replenish the Basin for all production in excess of the water 

rights. Regardless of the annual safe yield adopted there is never a restriction on the 

amount of water which may be pumped from the Six Basins, only the cost of producing 

the groundwater is impacted. The Six Basins Watermaster is not restricted as to when or 

how much untreated imported water will be delivered to the Six Basins, only that it 

ultimately be delivered. The quantity of groundwater used (and reliably available) during 

the most recent and historical five consecutive year drought period have been tabulated 

in Section 6.1. During this period, the District was able to increase its production of its 

groundwater supplies from an adjudicated and managed groundwater basin. The District 

also had the ability to systematically implement aspects of its Water Shortage 

Contingency Plan (see Chapter 8). As a result of these collective actions (and experience 

during prior consecutive five-year droughts), the District does not anticipate a water 

supply shortage from the Six Basins. 

 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 7‐18 

Imported Water  

 

The District obtains imported water from the Metropolitan Water District of Southern 

California. Section 6.2.1 describes the planning conducted by the Metropolitan Water 

District of Southern California regarding imported water supplies available to the District. 

The reliability of MWD’s supplies is also discussed in its 2020 Regional UWMP and is 

incorporated by reference. The District purchases imported water which is delivered 

directly within its distribution system. The District’s purchases of imported water over the 

past ten years have been tabulated in Section 6.1.  

 

The imported water purchases by the District during the most recent and historical five 

consecutive year drought period have been tabulated in Section 6.1. Because the 

District’s DRA assumes the most recent and historical five consecutive year drought 

scenario will be repeated over the next five years, it is assumed the quantity of imported 

water supplies purchased during the most recent and historical five consecutive year 

drought scenario will be available. Furthermore, this constitutes the minimum amount of 

imported water which may be available in a future five consecutive year drought absent 

MWD’s programs which it has since implemented.  

 

Local Surface Water  

 

The District uses surface water from City of Pomona as described in Section 6.2.3. The 

surface water used during the most recent and historical five consecutive year drought 

period have been tabulated in Section 6.1.  The quantities tabulated in Section 6.1 

constitute the minimum amount of local surface water which may be available in a five 

consecutive year drought.  

 

 

 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 7‐19 

Summary 

 

The District’s water system has experienced a prior five consecutive year drought with no 

limitation to its collective water supplies. However, the cost of those water supplies may 

have increased based on the mix of supplies which are used. Consequently, the District 

has the ability to enact varying water shortage levels (see Chapter 8) to help educate its 

sub-agencies and provide an economic incentive for the sub-agencies retail customers 

to reduce their water consumption. 

 

 DRA TOTAL WATER SUPPLY AND USE COMPARISON 

 

Gross water use for the projected five consecutive year drought is shown on Table 7-5. 

Section 7.3.2 describes the water source reliability for each source of supply the District 

will rely on during a five consecutive year drought. The annual quantities are provided in 

Table 7-5.  For the purposes of the District’s DRA, as a worst-case scenario, the District 

has considered no water supply augmentation (as indicated in Table 7-5) from its 

imported supplies. When necessary, the District can implement various water shortage 

levels of its Water Shortage Contingency Plan (as discussed in Chapter 8) in order to 

reduce its water demands. The total water supplies available to the District shown in Table 

7-5 are based on the quantity of supplies produced by the District (i.e. demands) during 

the most recent historical five consecutive drought period (from FY 2011-12 through FY 

2015-16). As shown in Table 7-5, assuming no additional water supply benefits will be 

available from groundwater supplies, the District will implement various stages of its 

Water Shortage Contingency Plan to balance water demands with available supplies 

during year 1 of the projected five consecutive year drought.  

 

 

  

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 7‐20 

Table 7-5 Five-Year Drought Risk Assessment Tables to Address Water Code Section 10635(b) 

 

2021 Total

Total Water Use  68,242

Total Supplies  64,789

Surplus/Shortfall w/o WSCP Action (3,453)

WSCP ‐ supply augmentation benefit 0

WSCP ‐ use reduction savings benefit 3,453

Revised Surplus/(shortfall) 0

Resulting % Use Reduction from WSCP action 5%

2022 Total
Total Water Use  71,496

Total Supplies  71,546

Surplus/Shortfall w/o WSCP Action 50

WSCP ‐ supply augmentation benefit 0

WSCP ‐ use reduction savings benefit 0

Revised Surplus/(shortfall) 50

Resulting % Use Reduction from WSCP action 0%

2023 Total

Total Water Use  70,173

Total Supplies  74,233

Surplus/Shortfall w/o WSCP Action 4,060

WSCP ‐ supply augmentation benefit 0

WSCP ‐ use reduction savings benefit 0

Revised Surplus/(shortfall) 4,060

Resulting % Use Reduction from WSCP action 0%

2024 Total
Total Water Use  55,579

Total Supplies  62,357

Surplus/Shortfall w/o WSCP Action 6,778

WSCP ‐ supply augmentation benefit 0

WSCP ‐ use reduction savings benefit 0

Revised Surplus/(shortfall) 6,778

Resulting % Use Reduction from WSCP action 0%

2025 Total
Total Water Use  48,122

Total Supplies  57,472

Surplus/Shortfall w/o WSCP Action 9,350

WSCP ‐ supply augmentation benefit 0

WSCP ‐ use reduction savings benefit 0

Revised Surplus/(shortfall) 9,350

Resulting % Use Reduction from WSCP action 0%

Submittal Table 7‐5: Five‐Year Drought Risk Assessment Tables to 

address Water Code Section 10635(b)

Planned WSCP Actions (use reduction and supply augmentation)

Planned WSCP Actions (use reduction and supply augmentation)

Planned WSCP Actions (use reduction and supply augmentation)

Planned WSCP Actions (use reduction and supply augmentation)

Planned WSCP Actions (use reduction and supply augmentation)

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 7‐21 

 OPTIONAL PLANNING TOOL WORKBOOK 

 

DWR has deemed the “Planning Tool Worksheet” as optional and the District is not 

required by DWR to use the tool. The District has provided sufficient water supplies to its 

sub-agencies’, including during long-term droughts and years with historically high water 

demands. The District has also been able to provide water service to meet maximum day 

water demands for these years, including during the summer months.    

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 8‐1 

CHAPTER 8  

WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN 

 
LAY DESCRIPTION – CHAPTER 8 

 

WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN 

 

Chapter 8 (Water Shortage Contingency Plan) of the District’s 2020 Plan discusses and 

provides the following: 

 

 The District’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan is a detailed approach which 

presents how the District intends to act, or respond, in the case of an actual water 

shortage contingency. 

 Preparation of the District’s “Annual Water Supply and Demand Assessment” (or 

Annual Assessment) is discussed. Commencing July 1, 2022, the District is 

required to submit the Annual Assessment. The Annual Assessment will include a 

review of the District’s “unconstrained” water demands for the current year and for 

a potential upcoming single dry year.   Unconstrained water demands represent 

the District’s water demands prior to any “response actions” the District may invoke 

pursuant to the District’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan. 

 The District will manage water supplies to minimize the adverse impacts of water 

shortages. The District’s plan for water usage during periods of shortage is 

designed to incorporate six standard water shortage levels corresponding to 

progressive ranges from up to a 10, 20, 30, 40, and 50 percent shortage, and 

greater than a 50 percent shortage. 

 For each declared water supply shortage level, customers will be required to 

reduce their consumption by the percentage specified in the corresponding water 

supply shortage level.  

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 8‐2 

 For each declared water supply shortage level, the District has established 

response actions to reduce demand on water supplies and to reduce any shortage 

gaps in water supplies. These demand reduction actions include irrigation and 

other outdoor use restrictions, rate structure changes, and other water use 

prohibitions.  

 The operational changes the District will consider in addressing water shortages 

on a short-term basis are discussed and include improved monitoring, analysis, 

and tracking of customer water usage to enforce demand reduction measures. 

 The District’s Emergency Response Plan is summarized. The Emergency 

Response Plan provides the management, procedures, and designated actions 

the District and its employees will implement during emergency situations 

(including catastrophic water shortages) resulting from natural disasters, system 

failures, and other unforeseen circumstances. 

 The preparation of the District’s seismic risk assessment and mitigation plan is 

discussed. The locations of earthquake faults in the vicinity of the District’s water 

service area are provided. 

 The effectiveness of the shortage response actions for each of the District’s 

standard water shortage levels is presented. The District has been able to provide 

sufficient water supplies to its customers, including during long-term droughts and 

years with historically high water demands. 

 The communication protocols implemented by the District when it declares any 

water shortage level are presented.   

 The legal authorities associated with District’s standard water shortage levels are 

presented. 

 The financial consequences associated with District’s standard water shortage 

levels are presented. 

 The District will evaluate the need for revising the Water Shortage Contingency 

Plan to resolve any water shortage gaps, as necessary. The steps necessary for 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 8‐3 

the District to adopt and amend its Water Shortage Contingency Plan are 

presented. 

 

 

The following Water Shortage Contingency Plan includes references to Chapters and 

Sections from Three Valleys Municipal Water District’s 2020 Urban Water Management 

Plan: 

 

 WATER SUPPLY RELIABILITY ANALYSIS 

 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10632. 

 
(a)(1) The analysis of water supply reliability conducted pursuant to Section 10635. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

The District’s sources of supply were discussed in Section 6.2 of the 2020 UWMP and 

consist of groundwater from Six Basins and untreated imported water purchased from 

MWD. Six Basins is adjudicated and groundwater supplies are managed. The reliability 

of the various sources of supply are discussed in Chapter 7 of this UWMP.  Imported 

water supplies may be impacted in the event MWD implements its WSAP due to a water 

supply shortage.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 8‐4 

 ANNUAL WATER SUPPLY AND DEMAND ASSESSMENT PROCEDURES 

 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10632. 

 
(a)(2) The procedures used in conducting an annual water supply and demand 
assessment that include, at a minimum, both of the following: 
 
(A) The written decision-making process that an urban water supplier will use each year 
to determine its water supply reliability. 
 
(B) The key data inputs and assessment methodology used to evaluate the urban water 
supplier’s water supply reliability for the current year and one dry year, including all of the 
following: 
 
(i) Current year unconstrained demand, considering weather, growth, and other 
influencing factors, such as policies to manage current supplies to meet demand 
objectives in future years, as applicable. 
 
(ii) Current year available supply, considering hydrological and regulatory conditions in 
the current year and one dry year. The annual supply and demand assessment may 
consider more than one dry year solely at the discretion of the urban water supplier. 
 
(iii) Existing infrastructure capabilities and plausible constraints. 
 
(iv) A defined set of locally applicable evaluation criteria that are consistently relied upon 
for each annual water supply and demand assessment. 
 
(v) A description and quantification of each source of water supply. 
 
 

CWC 10632.1. 
 

An urban water supplier shall conduct an annual water supply and demand assessment 
pursuant to subdivision (a) of Section 10632 and, on or before July 1 of each year, submit 
an annual water shortage assessment report to the department with information for 
anticipated shortage, triggered shortage response actions, compliance and enforcement 
actions, and communication actions consistent with the supplier’s water shortage 
contingency plan. An urban water supplier that relies on imported water from the State 
Water Project or the Bureau of Reclamation shall submit its annual water supply and 
demand assessment within 14 days of receiving its final allocations, or by July 1 of each 
year, whichever is later. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Beginning July 1, 2022, the District will submit an “Annual Water Supply and Demand 

Assessment” (Annual Assessment) in accordance with DWR’s guidance and 

requirements. The Annual Assessment will include a review of the District’s unconstrained 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 8‐5 

water demands (i.e. water demands prior to any projected response actions the District 

may trigger under this Water Shortage Contingency Plan) for the current year and the 

upcoming (potential single dry) year. The District will also include information regarding 

anticipated shortages, triggered shortage response actions, compliance and enforcement 

actions, and communication actions consistent with the District’s Water Shortage 

Contingency Plan.  

 

For each Annual Assessment, the District plans to prepare a preliminary assessment 

which evaluates the adequacy of its water supplies for the current and upcoming years 

by April of each year.  The preliminary assessment will include a review of water supplies 

for at least a single dry year.   

 

The components of an Annual Assessment consist of the following: 

 

 A written decision-making process 

 Key data inputs and assessment methodology 

 

 DECISION MAKING PROCESS 

 

The District purchases untreated imported water as its primary source of water supply. 

Consequently, during the third quarter of each fiscal year the District will review its water 

demands from the initial six months along with the current groundwater basin conditions, 

local hydrology and imported water supply outlook. This information will be used to help 

develop the Annual Assessment. A draft of the Annual Assessment will be circulated 

internally within the District for peer review and comment. Based on comments received, 

a redraft will be prepared and provided to the District managers during the Spring of each 

year. The draft subsequently will be provided to the General Manager for final review. 

Subsequently, a final draft of the Annual Assessment will be provided to the District’s 

Board of Directors for review and included in the agenda as part of a Board meeting such 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 8‐6 

that it can be approved and any recommended specific shortage response actions may 

be enacted. The final Annual Assessment will be provided to DWR no later than July 1 of 

each year. 

 

The Annual Assessments will be instrumental in providing guidance to the District for 

decisions regarding potential declarations of a water supply shortage and implementation 

of water reduction stages, instituting mandatory water restrictions, promoting water use 

efficiency and conservation programs, water rates and drought rate surcharges, and the 

necessity of pursuing alternative water supplies.  This process will help ensure adequate 

water supplies resources are available to the District. 

 

 DATA AND METHODOLOGIES  

 

The key data inputs and methodologies which will be evaluated by the District during the 

preparation of the preliminary assessment will include the following: 

 

1) Evaluation Criteria: The locally applicable evaluation criteria used to prepare the 

Annual Assessment will be identified. The criteria include the key data inputs and 

methodologies described below. 

2) Water Supply: A description of each available water supply source will be provided.  

The descriptions will include a quantification of each available water supply source 

and will be based on review of current production capacities, historical production, 

Urban Water Management Plans, and prior water supply studies (including Water 

Supply Assessments and/or Master Plans). 

3) Unconstrained Water Demand: The potential unconstrained water demands during 

the current year and the upcoming (potential single dry) year prior to any special 

shortage actions, will be reviewed. The review will include factors such as weather, 

existing and projected land uses and populations, actual customer consumption 

and water use factors, monthly Urban Water Supplier Monitoring Reports, existing 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 8‐7 

water shortage levels (see Section 8.3), and existing water conservation 

ordinances (see Section 9.2.1). 

4) Planned Water Use for Current Year Considering Dry Subsequent Year: The water 

supplies available to meet the demands during the current year and the upcoming 

(potential single dry) year will be considered and identified.  The evaluation will 

include factors such as estimated water demands, weather, groundwater basin 

operating safe yields, water quality results, existing available pumping capacities, 

imported water allocations, contractual obligations, regulatory issues, use of 

emergency interconnections, and the costs associated with producing each water 

supply source. 

5) Infrastructure Considerations: The capabilities of the water distribution system 

infrastructure to meet the water demands during the current year and the upcoming 

(potential single dry) year will be considered.  Available production capacities (e.g. 

groundwater well capacities) and distribution system water losses (see Section 

4.2.4) will be reviewed. In addition, capital improvement and replacement projects, 

as well as potential projects which may increase water system and production 

capacities (see Section 6.2.8), will be considered. 

6) Other Factors: Additional local considerations, if any, which can affect the 

availability of water supplies will be described. 

 

The preliminary assessment will be prepared by District staff and will be reviewed by the 

District’s General Manager. Following the review of the preliminary assessment, the 

District will prepare the Annual Assessment for presentation and approval during a regular 

scheduled meeting of the District’s Board of Directors prior to June 30th of each year. 

Upon Board approval, District staff will formally submit the Annual Assessment to the 

California Department of Water Resources by July 1st of each year. The Annual 

Assessments will be instrumental in providing guidance to the District for decisions 

regarding potential declarations of a water supply shortage and implementation of water 

reduction stages, instituting mandatory water restrictions, promoting water use efficiency 

and conservation programs, water rates and drought rate surcharges, and the necessity 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 8‐8 

of pursuing alternative water supplies. This process will help ensure adequate water 

supplies resources are available to the District.  

 

 

 SIX STANDARD WATER SHORTAGE LEVELS 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10632. 
 
(a)(3)(A) Six standard water shortage levels corresponding to progressive ranges of up to 
10, 20, 30, 40, and 50 percent shortages and greater than 50 percent shortage. Urban 
water suppliers shall define these shortage levels based on the suppliers’ water supply 
conditions, including percentage reductions in water supply, changes in groundwater 
levels, changes in surface elevation or level of subsidence, or other changes in 
hydrological or other local conditions indicative of the water supply available for use. 
Shortage levels shall also apply to catastrophic interruption of water supplies, including, 
but not limited to, a regional power outage, an earthquake, and other potential emergency 
events. 
 
(B) An urban water supplier with an existing water shortage contingency plan that uses 
different water shortage levels may comply with the requirement in subparagraph (A) by 
developing and including a cross-reference relating its existing categories to the six 
standard water shortage levels. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 

The District will manage water supplies prudently to minimize the adverse impacts of 

water shortages. The District’s plan for water usage during periods of shortage is 

designed to provide an approach to communicate the severity of water supply shortage 

conditions. There are six standard water shortage levels corresponding to progressive 

ranges from 10 to greater than 50 percent shortage level. Water shortage trigger 

mechanisms have been established to ensure that this policy is implemented. 

 

Table 8-1 provides a description of the six water shortage conditions which may be 

triggered by a shortage in the District’s water supply sources, depending on the severity 

of the shortage and its anticipated duration. 

 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 8‐9 

 
Table 8-1 Water Shortage Contingency Planning Levels 

 

Shortage 

Level 

Percent 

Shortage Range

Shortage Response Actions 

(Narrative description)

1 Up to 10%

Watering or irrigating of lawn, landscape or other vegetated area 

with potable water by a direct end user is limited to three days per 

week. All leaks, breaks, or other malfunctions in the direct end 

user’s plumbing or distribution system must be repaired within 

seventy‐two (72) hours of notification by the District unless other 

arrangements are made which will include a written plan to address 

the repairs.

2 Up to 20%

In addition to Shortage Level 1; Additional restrictions may be 

implemented as determined by the District, after notice to 

customers.

3 Up to 30%

In addition to Shortage Level 2; Additional restrictions may be 

implemented as determined by the District, after notice to 

customers.

4 Up to 40%

Watering or irrigating of lawn, landscape or other vegetated area 

with potable water by a direct end user is limited to two days per 

week. Filling or re‐filling ornamental lakes or ponds by a direct end 

user is prohibited, except to the extent needed to sustain aquatic 

life, provided that such animals are of significant value and have 

been actively managed within the water feature prior to declaration 

of a supply shortage level

5 Up to 50%

In addition to Shortage Level 2; Additional restrictions may be 

implemented as determined by the District, after notice to 

customers.

6 >50%

In addition to Shortage Level 5; watering or irrigating of lawn, 

landscape or other vegetated area with potable water by a direct end 

user is prohibited. All leaks, breaks, or other malfunctions in the 

direct end user’s plumbing or distribution system must be repaired 

within twenty four (24) hours of notification by the District unless 

other arrangements are made with the District which will include 

written plans that include a timeline of repairs.

NOTES:

Submittal Table 8‐1 

Water Shortage Contingency Plan Levels

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 8‐10 

The District’s previous Water Shortage Contingency Plan (WSCP) contains three (3) 

standard shortage levels. In accordance with the 2020 UWMP which must include six (6) 

water shortage levels, a crosswalk has been provided below to illustrate the relationship 

between the previous WSCP and the one provided in Table 8-1. 

 

Corresponding Relationships Between Supplier's 2015 Shortage Levels and the 

2020 WSCP Mandated Shortage Levels 

 

 

 

  

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 8‐11 

 SHORTAGE RESPONSE ACTIONS 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10632. 
 
(a)(4) Shortage response actions that align with the defined shortage levels and include, 
at a minimum, all of the following: 
 
(A) Locally appropriate supply augmentation actions. 
 
(B) Locally appropriate demand reduction actions to adequately respond to shortages. 
 
(C) Locally appropriate operational changes. 
 
(D) Additional, mandatory prohibitions against specific water use practices that are in 
addition to state-mandated prohibitions and appropriate to the local conditions. 
 
(E) For each action, an estimate of the extent to which the gap between supplies and 
demand will be reduced by implementation of the action. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 DEMAND REDUCTION 

 

Upon adoption of a water supply shortage stage, as described in Table 8-1, the 

restrictions and mandatory water reductions will be effective ten days following the water 

shortage declaration. A full listing of the restrictions/prohibitions associated with each  

shortage level is provided below. 

 

Permanent Water Conservation Requirements 

The following water conservation requirements are effective and apply to a direct end 

user at all times during the existence of this Ordinance. Violations of this section will be 

considered waste and an unreasonable use of water. 

 

a. Limits on Watering Hours: Watering or irrigating of lawn, landscape or other 

vegetated area with potable water by a direct end user is prohibited between the 

hours of 9:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. Pacific Standard Time on any day, except by use 

of a hand-held bucket or similar container, a hand-held hose equipped with a 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 8‐12 

positive self-closing water shut-off nozzle or device, or for very short periods of 

time for the express purpose of adjusting or repairing an irrigation system. 

b. Limit on Watering Duration: Watering or irrigating of lawn, landscape or other 

vegetated area with potable water by a direct end user using a landscape irrigation 

system or a watering device that is not continuously attended is limited to no more 

than fifteen (15) minutes watering per day per station. This subsection does not 

apply to landscape irrigation systems that exclusively use very low-flow drip type 

irrigation systems. 

c. No Excessive Water Flow or Runoff: Watering or irrigating of any lawn, landscape 

or other vegetated area by a direct end user in a manner that causes or allows 

excessive water flow or runoff onto an adjoining sidewalk, driveway, street, alley, 

gutter or ditch is prohibited. 

d. No Washing Down Hard or Paved Surfaces: Washing down hard or paved 

surfaces, including but not limited to sidewalks, walkways, driveways, parking 

areas, tennis courts, patios or alleys, by a direct end user is prohibited except when 

necessary to alleviate safety or sanitary hazards, and then only by use of a hand-

held bucket or similar container, a hand-held hose equipped with a positive self-

closing water shut-off device, a low-volume, high-pressure cleaning machine 

equipped to recycle any water used, or a low-volume high-pressure water broom. 

e. Obligation to Fix Leaks, Breaks or Malfunctions: Excessive use, loss or escape of 

water through breaks, leaks or other malfunctions in the direct end user’s plumbing 

or distribution system for any period of time after such escape of water should have 

reasonably been discovered and corrected and in no event more than seven (7) 

days of receiving notice from the District is prohibited. 

f. Re-circulating Water Required for Water Fountains and Decorative Water 

Features: Operating a water fountain or other decorative water feature that does 

not use re-circulated water by a direct end user is prohibited. 

g. Limits on Washing Vehicles: Using water to wash or clean a vehicle, including but 

not limited to any automobile, truck, van, bus, motorcycle, boat or trailer, whether 

motorized or not, by a direct end user is prohibited, except by use of a hand-held 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 8‐13 

bucket or similar container or a hand-held hose equipped with a positive self-

closing water shut-off nozzle or device. 

h. Drinking Water Served Upon Request Only: Eating or drinking establishments of a 

direct end user, including but not limited to a restaurant, hotel, cafe, cafeteria, bar, 

or other public place where food or drinks are sold, served, or offered for sale, are 

prohibited from providing drinking water to any person unless expressly requested. 

i. Commercial Lodging Establishments Must Provide Guests Option to Decline Daily 

Linen Services: Hotels, motels, and other commercial lodging establishments and 

similar facilities of a direct end user must provide customers the option of not 

having towels and linen laundered daily. Commercial lodging establishments must 

prominently display notice of this option in each bathroom using clear and easily 

understood language. 

j. No Installation of Single Pass Cooling Systems: Installation of single pass cooling 

systems by a direct end user is prohibited in buildings requesting new water 

service. 

k. Restaurants Required to Use Water Conserving Dish Wash Spray Valves: Food 

preparation establishments of a direct end user, such as restaurants or cafes, are 

prohibited from using non- water conserving dish wash spray valves. 

l. Reporting Mechanism - Hotline: The District will encourage visitors, students, staff, 

and faculty of a direct end user to call the District’s main telephone number to 

report violations of this Ordinance. 

 

Level 1 Water Supply Shortage 

a. Level 1 Water Supply Shortage exists when the District determines, in its sole 

discretion, that due to drought or other water supply conditions, a water supply 

shortage or threatened shortage exists and a direct end user consumer demand 

reduction is necessary to make more efficient use of water and appropriately 

respond to existing water conditions. Upon the declaration by the District of a Level 

1 Water Supply Shortage condition, the District will implement the mandatory Level 

1 conservation measures identified in this section. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 8‐14 

b. Additional Water Conservation Measures: In addition to the prohibited uses of 

water identified in Section IV of this Ordinance, the following water conservation 

requirements apply to a direct end user during a declared Level 1 Water Supply 

Shortage: 

1. Limits on Watering Days: Watering or irrigating of lawn, landscape or other 

vegetated area with potable water by a direct end user is limited to three 

days per week. During the months of November through March, watering or 

irrigating of lawn, landscape or other vegetated area with potable water is 

limited to no more than one day per week. This provision does not apply to 

landscape irrigation zones that exclusively use very low flow drip type 

irrigation systems. This provision also does not apply to watering or 

irrigating by use of a hand-held bucket or similar container, a hand-held 

hose equipped with a positive self-closing water shut-off nozzle or device, 

or for very short periods of time for the express purpose of adjusting or 

repairing an irrigation system. 

2. Obligation to Fix Leaks, Breaks or Malfunctions: All leaks, breaks, or other 

malfunctions in the direct end user’s plumbing or distribution system must 

be repaired within seventy-two (72) hours of notification by the District 

unless other arrangements are made which will include a written plan to 

address the repairs. 

 

Level 2 Water Supply Shortage 

a. Level 2 Water Supply Shortage exists when the District determines, in its sole 

discretion, that due to drought or other water supply conditions, a water supply 

shortage or threatened shortage exists and a direct end user consumer demand 

reduction is necessary to make more efficient use of water and appropriately 

respond to existing water conditions. Upon the declaration by the District of a Level 

2 Water Supply Shortage condition, the District will implement the mandatory Level 

2 conservation measures identified in this section. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 8‐15 

b. Additional Water Conservation Measures: In addition to the prohibited uses of 

water identified under the Permanent Water Conservation Requirements and 

Level 1 Water Shortage Level, the following water conservation requirements 

apply to a direct end user during a declared Level 2 Water Supply Shortage: 

1. Limits on Watering Days: Watering or irrigating of lawn, landscape or other 

vegetated area with potable water by a direct end user is limited to three 

days per week. During the months of November through March, watering or 

irrigating of lawn, landscape or other vegetated area with potable water is 

limited to no more than one day per week. This provision does not apply to 

landscape irrigation zones that exclusively use very low flow drip type 

irrigation systems. This provision also does not apply to watering or 

irrigating by use of a hand-held bucket or similar container, a hand-held 

hose equipped with a positive self-closing water shut-off nozzle or device, 

or for very short periods of time for the express purpose of adjusting or 

repairing an irrigation system. 

2. Obligation to Fix Leaks, Breaks or Malfunctions: All leaks, breaks, or other 

malfunctions in the direct end user’s plumbing or distribution system must 

be repaired within seventy-two (72) hours of notification by the District 

unless other arrangements are made which will include a written plan to 

address the repairs. 

 

Level 3 Water Supply Shortage 

a. Level 3 Water Supply Shortage exists when the District determines, in its sole 

discretion, that due to drought or other water supply conditions, a water supply 

shortage or threatened shortage exists and a direct end user consumer demand 

reduction is necessary to make more efficient use of water and appropriately 

respond to existing water conditions. Upon the declaration by the District of a Level 

3 Water Supply Shortage condition, the District will implement the mandatory Level 

3 conservation measures identified in this section. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 8‐16 

b. Additional Water Conservation Measures: In addition to the prohibited uses of 

water identified under the Permanent Water Conservation Requirements and 

Water Supply Shortage Level 1 through 2, the following water conservation 

requirements apply to a direct end user during a declared Level 3 Water Supply 

Shortage: 

1. Limits on Watering Days: Watering or irrigating of lawn, landscape or other 

vegetated area with potable water by a direct end user is limited to three 

days per week. During the months of November through March, watering or 

irrigating of lawn, landscape or other vegetated area with potable water is 

limited to no more than one day per week. This provision does not apply to 

landscape irrigation zones that exclusively use very low flow drip type 

irrigation systems. This provision also does not apply to watering or 

irrigating by use of a hand-held bucket or similar container, a hand-held 

hose equipped with a positive self-closing water shut-off nozzle or device, 

or for very short periods of time for the express purpose of adjusting or 

repairing an irrigation system. 

2. Obligation to Fix Leaks, Breaks or Malfunctions: All leaks, breaks, or other 

malfunctions in the direct end user’s plumbing or distribution system must 

be repaired within seventy-two (72) hours of notification by the District 

unless other arrangements are made which will include a written plan to 

address the repairs. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 8‐17 

Level 4 Water Supply Shortage 

a. A Level 4 Water Supply Shortage exists when the District determines, in its sole 

discretion, that due to drought or other water supply conditions, a water supply 

shortage or threatened shortage exists and a direct end user consumer demand 

reduction is necessary to make more efficient use of water and appropriately 

respond to existing water conditions. Upon the declaration by the District of a Level 

4 Water Supply Shortage condition, the District will implement the mandatory Level 

4 conservation measures identified in this section. 

b. Additional Conservation Measures: In addition to the prohibited uses of water 

identified under the Permanent Water Conservation Requirements and Water 

Supply Shortage Level 1 through 3, the following additional water conservation 

requirements apply to a direct end user during a declared Level 4 Water Supply 

Shortage: 

1. Watering Days: Watering or irrigating of lawn, landscape or other vegetated 

area with potable water by a direct end user is limited to two days per week. 

During the months of November through March, watering or irrigating of 

lawn, landscape or other vegetated area with potable water is limited to no 

more than one day per week. This provision does not apply to landscape 

irrigation zones that exclusively use very low flow drip type irrigation 

systems. This provision also does not apply to watering or irrigating by use 

of a hand-held bucket or similar container, a hand-held hose equipped with 

a positive self-closing water shut-off nozzle or device, or for very short 

periods of time for the express purpose of adjusting or repairing an irrigation 

system. 

2. Obligation to Fix Leaks, Breaks or Malfunctions: All leaks, breaks, or other 

malfunctions in the direct end user’s plumbing or distribution system must 

be repaired within forty-eight (48) hours of notification by the District unless 

other arrangements are made with the District which will include a written 

notification by the direct end user of a timeline of repairs. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 8‐18 

3. Limits on Filling Ornamental Lakes or Ponds: Filling or re-filling ornamental 

lakes or ponds by a direct end user is prohibited, except to the extent 

needed to sustain aquatic life, provided that such animals are of significant 

value and have been actively managed within the water feature prior to 

declaration of a supply shortage level under this Ordinance. 

4. Limits on Washing Vehicles: Using water to wash or clean a vehicle, 

including but not limited to, any automobile, truck, van, bus, motorcycle, 

boat or trailer, whether motorized or not, by a direct end user is prohibited 

except by use of a hand-held bucket or similar container, a hand-held hose 

equipped with a positive self-closing water shut- off nozzle or device, by 

high pressure/low volume wash systems, or at a commercial car washing 

facility that utilizes a re-circulating water system to capture or reuse water. 

5. Limits on Filling Residential Swimming Pools & Spas: Re-filling of more than 

one foot and initial filling of residential swimming pools or outdoor spas with 

potable water by a direct end user is prohibited. 

 

Level 5 Water Supply Shortage 

a. A Level 5 Water Supply Shortage exists when the District determines, in its sole 

discretion, that due to drought or other water supply conditions, a water supply 

shortage or threatened shortage exists and a direct end user consumer demand 

reduction is necessary to make more efficient use of water and appropriately 

respond to existing water conditions. Upon the declaration by the District of a Level 

5 Water Supply Shortage condition, the District will implement the mandatory Level 

5 conservation measures identified in this section. 

b. Additional Conservation Measures: In addition to the prohibited uses of water 

identified under the Permanent Water Conservation Requirements and Water 

Supply Shortage Level 1 through 4, the following additional water conservation 

requirements apply to a direct end user during a declared Level 5 Water Supply 

Shortage: 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 8‐19 

1. Watering Days: Watering or irrigating of lawn, landscape or other vegetated 

area with potable water by a direct end user is limited to two days per week. 

During the months of November through March, watering or irrigating of 

lawn, landscape or other vegetated area with potable water is limited to no 

more than one day per week. This provision does not apply to landscape 

irrigation zones that exclusively use very low flow drip type irrigation 

systems. This provision also does not apply to watering or irrigating by use 

of a hand-held bucket or similar container, a hand-held hose equipped with 

a positive self-closing water shut-off nozzle or device, or for very short 

periods of time for the express purpose of adjusting or repairing an irrigation 

system. 

2. Obligation to Fix Leaks, Breaks or Malfunctions: All leaks, breaks, or other 

malfunctions in the direct end user’s plumbing or distribution system must 

be repaired within forty-eight (48) hours of notification by the District unless 

other arrangements are made with the District which will include a written 

notification by the direct end user of a timeline of repairs. 

3. Limits on Filling Ornamental Lakes or Ponds: Filling or re-filling ornamental 

lakes or ponds by a direct end user is prohibited, except to the extent 

needed to sustain aquatic life, provided that such animals are of significant 

value and have been actively managed within the water feature prior to 

declaration of a supply shortage level under this Ordinance. 

4. Limits on Washing Vehicles: Using water to wash or clean a vehicle, 

including but not limited to, any automobile, truck, van, bus, motorcycle, 

boat or trailer, whether motorized or not, by a direct end user is prohibited 

except by use of a hand-held bucket or similar container, a hand-held hose 

equipped with a positive self-closing water shut- off nozzle or device, by 

high pressure/low volume wash systems, or at a commercial car washing 

facility that utilizes a re-circulating water system to capture or reuse water. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 8‐20 

5. Limits on Filling Residential Swimming Pools & Spas: Re-filling of more than 

one foot and initial filling of residential swimming pools or outdoor spas with 

potable water by a direct end user is prohibited. 

 

Level 6 Water Supply Shortage  

a. A Level 6 Water Supply Shortage condition is also referred to as an “Emergency” 

condition. A Level 6 condition exists when the District declares a water shortage 

emergency pursuant to the requirements of California Water Code Sections 

71640-71644 and notifies its member agencies, including a direct end user, that a 

significant reduction in consumer demand is necessary to maintain sufficient water 

supplies for public health and safety. Upon the declaration of a Level 6 Water 

Supply Shortage condition, the District will implement the mandatory Level 6 

conservation measures identified in this section, in addition to any other 

restrictions, prohibitions, and/or exclusions adopted by the District’s Board of 

Directors in any separate ordinance declaring such emergency. 

b. Additional Conservation Measures: In addition to the prohibited uses of water 

identified under Permanent Water Conservation Requirements and Water Supply 

Shortage Level 1 through 5, the following water conservation requirements apply 

to a direct end user during a declared Level 6 Water Supply Shortage Emergency: 

1. No Watering or Irrigating: Watering or irrigating of lawn, landscape or other 

vegetated area with potable water by a direct end user is prohibited. This 

restriction does not apply to the following categories of use, unless recycled 

water is available and may be applied to the use: 

i. Maintenance of vegetation, including trees and shrubs, that are 

watered using a hand-held bucket or similar container, hand-held 

hose equipped with a positive self–closing water shut-off nozzle or 

device; 

ii. Maintenance of existing landscape necessary for fire protection;  

iii. Maintenance of existing landscape for soil erosion control; 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 8‐21 

iv. Maintenance of plant materials identified to be rare or essential to 

the well- being of protected species; 

v. Maintenance of landscape within active public parks and playing 

fields, day care centers, and golf course greens, provided that such 

irrigation does not exceed two (2) days per week according to the 

schedule established in Level 4 Water Supply Shortage(b)(1) and 

time restrictions in Permanent Water Conservation Requirements(a) 

and (b)(1); 

vi. Actively irrigated environmental mitigation projects. 

2. Obligation to Fix Leaks, Breaks or Malfunctions: All leaks, breaks, or other 

malfunctions in the direct end user’s plumbing or distribution system must 

be repaired within twenty four (24) hours of notification by the District unless 

other arrangements are made with the District which will include written 

plans that include a timeline of repairs. 

3. No New Potable Water Service: Upon declaration of a Level 6 Water Supply 

Shortage Emergency condition, no new potable water service will be 

provided, no new temporary meters or permanent meters will be provided, 

and no statements of immediate ability to serve or provide potable water 

service (such as, will-serve letters, certificates, or letters of availability) will 

be issued to a direct end user, except under the following circumstances: 

i. A valid, unexpired building permit has been issued for the project; or 

ii. The project is necessary to protect the public health, safety, and 

welfare; or 

iii. The applicant provides substantial evidence of an enforceable 

commitment that water demands for the project will be offset prior to 

the provision of a new water meter(s) to the satisfaction of the 

District. 

This provision does not preclude the resetting of turn-on of meters to 

provide continuation of water service of the restoration of service that has 

been interrupted for a period of one year or less. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 8‐22 

4. Water Allocations and Mandatory Reductions: The District will activate a 

water allocation process using a method that does not in effect penalize 

direct end users for prior implementation of conservation methods or 

installation of water-saving devices. The District will provide notice of 

activation of the allocation process to a direct end user pursuant to Section 

8.5. Following the effective date of the water allocation, any direct end user 

using water in excess of the allocation will be subject to a penalty in the 

amount of double the Tier 2 rate should the water use as allocated for such 

direct end user fall between 101% to 115% of its individual allocations; and 

if the water use falls between 116% or higher, the rate will be four (4) times 

the Tier 2 rate for each billing unit of water in excess of the allocation. 

5. Large Landscape Areas – Rain Sensors: Large landscape areas of a direct 

end user, such as parks, cemeteries, golf course, school grounds, and 

playing fields, that use landscape irrigation systems to water or irrigate, 

must use landscape irrigation systems with rain sensors that automatically 

shut off such systems during periods of rain or irrigation timers which 

automatically use information such as evapotranspiration sensors to set an 

efficient water use schedule. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 8‐23 

Table 8-2 Demand Reduction Actions 

 

Shortage

Level 

Demand Reduction Actions
Drop down list

These are the only categories that will be accepted by the 

WUEdata online submittal tool. Select those that apply.

How much is this going to reduce the 

shortage gap? Include units used (volume 

type or percentage)

Additional 

Explanation or 

Reference

(optional)

Penalty, Charge, 

or Other 

Enforcement? 
For Retail Suppliers Only 

Drop Down List

1
Landscape ‐ Limit landscape irrigation to specific 

days

Collective reduction from all Shortage 

Level 1 actions is up to 5,240 AF
Yes

1
Other ‐ Customers must repair leaks, breaks, and 

malfunctions in a timely manner

Collective reduction from all Shortage 

Level 1 actions is up to 5,240 AF
Yes

2 Other
Collective reduction from all Shortage 

Level 2 actions is up to 10,479 AF

All actions under 

Shortage Level 1
Yes

3 Other
Collective reduction from all Shortage 

Level 3 actions is up to 15,719 AF

All actions under 

Shortage Level 2
Yes

4 Other
Collective reduction from all Shortage 

Level 4 actions is up to 20,959 AF

All actions under 

Shortage Level 3
Yes

4
Water Features ‐ Restrict water use for decorative 

water features, such as fountains

Collective reduction from all Shortage 

Level 4 actions is up to 20,959 AF

prohibit filling or 

refilling

ornamental lakes or

ponds

Yes

4
Other ‐ Prohibit vehicle washing except at facilities 

using recycled or recirculating water

Collective reduction from all Shortage 

Level 4 actions is up to 20,959 AF
Yes

4 Other water feature or swimming pool restriction
Collective reduction from all Shortage 

Level 4 actions is up to 20,959 AF

prohibit intial filling or 

refilling of more than 

one foot of residential 

swimming pools or 

outdoor spas

5 Other
Collective reduction from all Shortage 

Level 5 actions is up to 26,198 AF

All actions under 

Shortage Level 4
Yes

6 Other
Collective reduction from all Shortage 

Level 6 actions is greater than 26,198 AF

All actions under 

Shortage Level 5

6 Landscape ‐ Prohibit all landscape irrigation
Collective reduction from all Shortage 

Level 6 actions is greater than 26,198 AF

6 Other
Collective reduction from all Shortage 

Level 6 actions is greater than 26,198 AF

No new potable water 

service

6
Implement or Modify Drought Rate Structure or 

Surcharge

Collective reduction from all Shortage 

Level 6 actions is greater than 26,198 AF

6 Other
Collective reduction from all Shortage 

Level 6 actions is greater than 26,198 AF

Direct end users that 

use landscape 

irrigation systems to 

irrigate must use 

landscape irrigation 

systems with rain 

sensors that 

automatically shut off 

such systems during 

periods of rain

Yes

Submittal Table 8‐2: Demand Reduction Actions

NOTES:

Add additional rows as needed

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 8‐24 

Table 8-3 Supply Augmentation and Other Actions 

 

 

 SUPPLY AUGMENTATION 

 

As discussed in Chapter 6, the District’s sources of water supply include groundwater 

produced from the Six Basins and imported water purchased from MWD. The District 

does not anticipate augmenting water supplies. However, the District’s sub-agencies will 

consider increased supplies from existing sources. Table 8-3 reflects this approach and 

does not identify any new supplies. Instead, the District’s sub-agencies will focus on 

demand reduction measures in the event existing sources of supply are not sufficient to 

meet customer demands. As noted in Section 8.2, beginning July 1, 2022, the District will 

prepare and submit an Annual Assessment which will include a review of water supplies 

available to meet water demands for the current and upcoming years.  If the District is 

currently in, or considers entering into, one of the standard water shortage levels identified 

in Section 8.3, the District will consider the water supply (augmentation) actions described 

below. 

Shortage Level

Supply Augmentation Methods and 

Other Actions by Water Supplier

 Drop down list

 These are the only categories that will be 

accepted by the WUEdata online submittal tool 

How much is this going to reduce 

the shortage gap? Include units 

used (volume type or percentage)

Additional Explanation or Reference 

(optional)

1 Transfers Not applicable (see Notes)

2 Transfers Not applicable (see Notes)

3 Transfers Not applicable (see Notes)

4 Transfers Not applicable (see Notes)

5 Transfers Not applicable (see Notes)

6 Transfers Not applicable (see Notes)

Submittal Table 8‐3: Supply Augmentation and Other Actions

Add additional rows as needed

NOTES: The District is a wholesale water supplier that provides treated imported water from the State Water Project through MWD to 

its sub‐agencies. The District does not anticipate augmenting water supplies. However, the District’s sub‐ agencies will consider 

increased production from the Main Basin, Chino Basin, and or Six Basins (through potential transfer of water rights) using existing 

facilities to address increased demands. As noted on Table 8‐2, the District plans to implement demand reduction measures in the 

event water supplies from existing sources are not sufficient to meet anticipated demands.

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 8‐25 

For each water shortage level discussed in Section 8.3, the District will consider 

supplementing its existing water supplies through purchase of additional imported water 

supplies.  However, due to previous critically dry conditions, MWD developed the “Water 

Supply Allocation Plan” whereby available supplies are equitably allocated to its member 

agencies, including the District. The WSAP establishes ten different shortage levels and 

a corresponding drought allocation to each member agency. Based on the shortage level 

established by MWD, the WSAP provides a reduced drought allocation to a member 

agency for its Municipal and Industrial retail demand. The ratio of MWD water supply 

drought allocation to local water supply will change based on the WSAP stage. The MWD 

drought allocation can be used to make Full Service water deliveries at the Tier 1 rate up 

to a Tier 1 allocation. Any Full Service water delivered in excess of a drought allocation 

is subject to a penalty rate in addition to the normal rate paid for the water.   

 

In addition to the WSAP, MWD describes supply augmentation actions in its Regional 

2020 UWMP, which is incorporated by reference.  MWD’s primary first response to any 

gap between core supplies (from the State Water Project and Colorado River) and 

demand is to make optimal use of its supply augmentation options, consisting of drawing 

from flexible supply programs and storage reserves. MWD has developed and actively 

manages a portfolio of water supply programs including water transfer, storage, and 

exchange agreements.  MWD pursues voluntary water transfer and exchange programs 

to help mitigate supply/demand imbalances and provide additional dry-year supply 

sources. In addition, MWD has developed significant storage capacity in reservoirs, 

conjunctive use, and other groundwater storage programs totaling approximately 6.0 

million AF. Pursuant to MWD’s “Emergency Storage Objective”, updated in 2019, 

approximately 750,000 AF of total stored water is emergency storage reserved by MWD 

for use in the event of supply interruptions. 

 

 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 8‐26 

 OPERATIONAL CHANGES 

 

During a water supply shortage situation, the District will manage its water supply 

resources to provide water supplies to help meet the demands of its member agencies; 

however, the retail water suppliers ultimately have the responsibility of meeting their 

customer demands.  Section 8.4.2 describes the District’s water supply sources and water 

supply augmentation actions available. Section 8.4.1 describes the District’s standard 

water shortage levels and associated demand reduction measures. The supply 

augmentation actions and demand reduction measures, when implemented, may 

potentially result in short-term operational changes which are necessary to allow the 

District to utilize all available water supply sources in response to water shortage 

situations.  

 

As noted in Section 8.2, beginning July 1, 2022, the District will prepare and submit an 

Annual Assessment which will include a review of the water supplies available to meet 

water demands for the current and upcoming years. Preparation of the Annual 

Assessment will assist the District in determining any potential operational changes.  In 

addition, the District’s standard water shortage levels and the associated demand 

reduction measures, in conjunction with the District’s existing Demand Management 

Measures (discussed in Chapter 9), will be essential to the District in reducing water 

demands during any water shortage period. The operational changes the District will 

consider in addressing non-catastrophic water shortages on a short-term basis include 

the following: 

 

 Improved monitoring, analysis, and tracking of water usage to enforce demand 

reduction measures 

 Optimized production from existing available water supply sources (including 

groundwater and surface water) 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 8‐27 

 Improved monitoring, maintenance, and repairs to reduce water distribution 

system losses 

 

 ADDITIONAL MANDATORY RESTRICTIONS 

 

The mandatory restrictions which are implemented by the District to reduce sub-agencies’ 

customer demands are discussed in Section 8.4.1. There are no additional mandatory 

restrictions planned at this time. 

 

 EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN 

 

Catastrophic water shortages are incorporated in the District’s standard water shortage 

levels (identified in Section 8.3) and the associated demand reduction measures 

(described in Section 8.4.1). In addition to the water supply augmentation actions (Section 

8.4.2) and potential operational changes (Section 8.4.3) which the District may consider 

in order to continue providing water supplies, the District will review and implement any 

necessary steps included in its “Emergency Response Plan”. 

 

As part of the “America’s Water Infrastructure Act of 2018”, community water systems 

serving a population greater than 3,300 people, including the District, are required to 

review and update their “Risk and Resilience Assessment” (RRA) and the associated 

“Emergency Response Plan” (ERP) every five (5) years. However, due to security 

concerns regarding the submitting of these reports, water systems are required to submit 

certifications to the United States Environment Protection Agency (USEPA), from March 

31, 2020 and December 30, 2021, confirming the current RRA and ERP have been 

reviewed and updated. 

 

 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 8‐28 

The District’s RRA, prepared in 2020, evaluates the vulnerabilities, threats, and 

consequences from potential hazards to the District’s water system.  The District prepared 

its RRA (which is incorporated by reference) by evaluating the following items: 

 

 Natural hazards and malevolent acts (i.e., all hazards); 

 Resilience of water facility infrastructure (including pipes, physical barriers, water 

sources and collection, treatment, storage and distribution facilities, and electronic, 

computer and other automated systems); 

 Monitoring practices; 

 Financial systems (e.g., billing systems); 

 Chemical storage and handling; and 

 Operation and maintenance. 

 

The District’s RRA evaluated a series of potential malevolent acts, natural hazards, and 

other threats in order to estimate the potential “monetized risks” (i.e. associated economic 

consequences to both the water system and surrounding region, and the likelihood of 

occurrence) associated with the District’s water facility assets. The cost-effectiveness of 

implementing potential countermeasures to reduce risks was also reviewed. 

 

The District’s ERP, prepared in 2020, provides the management, procedures, and 

designated actions the District and its employees will implement during emergency 

situations (including catastrophic water shortages) resulting from natural disasters, 

system failures and other unforeseen circumstances. The District’s ERP (which is 

incorporated by reference) provides the guidelines for evaluating an emergency situation, 

procedures for activating an emergency response, and details of the different response 

phases in order to ensure that sub-agencies’ receive a reliable and adequate supply of 

potable water. The scope of the ERP includes emergencies which directly affect the water 

system and the ability to maintain safe operations (such as a chlorine release, and 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 8‐29 

earthquake or a threat of contamination). The ERP also incorporates the results of the 

District’s RRA and includes the following: 

 

 Strategies and resources to improve resilience, including physical and 

cybersecurity 

 Plans and procedures for responding to a natural hazard or malevolent act 

 Actions and equipment to lessen the impact of a natural hazard or malevolent act 

 Strategies to detect natural hazards or malevolent act 

 

The District will review the ERP for procedures regarding the utilization of alternative 

water supply sources in response to water supply shortages, including during the 

standard water shortage levels.  The District will also review applicable procedures 

described in the ERP regarding any necessary temporary shutdown of water supply 

facilities, including appropriate regulatory and public notifications.    

 

 SEISMIC RISK ASSESSMENT AND MITIGATION PLAN 

 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10632.5. 
 
(a) In addition to the requirements of paragraph (3) of subdivision (a) of Section 10632, 
beginning January 1, 2020, the plan shall include a seismic risk assessment and 
mitigation plan to assess the vulnerability of each of the various facilities of a water system 
and mitigate those vulnerabilities. 
 
(b) An urban water supplier shall update the seismic risk assessment and mitigation plan 
when updating its urban water management plan as required by Section 10621. 
 
(c) An urban water supplier may comply with this section by submitting, pursuant to Section 
10644, a copy of the most recent adopted local hazard mitigation plan or multihazard 
mitigation plan under the federal Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 (Public Law 106-390) if 
the local hazard mitigation plan or multihazard mitigation plan addresses seismic risk. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 8‐30 

The County of Los Angeles prepared a “All-Hazards Mitigation Plan” in 2019 which 

identified methods to assess significant natural hazards (including earthquakes) affecting 

areas throughout Los Angeles County, and the mitigation strategies necessary to reduce 

risks, including seismic risk.  The County’s All-Hazards Mitigation Plan is provided in 

Appendix H. 

 

The California Geological Survey has published the locations of numerous faults which 

have been mapped in the Southern California region. Although the San Andreas fault is 

the most recognized and is capable of producing an earthquake with a magnitude greater 

than 8 on the Richter scale, some of the lesser-known faults have the potential to cause 

significant damage. The locations of these earthquake faults in the vicinity of the District’s 

water service area are provided in the figure below.  The faults that are located in close 

proximity to and could potentially cause significant shaking in the District’s water service 

area include the San Andreas fault, the Walnut Creek fault, the Whittier fault, the San 

Jose fault, the Cucamonga fault, the Chino fault, the Central Avenue fault, and the Sierra 

Madre fault. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 8‐31 

Location of Earthquake Faults 

Source: https://maps.conservation.ca.gov/cgs/fam/App/ 

 

The following figure provides the relative intensity of ground shaking in the vicinity of the 

area receiving water supplies from the District from anticipated future earthquakes. The 

locations of relatively long-period (1.0 second) earthquake shaking, including the area 

receiving water supplies from the District, are provided. Long-period shaking affects tall, 

relatively flexible buildings, but also correlates with earthquake damage. The shaking 

potential is calculated based on the level of ground motion that has a 2 percent chance 

of being exceeded in 50 years (or the level of ground-shaking with an approximate 2,500-

year average repeat time). As discussed in Section 8.4.5, the District has prepared an 

Emergency Response Plan which provides the management, procedures, and 

designated actions the District and its employees will implement during emergency 

situations resulting from natural disasters, including during earthquakes, to ensure that  

District’s Service Area 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 8‐32 

sub-agencies receive a reliable and adequate supply of potable water. The District’s ERP 

is incorporated by reference. 

 
Earthquake Shaking Potential 

 
Source: “Earthquake Shaking Potential for California”, 2016, California Geological Survey and United States Geological Survey 

 

 SHORTAGE RESPONSE ACTION EFFECTIVENESS 

 
The effectiveness of the shortage response actions for each of the standard water 

shortage levels identified in Section 8.3 is evident in the District’s historical ability to meet 

its sub-agencies’ water demands during water supply shortages. In addition, the District 

supports local agencies in efforts to enforce regulations and prohibitions on water use. 

The effectiveness of each of the District’s shortage response actions, in order to reduce 

any potential gaps between supply and demand, has been quantified in the expected 

demand reduction provided in Table 8-2 and Table 8-3. 

District’s Service Area 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 8‐33 

Section 6.1 provides a tabulation of the District’s historical annual water demands from 

its sub-agencies for each water supply source. During the past 10 years, the District 

experienced a five consecutive year drought within the area receiving its water supplies 

from FY 2011-12 to FY 2015-16. Throughout this extended five consecutive year drought 

year period, the District’s annual water production ranged from 57,472 AF to 74,233 AF, 

with an average of approximately 66,079 AF.  In addition, historical records indicate the 

District previously produced a maximum of up to 76,723 AF during FY 2019-20.  The 

District has been able to provide sufficient water supplies to its sub-agencies, including 

during long-term droughts and years with historically high water demands. In addition, the 

District has been able to provide water service to meet maximum day water demands for 

these years, including during the summer months.   

 

The District’s water demands from its sub-agencies during the most recent five years 

(from FY 2015-16 to FY 2019-20) averaged approximately 67,124 AFY. Due to 

conservation efforts and demand management measures (discussed in Chapter 9), the 

District’s recent water demands from its sub-agencies have been less than its historical 

water demands, including during long-term droughts.  The District’s projected water 

demands from its sub-agencies (during normal, single dry, and multiple dry years) are 

provided in Section 7.2.3 and are anticipated to incorporate similar reductions in water 

use rates as a result of the shortage response actions, ongoing conservation efforts, and 

demand management measures.  Because the District’s projected water demands are 

less than its historical water demands, it is anticipated the District will be able to continue 

providing sufficient water supplies to its sub-agencies to meet projected water demands, 

including during long-term droughts. 

 

Based on the District’s ability in meeting water demands during past water supply 

shortages, adopted water shortage levels, adjusted operating safe yields, and long-term 

droughts, it is anticipated that the District will be able to continue providing sufficient water 

supplies to its customers during any of its standard water shortage levels. Although 

adequate supplies are anticipated, the cost of those water supplies may become 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 8‐34 

incrementally more expensive. The District will enact varying levels of its water shortage 

contingency plan to encourage its sub-agencies to reduce water consumption and at the 

same time reduce the need to use the more expensive water supplies. Notwithstanding, 

the effectiveness of each of the District’s shortage response actions, in order to reduce 

any potential gaps between supply and demand, has been quantified in the expected 

demand reduction provided in Table 8-2 and Table 8-3.  The effectiveness of the District’s 

shortage response actions is based on the District’s water demands prior to 2015 

(unconstrained demands). The District reduced its water demands in 2015 in response to 

the Governor’s April 1, 2015 Executive Order B-29-15 which mandated statewide 

reduction in water use of 25 percent. The District’s actual water demand reduction during 

this period was used to estimate the extent of water use reductions for the District’s Water 

Shortage Stages. The District’s Water Shortage Levels 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, and 6 are expected 

to reduce water demands by up to 10%, 20%, 30%, 40%, 50%, and greater than 50%, 

respectively.  

 

 

 COMMUNICATION PROTOCOLS 

 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10632. 
 
(a)(5) Communication protocols and procedures to inform customers, the public, 
interested parties, and local, regional, and state governments, regarding, at a minimum, 
all of the following: 
 
(A) Any current or predicted shortages as determined by the annual water supply and 
demand assessment described pursuant to Section 10632.1. 
 
(B) Any shortage response actions triggered or anticipated to be triggered by the annual 
water supply and demand assessment described pursuant to Section 10632.1. 
 
(C) Any other relevant communications. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Pursuant to CWC 10632.1, The District's Annual Assessment will be submitted to DWR 

by July 1 of each year or within 14 days of receiving its final allocation, whichever is later. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 8‐35 

The Annual Assessment will provide information on the District's anticipated shortage, 

triggered response actions, compliance and enforcement actions, and communication 

actions, as discussed in Section 8.2. The District may use the Annual Assessment as a 

method of declaring the appropriate water shortage level. 

 

A water shortage level must first be adopted as a resolution during scheduled District 

board meetings. In accordance with the District’s communication protocol, for each 

shortage level the District will hold a public hearing to address comments in connection 

with the adoption of any resolutions declaring a water shortage level. Information 

pertaining to the adopted resolution will be provided to the public, customers, interested 

parties, and local agencies.  

 

The mandatory conservation requirements applicable to the water shortage conditions 

will take effect on the 10th day after the date the shortage level is declared. Within five 

(5) days following the declaration of the shortage level, the District will publish a notice of 

the adoption of the resolution in a local newspaper used for publication of official notices. 

If the District activates a water allocation process, the District will provide notice of the 

allocation by including it in the regular billing statement or by any other mailing to the 

address to which the District customarily mails the billing statement for fees or charges 

for on-going water service. A water allocation will be effective on the fifth day following 

the date of mailing or at such later date as specified in the notice. 

 

The information provided will include the declared shortage level, response action 

associated with each shortage level, and any other relevant information relating to the 

resolution. 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 8‐36 

 COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10632. 
 
(a)(6) For an urban retail water supplier, customer compliance, enforcement, appeal, and 
exemption procedures for triggered shortage response actions as determined pursuant to 
Section 10632.2. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

As a wholesale agency, the District is not required by DWR to complete Section 8.6.  

 
 

 LEGAL AUTHORITIES 

 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10632. 

 
(a)(7)(A) A description of the legal authorities that empower the urban water supplier to 
implement and enforce its shortage response actions specified in paragraph (4) that may 
include, but are not limited to, statutory authorities, ordinances, resolutions, and contract 
provisions. 
 
(B) A statement that an urban water supplier shall declare a water shortage emergency in 
accordance with Chapter 3 (commencing with Section 350) of Division 1. 
 
(C) A statement that an urban water supplier shall coordinate with any city or county within 
which it provides water supply services for the possible proclamation of a local 
emergency, as defined in Section 8558 of the Government Code. 
 

CWC Division 1, Section 350 
 
The governing body of a distributor of a public water supply, whether publicly or privately 
owned and including a mutual water company, shall declare a water shortage emergency 
condition to prevail within the area served by such distributor whenever it finds and 
determines that the ordinary demands and requirements of water consumers cannot be 
satisfied without depleting the water supply of the distributor to the extent that there would 
be insufficient water for human consumption, sanitation, and fire protection. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

In the event that the demand of water consumers cannot be satisfied without depleting a 

substantial amount of water supply needed for human consumption, sanitation, and fire 

protection, the District shall declare a water shortage emergency. The District shall 

coordinate with any city or county within its service area for possible declaration of a local 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 8‐37 

emergency including the Cities of Claremont, Covina, Diamond Bar, Glendora, Industry, 

La Verne, Pomona, San Dimas, Walnut, West Covina, and unincorporated areas of Los 

Angeles County (including Charter Oak and Rowland Heights) 

 

The District adopted Ordinance No. 09-06-16 (“Establishing a Water Conservation and 

Water Shortage Program and Regulations for its Direct End Service”) in 2009. The 

ordinance implements measures to ensure effective water supply planning, assure 

reasonable and beneficial use of water, prevent waste of water, and maximize the efficient 

use of water within the District’s service area. In addition, the District must reduce its 

demand for imported water to avoid penalties for excessive use and ensure sufficient 

water supply remain for the health, safety, and welfare of the public. A copy of this 

ordinance is provided in Appendix I. 

 

In June 2017, the District adopted Resolution No. 17-06-801 declaring a Water Supply 

Watch. Under a Water Supply Watch, the District coordinated with its sub-agencies in the 

development of a rate structure to promote water use efficiency and unified regional 

message to communicate the need for continued water use efficiency to the public, 

businesses, stakeholder industries and public officials. The District also encouraged its 

sub-agencies to implement water use efficiency measures to preserve regional storage 

reserves. A copy of this resolution is provided in Appendix J. 

 

The District has developed a WSAP as an approach to control water demand through 

water rate penalties for excessive use. The WSAP limits how much water can be 

purchased during the fiscal year without incurring a penalty and is implemented during an 

extreme shortage stage. The limit varies depending on a number of factors, but mainly 

local groundwater extracted during the fiscal year. The WSAP is structured with 10 

defined shortage level stages that correspond to an annual allocation of water to each of 

the sub-agencies. The penalties determined in the WSAP are as follows: 

 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 8‐38 

 Up to allowed water limit – no penalty is incurred (just the cost of the water) 

 Up to 15% above the limit – A penalty of $1,480/AF plus the cost of the water 

 Over 15% above the limit – A penalty of $2,960/AF plus the cost of the water 

 

A copy of the WSAP is included in Appendix K. 

 
 

 FINANCIAL CONSEQUENCES OF WSCP 

 
____________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10632. 

 
(a)(8) A description of the financial consequences of, and responses for, drought 
conditions, including, but not limited to, all of the following: 
 
(A) A description of potential revenue reductions and expense increases associated with 
activated shortage response actions described in paragraph (4). 
 
(B) A description of mitigation actions needed to address revenue reductions and 
expense increases associated with activated shortage response actions described in 
paragraph (4). 
 
(C) A description of the cost of compliance with Chapter 3.3 (commencing with Section 
365) of Division 1. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

The expected change in revenues and expenditures to the District can vary due to 

implementing water shortage response actions from the WSCP. Like most other water 

agencies, the District experiences a decrease in revenue associated with reduced water 

sales. The District prepares and updates the water sales forecast annually among its 

normal budgetary planning activities.  

 

The District has established a Water Rate Stabilization Reserve to help fund operations 

when water sales are less than projected.  This reserve shall be set at an amount to 

supplant lost income in the event of 10% water sales shortages over a 2-3 period 

($1,200,000-$1,800,000).  The District currently has about $1,400,000 in this reserve. 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 8‐39 

The District has other reserve funds that can also be accessed by board approval of about 

$8,300,000.  These reserve funds are intended to: 

 Minimize the impacts of any short-term fluctuations in revenues/expenses without 

adopting unplanned rate increases 

 Provide a safety net in the event of emergency 

 Minimize external borrowing and interest expense 

Determine the most opportune time to issue debt when necessary 

 

 

 MONITORING AND REPORTING 

 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10632. 

 
(a)(9) For an urban retail water supplier, monitoring and reporting requirements and 
procedures that ensure appropriate data is collected, tracked, and analyzed for purposes 
of monitoring customer compliance and to meet state reporting requirements. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

The District is a wholesale water agency only and does not directly provide water to end 

use customers. The District will coordinate with its sub-agencies to assist with 

communication and outreach efforts needed during water shortages.  In addition, the 

District will coordinate with MWD on regional efforts to maximize water use efficiency and 

mitigate supply limitations. 

 

 WSCP REFINEMENT PROCEDURES 

 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10632. 

 
(a)(10) Reevaluation and improvement procedures for systematically monitoring and 
evaluating the functionality of the water shortage contingency plan in order to ensure 
shortage risk tolerance is adequate and appropriate water shortage mitigation strategies 
are implemented as needed. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 8‐40 

 

The District’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan has been prepared as an adaptive 

management plan.  As discussed in Section 8.9, the District will monitor and report on the 

implementation of the Water Shortage Contingency Plan.  The District will review the 

implementation results for any current or potential shortage gaps between water supplies 

and demands. The District will evaluate the need for revising the Water Shortage 

Contingency Plan in order to resolve any shortage gaps, as necessary. The District will 

consider the following potential revisions in the event of a potential shortage gap: 

 

 Implementation of additional public outreach, education, and communication 

programs (in addition to the programs discussed in Chapter 9). 

 Implementation of more stringent water use restrictions under the standard water 

shortage levels (discussed in Section 8.4.2). 

 Implementation of stricter enforcement actions and penalties (discussed in Section 

8.6). 

 Improvements to the water supply augmentation responses (discussed in Section 

8.4.1), as well as any associated operational changes (discussed in Section 8.4.3) 

which may be required. 

 Incorporation of additional actions recommended by District staff or other 

interested parties. 

 

The District will use the monitoring and reporting data to evaluate the ability for these 

potential revisions to resolve any shortage gaps which may occur within the standard 

water shortage levels.   

 

This Water Shortage Contingency Plan is adopted as part of the District’s 2020 Urban 

Water Management Plan adoption process discussed in Section 10.3.  It is anticipated 

the District will review, revise, and adopt an updated Water Shortage Contingency Plan 

as part of preparing its 2025 Urban Water Management Plan as necessary.  However, 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 8‐41 

the District will continue to review the monitoring and reporting data, and if needed, update 

the Water Shortage Contingency Plan more frequently. Any updates to the District’s 

Water Shortage Contingency Plan will include a public hearing and adoption process by 

the District’s Board (see Section 8.12).  

 

 

 SPECIAL WATER FEATURE DISTINCTION 

_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10632. 

 
(b) For purposes of developing the water shortage contingency plan pursuant to 
subdivision (a), an urban water supplier shall analyze and define water features that are 
artificially supplied with water, including ponds, lakes, waterfalls, and fountains, separately 
from swimming pools and spas, as defined in subdivision (a) of Section 115921 of the 
Health and Safety Code. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

As a wholesale agency, the District is not required by DWR to complete Section 8.11. 

 

 

 PLAN ADOPTION, SUBMITTAL, AND AVAILABILITY 

_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10632. 

 
(c) The urban water supplier shall make available the water shortage contingency plan 
prepared pursuant to this article to its customers and any city or county within which it 
provides water supplies no later than 30 days after adoption of the water shortage 
contingency plan. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

The District’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan is adopted as part of the District’s 2020 

Urban Water Management Plan adoption process discussed in Chapter 10.  The process 

for adopting the District’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan includes the following: 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 8‐42 

 The District will conduct a public hearing and make the Water Shortage 

Contingency Plan available for public inspection.  

 The District will provide notification of the time and place of the public hearing to 

any city or county in which water is provided. 

 The District will publish notice of public hearing in a newspaper once a week, for 

two successive weeks (with at least five days between publication dates). 

 The District’s Board will adopt the 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and the 

Water Shortage Contingency Plan 

 As part of submitting the 2020 Urban Water Management Plan to DWR, the District 

will also submit the Water Shortage Contingency Plan (electronically through 

DWR’s online submittal tool) within 30 days of adoption and by July 1, 2021. The 

District will submit a copy of the Water Shortage Contingency Plan to the California 

State Library and to any city or county in which water is provided within 30 days of 

adoption. In addition, the District will make the Water Shortage Contingency Plan 

available for public review within 30 days of adoption. 

 

If there are any subsequent amendments required, the process for adopting an amended 

Water Shortage Contingency Plan includes the following: 

 

 The District will conduct a public hearing and make the amended Water Shortage 

Contingency Plan available for public inspection.  

 The District’s Board will adopt the amended Water Shortage Contingency Plan 

 The District will submit the amended Water Shortage Contingency Plan to DWR 

(electronically through DWR’s online submittal tool) within 30 days of adoption 

 

Additional information regarding the adoption, submittal, and availability of the District’s 

Water Shortage Contingency Plan (and 2020 Urban Water Management Plan) is provided 

in Chapter 10. 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 9‐1 

CHAPTER 9  

DEMAND MANAGEMENT MEASURES 

 

LAY DESCRIPTION – CHAPTER 9 

 

DEMAND MANAGEMENT MEASURES 

 

Chapter 9 (Demand Management Measures) of the District’s 2020 Plan discusses and 

provides the following: 

 

 The District has implemented “Demand Management Measures” to reduce its 

water demands and achieve its water use targets (discussed in Chapter 5) 

 The District’s Demand Management Measures include metering of all its water 

supply connections with its sub-agencies. 

 The District’s Demand Management Measures include public education and 

outreach programs regarding water conservation. 

 The District’s Demand Management Measures include staffing of its water 

conservation program. 

 Additional Demand Management Measures including rebate, conservation, asset 

management, and wholesale supplier assistance programs are discussed. 

 A summary of the Demand Management Measures the District has implemented 

over the past five (5) years is provided. 

 

 

  

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 9‐2 

 DEMAND MANAGEMENT MEASURES FOR WHOLESALE SUPPLIERS 

 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10631. 

 
(e) Provide a description of the supplier’s water demand management measures. This 
description shall include all of the following: 
 
(1)(B) The narrative pursuant to this paragraph shall include descriptions of the following 
water demand management measures: 
 
(ii) Metering. 
 
(iv) Public education and outreach. 
(vi) Water conservation program coordination and staffing support. 
 
(vii) Other demand management measures that have a significant impact on water use 
as measured in gallons per capita per day, including innovative measures, if 
implemented. 
 
(2) For an urban wholesale water supplier, as defined in Section 10608.12, a narrative 
description of the items in clauses (ii), (iv), (vi), and (vii) of subparagraph (B) of paragraph 
(1), and a narrative description of its distribution system asset management and 
wholesale supplier assistance programs. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

As a wholesale water agency, the District is committed to promoting and facilitating water 

conservation projects by its sub-agencies. These projects/programs focus on commercial 

and industrial equipment and processes, residential plumbing retrofits, turf replacement 

programs, smart irrigation controller and sprinkler retrofits, and conservation education 

programs. The District prioritizes its education programs as an essential conservation 

measure to enhance long-term reliability and growth. One of the ways the District does 

this is by conducting public tours of its Miramar Water Treatment Plant to promote water 

conservation awareness. The District also focuses on public education and awareness 

as a necessary means to inform the public of efficient water use. 

 

The District has expanded into conservation research and increased coordination of 

funding for retail sub-agency sponsored projects. The District assists its sub-agencies 

with funding and implementation of conservation projects which are essential in 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 9‐3 

maintaining a high level of water use efficiency. The District’s water conservation 

coordinators regularly provide coordination with the District’s sub-agencies regarding 

water conservation programs/projects. 

 

 METERING 

 

 All of the District’s connections with its sub-agencies are fully metered to accurately track 

water sales (demands). The District performs regular calibration/testing and 

replacement/repairs of its meters to ensure meter accuracy.  

 

 PUBLIC EDUCATION AND OUTREACH 

 

The District conducts public education and outreach efforts to assist and support its sub-

agencies, including partnering with MWD on mass media campaigns promoting water 

conservation, school education programs, informational booths at public events, 

newsletters, informative websites, online tools, press releases, and newspaper articles. 

The District assists its sub-agencies at public outreach events by hosting or co-hosting 

educational booths at events including Earth Days and school functions. The District 

supports and partners with MWD during mass media campaigns to benefit from MWD’s 

extensive regional reach. The District typically conducts over 15 tours annually at the 

Miramar Water Treatment Plant for grades 3 through college. Presentations are given to 

educate visitors regarding water treatment plant operations and the true significance of 

clean safe water. In addition, information regarding the history, administration procedures, 

and importance of the District and water conservation is provided throughout the tour.  

 

District staff creates advertisements and articles each year to run in local newspapers to 

educate the public on conservation, water protection and water supply sources. The 

District hosts three Leadership Breakfasts a year to educate local officials, elected 

officials and the general public regarding the importance to California water. These 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 9‐4 

breakfasts feature dynamic water industry leaders and discussions of regional topics 

related to the water industry.  

 

The District hosts and administers at least three MWD tours including the State Water 

Project, Colorado River Aqueduct, Diamond Valley Lake, or the Edmonston Pumping 

Plant. The District also hosts at least one local event to showcase its local facilities and 

the improvements made throughout the year and proposed capital projects and the 

importance to local supplies.  

 

 WATER CONSERVATION PROGRAM COORDINATION AND 

STAFFING SUPPORT 

 

The District employs two staff members that are responsible for public outreach and 

coordination with the District’s sub-agencies, MWD, local schools, and the public to 

encourage conservation and promote/support public awareness and participation. The 

District provides funding in its annual budget to support these activities. 

 

 OTHER DEMAND MANAGEMENT MEASURES 

 

 Similar to MWD, the District has adopted a tiered rate structure in delivering imported 

water to its sub-agencies. The Tier 1 and Tier 2 rates serve to promote water conservation 

and discourage excessive water use by requiring sub-agencies to actively manage their 

own systems to minimize costs associated with purchasing imported water. The District 

allocates to each sub-agency a specific quantity of imported water for each calendar year. 

The individual allocation amounts were initially determined based on the average annual 

imported water use during the 10-year period prior to the start of the program. The District 

closely tracks the monthly imported water usage by each sub-agency. If a sub-agency 

exceeds its allocation of imported water during a calendar year, it may be subject to a 

higher water rate for the water purchased above the allocation. For Calendar Year 2020, 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 9‐5 

the District’s rates for treated imported water were $1,068 per AF, under Tier 1, and 

$1,155 per AF, under Tier 2, a difference of $87 per AF.  

 

In addition to the demand management measures (DMMs) discussed above, the District 

participates in MWD’s regional rebate program, the SoCal Water$mart Program, which is 

available to the District’s residential and commercial customers. There are rebates 

available for indoor plumbing including high efficiency clothes washers and toilets. 

Rebates are also available for outdoor plumbing include those for weather-based 

irrigation controllers, rotating sprinkler nozzles, and replacement of irrigated lawn with 

drought tolerant plants or other approved landscape options. The District plans to 

continue implementation of these programs to promote water conservation. 

 

 ASSET MANAGEMENT 

 

The District has developed an asset management program for its major infrastructure 

including its distribution system. The plan includes conducting regular distribution system 

maintenance and/or inspection and making improvements to and/or repairs/replacement 

of assets as needed. The District responds to repairs as needed. The District may 

implement GIS mapping with a structured improvement and repair program. The District 

also prepares an annual “Strategic Plan” report which identifies the five-year capital 

improvement projects and costs (including maintenance and improvement projects) 

necessary to operate the District’s facilities. 

 

 WHOLESALE SUPPLIER ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS 

 

As a wholesaler, the District participates in assistance programs to its retail sub-agencies 

including the conservation programs identified in the sections above. The District utilizes 

allocated funds from MWD to assist the sub-agencies in promoting conservation 

programs, water saving devices, rebate programs, educational forums, and other efforts 

to reduce water demand. The District provides financial incentives for water conservation 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 9‐6 

through retrofit and rebate programs that replace high water-use fixtures with efficient 

water-use fixtures. The District also provides support through available staff assigned to 

direct conservation measures.  

 
 

 EXISTING DEMAND MANAGEMENT MEASURES FOR RETAIL SUPPLIERS 

 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10631. 

 
(e) Provide a description of the supplier’s water demand management measures. This 
description shall include all of the following: 
 
(1)(A) For an urban retail water supplier, as defined in Section 10608.12, a narrative 
description that addresses the nature and extent of each water demand management 
measure implemented over the past five years. The narrative shall describe the water 
demand management measures that the supplier plans to implement to achieve its water 
use targets pursuant to Section 10608.20. 
 
(B) The narrative pursuant to this paragraph shall include descriptions of the following 
water demand management measures: 
 
(i) Water waste prevention ordinances. 
 
(ii) Metering. 
 
(iii) Conservation pricing. 
 
(iv) Public education and outreach. 
 
(v) Programs to assess and manage distribution system real loss. 
 
(vi) Water conservation program coordination and staffing support. 
 
(vii) Other demand management measures that have a significant impact on water use as 
measured in gallons per capita per day, including innovative measures, if implemented. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

As a wholesale agency, the District is not required by DWR to complete Section 9.2. 

 

  

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 9‐7 

 REPORTING IMPLEMENTAYION 

 
 

 IMPLEMENTATION OVER THE PAST FIVE YEARS 

 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10631. 

 
(e) Provide a description of the supplier’s water demand management measures. This 
description shall include all of the following: 
 
(1) (A) …a narrative description that addresses the nature and extent of each water 
demand management measure implemented over the past five years.  

________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
The District is committed to implementing water conservation programs. The highlights of 

DMM implementation over the past five years are described below. 

 

As discussed in Section 9.1, the District is committed to promoting and facilitating water 

conservation projects by its sub-agencies. The District prioritizes its education programs 

as an essential conservation measure to enhance long-term reliability and growth. The 

District also focuses on public education and awareness as a necessary means to inform 

the public of efficient water use. The District has expanded into conservation research 

and increased coordination of funding for retail sub-agency sponsored projects.  

 

As discussed in Section 9.1.1, all of the District’s connections with its sub-agencies are 

fully metered. The District performs periodic calibration/testing and replacement/repairs 

of its meters to ensure meter accuracy.  

 

As discussed in Section 9.1.2, the District conducts public education and outreach efforts 

to assist and support its sub-agencies such as hosting or co-hosting educational booths 

at outreach events. The District raises awareness about water conservation through 

support/partner with MWD on mass media water conservation campaigns, school 

education programs, informational booths at public events, newsletters, informative 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 9‐8 

websites, online tools, and newspaper articles. The District conducts tours and 

presentations to educate the public on water conservation and the significance of clean 

safe water. The District staff participates in Ag Day LA to educate and explain the 

relationship between clean water, water conservation and agriculture in the State of 

California. The District hosts Leadership Breakfasts to educate local officials, elected 

officials and the public regarding the importance to California water.  

 

As discussed in Section 9.1.3, the District employs two staff members to oversee all public 

outreach and coordination with the District’s sub-agencies, MWD, local schools, and the 

public to encourage conservation and promote/support public awareness and 

participation. The District plans to continue to provide water conservation program 

coordination and staffing support. 

 

As discussed in Section 9.1.4, the District has a tiered rate structure in delivering imported 

water to its sub-agencies. The Tier 1 and Tier 2 rates serve to promote water conservation 

and discourage excessive water use. Beginning Calendar Year 2020, the Districts rates 

for imported water were $1,068 per AF, under Tier 1, and $1,155 per AF, under Tier 2, a 

difference of $87 per AF. However, the District’s Tier 1 rates are currently less than 

MWD’s Tier 1 rates to promote conservation by avoiding the higher Tier 2 rates.  

 

Also, the District participates in MWD’s regional rebate program, the SoCal Water$mart 

Program, which is available to the District’s residential and commercial customers. 

 

As discussed in Section 9.1.5, the District prepares an annual “Strategic Plan” report 

which identifies the five-year capital improvement projects and costs necessary to operate 

the District’s facilities. 

 

As discussed in Section 9.1.6, the District participates in assistance programs to the retail 

sub-agencies that it serves. The District assists the sub-agencies in promoting 

conservation programs, water saving devices, rebate programs, educational forums, and 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 9‐9 

other efforts to reduce water demand. The District provides financial incentives for water 

conservation through retrofit and rebate programs. The District also provides support 

through available staff assigned to direct conservation measures.  

 

 IMPLEMENTATION TO ACHIEVE WATER USE TARGETS 

 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10631. 

 
(F)(1)(A) For an urban retail water supplier, as defined in Section 10608.12, a narrative 
description that addresses the nature and extent of each water demand management 
measure implemented over the past five years. The narrative shall describe the water 
demand management measures that the supplier plans to implement to achieve its water 
use targets pursuant to Section 10608.20. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 
The Demand Management Measures implemented by the District are discussed in 

Section 9.1. Descriptions regarding the nature and extent of these Demand Management 

Measures implemented by the District over the past five years are discussed in Section 

9.3. The District will continue to implement these Demand Management Measures and 

other water conservation programs and work collaboratively with MWD to provide water 

conservation programs for its sub-agencies.   
 
 
 

 WATER USE OBJECTIVES (FUTURE REQUIREMENTS)  

 

The District is not a retail water agency and is not required to comply with the Water Use 

Objectives. However, the District will continue to implement the Demand Management 

Measures discussed in Section 9.1. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 10‐1 

CHAPTER 10  

PLAN ADOPTION, SUBMITTAL, AND IMPLEMENTATION 

 

LAY DESCRIPTION – CHAPTER 10 

 

PLAN ADOPTION, SUBMITTAL, AND IMPLEMENTATION 

 

Chapter 10 (Plan Adoption, Submittal, and Implementation) of the District’s 2020 Plan 

discusses and provides the following: 

 

 The steps the District has performed to adopt and submit its 2020 Plan are detailed 

 The steps the District has performed to adopt and submit its Water Shortage 

Contingency Plan are detailed 

 The District coordinated the preparation of its 2020 Plan with the Chino Basin 

Watermaster, Inland Empire Utilities Agency, Main San Gabriel Basin 

Watermaster, Six Basin Watermaster, and Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal 

Water District. The District notified these agencies at least sixty (60) days prior to 

the public hearing of the preparation of the 2020 Plan and invited these agencies 

to participate in the development of the 2020 Plan.  

 The District provided a notice of the public hearing to the same agencies regarding 

the time, date, and place of the public hearing. 

 The District published a newspaper notification of the public hearing, once a week 

for two successive weeks   

 The District conducted a public hearing to discuss and adopt the District’s 2020 

Plan and District’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan. 

 Within 30 days of adoption, the District submitted the 2020 Plan and Water 

Shortage Contingency Plan to the California Department of Water Resources. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 10‐2 

 Within 30 days of adoption, the District submitted all data tables associated with 

the 2020 Plan to the California Department of Water Resources. 

 Within 30 days of adoption, the District submitted a copy of the 2020 Plan to the 

State of California Library.  

 Within 30 days of adoption, the District submitted a copy of the 2020 Plan (and 

Water Shortage Contingency Plan) to the County of Los Angeles Registrar / 

Recorders office and the Cities within its service area. 

 Within 30 days after submittal of the 2020 Plan to the California Department of 

Water Resources, the District made the 2020 Plan (including the Water Shortage 

Contingency Plan) available at the District’s Office and on the District’s website.  

 The steps the District will perform to amend the 2020 Plan and/or the Water 

Shortage Contingency Plan, if necessary, are provided.  

 

 

 PLAN ADOPTION, SUBMITTAL, AND IMPLEMENTATION 

 

The data provided in the District’s 2020 Plan and the Water Shortage Contingency Plan 

is provided on a FY basis through June 30, 2020 (as discussed in Section 2.5). 

 

 

 INCLUSION OF ALL 2020 DATA 

 

The data provided in the District’s 2020 Plan and the Water Shortage Contingency Plan 

is provided on a FY basis through June 30, 2020 (as discussed in Section 2.5). 

 

  

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 10‐3 

 NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 

The District’s public hearing notification process for its 2020 Plan and the Water Shortage 

Contingency Plan is discussed below. 

 

 NOTICE TO CITIES AND COUNTIES 

 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10621. 

 
(b) Every urban water supplier required to prepare a plan pursuant to this part shall, at 
least 60 days before the public hearing on the plan required by Section 10642, notify any 
city or county within which the supplier provides water supplies that the urban water 
supplier will be reviewing the plan and considering amendments or changes to the plan.  
 

CWC 10642. 
 
…The urban water supplier shall provide notice of the time and place of a hearing to any 
city or county within which the supplier provides water supplies. Notices by a local public 
agency pursuant to this section shall be provided pursuant to Chapter 17.5 (commencing 
with Section 7290) of Division 7 of Title 1 of the Government Code. A privately owned 
water supplier shall provide an equivalent notice within its service area… 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

10.2.1.1 60 DAY NOTIFICATION 

 

As discussed in Section 2.6.2., the District coordinated the preparation of the 2020 Plan 

with Chino Basin Watermaster, Inland Empire Utilities Agency, Main San Gabriel Basin 

Watermaster, Six Basin Watermaster, and Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water 

District. The District notified these agencies, as well as the cities and county within which 

the District provides water supplies, at least sixty (60) days prior to the public hearing of 

the preparation of the 2020 Plan and invited them to participate in the development of the 

Plan. A copy of the notification letters sent to these agencies is provided in Appendix D.  

 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 10‐4 

10.2.1.2 NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 

The District provided a notice of the public hearing to the Chino Basin Watermaster, Inland 

Empire Utilities Agency, Main San Gabriel Basin Watermaster, Six Basin Watermaster, 

and Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District. The District notified these 

agencies, as well as the cities and county within which the District provides water 

supplies. The notice includes the time and place of the public hearing. To ensure that the 

Plan and the Water Shortage Contingency Plan were available for review, the District 

placed a copy of the draft 2020 Plan and the draft Water Shortage Contingency Plan for 

review on its website.  Copies of the notice of the public hearing are provided in Appendix 

D.   

 

10.2.1.3 SUBMITTAL TABLES 

Table 10-1 summarizes the agencies which were provided notifications by the District. 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 10‐5 

Table 10-1 Notification to Cities and Counties 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 10‐6 

 NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 

 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10642. 

 
…Prior to adopting either, the urban water supplier shall make both the plan and the 
water shortage contingency plan available for public inspection and shall hold a public 
hearing or hearings thereon. Prior to any of these hearings, notice of the time and place 
of the hearing shall be published within the jurisdiction of the publicly owned water 
supplier pursuant to Section 6066 of the Government Code. The urban water supplier 
shall provide notice of the time and place of a hearing to any city or county within which 
the supplier provides water supplies. 
 

Government Code 6066. 
 
Publication of notice pursuant to this section shall be once a week for two successive 
weeks. Two publications in a newspaper published once a week or oftener, with at least 
five days intervening between the respective publication dates not counting such 
publication dates, are sufficient. The period of notice commences upon the first day of 
publication and terminates at the end of the fourteenth day, including therein the first day. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

The District encouraged the active involvement of the population within its service area 

prior to and during the preparation of the Plan. Pursuant to Section 6066 of the 

Government Code, the District published a notice of public hearing in the newspaper 

during the weeks of May 31, 2021 and June 7, 2021.  A notice of public hearing was also 

provided to the District’s office and was posted throughout the District’s service area and 

on the District’s website.  A copy of the published notice is provided in Appendix D. To 

ensure the draft 2020 Plan and the draft Water Shortage Contingency Plan were available 

for review, the District placed a copy at the District’s Office and made a copy available for 

review on its website.   

 

  

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 10‐7 

 PUBLIC HEARING AND ADOPTION 

 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10642. 

 
…Prior to adopting either, the urban water supplier shall make both the plan and the 
water shortage contingency plan available for public inspection and shall hold a public 
hearing or hearings thereon.  

 
CWC 10608.26. 

 
(a) In complying with this part, an urban retail water supplier shall conduct at least one 
public hearing to accomplish all of the following: 
 
(1) Allow community input regarding the urban retail water supplier’s implementation plan 
for complying with this part. 
 
(2) Consider the economic impacts of the urban retail water supplier’s implementation 
plan for complying with this part. 
 
(3) Adopt a method, pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 10608.20, for determining its 
urban water use target. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 PUBLIC HEARING 

 

Prior to adopting the draft 2020 Plan and the draft Water Shortage Contingency Plan, the 

District held a public hearing on June 16, 2021 which included input from the community 

regarding the District’s draft 2020 Plan and the draft Water Shortage Contingency Plan. 

In addition, the District considered the economic impacts measures described in Section 

8.8. 

 

  

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 10‐8 

 ADOPTION 

 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10642. 

 
… After the hearing or hearings, the plan or water shortage contingency plan shall be 
adopted as prepared or as modified after the hearing or hearings. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Following the public hearing, the District adopted both the draft 2020 Plan and the draft 

Water Shortage Contingency Plan (included in Chapter 8). A copy of the resolution 

adopting the 2020 Plan and the Water Shortage Contingency Plan is provided in 

Appendix L.   

 

 
 PLAN SUBMITTAL 

 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10621. 

 
(e) Each urban water supplier shall update and submit its 2020 plan to the department 
by July 1, 2021. 

 
CWC 10644. 

 
(a) (1) An urban water supplier shall submit to the department, the California State 
Library, and any city or county within which the supplier provides water supplies a copy 
of its plan no later than 30 days after adoption. 
 

CWC 10635. 
 
(c) The urban water supplier shall provide that portion of its urban water management 
plan prepared pursuant to this article to any city or county within which it provides water 
supplies no later than 60 days after the submission of its urban water management plan. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

The District submittal process for its 2020 Plan and the Water Shortage Contingency Plan 

is discussed below. 

 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 10‐9 

 

 SUBMITTING A UWMP AND WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY 

PLAN TO DWR 

 

Within 30 days of adoption of the 2020 Plan by the District’s Board of Directors, the District 

submitted the adopted 2020 Plan (including the Water Shortage Contingency Plan) to 

DWR. The 2020 Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan were submitted through 

DWR’s “Water Use Efficiency (WUE) Data Portal” website. 

 

DWR developed a checklist which was used by the District to assist DWR with its 

determination that the District’s 2020 Plan has addressed the requirements of the 

California Water Code. The District has completed the DWR checklist by indicating where 

the required CWC elements can be found within the District’s 2020 Plan (See Appendix 

C). 

 

 ELECTRONIC DATA SUBMITTAL 

 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10644. 

 
(a)(2) The plan, or amendments to the plan, submitted to the department …shall be 
submitted electronically and shall include any standardized forms, tables, or displays 
specified by the department. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Within 30 days of adoption of the 2020 Plan, the District submitted all data tables 

associated with the 2020 Plan through DWR’s “Water Use Efficiency Data Portal” website. 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 10‐10 

 SUBMITTING A UWMP, INCLUDING WSCP, TO THE CALIFORNIA 

STATE LIBRARY 

  

Within 30 days of adoption of the 2020 Plan by the District’s Board of Directors, a copy 

(CD or hardcopy) of the 2020 Plan was submitted to the State of California Library. A 

copy of the letter to the State Library will be maintained in the District’s file. The 2020 Plan 

will be mailed to the following address if sent by regular mail: 

 

California State Library 

Government Publications Section 

Attention: Coordinator, Urban Water Management Plans 

P.O. Box 942837 

Sacramento, CA 94237-0001 

 

 

The 2020 Plan will be mailed to the following address if sent by courier or overnight 

carrier: 

 

California State Library 

Government Publications Section 

Attention: Coordinator, Urban Water Management Plans 

900 N Street 

Sacramento, CA 95814 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 10‐11 

 SUBMITTING A UWMP TO CITIES AND COUNTIES 

 

Within 30 days of adoption of the 2020 Plan (including the Water Shortage Contingency 

Plan) by the District’s Board of Directors, a copy of the 2020 Plan was submitted to the 

County of Los Angeles Registrar / Recorders office and the Cities within its service area. 

A copy of the letter to the County of Los Angeles will be maintained in the District’s file. 

 
 

 PUBLIC AVAILABILITY 

 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10645. 

 
(a) Not later than 30 days after filing a copy of its plan with the department, the urban 
water supplier and the department shall make the plan available for public review during 
normal business hours. 
 
(b) Not later than 30 days after filing a copy of its water shortage contingency plan with 
the department, the urban water supplier and the department shall make the plan 
available for public review during normal business hours. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Within 30 days after submittal of the 2020 Plan to DWR, the District made the 2020 Plan 

(including the Water Shortage Contingency Plan) available at the District’s Office during 

normal business hours and on the District’s website. 

 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 10‐12 

NOTIFICATION TO PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION 

 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10621. 

 
(c) An urban water supplier regulated by the Public Utilities Commission shall include its 
most recent plan and water shortage contingency plan as part of the supplier’s general 
rate case filings. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

The District is not regulated by the California Public Utilities Commission. 

 
 

 AMENDING AN ADOPTED UWMP OR WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY 

PLAN 

 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
CWC 10621. 

 
(d)The amendments to, or changes in, the plan shall be adopted and filed in the manner 
set forth in Article 3 (commencing with Section 10640). 
 

CWC 10644. 
 
(a)(1) An urban water supplier shall submit to the department, the California State 
Library, and any city or county within which the supplier provides water supplies a copy 
of its plan no later than 30 days after adoption. Copies of amendments or changes to the 
plans shall be submitted to the department, the California State Library, and any city or 
county within which the supplier provides water supplies within 30 days after adoption. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 
The District’s amendment process for its 2020 Plan is discussed below. 
 

 
 AMENDING A UWMP 

 
 

If the District amends the adopted 2020 Plan, the amended Plan will undergo adoption 

by the District’s governing board. Within 30 days of adoption, the amended Plan will then 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

  
 

 

T h r e e   V a l l e y s   M u n i c i p a l   W a t e r   D i s t r i c t Page 10‐13 

be submitted to DWR, the State of California Library, the County of Los Angeles Registrar 

/ Recorders office, and the District’s Office. 

 
 

 AMENDING A WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN 

 
______________________________________________________________________ 

 
CWC 10644. 

 
(b) If an urban water supplier revises its water shortage contingency plan, the supplier 
shall submit to the department a copy of its water shortage contingency plan prepared 
pursuant to subdivision (a) of Section 10632 no later than 30 days after adoption, in 
accordance with protocols for submission and using electronic reporting tools developed 
by the department. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

If the District amends the adopted 2020 Plan (including the Water Shortage Contingency 

Plan), the amended Plan (and Water Shortage Contingency Plan) will undergo adoption 

by the District’s governing board. Within 30 days of adoption, the amended Plan (and 

Water Shortage Contingency Plan) will then be submitted to DWR, the State of California 

Library, the County of Los Angeles Registrar / Recorders office, and the cities within its 

service area. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



Service Layer Credits: Sources: Esri, HERE,
Garmin, USGS, Intermap, INCREMENT P,
NRCan, Esri Japan, METI, Esri China (Hong
Kong), Esri Korea, Esri (Thailand), NGCC, (c)
OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User
Community

Do
cum

ent
 Pa

th:
 J:\

jn2
74

1\
TV

MW
D_

Ser
vic

eA
rea

.m
xd

THREE VALLEYS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
WATER SERVICE AREA

Ü

0 1 2
Miles

FIGURE 1Item 8.E - Exhibit C



Service Layer Credits: Sources: Esri, HERE,
Garmin, USGS, Intermap, INCREMENT P,
NRCan, Esri Japan, METI, Esri China (Hong
Kong), Esri Korea, Esri (Thailand), NGCC, (c)
OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User
Community Unincorporated

Unincorporated

Unincorporated

Unincorporated

Unincorporated

Azusa

Baldwin
Park

Bradbury

Claremont

Covina

Covina

Diamond Bar

Duarte

Glendora

Industry

Irwindale

La Habra
Heights

La Puente

La
Puente

La Verne

Monrovia

Pomona

San Dimas

Walnut

West Covina

Brea

Chino

Chino

Chino Hills

Montclair

Ontario

Upland

Fullerton

La Habra

Placentia Yorba LindaYorba Linda

Rowland
Heights

South San
Jose Hills

Valinda

Vincent
Charter Oak

Citrus

Hacienda
Heights

San
Antonio
Heights

Do
cum

ent
 Pa

th:
 J:\

jn2
74

1\
TV

MW
D_

Ser
vic

eA
rea

_C
ity

Bo
un

dar
ies

.m
xd

THREE VALLEYS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
SERVICE AREA

AND CITY BOUNDARIES

Ü

0 1 2
Miles

FIGURE 2

City Boundary
Water System Boundary

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



Po
mo

na
 Ba

sin

Up
pe

r C
lar

em
on

t
He

igh
ts 

Ba
sin

Ca
ny

on
Ba

sin

Ga
ne

sh
a

Ba
sin

Liv
e O

ak
Ba

sin
Lo

we
r

Cl
ar

em
on

t
He

igh
ts 

Ba
sin

UV39

UV66

UV57

UV83

UV71

UV72

UV60

§̈ ¦60
5

§̈ ¦15

§̈ ¦10

§̈ ¦21
0

Do
cum

ent
 Pa

th:
 J:\

jn2
74

1\
TV

MW
D_

Six
Ba

sin
s_L

oca
tio

n.m
xd

TH
RE

E 
VA

LL
EY

S M
UN

IC
IP

AL
 W

AT
ER

 D
IST

RI
CT

SIX
 BA

SI
NS

 LO
CA

TI
ON

Ü
0

1
2 Mi

les

FIGURE 3

Ba
sin

 Bo
un

dar
y

Wa
ter

 Sy
ste

m 
Bo

un
dar

y

Item 8.E - Exhibit C



APPENDIX A 

DWR STANDARDIZED TABLES 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



 

   

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



 

   

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



 

   

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



 

   

2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045(opt)

513,623 523,167 532,888 542,790 552,204 561,782

Submittal Table 3‐1 Wholesale: Population ‐ Current and Projected

Population 

Served

NOTES: The 2020 population and the population projected through 2045 were obtained 

from data in SCAG's 2020‐2045 Regional Transportation Plan (See Section 3.4.1 and 

Section 5.4.1).

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



 

   

Use Type                                                   

Drop down list

May select each use multiple times

These are the only use types that will be 

recognized by the WUE data online submittal 

tool 

Additional Description

(as needed)

Level of 

Treatment When 

Delivered
Drop down l i s t

Volume
2

Sales to other agencies Drinking Water 60,031

Groundwater recharge Raw Water 14,523

Other Potable Local Projects Drinking Water 2,169

76,723

Submittal Table 4‐1 Wholesale: Demands for Potable and Non‐Potable1 Water ‐ Actual

2020 Actual

NOTES:

TOTAL

Add additional rows as needed

1
   Recycled water demands are NOT reported in this table. Recycled water demands are reported in Table 6‐4.                        

2
  Units of measure (AF, CCF, MG) must remain consistent throughout the UWMP as reported in Table 2‐3.

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



 

   

Use Type 

Drop down list

May select each use multiple times

These are the only Use Types  that wi l l  be 

recognized by the WUEdata  onl ine submitta l  

tool .

2025 2030 2035 2040
2045

(opt)

Sales to other agencies 45,394 45,304 45,194 45,010 44,806

Groundwater recharge 10,982 10,960 10,934 10,889 10,840

Other Potable 1,640 1,637 1,633 1,626 1,619

58,016 57,901 57,761 57,525 57,265

Add addi tiona l  rows  as  needed

Submittal Table 4‐2 Wholesale: Use for Potable and Raw Water 1 ‐ Projected

Additional Description       

(as needed)

Projected Water Use
 2                                                            

Report To the Extent that Records  are Ava i lable

NOTES:

TOTAL
1 
  Recycled water demands are NOT reported in this table. Recycled water demands are reported in Table 6‐4.                                                                       

2  

Units of measure (AF, CCF, MG) must remain consistent throughout the UWMP as reported in Table 2‐3.

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



 

   

2020 2025 2030 2035 2040
2045 

(opt)

Potable and Raw Water
From Tables 4‐1W and 4‐2W

76,723 58,016 57,901 57,761 57,525 57,265

Recycled Water Demand*
From Table 6‐4W

0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL WATER DEMAND 76,723 58,016 57,901 57,761 57,525 57,265

Submittal Table 4‐3 Wholesale: Total Water Use (Potable and Non‐Potable)

NOTES: 

*Recycled water demand fields will be blank until Table 6‐4 is complete. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



 

   

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



 

 

 

 

 

   

   

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



 

 

 

 

   

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



 

   

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



 

 

 

 

   

   

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



 

   

Water Supply

Drop down list

May use each category multiple 

times .These are the only water 

supply categories  that wi l l  be 

recognized by the WUEdata  

onl ine submitta l  tool  

Actual Volume* 
Water Quality
Drop Down Li s t

Total Right or 

Safe Yield* 

(optional) 

Groundwater (not 

desalinated)
Six Basins 1,200 Drinking Water

Purchased or Imported  

Water
MWD 73,354 Drinking Water

Other Local Projects 2,169 Drinking Water

76,723 0

NOTES: 

Total

Add additional rows as needed

*Units of measure (AF, CCF, MG)  must remain consistent throughout the UWMP as reported in Table 2‐3. 

Submittal Table 6‐8  Wholesale: Water Supplies — Actual

Additional Detail on 

Water Supply

2020

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



 

 

 

 

   

   

Drop down list

May use each category 

multiple times .  These 

are the only water supply 

categories  that wi l l  be 

recognized by the 

WUEdata  onl ine 

submitta l  tool  

Reasonably 

Available 

Volume

Total Right or 

Safe Yield 

(optional) 

Reasonably 

Available 

Volume

Total Right or 

Safe Yield 

(optional) 

Reasonably 

Available 

Volume

Total Right or 

Safe Yield 

(optional) 

Reasonably 

Available 

Volume

Total Right or 

Safe Yield 

(optional) 

Reasonably 

Available 

Volume

Total Right or 

Safe Yield 

(optional) 

Groundwater (not 

desalinated) Six Basins 2,500 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000

Purchased or 

Imported  Water MWD 52,516 51,401 51,261 51,025 50,765

Other Local Projects 3,000 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500

58,016 0 57,901 0 57,761 0 57,525 0 57,265 0

NOTES:

Submittal Table 6‐9  Wholesale: Water Supplies — Projected

Additional Detail on 

Water Supply

Projected Water Supply*

Report To the Extent Practicable

2025 2030 2035 2040 2045 (opt)

Total

Add additional rows as needed

Water Supply           

*Units of measure (AF, CCF, MG) must remain consistent throughout the UWMP as reported in Table 2‐3. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



 

   

   

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



 

 

 

   

  2025 2030 2035 2040 2045 (Opt)

Supply totals

(autofill from Table 6‐9)
58,016 57,901 57,761 57,525 57,265

Demand totals

(autofill fm Table 4‐3)
58,016 57,901 57,761 57,525 57,265

Difference 0  0  0  0  0 

Submittal Table 7‐2 Wholesale: Normal Year Supply and Demand Comparison 

NOTES:

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

   

  2025 2030 2035 2040 2045 (Opt)

Supply totals*
57,344 57,230 57,091 56,859 56,601

Demand totals*
57,344 57,230 57,091 56,859 56,601

Difference 0  0  0  0  0 

Submittal Table 7‐3 Wholesale: Single Dry Year Supply and Demand 

Comparison

*Units of measure (AF, CCF, MG) must remain consistent throughout the UWMP as reported in 

Table 2‐3. 

NOTES:

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



 

 

 

  2025* 2030* 2035* 2040*
2045* 

(Opt)

Supply totals 54,248 54,140 54,009 53,789 53,545

Demand totals 54,248 54,140 54,009 53,789 53,545

Difference 0  0  0  0  0 

Supply totals 59,906 59,787 59,642 59,399 59,130

Demand totals 59,906 59,787 59,642 59,399 59,130

Difference 0  0  0  0  0 

Supply totals 62,156 62,032 61,882 61,630 61,350

Demand totals 62,156 62,032 61,882 61,630 61,350

Difference 0  0  0  0  0 

Supply totals 52,212 52,108 51,981 51,770 51,535

Demand totals 52,212 52,108 51,981 51,770 51,535

Difference 0  0  0  0  0 

Supply totals 48,122 48,026 47,910 47,715 47,498

Demand totals 48,122 48,026 47,910 47,715 47,498

Difference 0  0  0  0  0 

Supply totals

Demand totals

Difference 0  0  0  0  0 

NOTES:

Fourth year 

Fifth year 

Sixth year 

(optional) 

*Units of measure (AF, CCF, MG) must remain consistent throughout the UWMP as reported in Table 2‐3. 

Submittal Table 7‐4 Wholesale: Multiple Dry Years Supply and Demand Comparison 

First year 

Second year 

Third year 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



 

2021 Total

Total Water Use  68,242

Total Supplies  64,789

Surplus/Shortfall w/o WSCP Action (3,453)

WSCP ‐ supply augmentation benefit 0

WSCP ‐ use reduction savings benefit 3,453

Revised Surplus/(shortfall) 0

Resulting % Use Reduction from WSCP action 5%

2022 Total
Total Water Use  71,496

Total Supplies  71,546

Surplus/Shortfall w/o WSCP Action 50

WSCP ‐ supply augmentation benefit 0

WSCP ‐ use reduction savings benefit 0

Revised Surplus/(shortfall) 50

Resulting % Use Reduction from WSCP action 0%

2023 Total

Total Water Use  70,173

Total Supplies  74,233

Surplus/Shortfall w/o WSCP Action 4,060

WSCP ‐ supply augmentation benefit 0

WSCP ‐ use reduction savings benefit 0

Revised Surplus/(shortfall) 4,060

Resulting % Use Reduction from WSCP action 0%

2024 Total
Total Water Use  55,579

Total Supplies  62,357

Surplus/Shortfall w/o WSCP Action 6,778

WSCP ‐ supply augmentation benefit 0

WSCP ‐ use reduction savings benefit 0

Revised Surplus/(shortfall) 6,778

Resulting % Use Reduction from WSCP action 0%

2025 Total
Total Water Use  48,122

Total Supplies  57,472

Surplus/Shortfall w/o WSCP Action 9,350

WSCP ‐ supply augmentation benefit 0

WSCP ‐ use reduction savings benefit 0

Revised Surplus/(shortfall) 9,350

Resulting % Use Reduction from WSCP action 0%

Submittal Table 7‐5: Five‐Year Drought Risk Assessment Tables to 

address Water Code Section 10635(b)

Planned WSCP Actions (use reduction and supply augmentation)

Planned WSCP Actions (use reduction and supply augmentation)

Planned WSCP Actions (use reduction and supply augmentation)

Planned WSCP Actions (use reduction and supply augmentation)

Planned WSCP Actions (use reduction and supply augmentation)

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



 

 

 

Shortage 

Level 

Percent 

Shortage Range

Shortage Response Actions 

(Narrative description)

1 Up to 10%

Watering or irrigating of lawn, landscape or other vegetated area 

with potable water by a direct end user is limited to three days per 

week. All leaks, breaks, or other malfunctions in the direct end 

user’s plumbing or distribution system must be repaired within 

seventy‐two (72) hours of notification by the District unless other 

arrangements are made which will include a written plan to address 

the repairs.

2 Up to 20%

In addition to Shortage Level 1; Additional restrictions may be 

implemented as determined by the District, after notice to 

customers.

3 Up to 30%

In addition to Shortage Level 2; Additional restrictions may be 

implemented as determined by the District, after notice to 

customers.

4 Up to 40%

Watering or irrigating of lawn, landscape or other vegetated area 

with potable water by a direct end user is limited to two days per 

week. Filling or re‐filling ornamental lakes or ponds by a direct end 

user is prohibited, except to the extent needed to sustain aquatic 

life, provided that such animals are of significant value and have 

been actively managed within the water feature prior to declaration 

of a supply shortage level

5 Up to 50%

In addition to Shortage Level 2; Additional restrictions may be 

implemented as determined by the District, after notice to 

customers.

6 >50%

In addition to Shortage Level 5; watering or irrigating of lawn, 

landscape or other vegetated area with potable water by a direct end 

user is prohibited. All leaks, breaks, or other malfunctions in the 

direct end user’s plumbing or distribution system must be repaired 

within twenty four (24) hours of notification by the District unless 

other arrangements are made with the District which will include 

written plans that include a timeline of repairs.

NOTES:

Submittal Table 8‐1 

Water Shortage Contingency Plan Levels

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



 

 

 

 

Shortage

Level 

Demand Reduction Actions
Drop down list

These are the only categories that will be accepted by the 

WUEdata online submittal tool. Select those that apply.

How much is this going to reduce the 

shortage gap? Include units used (volume 

type or percentage)

Additional 

Explanation or 

Reference

(optional)

Penalty, Charge, 

or Other 

Enforcement? 
For Retail Suppliers Only 

Drop Down List

1
Landscape ‐ Limit landscape irrigation to specific 

days

Collective reduction from all Shortage 

Level 1 actions is up to 5,240 AF
Yes

1
Other ‐ Customers must repair leaks, breaks, and 

malfunctions in a timely manner

Collective reduction from all Shortage 

Level 1 actions is up to 5,240 AF
Yes

2 Other
Collective reduction from all Shortage 

Level 2 actions is up to 10,479 AF

All actions under 

Shortage Level 1
Yes

3 Other
Collective reduction from all Shortage 

Level 3 actions is up to 15,719 AF

All actions under 

Shortage Level 2
Yes

4 Other
Collective reduction from all Shortage 

Level 4 actions is up to 20,959 AF

All actions under 

Shortage Level 3
Yes

4
Water Features ‐ Restrict water use for decorative 

water features, such as fountains

Collective reduction from all Shortage 

Level 4 actions is up to 20,959 AF

prohibit filling or 

refilling

ornamental lakes or

ponds

Yes

4
Other ‐ Prohibit vehicle washing except at facilities 

using recycled or recirculating water

Collective reduction from all Shortage 

Level 4 actions is up to 20,959 AF
Yes

4 Other water feature or swimming pool restriction
Collective reduction from all Shortage 

Level 4 actions is up to 20,959 AF

prohibit intial filling or 

refilling of more than 

one foot of residential 

swimming pools or 

outdoor spas

5 Other
Collective reduction from all Shortage 

Level 5 actions is up to 26,198 AF

All actions under 

Shortage Level 4
Yes

6 Other
Collective reduction from all Shortage 

Level 6 actions is greater than 26,198 AF

All actions under 

Shortage Level 5

6 Landscape ‐ Prohibit all landscape irrigation
Collective reduction from all Shortage 

Level 6 actions is greater than 26,198 AF

6 Other
Collective reduction from all Shortage 

Level 6 actions is greater than 26,198 AF

No new potable water 

service

6
Implement or Modify Drought Rate Structure or 

Surcharge

Collective reduction from all Shortage 

Level 6 actions is greater than 26,198 AF

6 Other
Collective reduction from all Shortage 

Level 6 actions is greater than 26,198 AF

Direct end users that 

use landscape 

irrigation systems to 

irrigate must use 

landscape irrigation 

systems with rain 

sensors that 

automatically shut off 

such systems during 

periods of rain

Yes

Submittal Table 8‐2: Demand Reduction Actions

NOTES:

Add additional rows as needed

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Shortage Level

Supply Augmentation Methods and 

Other Actions by Water Supplier

 Drop down list

 These are the only categories that will be 

accepted by the WUEdata online submittal tool 

How much is this going to reduce 

the shortage gap? Include units 

used (volume type or percentage)

Additional Explanation or Reference 

(optional)

1 Transfers Not applicable (see Notes)

2 Transfers Not applicable (see Notes)

3 Transfers Not applicable (see Notes)

4 Transfers Not applicable (see Notes)

5 Transfers Not applicable (see Notes)

6 Transfers Not applicable (see Notes)

Submittal Table 8‐3: Supply Augmentation and Other Actions

Add additional rows as needed

NOTES: The District is a wholesale water supplier that provides treated imported water from the State Water Project through MWD to 

its sub‐agencies. The District does not anticipate augmenting water supplies. However, the District’s sub‐ agencies will consider 

increased production from the Main Basin, Chino Basin, and or Six Basins (through potential transfer of water rights) using existing 

facilities to address increased demands. As noted on Table 8‐2, the District plans to implement demand reduction measures in the 

event water supplies from existing sources are not sufficient to meet anticipated demands.

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



 
APPENDIX B 

 
 

DEMONSTRATION OF REDUCED IMPORTED WATER RELIANCE 
 

 
  

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



DEMONSTRATION OF CONSISTENCY WITH THE DELTA PLAN FOR 

PARTICIPANTS IN COVERED ACTIONS 

(FY 2014-2015 THROUGH FY 2044-45) 

THREE VALLEYS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

 

Introduction 

 

Pursuant to the California Department of Water Resources (DWR), an urban water 

supplier that anticipates participating in or receiving water from a proposed project (or 

“covered action”) such as a multi-year water transfer, conveyance facility, or new 

diversion that involves transferring water through, exporting water from, or using water in 

the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta (Delta) should provide information in their 2015 and 

2020 Urban Water Management Plans (UWMPs) for use in demonstrating consistency 

with Delta Plan Policy WR P1, “Reduce Reliance on the Delta Through Improved 

Regional Water Self-Reliance”. In addition, pursuant to California Code of Regulations, 

Title 23, § 5003: 

 

(c)(1) Water suppliers that have done all of the following are contributing to reduced 
reliance on the Delta and improved regional self-reliance and are therefore consistent with 
this policy: 
 

(A) Completed a current Urban or Agricultural Water Management Plan (Plan) 
which has been reviewed by the California Department of Water Resources for 
compliance with the applicable requirements of Water Code Division 6, Parts 2.55, 
2.6, and 2.8; 

 
(B) Identified, evaluated, and commenced implementation, consistent with the 
implementation schedule set forth in the Plan, of all programs and projects 
included in the Plan that are locally cost effective and technically feasible which 
reduce reliance on the Delta; and 

 
(C) Included in the Plan, commencing in 2015, the expected outcome for 
measurable reduction in Delta reliance and improvement in regional self-reliance. 
The expected outcome for measurable reduction in Delta reliance and 
improvement in regional self-reliance shall be reported in the Plan as the reduction 
in the amount of water used, or in the percentage of water used, from the Delta 
watershed. For the purposes of reporting, water efficiency is considered a new 
source of water supply, consistent with Water Code section 1011(a). 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



The District is member agency of the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California 

(MWD). As noted in MWD’s document entitled “Infeasibility of Accounting Supplies from 

the Delta Watershed for Metropolitan’s Member Agencies and their Customers” (which is 

included in MWD’s Regional 2020 UWMP and is provided as Attachment 1 below), “... 

Metropolitan’s service area, as a whole, reduces reliance on the Delta through 

investments in non-Delta water supplies, local water supplies, and regional and local 

demand management measures.  Metropolitan’s member agencies coordinate reliance 

on the Delta through their membership in Metropolitan, a regional cooperative providing 

wholesale water service to its 26 member agencies. Accordingly, regional reliance on the 

Delta can only be measured regionally—not by individual Metropolitan member agencies 

and not by the customers of those member agencies....”  

 

In addition, MWD’s 2020 Regional UWMP indicates “...in accordance with UMWP 

requirements, Metropolitan’s member agencies and their customers (many of them, retail 

agencies) also report demands and supplies for their service areas in their respective 

UWMPs. The data reported by those agencies are not additive to the regional totals 

shown in Metropolitan’s UWMP; rather, their reporting represents subtotals of the regional 

total and should be considered as such for the purposes of determining reduced reliance 

on the Delta…While the demands that Metropolitan’s member agencies and their 

customers report in their UWMPs are a good reflection of the demands in their respective 

service areas, they do not adequately represent each water supplier’s contributions to 

reduced reliance on the Delta. In order to calculate and report their reliance on water 

supplies from the Delta watershed, water suppliers that receive water from the Delta 

through other regional or wholesale water suppliers would need to determine the amount 

of Delta water that they receive from the regional or wholesale supplier. Two specific 

pieces of information are needed to accomplish this: first is the quantity of demands on 

the regional or wholesale water supplier that accurately reflect a supplier’s contributions 

to reduced reliance on the Delta, and second is the quantity of a supplier’s demands on 

the regional or wholesale water supplier that are met by supplies from the Delta 

watershed…For water suppliers that make investments in regional projects or programs 

it may be infeasible to quantify their demands on the regional or wholesale water supplier 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



in a way that accurately reflects their individual contributions to reduced reliance on the 

Delta.” Nonetheless, the District has taken proactive measures to help reduce regional 

reliance on imported water supplies and is discussed in the following sections. 

 

Reduced Reliance Calculation Tables 

 

Pursuant to DWR guidance, Tables C-1 through C-4 were prepared to show the potential 

reduction of reliance on imported water supplies for the District. The District has used 

these tables to demonstrate its reduced regional reliance on imported water supplies, but 

not specifically Delta Watershed supplies. For each of the tables, a “Baseline year” was 

selected. Water demands during subsequent years (from 2015 through 2045 in five-year 

increments) were compared to water demands during the Baseline year. Table C-1 

considers the population and service area water demands, and a demand in gallons per 

capita per day (GPCD) water use rate was calculated for each of the years following the 

Baseline year. The calculated reduction in GPCD from the Baseline year was then 

translated to an estimated amount of water saved as a result of water conservation 

measures. Table C-2 references the estimated amount of water saved from Table C-1 

and shows the District’s water demand without water use efficiency in effect. 

 

A method of showing reduced regional reliance on imported water supplies is to show 

increased regional self-reliance. Table C-3 lists water supply sources that contribute to 

regional self-reliance, including water use efficiency (from Table C-1 and C-2), recycled 

water use, and groundwater recharge activities. Regional self-reliance is expressed both 

in terms of acre feet (AF) and as a percentage. 

 

The calculation of reduced regional reliance on imported water supplies is shown on 

Table C-4. Table C-4 also shows the percent change in imported water supplies relative 

to the District’s total supply. A negative percent change of imported water supplies 

indicates the District has reduced regional reliance on imported water supplies. 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Since the Baseline year, the District has decreased its reduced regional reliance on 

imported water supplies in 2015, 2020, and anticipates doing so through 2045. 

 

The District has reduced its reliance on imported water supplies in up to two separate 

categories, as follows: 

 The collective demand in GPCD from its sub-agencies for the "Baseline year" was 

compared to the GPCD in subsequent years (from FY 2014-15 through FY 2044-

45, in five-year increments). The reduced GPCD multiplied by the collective 

population within the area served by the District in these subsequent years is 

indicative of the potential reduced regional reliance on imported water supplies and 

is included in Table C-1. 

 The District is involved in a regional program to deliver recycled water to the San 

Gabriel Valley to replenish the Main San Gabriel Basin. 

 

These categories of reduced regional reliance on imported water supplies are discussed 

below. The sum of the reduced regional reliance on imported water demand resulting 

from these categories is reflected on Table C-3 and Table C-4, respectively, and is 

reflective of the District’s overall reduced reliance. 

 

 

 

Reduced GPCD 

 

Section 6.2.2 of this 2020 Plan describes the management of the Main Basin, Puente 

Basin, Six Basins and Spadra Basin. To the extent the District’s sub-agencies historically 

(baseline during FY 2008-09) has produced groundwater in excess of their water rights, 

they have paid assessments to the applicable Watermaster which were then used to 

purchase untreated imported water from the Metropolitan Water District of Southern 

California. The untreated imported water subsequently is delivered to replenish the 

applicable groundwater basin.  

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



The 2020 UWMPs for the District’s sub-agencies describe the Demand Management 

Measures (DMMs) which those agencies have implemented to reduce the amount of 

water used. In addition, Chapter 6 describes the groundwater basin management 

measures implemented by the various groundwater basin management agencies.   These 

actions translate to a reduction in the GPCD usage rate by its sub-agencies which are 

described in their respective 2020 UWMPs regarding SB X7-7 water use targets. These 

actions directly impact total water demands from the sub-agencies, and consequently, 

the quantity of imported water supplies. Absent the proactive measures taken by the 

District’s sub-agencies, it is anticipated there may have been a greater demand on 

imported water. 

 

Pursuant to DWR guidance, reduced regional reliance on imported water supplies can be 

demonstrated by first selecting a “Baseline” water demand, represented by total potable 

water demands from its sub-agencies during FY 2008-09. Table C-1 summarizes the 

“Baseline” water usage by the District in FY 2008-09 (assuming demand reduction efforts 

had not been implemented); actual water usage in 2015 and 2020; and projected water 

usage through 2045 in five-year increments. Table C-2 demonstrates that if water 

conservation measures had not been implemented by the District’s sub-agencies there 

may have been a greater reliance on untreated and/or imported water supplies during 

subsequent years as compared to the Baseline year.  As discussed below, and shown in 

Table C-1, the reduced water demands have resulted in reduced regional reliance on 

imported water supplies as compared to the Baseline year. 

 

The District’s potable water demand from its sub-agencies of 77,704 AF during FY 2008-

09, along with the corresponding service area population of approximately 503,000, were 

used to determine the Baseline GPCD. Subsequently, the actual demands from its sub-

agencies for FY 2014-15 and FY 2019-20 were compared to the calculated population to 

obtain the recent GPCD which includes the water conservations measures which have 

been implemented (those demand management measures are described in Chapter 9). 

The “Water Supplies Contributing to Regional Self-Reliance" are also provided in Table 

C-3. The differences between the Baseline GPCD and the FY 2014-15 and FY 2019-20 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



GPCDs are effectively considered a demonstration of the reduced regional reliance on 

imported water supplies with the understanding that any potential increased demand by 

the District’s sub-agencies resulting from increased population could have been required 

from imported water supplies, absent the District’s new water supplies which contribute 

to self-reliance. A similar methodology is used for the projected potable water demands 

from its sub-agencies (2020 UWMP Table 4-3) and service area populations (2020 

UWMP Table 3-1).  

 

Recycled Water for Groundwater Replenishment 

 

In addition to the historical actions the District’s sub-agencies has taken in conjunction 

with groundwater management agencies, the District is involved in a regional program to 

deliver recycled water to the San Gabriel Valley to replenish the Main San Gabriel Basin. 

The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California is developing its “Regional 

Recycled Water Program” (RRWP). MWD is partnering with the Los Angeles County 

Sanitation Districts (LACSD) to investigate the viability of providing up to 150 million 

gallons per day (MGD) (approximately 168,000 AFY) of advanced treated wastewater 

from LACSD’s Joint Water Pollution Control Plant located in Carson, California (Carson 

Plant).  The RRWP would deliver purified water from the Carson Plant through up to 60 

miles of transmission pipelines to groundwater basins within MWD’s service area, 

including the Main Basin.  The purified water would be used in various locations within 

MWD’s service area for groundwater recharge, groundwater storage, and industrial 

facilities. In addition, purified water could potentially be treated further at two of MWD’s 

existing water treatment plants for direct potable reuse.  The locations of the proposed 

pipeline alignments are provided in the figure below. 

 

 

  

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Regional Recycled Water Program Location 

 
Source:  http://www.mwdh2o.com/DocSvcsPubs/rrwp/index.html  

 

 

MWD began construction of a $17 million small-scale demonstration plant (0.5 MGD) in 

late 2017 which was completed in October 2019. The results of the demonstration plant 

will allow MWD and others to determine whether expansion to a full-scale plant is 

beneficial.  Once approved the full-scale plant, associated pipelines and ancillary facilities 

would take approximately 11 years to construct at an estimated cost of over $3 billion.  

 

Pursuant to MWD’s “Regional Recycled Water Program Conceptual Planning Studies 

Report”, February 2019, the proposed RRWP would potentially provide 60,000 to 80,000 

AFY to replenish the Main Basin. A portion of the replenished recycled water may be 

designated as Replacement Water (see Section 6.2.2) and will offset all State Water 

Project water (on an AF for AF basis) which historically has been used to replenish the 

Main Basin groundwater supplies and is essential to sound basin management. 

Furthermore, some of the replenished recycled water may be used for general Basin 

benefit which will result in higher groundwater levels and potentially enable the Operating 

Safe Yield to be established at a higher amount than had no deliveries occurred. For the 

Main Basin, MWD has entered into a letter of intent with Upper District for at least 35,000 

AFY and with the District for at least 6,500 AFY, and will potentially provide up to 60,000 

to 80,000 AFY, collectively. 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Metropolitan Water District of Southern California 

 

In addition, as the wholesale provider, the Metropolitan Water District of Southern 

California has included a detailed discussion regarding measurable reduction in Delta 

reliance in Appendix 11 for 2015 and 2020 as part of its 2015 Regional Urban Water 

Management Plan and 2020 Regional Urban Water Management Plan, respectively, and  

is also included in Attachment 1 below. 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



R
e
d
u
ce
d
 R
e
lia

n
ce
 C
al
cu
la
ti
o
n
 ‐
 T
h
re
e
 V
al
le
ys
 M

u
n
ic
ip
al
 W

at
e
r 
D
is
tr
ic
t

Ta
b
le
 C
‐1
: 
O
p
ti
o
n
al
 C
al
cu
la
ti
o
n
 o
f 
W
at
e
r 
U
se
 E
ff
ic
ie
n
cy
 ‐
To

 b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 if
 W

at
e
r 
Su

p
p
lie

r 
d
o
e
s 
n
o
t 
sp
e
ci
fi
ca
lly
 e
st
im

at
e
 W

at
e
r 
U
se
 E
ff
ic
ie
n
cy
 a
s 
a 
su
p
p
ly

Se
rv
ic
e
 A
re
a 
W
at
e
r 
U
se
 E
ff
ic
ie
n
cy
 D
e
m
an

d
s

(A
cr
e
‐F
e
e
t)

B
as
e
lin

e
   
 

(2
0
0
9
)

2
0
1
5

2
0
2
0

2
0
2
5

2
0
3
0

2
0
3
5

2
0
4
0

2
0
4
5

(O
p
ti
o
n
al
)

Se
rv
ic
e 
A
re
a 
W
at
er
 D
em

an
d
s 
w
it
h
 W

at
er
 U
se
 E
ff
ic
ie
n
cy
 A
cc
o
u
n
te
d
 F
o
r

7
7
,7
0
4

   
   
   

6
2
,3
5
7

   
   
   

7
6
,7
2
3

   
   
   

5
8
,0
1
6

   
   
   

5
7
,9
0
1

   
   
   
 

5
7
,7
6
1

   
   
   
  

5
7
,5
2
5

   
   
   
  

5
7
,2
6
5

   
   
   
   
 

N
o
n
‐P
o
ta
b
le
 W

at
er
 D
em

an
d
s 

‐
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
   
   
   
   
   
  

‐
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
   
   
   
   
   
   

‐
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

P
o
ta
b
le
 S
er
vi
ce
 A
re
a 
D
em

an
d
s 
w
it
h
 W

at
er
 U
se
 E
ff
ic
ie
n
cy
 A
cc
o
u
n
te
d
 F
o
r

7
7
,7
0
4

   
   
   
  

6
2
,3
5
7

   
   
   
  

7
6
,7
2
3

   
   
   
  

5
8
,0
1
6

   
   
   
  

5
7
,9
0
1

   
   
   
  

5
7
,7
6
1

   
   
   
  

5
7
,5
2
5

   
   
   
  

5
7
,2
6
5

   
   
   
   
 

To
ta
l S
e
rv
ic
e
 A
re
a 
P
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n

B
as
e
lin

e
   
 

(2
0
0
9
)

2
0
1
5

2
0
2
0

2
0
2
5

2
0
3
0

2
0
3
5

2
0
4
0

2
0
4
5

(O
p
ti
o
n
al
)

Se
rv
ic
e 
A
re
a 
P
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n

5
0
3
,0
0
0

   
   
 

5
2
5
,0
0
0

   
   
 

5
1
3
,6
2
3

   
   
 

5
2
3
,1
6
7

   
   
 

5
3
2
,8
8
8

   
   
  

5
4
2
,7
9
0

   
   
   

5
5
2
,2
0
4

   
   
   

5
6
1
,7
8
2

   
   
   
  

W
at
e
r 
U
se
 E
ff
ic
ie
n
cy
 S
in
ce
 B
as
e
lin

e

(A
cr
e
‐F
e
e
t)

B
as
e
lin

e
   
 

(2
0
0
9
)

2
0
1
5

2
0
2
0

2
0
2
5

2
0
3
0

2
0
3
5

2
0
4
0

2
0
4
5

(O
p
ti
o
n
al
)

P
er
 C
ap

it
a 
W
at
er
 U
se
 (
G
P
C
D
)

1
3
8

   
   
   
   
   

1
0
6

   
   
   
   
   

1
3
3

   
   
   
   
   

9
9

   
   
   
   
   
  

9
7

   
   
   
   
   
   

9
5

   
   
   
   
   
   
 

9
3

   
   
   
   
   
   
 

9
1

   
   
   
   
   
   
   

C
h
an

ge
 in

 P
er
 C
ap

it
a 
W
at
er
 U
se
 f
ro
m
 B
as
el
in
e 
(G
P
C
D
)

(3
2
)

   
   
   
   
   
 

(5
)

   
   
   
   
   
   

(3
9
)

   
   
   
   
   
 

(4
1
)

   
   
   
   
   
  

(4
3
)

   
   
   
   
   
   

(4
5
)

   
   
   
   
   
   

(4
7
)

   
   
   
   
   
   
  

Es
ti
m
at
ed

 W
at
er
 U
se
 E
ff
ic
ie
n
cy
 S
in
ce
 B
as
el
in
e

1
8
,7
4
6

   
   
   
  

2
,6
2
3

   
   
   
   
 

2
2
,8
0
3

   
   
   
  

2
4
,4
2
0

   
   
   
  

2
6
,0
9
0

   
   
   
  

2
7
,7
8
0

   
   
   
  

2
9
,5
2
0

   
   
   
   
 

Ta
b
le
 C
‐2
: 
C
al
cu
la
ti
o
n
 o
f 
Se

rv
ic
e
 A
re
a 
W
at
e
r 
D
e
m
an

d
s 
W
it
h
o
u
t 
W
at
e
r 
U
se
 E
ff
ic
ie
n
cy
 

To
ta
l S
e
rv
ic
e
 A
re
a 
W
at
e
r 
D
e
m
an

d
s

(A
cr
e
‐F
e
e
t)

B
as
e
lin

e
   
 

(2
0
0
9
)

2
0
1
5

2
0
2
0

2
0
2
5

2
0
3
0

2
0
3
5

2
0
4
0

2
0
4
5

(O
p
ti
o
n
al
)

Se
rv
ic
e 
A
re
a 
W
at
er
 D
em

an
d
s 
w
it
h
 W

at
er
 U
se
 E
ff
ic
ie
n
cy
 A
cc
o
u
n
te
d
 F
o
r

7
7
,7
0
4

   
   
   

6
2
,3
5
7

   
   
   

7
6
,7
2
3

   
   
   

5
8
,0
1
6

   
   
   

5
7
,9
0
1

   
   
   
 

5
7
,7
6
1

   
   
   
  

5
7
,5
2
5

   
   
   
  

5
7
,2
6
5

   
   
   
   
 

R
ep

o
rt
ed

 W
at
er
 U
se
 E
ff
ic
ie
n
cy
 o
r 
Es
ti
m
at
ed

 W
at
er
 U
se
 E
ff
ic
ie
n
cy
 S
in
ce
 B
as
el
in
e

‐
   
   
   
   
   
 

1
8
,7
4
6

   
   
   

2
,6
2
3

   
   
   
  

2
2
,8
0
3

   
   
   

2
4
,4
2
0

   
   
   
 

2
6
,0
9
0

   
   
   
  

2
7
,7
8
0

   
   
   
  

2
9
,5
2
0

   
   
   
   
 

Se
rv
ic
e 
A
re
a 
W
at
er
 D
em

an
d
s 
w
it
h
o
u
t 
W
at
er
 U
se
 E
ff
ic
ie
n
cy
 A
cc
o
u
n
te
d
 F
o
r

7
7
,7
0
4

   
   
   
  

8
1
,1
0
3

   
   
   
  

7
9
,3
4
5

   
   
   
  

8
0
,8
2
0

   
   
   
  

8
2
,3
2
1

   
   
   
  

8
3
,8
5
1

   
   
   
  

8
5
,3
0
5

   
   
   
  

8
6
,7
8
5

   
   
   
   
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Ta
b
le
 C
‐3
: 
C
al
cu
la
ti
o
n
 o
f 
Su

p
p
lie

s 
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
n
g 
to
 R
e
gi
o
n
al
 S
e
lf
‐R
e
lia

n
ce

W
at
e
r 
Su

p
p
lie

s 
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
n
g 
to
 R
e
gi
o
n
al
 S
e
lf
‐R
e
lia

n
ce

(A
cr
e
‐F
e
e
t)

B
as
e
lin

e
   
 

(2
0
0
9
)

2
0
1
5

2
0
2
0

2
0
2
5

2
0
3
0

2
0
3
5

2
0
4
0

2
0
4
5

(O
p
ti
o
n
al
)

W
at
er
 U
se
 E
ff
ic
ie
n
cy

‐
   
   
   
   
   
 

1
8
,7
4
6

   
   
   

2
,6
2
3

   
   
   
  

2
2
,8
0
3

   
   
   

2
4
,4
2
0

   
   
   
 

2
6
,0
9
0

   
   
   
  

2
7
,7
8
0

   
   
   
  

2
9
,5
2
0

   
   
   
   
 

W
at
er
 R
ec
yc
lin

g

St
o
rm

w
at
er
 C
ap

tu
re
 a
n
d
 U
se

A
d
va
n
ce
d
 W

at
er
 T
ec
h
n
o
lo
gi
es

C
o
n
ju
n
ct
iv
e 
U
se
 P
ro
je
ct
s

Lo
ca
l a
n
d
 R
eg
io
n
al
 W

at
er
 S
u
p
p
ly
 a
n
d
 S
to
ra
ge
 P
ro
je
ct
s

O
th
er
 P
ro
gr
am

s 
an

d
 P
ro
je
ct
s 
th
e 
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
 R
eg
io
n
al
 S
el
f‐
R
el
ia
n
ce

W
at
er
 S
u
p
p
lie
s 
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
n
g 
to
 R
eg
io
n
al
 S
el
f‐
R
el
ia
n
ce

‐
   
   
   
   
   
   

1
8
,7
4
6

   
   
   
  

2
,6
2
3

   
   
   
   
 

2
2
,8
0
3

   
   
   
  

2
4
,4
2
0

   
   
   
  

2
6
,0
9
0

   
   
   
  

2
7
,7
8
0

   
   
   
  

2
9
,5
2
0

   
   
   
   
 

Se
rv
ic
e
 A
re
a 
W
at
e
r 
D
e
m
an

d
s 
w
it
h
o
u
t 
W
at
e
r 
U
se
 E
ff
ic
ie
n
cy

(A
cr
e
‐F
e
e
t)

B
as
e
lin

e
   
 

(2
0
0
9
)

2
0
1
5

2
0
2
0

2
0
2
5

2
0
3
0

2
0
3
5

2
0
4
0

2
0
4
5

(O
p
ti
o
n
al
)

Se
rv
ic
e 
A
re
a 
W
at
er
 D
em

an
d
s 
w
it
h
o
u
t 
W
at
er
 U
se
 E
ff
ic
ie
n
cy
 A
cc
o
u
n
te
d
 F
o
r

7
7
,7
0
4

   
   
   

8
1
,1
0
3

   
   
   

7
9
,3
4
5

   
   
   

8
0
,8
2
0

   
   
   

8
2
,3
2
1

   
   
   
 

8
3
,8
5
1

   
   
   
  

8
5
,3
0
5

   
   
   
  

8
6
,7
8
5

   
   
   
   
 

C
h
an

ge
 in

 R
e
gi
o
n
al
 S
e
lf
 R
e
lia

n
ce

(A
cr
e
‐F
e
e
t)

B
as
e
lin

e
   
 

(2
0
0
9
)

2
0
1
5

2
0
2
0

2
0
2
5

2
0
3
0

2
0
3
5

2
0
4
0

2
0
4
5

(O
p
ti
o
n
al
)

W
at
er
 S
u
p
p
lie
s 
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
n
g 
to
 R
eg
io
n
al
 S
el
f‐
R
el
ia
n
ce

‐
   
   
   
   
   
 

1
8
,7
4
6

   
   
   

2
,6
2
3

   
   
   
  

2
2
,8
0
3

   
   
   

2
4
,4
2
0

   
   
   
 

2
6
,0
9
0

   
   
   
  

2
7
,7
8
0

   
   
   
  

2
9
,5
2
0

   
   
   
   
 

C
h
an

ge
 in

 W
at
er
 S
u
p
p
lie
s 
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
n
g 
to
 R
eg
io
n
al
 S
el
f‐
R
el
ia
n
ce

1
8
,7
4
6

   
   
   

2
,6
2
3

   
   
   
  

2
2
,8
0
3

   
   
   

2
4
,4
2
0

   
   
   
 

2
6
,0
9
0

   
   
   
  

2
7
,7
8
0

   
   
   
  

2
9
,5
2
0

   
   
   
   
 

P
e
rc
e
n
t 
C
h
an

ge
 in

 R
e
gi
o
n
al
 S
e
lf
 R
e
lia

n
ce

(A
s 
P
e
rc
e
n
t 
o
f 
D
e
m
an

d
 w
/o
u
t 
W
U
E)

B
as
e
lin

e
   
 

(2
0
0
9
)

2
0
1
5

2
0
2
0

2
0
2
5

2
0
3
0

2
0
3
5

2
0
4
0

2
0
4
5

(O
p
ti
o
n
al
)

P
er
ce
n
t 
o
f 
W
at
er
 S
u
p
p
lie
s 
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
n
g 
to
 R
eg
io
n
al
 S
el
f‐
R
el
ia
n
ce

0
.0
%

2
3
.1
%

3
.3
%

2
8
.2
%

2
9
.7
%

3
1
.1
%

3
2
.6
%

3
4
.0
%

C
h
an

ge
 in

 P
er
ce
n
t 
o
f 
W
at
er
 S
u
p
p
lie
s 
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
n
g 
to
 R
eg
io
n
al
 S
e
lf
‐R
el
ia
n
ce

2
3
.1
%

3
.3
%

2
8
.2
%

2
9
.7
%

3
1
.1
%

3
2
.6
%

3
4
.0
%

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Ta
b
le
 C
‐4
: 
C
al
cu
la
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
e
lia

n
ce
 o
n
 W

at
e
r 
Su

p
p
lie

s 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 D
e
lt
a 
W
at
e
rs
h
e
d

W
at
e
r 
Su

p
p
lie

s 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 D
e
lt
a 
W
at
e
rs
h
e
d

(A
cr
e
‐F
e
e
t)

B
as
e
lin

e
   
 

(2
0
0
9
)

2
0
1
5

2
0
2
0

2
0
2
5

2
0
3
0

2
0
3
5

2
0
4
0

2
0
4
5

(O
p
ti
o
n
al
)

C
V
P
/S
W
P
 C
o
n
tr
ac
t 
Su

p
p
lie
s

D
el
ta
/D

el
ta
 T
ri
b
u
ta
ry
 D
iv
er
si
o
n
s

Tr
an

sf
er
s 
an

d
 E
xc
h
an

ge
s

O
th
er
 W

at
er
 S
u
p
p
lie
s 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e 
D
el
ta
 W

at
er
sh
ed

1
7
7
,7
0
4

   
   
   
  

6
2
,3
5
7

   
   
   
  

7
6
,7
2
3

   
   
   
  

5
8
,0
1
6

   
   
   
  

5
7
,9
0
1

   
   
   
  

5
7
,7
6
1

   
   
   
  

5
7
,5
2
5

   
   
   
  

5
7
,2
6
5

   
   
   
   
 

To
ta
l W

at
er
 S
u
p
p
lie
s 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e 
D
el
ta
 W

at
er
sh
ed

7
7
,7
0
4

   
   
   
  

6
2
,3
5
7

   
   
   
  

7
6
,7
2
3

   
   
   
  

5
8
,0
1
6

   
   
   
  

5
7
,9
0
1

   
   
   
  

5
7
,7
6
1

   
   
   
  

5
7
,5
2
5

   
   
   
  

5
7
,2
6
5

   
   
   
   
 

Se
rv
ic
e
 A
re
a 
W
at
e
r 
D
e
m
an

d
s 
w
it
h
o
u
t 
W
at
e
r 
U
se
 E
ff
ic
ie
n
cy

(A
cr
e
‐F
e
e
t)

B
as
e
lin

e
   
 

(2
0
0
9
)

2
0
1
5

2
0
2
0

2
0
2
5

2
0
3
0

2
0
3
5

2
0
4
0

2
0
4
5

(O
p
ti
o
n
al
)

Se
rv
ic
e 
A
re
a 
W
at
er
 D
em

an
d
s 
w
it
h
o
u
t 
W
at
er
 U
se
 E
ff
ic
ie
n
cy
 A
cc
o
u
n
te
d
 F
o
r

7
7
,7
0
4

   
   
   

8
1
,1
0
3

   
   
   

7
9
,3
4
5

   
   
   

8
0
,8
2
0

   
   
   

8
2
,3
2
1

   
   
   
 

8
3
,8
5
1

   
   
   
  

8
5
,3
0
5

   
   
   
  

8
6
,7
8
5

   
   
   
   
 

C
h
an

ge
 in

 S
u
p
p
lie

s 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 D
e
lt
a 
W
at
e
rs
h
e
d

(A
cr
e
‐F
e
e
t)

B
as
e
lin

e
   
 

(2
0
0
9
)

2
0
1
5

2
0
2
0

2
0
2
5

2
0
3
0

2
0
3
5

2
0
4
0

2
0
4
5

(O
p
ti
o
n
al
)

W
at
er
 S
u
p
p
lie
s 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e 
D
el
ta
 W

at
er
sh
ed

7
7
,7
0
4

   
   
   

6
2
,3
5
7

   
   
   

7
6
,7
2
3

   
   
   

5
8
,0
1
6

   
   
   

5
7
,9
0
1

   
   
   
 

5
7
,7
6
1

   
   
   
  

5
7
,5
2
5

   
   
   
  

5
7
,2
6
5

   
   
   
   
 

C
h
an

ge
 in

 W
at
er
 S
u
p
p
lie
s 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e 
D
el
ta
 W

at
er
sh
ed

 
(1
5
,3
4
8
)

   
   
  

(9
8
2
)

   
   
   
   
 

(1
9
,6
8
8
)

   
   
  

(1
9
,8
0
3
)

   
   
   

(1
9
,9
4
3
)

   
   
   
 

(2
0
,1
7
9
)

   
   
   
 

(2
0
,4
3
9
)

   
   
   
   

P
e
rc
e
n
t 
C
h
an

ge
 in

 S
u
p
p
lie

s 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 D
e
lt
a 
W
at
e
rs
h
e
d

(A
s 
a 
P
e
rc
e
n
t 
o
f 
D
e
m
an

d
 w
/o
u
t 
W
U
E)

B
as
e
lin

e
   
 

(2
0
0
9
)

2
0
1
5

2
0
2
0

2
0
2
5

2
0
3
0

2
0
3
5

2
0
4
0

2
0
4
5

(O
p
ti
o
n
al
)

P
er
ce
n
t 
o
f 
W
at
er
 S
u
p
p
lie
s 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e 
D
el
ta
 W

at
er
sh
ed

1
0
0
.0
%

7
6
.9
%

9
6
.7
%

7
1
.8
%

7
0
.3
%

6
8
.9
%

6
7
.4
%

6
6
.0
%

C
h
an

ge
 in

 P
er
ce
n
t 
o
f 
W
at
er
 S
u
p
p
lie
s 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e 
D
el
ta
 W

at
er
sh
ed

 
‐2
3
.1
%

‐3
.3
%

‐2
8
.2
%

‐2
9
.7
%

‐3
1
.1
%

‐3
2
.6
%

‐3
4
.0
%

B
as
el
in
e 
Ye

ar
 is
 F
Y 
2
0
0
8
‐0
9

1
R
ep

re
se
n
ts
 im

p
o
rt
ed

 w
at
er
 f
ro
m
 M

et
ro
p
o
lit
an

 W
at
er
 D
is
tr
ic
t 
o
f 
So

u
th
er
n
 C
al
if
o
rn
ia

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



 

 

 

 

APPENDIX B 

ATTACHMENT 1 

 

 

 Infeasibility of Accounting Supplies from the Delta Watershed for 

Metropolitan’s Member Agencies and their Customers 

 

 Appendix 11 Addendum to the Metropolitan Water District of Southern 

California’s 2015 Urban Water Management Plan 

 

 Appendix 11 “Quantifying Regional Self-Reliance and Reliance on Water 

Supplies from the Delta Watershed”, Metropolitan Water District of 

Southern California’s 2020 Urban Water Management Plan 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Infeasibility of Accounting Supplies from the Delta Watershed for 
Metropolitan’s Member Agencies and their Customers 

Metropolitan’s service area, as a whole, reduces reliance on the Delta through investments in non‐Delta 
water supplies, local water supplies, and regional and local demand management measures.  
Metropolitan’s member agencies coordinate reliance on the Delta through their membership in 
Metropolitan, a regional cooperative providing wholesale water service to its 26 member agencies. 
Accordingly, regional reliance on the Delta can only be measured regionally—not by individual 
Metropolitan member agencies and not by the customers of those member agencies. 

Metropolitan’s member agencies, and those agencies’ customers, indirectly reduce reliance on the Delta 
through their collective efforts as a cooperative. Metropolitan’s member agencies do not control the 
amount of Delta water they receive from Metropolitan. Metropolitan manages a statewide integrated 
conveyance system consisting of its participation in the State Water Project (SWP), its Colorado River 
Aqueduct (CRA) including Colorado River water resources, programs and water exchanges, and its 
regional storage portfolio.  Along with the SWP, CRA, storage programs, and Metropolitan’s conveyance 
and distribution facilities, demand management programs increase the future reliability of water 
resources for the region. In addition, demand management programs provide system‐wide benefits by 
decreasing the demand for imported water, which helps to decrease the burden on the district’s 
infrastructure and reduce system costs, and free up conveyance capacity to the benefit of all member 
agencies. 

Metropolitan’s costs are funded almost entirely from its service area, with the exception of grants and 
other assistance from government programs. Most of Metropolitan’s revenues are collected directly 
from its member agencies. Properties within Metropolitan’s service area pay a property tax that 
currently provides approximately 8 percent of the fiscal year 2021 annual budgeted revenues. The rest 
of Metropolitan’s costs are funded through rates and charges paid by Metropolitan’s member agencies 
for the wholesale services it provides to them.1 Thus, Metropolitan’s member agencies fund nearly all 
operations Metropolitan undertakes to reduce reliance on the Delta, including Colorado River Programs, 
storage facilities, Local Resources Programs and Conservation Programs within Metropolitan’s service 
area.  

Because of the integrated nature of Metropolitan’s systems and operations, and the collective nature of 
Metropolitan’s regional efforts, it is infeasible to quantify each of Metropolitan member agencies’ 
individual reliance on the Delta. It is infeasible to attempt to segregate an entity and a system that were 
designed to work as an integrated regional cooperative. 

In addition to the member agencies funding Metropolitan’s regional efforts, they also invest in their own 
local programs to reduce their reliance on any imported water. Moreover, the customers of those 
member agencies may also invest in their own local programs to reduce water demand. However, to the 
extent those efforts result in reduction of demands on Metropolitan, that reduction does not equate to 
a like reduction of reliance on the Delta. Demands on Metropolitan are not commensurate with 
demands on the Delta because most of Metropolitan member agencies receive blended resources from 

 
1 A standby charge is collected from properties within the service areas of 21 of Metropolitan’s 26 member 
agencies, ranging from $5 to $14.20 per acre annually, or per parcel if smaller than an acre. Standby charges go 
towards those member agencies’ obligations to Metropolitan for the Readiness‐to‐Serve Charge. The total amount 
collected annually is approximately $43.8 million, approximately 2 percent of Metropolitan’s fiscal year 2021 
annual budgeted revenues. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Metropolitan as determined by Metropolitan—not the individual member agency—and for most 
member agencies, the blend varies from month‐to‐month and year‐to‐year due to hydrology, 
operational constraints, use of storage and other factors. 

Colorado River Programs 
As a regional cooperative of member agencies, Metropolitan invests in programs to ensure the 
continued reliability and sustainability of Colorado River supplies. Metropolitan was established to 
obtain an allotment of Colorado River water, and its first mission was to construct and operate the CRA. 
The CRA consists of five pumping plants, 450 miles of high voltage power lines, one electric substation, 
four regulating reservoirs, and 242 miles of aqueducts, siphons, canals, conduits and pipelines 
terminating at Lake Mathews in Riverside County. Metropolitan owns, operates, and manages the CRA. 
Metropolitan is responsible for operating, maintaining, rehabilitating, and repairing the CRA, and is 
responsible for obtaining and scheduling energy resources adequate to power pumps at the CRA’s five 
pumping stations. 

Colorado River supplies include Metropolitan’s basic Colorado River apportionment, along with supplies 
that result from existing and committed programs, including supplies from the Imperial Irrigation District 
(IID)‐Metropolitan Conservation Program, the implementation of the Quantification Settlement 
Agreement (QSA) and related agreements, and the exchange agreement with San Diego County Water 
Authority (SDCWA). The QSA established the baseline water use for each of the agreement parties and 
facilitates the transfer of water from agricultural agencies to urban uses. Since the QSA, additional 
programs have been implemented to increase Metropolitan’s CRA supplies. These include the PVID Land 
Management, Crop Rotation, and Water Supply Program, as well as the Lower Colorado River Water 
Supply Project. The 2007 Interim Guidelines provided for the coordinated operation of Lake Powell and 
Lake Mead, as well as the Intentionally Created Surplus (ICS) program that allows Metropolitan to store 
water in Lake Mead. 

Storage Investments/Facilities 
Surface and groundwater storage are critical elements of Southern California’s water resources strategy 

and help Metropolitan reduce its reliance on the Delta. Because California experiences dramatic swings 

in weather and hydrology, storage is important to regulate those swings and mitigate possible supply 

shortages. Surface and groundwater storage provide a means of storing water during normal and wet 

years for later use during dry years, when imported supplies are limited. The Metropolitan system, for 

purposes of meeting demands during times of shortage, regulating system flows, and ensuring system 

reliability in the event of a system outage, provides over 1,000,000 acre‐feet of system storage capacity.  

Diamond Valley Lake provides 810,000 acre‐feet of that storage capacity, effectively doubling Southern 

California’s previous surface water storage capacity. Other existing imported water storage available to 

the region consists of Metropolitan’s raw water reservoirs, a share of the SWP’s raw water reservoirs in 

and near the service area, and the portion of the groundwater basins used for conjunctive-use storage.  

Since the early twentieth century, DWR and Metropolitan have constructed surface water reservoirs to 

meet emergency, drought/seasonal, and regulatory water needs for Southern California. These 

reservoirs include Pyramid Lake, Castaic Lake, Elderberry Forebay, Silverwood Lake, Lake Perris, Lake 

Skinner, Lake Mathews, Live Oak Reservoir, Garvey Reservoir, Palos Verdes Reservoir, Orange County 

Reservoir, and Metropolitan’s Diamond Valley Lake (DVL). Some reservoirs such as Live Oak Reservoir, 

Garvey Reservoir, Palos Verdes Reservoir, and Orange County Reservoir, which have a total combined 

capacity of about 3,500 AF, are used solely for regulating purposes. The total gross storage capacity for 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



the larger remaining reservoirs is 1,757,600 AF. However, not all of the gross storage capacity is 

available to Metropolitan; dead storage and storage allocated to others reduce the amount of storage 

that is available to Metropolitan to 1,665,200 AF. 

Conjunctive use of the aquifers offers another important source of dry year supplies. Unused storage in 

Southern California groundwater basins can be used to optimize imported water supplies, and the 

development of groundwater storage projects allows effective management and regulation of the 

region’s major imported supplies from the Colorado River and SWP. Over the years, Metropolitan has 

implemented conjunctive use through various programs in the service area; the following table lists the 

groundwater conjunctive use programs that have been developed in the region. 

 

Metropolitan Demand Management Programs 
Demand management costs are Metropolitan’s expenditures for funding local water resource 
development programs and water conservation programs.  These Demand Management Programs 
incentivize the development of local water supplies and the conservation of water to reduce the need to 
import water to deliver to Metropolitan’s member agencies.  These programs are implemented below 
the delivery points between Metropolitan’s and its member agencies’ distribution systems and, as such, 
do not add any water to Metropolitan’s supplies.  Rather, the effect of these downstream programs is to 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



produce a local supply of water for the local agencies and to reduce demands by member agencies for 
water imported through Metropolitan’s system. The following discussions outline how Metropolitan 
funds local resources and conservation programs for the benefit of all of its member agencies and the 
entire Metropolitan service area. Notably, the history of demand management by Metropolitan’s 
member agencies and the local agencies that purchase water from Metropolitan’s members has 
spanned more than four decades. The significant history of the programs is another reason it would be 
difficult to attempt to assign a portion of such funding to any one individual member agency.  

Local Resources Programs 
In 1982, Metropolitan began providing financial incentives to its member agencies to develop new local 
supplies to assist in meeting the region’s water needs. Because of Metropolitan’s regional distribution 
system, these programs benefit all member agencies regardless of project location because they help to 
increase regional water supply reliability, reduce demands for imported water supplies, decrease the 
burden on Metropolitan’s infrastructure, reduce system costs and free up conveyance capacity to the 
benefit of all the agencies that rely on water from Metropolitan.  

For example, the Groundwater Replenishment System (GWRS) operated by the Orange County Water 
District is the world’s largest water purification system for indirect potable reuse. It was funded, in part, 
by Metropolitan’s member agencies through the Local Resources Program. Annually, the GWRS 
produces approximately 103,000 acre‐feet of reliable, locally controlled, drought‐proof supply of high‐
quality water to recharge the Orange County Groundwater Basin and protect it from seawater intrusion. 
The GWRS is a premier example of a regional project that significantly reduced the need to utilize 
imported water for groundwater replenishment in Metropolitan’s service area, increasing regional and 
local supply reliability and reducing the region’s reliance on imported supplies, including supplies from 
the State Water Project. 

Metropolitan’s local resource programs have evolved through the years to better assist Metropolitan’s 
member agencies in increasing local supply production. The following is a description and history of the 
local supply incentive programs.   

Local Projects Program 

In 1982, Metropolitan initiated the Local Projects Program (LPP), which provided funding to member 
agencies to facilitate the development of recycled water projects. Under this approach, Metropolitan 
contributed a negotiated up‐front funding amount to help finance project capital costs. Participating 
member agencies were obligated to reimburse Metropolitan over time. In 1986, the LPP was revised, 
changing the up‐front funding approach to an incentive‐based approach. Metropolitan contributed an 
amount equal to the avoided State Water Project pumping costs for each acre‐foot of recycled water 
delivered to end‐use consumers. This funding incentive was based on the premise that local projects 
resulted in the reduction of water imported from the Delta and the associated pumping cost. The 
incentive amount varied from year to year depending on the actual variable power cost paid for State 
Water Project imports. In 1990, Metropolitan’s Board increased the LPP contribution to a fixed rate of 
$154 per acre‐foot, which was calculated based on Metropolitan’s avoided capital and operational costs 
to convey, treat, and distribute water, and included considerations of reliability and service area 
demands. 

Groundwater Recovery Program 

The drought of the early 1990s sparked the need to develop additional local water resources, aside from 
recycled water, to meet regional demand and increase regional water supply reliability. In 1991, 
Metropolitan conducted the Brackish Groundwater Reclamation Study which determined that large 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



amounts of degraded groundwater in the region were not being utilized. Subsequently, the 
Groundwater Recovery Program (GRP) was established to assist the recovery of otherwise unusable 
groundwater degraded by minerals and other contaminants, provide access to the storage assets of the 
degraded groundwater, and maintain the quality of groundwater resources by reducing the spread of 
degraded plumes.  

Local Resources Program 

In 1995, Metropolitan’s Board adopted the Local Resources Program (LRP), which combined the LPP and 
GRP into one program. The Board allowed for existing LPP agreements with a fixed incentive rate to 
convert to the sliding scale up to $250 per acre‐foot, similar to GRP incentive terms. Those agreements 
that were converted to LRP are known as “LRP Conversions.” 

Competitive Local Projects Program 

In 1998, the Competitive Local Resources Program (Competitive Program) was established. The 
Competitive Program encouraged the development of recycled water and recovered groundwater 
through a process that emphasized cost‐efficiency to Metropolitan, timing new production according to 
regional need while minimizing program administration cost. Under the Competitive Program, agencies 
requested an incentive rate up to $250 per acre‐foot of production over 25 years under a Request for 
Proposals (RFP) for the development of up to 53,000 acre‐feet per year of new water recycling and 
groundwater recovery projects. In 2003, a second RFP was issued for the development of an additional 
65,000 acre‐feet of new recycled water and recovered groundwater projects through the LRP. 

Seawater Desalination Program 

Metropolitan established the Seawater Desalination Program (SDP) in 2001 to provide financial 

incentives to member agencies for the development of seawater desalination projects. In 2014, 

seawater desalination projects became eligible for funding under the LRP, and the SDP was ended. 

2007 Local Resources Program 

In 2006, a task force comprised of member agency representatives was formed to identify and 
recommend program improvements to the LRP. As a result of the task force process, the 2007 LRP was 
established with a goal of 174,000 acre‐feet per year of additional local water resource development. 
The new program allowed for an open application process and eliminated the previous competitive 
process. This program offered sliding scale incentives of up to $250 per acre‐foot, calculated annually 
based on a member agency’s actual local resource project costs exceeding Metropolitan’s prevailing 
water rate. 

2014 Local Resources Program 

A series of workgroup meetings with member agencies was held to identify the reasons why there was a 
lack of new LRP applications coming into the program. The main constraint identified by the member 
agencies was that the $250 per acre‐foot was not providing enough of an incentive for developing new 
projects due to higher construction costs to meet water quality requirements and to develop the 
infrastructure to reach end‐use consumers located further from treatment plants. As a result, in 2014, 
the Board authorized an increase in the maximum incentive amount, provided alternative payment 
structures, included onsite retrofit costs and reimbursable services as part of the LRP, and added 
eligibility for seawater desalination projects. The current LRP incentive payment options are structured 
as follows: 

 Option 1 – Sliding scale incentive up to $340/AF for a 25‐year agreement term 

 Option 2 – Sliding scale incentive up to $475/AF for a 15‐year agreement term 

 Option 3 – Fixed incentive up to $305/AF for a 25‐year agreement term 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



On‐site Retrofit Programs 

In 2014, Metropolitan’s Board also approved the On‐site Retrofit Pilot Program which provided financial 
incentives to public or private entities toward the cost of small‐scale improvements to their existing 
irrigation and industrial systems to allow connection to existing recycled water pipelines. The On‐site 
Retrofit Pilot Program helped reduce recycled water retrofit costs to the end‐use consumer which is a 
key constraint that limited recycled water LRP projects from reaching full production capacity. The 
program incentive was equal to the actual eligible costs of the on‐site retrofit, or $975 per acre‐foot of 
up‐front cost, which equates to $195 per acre‐foot for an estimated five years of water savings ($195/AF 
x 5 years) multiplied by the average annual water use in previous three years, whichever is less. The Pilot 
Program lasted two years and was successful in meeting its goal of accelerating the use of recycled 
water.  

In 2016, Metropolitan’s Board authorized the On‐site Retrofit Program (ORP), with an additional budget 
of $10 million. This program encompassed lessons learned from the Pilot Program and feedback from 
member agencies to make the program more streamlined and improve its efficiency. As of fiscal year 
2019/20, the ORP has successfully converted 440 sites, increasing the use of recycled water by 12,691 
acre‐feet per year.  

Stormwater Pilot Programs 

In 2019, Metropolitan’s Board authorized both the Stormwater for Direct Use Pilot Program and a 
Stormwater for Recharge Pilot Program to study the feasibility of reusing stormwater to help meet 
regional demands in Southern California. These pilot programs are intended to encourage the 
development, monitoring, and study of new and existing stormwater projects by providing financial 
incentives for their construction/retrofit and monitoring/reporting costs. These pilot programs will help 
evaluate the potential benefits delivered by stormwater capture projects and provide a basis for 
potential future funding approaches. Metropolitan’s Board authorized a total of $12.5 million for the 
stormwater pilot programs ($5 million for the District Use Pilot and $7.5 million for the Recharge Pilot). 

Current Status and Results of Metropolitan’s Local Resource Programs 

Today, nearly one‐half of the total recycled water and groundwater recovery production in the region 
has been developed with an incentive from one or more of Metropolitan’s local resource programs. 
During fiscal year 2020, Metropolitan provided about $13 million for production of 71,000 acre‐feet of 
recycled water for non‐potable and indirect potable uses. Metropolitan provided about $4 million to 
support projects that produced about 50,000 acre‐feet of recovered groundwater for municipal use. 
Since 1982, Metropolitan has invested $680 million to fund 85 recycled water projects and 27 
groundwater recovery projects that have produced a cumulative total of about 4 million acre‐feet.  

Conservation Programs  
Metropolitan’s regional conservation programs and approaches have a long history. Decades ago, 
Metropolitan recognized that demand management at the consumer level would be an important part 
of balancing regional supplies and demands. Water conservation efforts were seen as a way to reduce 
the need for imported supplies and offset the need to transport or store additional water into or within 
the Metropolitan service area. The actual conservation of water takes place at the retail consumer level. 
Regional conservation approaches have proven to be effective at reaching retail consumers throughout 
Metropolitan’s service area and successfully implementing water saving devices, programs and 
practices. Through the pooling of funding by Metropolitan’s member agencies, Metropolitan is able to 
engage in regional campaigns with wide‐reaching impact. Regional investments in demand management 
programs, of which conservation is a key part along with local supply programs, benefit all member 
agencies regardless of project location. These programs help to increase regional water supply 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



reliability, reduce demands for imported water supplies, decrease the burden on Metropolitan’s 
infrastructure, reduce system costs, and free up conveyance capacity to the benefit of all member 
agencies. 

Incentive‐Based Conservation Programs 

Conservation Credits Program 

In 1988, Metropolitan’s Board approved the Water Conservation Credits Program (Credits Program). The 
Credits Program is similar in concept to the Local Projects Program (LPP). The purpose of the Credits 
Program is to encourage local water agencies to implement effective water conservation projects 
through the use of financial incentives. The Credits Program provides financial assistance for water 
conservation projects that reduce demands on Metropolitan’s imported water supplies and require 
Metropolitan’s assistance to be financially feasible. 

Initially, the Credits Program provided 50 percent of a member agency’s program cost, up to a maximum 
of $75 per acre‐foot of estimated water savings. The $75 Base Conservation Rate was established based 
Metropolitan’s avoided cost of pumping SWP supplies. The Base Conservation Rate has been revisited 
by Metropolitan’s Board and revised twice since 1988, from $75 to $154 per acre‐foot in 1990 and from 
$154 to $195 per acre‐foot in 2005. 

In fiscal year 2020 Metropolitan processed more than 30,400 rebate applications totaling $18.9 million.  

Member Agency Administered Program 

Some member agencies also have unique programs within their service areas that provide local rebates 
that may differ from Metropolitan’s regional program. Metropolitan continues to support these local 
efforts through a member agency administered funding program that adheres to the same funding 
guidelines as the Credits Program. The Member Agency Administered Program allows member agencies 
to receive funding for local conservation efforts that supplement, but do not duplicate, the rebates 
offered through Metropolitan’s regional rebate program. 

Water Savings Incentive Program 

There are numerous commercial entities and industries within Metropolitan’s service area that pursue 
unique savings opportunities that do not fall within the general rebate programs that Metropolitan 
provides. In 2012, Metropolitan designed the Water Savings Incentive Program (WSIP) to target these 
unique commercial and industrial projects. In addition to rebates for devices, under this program, 
Metropolitan provides financial incentives to businesses and industries that created their own custom 
water efficiency projects. Qualifying custom projects can receive funding for permanent water efficiency 
changes that result in reduced potable demand. 

Non‐Incentive Conservation Programs 

In addition to its incentive‐based conservation programs, Metropolitan also undertakes additional 
efforts throughout its service area that help achieve water savings without the use of rebates. 
Metropolitan’s non‐incentive conservation efforts include: 

 residential and professional water efficient landscape training classes 

 water audits for large landscapes 

 research, development and studies of new water saving technologies 

 advertising and outreach campaigns 

 community outreach and education programs 

 advocacy for legislation, codes, and standards that lead to increased water savings 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Current Status and Results of Metropolitan’s Conservation Programs 

Since 1990, Metropolitan has invested $824 million in conservation rebates that have resulted in a 
cumulative savings of 3.27 million acre‐feet of water. These investments include $450 million in turf 
removal and other rebates during the last drought which resulted in 175 million square feet of lawn turf 
removed. During fiscal year 2020, 1.06 million acre‐feet of water is estimated to have been conserved. 
This annual total includes Metropolitan’s Conservation Credits Program; code‐based conservation 
achieved through Metropolitan‐sponsored legislation; building plumbing codes and ordinances; reduced 
consumption resulting from changes in water pricing; and pre‐1990 device retrofits. 

Infeasibility of Accounting Regional Investments in Reduced Reliance Below the Regional Level 
The accounting of regional investments that contribute to reduced reliance on supplies from the Delta 
watershed is straightforward to calculate and report at the regional aggregate level. However, any 
similar accounting is infeasible for the individual member agencies or their customers. As described 
above, the region (through Metropolitan) makes significant investments in projects, programs and other 
resources that reduce reliance on the Delta. In fact, all of Metropolitan’s investments in Colorado River 
supplies, groundwater and surface storage, local resources development and demand management 
measures that reduce reliance on the Delta are collectively funded by revenues generated from the 
member agencies through rates and charges.  

Metropolitan’s revenues cannot be matched to the demands or supply production history of an 
individual agency, or consistently across the agencies within the service area. Each project or program 
funded by the region has a different online date, useful life, incentive rate and structure, and production 
schedule. It is infeasible to account for all these things over the life of each project or program and 
provide a nexus to each member agency’s contributions to Metropolitan’s revenue stream over time. 
Accounting at the regional level allows for the incorporation of the local supplies and water use 
efficiency programs done by member agencies and their customers through both the regional programs 
and through their own specific local programs. As shown above, despite the infeasibility of accounting 
reduced Delta reliance below the regional level, Metropolitan’s member agencies and their customers 
have together made substantial contributions to the region’s reduced reliance. 

References 
http://www.mwdh2o.com/WhoWeAre/Board/Board‐Meeting/Board%20Archives/2017/12‐

Dec/Reports/064863458.pdf 

http://www.mwdh2o.com/PDF_About_Your_Water/Annual_Achievement_Report.pdf 

http://www.mwdh2o.com/WhoWeAre/Board/Board‐Meeting/Board%20Archives/2016/12‐

Dec/Reports/064845868.pdf 

http://www.mwdh2o.com/WhoWeAre/Board/Board‐Meeting/Board%20Archives/2012/05%20‐

%20May/Letters/064774100.pdf 

http://www.mwdh2o.com/WhoWeAre/Board/Board‐Meeting/Board%20Archives/2020/10%20‐

%20Oct/Letters/10132020%20BOD%209‐3%20B‐L.pdf 

http://www.mwdh2o.com/WhoWeAre/Board/Board‐Meeting/Board%20Archives/2001/10‐

October/Letters/003909849.pdf 

Link to Metropolitan’s 2020 UWMP once final 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Appendix 11 
Addendum to  

The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California’s 
2015 Urban Water Management Plan 

Quantifying Regional Self-Reliance and 
Reduced Reliance on Water Supplies 

from the Delta Watershed 
(Draft May 2021)

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Appendix 11 
METROPOLITAN’S REDUCED DELTA RELIANCE REPORTING 
 Addendum to Metropolitan’s 2015 Urban Water Management Plan 
 
A.11.1 Background 
Under the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta Reform Act of 2009, state and local public agencies 
proposing a covered action in the Delta,1 prior to initiating the implementation of that action, 
must prepare a written certification of consistency with detailed findings as to whether the 
covered action is consistent with applicable Delta Plan policies and submit that certification to 
the Delta Stewardship Council.2  Anyone may appeal a certification of consistency, and if the 
Delta Stewardship Council grants the appeal, the covered action may not be implemented until 
the agency proposing the covered action submits a revised certification of consistency, and 
either no appeal is filed, or the Delta Stewardship Council denies the subsequent appeal.3 

An urban water supplier that anticipates participating in or receiving water from a proposed 
covered action such as a multi-year water transfer, conveyance facility, or new diversion that 
involves transferring water through, exporting water from, or using water in the Delta should 
provide information in their 2015 and 2020 Urban Water Management Plans (UWMPs) that can 
then be used in the covered action process to demonstrate consistency with Delta Plan Policy 
WR P1, Reduce Reliance on the Delta Through Improved Regional Water Self-Reliance (WR P1).4 

WR P1 details what is needed for a covered action to demonstrate consistency with reduced 
reliance on the Delta and improved regional self-reliance.  WR P1 subsection (a) states that: 

(a) Water shall not be exported from, transferred through, or used in the Delta if all of the following 
apply: 

(1) One or more water suppliers that would receive water as a result of the export, transfer, 
or use have failed to adequately contribute to reduced reliance on the Delta and 
improved regional self-reliance consistent with all of the requirements listed in paragraph 
(1) of subsection (c); 

(2) That failure has significantly caused the need for the export, transfer, or use; and 

(3) The export, transfer, or use would have a significant adverse environmental impact in 
the Delta. 

WR P1 subsection (c)(1) further defines what adequately contributing to reduced reliance on the 
Delta means in terms of (a)(1) above. 

(c)(1) Water suppliers that have done all the following are contributing to reduced reliance on 
the Delta and improved regional self-reliance and are therefore consistent with this policy: 

(A) Completed a current Urban or Agricultural Water Management Plan (Plan) which has 
been reviewed by the California Department of Water Resources for compliance with the 
applicable requirements of Water Code Division 6, Parts 2.55, 2.6, and 2.8; 

1 Water Code, § 85057.5; Cal. Code Regs. tit. 23, § 5001. 
2 Water Code, § 85225; Delta Plan, App. D. 
3 Water Code, §§ 85225.10-85225.25; Delta Plan, App. D. 
4 Cal. Code Regs., tit. 23, § 5003. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



(B) Identified, evaluated, and commenced implementation, consistent with the 
implementation schedule set forth in the Plan, of all programs and projects included in 
the Plan that are locally cost effective and technically feasible which reduce reliance on 
the Delta; and 

(C) Included in the Plan, commencing in 2015, the expected outcome for measurable 
reduction in Delta reliance and improvement in regional self-reliance. The expected 
outcome for measurable reduction in Delta reliance and improvement in regional self-
reliance shall be reported in the Plan as the reduction in the amount of water used, or in 
the percentage of water used, from the Delta watershed. For the purposes of reporting, 
water efficiency is considered a new source of water supply, consistent with Water Code 
section 1011(a). 

The analysis and documentation provided below include all of the elements described in 
WR P1(c)(1) that need to be included in a water supplier’s UWMP to support a certification of 
consistency for a future covered action. 
A.11.2 Summary of Expected Outcomes for Reduced Reliance on the Delta 
As stated in WR P1(c)(1)(C), the policy requires that, commencing in 2015, UWMPs include 
expected outcomes for measurable reduction in Delta reliance and improved regional self-
reliance.  WR P1 further states that those outcomes shall be reported in the UWMP as the 
reduction in the amount of water used, or in the percentage of water used, from the Delta. 

The expected outcomes for Metropolitan’s Delta reliance and regional self-reliance were 
developed using the approach and guidance described in Appendix C of DWR’s Urban Water 
Management Plan Guidebook 2020 (Guidebook Appendix C) issued in March 2021.   

The data used in this analysis represent the total regional efforts of Metropolitan and its member 
agencies and their customers (many of them, retail agencies) and were developed in 
conjunction with Metropolitan’s member agencies as part of the UWMP coordination process as 
described in Section 5 of Metropolitan’s UWMP. In accordance with UMWP requirements, 
Metropolitan’s member agencies and their customers (many of them, retail agencies) also report 
demands and supplies for their service areas in their respective UWMPs. The data reported by 
those agencies are not additive to the regional totals shown in Metropolitan’s UWMP; rather, their 
reporting represents subtotals of the regional total and should be considered as such for the 
purposes of determining reduced reliance on the Delta. 

While the demands that Metropolitan’s member agencies and their customers report in their 
UWMPs are a good reflection of the demands in their respective service areas, they do not 
adequately represent each water supplier’s contributions to reduced reliance on the Delta. In 
order to calculate and report their reliance on water supplies from the Delta watershed, water 
suppliers that receive water from the Delta through other regional or wholesale water suppliers 
would need to determine the amount of Delta water that they receive from the regional or 
wholesale supplier. Two specific pieces of information are needed to accomplish this: first is the 
quantity of demands on the regional or wholesale water supplier that accurately reflect a 
supplier’s contributions to reduced reliance on the Delta, and second is the quantity of a 
supplier’s demands on the regional or wholesale water supplier that are met by supplies from the 
Delta watershed.  
For water suppliers that make investments in regional projects or programs it may be infeasible to 
quantify their demands on the regional or wholesale water supplier in a way that accurately 
reflects their individual contributions to reduced reliance on the Delta. Due to the extensive, long-
standing and successful implementation of regional demand management and local resource 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



incentive programs in Metropolitan’s service area, this infeasibility holds true for Metropolitan’s 
members as well their customers. For Metropolitan’s service area, reduced reliance on supplies 
from the Delta watershed can only be accurately accounted at the regional level, as is 
demonstrated in this analysis. 

The following provides a summary of the near-term (2025) and long-term (2045) expected 
outcomes for Metropolitan’s Delta reliance and regional self-reliance.  The results show that as a 
region, Metropolitan and its members as well as their customers are measurably reducing 
reliance on the Delta and improving regional self-reliance, both as an amount of water used and 
as a percentage of water used.  

Expected Outcomes for Regional Self-Reliance 

• Near-term (2025) – Normal water year regional self-reliance is expected to increase by  
813 TAF from the 2010 baseline; this represents an increase of almost 25 percent of 2025 
normal water year retail demands (Table A.11-2). 

• Long-term (2045) – Normal water year regional self-reliance is expected to increase by more 
than 1.28 MAF from the 2010 baseline, this represents an increase of more than 25 percent of 
2045 normal water year retail demands (Table A.11-2). 

Expected Outcomes for Reduced Reliance on Supplies from the Delta Watershed 

• Near-term (2025) – Normal water year reliance on supplies from the Delta watershed 
decreased by 301 TAF from the 2010 baseline, this represents a decrease of 3 percent of 2025 
normal water year retail demands (Table A.11-3). 

• Long-term (2045) – Normal water year reliance on supplies from the Delta watershed 
decreased by 314 TAF from the 2010 baseline, this represents a decrease of just over 5 percent 
of 2045 normal water year retail demands (Table A.11-3). 

A11.3 Demonstration of Reduced Reliance on the Delta 

The methodology used to determine Metropolitan’s reduced Delta reliance and improved 
regional self-reliance is consistent with the approach detailed in DWR’s UWMP Guidebook 
Appendix C, including the use of narrative justifications for the accounting of supplies and the 
documentation of specific data sources.  Some of the key assumptions underlying Metropolitan’s 
demonstration of reduced reliance include: 

• All data were obtained from the current 2020 UWMP or previously adopted UWMPs and 
represent average or normal water year conditions. 

• All analyses were conducted at the service area level, and all data reflect the total 
contributions of Metropolitan and its members as well as their customers. 

• No projects or programs that are described in the UWMPs as “Projects Under Development” 
were included in the accounting of supplies. 

Baseline and Expected Outcomes 

In order to calculate the expected outcomes for measurable reduction in Delta reliance and 
improved regional self-reliance, a baseline is needed to compare against.  This analysis uses a 
normal water year representation of 2010 as the baseline, which is consistent with the approach 
described in the Guidebook Appendix C.  Data for the 2010 baseline were taken from 
Metropolitan’s 2005 UWMP as the UWMPs generally do not provide normal water year data for 
the year that they are adopted (i.e., 2005 UWMP forecasts begin in 2010, 2010 UWMP forecasts 
begin in 2015, and so on). 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Consistent with the 2010 baseline data approach, the expected outcomes for reduced Delta 
reliance and improved regional self-reliance for 2015 and 2020 were taken from Metropolitan’s 
2010 and 2015 UWMPs respectively.  Expected outcomes for 2025-2045 are from the current 2020 
UWMP.  Documentation of the specific data sources and assumptions are included in the 
discussions below. 

Service Area Demands without Water Use Efficiency 

In alignment with the Guidebook Appendix C, this analysis uses normal water year demands, 
rather than normal water year supplies to calculate expected outcomes in terms of the 
percentage of water used.  Using normal water year demands serves as a proxy for the amount 
of supplies that would be used in a normal water year, which helps alleviate issues associated 
with how supply capability is presented to fulfill requirements of the Act versus how supplies might 
be accounted for to demonstrate consistency with WR P1. 

Because WR P1 considers water use efficiency savings a source of water supply, water suppliers 
such as Metropolitan that explicitly calculate and report water use efficiency savings in their 
UWMP will need to make an adjustment to properly reflect normal water year demands in the 
calculation of reduced reliance. As explained in the Guidebook Appendix C, water use 
efficiency savings must be added back to the normal year demands to represent demands 
without water use efficiency savings accounted for; otherwise the effect of water use efficiency 
savings on regional self-reliance would be overestimated. Table A.11-1 shows the results of this 
adjustment for Metropolitan.  Supporting narratives and documentation for all of the data shown 
in Table A.11-1 are provided below. 
 

Table A.11-1  
Demands without Water Use Efficiency Accounted For  

 
 

Service Area Demands without Water Use Efficiency 

The service area demands shown in Table A.11-1 represent the total retail water demands for 
Metropolitan’s service area and include municipal and industrial demands, agricultural 
demands, seawater barrier demands, and storage replenishment demands.  These demand 
types and the modeling methodologies used to calculate them are described in Section 2.2 and 
Appendix 1 of Metropolitan’s UWMP. 

Water Use Efficiency 

The water use efficiency numbers shown in Table A.11-1 represent the total water use efficiency 
savings (conservation) for Metropolitan’s region, including savings from active, code-based, 
price-effect and pre-1990 sources.  These sources of water use efficiency and the methodologies 
used to calculate them are described in Section 2.2, Section 3.4, Section 3.7 and Appendix 1 of 
Metropolitan’s UWMP. 
  

Total Service Area Water Demands
(Acre-Feet)

Baseline 
(2010)

2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045

Service Area Demands with Water Use Efficiency Accounted For 4,628,000     4,563,000     4,163,000     3,763,000     3,821,000     3,893,000     3,936,000     3,985,000     
Reported Water Use Efficiency 865,000        936,000        1,056,000     1,162,000     1,211,000     1,263,000     1,325,000     1,389,000     
Service Area Demands without Water Use Efficiency Accounted For 5,493,000     5,499,000     5,219,000     4,925,000     5,032,000     5,156,000     5,261,000     5,374,000     

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



The demand and water use efficiency data shown in Table A.11-1 were collected from the 
following sources: 

• Baseline (2010) values – Metropolitan’s 2005 UWMP, Table 2-6: Metropolitan Regional Water 
Demand Average Year 

• 2015 values – Metropolitan’s 2010 UWMP, Table 2-8: Metropolitan Regional Water Demands 
Average Year 

• 2020 values – Metropolitan’s 2015 UWMP, Table 2-3: Metropolitan Regional Water Demands 
Average Year 

• 2025-2045 values – Metropolitan’s 2020 UWMP, Table 2-3: Metropolitan Regional Water 
Demands Normal Water Year 

Supplies Contributing to Regional Self-Reliance 

For a covered action to demonstrate consistency with the Delta Plan, WR P1 subsection (c)(1)(C) 
states that water suppliers must report the expected outcomes for measurable improvement in 
regional self-reliance.  Table A.11-2 shows expected outcomes for supplies contributing to 
regional self-reliance both in amount and as a percentage.  The numbers shown in Table A.11-2 
represent efforts to improve regional self-reliance for Metropolitan’s entire service area and 
include the total contributions of Metropolitan and its members as well as their customers. 
Supporting narratives and documentation for the all of the data shown in Table A.11-2 are 
provided below. 

The results shown in Table A.11-2 demonstrate that Metropolitan’s service area is measurably 
improving its regional self-reliance.  In the near-term (2025), the expected outcome for normal 
water year regional self-reliance increases by 747 TAF from the 2010 baseline; this represents an 
increase of about 23 percent of 2025 normal water year retail demands.  In the long-term (2045), 
normal water year regional self-reliance is expected to increase by more than 1.2 MAF from the 
2010 baseline; this represents an increase of 25 percent of 2045 normal water year retail demands. 

 
Table A.11-2  

Supplies Contributing to Regional Self-Reliance  

 
 

Water Supplies Contributing to Regional Self-Reliance
(Acre-Feet)

Baseline 
(2010)

2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045

Water Use Efficiency 865,000        936,000        1,056,000     1,162,000     1,211,000     1,263,000     1,325,000     1,389,000     
Water Recycling 316,000        348,000        436,000        550,000        613,000        687,000        698,000        706,000        
Stormwater Capture and Use 100,000        103,000        110,000        80,000           82,000           82,000           82,000           82,000           
Advanced Water Technologies 111,000        101,000        194,000        194,000        208,000        209,000        209,000        210,000        
Conjunctive Use Projects 1,416,000     1,429,000     1,303,000     1,255,000     1,273,000     1,296,000     1,311,000     1,326,000     
Local and Regional Water Supply and Storage Projects 252,000        224,000        261,000        257,000        257,000        258,000        258,000        258,000        
Other Programs and Projects that Contribute to Regional Self-Reliance 875,000        1,250,000     1,200,000     1,250,000     1,250,000     1,250,000     1,250,000     1,250,000     
Water Supplies Contributing to Regional Self-Reliance 3,935,000     4,391,000     4,560,000     4,748,000     4,894,000     5,045,000     5,133,000     5,221,000     

Service Area Demands without Water Use Efficiency
(Acre-Feet)

Baseline 
(2010)

2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045

Service Area Demands without Water Use Efficiency Accounted For 5,493,000     5,499,000     5,219,000     4,925,000     5,032,000     5,156,000     5,261,000     5,374,000     

Change in Regional Self Reliance
(Acre-Feet)

Baseline 
(2010)

2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045

Water Supplies Contributing to Regional Self-Reliance 3,935,000     4,391,000     4,560,000     4,748,000     4,894,000     5,045,000     5,133,000     5,221,000     
Change in Supplies Contributing to Regional Self-Reliance NA 456,000        625,000        813,000        959,000        1,110,000     1,198,000     1,286,000     

Percent Change in Regional Self Reliance
(As Percent of Demand w/out WUE)

Baseline 
(2010)

2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045

Percent of Supplies Contributing to Regional Self-Reliance 71.6% 79.9% 87.4% 96.4% 97.3% 97.8% 97.6% 97.2%
Change in Percent of Supplies Contributing to Regional Self-Reliance NA 8.2% 15.7% 24.8% 25.6% 26.2% 25.9% 25.5%

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Water Use Efficiency 

The water use efficiency information shown in Table A.11-2 is taken directly from Table A.11-1 
above. 

Water Recycling 

The water recycling values shown in Table A.11-2 reflect the total recycled water production in 
Metropolitan’s service area as described in Section 3.5 and Appendix 2 of Metropolitan’s UWMP. 

Stormwater Capture and Use 

The stormwater capture and use data shown in Table A.11-2 include supplies from local surface 
water production as described in Section 1.4 and Appendix 2 of Metropolitan’s UWMP.  

These values do not include production from regional storage reservoirs; storage in these 
reservoirs is comprised of previously stored water from sources already reflected in Tables A.11-2 
and A.11-3.   These regional storage resources are generally used to provide additional regional 
self-reliance in dry years, which is not reflected in this normal water year analysis. The regional 
storage reservoirs and their yields are described in Section 3.6, Appendix 2 and Appendix 3 of 
Metropolitan’s UWMP.  

The stormwater capture and use values shown in Table A.11-2 also do not include stormwater 
capture that is used to recharge local groundwater basins.  Stormwater capture for groundwater 
recharge supports production of groundwater in the region, and for the purposes of this analysis 
that production is already captured in Table A.11-2 under conjunctive use projects. 

Advanced Water Technologies 

The advanced water technologies data shown in Table A.11-2 include total groundwater 
recovery and seawater desalination production in Metropolitan’s service area as described in 
Section 3.5 and Appendix 2 of Metropolitan’s UWMP. 

Conjunctive Use Projects 

The values for conjunctive use projects shown in Table A.11-2 represent total groundwater 
production in the region as described in Section 1.4 and Appendix 2 of Metropolitan’s UWMP.  

The conjunctive use projects numbers shown in Table A.11-2 do not include production from 
regional groundwater conjunctive use programs.  As described in the stormwater capture and 
use discussion above, these regional storage programs rely on previously stored water from 
sources already reflected in Tables A.11-2 and A.11-3 and are generally used to provide 
additional regional self-reliance in dry-years.  The regional groundwater conjunctive use 
programs and their yields are described in Section 3.6 and Appendix 3. 

Local and Regional Water Supply and Storage Programs 

The data for local and regional water supply and storage programs shown in Table A.11-2 include 
supplies from the Los Angeles Aqueduct.  This supply is described in Section 1.4 and Appendix 2 
of Metropolitan’s UWMP. 

The local and regional supply numbers shown in Table A.11-2, except for “Other Programs and 
Projects that Contribute to Regional Self-Reliance” which is discussed below, were obtained from 
the following sources: 

• Baseline (2010) values – Metropolitan’s 2005 UWMP, Table 2-6: Metropolitan Regional Water 
Demand Average Year 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



• 2015 values – Metropolitan’s 2010 UWMP, Table 2-8: Metropolitan Regional Water Demands 
Average Year 

• 2020 values – Metropolitan’s 2015 UWMP, Table 2-3: Metropolitan Regional Water Demands 
Average Year 

• 2025-2045 values – Metropolitan’s 2020 UWMP, Table 2-3: Metropolitan Regional Water 
Demands Normal Water Year 

Other Programs and Projects that Contribute to Regional Self-Reliance 

Other programs and projects that contribute to regional self-reliance shown in Table A.11-2 
include current programs from the Colorado River Aqueduct. Colorado River supplies include 
Metropolitan’s basic Colorado River apportionment, as well as supplies that result from existing 
and committed programs, including those from the IID-MWD Conservation Program, the 
implementation of the Quantification Settlement Agreement (QSA), related agreements, and 
the exchange agreement with SDCWA. Colorado River Aqueduct supplies and programs are 
described in Section 3.1 and Appendix 3 of Metropolitan’s UWMP.  

The values shown in Table A.11-2 for other programs and projects that contribute to regional self-
reliance come from the following sources: 

• Baseline (2010) values – Metropolitan’s 2005 UWMP, Table A.3-7: Maximum Expected 
Colorado River Aqueduct Deliveries Year 2010 (Average Year) 

• 2015 values – Metropolitan’s 2010 UWMP, Table A.3-7: Maximum Expected Colorado River 
Aqueduct Deliveries Year 2015 (Average Year) 

• 2020 values – Metropolitan's 2015 UWMP, Table A.3-7: Maximum Expected Colorado River 
Aqueduct Deliveries Year 2020 (Average Year) 

• 2025-2045 values – Metropolitan’s 2020 UWMP, Table A.3-7: Maximum Expected Colorado 
River Aqueduct Deliveries Years 2025, 2030, 2035, 2040, 2045 (Normal Water Year) 

Reliance on Water Supplies from the Delta Watershed 

In order for a covered action to demonstrate consistency with the Delta Plan, WR P1 subsection 
(c)(1)(C) requires that water suppliers report the expected outcomes for measurable  
reductions in supplies from the Delta watershed either as an amount or as a percentage.  This 
analysis provides both calculations.  Based on the methodology described in Guidebook 
Appendix C, and consistent with the approach of this analysis in not including projects under 
development, this accounting does not include any supplies from potential future covered 
actions.  Table A.11-3 shows the expected outcomes for reliance on supplies from the Delta 
watershed for Metropolitan’s service area.  Supporting narratives and documentation for the all 
of the data shown in Table A.11-3 are provided below. 

The results shown in Table A.11-3 demonstrate that Metropolitan’s service area is measurably 
reducing its Delta reliance.  In the near-term (2025), the expected outcome for normal water 
year reliance on supplies from the Delta watershed decreased by 301 TAF from the 2010 baseline; 
this represents a decrease of 3 percent of 2025 normal water year retail demands.  In the long-
term (2045), normal water year reliance on supplies from the Delta watershed decreased by 
314 TAF from the 2010 baseline; this represents a decrease of just over 5 percent of 2045 normal 
water year retail demands. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Table A.11-3  
Reliance on Water Supplies from the Delta Watershed 

 
 

CVP/SWP Contract Supplies 

The CVP/SWP contract supplies shown in Table A.11-3 include Metropolitan’s SWP Table A and 
Article 21 supplies.  These supplies are described in Section 3.2 and Appendix 3 of Metropolitan’s 
UWMP.  

The values shown in Table A.11-3 do not include Desert Water Agency/Coachella Valley Water 
District SWP contract supplies.  These supplies are exchanged with Desert Water Agency and 
Coachella Valley Water District for an equal amount of Colorado River water, which is reflected 
in the Colorado River Aqueduct supplies shown in Table A.11-2.  In addition, Desert Water Agency 
and Coachella Valley Water District should include their SWP contract supplies in their own 
accountings of reduced reliance.  Additional information on these exchange agreements can 
be found in Section 3.2 and Appendix 3 of Metropolitan’s UWMP. 

These values also do not include supplies from San Luis Carryover storage or Central Valley 
storage programs because storage in these programs comprises previously stored water from 
sources already reflected in Table A.11-3.  These storage programs are generally used to provide 
additional regional self-reliance in dry years, which is not reflected in this normal water year 
analysis.  The Central Valley storage projects and their yields are described in Section 3.3, and 
Appendix 3.  San Luis Carryover storage is described in Section 3.2 and Appendix 3. 

Transfers and Exchanges of Supplies from the Delta Watershed 

The transfers and exchanges of supplies from the Delta watershed shown in Table A.11-3 include 
supplies from the San Bernardino Valley MWD Program, Yuba River Accord Purchase Program, 
the San Gabriel Valley MWD Program, Irvine Ranch Water District Storage and Exchange 
Program, and other generic SWP and Central Valley transfers and exchanges. These programs 
are described in Section 3.2 and Appendix 3 of Metropolitan’s UWMP. 

Supplies from the Delta Watershed shown in Table A.11-3 are from the following sources: 

• Baseline (2010) values – Metropolitan’s 2005 UWMP, Table A.3-7: California Aqueduct Program 
Capabilities Year 2010 (Average Year) 

Water Supplies from the Delta Watershed
(Acre-Feet)

Baseline 
(2010)

2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045

CVP/SWP Contract Supplies 1,472,000     1,029,000     984,000        1,133,000     1,130,000     1,128,000     1,126,000     1,126,000     
Delta/Delta Tributary Diversions -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
Transfers and Exchanges of Supplies from the Delta Watershed 20,000           44,000           91,000           58,000           52,000           52,000           52,000           52,000           
Other Water Supplies from the Delta Watershed -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
Total Water Supplies from the Delta Watershed 1,492,000     1,073,000     1,075,000     1,191,000     1,182,000     1,180,000     1,178,000     1,178,000     

Service Area Demands without Water Use Efficiency
(Acre-Feet)

Baseline 
(2010)

2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045

Service Area Demands without Water Use Efficiency Accounted For 5,493,000     5,499,000     5,219,000     4,925,000     5,032,000     5,156,000     5,261,000     5,374,000     

Change in Supplies from the Delta Watershed
(Acre-Feet)

Baseline 
(2010)

2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045

Water Supplies from the Delta Watershed 1,492,000     1,073,000     1,075,000     1,191,000     1,182,000     1,180,000     1,178,000     1,178,000     
Change in Supplies from the Delta Watershed NA (419,000)       (417,000)       (301,000)       (310,000)       (312,000)       (314,000)       (314,000)       

Percent Change in Supplies from the Delta Watershed
(As a Percent of Demand w/out WUE)

Baseline 
(2010)

2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045

Percent of Supplies from the Delta Watershed 27.2% 19.5% 20.6% 24.2% 23.5% 22.9% 22.4% 21.9%
Change in Percent of Supplies from the Delta Watershed NA -7.6% -6.6% -3.0% -3.7% -4.3% -4.8% -5.2%

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



• 2015 values – Metropolitan’s 2010 UWMP, Table A.3-7: California Aqueduct Program 
Capabilities Year 2015 (Average Year) 

• 2020 values – Metropolitan’s 2015 UWMP, Table A.3-7: California Aqueduct Program 
Capabilities Year 2020 (Average Year) 

• 2025-2045 values – Metropolitan’s 2020 UWMP, Table A.3-7: California Aqueduct Program 
Capabilities Years 2025, 2030, 2035, 2040, 2045 (Normal Water Year) 

A.11.4 UWMP Implementation 
In addition to the analysis and documentation described above, WR P1 subsection (c)(1)(B) 
requires that all programs and projects included in the UWMP that are locally cost-effective and 
technically feasible, which reduce reliance on the Delta, are identified, evaluated, and 
implemented consistent with the implementation schedule. WR P1 (c)(1)(B) states that: 

(B) Identified, evaluated, and commenced implementation, consistent with the 
implementation schedule set forth in the Plan, of all programs and projects included in 
the Plan that are locally cost effective and technically feasible which reduce reliance on 
the Delta[.] 

In accordance with Water Code Section 10631(f), water suppliers must already include in their 
UWMP a detailed description of expected future projects and programs that they may 
implement to increase the amount of water supply available to them in normal and single-dry 
water years and for a period of drought lasting five consecutive years.  The UWMP description 
must also identify specific projects, include a description of the increase in water supply that is 
expected to be available from each project, and include an estimate regarding the 
implementation timeline for each project or program.  

Section 3 of Metropolitan’s UWMP summarizes the implementation plan and continued progress 
in developing a diversified water portfolio to meet the region’s water needs. 

Water Use Efficiency 

The water use efficiency numbers used in this analysis include the total water use efficiency 
savings (conservation) for the service area, including savings from active, code-based, price-
effect and pre-1990 savings.  The specific water use efficiency programs and their 
implementation are described in Section 3.4 of Metropolitan’s UWMP. 

Water Recycling 

The water recycling values used in this analysis reflect the total recycled water production in 
Metropolitan’s service area.  Water recycling programs and implementation are discussed in 
Section 3.5 of Metropolitan’s UWMP.  In addition, individual project-level details are provided in 
Appendix 5.  

Stormwater Capture and Use 

The stormwater capture and use data used in this analysis include supplies from local surface 
water production.  Local surface water production and its implementation are discussed in 
Appendix 2 of Metropolitan’s UWMP.  

Advanced Water Technologies 

The advanced water technologies data used in this analysis include total groundwater recovery 
and seawater desalination production in Metropolitan’s service.  Groundwater recovery and 
seawater desalination programs and implementation are described in Section 3.5 of 
Metropolitan’s UWMP.  In addition, individual project-level details are provided in Appendix 5. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Conjunctive Use Projects 

The values for conjunctive use projects used in this analysis represent total groundwater 
production in the region. Groundwater production and its implementation are discussed in 
Appendix 2 of Metropolitan’s UWMP. 

Local and Regional Water Supply and Storage Programs 

The data for local and regional water supply and storage programs shown this analysis include 
supplies from the Los Angeles Aqueduct.  This program and its implementation are described in 
Appendix 2 of Metropolitan’s UWMP. 

Other Programs and Projects that Contribute to Regional Self-Reliance 

Other programs and projects that contribute to regional self-reliance used in this analysis include 
current programs from the Colorado River Aqueduct. Colorado River supplies include 
Metropolitan’s basic Colorado River apportionment, as well as supplies that result from existing 
and committed programs, including those from the IID-MWD Conservation Program, the 
implementation of the Quantification Settlement Agreement (QSA), related agreements, and 
the exchange agreement with SDCWA. Colorado River Aqueduct programs and their 
implementation are described in Section 3.1 and Appendix 3 of Metropolitan’s UWMP. 

CVP/SWP Contract Supplies 

The CVP/SWP contract supplies shown in this analysis include Metropolitan’s SWP Table A and 
Article 21 supplies.  These supplies and their implementation are described in Section 3.2 and 
Appendix 3 of Metropolitan’s UWMP.  

Transfers and Exchanges of Supplies from the Delta Watershed 

The transfers and exchanges of supplies from the Delta watershed shown in this analysis include 
supplies from the San Bernardino Valley MWD Program, Yuba River Accord Purchase Program, 
the San Gabriel Valley MWD Program, Irvine Ranch Water District Storage and Exchange 
Program, and other generic SWP and Central Valley transfers and exchanges.  These programs 
and their implementation are described in Section 3.2 and Appendix 3 of Metropolitan’s UWMP. 
  

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



A.11.5 2015 UWMP Appendix 11 
The information contained in this Appendix 11 is also intended to be a new Appendix 11 
attached to Metropolitan’s 2015 UWMP consistent with WR P1 subsection (c)(1)(C) (Cal. Code 
Regs. tit. 23, § 5003).  Metropolitan provided notice of the availability of the draft 2020 UWMP 
(including this Appendix 11 which will also be a new Appendix 11 to its 2015 UWMP) and WSCP 
and the public hearing to consider adoption of both plans and Appendix 11 to the 2015 UWMP 
in accordance with CWC Sections 10621(b) and 10642, and Government Code Section 6066, 
and Chapter 17.5 (starting with Section 7290) of Division 7 of Title 1 of the Government Code.  The 
public review drafts of the 2020 UWMP, Appendix 11 to the 2015 UWMP, and the WSCP were 
posted prominently on Metropolitan’s website, mwdh2o.com, starting February 1, 2021, more 
than 60 days in advance of the public hearing on April 12, 2021.  The notice of availability of the 
documents was sent to Metropolitan’s member agencies, as well as cities and counties in 
Metropolitan’s service area.  In addition, a public notice advertising the public hearing in English 
and Spanish was published in 12 Southern California newspapers. The notification in English 
language newspapers was published on February 1 and 8, 2021.  The notification was published 
on January 28-30, 2021 and February 1, 4-6, and 8, 2021 in Spanish language newspapers, 
satisfying the requirement for non-English language notification.  Copies of: (1) the notification 
letter sent to the member agencies, cities and counties in Metropolitan’s service area, and 
(2) the notice published in the newspapers are included in the 2020 UWMP Section 5.  Thus, this 
Appendix 11 to Metropolitan’s 2020 UWMP, which was adopted with Metropolitan’s 2020 UWMP, 
will also be recognized and treated as Appendix 11 to Metropolitan’s 2015 UWMP. 

Metropolitan held the public hearing for the draft 2020 UWMP, draft Appendix 11 to the 2015 
UWMP, and draft WSCP on April 12, 2021, at the Board’s Water Planning and Stewardship 
Committee meeting, held online due to COVID-19 concerns.  On May 11, 2021, Metropolitan’s 
Board determined that the 2020 UWMP and the WSCP are consistent with the MWD Act and 
accurately represent the water resources plan for Metropolitan’s service area.  In addition, 
Metropolitan’s Board determined that Appendix 11 to both the 2015 UWMP and the 2020 UWMP 
includes all of the elements described in Delta Plan Policy WR P1, Reduce Reliance on the Delta 
Through Improved Regional Water Self-Reliance (Cal. Code Regs. tit. 23, § 5003), which need to 
be included in a water supplier’s UWMP to support a certification of consistency for a future 
covered action.  As stated in Resolutions XXXX, XXXX, and XXXX, the Board adopted the 2020 
UWMP, Appendix 11 to the 2015 UWMP, and the WSCP and authorized their submittal to the State 
of California.  Copies of Resolutions XXXX, XXXX, and XXXX are included in the 2020 UWMP  
Section 5, and Resolution XXXX for the WSCP is attached to the WSCP as Attachment C.  [NC1] 
 
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Appendix 11 

Quantifying Regional Self-Reliance and  
Reduced Reliance on Water Supplies from the Delta 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



 

REDUCED DELTA RELIANCE REPORTING A.11-1 

Appendix 11 
METROPOLITAN’S  

REDUCED DELTA RELIANCE REPORTING  
 

A.11.1 Background 
Under the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta Reform Act of 2009, state and local public agencies 
proposing a covered action in the Delta,1 prior to initiating the implementation of that action, 
must prepare a written certification of consistency with detailed findings as to whether the 
covered action is consistent with applicable Delta Plan policies and submit that certification to 
the Delta Stewardship Council.2  Anyone may appeal a certification of consistency, and if the 
Delta Stewardship Council grants the appeal, the covered action may not be implemented until 
the agency proposing the covered action submits a revised certification of consistency, and 
either no appeal is filed, or the Delta Stewardship Council denies the subsequent appeal.3 

An urban water supplier that anticipates participating in or receiving water from a proposed 
covered action such as a multi-year water transfer, conveyance facility, or new diversion that 
involves transferring water through, exporting water from, or using water in the Delta should 
provide information in their 2015 and 2020 Urban Water Management Plans (UWMPs) that can 
then be used in the covered action process to demonstrate consistency with Delta Plan Policy 
WR P1, Reduce Reliance on the Delta Through Improved Regional Water Self-Reliance (WR P1).4 

WR P1 details what is needed for a covered action to demonstrate consistency with reduced 
reliance on the Delta and improved regional self-reliance.  WR P1 subsection (a) states that: 

(a) Water shall not be exported from, transferred through, or used in the Delta if all of the following 
apply: 

(1) One or more water suppliers that would receive water as a result of the export, transfer, 
or use have failed to adequately contribute to reduced reliance on the Delta and 
improved regional self-reliance consistent with all of the requirements listed in paragraph 
(1) of subsection (c); 

(2) That failure has significantly caused the need for the export, transfer, or use; and 

(3) The export, transfer, or use would have a significant adverse environmental impact in 
the Delta. 

WR P1 subsection (c)(1) further defines what adequately contributing to reduced reliance on the 
Delta means in terms of (a)(1) above. 

(c)(1) Water suppliers that have done all the following are contributing to reduced reliance on 
the Delta and improved regional self-reliance and are therefore consistent with this policy: 

(A) Completed a current Urban or Agricultural Water Management Plan (Plan) which has 
been reviewed by the California Department of Water Resources for compliance with the 
applicable requirements of Water Code Division 6, Parts 2.55, 2.6, and 2.8; 

 
1 Water Code, § 85057.5; Cal. Code Regs. tit. 23, § 5001. 
2 Water Code, § 85225; Delta Plan, App. D. 
3 Water Code, §§ 85225.10-85225.25; Delta Plan, App. D. 
4 Cal. Code Regs., tit. 23, § 5003. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



A.11-2 REDUCED DELTA RELIANCE REPORTING 

(B) Identified, evaluated, and commenced implementation, consistent with the 
implementation schedule set forth in the Plan, of all programs and projects included in 
the Plan that are locally cost effective and technically feasible which reduce reliance on 
the Delta; and 

(C) Included in the Plan, commencing in 2015, the expected outcome for measurable 
reduction in Delta reliance and improvement in regional self-reliance. The expected 
outcome for measurable reduction in Delta reliance and improvement in regional self-
reliance shall be reported in the Plan as the reduction in the amount of water used, or in 
the percentage of water used, from the Delta watershed. For the purposes of reporting, 
water efficiency is considered a new source of water supply, consistent with Water Code 
section 1011(a). 

The analysis and documentation provided below include all of the elements described in 
WR P1(c)(1) that need to be included in a water supplier’s UWMP to support a certification of 
consistency for a future covered action. 

A.11.2 Summary of Expected Outcomes for Reduced Reliance on the Delta 
As stated in WR P1 =(c)(1)(C), the policy requires that, commencing in 2015, UWMPs include 
expected outcomes for measurable reduction in Delta reliance and improved regional self-
reliance.   WR P1 further states that those outcomes shall be reported in the UWMP as the 
reduction in the amount of water used, or in the percentage of water used, from the Delta. 

The expected outcomes for Metropolitan’s Delta reliance and regional self-reliance were 
developed using the approach and guidance described in Appendix C of DWR’s Urban Water 
Management Plan Guidebook 2020 (Guidebook Appendix C) issued in December 2020.  The 
data used in this analysis represent the total regional efforts of Metropolitan and its member 
agencies and subagencies and were developed in conjunction with Metropolitan’s member 
agencies as part of the UWMP coordination process as described in Section 5 of Metropolitan’s 
UWMP.  

The following provides a summary of the near-term (2025) and long-term (2045) expected 
outcomes for Metropolitan’s Delta reliance and regional self-reliance.  The results show that as a 
region, Metropolitan and its member agencies are measurably reducing reliance on the Delta 
and improving regional self-reliance, both as an amount of water used and as a percentage of 
water used.  

Expected Outcomes for Regional Self-Reliance 

 Near-term (2025) – Normal water year regional self-reliance is expected to increase by 583 
TAF from the 2010 baseline; this represents an increase of about 26 percent of 2025 normal 
water year retail demands (Table A.11-2). 

 Long-term (2045) – Normal water year regional self-reliance is expected to increase by more 
than 1 MAF from the 2010 baseline, this represents an increase of about 26 percent of 2045 
normal water year retail demands (Table A.11-2). 

Expected Outcomes for Reduced Reliance on Supplies from the Delta Watershed 

 Near-term (2025) – Normal water year reliance on supplies from the Delta watershed 
decreased by 375 TAF from the 2010 baseline, this represents a decrease of about 3 percent 
of 2025 normal water year retail demands (Table A.11-3). 

 Long-term (2045) – Normal water year reliance on supplies from the Delta watershed 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



 

REDUCED DELTA RELIANCE REPORTING A.11-3 

decreased by 490 TAF from the 2010 baseline, this represents a decrease of about 7.5 percent 
of 2045 normal water year retail demands (Table A.11-3). 

A11.3 Demonstration of Reduced Reliance on the Delta 
The methodology used to determine Metropolitan’s reduced Delta reliance and improved 
regional self-reliance is consistent with the approach detailed in DWR’s UWMP Guidebook 
Appendix C, including the use of narrative justifications for the accounting of supplies and the 
documentation of specific data sources.  Some of the key assumptions underlying Metropolitan’s 
demonstration of reduced reliance include: 

 All data were obtained from the current 2020 UWMP or previously adopted UWMPs and 
represent average or normal water year conditions. 

 All analyses were conducted at the service area level, and all data reflect the total 
contributions of Metropolitan and its member agencies and subagencies. 

 No projects or programs that are described in the UWMPs as “Projects Under Development” 
were included in the accounting of supplies. 

Baseline and Expected Outcomes 

In order to calculate the expected outcomes for measurable reduction in Delta reliance and 
improved regional self-reliance, a baseline is needed to compare against.  This analysis uses a 
normal water year representation of 2010 as the baseline, which is consistent with the approach 
described in the Guidebook Appendix C.  Data for the 2010 baseline were taken from 
Metropolitan’s 2005 UWMP as the UWMPs generally do not provide normal water year data for 
the year that they are adopted (i.e., 2005 UWMP forecasts begin in 2010, 2010 UWMP forecasts 
begin in 2015, and so on). 

Consistent with the 2010 baseline data approach, the expected outcomes for reduced Delta 
reliance and improved regional self-reliance for 2015 and 2020 were taken from Metropolitan’s 
2010 and 2015 UWMPs respectively.  Expected outcomes for 2025-2045 are from the current 2020 
UWMP.  Documentation of the specific data sources and assumptions are included in the 
discussions below. 

Service Area Demands without Water Use Efficiency 

In alignment with the Guidebook Appendix C, this analysis uses normal water year demands, 
rather than normal water year supplies to calculate expected outcomes in terms of the 
percentage of water used.  Using normal water year demands serves as a proxy for the amount 
of supplies that would be used in a normal water year, which helps alleviate issues associated 
with how supply capability is presented to fulfill requirements of the UWMP Act versus how supplies 
might be accounted for to demonstrate consistency with WR P1. 

Because WR P1 considers water use efficiency savings a source of water supply, water suppliers 
such as Metropolitan that explicitly calculate and report water use efficiency savings in their 
UWMP will need to make an adjustment to properly reflect normal water year demands in the 
calculation of reduced reliance. As explained in the Guidebook Appendix C, water use 
efficiency savings must be added back to the normal year demands to represent demands 
without water use efficiency savings accounted for; otherwise the effect of water use efficiency 
savings on regional self-reliance would be overestimated. Table A.11-1 shows the results of this 
adjustment for Metropolitan.  Supporting narratives and documentation for the all of the data 
shown in Table A.11-1 are provided below. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



A.11-4 REDUCED DELTA RELIANCE REPORTING 

Table A.11-1  
Demands without Water Use Efficiency Accounted For DRAFT 

Service Area Demands without Water Use Efficiency 

The service area demands shown in Table A.11-1 represent the total retail water demands for 
Metropolitan’s service area and include municipal and industrial demands, agricultural 
demands, seawater barrier demands, and storage replenishment demands.  These demand 
types and the modeling methodologies used to calculate them are described in Section 2.2 and 
Appendix 1 of Metropolitan’s UWMP. 

Water Use Efficiency 

The water use efficiency numbers shown in Table A.11-1 represent the total water use efficiency 
savings (conservation) for Metropolitan’s region, including savings from active, code-based, 
price-effect and pre-1990 sources.  These sources of water use efficiency and the methodologies 
used to calculate them are described in Section 2.2, Section 3.4, Section 3.7 and Appendix 1 of 
Metropolitan’s UWMP. 

The demand and water use efficiency data shown in Table A.11-1 were collected from the 
following sources: 

 Baseline (2010) values – Metropolitan’s 2005 UWMP, Table 2-6: Metropolitan Regional Water
Demand Average Year

 2015 values – Metropolitan’s 2010 UWMP, Table 2-8: Metropolitan Regional Water Demands
Average Year

 2020 values – Metropolitan’s 2015 UWMP, Table 2-3: Metropolitan Regional Water Demands
Average Year

 2025-2045 values – Metropolitan’s 2020 UWMP, Table 2-3: Metropolitan Regional Water
Demands Normal Water Year

Supplies Contributing to Regional Self-Reliance 

For a covered action to demonstrate consistency with the Delta Plan, WR P1 subsection (c)(1)(C) 
states that water suppliers must report the expected outcomes for measurable improvement in 
regional self-reliance.  Table A.11-2 shows expected outcomes for supplies contributing to 
regional self-reliance both in amount and as a percentage.  The numbers shown in Table A.11-2 
represent efforts to improve regional self-reliance for Metropolitan’s entire service area and 
include the total contributions of Metropolitan and its member agencies and subagencies. 
Supporting narratives and documentation for the all of the data shown in Table A.11-2 are 
provided below. 

The results shown in Table A.11-2 demonstrate that Metropolitan’s service area is measurably 
improving its regional self-reliance.  In the near-term (2025), the expected outcome for normal 
water year regional self-reliance increases by 583 TAF from the 2010 baseline; this represents an 
increase of about 26 percent of 2025 normal water year retail demands.  In the long-term (2045), 
normal water year regional self-reliance is expected to increase by more than 1 MAF from the 

Total Service Area Water Demands

(Acre‐Feet)

Baseline 

(2010)
2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045

Service Area Demands with Water Use Efficiency Accounted For 4,628,000    4,563,000    4,163,000     3,542,000     3,610,000    3,677,000    3,718,000    3,761,000   

Reported Water Use Efficiency  865,000      936,000      1,056,000     1,056,000     1,127,000    1,200,000    1,263,000    1,339,000   

Service Area Demands without Water Use Efficiency Accounted For 5,493,000    5,499,000    5,219,000     4,598,000     4,737,000    4,877,000    4,981,000    5,100,000   

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



REDUCED DELTA RELIANCE REPORTING A.11-5

2010 baseline; this represents an increase of about 26percent of 2045 normal water year retail 
demands. 

Table A.11-2  
Supplies Contributing to Regional Self-Reliance DRAFT 

Water Use Efficiency 

The water use efficiency information shown in Table A.11-2 is taken directly from Table A.11-1 
above. 

Water Recycling 

The water recycling values shown in Table A.11-2 reflect the total recycled water production in 
Metropolitan’s service area as described in Section 3.5 and Appendix 2 of Metropolitan’s UWMP. 

Stormwater Capture and Use 

The stormwater capture and use data shown in Table A.11-2 include supplies from local surface 
water production as described in Section 1.4 and Appendix 2 of Metropolitan’s UWMP.  

These values do not include production from regional storage reservoirs; storage in these 
reservoirs is comprised of previously stored water from sources already reflected in Tables A.11-2 
and A.11-3.   These regional storage resources are generally used to provide additional regional 
self-reliance in dry years, which is not reflected in this normal water year analysis. The regional 
storage reservoirs and their yields are described in Section 3.6, Appendix 2 and Appendix 3 of 
Metropolitan’s UWMP.  

The stormwater capture and use values shown in Table A.11-2 also do not include stormwater 
capture that is used to recharge local groundwater basins.  Stormwater capture for groundwater 
recharge supports production of groundwater in the region, and for the purposes of this analysis 
that production is already captured in Table A.11-2 under conjunctive use projects. 

Water Supplies Contributing to Regional Self‐Reliance

(Acre‐Feet)

Baseline 

(2010)
2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045

Water Use Efficiency 865,000     936,000     1,056,000     1,056,000    1,127,000    1,200,000    1,263,000    1,339,000   

Water Recycling 316,000     348,000     436,000     497,000     555,000    569,000    581,000   592,000   

Stormwater Capture and Use 100,000     103,000     110,000     99,000    102,000    102,000    102,000   102,000   

Advanced Water Technologies 111,000     101,000     194,000     198,000     216,000    219,000    220,000   221,000   

Conjunctive Use Projects 1,416,000    1,429,000    1,303,000     1,216,000    1,222,000    1,257,000    1,261,000    1,268,000   

Local and Regional Water Supply and Storage Projects 422,000     414,000     535,000     540,000     540,000    540,000    540,000   540,000   

Other Programs and Projects that Contribute to Regional Self‐Reliance 711,000     1,054,000    909,000     918,000     918,000    918,000    918,000   918,000   

Water Supplies Contributing to Regional Self‐Reliance 3,941,000    4,385,000    4,543,000     4,524,000    4,680,000    4,805,000    4,885,000    4,980,000   

Service Area Demands without Water Use Efficiency

(Acre‐Feet)

Baseline 

(2010)
2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045

Service Area Demands without Water Use Efficiency Accounted For 5,493,000    5,499,000    5,219,000     4,598,000    4,737,000    4,877,000    4,981,000    5,100,000   

Change in Regional Self Reliance

(Acre‐Feet)

Baseline 

(2010)
2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045

Water Supplies Contributing to Regional Self‐Reliance 3,941,000    4,385,000    4,543,000     4,524,000    4,680,000    4,805,000    4,885,000    4,980,000   

Change in Supplies Contributing to Regional Self‐Reliance NA 444,000     602,000     583,000     739,000    864,000    944,000   1,039,000   

Percent Change in Regional Self Reliance

(As Percent of Demand w/out WUE)

Baseline 

(2010)
2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045

Percent of Supplies Contributing to Regional Self‐Reliance 71.7% 79.7% 87.0% 98.4% 98.8% 98.5% 98.1% 97.6%

Change in Percent of Supplies Contributing to Regional Self‐Reliance NA 8.0% 15.3% 26.6% 27.1% 26.8% 26.3% 25.9%

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



A.11-6 REDUCED DELTA RELIANCE REPORTING 

Advanced Water Technologies 

The advanced water technologies data shown in Table A.11-2 include total groundwater 
recovery and seawater desalination production in Metropolitan’s service area as described in 
Section 3.5 and Appendix 2 of Metropolitan’s UWMP. 

Conjunctive Use Projects 

The values for conjunctive use projects shown in Table A.11-2 represent total groundwater 
production in the region as described in Section 1.4 and Appendix 2 of Metropolitan’s UWMP.  

The conjunctive use projects numbers shown in Table A.11-2 do not include production from 
regional groundwater conjunctive use programs.  As described in the stormwater capture and 
use discussion above, these regional storage programs rely on previously stored water from 
sources already reflected in Tables A.11-2 and A.11-3 and are generally used to provide 
additional regional self-reliance in dry-years.  The regional groundwater conjunctive use 
programs and their yields are described in Section 3.6 and Appendix 3. 

Local and Regional Water Supply and Storage Programs 

The data for local and regional water supply and storage programs shown in Table A.11-2 include 
supplies from the Los Angeles Aqueduct, IID-SDCWA Transfer and Exchange, All-American Canal 
Lining Project and the Coachella Canal Lining Project.  These supplies are described in Section 
1.4, Appendix 2 and Appendix 3 of Metropolitan’s UWMP. 

The local and regional supply numbers shown in Table A.11-2, except for “Other Programs and 
Projects that Contribute to Regional Self-Reliance” which is discussed below, were obtained from 
the following sources: 

 Baseline (2010) values – Metropolitan’s 2005 UWMP, Table 2-6: Metropolitan Regional Water 
Demand Average Year 

 2015 values – Metropolitan’s 2010 UWMP, Table 2-8: Metropolitan Regional Water Demands 
Average Year 

 2020 values – Metropolitan’s 2015 UWMP, Table 2-3: Metropolitan Regional Water Demands 
Average Year 

 2025-2045 values – Metropolitan’s 2020 UWMP, Table 2-3: Metropolitan Regional Water 
Demands Normal Water Year 

Other Programs and Projects that Contribute to Regional Self-Reliance 

Other programs and projects that contribute to regional self-reliance shown in Table A.11-2 
include current programs from the Colorado River Aqueduct. Colorado River Aqueduct supplies 
and programs are described in Section 3.1 and Appendix 3 of Metropolitan’s UWMP.  

The other programs and projects shown in Table A.11-2 do not include supplies from the IID-
SDCWA Transfer and Exchange, All-American Canal Lining Project or the Coachella Canal Lining 
Project.  These supply programs are already reflected in Table A.11-2 under local and regional 
water supply and storage programs. 

The values shown in Table A.11-2 for other programs and projects that contribute to regional self-
reliance come from the following sources: 

 Baseline (2010) values – Metropolitan’s 2005 UWMP, Table A.3-7: Colorado River Aqueduct 
Program Capabilities Year 2010 (Average Year) 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



REDUCED DELTA RELIANCE REPORTING A.11-7

 2015 values – Metropolitan’s 2010 UWMP, Table A.3-7: Colorado River Aqueduct Program
Capabilities Year 2015 (Average Year)

 2020 values – Metropolitan's 2015 UWMP, Table A.3-7: Colorado River Aqueduct Program
Capabilities Year 2020 (Average Year)

 2025-2045 values – Metropolitan’s 2020 UWMP, Table A.3-7: Colorado River Aqueduct
Program Capabilities Years 2025, 2030, 2035, 2040, 2045 (Normal Water Year)

Reliance on Water Supplies from the Delta Watershed 

In order for a covered action to demonstrate consistency with the Delta Plan, WR P1 subsection 
(c)(1)(C) requires that water suppliers report the expected outcomes for measurable reductions 
in supplies from the Delta watershed either as an amount or as a percentage.  This analysis 
provides both calculations.  Based on the methodology described in Guidebook Appendix C, 
and consistent with the approach of this analysis in not including projects under development, 
this accounting does not include any supplies from potential future covered actions.  Table A.11-
3 shows the expected outcomes for reliance on supplies from the Delta watershed for 
Metropolitan’s service area.  Supporting narratives and documentation for the all of the data 
shown in Table A.11-3 are provided below. 

The results shown in Table A.11-3 demonstrate that Metropolitan’s service area is measurably 
reducing its Delta reliance.  In the near-term (2025), the expected outcome for normal water 
year reliance on supplies from the Delta watershed decreased by 375 TAF from the 2010 baseline; 
this represents a decrease of about 3 percent of 2025 normal water year retail demands.  In the 
long-term (2045), normal water year reliance on supplies from the Delta watershed decreased 
by 490 TAF from the 2010 baseline; this represents a decrease of about 7.5 percent of 2045 normal 
water year retail demands. 

Table A.11-3  
Reliance on Water Supplies from the Delta Watershed DRAFT 

CVP/SWP Contract Supplies 

The CVP/SWP contract supplies shown in Table A.11-3 include Metropolitan’s SWP Table A and 
Article 21 supplies.  These supplies are described in Section 3.2 and Appendix 3 of Metropolitan’s 
UWMP.  

Water Supplies from the Delta Watershed

(Acre‐Feet)

Baseline 

(2010)
2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045

CVP/SWP Contract Supplies 1,472,000    1,029,000    984,000   1,108,670    1,108,670    1,108,670    993,980   993,980   

Delta/Delta Tributary Diversions ‐   ‐   ‐   ‐   ‐   ‐   ‐   ‐   

Transfers and Exchanges of Supplies from the Delta Watershed 20,000      44,000      91,000      8,000     8,000     8,000     8,000      8,000     

Other Water Supplies from the Delta Watershed ‐   ‐   ‐   ‐   ‐   ‐   ‐   ‐   

Total Water Supplies from the Delta Watershed 1,492,000    1,073,000    1,075,000    1,116,670    1,116,670    1,116,670    1,001,980    1,001,980   

Service Area Demands without Water Use Efficiency

(Acre‐Feet)

Baseline 

(2010)
2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045

Service Area Demands without Water Use Efficiency Accounted For 5,493,000    5,499,000    5,219,000    4,598,000    4,737,000    4,877,000    4,981,000    5,100,000   

Change in Supplies from the Delta Watershed

(Acre‐Feet)

Baseline 

(2010)
2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045

Water Supplies from the Delta Watershed 1,492,000    1,073,000    1,075,000    1,116,670    1,116,670    1,116,670    1,001,980    1,001,980   

Change in Supplies from the Delta Watershed  NA (419,000)    (417,000)    (375,330)    (375,330)    (375,330)    (490,020)    (490,020)     

Percent Change in Supplies from the Delta Watershed

(As a Percent of Demand w/out WUE)

Baseline 

(2010)
2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045

Percent of Supplies from the Delta Watershed 27.2% 19.5% 20.6% 24.3% 23.6% 22.9% 20.1% 19.6%

Change in Percent of Supplies from the Delta Watershed  NA ‐7.6% ‐6.6% ‐2.9% ‐3.6% ‐4.3% ‐7.0% ‐7.5%

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



A.11-8 REDUCED DELTA RELIANCE REPORTING 

The values shown in Table A.11-3 do not include Desert Water Agency/Coachella Valley Water 
District SWP contract supplies.  These supplies are exchanged with Desert Water Agency and 
Coachella Valley Water District for an equal amount of Colorado River water, which is reflected 
in the Colorado River Aqueduct supplies shown in Table A.11-2.  In addition, Desert Water Agency 
and Coachella Valley Water District should include their SWP contract supplies in their own 
accountings of reduced reliance.  Additional information on these exchange agreements can 
be found in Section 3.2 and Appendix 3 of Metropolitan’s UWMP. 

These values also do not include supplies from San Luis Carryover storage or Central Valley 
storage programs because storage in these programs comprises previously stored water from 
sources already reflected in Table A.11-3.  These storage programs are generally used to provide 
additional regional self-reliance in dry years, which is not reflected in this normal water year 
analysis.  The Central Valley storage projects and their yields are described in Section 3.3, and 
Appendix 3.  San Luis Carryover storage is described in Section 3.2 and Appendix 3. 

Transfers and Exchanges of Supplies from the Delta Watershed 

The transfers and exchanges of supplies from the Delta watershed shown in Table A.11-3 include 
supplies from the San Bernardino Valley MWD Program, Yuba River Accord Purchase Program, 
the San Gabriel Valley MWD Program, and other generic SWP and Central Valley transfers and 
exchanges. These programs are described in Section 3.2 and Appendix 3 of Metropolitan’s 
UWMP. 

Supplies from the Delta Watershed shown in Table A.11-3 are from the following sources. 

 Baseline (2010) values – Metropolitan’s 2005 UWMP, Table A.3-7: California Aqueduct Program 
Capabilities Year 2010 (Average Year) 

 2015 values – Metropolitan’s 2010 UWMP, Table A.3-7: California Aqueduct Program 
Capabilities Year 2015 (Average Year) 

 2020 values – Metropolitan’s 2015 UWMP, Table A.3-7: California Aqueduct Program 
Capabilities Year 2020 (Average Year) 

 2025-2045 values – Metropolitan’s 2020 UWMP, Table A.3-7: California Aqueduct Program 
Capabilities Years 2025, 2030, 2035, 2040, 2045 (Normal Water Year) 

A.11.4 UWMP Implementation 
In addition to the analysis and documentation described above, WR P1 subsection (c)(1)(B) 
requires that all programs and projects included in the UWMP that are locally cost-effective and 
technically feasible, which reduce reliance on the Delta, are identified, evaluated, and 
implemented consistent with the implementation schedule. WR P1 (c)(1)(B) states that: 

(B) Identified, evaluated, and commenced implementation, consistent with the 
implementation schedule set forth in the Plan, of all programs and projects included in 
the Plan that are locally cost effective and technically feasible which reduce reliance on 
the Delta[.] 

In accordance with Water Code Section 10631(f), water suppliers must already include in their 
UWMP a detailed description of expected future projects and programs that they may 
implement to increase the amount of water supply available to them in normal and single-dry 
water years and for a period of drought lasting five consecutive years.  The UWMP description 
must also identify specific projects, include a description of the increase in water supply that is 
expected to be available from each project, and include an estimate regarding the 
implementation timeline for each project or program.  

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



 

REDUCED DELTA RELIANCE REPORTING A.11-9 

Section 3 of Metropolitan’s UWMP summarizes the implementation plan and continued progress 
in developing a diversified water portfolio to meet the region’s water needs. 

Water Use Efficiency 

The water use efficiency numbers used in this analysis include the total water use efficiency 
savings (conservation) for the service area, including savings from active, code-based, price-
effect and pre-1990 savings.  The specific water use efficiency programs and their 
implementation are described in Section 3.4 of Metropolitan’s UWMP. 

Water Recycling 

The water recycling values used in this analysis reflect the total recycled water production in 
Metropolitan’s service area.  Water recycling programs and implementation are discussed in 
Section 3.5 of Metropolitan’s UWMP.  In addition, individual project-level details are provided in 
Appendix 5.  

Stormwater Capture and Use 

The stormwater capture and use data used in this analysis include supplies from local surface 
water production.  Local surface water production and its implementation are discussed in 
Appendix 2 of Metropolitan’s UWMP.  

Advanced Water Technologies 

The advanced water technologies data used in this analysis include total groundwater recovery 
and seawater desalination production in Metropolitan’s service.  Groundwater recovery and 
seawater desalination programs and implementation are described in Section 3.5 of 
Metropolitan’s UWMP.  In addition, individual project-level details are provided in Appendix 5. 

Conjunctive Use Projects 

The values for conjunctive use projects used in this analysis represent total groundwater 
production in the region. Groundwater production and its implementation are discussed in 
Appendix 2 of Metropolitan’s UWMP. 

Local and Regional Water Supply and Storage Programs 

The data for local and regional water supply and storage programs shown this analysis include 
supplies from the Los Angeles Aqueduct, IID-SDCWA Transfer and Exchange, All-American Canal 
Lining Project and the Coachella Canal Lining Project.  These programs and their implementation 
are described in Appendix 2 and Appendix 3 of Metropolitan’s UWMP. 

Other Programs and Projects that Contribute to Regional Self-Reliance 

Other programs and projects that contribute to regional self-reliance used in this analysis include 
current programs from the Colorado River Aqueduct.  Colorado River Aqueduct programs and 
their implementation are described in Section 3.1 and Appendix 3 of Metropolitan’s UWMP. 

CVP/SWP Contract Supplies 

The CVP/SWP contract supplies shown in this analysis include Metropolitan’s SWP Table A and 
Article 21 supplies.  These supplies and their implementation are described in Section 3.2 and 
Appendix 3 of Metropolitan’s UWMP.  

Transfers and Exchanges of Supplies from the Delta Watershed 

The transfers and exchanges of supplies from the Delta watershed shown in this analysis include 
supplies from the San Bernardino Valley MWD Program, Yuba River Accord Purchase Program, 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



A.11-10 REDUCED DELTA RELIANCE REPORTING 

the San Gabriel Valley MWD Program and other generic SWP and Central Valley transfers and 
exchanges.  These programs and their implementation are described in Section 3.2 and 
Appendix 3 of Metropolitan’s UWMP. 

A.11.5 2015 UWMP Appendix 11
The information contained in this Appendix 11 is also intended to be a new Appendix 11 
attached to Metropolitan’s 2015 UWMP consistent with WR P1 subsection (c)(1)(C) (Cal. Code 
Regs. tit. 23, § 5003).  Metropolitan provided notice of the availability of the draft 2020 UWMP 
(including this Appendix 11 which will also be a new Appendix 11 to its 2015 UWMP) and 2020 
WSCP and the public hearing to consider adoption of both plans in accordance with CWC 
Sections 10621(b) and 10642, and Government Code Section 6066, and Chapter 17.5 (starting 
with Section 7290) of Division 7 of Title 1 of the Government Code.  The public review drafts of the 
2020 UWMP, Appendix 11 to the 2015 UWMP, and the 2020 WSCP were posted prominently on 
Metropolitan’s website, mwdh2o.com, on February 1, 2021, more than 60 days in advance of the 
public hearing on April 12, 2021.  The notice of availability of the documents was sent to 
Metropolitan’s member agencies, as well as cities and counties in Metropolitan’s service area. 
In addition, a public notice advertising the public hearing in English and other non-English 
languages was published in XXX Southern California newspapers on February 1 and 8, 2021. 
Copies of: (1) the notification letter sent to the member agencies, cities and counties in 
Metropolitan’s service area, and (2) the notice published in the newspapers are included in the 
2020 UWMP Section 5.  Thus, this Appendix 11 to Metropolitan’s 2020 UWMP, which will be 
adopted with Metropolitan’s 2020 UWMP, will also be recognized and treated as Appendix 11 to 
Metropolitan’s 2015 UWMP. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



 
APPENDIX C 

 
 

COMPLETED PLAN CHECKLIST 
 

 
  

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



R
et

ai
l

W
h

o
le

sa
le

20
20

 G
u

id
eb

o
o

k 
L

o
ca

ti
o

n
S

u
m

m
ar

y 
as

 A
p

p
lie

s 
to

 U
W

M
P

S
u

b
je

ct
20

20
 U

W
M

P
 L

o
ca

ti
o

n
 (

O
p

ti
o

n
al

 
C

o
lu

m
n

 f
o

r 
A

g
en

cy
 R

ev
ie

w
 U

se
)

x
x

C
ha

pt
er

 1
A

 p
la

n 
sh

al
l d

es
cr

ib
e 

an
d 

ev
al

ua
te

 s
ou

rc
es

 o
f s

up
pl

y,
 r

ea
so

na
bl

e 
an

d 
pr

ac
tic

al
 e

ffi
ci

en
t u

se
s,

 
re

cl
am

at
io

n 
an

d 
de

m
an

d 
m

an
ag

em
en

t a
ct

iv
iti

es
.

In
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

an
d 

O
ve

rv
ie

w
C

ha
pt

er
 1

 L
ay

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

x
x

C
ha

pt
er

 1
E

ac
h 

pl
an

 s
ha

ll 
in

cl
ud

e 
a 

si
m

pl
e 

de
sc

rip
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

su
pp

lie
r’s

 p
la

n 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

w
at

er
 a

va
ila

bi
lit

y,
 

fu
tu

re
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

, a
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

fo
r 

m
ee

tin
g 

ne
ed

s,
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 p
er

tin
en

t i
nf

or
m

at
io

n.
 A

dd
iti

on
al

ly
, 

a 
su

pp
lie

r 
m

ay
 a

ls
o 

ch
oo

se
 to

 in
cl

ud
e 

a 
si

m
pl

e 
de

sc
rip

tio
n 

at
 t

he
 b

eg
in

ni
ng

 o
f e

ac
h 

ch
ap

te
r.

S
um

m
ar

y
B

eg
in

ni
ng

 o
f e

ac
h 

C
ha

pt
er

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

2.
2

E
ve

ry
 p

er
so

n 
th

at
 b

ec
om

es
 a

n 
ur

ba
n 

w
at

er
 s

up
pl

ie
r 

sh
al

l a
do

pt
 a

n 
ur

ba
n 

w
at

er
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
pl

an
 w

ith
in

 o
ne

 y
ea

r 
af

te
r 

it 
ha

s 
be

co
m

e 
an

 u
rb

an
 w

at
er

 s
up

pl
ie

r.
P

la
n 

P
re

pa
ra

tio
n

S
ec

tio
n 

2.
2

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

2.
6

C
oo

rd
in

at
e 

th
e 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

of
 it

s 
pl

an
 w

ith
 o

th
er

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 a
ge

nc
ie

s 
in

 th
e 

ar
ea

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 

ot
he

r 
w

at
er

 s
up

pl
ie

rs
 th

at
 s

ha
re

 a
 c

om
m

on
 s

ou
rc

e,
 w

at
er

 m
an

ag
em

en
t a

ge
nc

ie
s,

 a
nd

 r
el

ev
an

t 
pu

bl
ic

 a
ge

nc
ie

s,
 to

 th
e 

ex
te

nt
 p

ra
ct

ic
ab

le
.

P
la

n 
P

re
pa

ra
tio

n
S

ec
tio

n 
2.

6

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

2.
6.

2
P

ro
vi

de
 s

up
po

rt
in

g 
do

cu
m

en
ta

tio
n 

th
at

 th
e 

w
at

er
 s

up
pl

ie
r 

ha
s 

en
co

ur
ag

ed
 a

ct
iv

e 
in

vo
lv

em
en

t 
of

 d
iv

er
se

 s
oc

ia
l, 

cu
ltu

ra
l, 

an
d 

ec
on

om
ic

 e
le

m
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
ar

ea
 

pr
io

r 
to

 a
nd

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
pl

an
 a

nd
 c

on
tin

ge
nc

y 
pl

an
.

P
la

n 
P

re
pa

ra
tio

n
S

ec
tio

n 
2.

6.
2

x
S

ec
tio

n 
2.

6,
 S

ec
tio

n 
6.

1
R

et
ai

l s
up

pl
ie

rs
 w

ill
 in

cl
ud

e 
do

cu
m

en
ta

tio
n 

th
at

 th
ey

 h
av

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 th

ei
r 

w
ho

le
sa

le
 s

up
pl

ie
r(

s)
 -

 
if 

an
y 

- 
w

ith
 w

at
er

 u
se

 p
ro

je
ct

io
ns

 fr
om

 th
at

 s
ou

rc
e.

S
ys

te
m

 S
up

pl
ie

s
N

ot
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

x
S

ec
tio

n 
2.

6
W

ho
le

sa
le

 s
up

pl
ie

rs
 w

ill
 in

cl
ud

e 
do

cu
m

en
ta

tio
n 

th
at

 th
ey

 h
av

e 
p

ro
vi

de
d 

th
ei

r 
ur

ba
n 

w
at

er
 

su
pp

lie
rs

 w
ith

 id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
an

d 
qu

an
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
an

d 
pl

an
ne

d 
so

ur
ce

s 
of

 w
at

er
 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
fr

om
 th

e 
w

ho
le

sa
le

 to
 th

e 
ur

ba
n 

su
pp

lie
r 

du
rin

g 
va

rio
us

 w
at

er
 y

ea
r 

ty
pe

s.
S

ys
te

m
 S

up
pl

ie
s

S
ec

tio
n 

2.
6

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

3.
1

D
es

cr
ib

e 
th

e 
w

at
er

 s
up

pl
ie

r 
se

rv
ic

e 
ar

ea
.

S
ys

te
m

 D
e

sc
rip

tio
n

S
ec

tio
n 

3.
1

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

3.
3

D
es

cr
ib

e 
th

e 
cl

im
at

e 
of

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

ar
ea

 o
f t

he
 s

up
pl

ie
r.

S
ys

te
m

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

S
ec

tio
n 

3.
3

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

3.
4

P
ro

vi
de

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

pr
oj

ec
tio

ns
 fo

r 
20

25
, 2

03
0,

 2
03

5,
 2

04
0 

an
d 

op
tio

na
lly

 2
04

5.
S

ys
te

m
 D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
S

ec
tio

n 
3.

4

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

3.
4.

2
D

es
cr

ib
e 

ot
he

r 
so

ci
al

, e
co

no
m

ic
, a

nd
 d

em
og

ra
ph

ic
 fa

ct
or

s 
af

fe
ct

in
g 

th
e 

su
pp

lie
r’s

 w
at

er
 

m
an

a g
em

en
t p

la
nn

in
g.

S
ys

te
m

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

S
ec

tio
n 

3.
4.

2

x
x

S
ec

tio
ns

 3
.4

 a
nd

 5
.4

In
di

ca
te

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t p

op
ul

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

ar
ea

.
S

ys
te

m
 D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 
an

d 
B

as
el

in
es

 a
nd

 T
ar

ge
ts

S
ec

tio
ns

 3
.4

 a
nd

 5
.4

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

3.
5

D
es

cr
ib

e 
th

e 
la

nd
 u

se
s 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
ar

ea
.

S
ys

te
m

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

S
ec

tio
n 

3.
5

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

4.
2

Q
ua

nt
ify

 p
as

t, 
cu

rr
en

t, 
an

d 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

w
at

er
 u

se
, i

de
nt

ify
in

g 
th

e 
us

es
 a

m
on

g 
w

at
er

 u
se

 s
ec

to
rs

.
S

ys
te

m
 W

at
er

 U
se

S
ec

tio
n 

4.
2

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

4.
2.

4
R

et
ai

l s
up

pl
ie

rs
 s

ha
ll 

pr
ov

id
e 

da
ta

 to
 s

ho
w

 th
e 

di
st

rib
ut

io
n 

lo
ss

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 w

er
e 

m
et

.
S

ys
te

m
 W

at
er

 U
se

N
ot

 a
pp

lic
ab

le

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

4.
2.

6
In

 p
ro

je
ct

ed
 w

at
er

 u
se

, i
nc

lu
de

 e
st

im
at

es
 o

f w
at

er
 s

av
in

gs
 fr

om
 a

do
pt

ed
 c

od
es

, p
la

ns
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 
po

lic
ie

s 
or

 la
w

s.
 

S
ys

te
m

 W
at

er
 U

se
S

ec
tio

n 
4.

2.
6

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

4.
2.

6
P

ro
vi

de
 c

ita
tio

ns
 o

f c
od

es
, s

ta
nd

ar
ds

, o
rd

in
an

ce
s,

 o
r 

pl
an

s 
us

e
d 

to
 m

ak
e 

w
at

er
 u

se
 

pr
oj

ec
tio

ns
.

S
ys

te
m

 W
at

er
 U

se
S

ec
tio

n 
4.

2.
6

x
op

tio
na

l
S

ec
tio

n 
4.

3.
2.

4
R

ep
or

t t
he

 d
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
sy

st
em

 w
at

er
 lo

ss
 fo

r 
ea

ch
 o

f t
he

 5
 y

ea
rs

 p
re

ce
di

ng
 th

e 
pl

an
 u

pd
at

e.
S

ys
te

m
 W

at
er

 U
se

N
ot

 a
pp

lic
ab

le

x
op

tio
na

l
S

ec
tio

n 
4.

4
In

cl
ud

e 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

w
at

er
 u

se
 n

ee
de

d 
fo

r 
lo

w
er

 in
co

m
e 

ho
us

in
g 

pr
o

je
ct

ed
 in

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

ar
ea

 o
f 

th
e 

su
pp

lie
r.

S
ys

te
m

 W
at

er
 U

se
N

ot
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

4.
5

D
em

an
ds

 u
nd

er
 c

lim
at

e 
ch

an
ge

 c
on

si
de

ra
tio

ns
 m

us
t b

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

 d
ro

ug
ht

 r
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t.
S

ys
te

m
 W

at
er

 U
se

S
ec

tio
n 

4.
5

x
C

ha
pt

er
 5

R
et

ai
l s

up
pl

ie
rs

 s
ha

ll 
pr

ov
id

e 
ba

se
lin

e 
da

ily
 p

er
 c

ap
ita

 w
at

er
 u

se
, u

rb
an

 w
at

er
 u

se
 ta

rg
et

, 
in

te
rim

 u
rb

an
 w

at
er

 u
se

 ta
rg

et
, a

nd
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
da

ily
 p

er
 c

ap
ita

 w
at

er
 u

se
, a

lo
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

ba
se

s 
fo

r 
de

te
rm

in
in

g 
th

os
e 

es
tim

at
es

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 r

ef
er

en
ce

s 
to

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

da
ta

.
B

as
el

in
es

 a
nd

 T
ar

ge
ts

N
ot

 a
pp

lic
ab

le

x
C

ha
pt

er
 5

R
et

ai
l s

up
pl

ie
rs

 s
ha

ll 
m

ee
t t

he
ir 

w
at

er
 u

se
 ta

rg
et

 b
y 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
02

0.
B

as
el

in
es

 a
nd

 T
ar

ge
ts

N
ot

 a
pp

lic
ab

le

x
S

ec
tio

n 
5.

1
W

ho
le

sa
le

 s
up

pl
ie

rs
 s

ha
ll 

in
cl

ud
e 

an
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t o
f p

re
se

nt
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

se
d 

fu
tu

re
 m

ea
su

re
s,

 
pr

og
ra

m
s,

 a
nd

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
to

 h
el

p 
th

ei
r 

re
ta

il 
w

at
er

 s
up

pl
ie

rs
 a

ch
ie

ve
 ta

rg
et

ed
 w

at
er

 u
se

 
re

du
ct

io
ns

.
B

as
el

in
es

 a
nd

 T
ar

ge
ts

S
ec

tio
n 

5.
1

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



R
et

ai
l

W
h

o
le

sa
le

20
20

 G
u

id
eb

o
o

k 
L

o
ca

ti
o

n
S

u
m

m
ar

y 
as

 A
p

p
lie

s 
to

 U
W

M
P

S
u

b
je

ct
20

20
 U

W
M

P
 L

o
ca

ti
o

n
 (

O
p

ti
o

n
al

 
C

o
lu

m
n

 f
o

r 
A

g
en

cy
 R

ev
ie

w
 U

se
)

x
S

ec
tio

n 
5.

2 
If 

th
e 

re
ta

il 
su

pp
lie

r 
ad

ju
st

s 
its

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

G
P

C
D

 u
si

ng
 w

ea
th

e
r 

no
rm

al
iz

at
io

n,
 e

co
no

m
ic

 
ad

ju
st

m
en

t, 
or

 e
xt

ra
or

di
na

ry
 e

ve
nt

s,
 it

 s
ha

ll 
pr

ov
id

e 
th

e 
ba

si
s 

fo
r,

 a
nd

 d
at

a 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

th
e 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t.

B
as

el
in

es
 a

nd
 T

ar
ge

ts
N

ot
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

x
S

ec
tio

n 
5.

5
R

et
ai

l s
up

pl
ie

rs
’ p

er
 c

ap
ita

 d
ai

ly
 w

at
er

 u
se

 r
ed

uc
tio

n 
sh

al
l b

e
 n

o 
le

ss
 th

an
 5

 p
er

ce
nt

 o
f b

as
e 

da
ily

 p
er

 c
ap

ita
 w

at
er

 u
se

 o
f t

he
 5

 y
ea

r 
ba

se
lin

e.
 T

hi
s 

do
es

 n
o

t a
pp

ly
 if

 th
e 

su
pp

lie
rs

 b
as

e 
G

P
C

D
 is

 a
t o

r 
be

lo
w

 1
00

.
B

as
el

in
es

 a
nd

 T
ar

ge
ts

N
ot

 a
pp

lic
ab

le

x
S

ec
tio

n 
5.

5 
an

d 
A

pp
en

di
x 

E
R

et
ai

l s
up

pl
ie

rs
 s

ha
ll 

re
po

rt
 o

n 
th

ei
r 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

in
 m

ee
tin

g 
th

ei
r 

w
at

er
 u

se
 ta

rg
et

s.
 T

he
 d

at
a 

sh
al

l b
e 

re
po

rt
ed

 u
si

ng
 a

 s
ta

nd
ar

di
ze

d 
fo

rm
 in

 th
e 

S
B

X
7-

7 
20

20
 C

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
F

or
m

.
B

as
el

in
es

 a
nd

 T
ar

ge
ts

N
ot

 a
pp

lic
ab

le

x
x

S
ec

tio
ns

 6
.1

 a
nd

 6
.2

P
ro

vi
de

 a
 d

is
cu

ss
io

n 
of

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 s
up

pl
y 

av
ai

la
bi

lit
y 

un
de

r 
a

 n
or

m
al

, s
in

gl
e 

dr
y 

ye
ar

, a
nd

 a
 

dr
ou

gh
t l

as
tin

g 
fiv

e 
ye

ar
s,

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

m
or

e 
fr

eq
ue

nt
 a

nd
 s

ev
er

e 
pe

rio
ds

 o
f d

ro
ug

ht
.

S
ys

te
m

 S
up

pl
ie

s
S

ec
tio

ns
 6

.1
, 6

.2
, 7

.1
, a

nd
 7

.2

x
x

S
ec

tio
ns

 6
.1

P
ro

vi
de

 a
 d

is
cu

ss
io

n 
of

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 s
up

pl
y 

av
ai

la
bi

lit
y 

un
de

r 
a

 n
or

m
al

, s
in

gl
e 

dr
y 

ye
ar

, a
nd

 a
 

dr
ou

gh
t l

as
tin

g 
fiv

e 
ye

ar
s,

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

m
or

e 
fr

eq
ue

nt
 a

nd
 s

ev
er

e
 p

er
io

ds
 o

f d
ro

ug
ht

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

ch
an

ge
s 

in
 s

up
pl

y 
du

e 
to

 c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
. 

S
ys

te
m

 S
up

pl
ie

s
S

ec
tio

n 
6.

1

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

6.
1

W
he

n 
m

ul
tip

le
 s

ou
rc

es
 o

f w
at

er
 s

up
pl

y 
ar

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d,

 d
es

cr
ib

e 
th

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f e

ac
h 

su
pp

ly
 

in
 r

el
at

io
ns

hi
p 

to
 o

th
er

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
su

pp
lie

s.
S

ys
te

m
 S

up
pl

ie
s

S
ec

tio
n 

6.
1

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

6.
1.

1
D

es
cr

ib
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
ta

ke
n 

to
 a

c q
ui

re
 a

nd
 d

ev
el

op
 p

la
nn

ed
 s

ou
rc

es
 o

f w
at

er
.

S
ys

te
m

 S
up

pl
ie

s
S

ec
tio

n 
6.

1.
1

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

6.
2.

8
Id

en
tif

y 
an

d 
qu

an
tif

y 
th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
an

d 
pl

an
ne

d 
so

ur
ce

s 
of

 w
at

er
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

fo
r 

20
20

, 2
02

5,
 2

03
0,

 
20

35
, 2

04
0 

an
d 

o p
tio

na
lly

 2
04

5.
S

ys
te

m
 S

up
pl

ie
s

S
ec

tio
n 

6.
2.

8

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

6.
2

In
di

ca
te

 w
he

th
er

 g
ro

un
dw

at
er

 is
 a

n 
ex

is
tin

g 
or

 p
la

nn
ed

 s
ou

rc
e 

o
f w

at
er

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
to

 th
e 

su
pp

lie
r.

S
ys

te
m

 S
up

pl
ie

s
S

ec
tio

n 
6.

2

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

6.
2.

2
In

di
ca

te
 w

he
th

er
 a

 g
ro

un
dw

at
er

 s
us

ta
in

ab
ili

ty
 p

la
n 

or
 g

ro
un

dw
at

er
 m

an
ag

em
en

t p
la

n 
ha

s 
be

en
 

ad
op

te
d 

by
 th

e 
w

at
er

 s
up

pl
ie

r 
or

 if
 th

er
e 

is
 a

ny
 o

th
er

 s
pe

ci
fic

 a
ut

ho
riz

at
io

n 
fo

r 
gr

ou
nd

w
at

er
 

m
an

a g
em

en
t. 

In
cl

ud
e 

a 
co

py
 o

f t
he

 p
la

n 
or

 a
ut

ho
riz

at
io

n.
S

ys
te

m
 S

up
pl

ie
s

S
ec

tio
n 

6.
2.

2

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

6.
2.

2
D

es
cr

ib
e 

th
e 

gr
ou

nd
w

at
er

 b
as

in
.

S
ys

te
m

 S
up

pl
ie

s
S

e
ct

io
n 

6.
2.

2

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

6.
2.

2
In

di
ca

te
 if

 th
e 

ba
si

n 
ha

s 
be

en
 a

dj
ud

ic
at

ed
 a

nd
 in

cl
ud

e 
a 

co
py

 o
f t

he
 c

ou
rt

 o
rd

er
 o

r 
de

cr
ee

 a
nd

 
a 

de
sc

ri p
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

am
ou

nt
 o

f w
at

er
 th

e 
su

pp
lie

r 
ha

s 
th

e 
le

ga
l r

ig
ht

 to
 p

um
p.

S
ys

te
m

 S
up

pl
ie

s
S

ec
tio

n 
6.

2.
2

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

6.
2.

2.
1

F
or

 u
na

dj
ud

ic
at

ed
 b

as
in

s,
 in

di
ca

te
 w

he
th

er
 o

r 
no

t t
he

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
t h

as
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
e 

ba
si

n 
as

 a
 

hi
gh

 o
r 

m
ed

iu
m

 p
rio

rit
y.

 D
es

cr
ib

e 
ef

fo
rt

s 
by

 th
e 

su
pp

lie
r 

to
 c

o
or

di
na

te
 w

ith
 s

us
ta

in
ab

ili
ty

 o
r 

gr
ou

nd
w

at
er

 a
ge

nc
ie

s 
to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 g
ro

un
dw

at
er

 c
on

di
tio

ns
. 

S
ys

te
m

 S
up

pl
ie

s
N

ot
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

6.
2.

2.
4

P
ro

vi
de

 a
 d

et
ai

le
d 

de
sc

rip
tio

n 
an

d 
an

al
ys

is
 o

f t
he

 lo
ca

tio
n,

 a
m

ou
nt

, a
nd

 s
uf

fic
ie

nc
y 

of
 

gr
ou

nd
w

at
er

 p
um

pe
d 

by
 th

e 
ur

ba
n 

w
at

er
 s

up
pl

ie
r 

fo
r 

th
e 

pa
st

 fi
ve

 y
ea

rs
S

ys
te

m
 S

up
pl

ie
s

S
ec

tio
n 

6.
2.

2

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

6.
2.

2
P

ro
vi

de
 a

 d
et

ai
le

d 
de

sc
rip

tio
n 

an
d 

an
al

ys
is

 o
f t

he
 a

m
ou

nt
 a

nd
 lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 g
ro

un
dw

at
er

 th
at

 is
 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
to

 b
e 

pu
m

pe
d.

S
ys

te
m

 S
up

pl
ie

s
S

ec
tio

n 
6.

2.
2

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

6.
2.

7
D

es
cr

ib
e 

th
e 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 fo
r 

ex
ch

an
ge

s 
or

 tr
an

sf
er

s 
of

 w
at

er
 o

n 
a 

sh
or

t-
te

rm
 o

r 
lo

ng
- 

te
rm

 
ba

si
s.

S
ys

te
m

 S
up

pl
ie

s
S

ec
tio

n 
6.

2.
7

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

6.
2.

5
D

es
cr

ib
e 

th
e 

qu
an

tit
y 

of
 tr

ea
te

d 
w

as
te

w
at

er
 th

at
 m

ee
ts

 r
ec

yc
le

d 
w

at
er

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
, i

s 
be

in
g 

di
sc

ha
r g

ed
, a

nd
 is

 o
th

er
w

is
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
fo

r 
us

e 
in

 a
 r

ec
yc

le
d 

w
at

er
 p

ro
je

ct
.

S
ys

te
m

 S
up

pl
ie

s 
(R

ec
yc

le
d 

W
at

er
)

S
ec

tio
n 

6.
2.

5

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

6.
2.

5
D

es
cr

ib
e 

th
e 

re
cy

cl
ed

 w
at

er
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 b
ei

ng
 u

se
d

 in
 th

e 
su

pp
lie

r's
 s

er
vi

ce
 a

re
a.

S
ys

te
m

 S
up

pl
ie

s 
(R

ec
yc

le
d 

W
at

er
)

S
ec

tio
n 

6.
2.

5

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

6.
2.

5
D

es
cr

ib
e 

an
d 

qu
an

tif
y 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l u
se

s 
of

 r
ec

yc
le

d 
w

at
er

 a
nd

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 d

et
er

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

te
ch

ni
ca

l a
nd

 e
co

no
m

ic
 fe

as
ib

ili
t y

 o
f t

ho
se

 u
se

s.
S

ys
te

m
 S

up
pl

ie
s 

(R
ec

yc
le

d 
W

at
er

)
S

ec
tio

n 
6.

2.
5

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

6.
2.

5
D

es
cr

ib
e 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
us

e 
of

 r
ec

yc
le

d 
w

at
er

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
su

pp
lie

r's
 s

er
vi

ce
 a

re
a 

at
 th

e 
en

d 
of

 5
, 

10
, 1

5,
 a

nd
 2

0 
ye

ar
s,

 a
nd

 a
 d

es
cr

ip
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ac
tu

al
 u

se
 o

f r
ec

yc
le

d 
w

at
er

 in
 c

om
pa

ris
on

 to
 

us
es

 p
re

vi
ou

sl
y 

pr
oj

ec
te

d.

S
ys

te
m

 S
up

pl
ie

s 
(R

ec
yc

le
d 

W
at

er
)

S
ec

tio
n 

6.
2.

5

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

6.
2.

5
D

es
cr

ib
e 

th
e 

ac
tio

ns
 w

hi
ch

 m
ay

 b
e 

ta
ke

n 
to

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 th

e 
us

e 
of

 r
ec

yc
le

d 
w

at
er

 a
nd

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
re

su
lts

 o
f t

he
se

 a
ct

io
ns

 in
 te

rm
s 

of
 a

cr
e-

fe
et

 o
f r

ec
yc

le
d 

w
at

er
 u

se
d 

pe
r 

ye
ar

.
S

ys
te

m
 S

up
pl

ie
s 

(R
ec

yc
le

d 
W

at
er

)
S

ec
tio

n 
6.

2.
5

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

6.
2.

5
P

ro
vi

de
 a

 p
la

n 
fo

r 
op

tim
iz

in
g 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 r

ec
yc

le
d 

w
at

er
 in

 th
e 

su
pp

lie
r's

 s
er

vi
ce

 a
re

a.
S

ys
te

m
 S

up
pl

ie
s 

(R
ec

yc
le

d 
W

at
er

)
S

ec
tio

n 
6.

2.
5

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

6.
2.

6
D

es
cr

ib
e 

de
sa

lin
at

ed
 w

at
er

 p
ro

je
ct

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r 
lo

ng
-t

er
m

 s
up

pl
y.

S
ys

te
m

 S
up

pl
ie

s
S

ec
tio

n 
6.

2.
6

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

6.
2.

5
D

es
cr

ib
e 

th
e 

w
as

te
w

at
er

 c
ol

le
ct

io
n 

an
d 

tr
ea

tm
en

t s
ys

te
m

s 
in

 th
e

 s
up

pl
ie

r’s
 s

er
vi

ce
 a

re
a 

w
ith

 
qu

an
tif

ie
d 

am
ou

nt
 o

f c
ol

le
ct

io
n 

an
d 

tr
ea

tm
en

t a
nd

 th
e 

di
sp

os
al

 m
et

ho
ds

.
S

ys
te

m
 S

up
pl

ie
s 

(R
ec

yc
le

d 
W

at
er

)
S

ec
tio

n 
6.

2.
5

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

6.
2.

8,
 S

ec
tio

n
 6

.3
.7

D
es

cr
ib

e 
th

e 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 fu

tu
re

 w
at

er
 s

up
pl

y 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 a

nd
 p

ro
gr

am
s 

th
at

 m
ay

 b
e 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 b

y 
th

e 
w

at
er

 s
up

pl
ie

r 
to

 a
dd

re
ss

 w
at

er
 s

up
pl

y 
re

lia
bi

lit
y 

in
 a

ve
ra

ge
, s

in
gl

e-
dr

y,
 a

nd
 fo

r 
a 

pe
rio

d 
of

 
dr

ou
gh

t l
as

tin
g 

5 
co

ns
ec

ut
iv

e 
w

at
er

 y
ea

rs
.

S
ys

te
m

 S
up

pl
ie

s
S

ec
tio

ns
 6

.2
.8

 a
nd

 6
.2

.9

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



R
et

ai
l

W
h

o
le

sa
le

20
20

 G
u

id
eb

o
o

k 
L

o
ca

ti
o

n
S

u
m

m
ar

y 
as

 A
p

p
lie

s 
to

 U
W

M
P

S
u

b
je

ct
20

20
 U

W
M

P
 L

o
ca

ti
o

n
 (

O
p

ti
o

n
al

 
C

o
lu

m
n

 f
o

r 
A

g
en

cy
 R

ev
ie

w
 U

se
)

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

6.
4 

an
d 

A
pp

en
di

x 
O

T
he

 U
W

M
P

 m
us

t i
nc

lu
de

 e
ne

rg
y 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n,

 a
s 

st
at

ed
 in

 th
e 

co
de

, t
ha

t a
 s

up
pl

ie
r 

ca
n 

re
ad

ily
 

ob
ta

in
. 

S
ys

te
m

 S
up

pl
ie

rs
, E

ne
rg

y 
In

te
ns

ity
S

ec
tio

n 
6.

4 

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

7.
2

P
ro

vi
de

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f e

xi
st

in
g 

so
ur

ce
s 

of
 w

at
er

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
to

 th
e 

su
pp

lie
r 

an
d 

th
e 

m
an

ne
r 

in
 w

hi
ch

 w
at

er
 q

ua
lit

y 
af

fe
ct

s 
w

at
er

 m
an

ag
em

en
t s

tr
at

eg
ie

s 
an

d 
su

pp
ly

 r
el

ia
bi

lit
y

W
at

er
 S

up
pl

y 
R

el
ia

bi
lit

y 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
S

ec
tio

n 
7.

2

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

7.
2.

4
D

es
cr

ib
e 

w
at

er
 m

an
ag

em
en

t t
oo

ls
 a

nd
 o

pt
io

ns
 to

 m
ax

im
iz

e 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

an
d 

m
in

im
iz

e 
th

e 
ne

ed
 

to
 im

po
rt

 w
at

er
 fr

om
 o

th
er

 r
eg

io
ns

.
W

at
er

 S
up

pl
y 

R
el

ia
bi

lit
y 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t

S
ec

tio
n 

7.
2.

4

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

7.
3

S
er

vi
ce

 R
el

ia
bi

lit
y 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t: 

A
ss

es
s 

th
e 

w
at

er
 s

up
pl

y 
re

lia
bi

lit
y 

du
rin

g 
no

rm
al

, d
ry

, a
nd

 a
 

dr
ou

gh
t l

as
tin

g 
fiv

e 
co

ns
ec

ut
iv

e 
w

at
er

 y
ea

rs
 b

y 
co

m
pa

rin
g 

th
e 

to
ta

l w
at

er
 s

up
pl

y 
so

ur
ce

s 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 th

e 
w

at
er

 s
up

pl
ie

r 
w

ith
 th

e 
to

ta
l p

ro
je

ct
ed

 w
at

er
 u

se
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

ne
xt

 2
0 

ye
ar

s.

W
at

er
 S

up
pl

y 
R

el
ia

bi
lit

y 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
S

ec
tio

n 
7.

3

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

7.
3

P
ro

vi
de

 a
 d

ro
ug

ht
 r

is
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
t a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 in
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
th

e 
de

m
an

d 
m

an
a g

em
en

t m
ea

su
re

s 
an

d 
w

at
er

 s
up

pl
y 

pr
oj

ec
ts

.
W

at
er

 S
up

pl
y 

R
el

ia
bi

lit
y 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t

S
ec

tio
n 

7.
3

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

7.
3

In
cl

ud
e 

a 
de

sc
rip

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
da

ta
, m

et
ho

do
lo

gy
, a

nd
 b

as
is

 fo
r 

o
ne

 o
r 

m
or

e 
su

pp
ly

 s
ho

rt
ag

e 
co

nd
iti

on
s 

th
at

 a
re

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 to

 c
on

du
ct

 a
 d

ro
ug

ht
 r

is
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
t f

or
 a

 d
ro

ug
ht

 p
er

io
d 

th
at

 
la

st
s 

5 
co

ns
ec

ut
iv

e 
ye

ar
s.

W
at

er
 S

up
pl

y 
R

el
ia

bi
lit

y 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
S

ec
tio

n 
7.

3

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

7.
3

In
cl

ud
e 

a 
de

te
rm

in
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
re

lia
bi

lit
y 

of
 e

ac
h 

so
ur

ce
 o

f s
u

pp
ly

 u
nd

er
 a

 v
ar

ie
ty

 o
f w

at
er

 
sh

or
ta

ge
 c

on
di

tio
ns

.
W

at
er

 S
up

pl
y 

R
el

ia
bi

lit
y 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t

S
ec

tio
n 

7.
3

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

7.
3

In
cl

ud
e 

a 
co

m
pa

ris
on

 o
f t

he
 to

ta
l w

at
er

 s
up

pl
y 

so
ur

ce
s 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 th
e 

w
at

er
 s

up
pl

ie
r 

w
ith

 th
e 

to
ta

l p
ro

je
ct

ed
 w

at
er

 u
se

 fo
r 

th
e 

dr
ou

gh
t p

er
io

d.
 

W
at

er
 S

up
pl

y 
R

el
ia

bi
lit

y 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
S

ec
tio

n 
7.

3

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

7.
3

In
cl

ud
e 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

ns
 o

f t
he

 h
is

to
ric

al
 d

ro
ug

ht
 h

yd
ro

lo
gy

, p
la

us
ib

le
 c

ha
ng

es
 o

n 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

su
pp

lie
s 

an
d 

de
m

an
ds

 u
nd

er
 c

lim
at

e 
ch

an
ge

 c
on

di
tio

ns
, a

nt
ic

ip
at

ed
 r

eg
ul

at
or

y 
ch

an
ge

s,
 a

nd
 

ot
he

r 
lo

ca
ll y

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 c

rit
er

ia
. 

W
at

er
 S

up
pl

y 
R

el
ia

bi
lit

y 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
S

ec
tio

n 
7.

3

x
x

C
ha

pt
er

 8
P

ro
vi

de
 a

 w
at

er
 s

ho
rt

ag
e 

co
nt

in
ge

nc
y 

pl
an

 (
W

S
C

P
) 

w
ith

 s
pe

ci
fie

d 
el

em
en

ts
 b

el
ow

. 
W

at
er

 S
ho

rt
ag

e 
C

on
tin

ge
nc

y 
P

la
nn

in
g

C
ha

pt
er

 8

x
x

C
ha

pt
er

 8
P

ro
vi

de
 th

e 
an

al
ys

is
 o

f w
at

er
 s

up
pl

y 
re

lia
bi

lit
y 

(f
ro

m
 C

ha
pt

er
 7

 o
f G

ui
de

bo
ok

) 
in

 th
e 

W
S

C
P

W
at

er
 S

ho
rt

ag
e 

C
on

tin
ge

nc
y 

P
la

nn
in

g
C

ha
pt

er
 8

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

8.
10

D
es

cr
ib

e 
re

ev
al

ua
tio

n 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

fo
r 

m
on

ito
rin

g
 a

nd
 e

va
lu

at
io

n 
th

e 
w

at
er

 
sh

or
ta

ge
 c

on
tin

ge
nc

y 
pl

an
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

ris
k 

to
le

ra
nc

e 
is

 a
de

qu
at

e 
an

d 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 w
at

er
 s

ho
rt

ag
e 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 a
re

 im
pl

em
en

te
d.

W
at

er
 S

ho
rt

ag
e 

C
on

tin
ge

nc
y 

P
la

nn
in

g
S

ec
tio

n 
8.

10

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

8.
2

P
ro

vi
de

 th
e 

w
rit

te
n 

de
ci

si
on

-m
ak

in
g 

pr
oc

es
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
m

et
ho

ds
 t

ha
t t

he
 s

up
pl

ie
r 

w
ill

 u
se

 e
ac

h 
ye

ar
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

its
 w

at
er

 r
el

ia
bi

lit
y.

 
W

at
er

 S
ho

rt
ag

e 
C

on
tin

ge
nc

y 
P

la
nn

in
g

S
ec

tio
n 

8.
2

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

8.
2

P
ro

vi
de

 d
at

a 
an

d 
m

et
ho

do
lo

gy
 to

 e
va

lu
at

e 
th

e 
su

pp
lie

r’s
 w

at
er

 r
el

ia
bi

lit
y 

fo
r 

th
e 

cu
rr

en
t y

ea
r 

an
d 

on
e 

dr
y 

ye
ar

 p
ur

su
an

t t
o 

fa
ct

or
s 

in
 th

e 
co

de
.

W
at

er
 S

ho
rt

ag
e 

C
on

tin
ge

nc
y 

P
la

nn
in

g
S

ec
tio

n 
8.

2

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

8.
3

D
ef

in
e 

si
x 

st
an

da
rd

 w
at

er
 s

ho
rt

ag
e 

le
ve

ls
 o

f 1
0,

 2
0,

 3
0,

 4
0,

 5
0 

pe
rc

en
t s

ho
rt

ag
e 

an
d 

gr
ea

te
r 

th
an

 5
0 

pe
rc

en
t s

ho
rt

ag
e.

 T
he

se
 le

ve
ls

 s
ha

ll 
be

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
su

pp
ly

 c
on

di
tio

ns
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 p
er

ce
nt

 
re

du
ct

io
ns

 in
 s

up
pl

y,
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 g
ro

un
dw

at
er

 le
ve

ls
, c

ha
ng

es
 in

 s
ur

fa
ce

 e
le

va
tio

n,
 o

r 
ot

he
r 

co
nd

iti
on

s.
 T

he
 s

ho
rt

ag
e 

le
ve

ls
 s

ha
ll 

al
so

 a
pp

ly
 to

 a
 c

at
as

tr
op

hi
c 

in
te

rr
up

tio
n 

of
 s

up
pl

y.

W
at

er
 S

ho
rt

ag
e 

C
on

tin
ge

nc
y 

P
la

nn
in

g
S

ec
tio

n 
8.

3

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

8.
3

S
up

pl
ie

rs
 w

ith
 a

n 
ex

is
tin

g 
w

at
er

 s
ho

rt
ag

e 
co

nt
in

ge
nc

y 
pl

an
 th

at
 u

se
s 

di
ffe

re
nt

 w
at

er
 s

ho
rt

ag
e 

le
ve

ls
 m

us
t c

ro
ss

 r
ef

er
en

ce
 th

ei
r 

ca
te

go
rie

s 
w

ith
 th

e 
si

x 
st

an
da

rd
 c

at
eg

or
ie

s.
W

at
er

 S
ho

rt
ag

e 
C

on
tin

ge
nc

y 
P

la
nn

in
g

S
ec

tio
n 

8.
3

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

8.
4

S
up

pl
ie

rs
 w

ith
 w

at
er

 s
ho

rt
ag

e 
co

nt
in

ge
nc

y 
pl

an
s 

th
at

 a
lig

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
de

fin
ed

 s
ho

rt
ag

e 
le

ve
ls

 
m

us
t s

pe
ci

fy
 lo

ca
lly

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 s
up

pl
y 

au
gm

en
ta

tio
n 

ac
tio

ns
. 

W
at

er
 S

ho
rt

ag
e 

C
on

tin
ge

nc
y 

P
la

nn
in

g
S

ec
tio

n 
8.

4.
2

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

8.
4

S
pe

ci
fy

 lo
ca

lly
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 d

em
an

d 
re

du
ct

io
n 

ac
tio

ns
 to

 a
de

qu
at

el
y 

re
sp

on
d 

to
 s

ho
rt

ag
es

. 
W

at
er

 S
ho

rt
ag

e 
C

on
tin

ge
nc

y 
P

la
nn

in
g

S
ec

tio
n 

8.
4.

1

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

8.
4

S
pe

ci
fy

 lo
ca

lly
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 o

pe
ra

tio
na

l c
ha

ng
es

.  
W

at
er

 S
ho

rt
ag

e 
C

on
tin

ge
nc

y 
P

la
nn

in
g

S
ec

tio
n 

8.
4.

3

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

8.
4

S
pe

ci
fy

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 m

an
da

to
ry

 p
ro

hi
bi

tio
ns

 a
ga

in
st

 s
pe

ci
fic

 w
at

e
r 

us
e 

pr
ac

tic
es

 th
at

 a
re

 in
 

ad
di

tio
n 

to
 s

ta
te

-m
an

da
te

d 
pr

oh
ib

iti
on

s 
ar

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 to
 lo

ca
l c

on
di

tio
ns

. 
W

at
er

 S
ho

rt
ag

e 
C

on
tin

ge
nc

y 
P

la
nn

in
g

S
ec

tio
n 

8.
4.

4

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

8.
4

E
st

im
at

e 
th

e 
ex

te
nt

 to
 w

hi
ch

 th
e 

ga
p 

be
tw

ee
n 

su
pp

lie
s 

an
d 

de
m

an
d 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
du

ce
d 

by
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ac
tio

n.
W

at
er

 S
ho

rt
ag

e 
C

on
tin

ge
nc

y 
P

la
nn

in
g

S
ec

tio
n 

8.
4.

7

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

8.
4.

6
T

he
 p

la
n 

sh
al

l i
nc

lu
de

 a
 s

ei
sm

ic
 r

is
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

an
d 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
pl

an
.

W
at

er
 S

ho
rt

ag
e 

C
on

tin
ge

nc
y 

P
la

n
S

ec
tio

n 
8.

4.
6

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

8.
5

S
up

pl
ie

rs
 m

us
t d

es
cr

ib
e 

th
at

 th
ey

 w
ill

 in
fo

rm
 c

us
to

m
er

s,
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 a
nd

 o
th

er
s 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
an

y 
cu

rr
en

t o
r 

pr
ed

ic
te

d 
w

at
er

 s
ho

rt
ag

es
.

W
at

er
 S

ho
rt

ag
e 

C
on

tin
ge

nc
y 

P
la

nn
in

g
S

ec
tio

n 
8.

5

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



R
et

ai
l

W
h

o
le

sa
le

20
20

 G
u

id
eb

o
o

k 
L

o
ca

ti
o

n
S

u
m

m
ar

y 
as

 A
p

p
lie

s 
to

 U
W

M
P

S
u

b
je

ct
20

20
 U

W
M

P
 L

o
ca

ti
o

n
 (

O
p

ti
o

n
al

 
C

o
lu

m
n

 f
o

r 
A

g
en

cy
 R

ev
ie

w
 U

se
)

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

8.
5 

an
d 

8.
6

S
up

pl
ie

rs
 m

us
t d

es
cr

ib
e 

th
at

 th
ey

 w
ill

 in
fo

rm
 c

us
to

m
er

s,
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 a
nd

 o
th

er
s 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
an

y 
sh

or
ta

ge
 r

es
po

ns
e 

ac
tio

ns
 tr

ig
ge

re
d 

or
 a

nt
ic

ip
at

ed
 to

 b
e 

tr
ig

ge
re

d 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

re
le

va
nt

 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
.

W
at

er
 S

ho
rt

ag
e 

C
on

tin
ge

nc
y 

P
la

nn
in

g
S

ec
tio

n 
8.

5 

x
S

ec
tio

n 
8.

6
R

et
ai

l s
up

pl
ie

r 
m

us
t d

es
cr

ib
e 

ho
w

 it
 w

ill
 e

ns
ur

e 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 a

nd
 e

nf
or

ce
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s 
of

 th
e 

W
S

C
P

.
W

at
er

 S
ho

rt
ag

e 
C

on
tin

ge
nc

y 
P

la
nn

in
g

N
ot

 a
pp

lic
ab

le

x
S

ec
tio

n 
8.

7
D

es
cr

ib
e 

th
e 

le
ga

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
th

at
 e

m
po

w
er

s 
th

e 
su

pp
lie

r 
to

 e
nf

or
ce

 s
ho

rt
ag

e 
re

sp
on

se
 a

ct
io

ns
. 

W
at

er
 S

ho
rt

ag
e 

C
on

tin
ge

nc
y 

P
la

nn
in

g
N

ot
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

8.
7

P
ro

vi
de

 a
 s

ta
te

m
en

t t
ha

t t
he

 s
up

pl
ie

r 
w

ill
 d

ec
la

re
 a

 w
at

er
 s

ho
rt

ag
e 

em
er

ge
nc

y 
W

at
er

 C
od

e 
C

ha
pt

er
 3

. 
W

at
er

 S
ho

rt
ag

e 
C

on
tin

ge
nc

y 
P

la
nn

in
g

S
ec

tio
n 

8.
7

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

8.
7

P
ro

vi
de

 a
 s

ta
te

m
en

t t
ha

t t
he

 s
up

pl
ie

r 
w

ill
 c

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 a

ny
 c

ity
 o

r 
co

un
ty

 w
ith

in
 w

hi
ch

 it
 

pr
ov

id
es

 w
at

er
 fo

r 
th

e 
po

ss
ib

le
 p

ro
cl

am
at

io
n 

of
 a

 lo
ca

l e
m

er
ge

nc
y.

 
W

at
er

 S
ho

rt
ag

e 
C

on
tin

ge
nc

y 
P

la
nn

in
g

S
ec

tio
n 

8.
7

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

8.
8

D
es

cr
ib

e 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l r

ev
en

ue
 r

ed
uc

tio
ns

 a
nd

 e
xp

en
se

 in
cr

ea
se

s 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
ith

 a
ct

iv
at

ed
 

sh
or

ta
ge

 r
es

po
ns

e 
ac

tio
ns

.
W

at
er

 S
ho

rt
ag

e 
C

on
tin

ge
nc

y 
P

la
nn

in
g

S
ec

tio
n 

8.
8

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

8.
8

P
ro

vi
de

 a
 d

es
cr

ip
tio

n 
of

 m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ac

tio
ns

 n
ee

de
d 

to
 a

dd
re

ss
 r

ev
en

ue
 r

ed
uc

tio
ns

 a
nd

 e
xp

en
se

 
in

cr
ea

se
s 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 w

ith
 a

ct
iv

at
ed

 s
ho

rt
a g

e 
re

sp
on

se
 a

ct
io

ns
.

W
at

er
 S

ho
rt

ag
e 

C
on

tin
ge

nc
y 

P
la

nn
in

g
S

ec
tio

n 
8.

8

x
S

ec
tio

n 
8.

8
R

et
ai

l s
up

pl
ie

rs
 m

us
t d

es
cr

ib
e 

th
e 

co
st

 o
f c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 W

at
e

r 
C

od
e 

C
ha

pt
er

 3
.3

: E
xc

es
si

ve
 

R
es

id
en

tia
l W

at
er

 U
se

 D
ur

in
g 

D
ro

ug
ht

W
at

er
 S

ho
rt

ag
e 

C
on

tin
ge

nc
y 

P
la

nn
in

g
S

ec
tio

n 
8.

8

x
S

ec
tio

n 
8.

9
R

et
ai

l s
up

pl
ie

rs
 m

us
t d

es
cr

ib
e 

th
e 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
re

po
rt

in
g 

re
q

ui
re

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s 
th

at
 

en
su

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 d

at
a 

is
 c

ol
le

ct
ed

, t
ra

ck
ed

, a
nd

 a
na

ly
ze

d 
fo

r 
pu

rp
os

es
 o

f m
on

ito
rin

g 
cu

st
om

er
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e.

W
at

er
 S

ho
rt

ag
e 

C
on

tin
ge

nc
y 

P
la

nn
in

g
S

ec
tio

n 
8.

9

x
S

ec
tio

n 
8.

11
A

na
ly

ze
 a

nd
 d

ef
in

e 
w

at
er

 fe
at

ur
es

 th
at

 a
re

 a
rt

ifi
ci

al
ly

 s
up

pl
ie

d
 w

ith
 w

at
er

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 p

on
ds

, 
la

ke
s,

 w
at

er
fa

lls
, a

nd
 fo

un
ta

in
s,

 s
ep

ar
at

el
y 

fr
om

 s
w

im
m

in
g 

po
ol

s 
an

d 
sp

as
.

W
at

er
 S

ho
rt

ag
e 

C
on

tin
ge

nc
y 

P
la

nn
in

g
N

ot
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

x
x

S
ec

tio
ns

 8
.1

2 
an

d 
10

.4
P

ro
vi

de
 s

up
po

rt
in

g 
do

cu
m

en
ta

tio
n 

th
at

 W
at

er
 S

ho
rt

ag
e 

C
on

tin
ge

nc
y 

P
la

n 
ha

s 
be

en
, o

r 
w

ill
 b

e,
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 to
 a

ny
 c

ity
 o

r 
co

un
ty

 w
ith

in
 w

hi
ch

 it
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

w
at

er
, n

o 
la

te
r 

th
an

 3
0

  
da

ys
 a

fte
r 

th
e 

su
bm

is
si

on
 o

f t
he

 p
la

n 
to

 D
W

R
.

P
la

n 
A

do
pt

io
n,

 S
ub

m
itt

al
, a

nd
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n
S

ec
tio

ns
 8

.1
2 

an
d 

10
.4

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

8.
12

M
ak

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

th
e 

W
at

er
 S

ho
rt

ag
e 

C
on

tin
ge

nc
y 

P
la

n 
to

 c
us

to
m

er
s 

an
d 

an
y 

ci
ty

 o
r 

co
un

ty
 

w
he

re
 it

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
w

at
er

 w
ith

in
 3

0 
af

te
r 

ad
op

te
d 

th
e 

pl
an

.
W

at
er

 S
ho

rt
ag

e 
C

on
tin

ge
nc

y 
P

la
nn

in
g

S
ec

tio
n 

8.
12

x
S

ec
tio

ns
 9

.1
 a

nd
 9

.3
W

ho
le

sa
le

 s
up

pl
ie

rs
 s

ha
ll 

de
sc

rib
e 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

de
m

an
d 

m
an

ag
em

en
t m

ea
su

re
s 

lis
te

d 
in

 c
od

e,
 th

ei
r 

di
st

rib
ut

io
n 

sy
st

em
 a

ss
et

 m
an

ag
em

en
t p

ro
gr

am
, a

nd
 s

up
pl

ie
r 

as
si

st
an

ce
 p

ro
gr

am
.

D
em

an
d 

M
an

ag
em

en
t M

ea
su

re
s

S
ec

tio
ns

 9
.1

 a
nd

 9
.3

x
S

ec
tio

ns
 9

.2
 a

nd
 9

.3
R

et
ai

l s
up

pl
ie

rs
 s

ha
ll 

pr
ov

id
e 

a 
de

sc
rip

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
na

tu
re

 a
nd

 e
xt

en
t o

f e
ac

h 
de

m
an

d 
m

an
ag

em
en

t m
ea

su
re

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

ov
er

 th
e 

pa
st

 fi
ve

 y
ea

rs
. T

he
 d

e
sc

rip
tio

n 
w

ill
 a

dd
re

ss
 

s p
ec

ifi
c 

m
ea

su
re

s 
lis

te
d 

in
 c

od
e.

D
em

an
d 

M
an

ag
em

en
t M

ea
su

re
s

N
ot

 a
pp

lic
ab

le

x
C

ha
pt

er
 1

0
R

et
ai

l s
up

pl
ie

rs
 s

ha
ll 

co
nd

uc
t a

 p
ub

lic
 h

ea
rin

g 
to

 d
is

cu
ss

 a
do

p
tio

n,
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n,

 a
nd

 
ec

on
om

ic
 im

pa
ct

 o
f w

at
er

 u
se

 ta
rg

et
s 

(r
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
to

 d
is

cu
ss

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e)

.
P

la
n 

A
do

pt
io

n,
 S

ub
m

itt
al

, a
nd

 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n

N
ot

 a
pp

lic
ab

le

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

10
.2

.1
N

ot
ify

, a
t l

ea
st

 6
0 

da
ys

 p
rio

r 
to

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ea
rin

g,
 a

ny
 c

ity
 o

r 
co

un
ty

 w
ith

in
 w

hi
ch

 th
e 

su
pp

lie
r 

pr
ov

id
es

 w
at

er
 th

at
 th

e 
ur

ba
n 

w
at

er
 s

up
pl

ie
r 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
vi

ew
in

g 
th

e 
pl

an
 a

nd
 c

on
si

de
rin

g 
am

en
dm

en
ts

 o
r 

ch
an

ge
s 

to
 th

e 
pl

an
. R

ep
or

te
d 

in
 T

ab
le

 1
0-

1.

P
la

n 
A

do
pt

io
n,

 S
ub

m
itt

al
, a

nd
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n
S

ec
tio

n 
10

.2
.1

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

10
.4

E
ac

h 
ur

ba
n 

w
at

er
 s

up
pl

ie
r 

sh
al

l u
pd

at
e 

an
d 

su
bm

it 
its

 2
02

0 
pl

an
 to

 th
e 

de
pa

rt
m

en
t b

y 
Ju

ly
 1

, 
20

21
.

P
la

n 
A

do
pt

io
n,

 S
ub

m
itt

al
, a

nd
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n
S

ec
tio

n 
10

.4

x
x

S
ec

tio
ns

 1
0.

2.
2,

 1
0.

3,
 a

nd
 1

0.
5

P
ro

vi
de

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

do
cu

m
en

ta
tio

n 
th

at
 th

e 
ur

ba
n 

w
at

er
 s

up
pl

ie
r 

m
ad

e 
th

e 
pl

an
 a

nd
 

co
nt

in
ge

nc
y 

pl
an

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
fo

r 
pu

bl
ic

 in
sp

ec
tio

n,
 p

ub
lis

he
d 

no
tic

e 
of

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ea
rin

g,
 a

nd
 h

el
d 

a 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ea

rin
g 

ab
ou

t t
he

 p
la

n 
an

d 
co

nt
in

ge
nc

y 
pl

an
.

P
la

n 
A

do
pt

io
n,

 S
ub

m
itt

al
, a

nd
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n
S

ec
tio

ns
 1

0.
2,

 1
0.

3,
 a

nd
 1

0.
5

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

10
.2

.2
T

he
 w

at
er

 s
up

pl
ie

r 
is

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 th

e 
tim

e 
an

d 
pl

ac
e 

of
 th

e 
he

ar
in

g 
to

 a
ny

 c
ity

 o
r 

co
un

ty
 w

ith
in

 
w

hi
ch

 th
e 

su
pp

lie
r 

pr
ov

id
es

 w
at

er
.

P
la

n 
A

do
pt

io
n,

 S
ub

m
itt

al
, a

nd
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n
S

ec
tio

n 
10

.2
.2

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

10
.3

.2
P

ro
vi

de
 s

up
po

rt
in

g 
do

cu
m

en
ta

tio
n 

th
at

 th
e 

pl
an

 a
nd

 c
on

tin
ge

nc
y 

pl
an

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
ad

op
te

d 
as

 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 o

r 
m

od
ifi

ed
.

P
la

n 
A

do
pt

io
n,

 S
ub

m
itt

al
, a

nd
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n
S

ec
tio

n 
10

.3
.2

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

10
.4

P
ro

vi
de

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

do
cu

m
en

ta
tio

n 
th

at
 th

e 
ur

ba
n 

w
at

er
 s

up
pl

ie
r 

ha
s 

su
bm

itt
ed

 th
is

 U
W

M
P

 to
 

th
e 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 S

ta
te

 L
ib

ra
r y

.
P

la
n 

A
do

pt
io

n,
 S

ub
m

itt
al

, a
nd

 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n

S
ec

tio
n 

10
.4

.3

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

10
.4

P
ro

vi
de

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

do
cu

m
en

ta
tio

n 
th

at
 th

e 
ur

ba
n 

w
at

er
 s

up
pl

ie
r 

ha
s 

su
bm

itt
ed

 th
is

 U
W

M
P

 to
 

an
y 

ci
ty

 o
r 

co
un

ty
 w

ith
in

 w
hi

ch
 th

e 
su

pp
lie

r 
pr

ov
id

es
 w

at
er

 n
o 

la
te

r 
th

an
 3

0 
da

ys
 a

fte
r 

ad
op

tio
n.

P
la

n 
A

do
pt

io
n,

 S
ub

m
itt

al
, a

nd
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n
S

ec
tio

n 
10

.4

x
x

S
ec

tio
ns

 1
0.

4.
1 

an
d 

10
.4

.2
T

he
 p

la
n,

 o
r 

am
en

dm
en

ts
 to

 th
e 

pl
an

, s
ub

m
itt

ed
 to

 th
e 

de
pa

rt
m

en
t s

ha
ll 

be
 s

ub
m

itt
ed

 
el

ec
tr

on
ic

al
l y

.
P

la
n 

A
do

pt
io

n,
 S

ub
m

itt
al

, a
nd

 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n

S
ec

tio
ns

 1
0.

4.
1 

an
d 

10
.4

.2

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

10
.5

P
ro

vi
de

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

do
cu

m
en

ta
tio

n 
th

at
, n

ot
 la

te
r 

th
an

 3
0 

da
ys

 a
fte

r 
fil

in
g 

a 
co

py
 o

f i
ts

 p
la

n 
w

ith
 

th
e 

de
pa

rt
m

en
t, 

th
e 

su
pp

lie
r 

ha
s 

or
 w

ill
 m

ak
e 

th
e 

pl
an

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
fo

r 
pu

bl
ic

 r
ev

ie
w

 d
ur

in
g 

no
rm

al
 

bu
si

ne
ss

 h
ou

rs
.

P
la

n 
A

do
pt

io
n,

 S
ub

m
itt

al
, a

nd
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n
S

ec
tio

n 
10

.5

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



R
et

ai
l

W
h

o
le

sa
le

20
20

 G
u

id
eb

o
o

k 
L

o
ca

ti
o

n
S

u
m

m
ar

y 
as

 A
p

p
lie

s 
to

 U
W

M
P

S
u

b
je

ct
20

20
 U

W
M

P
 L

o
ca

ti
o

n
 (

O
p

ti
o

n
al

 
C

o
lu

m
n

 f
o

r 
A

g
en

cy
 R

ev
ie

w
 U

se
)

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

10
.5

P
ro

vi
de

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

do
cu

m
en

ta
tio

n 
th

at
, n

ot
 la

te
r 

th
an

 3
0 

da
ys

 a
fte

r 
fil

in
g 

a 
co

py
 o

f i
ts

 w
at

er
 

sh
or

ta
ge

 c
on

tin
ge

nc
y 

pl
an

 w
ith

 th
e 

de
pa

rt
m

en
t, 

th
e 

su
pp

lie
r 

ha
s 

or
 w

ill
 m

ak
e 

th
e 

pl
an

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
fo

r 
pu

bl
ic

 r
ev

ie
w

 d
ur

in
g 

no
rm

al
 b

us
in

es
s 

ho
ur

s.

P
la

n 
A

do
pt

io
n,

 S
ub

m
itt

al
, a

nd
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n
S

ec
tio

n 
10

.5

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

10
.6

If 
su

pp
lie

r 
is

 r
eg

ul
at

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
P

ub
lic

 U
til

iti
es

 C
om

m
is

si
on

, i
n

cl
ud

e 
its

 p
la

n 
an

d 
co

nt
in

ge
nc

y 
pl

an
 

as
 p

ar
t o

f i
ts

 g
en

er
al

 r
at

e 
ca

se
 fi

lin
gs

. 
P

la
n 

A
do

pt
io

n,
 S

ub
m

itt
al

, a
nd

 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n

S
ec

tio
n 

10
.6

x
x

S
ec

tio
n 

10
.7

.2
If 

re
vi

se
d,

 s
ub

m
it 

a 
co

py
 o

f t
he

 w
at

er
 s

ho
rt

ag
e 

co
nt

in
ge

nc
y 

pl
an

 to
 D

W
R

 w
ith

in
 3

0 
da

ys
 o

f 
ad

o p
tio

n.
P

la
n 

A
do

pt
io

n,
 S

ub
m

itt
al

, a
nd

 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n

S
ec

tio
n 

10
.7

.2

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



 
APPENDIX D 

 
 

60 – DAY NOTIFICATION LETTERS 
AND PUBLIC HEARING NOTIFICATIONS 

 
 
  

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



 
 
 
October 28, 2020 
 
 
 
Cal Poly Pomona 
3801 West Temple Avenue 
Pomona, CA  91768 
 
SUBJECT: 2020 Urban Water Management Plan Update 
 
Dear Agency Representative: 
 
The Three Valleys Municipal Water District is currently in the process of reviewing its Urban 
Water Management Plan (UWMP) for the upcoming 2020 Update.  The Urban Water Management 
Planning Act requires every urban water supplier, which provides water directly or indirectly to 
more than 3,000 customers or supplying more than 3,000 acre-feet of water annually, to prepare 
and adopt an UWMP and periodically update that plan at least once every five years. The UWMP 
is a planning document and a source document to direct urban water suppliers to evaluate and 
compare their water supply and reliability to their existing water conservation efforts. The Three 
Valleys Municipal Water District is currently in the process of preparing the 2020 UWMP Update. 
 
As an urban water supplier, the Three Valleys Municipal Water District is required pursuant to 
Section 10620(d)(3) of the California Water Code to coordinate with water management agencies, 
relevant public agencies, and other water suppliers regarding the preparation of the UWMP.  
Pursuant to Section 10621(b) of the California Water Code, the Three Valleys Municipal Water 
District will be reviewing the UWMP and will make amendments or changes, as appropriate.   
 
The Three Valleys Municipal Water District invites you to submit comments in anticipation of the 
development of our 2020 UWMP Update.  Please provide written comments within the next 30 
days to Tim Kellett at (909) 621-5568 extension 107, Monday – Thursday, 8:00 AM – 5:00 PM or 
via email at tkellett@tvmwd.com. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 
General Manager/Chief Engineer 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Denise Jackman 
Bob Kuhn 
John Mendoza 
Jody Roberto 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


 
 
 
October 28, 2020 
 
 
 
Chino Basin Watermaster 
9641 San Bernardino Rd. 
Rancho Cucamonga, CA  91730 
 
SUBJECT: 2020 Urban Water Management Plan Update 
 
Dear Agency Representative: 
 
The Three Valleys Municipal Water District is currently in the process of reviewing its Urban 
Water Management Plan (UWMP) for the upcoming 2020 Update.  The Urban Water Management 
Planning Act requires every urban water supplier, which provides water directly or indirectly to 
more than 3,000 customers or supplying more than 3,000 acre-feet of water annually, to prepare 
and adopt an UWMP and periodically update that plan at least once every five years. The UWMP 
is a planning document and a source document to direct urban water suppliers to evaluate and 
compare their water supply and reliability to their existing water conservation efforts. The Three 
Valleys Municipal Water District is currently in the process of preparing the 2020 UWMP Update. 
 
As an urban water supplier, the Three Valleys Municipal Water District is required pursuant to 
Section 10620(d)(3) of the California Water Code to coordinate with water management agencies, 
relevant public agencies, and other water suppliers regarding the preparation of the UWMP.  
Pursuant to Section 10621(b) of the California Water Code, the Three Valleys Municipal Water 
District will be reviewing the UWMP and will make amendments or changes, as appropriate.   
 
The Three Valleys Municipal Water District invites you to submit comments in anticipation of the 
development of our 2020 UWMP Update.  Please provide written comments within the next 30 
days to Tim Kellett at (909) 621-5568 extension 107, Monday – Thursday, 8:00 AM – 5:00 PM or 
via email at tkellett@tvmwd.com. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 
General Manager/Chief Engineer 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Denise Jackman 
Bob Kuhn 
John Mendoza 
Jody Roberto 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


 
 
 
October 28, 2020 
 
 
 
City of Azusa 
213 E. Foothill Blvd. 
Azusa, CA  91702 
 
SUBJECT: 2020 Urban Water Management Plan Update 
 
Dear Agency Representative: 
 
The Three Valleys Municipal Water District is currently in the process of reviewing its Urban 
Water Management Plan (UWMP) for the upcoming 2020 Update.  The Urban Water Management 
Planning Act requires every urban water supplier, which provides water directly or indirectly to 
more than 3,000 customers or supplying more than 3,000 acre-feet of water annually, to prepare 
and adopt an UWMP and periodically update that plan at least once every five years. The UWMP 
is a planning document and a source document to direct urban water suppliers to evaluate and 
compare their water supply and reliability to their existing water conservation efforts. The Three 
Valleys Municipal Water District is currently in the process of preparing the 2020 UWMP Update. 
 
As an urban water supplier, the Three Valleys Municipal Water District is required pursuant to 
Section 10620(d)(3) of the California Water Code to coordinate with water management agencies, 
relevant public agencies, and other water suppliers regarding the preparation of the UWMP.  
Pursuant to Section 10621(b) of the California Water Code, the Three Valleys Municipal Water 
District will be reviewing the UWMP and will make amendments or changes, as appropriate.   
 
The Three Valleys Municipal Water District invites you to submit comments in anticipation of the 
development of our 2020 UWMP Update.  Please provide written comments within the next 30 
days to Tim Kellett at (909) 621-5568 extension 107, Monday – Thursday, 8:00 AM – 5:00 PM or 
via email at tkellett@tvmwd.com. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 
General Manager/Chief Engineer 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Denise Jackman 
Bob Kuhn 
John Mendoza 
Jody Roberto 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


 
 
 
October 28, 2020 
 
 
 
City of Claremont 
207 Harvard Avenue 
Claremont, CA  91711 
 
SUBJECT: 2020 Urban Water Management Plan Update 
 
Dear Agency Representative: 
 
The Three Valleys Municipal Water District is currently in the process of reviewing its Urban 
Water Management Plan (UWMP) for the upcoming 2020 Update.  The Urban Water Management 
Planning Act requires every urban water supplier, which provides water directly or indirectly to 
more than 3,000 customers or supplying more than 3,000 acre-feet of water annually, to prepare 
and adopt an UWMP and periodically update that plan at least once every five years. The UWMP 
is a planning document and a source document to direct urban water suppliers to evaluate and 
compare their water supply and reliability to their existing water conservation efforts. The Three 
Valleys Municipal Water District is currently in the process of preparing the 2020 UWMP Update. 
 
As an urban water supplier, the Three Valleys Municipal Water District is required pursuant to 
Section 10620(d)(3) of the California Water Code to coordinate with water management agencies, 
relevant public agencies, and other water suppliers regarding the preparation of the UWMP.  
Pursuant to Section 10621(b) of the California Water Code, the Three Valleys Municipal Water 
District will be reviewing the UWMP and will make amendments or changes, as appropriate.   
 
The Three Valleys Municipal Water District invites you to submit comments in anticipation of the 
development of our 2020 UWMP Update.  Please provide written comments within the next 30 
days to Tim Kellett at (909) 621-5568 extension 107, Monday – Thursday, 8:00 AM – 5:00 PM or 
via email at tkellett@tvmwd.com. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 
General Manager/Chief Engineer 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Denise Jackman 
Bob Kuhn 
John Mendoza 
Jody Roberto 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


 
 
 
October 28, 2020 
 
 
 
City of Covina 
125 E. College Street 
Covina, CA  91723 
 
SUBJECT: 2020 Urban Water Management Plan Update 
 
Dear Agency Representative: 
 
The Three Valleys Municipal Water District is currently in the process of reviewing its Urban 
Water Management Plan (UWMP) for the upcoming 2020 Update.  The Urban Water Management 
Planning Act requires every urban water supplier, which provides water directly or indirectly to 
more than 3,000 customers or supplying more than 3,000 acre-feet of water annually, to prepare 
and adopt an UWMP and periodically update that plan at least once every five years. The UWMP 
is a planning document and a source document to direct urban water suppliers to evaluate and 
compare their water supply and reliability to their existing water conservation efforts. The Three 
Valleys Municipal Water District is currently in the process of preparing the 2020 UWMP Update. 
 
As an urban water supplier, the Three Valleys Municipal Water District is required pursuant to 
Section 10620(d)(3) of the California Water Code to coordinate with water management agencies, 
relevant public agencies, and other water suppliers regarding the preparation of the UWMP.  
Pursuant to Section 10621(b) of the California Water Code, the Three Valleys Municipal Water 
District will be reviewing the UWMP and will make amendments or changes, as appropriate.   
 
The Three Valleys Municipal Water District invites you to submit comments in anticipation of the 
development of our 2020 UWMP Update.  Please provide written comments within the next 30 
days to Tim Kellett at (909) 621-5568 extension 107, Monday – Thursday, 8:00 AM – 5:00 PM or 
via email at tkellett@tvmwd.com. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 
General Manager/Chief Engineer 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Denise Jackman 
Bob Kuhn 
John Mendoza 
Jody Roberto 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


 
 
 
October 28, 2020 
 
 
 
City of Diamond Bar 
21810 Copley Drive 
Diamond Bar, CA  91765 
 
SUBJECT: 2020 Urban Water Management Plan Update 
 
Dear Agency Representative: 
 
The Three Valleys Municipal Water District is currently in the process of reviewing its Urban 
Water Management Plan (UWMP) for the upcoming 2020 Update.  The Urban Water Management 
Planning Act requires every urban water supplier, which provides water directly or indirectly to 
more than 3,000 customers or supplying more than 3,000 acre-feet of water annually, to prepare 
and adopt an UWMP and periodically update that plan at least once every five years. The UWMP 
is a planning document and a source document to direct urban water suppliers to evaluate and 
compare their water supply and reliability to their existing water conservation efforts. The Three 
Valleys Municipal Water District is currently in the process of preparing the 2020 UWMP Update. 
 
As an urban water supplier, the Three Valleys Municipal Water District is required pursuant to 
Section 10620(d)(3) of the California Water Code to coordinate with water management agencies, 
relevant public agencies, and other water suppliers regarding the preparation of the UWMP.  
Pursuant to Section 10621(b) of the California Water Code, the Three Valleys Municipal Water 
District will be reviewing the UWMP and will make amendments or changes, as appropriate.   
 
The Three Valleys Municipal Water District invites you to submit comments in anticipation of the 
development of our 2020 UWMP Update.  Please provide written comments within the next 30 
days to Tim Kellett at (909) 621-5568 extension 107, Monday – Thursday, 8:00 AM – 5:00 PM or 
via email at tkellett@tvmwd.com. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 
General Manager/Chief Engineer 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Denise Jackman 
Bob Kuhn 
John Mendoza 
Jody Roberto 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


 
 
 
October 28, 2020 
 
 
 
City of Glendora 
116 E. Foothill Blvd. 
Glendora, CA  91741-3380 
 
SUBJECT: 2020 Urban Water Management Plan Update 
 
Dear Agency Representative: 
 
The Three Valleys Municipal Water District is currently in the process of reviewing its Urban 
Water Management Plan (UWMP) for the upcoming 2020 Update.  The Urban Water Management 
Planning Act requires every urban water supplier, which provides water directly or indirectly to 
more than 3,000 customers or supplying more than 3,000 acre-feet of water annually, to prepare 
and adopt an UWMP and periodically update that plan at least once every five years. The UWMP 
is a planning document and a source document to direct urban water suppliers to evaluate and 
compare their water supply and reliability to their existing water conservation efforts. The Three 
Valleys Municipal Water District is currently in the process of preparing the 2020 UWMP Update. 
 
As an urban water supplier, the Three Valleys Municipal Water District is required pursuant to 
Section 10620(d)(3) of the California Water Code to coordinate with water management agencies, 
relevant public agencies, and other water suppliers regarding the preparation of the UWMP.  
Pursuant to Section 10621(b) of the California Water Code, the Three Valleys Municipal Water 
District will be reviewing the UWMP and will make amendments or changes, as appropriate.   
 
The Three Valleys Municipal Water District invites you to submit comments in anticipation of the 
development of our 2020 UWMP Update.  Please provide written comments within the next 30 
days to Tim Kellett at (909) 621-5568 extension 107, Monday – Thursday, 8:00 AM – 5:00 PM or 
via email at tkellett@tvmwd.com. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 
General Manager/Chief Engineer 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Denise Jackman 
Bob Kuhn 
John Mendoza 
Jody Roberto 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


 
 
 
October 28, 2020 
 
 
 
City of Industry 
15625 East Stafford Street 
City of Industry, CA  91744 
 
SUBJECT: 2020 Urban Water Management Plan Update 
 
Dear Agency Representative: 
 
The Three Valleys Municipal Water District is currently in the process of reviewing its Urban 
Water Management Plan (UWMP) for the upcoming 2020 Update.  The Urban Water Management 
Planning Act requires every urban water supplier, which provides water directly or indirectly to 
more than 3,000 customers or supplying more than 3,000 acre-feet of water annually, to prepare 
and adopt an UWMP and periodically update that plan at least once every five years. The UWMP 
is a planning document and a source document to direct urban water suppliers to evaluate and 
compare their water supply and reliability to their existing water conservation efforts. The Three 
Valleys Municipal Water District is currently in the process of preparing the 2020 UWMP Update. 
 
As an urban water supplier, the Three Valleys Municipal Water District is required pursuant to 
Section 10620(d)(3) of the California Water Code to coordinate with water management agencies, 
relevant public agencies, and other water suppliers regarding the preparation of the UWMP.  
Pursuant to Section 10621(b) of the California Water Code, the Three Valleys Municipal Water 
District will be reviewing the UWMP and will make amendments or changes, as appropriate.   
 
The Three Valleys Municipal Water District invites you to submit comments in anticipation of the 
development of our 2020 UWMP Update.  Please provide written comments within the next 30 
days to Tim Kellett at (909) 621-5568 extension 107, Monday – Thursday, 8:00 AM – 5:00 PM or 
via email at tkellett@tvmwd.com. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 
General Manager/Chief Engineer 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Denise Jackman 
Bob Kuhn 
John Mendoza 
Jody Roberto 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


 
 
 
October 28, 2020 
 
 
 
City of La Puente 
15900 East Main Street 
La Puente, CA  91744 
 
SUBJECT: 2020 Urban Water Management Plan Update 
 
Dear Agency Representative: 
 
The Three Valleys Municipal Water District is currently in the process of reviewing its Urban 
Water Management Plan (UWMP) for the upcoming 2020 Update.  The Urban Water Management 
Planning Act requires every urban water supplier, which provides water directly or indirectly to 
more than 3,000 customers or supplying more than 3,000 acre-feet of water annually, to prepare 
and adopt an UWMP and periodically update that plan at least once every five years. The UWMP 
is a planning document and a source document to direct urban water suppliers to evaluate and 
compare their water supply and reliability to their existing water conservation efforts. The Three 
Valleys Municipal Water District is currently in the process of preparing the 2020 UWMP Update. 
 
As an urban water supplier, the Three Valleys Municipal Water District is required pursuant to 
Section 10620(d)(3) of the California Water Code to coordinate with water management agencies, 
relevant public agencies, and other water suppliers regarding the preparation of the UWMP.  
Pursuant to Section 10621(b) of the California Water Code, the Three Valleys Municipal Water 
District will be reviewing the UWMP and will make amendments or changes, as appropriate.   
 
The Three Valleys Municipal Water District invites you to submit comments in anticipation of the 
development of our 2020 UWMP Update.  Please provide written comments within the next 30 
days to Tim Kellett at (909) 621-5568 extension 107, Monday – Thursday, 8:00 AM – 5:00 PM or 
via email at tkellett@tvmwd.com. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 
General Manager/Chief Engineer 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Denise Jackman 
Bob Kuhn 
John Mendoza 
Jody Roberto 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


 
 
 
October 28, 2020 
 
 
 
City of La Verne 
3660 “D” Street 
La Verne, CA  91750 
 
SUBJECT: 2020 Urban Water Management Plan Update 
 
Dear Agency Representative: 
 
The Three Valleys Municipal Water District is currently in the process of reviewing its Urban 
Water Management Plan (UWMP) for the upcoming 2020 Update.  The Urban Water Management 
Planning Act requires every urban water supplier, which provides water directly or indirectly to 
more than 3,000 customers or supplying more than 3,000 acre-feet of water annually, to prepare 
and adopt an UWMP and periodically update that plan at least once every five years. The UWMP 
is a planning document and a source document to direct urban water suppliers to evaluate and 
compare their water supply and reliability to their existing water conservation efforts. The Three 
Valleys Municipal Water District is currently in the process of preparing the 2020 UWMP Update. 
 
As an urban water supplier, the Three Valleys Municipal Water District is required pursuant to 
Section 10620(d)(3) of the California Water Code to coordinate with water management agencies, 
relevant public agencies, and other water suppliers regarding the preparation of the UWMP.  
Pursuant to Section 10621(b) of the California Water Code, the Three Valleys Municipal Water 
District will be reviewing the UWMP and will make amendments or changes, as appropriate.   
 
The Three Valleys Municipal Water District invites you to submit comments in anticipation of the 
development of our 2020 UWMP Update.  Please provide written comments within the next 30 
days to Tim Kellett at (909) 621-5568 extension 107, Monday – Thursday, 8:00 AM – 5:00 PM or 
via email at tkellett@tvmwd.com. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 
General Manager/Chief Engineer 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Denise Jackman 
Bob Kuhn 
John Mendoza 
Jody Roberto 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


 
 
 
October 28, 2020 
 
 
 
Suburban Water Systems 
1325 N. Grand Avenue., Suite 100 
Covina, CA  91724 
 
SUBJECT: 2020 Urban Water Management Plan Update 
 
Dear Agency Representative: 
 
The Three Valleys Municipal Water District is currently in the process of reviewing its Urban 
Water Management Plan (UWMP) for the upcoming 2020 Update.  The Urban Water Management 
Planning Act requires every urban water supplier, which provides water directly or indirectly to 
more than 3,000 customers or supplying more than 3,000 acre-feet of water annually, to prepare 
and adopt an UWMP and periodically update that plan at least once every five years. The UWMP 
is a planning document and a source document to direct urban water suppliers to evaluate and 
compare their water supply and reliability to their existing water conservation efforts. The Three 
Valleys Municipal Water District is currently in the process of preparing the 2020 UWMP Update. 
 
As an urban water supplier, the Three Valleys Municipal Water District is required pursuant to 
Section 10620(d)(3) of the California Water Code to coordinate with water management agencies, 
relevant public agencies, and other water suppliers regarding the preparation of the UWMP.  
Pursuant to Section 10621(b) of the California Water Code, the Three Valleys Municipal Water 
District will be reviewing the UWMP and will make amendments or changes, as appropriate.   
 
The Three Valleys Municipal Water District invites you to submit comments in anticipation of the 
development of our 2020 UWMP Update.  Please provide written comments within the next 30 
days to Tim Kellett at (909) 621-5568 extension 107, Monday – Thursday, 8:00 AM – 5:00 PM or 
via email at tkellett@tvmwd.com. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 
General Manager/Chief Engineer 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Denise Jackman 
Bob Kuhn 
John Mendoza 
Jody Roberto 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


 
 
 
October 28, 2020 
 
 
 
Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District 
602 E. Huntington Drive, Ste. B 
Monrovia, CA  91016 
 
SUBJECT: 2020 Urban Water Management Plan Update 
 
Dear Agency Representative: 
 
The Three Valleys Municipal Water District is currently in the process of reviewing its Urban 
Water Management Plan (UWMP) for the upcoming 2020 Update.  The Urban Water Management 
Planning Act requires every urban water supplier, which provides water directly or indirectly to 
more than 3,000 customers or supplying more than 3,000 acre-feet of water annually, to prepare 
and adopt an UWMP and periodically update that plan at least once every five years. The UWMP 
is a planning document and a source document to direct urban water suppliers to evaluate and 
compare their water supply and reliability to their existing water conservation efforts. The Three 
Valleys Municipal Water District is currently in the process of preparing the 2020 UWMP Update. 
 
As an urban water supplier, the Three Valleys Municipal Water District is required pursuant to 
Section 10620(d)(3) of the California Water Code to coordinate with water management agencies, 
relevant public agencies, and other water suppliers regarding the preparation of the UWMP.  
Pursuant to Section 10621(b) of the California Water Code, the Three Valleys Municipal Water 
District will be reviewing the UWMP and will make amendments or changes, as appropriate.   
 
The Three Valleys Municipal Water District invites you to submit comments in anticipation of the 
development of our 2020 UWMP Update.  Please provide written comments within the next 30 
days to Tim Kellett at (909) 621-5568 extension 107, Monday – Thursday, 8:00 AM – 5:00 PM or 
via email at tkellett@tvmwd.com. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 
General Manager/Chief Engineer 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Denise Jackman 
Bob Kuhn 
John Mendoza 
Jody Roberto 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


 
 
 
October 28, 2020 
 
 
 
Valencia Heights Water Co. 
3009 Virginia Avenue 
West Covina, CA  91791-2252 
 
SUBJECT: 2020 Urban Water Management Plan Update 
 
Dear Agency Representative: 
 
The Three Valleys Municipal Water District is currently in the process of reviewing its Urban 
Water Management Plan (UWMP) for the upcoming 2020 Update.  The Urban Water Management 
Planning Act requires every urban water supplier, which provides water directly or indirectly to 
more than 3,000 customers or supplying more than 3,000 acre-feet of water annually, to prepare 
and adopt an UWMP and periodically update that plan at least once every five years. The UWMP 
is a planning document and a source document to direct urban water suppliers to evaluate and 
compare their water supply and reliability to their existing water conservation efforts. The Three 
Valleys Municipal Water District is currently in the process of preparing the 2020 UWMP Update. 
 
As an urban water supplier, the Three Valleys Municipal Water District is required pursuant to 
Section 10620(d)(3) of the California Water Code to coordinate with water management agencies, 
relevant public agencies, and other water suppliers regarding the preparation of the UWMP.  
Pursuant to Section 10621(b) of the California Water Code, the Three Valleys Municipal Water 
District will be reviewing the UWMP and will make amendments or changes, as appropriate.   
 
The Three Valleys Municipal Water District invites you to submit comments in anticipation of the 
development of our 2020 UWMP Update.  Please provide written comments within the next 30 
days to Tim Kellett at (909) 621-5568 extension 107, Monday – Thursday, 8:00 AM – 5:00 PM or 
via email at tkellett@tvmwd.com. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 
General Manager/Chief Engineer 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Denise Jackman 
Bob Kuhn 
John Mendoza 
Jody Roberto 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


 
 
 
October 28, 2020 
 
 
 
Walnut Valley Water District 
271 South Brea Canyon Road 
Walnut, CA  91789 
 
SUBJECT: 2020 Urban Water Management Plan Update 
 
Dear Agency Representative: 
 
The Three Valleys Municipal Water District is currently in the process of reviewing its Urban 
Water Management Plan (UWMP) for the upcoming 2020 Update.  The Urban Water Management 
Planning Act requires every urban water supplier, which provides water directly or indirectly to 
more than 3,000 customers or supplying more than 3,000 acre-feet of water annually, to prepare 
and adopt an UWMP and periodically update that plan at least once every five years. The UWMP 
is a planning document and a source document to direct urban water suppliers to evaluate and 
compare their water supply and reliability to their existing water conservation efforts. The Three 
Valleys Municipal Water District is currently in the process of preparing the 2020 UWMP Update. 
 
As an urban water supplier, the Three Valleys Municipal Water District is required pursuant to 
Section 10620(d)(3) of the California Water Code to coordinate with water management agencies, 
relevant public agencies, and other water suppliers regarding the preparation of the UWMP.  
Pursuant to Section 10621(b) of the California Water Code, the Three Valleys Municipal Water 
District will be reviewing the UWMP and will make amendments or changes, as appropriate.   
 
The Three Valleys Municipal Water District invites you to submit comments in anticipation of the 
development of our 2020 UWMP Update.  Please provide written comments within the next 30 
days to Tim Kellett at (909) 621-5568 extension 107, Monday – Thursday, 8:00 AM – 5:00 PM or 
via email at tkellett@tvmwd.com. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 
General Manager/Chief Engineer 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Denise Jackman 
Bob Kuhn 
John Mendoza 
Jody Roberto 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


 
 
 
October 28, 2020 
 
 
 
City of Pomona 
505 South Garey Avenue 
Pomona, CA  91766 
 
SUBJECT: 2020 Urban Water Management Plan Update 
 
Dear Agency Representative: 
 
The Three Valleys Municipal Water District is currently in the process of reviewing its Urban 
Water Management Plan (UWMP) for the upcoming 2020 Update.  The Urban Water Management 
Planning Act requires every urban water supplier, which provides water directly or indirectly to 
more than 3,000 customers or supplying more than 3,000 acre-feet of water annually, to prepare 
and adopt an UWMP and periodically update that plan at least once every five years. The UWMP 
is a planning document and a source document to direct urban water suppliers to evaluate and 
compare their water supply and reliability to their existing water conservation efforts. The Three 
Valleys Municipal Water District is currently in the process of preparing the 2020 UWMP Update. 
 
As an urban water supplier, the Three Valleys Municipal Water District is required pursuant to 
Section 10620(d)(3) of the California Water Code to coordinate with water management agencies, 
relevant public agencies, and other water suppliers regarding the preparation of the UWMP.  
Pursuant to Section 10621(b) of the California Water Code, the Three Valleys Municipal Water 
District will be reviewing the UWMP and will make amendments or changes, as appropriate.   
 
The Three Valleys Municipal Water District invites you to submit comments in anticipation of the 
development of our 2020 UWMP Update.  Please provide written comments within the next 30 
days to Tim Kellett at (909) 621-5568 extension 107, Monday – Thursday, 8:00 AM – 5:00 PM or 
via email at tkellett@tvmwd.com. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 
General Manager/Chief Engineer 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Denise Jackman 
Bob Kuhn 
John Mendoza 
Jody Roberto 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


 
 
 
October 28, 2020 
 
 
 
City of Walnut 
21201 La Puente Road 
Walnut, CA  91789 
 
SUBJECT: 2020 Urban Water Management Plan Update 
 
Dear Agency Representative: 
 
The Three Valleys Municipal Water District is currently in the process of reviewing its Urban 
Water Management Plan (UWMP) for the upcoming 2020 Update.  The Urban Water Management 
Planning Act requires every urban water supplier, which provides water directly or indirectly to 
more than 3,000 customers or supplying more than 3,000 acre-feet of water annually, to prepare 
and adopt an UWMP and periodically update that plan at least once every five years. The UWMP 
is a planning document and a source document to direct urban water suppliers to evaluate and 
compare their water supply and reliability to their existing water conservation efforts. The Three 
Valleys Municipal Water District is currently in the process of preparing the 2020 UWMP Update. 
 
As an urban water supplier, the Three Valleys Municipal Water District is required pursuant to 
Section 10620(d)(3) of the California Water Code to coordinate with water management agencies, 
relevant public agencies, and other water suppliers regarding the preparation of the UWMP.  
Pursuant to Section 10621(b) of the California Water Code, the Three Valleys Municipal Water 
District will be reviewing the UWMP and will make amendments or changes, as appropriate.   
 
The Three Valleys Municipal Water District invites you to submit comments in anticipation of the 
development of our 2020 UWMP Update.  Please provide written comments within the next 30 
days to Tim Kellett at (909) 621-5568 extension 107, Monday – Thursday, 8:00 AM – 5:00 PM or 
via email at tkellett@tvmwd.com. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 
General Manager/Chief Engineer 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Denise Jackman 
Bob Kuhn 
John Mendoza 
Jody Roberto 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


 
 
 
October 28, 2020 
 
 
 
Covina Irrigating Company 
146 E. College Street 
Covina, CA  91723 
 
SUBJECT: 2020 Urban Water Management Plan Update 
 
Dear Agency Representative: 
 
The Three Valleys Municipal Water District is currently in the process of reviewing its Urban 
Water Management Plan (UWMP) for the upcoming 2020 Update.  The Urban Water Management 
Planning Act requires every urban water supplier, which provides water directly or indirectly to 
more than 3,000 customers or supplying more than 3,000 acre-feet of water annually, to prepare 
and adopt an UWMP and periodically update that plan at least once every five years. The UWMP 
is a planning document and a source document to direct urban water suppliers to evaluate and 
compare their water supply and reliability to their existing water conservation efforts. The Three 
Valleys Municipal Water District is currently in the process of preparing the 2020 UWMP Update. 
 
As an urban water supplier, the Three Valleys Municipal Water District is required pursuant to 
Section 10620(d)(3) of the California Water Code to coordinate with water management agencies, 
relevant public agencies, and other water suppliers regarding the preparation of the UWMP.  
Pursuant to Section 10621(b) of the California Water Code, the Three Valleys Municipal Water 
District will be reviewing the UWMP and will make amendments or changes, as appropriate.   
 
The Three Valleys Municipal Water District invites you to submit comments in anticipation of the 
development of our 2020 UWMP Update.  Please provide written comments within the next 30 
days to Tim Kellett at (909) 621-5568 extension 107, Monday – Thursday, 8:00 AM – 5:00 PM or 
via email at tkellett@tvmwd.com. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 
General Manager/Chief Engineer 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Denise Jackman 
Bob Kuhn 
John Mendoza 
Jody Roberto 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


 
 
 
October 28, 2020 
 
 
 
Golden State Water Co. 
401 South San Dimas Canyon Road  
San Dimas, CA 91773 
 
SUBJECT: 2020 Urban Water Management Plan Update 
 
Dear Agency Representative: 
 
The Three Valleys Municipal Water District is currently in the process of reviewing its Urban 
Water Management Plan (UWMP) for the upcoming 2020 Update.  The Urban Water Management 
Planning Act requires every urban water supplier, which provides water directly or indirectly to 
more than 3,000 customers or supplying more than 3,000 acre-feet of water annually, to prepare 
and adopt an UWMP and periodically update that plan at least once every five years. The UWMP 
is a planning document and a source document to direct urban water suppliers to evaluate and 
compare their water supply and reliability to their existing water conservation efforts. The Three 
Valleys Municipal Water District is currently in the process of preparing the 2020 UWMP Update. 
 
As an urban water supplier, the Three Valleys Municipal Water District is required pursuant to 
Section 10620(d)(3) of the California Water Code to coordinate with water management agencies, 
relevant public agencies, and other water suppliers regarding the preparation of the UWMP.  
Pursuant to Section 10621(b) of the California Water Code, the Three Valleys Municipal Water 
District will be reviewing the UWMP and will make amendments or changes, as appropriate.   
 
The Three Valleys Municipal Water District invites you to submit comments in anticipation of the 
development of our 2020 UWMP Update.  Please provide written comments within the next 30 
days to Tim Kellett at (909) 621-5568 extension 107, Monday – Thursday, 8:00 AM – 5:00 PM or 
via email at tkellett@tvmwd.com. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 
General Manager/Chief Engineer 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Denise Jackman 
Bob Kuhn 
John Mendoza 
Jody Roberto 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


 
 
 
October 28, 2020 
 
 
 
Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
P.O. Box 9020 
Chino Hills, CA  91709 
 
SUBJECT: 2020 Urban Water Management Plan Update 
 
Dear Agency Representative: 
 
The Three Valleys Municipal Water District is currently in the process of reviewing its Urban 
Water Management Plan (UWMP) for the upcoming 2020 Update.  The Urban Water Management 
Planning Act requires every urban water supplier, which provides water directly or indirectly to 
more than 3,000 customers or supplying more than 3,000 acre-feet of water annually, to prepare 
and adopt an UWMP and periodically update that plan at least once every five years. The UWMP 
is a planning document and a source document to direct urban water suppliers to evaluate and 
compare their water supply and reliability to their existing water conservation efforts. The Three 
Valleys Municipal Water District is currently in the process of preparing the 2020 UWMP Update. 
 
As an urban water supplier, the Three Valleys Municipal Water District is required pursuant to 
Section 10620(d)(3) of the California Water Code to coordinate with water management agencies, 
relevant public agencies, and other water suppliers regarding the preparation of the UWMP.  
Pursuant to Section 10621(b) of the California Water Code, the Three Valleys Municipal Water 
District will be reviewing the UWMP and will make amendments or changes, as appropriate.   
 
The Three Valleys Municipal Water District invites you to submit comments in anticipation of the 
development of our 2020 UWMP Update.  Please provide written comments within the next 30 
days to Tim Kellett at (909) 621-5568 extension 107, Monday – Thursday, 8:00 AM – 5:00 PM or 
via email at tkellett@tvmwd.com. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 
General Manager/Chief Engineer 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Denise Jackman 
Bob Kuhn 
John Mendoza 
Jody Roberto 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


 
 
 
October 28, 2020 
 
 
 
Los Angeles County  
900 S. Fremont Ave  
Alhambra, CA 91803 
 
SUBJECT: 2020 Urban Water Management Plan Update 
 
Dear Agency Representative: 
 
The Three Valleys Municipal Water District is currently in the process of reviewing its Urban 
Water Management Plan (UWMP) for the upcoming 2020 Update.  The Urban Water Management 
Planning Act requires every urban water supplier, which provides water directly or indirectly to 
more than 3,000 customers or supplying more than 3,000 acre-feet of water annually, to prepare 
and adopt an UWMP and periodically update that plan at least once every five years. The UWMP 
is a planning document and a source document to direct urban water suppliers to evaluate and 
compare their water supply and reliability to their existing water conservation efforts. The Three 
Valleys Municipal Water District is currently in the process of preparing the 2020 UWMP Update. 
 
As an urban water supplier, the Three Valleys Municipal Water District is required pursuant to 
Section 10620(d)(3) of the California Water Code to coordinate with water management agencies, 
relevant public agencies, and other water suppliers regarding the preparation of the UWMP.  
Pursuant to Section 10621(b) of the California Water Code, the Three Valleys Municipal Water 
District will be reviewing the UWMP and will make amendments or changes, as appropriate.   
 
The Three Valleys Municipal Water District invites you to submit comments in anticipation of the 
development of our 2020 UWMP Update.  Please provide written comments within the next 30 
days to Tim Kellett at (909) 621-5568 extension 107, Monday – Thursday, 8:00 AM – 5:00 PM or 
via email at tkellett@tvmwd.com. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 
General Manager/Chief Engineer 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Denise Jackman 
Bob Kuhn 
John Mendoza 
Jody Roberto 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


 
 
 
October 28, 2020 
 
 
 
Main San Gabriel Basin Watermaster 
725 N. Azusa Avenue 
Azusa, CA  91702 
 
SUBJECT: 2020 Urban Water Management Plan Update 
 
Dear Agency Representative: 
 
The Three Valleys Municipal Water District is currently in the process of reviewing its Urban 
Water Management Plan (UWMP) for the upcoming 2020 Update.  The Urban Water Management 
Planning Act requires every urban water supplier, which provides water directly or indirectly to 
more than 3,000 customers or supplying more than 3,000 acre-feet of water annually, to prepare 
and adopt an UWMP and periodically update that plan at least once every five years. The UWMP 
is a planning document and a source document to direct urban water suppliers to evaluate and 
compare their water supply and reliability to their existing water conservation efforts. The Three 
Valleys Municipal Water District is currently in the process of preparing the 2020 UWMP Update. 
 
As an urban water supplier, the Three Valleys Municipal Water District is required pursuant to 
Section 10620(d)(3) of the California Water Code to coordinate with water management agencies, 
relevant public agencies, and other water suppliers regarding the preparation of the UWMP.  
Pursuant to Section 10621(b) of the California Water Code, the Three Valleys Municipal Water 
District will be reviewing the UWMP and will make amendments or changes, as appropriate.   
 
The Three Valleys Municipal Water District invites you to submit comments in anticipation of the 
development of our 2020 UWMP Update.  Please provide written comments within the next 30 
days to Tim Kellett at (909) 621-5568 extension 107, Monday – Thursday, 8:00 AM – 5:00 PM or 
via email at tkellett@tvmwd.com. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 
General Manager/Chief Engineer 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Denise Jackman 
Bob Kuhn 
John Mendoza 
Jody Roberto 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


 
 
 
October 28, 2020 
 
 
 
Metropolitan Water District 
P.O. Box 54156 
Los Angeles, CA  90054-0153 
 
SUBJECT: 2020 Urban Water Management Plan Update 
 
Dear Agency Representative: 
 
The Three Valleys Municipal Water District is currently in the process of reviewing its Urban 
Water Management Plan (UWMP) for the upcoming 2020 Update.  The Urban Water Management 
Planning Act requires every urban water supplier, which provides water directly or indirectly to 
more than 3,000 customers or supplying more than 3,000 acre-feet of water annually, to prepare 
and adopt an UWMP and periodically update that plan at least once every five years. The UWMP 
is a planning document and a source document to direct urban water suppliers to evaluate and 
compare their water supply and reliability to their existing water conservation efforts. The Three 
Valleys Municipal Water District is currently in the process of preparing the 2020 UWMP Update. 
 
As an urban water supplier, the Three Valleys Municipal Water District is required pursuant to 
Section 10620(d)(3) of the California Water Code to coordinate with water management agencies, 
relevant public agencies, and other water suppliers regarding the preparation of the UWMP.  
Pursuant to Section 10621(b) of the California Water Code, the Three Valleys Municipal Water 
District will be reviewing the UWMP and will make amendments or changes, as appropriate.   
 
The Three Valleys Municipal Water District invites you to submit comments in anticipation of the 
development of our 2020 UWMP Update.  Please provide written comments within the next 30 
days to Tim Kellett at (909) 621-5568 extension 107, Monday – Thursday, 8:00 AM – 5:00 PM or 
via email at tkellett@tvmwd.com. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 
General Manager/Chief Engineer 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Denise Jackman 
Bob Kuhn 
John Mendoza 
Jody Roberto 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


 
 
 
October 28, 2020 
 
 
 
Mt. San Antonio College 
1100 N. Grand Avenue 
Walnut, CA  91789 
 
SUBJECT: 2020 Urban Water Management Plan Update 
 
Dear Agency Representative: 
 
The Three Valleys Municipal Water District is currently in the process of reviewing its Urban 
Water Management Plan (UWMP) for the upcoming 2020 Update.  The Urban Water Management 
Planning Act requires every urban water supplier, which provides water directly or indirectly to 
more than 3,000 customers or supplying more than 3,000 acre-feet of water annually, to prepare 
and adopt an UWMP and periodically update that plan at least once every five years. The UWMP 
is a planning document and a source document to direct urban water suppliers to evaluate and 
compare their water supply and reliability to their existing water conservation efforts. The Three 
Valleys Municipal Water District is currently in the process of preparing the 2020 UWMP Update. 
 
As an urban water supplier, the Three Valleys Municipal Water District is required pursuant to 
Section 10620(d)(3) of the California Water Code to coordinate with water management agencies, 
relevant public agencies, and other water suppliers regarding the preparation of the UWMP.  
Pursuant to Section 10621(b) of the California Water Code, the Three Valleys Municipal Water 
District will be reviewing the UWMP and will make amendments or changes, as appropriate.   
 
The Three Valleys Municipal Water District invites you to submit comments in anticipation of the 
development of our 2020 UWMP Update.  Please provide written comments within the next 30 
days to Tim Kellett at (909) 621-5568 extension 107, Monday – Thursday, 8:00 AM – 5:00 PM or 
via email at tkellett@tvmwd.com. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 
General Manager/Chief Engineer 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Denise Jackman 
Bob Kuhn 
John Mendoza 
Jody Roberto 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


 
 
 
October 28, 2020 
 
 
 
Rowland Water District 
3021 Fullerton Rd. 
Rowland Heights, CA  91748 
 
SUBJECT: 2020 Urban Water Management Plan Update 
 
Dear Agency Representative: 
 
The Three Valleys Municipal Water District is currently in the process of reviewing its Urban 
Water Management Plan (UWMP) for the upcoming 2020 Update.  The Urban Water Management 
Planning Act requires every urban water supplier, which provides water directly or indirectly to 
more than 3,000 customers or supplying more than 3,000 acre-feet of water annually, to prepare 
and adopt an UWMP and periodically update that plan at least once every five years. The UWMP 
is a planning document and a source document to direct urban water suppliers to evaluate and 
compare their water supply and reliability to their existing water conservation efforts. The Three 
Valleys Municipal Water District is currently in the process of preparing the 2020 UWMP Update. 
 
As an urban water supplier, the Three Valleys Municipal Water District is required pursuant to 
Section 10620(d)(3) of the California Water Code to coordinate with water management agencies, 
relevant public agencies, and other water suppliers regarding the preparation of the UWMP.  
Pursuant to Section 10621(b) of the California Water Code, the Three Valleys Municipal Water 
District will be reviewing the UWMP and will make amendments or changes, as appropriate.   
 
The Three Valleys Municipal Water District invites you to submit comments in anticipation of the 
development of our 2020 UWMP Update.  Please provide written comments within the next 30 
days to Tim Kellett at (909) 621-5568 extension 107, Monday – Thursday, 8:00 AM – 5:00 PM or 
via email at tkellett@tvmwd.com. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 
General Manager/Chief Engineer 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Denise Jackman 
Bob Kuhn 
John Mendoza 
Jody Roberto 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


 
 
 
October 28, 2020 
 
 
 
Six Basins Watermaster 
c/o Wildermuth Environmental, Inc. 
23692 Birtcher Drive 
Lake Forest, CA 92630 
 
SUBJECT: 2020 Urban Water Management Plan Update 
 
Dear Agency Representative: 
 
The Three Valleys Municipal Water District is currently in the process of reviewing its Urban 
Water Management Plan (UWMP) for the upcoming 2020 Update.  The Urban Water Management 
Planning Act requires every urban water supplier, which provides water directly or indirectly to 
more than 3,000 customers or supplying more than 3,000 acre-feet of water annually, to prepare 
and adopt an UWMP and periodically update that plan at least once every five years. The UWMP 
is a planning document and a source document to direct urban water suppliers to evaluate and 
compare their water supply and reliability to their existing water conservation efforts. The Three 
Valleys Municipal Water District is currently in the process of preparing the 2020 UWMP Update. 
 
As an urban water supplier, the Three Valleys Municipal Water District is required pursuant to 
Section 10620(d)(3) of the California Water Code to coordinate with water management agencies, 
relevant public agencies, and other water suppliers regarding the preparation of the UWMP.  
Pursuant to Section 10621(b) of the California Water Code, the Three Valleys Municipal Water 
District will be reviewing the UWMP and will make amendments or changes, as appropriate.   
 
The Three Valleys Municipal Water District invites you to submit comments in anticipation of the 
development of our 2020 UWMP Update.  Please provide written comments within the next 30 
days to Tim Kellett at (909) 621-5568 extension 107, Monday – Thursday, 8:00 AM – 5:00 PM or 
via email at tkellett@tvmwd.com. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 
General Manager/Chief Engineer 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Denise Jackman 
Bob Kuhn 
John Mendoza 
Jody Roberto 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING  
ON PROPOSED ADOPTION OF THE 

2020 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN AND  
WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN  

BY THREE VALLEYS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of Directors (Board) of Three Valleys 
Municipal Water District (TVMWD) will meet during a regular meeting held via 
teleconference: 
 

Wednesday, June 16, 2021, 8:00 a.m. 
at Three Valleys Municipal Water District 

1021 East Miramar Avenue, Claremont, CA 91711 
(909) 621-5568 

 
The Three Valley’s Municipal Water (District) will conduct a PUBLIC HEARING for the 
purposes of adopting its 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and its Water Shortage 
Contingency Plan.  The District’s 2020 Urban Water Management Plan incorporates the 
District’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan. 
 

The 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan were 
prepared pursuant to the “Urban Water Management Planning Act” and the California 
Water Code.  The California Department of Water Resources requires every urban water 
supplier to prepare and adopt an Urban Water Management Plan, including the Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan, and periodically update the Urban Water Management Plan 
at least once every five years, in years ending in six and one.   
 

TVMWD welcomes and encourages your participation at the public meeting.  If you have 
any questions regarding the 2020 Urban Water Management Plan or Water Shortage 
Contingency Plan or would like additional information, please contact the Chief Water 
Resources Officer Timothy Kellett, at (909) 621-5568 or by email, tkellett@tvmwd.com, 
Monday through Thursday from 8:00 A.M. to 5:00 P.M. 
 
 
Published:   June 2, 2021 
  June 9, 2021 
  
 
Para información en Español, llame (909) 621-5568 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      /s/ Matthew Litchfield 
      General Manager / Chief Engineer 
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



 
 
Boy Scouts of America 
Attention: Matt Bear 
2333 Scout Way 
Los Angeles, CA 90026 
 
SUBJECT: Notice of Public Hearing for  
  2020 Urban Water Management Plan and 
  Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
 

Dear Mr. Bear: 
 
The Three Valley’s Municipal Water (District) will hold a PUBLIC HEARING on June 16, 
2021, for the purposes of adopting its 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and its Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan.  The District’s 2020 Urban Water Management Plan 
incorporates the District’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan. 
 
The 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan were 
prepared pursuant to the “Urban Water Management Planning Act” and the California 
Water Code.  The California Department of Water Resources requires every urban water 
supplier to prepare and adopt an Urban Water Management Plan, including the Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan, and periodically update the Urban Water Management Plan 
at least once every five years, in years ending in six and one.   
 
Information regarding the District’s PUBLIC HEARING follows: 
 Date: June 16, 2021 
 Time: 8:00 AM 
 Place: Remote video conference via GoToWebinar 
 
The meeting registration link will be posted on the District’s website at the following 
address: 
https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/ 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Bob Kuhn 
Jody Roberto 
Danielle Soto 
Mike Ti 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/


 
The District invites all interested entities to attend and present their comments.  A copy 
of the draft 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
will be available on the District’s website.  Please provide written comments no later than 
June 15, 2021, to the Chief Water Resources Officer Timothy Kellett, at (909) 621-5568 
or by email, tkellett@tvmwd.com, Monday through Thursday, from 8:00 A.M. to 5:00 
P.M.  
 
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


 
 
 
 
Cal Poly Pomona 
3801 West Temple Avenue 
Pomona, CA  91768 
 
SUBJECT: Notice of Public Hearing for  
  2020 Urban Water Management Plan and 
  Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
 
Dear Agency Representative: 
 
The Three Valley’s Municipal Water (District) will hold a PUBLIC HEARING on June 16, 
2021, for the purposes of adopting its 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and its Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan.  The District’s 2020 Urban Water Management Plan 
incorporates the District’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan. 
 
The 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan were 
prepared pursuant to the “Urban Water Management Planning Act” and the California 
Water Code.  The California Department of Water Resources requires every urban water 
supplier to prepare and adopt an Urban Water Management Plan, including the Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan, and periodically update the Urban Water Management Plan 
at least once every five years, in years ending in six and one.   
 
Information regarding the District’s PUBLIC HEARING follows: 
 Date: June 16, 2021 
 Time: 8:00 AM 
 Place: Remote video conference via GoToWebinar 
 
The meeting registration link will be posted on the District’s website at the following 
address: 
https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/ 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Bob Kuhn 
Jody Roberto 
Danielle Soto 
Mike Ti 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/


 
The District invites all interested entities to attend and present their comments.  A copy 
of the draft 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
will be available on the District’s website.  Please provide written comments no later than 
June 15, 2021, to the Chief Water Resources Officer Timothy Kellett, at (909) 621-5568 
or by email, tkellett@tvmwd.com, Monday through Thursday, from 8:00 A.M. to 5:00 
P.M.  
 
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


 
 
 
 
Chino Basin Watermaster 
9641 San Bernardino Rd. 
Rancho Cucamonga, CA  91730 
 
SUBJECT: Notice of Public Hearing for  
  2020 Urban Water Management Plan and 
  Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
 
Dear Agency Representative: 
 
The Three Valley’s Municipal Water (District) will hold a PUBLIC HEARING on June 16, 
2021, for the purposes of adopting its 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and its Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan.  The District’s 2020 Urban Water Management Plan 
incorporates the District’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan. 
 
The 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan were 
prepared pursuant to the “Urban Water Management Planning Act” and the California 
Water Code.  The California Department of Water Resources requires every urban water 
supplier to prepare and adopt an Urban Water Management Plan, including the Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan, and periodically update the Urban Water Management Plan 
at least once every five years, in years ending in six and one.   
 
Information regarding the District’s PUBLIC HEARING follows: 
 Date: June 16, 2021 
 Time: 8:00 AM 
 Place: Remote video conference via GoToWebinar 
 
The meeting registration link will be posted on the District’s website at the following 
address: 
https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/ 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Bob Kuhn 
Jody Roberto 
Danielle Soto 
Mike Ti 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/


 
The District invites all interested entities to attend and present their comments.  A copy 
of the draft 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
will be available on the District’s website.  Please provide written comments no later than 
June 15, 2021, to the Chief Water Resources Officer Timothy Kellett, at (909) 621-5568 
or by email, tkellett@tvmwd.com, Monday through Thursday, from 8:00 A.M. to 5:00 
P.M.  
 
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


 
 
 
 
City of Azusa 
213 E. Foothill Blvd. 
Azusa, CA  91702 
 
SUBJECT: Notice of Public Hearing for  
  2020 Urban Water Management Plan and 
  Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
 
Dear Agency Representative: 
 
The Three Valley’s Municipal Water (District) will hold a PUBLIC HEARING on June 16, 
2021, for the purposes of adopting its 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and its Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan.  The District’s 2020 Urban Water Management Plan 
incorporates the District’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan. 
 
The 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan were 
prepared pursuant to the “Urban Water Management Planning Act” and the California 
Water Code.  The California Department of Water Resources requires every urban water 
supplier to prepare and adopt an Urban Water Management Plan, including the Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan, and periodically update the Urban Water Management Plan 
at least once every five years, in years ending in six and one.   
 
Information regarding the District’s PUBLIC HEARING follows: 
 Date: June 16, 2021 
 Time: 8:00 AM 
 Place: Remote video conference via GoToWebinar 
 
The meeting registration link will be posted on the District’s website at the following 
address: 
https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/ 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Bob Kuhn 
Jody Roberto 
Danielle Soto 
Mike Ti 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/


 
The District invites all interested entities to attend and present their comments.  A copy 
of the draft 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
will be available on the District’s website.  Please provide written comments no later than 
June 15, 2021, to the Chief Water Resources Officer Timothy Kellett, at (909) 621-5568 
or by email, tkellett@tvmwd.com, Monday through Thursday, from 8:00 A.M. to 5:00 
P.M.  
 
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


 
 
 
 
City of Claremont 
207 Harvard Avenue 
Claremont, CA  91711 
 
SUBJECT: Notice of Public Hearing for  
  2020 Urban Water Management Plan and 
  Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
 
Dear Agency Representative: 
 
The Three Valley’s Municipal Water (District) will hold a PUBLIC HEARING on June 16, 
2021, for the purposes of adopting its 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and its Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan.  The District’s 2020 Urban Water Management Plan 
incorporates the District’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan. 
 
The 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan were 
prepared pursuant to the “Urban Water Management Planning Act” and the California 
Water Code.  The California Department of Water Resources requires every urban water 
supplier to prepare and adopt an Urban Water Management Plan, including the Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan, and periodically update the Urban Water Management Plan 
at least once every five years, in years ending in six and one.   
 
Information regarding the District’s PUBLIC HEARING follows: 
 Date: June 16, 2021 
 Time: 8:00 AM 
 Place: Remote video conference via GoToWebinar 
 
The meeting registration link will be posted on the District’s website at the following 
address: 
https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/ 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Bob Kuhn 
Jody Roberto 
Danielle Soto 
Mike Ti 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/


 
The District invites all interested entities to attend and present their comments.  A copy 
of the draft 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
will be available on the District’s website.  Please provide written comments no later than 
June 15, 2021, to the Chief Water Resources Officer Timothy Kellett, at (909) 621-5568 
or by email, tkellett@tvmwd.com, Monday through Thursday, from 8:00 A.M. to 5:00 
P.M.  
 
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


 
 
 
 
City of Covina 
125 E. College Street 
Covina, CA  91723 
 
SUBJECT: Notice of Public Hearing for  
  2020 Urban Water Management Plan and 
  Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
 
Dear Agency Representative: 
 
The Three Valley’s Municipal Water (District) will hold a PUBLIC HEARING on June 16, 
2021, for the purposes of adopting its 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and its Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan.  The District’s 2020 Urban Water Management Plan 
incorporates the District’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan. 
 
The 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan were 
prepared pursuant to the “Urban Water Management Planning Act” and the California 
Water Code.  The California Department of Water Resources requires every urban water 
supplier to prepare and adopt an Urban Water Management Plan, including the Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan, and periodically update the Urban Water Management Plan 
at least once every five years, in years ending in six and one.   
 
Information regarding the District’s PUBLIC HEARING follows: 
 Date: June 16, 2021 
 Time: 8:00 AM 
 Place: Remote video conference via GoToWebinar 
 
The meeting registration link will be posted on the District’s website at the following 
address: 
https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/ 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Bob Kuhn 
Jody Roberto 
Danielle Soto 
Mike Ti 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/


 
The District invites all interested entities to attend and present their comments.  A copy 
of the draft 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
will be available on the District’s website.  Please provide written comments no later than 
June 15, 2021, to the Chief Water Resources Officer Timothy Kellett, at (909) 621-5568 
or by email, tkellett@tvmwd.com, Monday through Thursday, from 8:00 A.M. to 5:00 
P.M.  
 
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


 
 
 
 
City of Diamond Bar 
21810 Copley Drive 
Diamond Bar, CA  91765 
 
SUBJECT: Notice of Public Hearing for  
  2020 Urban Water Management Plan and 
  Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
 
Dear Agency Representative: 
 
The Three Valley’s Municipal Water (District) will hold a PUBLIC HEARING on June 16, 
2021, for the purposes of adopting its 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and its Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan.  The District’s 2020 Urban Water Management Plan 
incorporates the District’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan. 
 
The 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan were 
prepared pursuant to the “Urban Water Management Planning Act” and the California 
Water Code.  The California Department of Water Resources requires every urban water 
supplier to prepare and adopt an Urban Water Management Plan, including the Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan, and periodically update the Urban Water Management Plan 
at least once every five years, in years ending in six and one.   
 
Information regarding the District’s PUBLIC HEARING follows: 
 Date: June 16, 2021 
 Time: 8:00 AM 
 Place: Remote video conference via GoToWebinar 
 
The meeting registration link will be posted on the District’s website at the following 
address: 
https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/ 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Bob Kuhn 
Jody Roberto 
Danielle Soto 
Mike Ti 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/


 
The District invites all interested entities to attend and present their comments.  A copy 
of the draft 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
will be available on the District’s website.  Please provide written comments no later than 
June 15, 2021, to the Chief Water Resources Officer Timothy Kellett, at (909) 621-5568 
or by email, tkellett@tvmwd.com, Monday through Thursday, from 8:00 A.M. to 5:00 
P.M.  
 
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


 
 
 
City of Glendora 
116 E. Foothill Blvd. 
Glendora, CA  91741-3380 
 
SUBJECT: Notice of Public Hearing for  
  2020 Urban Water Management Plan and 
  Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
 
Dear Agency Representative: 
 
The Three Valley’s Municipal Water (District) will hold a PUBLIC HEARING on June 16, 
2021, for the purposes of adopting its 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and its Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan.  The District’s 2020 Urban Water Management Plan 
incorporates the District’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan. 
 
The 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan were 
prepared pursuant to the “Urban Water Management Planning Act” and the California 
Water Code.  The California Department of Water Resources requires every urban water 
supplier to prepare and adopt an Urban Water Management Plan, including the Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan, and periodically update the Urban Water Management Plan 
at least once every five years, in years ending in six and one.   
 
Information regarding the District’s PUBLIC HEARING follows: 
 Date: June 16, 2021 
 Time: 8:00 AM 
 Place: Remote video conference via GoToWebinar 
 
The meeting registration link will be posted on the District’s website at the following 
address: 
https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/ 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Bob Kuhn 
Jody Roberto 
Danielle Soto 
Mike Ti 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/


 
The District invites all interested entities to attend and present their comments.  A copy 
of the draft 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
will be available on the District’s website.  Please provide written comments no later than 
June 15, 2021, to the Chief Water Resources Officer Timothy Kellett, at (909) 621-5568 
or by email, tkellett@tvmwd.com, Monday through Thursday, from 8:00 A.M. to 5:00 
P.M.  
 
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


 
 
 
City of Industry 
15625 East Stafford Street 
City of Industry, CA  91744 
 
SUBJECT: Notice of Public Hearing for  
  2020 Urban Water Management Plan and 
  Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
 
Dear Agency Representative: 
 
The Three Valley’s Municipal Water (District) will hold a PUBLIC HEARING on June 16, 
2021, for the purposes of adopting its 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and its Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan.  The District’s 2020 Urban Water Management Plan 
incorporates the District’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan. 
 
The 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan were 
prepared pursuant to the “Urban Water Management Planning Act” and the California 
Water Code.  The California Department of Water Resources requires every urban water 
supplier to prepare and adopt an Urban Water Management Plan, including the Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan, and periodically update the Urban Water Management Plan 
at least once every five years, in years ending in six and one.   
 
Information regarding the District’s PUBLIC HEARING follows: 
 Date: June 16, 2021 
 Time: 8:00 AM 
 Place: Remote video conference via GoToWebinar 
 
The meeting registration link will be posted on the District’s website at the following 
address: 
https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/ 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Bob Kuhn 
Jody Roberto 
Danielle Soto 
Mike Ti 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/


 
The District invites all interested entities to attend and present their comments.  A copy 
of the draft 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
will be available on the District’s website.  Please provide written comments no later than 
June 15, 2021, to the Chief Water Resources Officer Timothy Kellett, at (909) 621-5568 
or by email, tkellett@tvmwd.com, Monday through Thursday, from 8:00 A.M. to 5:00 
P.M.  
 
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


 
 
 
City of La Puente 
15900 East Main Street 
La Puente, CA  91744 
 
SUBJECT: Notice of Public Hearing for  
  2020 Urban Water Management Plan and 
  Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
 
Dear Agency Representative: 
 
The Three Valley’s Municipal Water (District) will hold a PUBLIC HEARING on June 16, 
2021, for the purposes of adopting its 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and its Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan.  The District’s 2020 Urban Water Management Plan 
incorporates the District’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan. 
 
The 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan were 
prepared pursuant to the “Urban Water Management Planning Act” and the California 
Water Code.  The California Department of Water Resources requires every urban water 
supplier to prepare and adopt an Urban Water Management Plan, including the Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan, and periodically update the Urban Water Management Plan 
at least once every five years, in years ending in six and one.   
 
Information regarding the District’s PUBLIC HEARING follows: 
 Date: June 16, 2021 
 Time: 8:00 AM 
 Place: Remote video conference via GoToWebinar 
 
The meeting registration link will be posted on the District’s website at the following 
address: 
https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/ 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Bob Kuhn 
Jody Roberto 
Danielle Soto 
Mike Ti 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/


 
The District invites all interested entities to attend and present their comments.  A copy 
of the draft 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
will be available on the District’s website.  Please provide written comments no later than 
June 15, 2021, to the Chief Water Resources Officer Timothy Kellett, at (909) 621-5568 
or by email, tkellett@tvmwd.com, Monday through Thursday, from 8:00 A.M. to 5:00 
P.M.  
 
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


 
 
 
City of La Verne 
3660 “D” Street 
La Verne, CA  91750 
 
SUBJECT: Notice of Public Hearing for  
  2020 Urban Water Management Plan and 
  Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
 
Dear Agency Representative: 
 
The Three Valley’s Municipal Water (District) will hold a PUBLIC HEARING on June 16, 
2021, for the purposes of adopting its 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and its Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan.  The District’s 2020 Urban Water Management Plan 
incorporates the District’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan. 
 
The 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan were 
prepared pursuant to the “Urban Water Management Planning Act” and the California 
Water Code.  The California Department of Water Resources requires every urban water 
supplier to prepare and adopt an Urban Water Management Plan, including the Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan, and periodically update the Urban Water Management Plan 
at least once every five years, in years ending in six and one.   
 
Information regarding the District’s PUBLIC HEARING follows: 
 Date: June 16, 2021 
 Time: 8:00 AM 
 Place: Remote video conference via GoToWebinar 
 
The meeting registration link will be posted on the District’s website at the following 
address: 
https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/ 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Bob Kuhn 
Jody Roberto 
Danielle Soto 
Mike Ti 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/


 
The District invites all interested entities to attend and present their comments.  A copy 
of the draft 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
will be available on the District’s website.  Please provide written comments no later than 
June 15, 2021, to the Chief Water Resources Officer Timothy Kellett, at (909) 621-5568 
or by email, tkellett@tvmwd.com, Monday through Thursday, from 8:00 A.M. to 5:00 
P.M.  
 
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


 
 
 
Six Basins Watermaster 
c/o Wildermuth Environmental, Inc. 
23692 Birtcher Drive 
Lake Forest, CA 92630 
 
SUBJECT: Notice of Public Hearing for  
  2020 Urban Water Management Plan and 
  Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
 
Dear Agency Representative: 
 
The Three Valley’s Municipal Water (District) will hold a PUBLIC HEARING on June 16, 
2021, for the purposes of adopting its 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and its Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan.  The District’s 2020 Urban Water Management Plan 
incorporates the District’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan. 
 
The 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan were 
prepared pursuant to the “Urban Water Management Planning Act” and the California 
Water Code.  The California Department of Water Resources requires every urban water 
supplier to prepare and adopt an Urban Water Management Plan, including the Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan, and periodically update the Urban Water Management Plan 
at least once every five years, in years ending in six and one.   
 
Information regarding the District’s PUBLIC HEARING follows: 
 Date: June 16, 2021 
 Time: 8:00 AM 
 Place: Remote video conference via GoToWebinar 
 
The meeting registration link will be posted on the District’s website at the following 
address: 
https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/ 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Bob Kuhn 
Jody Roberto 
Danielle Soto 
Mike Ti 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/


 
The District invites all interested entities to attend and present their comments.  A copy 
of the draft 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
will be available on the District’s website.  Please provide written comments no later than 
June 15, 2021, to the Chief Water Resources Officer Timothy Kellett, at (909) 621-5568 
or by email, tkellett@tvmwd.com, Monday through Thursday, from 8:00 A.M. to 5:00 
P.M.  
 
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


 
 
 
Suburban Water Systems 
1325 N. Grand Avenue., Suite 100 
Covina, CA  91724 
 
SUBJECT: Notice of Public Hearing for  
  2020 Urban Water Management Plan and 
  Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
 
Dear Agency Representative: 
 
The Three Valley’s Municipal Water (District) will hold a PUBLIC HEARING on June 16, 
2021, for the purposes of adopting its 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and its Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan.  The District’s 2020 Urban Water Management Plan 
incorporates the District’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan. 
 
The 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan were 
prepared pursuant to the “Urban Water Management Planning Act” and the California 
Water Code.  The California Department of Water Resources requires every urban water 
supplier to prepare and adopt an Urban Water Management Plan, including the Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan, and periodically update the Urban Water Management Plan 
at least once every five years, in years ending in six and one.   
 
Information regarding the District’s PUBLIC HEARING follows: 
 Date: June 16, 2021 
 Time: 8:00 AM 
 Place: Remote video conference via GoToWebinar 
 
The meeting registration link will be posted on the District’s website at the following 
address: 
https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/ 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Bob Kuhn 
Jody Roberto 
Danielle Soto 
Mike Ti 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/


 
The District invites all interested entities to attend and present their comments.  A copy 
of the draft 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
will be available on the District’s website.  Please provide written comments no later than 
June 15, 2021, to the Chief Water Resources Officer Timothy Kellett, at (909) 621-5568 
or by email, tkellett@tvmwd.com, Monday through Thursday, from 8:00 A.M. to 5:00 
P.M.  
 
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


 
 
 
Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District 
602 E. Huntington Drive., Ste B 
Monrovia, CA  91016 
 
SUBJECT: Notice of Public Hearing for  
  2020 Urban Water Management Plan and 
  Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
 
Dear Agency Representative: 
 
The Three Valley’s Municipal Water (District) will hold a PUBLIC HEARING on June 16, 
2021, for the purposes of adopting its 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and its Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan.  The District’s 2020 Urban Water Management Plan 
incorporates the District’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan. 
 
The 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan were 
prepared pursuant to the “Urban Water Management Planning Act” and the California 
Water Code.  The California Department of Water Resources requires every urban water 
supplier to prepare and adopt an Urban Water Management Plan, including the Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan, and periodically update the Urban Water Management Plan 
at least once every five years, in years ending in six and one.   
 
Information regarding the District’s PUBLIC HEARING follows: 
 Date: June 16, 2021 
 Time: 8:00 AM 
 Place: Remote video conference via GoToWebinar 
 
The meeting registration link will be posted on the District’s website at the following 
address: 
https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/ 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Bob Kuhn 
Jody Roberto 
Danielle Soto 
Mike Ti 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/


 
The District invites all interested entities to attend and present their comments.  A copy 
of the draft 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
will be available on the District’s website.  Please provide written comments no later than 
June 15, 2021, to the Chief Water Resources Officer Timothy Kellett, at (909) 621-5568 
or by email, tkellett@tvmwd.com, Monday through Thursday, from 8:00 A.M. to 5:00 
P.M.  
 
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


 
 
 
Valencia Heights Water Co. 
3009 Virginia Avenue 
West Covina, CA  91791-2252 
 
SUBJECT: Notice of Public Hearing for  
  2020 Urban Water Management Plan and 
  Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
 
Dear Agency Representative: 
 
The Three Valley’s Municipal Water (District) will hold a PUBLIC HEARING on June 16, 
2021, for the purposes of adopting its 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and its Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan.  The District’s 2020 Urban Water Management Plan 
incorporates the District’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan. 
 
The 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan were 
prepared pursuant to the “Urban Water Management Planning Act” and the California 
Water Code.  The California Department of Water Resources requires every urban water 
supplier to prepare and adopt an Urban Water Management Plan, including the Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan, and periodically update the Urban Water Management Plan 
at least once every five years, in years ending in six and one.   
 
Information regarding the District’s PUBLIC HEARING follows: 
 Date: June 16, 2021 
 Time: 8:00 AM 
 Place: Remote video conference via GoToWebinar 
 
The meeting registration link will be posted on the District’s website at the following 
address: 
https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/ 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Bob Kuhn 
Jody Roberto 
Danielle Soto 
Mike Ti 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/


 
The District invites all interested entities to attend and present their comments.  A copy 
of the draft 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
will be available on the District’s website.  Please provide written comments no later than 
June 15, 2021, to the Chief Water Resources Officer Timothy Kellett, at (909) 621-5568 
or by email, tkellett@tvmwd.com, Monday through Thursday, from 8:00 A.M. to 5:00 
P.M.  
 
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


 
 
 
Walnut Valley Water District 
271 South Brea Canyon Road 
Walnut, CA  91789 
 
SUBJECT: Notice of Public Hearing for  
  2020 Urban Water Management Plan and 
  Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
 
Dear Agency Representative: 
 
The Three Valley’s Municipal Water (District) will hold a PUBLIC HEARING on June 16, 
2021, for the purposes of adopting its 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and its Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan.  The District’s 2020 Urban Water Management Plan 
incorporates the District’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan. 
 
The 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan were 
prepared pursuant to the “Urban Water Management Planning Act” and the California 
Water Code.  The California Department of Water Resources requires every urban water 
supplier to prepare and adopt an Urban Water Management Plan, including the Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan, and periodically update the Urban Water Management Plan 
at least once every five years, in years ending in six and one.   
 
Information regarding the District’s PUBLIC HEARING follows: 
 Date: June 16, 2021 
 Time: 8:00 AM 
 Place: Remote video conference via GoToWebinar 
 
The meeting registration link will be posted on the District’s website at the following 
address: 
https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/ 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Bob Kuhn 
Jody Roberto 
Danielle Soto 
Mike Ti 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/


 
The District invites all interested entities to attend and present their comments.  A copy 
of the draft 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
will be available on the District’s website.  Please provide written comments no later than 
June 15, 2021, to the Chief Water Resources Officer Timothy Kellett, at (909) 621-5568 
or by email, tkellett@tvmwd.com, Monday through Thursday, from 8:00 A.M. to 5:00 
P.M.  
 
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


 
 
 
City of Pomona 
505 South Garey Avenue 
Pomona, CA  91766 
 
SUBJECT: Notice of Public Hearing for  
  2020 Urban Water Management Plan and 
  Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
 
Dear Agency Representative: 
 
The Three Valley’s Municipal Water (District) will hold a PUBLIC HEARING on June 16, 
2021, for the purposes of adopting its 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and its Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan.  The District’s 2020 Urban Water Management Plan 
incorporates the District’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan. 
 
The 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan were 
prepared pursuant to the “Urban Water Management Planning Act” and the California 
Water Code.  The California Department of Water Resources requires every urban water 
supplier to prepare and adopt an Urban Water Management Plan, including the Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan, and periodically update the Urban Water Management Plan 
at least once every five years, in years ending in six and one.   
 
Information regarding the District’s PUBLIC HEARING follows: 
 Date: June 16, 2021 
 Time: 8:00 AM 
 Place: Remote video conference via GoToWebinar 
 
The meeting registration link will be posted on the District’s website at the following 
address: 
https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/ 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Bob Kuhn 
Jody Roberto 
Danielle Soto 
Mike Ti 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/


 
The District invites all interested entities to attend and present their comments.  A copy 
of the draft 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
will be available on the District’s website.  Please provide written comments no later than 
June 15, 2021, to the Chief Water Resources Officer Timothy Kellett, at (909) 621-5568 
or by email, tkellett@tvmwd.com, Monday through Thursday, from 8:00 A.M. to 5:00 
P.M.  
 
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


 
 
 
City of Walnut 
21201 La Puente Road 
Walnut, CA  91789 
 
SUBJECT: Notice of Public Hearing for  
  2020 Urban Water Management Plan and 
  Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
 
Dear Agency Representative: 
 
The Three Valley’s Municipal Water (District) will hold a PUBLIC HEARING on June 16, 
2021, for the purposes of adopting its 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and its Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan.  The District’s 2020 Urban Water Management Plan 
incorporates the District’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan. 
 
The 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan were 
prepared pursuant to the “Urban Water Management Planning Act” and the California 
Water Code.  The California Department of Water Resources requires every urban water 
supplier to prepare and adopt an Urban Water Management Plan, including the Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan, and periodically update the Urban Water Management Plan 
at least once every five years, in years ending in six and one.   
 
Information regarding the District’s PUBLIC HEARING follows: 
 Date: June 16, 2021 
 Time: 8:00 AM 
 Place: Remote video conference via GoToWebinar 
 
The meeting registration link will be posted on the District’s website at the following 
address: 
https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/ 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Bob Kuhn 
Jody Roberto 
Danielle Soto 
Mike Ti 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/


 
The District invites all interested entities to attend and present their comments.  A copy 
of the draft 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
will be available on the District’s website.  Please provide written comments no later than 
June 15, 2021, to the Chief Water Resources Officer Timothy Kellett, at (909) 621-5568 
or by email, tkellett@tvmwd.com, Monday through Thursday, from 8:00 A.M. to 5:00 
P.M.  
 
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


 
 
 
Covina Irrigating Company 
146 E. College Street 
Covina, CA  91723 
 
SUBJECT: Notice of Public Hearing for  
  2020 Urban Water Management Plan and 
  Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
 
Dear Agency Representative: 
 
The Three Valley’s Municipal Water (District) will hold a PUBLIC HEARING on June 16, 
2021, for the purposes of adopting its 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and its Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan.  The District’s 2020 Urban Water Management Plan 
incorporates the District’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan. 
 
The 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan were 
prepared pursuant to the “Urban Water Management Planning Act” and the California 
Water Code.  The California Department of Water Resources requires every urban water 
supplier to prepare and adopt an Urban Water Management Plan, including the Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan, and periodically update the Urban Water Management Plan 
at least once every five years, in years ending in six and one.   
 
Information regarding the District’s PUBLIC HEARING follows: 
 Date: June 16, 2021 
 Time: 8:00 AM 
 Place: Remote video conference via GoToWebinar 
 
The meeting registration link will be posted on the District’s website at the following 
address: 
https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/ 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Bob Kuhn 
Jody Roberto 
Danielle Soto 
Mike Ti 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/


 
The District invites all interested entities to attend and present their comments.  A copy 
of the draft 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
will be available on the District’s website.  Please provide written comments no later than 
June 15, 2021, to the Chief Water Resources Officer Timothy Kellett, at (909) 621-5568 
or by email, tkellett@tvmwd.com, Monday through Thursday, from 8:00 A.M. to 5:00 
P.M.  
 
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


 
 
 
Golden State Water Co. 
401 South San Dimas Canyon Road,  
San Dimas, CA 91773 
 
SUBJECT: Notice of Public Hearing for  
  2020 Urban Water Management Plan and 
  Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
 
Dear Agency Representative: 
 
The Three Valley’s Municipal Water (District) will hold a PUBLIC HEARING on June 16, 
2021, for the purposes of adopting its 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and its Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan.  The District’s 2020 Urban Water Management Plan 
incorporates the District’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan. 
 
The 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan were 
prepared pursuant to the “Urban Water Management Planning Act” and the California 
Water Code.  The California Department of Water Resources requires every urban water 
supplier to prepare and adopt an Urban Water Management Plan, including the Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan, and periodically update the Urban Water Management Plan 
at least once every five years, in years ending in six and one.   
 
Information regarding the District’s PUBLIC HEARING follows: 
 Date: June 16, 2021 
 Time: 8:00 AM 
 Place: Remote video conference via GoToWebinar 
 
The meeting registration link will be posted on the District’s website at the following 
address: 
https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/ 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Bob Kuhn 
Jody Roberto 
Danielle Soto 
Mike Ti 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/


 
The District invites all interested entities to attend and present their comments.  A copy 
of the draft 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
will be available on the District’s website.  Please provide written comments no later than 
June 15, 2021, to the Chief Water Resources Officer Timothy Kellett, at (909) 621-5568 
or by email, tkellett@tvmwd.com, Monday through Thursday, from 8:00 A.M. to 5:00 
P.M.  
 
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


 
 
 
Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
P.O. Box 9020 
Chino Hills, CA  91709 
 
 
SUBJECT: Notice of Public Hearing for  
  2020 Urban Water Management Plan and 
  Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
 
Dear Agency Representative: 
 
The Three Valley’s Municipal Water (District) will hold a PUBLIC HEARING on June 16, 
2021, for the purposes of adopting its 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and its Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan.  The District’s 2020 Urban Water Management Plan 
incorporates the District’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan. 
 
The 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan were 
prepared pursuant to the “Urban Water Management Planning Act” and the California 
Water Code.  The California Department of Water Resources requires every urban water 
supplier to prepare and adopt an Urban Water Management Plan, including the Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan, and periodically update the Urban Water Management Plan 
at least once every five years, in years ending in six and one.   
 
Information regarding the District’s PUBLIC HEARING follows: 
 Date: June 16, 2021 
 Time: 8:00 AM 
 Place: Remote video conference via GoToWebinar 
 
The meeting registration link will be posted on the District’s website at the following 
address: 
https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/ 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Bob Kuhn 
Jody Roberto 
Danielle Soto 
Mike Ti 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/


 
The District invites all interested entities to attend and present their comments.  A copy 
of the draft 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
will be available on the District’s website.  Please provide written comments no later than 
June 15, 2021, to the Chief Water Resources Officer Timothy Kellett, at (909) 621-5568 
or by email, tkellett@tvmwd.com, Monday through Thursday, from 8:00 A.M. to 5:00 
P.M.  
 
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


 
 
 
Los Angeles County  
900 S Fremont Ave  
Alhambra, CA 91803 
 
 
SUBJECT: Notice of Public Hearing for  
  2020 Urban Water Management Plan and 
  Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
 
Dear Agency Representative: 
 
The Three Valley’s Municipal Water (District) will hold a PUBLIC HEARING on June 16, 
2021, for the purposes of adopting its 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and its Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan.  The District’s 2020 Urban Water Management Plan 
incorporates the District’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan. 
 
The 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan were 
prepared pursuant to the “Urban Water Management Planning Act” and the California 
Water Code.  The California Department of Water Resources requires every urban water 
supplier to prepare and adopt an Urban Water Management Plan, including the Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan, and periodically update the Urban Water Management Plan 
at least once every five years, in years ending in six and one.   
 
Information regarding the District’s PUBLIC HEARING follows: 
 Date: June 16, 2021 
 Time: 8:00 AM 
 Place: Remote video conference via GoToWebinar 
 
The meeting registration link will be posted on the District’s website at the following 
address: 
https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/ 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Bob Kuhn 
Jody Roberto 
Danielle Soto 
Mike Ti 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/


 
The District invites all interested entities to attend and present their comments.  A copy 
of the draft 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
will be available on the District’s website.  Please provide written comments no later than 
June 15, 2021, to the Chief Water Resources Officer Timothy Kellett, at (909) 621-5568 
or by email, tkellett@tvmwd.com, Monday through Thursday, from 8:00 A.M. to 5:00 
P.M.  
 
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


 
 
 
Main San Gabriel Basin Watermaster 
725 N. Azusa Avenue 
Azusa, CA  91702 
 
 
SUBJECT: Notice of Public Hearing for  
  2020 Urban Water Management Plan and 
  Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
 
Dear Agency Representative: 
 
The Three Valley’s Municipal Water (District) will hold a PUBLIC HEARING on June 16, 
2021, for the purposes of adopting its 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and its Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan.  The District’s 2020 Urban Water Management Plan 
incorporates the District’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan. 
 
The 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan were 
prepared pursuant to the “Urban Water Management Planning Act” and the California 
Water Code.  The California Department of Water Resources requires every urban water 
supplier to prepare and adopt an Urban Water Management Plan, including the Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan, and periodically update the Urban Water Management Plan 
at least once every five years, in years ending in six and one.   
 
Information regarding the District’s PUBLIC HEARING follows: 
 Date: June 16, 2021 
 Time: 8:00 AM 
 Place: Remote video conference via GoToWebinar 
 
The meeting registration link will be posted on the District’s website at the following 
address: 
https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/ 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Bob Kuhn 
Jody Roberto 
Danielle Soto 
Mike Ti 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/


 
The District invites all interested entities to attend and present their comments.  A copy 
of the draft 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
will be available on the District’s website.  Please provide written comments no later than 
June 15, 2021, to the Chief Water Resources Officer Timothy Kellett, at (909) 621-5568 
or by email, tkellett@tvmwd.com, Monday through Thursday, from 8:00 A.M. to 5:00 
P.M.  
 
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


 
 
 
Metropolitan Water District 
P.O. Box 54156 
Los Angeles, CA  90054-0153 
 
 
SUBJECT: Notice of Public Hearing for  
  2020 Urban Water Management Plan and 
  Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
 
Dear Agency Representative: 
 
The Three Valley’s Municipal Water (District) will hold a PUBLIC HEARING on June 16, 
2021, for the purposes of adopting its 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and its Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan.  The District’s 2020 Urban Water Management Plan 
incorporates the District’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan. 
 
The 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan were 
prepared pursuant to the “Urban Water Management Planning Act” and the California 
Water Code.  The California Department of Water Resources requires every urban water 
supplier to prepare and adopt an Urban Water Management Plan, including the Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan, and periodically update the Urban Water Management Plan 
at least once every five years, in years ending in six and one.   
 
Information regarding the District’s PUBLIC HEARING follows: 
 Date: June 16, 2021 
 Time: 8:00 AM 
 Place: Remote video conference via GoToWebinar 
 
The meeting registration link will be posted on the District’s website at the following 
address: 
https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/ 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Bob Kuhn 
Jody Roberto 
Danielle Soto 
Mike Ti 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/


 
The District invites all interested entities to attend and present their comments.  A copy 
of the draft 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
will be available on the District’s website.  Please provide written comments no later than 
June 15, 2021, to the Chief Water Resources Officer Timothy Kellett, at (909) 621-5568 
or by email, tkellett@tvmwd.com, Monday through Thursday, from 8:00 A.M. to 5:00 
P.M.  
 
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


 
 
 
Mt. San Antonio College 
1100 N. Grand Avenue 
Walnut, CA  91789 
 
 
SUBJECT: Notice of Public Hearing for  
  2020 Urban Water Management Plan and 
  Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
 
Dear Agency Representative: 
 
The Three Valley’s Municipal Water (District) will hold a PUBLIC HEARING on June 16, 
2021, for the purposes of adopting its 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and its Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan.  The District’s 2020 Urban Water Management Plan 
incorporates the District’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan. 
 
The 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan were 
prepared pursuant to the “Urban Water Management Planning Act” and the California 
Water Code.  The California Department of Water Resources requires every urban water 
supplier to prepare and adopt an Urban Water Management Plan, including the Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan, and periodically update the Urban Water Management Plan 
at least once every five years, in years ending in six and one.   
 
Information regarding the District’s PUBLIC HEARING follows: 
 Date: June 16, 2021 
 Time: 8:00 AM 
 Place: Remote video conference via GoToWebinar 
 
The meeting registration link will be posted on the District’s website at the following 
address: 
https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/ 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Bob Kuhn 
Jody Roberto 
Danielle Soto 
Mike Ti 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/


 
The District invites all interested entities to attend and present their comments.  A copy 
of the draft 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
will be available on the District’s website.  Please provide written comments no later than 
June 15, 2021, to the Chief Water Resources Officer Timothy Kellett, at (909) 621-5568 
or by email, tkellett@tvmwd.com, Monday through Thursday, from 8:00 A.M. to 5:00 
P.M.  
 
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


 
 
 
Rowland Water District 
3021 Fullerton Rd. 
Rowland Heights, CA  91748 
 
 
SUBJECT: Notice of Public Hearing for  
  2020 Urban Water Management Plan and 
  Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
 
Dear Agency Representative: 
 
The Three Valley’s Municipal Water (District) will hold a PUBLIC HEARING on June 16, 
2021, for the purposes of adopting its 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and its Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan.  The District’s 2020 Urban Water Management Plan 
incorporates the District’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan. 
 
The 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan were 
prepared pursuant to the “Urban Water Management Planning Act” and the California 
Water Code.  The California Department of Water Resources requires every urban water 
supplier to prepare and adopt an Urban Water Management Plan, including the Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan, and periodically update the Urban Water Management Plan 
at least once every five years, in years ending in six and one.   
 
Information regarding the District’s PUBLIC HEARING follows: 
 Date: June 16, 2021 
 Time: 8:00 AM 
 Place: Remote video conference via GoToWebinar 
 
The meeting registration link will be posted on the District’s website at the following 
address: 
https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/ 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Brian Bowcock 
David D. De Jesus 
Carlos Goytia 
Bob Kuhn 
Jody Roberto 
Danielle Soto 
Mike Ti 

 
GENERAL MANAGER/CHIEF ENGINEER 

Matthew H. Litchfield, P.E. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

https://www.threevalleys.com/calendar/


 
The District invites all interested entities to attend and present their comments.  A copy 
of the draft 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
will be available on the District’s website.  Please provide written comments no later than 
June 15, 2021, to the Chief Water Resources Officer Timothy Kellett, at (909) 621-5568 
or by email, tkellett@tvmwd.com, Monday through Thursday, from 8:00 A.M. to 5:00 
P.M.  
 
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D

mailto:tkellett@tvmwd.com


 
APPENDIX E 

 
 

CLIMATE CHANGE CONSIDERATIONS (CAL- ADAPT DATA) 
 
 
 

  

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



 

 

 

SIX BASINS 

 

MODELED ANNUAL AVERAGE PRECIPITATION 

CAL-ADAPT METHOD: RCP 4.5 (CANESM2) 

 

CAL-ADAPT DATA 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



N
o

te
s:

P
ro

je
ct

e
d

 M
o

d
el

ed
 A

ve
ra

ge
 in

cl
u

d
es

 m
o

d
el

ed
 y

ea
rs

 2
0

2
0

 t
h

ro
u

gh
 2

0
4

5

H
is

to
ri

ca
l M

o
d

el
ed

 A
ve

ra
ge

 in
cl

u
d

es
 m

o
d

el
ed

 y
ea

rs
 1

9
5

0
 t

h
ro

u
gh

 2
0

1
9

C
al

-A
d

ap
t 

d
ef

in
es

 t
h

e 
ge

n
er

al
 c

ir
cu

la
ti

o
n

 m
o

d
el

 (
G

C
M

) 
C

an
ES

M
2

 a
s 

an
 "

av
er

ag
e 

si
m

u
la

ti
o

n
"

C
al

-A
d

ap
t 

d
ef

in
es

 R
C

P
 4

.5
 a

s 
a 

sc
en

ar
io

 in
 w

h
ic

h
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

p
ea

k 
ar

o
u

n
d

 2
0

4
0

, t
h

en
 d

ec
lin

e

05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

3
0

3
5

4
0

4
5

5
0

Precipiation (Inches)

C
al

en
d

ar
 Y

ea
r

Si
x 

B
as

in
s

M
o

d
el

ed
 A

n
n

u
al

 A
ve

ra
ge

 P
re

ci
p

it
at

io
n

C
al

-A
d

ap
t 

M
et

h
o

d
: R

C
P

 4
.5

 (
C

an
ES

M
2

)

P
ro

je
ct

ed
 M

o
d

e
le

d
P

ro
je

ct
ed

 M
o

d
e

le
d

 A
ve

ra
ge

H
is

to
ri

ca
l M

o
d

e
le

d
 A

ve
ra

ge

D
at

a
So

u
rc

e:
 C

al
-A

d
ap

t

1
9

.5
0

"

1
7

.5
2

"

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



location User Defined Boundary - Six Basins

climate variable Precipitation

units inches

scenario rcp45 

Projected Modeled Average: 19.49755 [inches]

Historical Modeled Average: 17.51762 [inches]

 

 name date Year Historical Average Modeled Average value

CanESM2 Sun Jan 01 1950 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1950 4.201079

CanESM2 Mon Jan 01 1951 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1951 20.40083

CanESM2 Tue Jan 01 1952 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1952 18.94996

CanESM2 Thu Jan 01 1953 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1953 12.36318

CanESM2 Fri Jan 01 1954 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1954 19.69992

CanESM2 Sat Jan 01 1955 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1955 33.50637

CanESM2 Sun Jan 01 1956 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1956 7.10446

CanESM2 Tue Jan 01 1957 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1957 15.42141

CanESM2 Wed Jan 01 1958 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1958 7.379376

CanESM2 Thu Jan 01 1959 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1959 12.52233

CanESM2 Fri Jan 01 1960 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1960 16.48885

CanESM2 Sun Jan 01 1961 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1961 13.97585

CanESM2 Mon Jan 01 1962 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1962 27.92705

CanESM2 Tue Jan 01 1963 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1963 4.294066

CanESM2 Wed Jan 01 1964 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1964 33.00839

CanESM2 Fri Jan 01 1965 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1965 40.65964

CanESM2 Sat Jan 01 1966 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1966 15.50102

CanESM2 Sun Jan 01 1967 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1967 23.19079

CanESM2 Mon Jan 01 1968 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1968 18.24462

CanESM2 Wed Jan 01 1969 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1969 32.56126

CanESM2 Thu Jan 01 1970 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1970 15.2493

CanESM2 Fri Jan 01 1971 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1971 4.800886

CanESM2 Sat Jan 01 1972 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1972 20.27085

CanESM2 Mon Jan 01 1973 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1973 14.67815

CanESM2 Tue Jan 01 1974 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1974 39.64759

CanESM2 Wed Jan 01 1975 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1975 7.567862

CanESM2 Thu Jan 01 1976 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1976 16.29076

CanESM2 Sat Jan 01 1977 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1977 20.43862

CanESM2 Sun Jan 01 1978 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1978 14.85783

CanESM2 Mon Jan 01 1979 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1979 11.86421

CanESM2 Tue Jan 01 1980 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1980 7.27368

CanESM2 Thu Jan 01 1981 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1981 18.50218

CanESM2 Fri Jan 01 1982 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1982 26.57242

CanESM2 Sat Jan 01 1983 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1983 14.61697

CanESM2 Sun Jan 01 1984 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1984 16.37223

CanESM2 Tue Jan 01 1985 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1985 46.17095

CanESM2 Wed Jan 01 1986 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1986 10.72648

CanESM2 Thu Jan 01 1987 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1987 20.2851

CanESM2 Fri Jan 01 1988 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1988 11.26469

CanESM2 Sun Jan 01 1989 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1989 19.30683

CanESM2 Mon Jan 01 1990 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1990 22.14656

CanESM2 Tue Jan 01 1991 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1991 18.22413

CanESM2 Wed Jan 01 1992 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1992 18.05999

CanESM2 Fri Jan 01 1993 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1993 18.18666

CanESM2 Sat Jan 01 1994 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1994 18.30345

CanESM2 Sun Jan 01 1995 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1995 15.2176

CanESM2 Mon Jan 01 1996 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1996 11.5379

Cal-Adapt

Annual Averages Tool - Precipitation

Six Basins

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



location User Defined Boundary - Six Basins

climate variable Precipitation

units inches

scenario rcp45 

Projected Modeled Average: 19.49755 [inches]

Historical Modeled Average: 17.51762 [inches]

 

 name date Year Historical Average Modeled Average value

Cal-Adapt

Annual Averages Tool - Precipitation

Six Basins

CanESM2 Wed Jan 01 1997 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1997 46.25409

CanESM2 Thu Jan 01 1998 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1998 10.89383

CanESM2 Fri Jan 01 1999 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1999 9.330063

CanESM2 Sat Jan 01 2000 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2000 8.404417

CanESM2 Mon Jan 01 2001 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2001 11.25403

CanESM2 Tue Jan 01 2002 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2002 10.98351

CanESM2 Wed Jan 01 2003 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2003 16.14313

CanESM2 Thu Jan 01 2004 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2004 19.6381

CanESM2 Sat Jan 01 2005 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2005 26.81206

CanESM2 Sun Jan 01 2006 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2006 15.97155

CanESM2 Mon Jan 01 2007 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2007 4.729528

CanESM2 Tue Jan 01 2008 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2008 15.40752

CanESM2 Thu Jan 01 2009 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2009 13.18498

CanESM2 Fri Jan 01 2010 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2010 14.39873

CanESM2 Sat Jan 01 2011 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2011 23.51785

CanESM2 Sun Jan 01 2012 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2012 6.940584

CanESM2 Tue Jan 01 2013 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2013 9.914925

CanESM2 Wed Jan 01 2014 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2014 9.41394

CanESM2 Thu Jan 01 2015 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2015 26.53089

CanESM2 Fri Jan 01 2016 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2016 38.64468

CanESM2 Sun Jan 01 2017 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2017 13.08106

CanESM2 Mon Jan 01 2018 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2018 6.37771

CanESM2 Tue Jan 01 2019 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2019 17.51762435 12.5722

CanESM2 Wed Jan 01 2020 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2020 17.51762435 19.49754959 15.94143

CanESM2 Fri Jan 01 2021 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2021 17.51762435 19.49754959 16.22121

CanESM2 Sat Jan 01 2022 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2022 17.51762435 19.49754959 43.5898

CanESM2 Sun Jan 01 2023 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2023 17.51762435 19.49754959 25.16923

CanESM2 Mon Jan 01 2024 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2024 17.51762435 19.49754959 17.73811

CanESM2 Wed Jan 01 2025 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2025 17.51762435 19.49754959 11.96425

CanESM2 Thu Jan 01 2026 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2026 17.51762435 19.49754959 24.97445

CanESM2 Fri Jan 01 2027 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2027 17.51762435 19.49754959 22.82727

CanESM2 Sat Jan 01 2028 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2028 17.51762435 19.49754959 23.72014

CanESM2 Mon Jan 01 2029 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2029 17.51762435 19.49754959 29.82127

CanESM2 Tue Jan 01 2030 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2030 17.51762435 19.49754959 18.30723

CanESM2 Wed Jan 01 2031 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2031 17.51762435 19.49754959 10.32195

CanESM2 Thu Jan 01 2032 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2032 17.51762435 19.49754959 20.69384

CanESM2 Sat Jan 01 2033 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2033 17.51762435 19.49754959 13.9828

CanESM2 Sun Jan 01 2034 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2034 17.51762435 19.49754959 8.676262

CanESM2 Mon Jan 01 2035 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2035 17.51762435 19.49754959 29.55344

CanESM2 Tue Jan 01 2036 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2036 17.51762435 19.49754959 19.24372

CanESM2 Thu Jan 01 2037 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2037 17.51762435 19.49754959 33.09027

CanESM2 Fri Jan 01 2038 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2038 17.51762435 19.49754959 5.411287

CanESM2 Sat Jan 01 2039 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2039 17.51762435 19.49754959 13.24884

CanESM2 Sun Jan 01 2040 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2040 17.51762435 19.49754959 26.64721

CanESM2 Tue Jan 01 2041 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2041 17.51762435 19.49754959 6.930396

CanESM2 Wed Jan 01 2042 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2042 17.51762435 19.49754959 16.59915

CanESM2 Thu Jan 01 2043 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2043 17.51762435 19.49754959 13.97844

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



location User Defined Boundary - Six Basins

climate variable Precipitation

units inches

scenario rcp45 

Projected Modeled Average: 19.49755 [inches]

Historical Modeled Average: 17.51762 [inches]

 

 name date Year Historical Average Modeled Average value

Cal-Adapt

Annual Averages Tool - Precipitation

Six Basins

CanESM2 Fri Jan 01 2044 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2044 17.51762435 19.49754959 15.29868

CanESM2 Sun Jan 01 2045 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2045 17.51762435 19.49754959 22.98559

CanESM2 Mon Jan 01 2046 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2046 17.51762435 30.46249

CanESM2 Tue Jan 01 2047 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2047 17.51762435 26.68258

CanESM2 Wed Jan 01 2048 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2048 17.51762435 23.36843

CanESM2 Fri Jan 01 2049 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2049 17.51762435 12.27969

CanESM2 Sat Jan 01 2050 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2050 17.51762435 14.16423

CanESM2 Sun Jan 01 2051 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2051 17.51762435 9.334493

CanESM2 Mon Jan 01 2052 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2052 17.51762435 29.99803

CanESM2 Wed Jan 01 2053 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2053 17.51762435 12.3322

CanESM2 Thu Jan 01 2054 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2054 17.51762435 15.12671

CanESM2 Fri Jan 01 2055 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2055 17.51762435 11.98962

CanESM2 Sat Jan 01 2056 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2056 17.51762435 22.28885

CanESM2 Mon Jan 01 2057 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2057 17.51762435 20.76345

CanESM2 Tue Jan 01 2058 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2058 17.51762435 7.562494

CanESM2 Wed Jan 01 2059 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2059 17.51762435 30.7944

CanESM2 Thu Jan 01 2060 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2060 17.51762435 31.8781

CanESM2 Sat Jan 01 2061 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2061 17.51762435 8.705806

CanESM2 Sun Jan 01 2062 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2062 17.51762435 13.89782

CanESM2 Mon Jan 01 2063 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2063 17.51762435 5.24434

CanESM2 Tue Jan 01 2064 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2064 17.51762435 10.16327

CanESM2 Thu Jan 01 2065 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2065 17.51762435 15.80949

CanESM2 Fri Jan 01 2066 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2066 17.51762435 17.53488

CanESM2 Sat Jan 01 2067 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2067 17.51762435 23.51852

CanESM2 Sun Jan 01 2068 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2068 17.51762435 20.86315

CanESM2 Tue Jan 01 2069 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2069 17.51762435 29.16424

CanESM2 Wed Jan 01 2070 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2070 17.51762435 28.18645

CanESM2 Thu Jan 01 2071 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2071 17.51762435 25.28678

CanESM2 Fri Jan 01 2072 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2072 17.51762435 7.867403

CanESM2 Sun Jan 01 2073 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2073 17.51762435 26.28262

CanESM2 Mon Jan 01 2074 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2074 17.51762435 22.35348

CanESM2 Tue Jan 01 2075 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2075 17.51762435 24.61107

CanESM2 Wed Jan 01 2076 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2076 17.51762435 13.65847

CanESM2 Fri Jan 01 2077 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2077 17.51762435 27.9814

CanESM2 Sat Jan 01 2078 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2078 17.51762435 23.12027

CanESM2 Sun Jan 01 2079 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2079 17.51762435 22.79568

CanESM2 Mon Jan 01 2080 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2080 17.51762435 54.87732

CanESM2 Wed Jan 01 2081 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2081 17.51762435 19.47233

CanESM2 Thu Jan 01 2082 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2082 17.51762435 17.02028

CanESM2 Fri Jan 01 2083 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2083 17.51762435 18.40046

CanESM2 Sat Jan 01 2084 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2084 17.51762435 26.26691

CanESM2 Mon Jan 01 2085 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2085 17.51762435 8.721385

CanESM2 Tue Jan 01 2086 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2086 17.51762435 32.41551

CanESM2 Wed Jan 01 2087 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2087 17.51762435 10.16026

CanESM2 Thu Jan 01 2088 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2088 17.51762435 39.8021

CanESM2 Sat Jan 01 2089 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2089 17.51762435 19.51205

CanESM2 Sun Jan 01 2090 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2090 17.51762435 13.88488

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



location User Defined Boundary - Six Basins

climate variable Precipitation

units inches

scenario rcp45 

Projected Modeled Average: 19.49755 [inches]

Historical Modeled Average: 17.51762 [inches]

 

 name date Year Historical Average Modeled Average value

Cal-Adapt

Annual Averages Tool - Precipitation

Six Basins

CanESM2 Mon Jan 01 2091 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2091 17.51762435 10.17292

CanESM2 Tue Jan 01 2092 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2092 17.51762435 6.335564

CanESM2 Thu Jan 01 2093 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2093 17.51762435 35.78071

CanESM2 Fri Jan 01 2094 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2094 17.51762435 20.5925

CanESM2 Sat Jan 01 2095 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2095 17.51762435 8.348426

CanESM2 Sun Jan 01 2096 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2096 17.51762435 13.60034

CanESM2 Tue Jan 01 2097 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2097 17.51762435 21.29803

CanESM2 Wed Jan 01 2098 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2098 17.51762435 26.0433

CanESM2 Thu Jan 01 2099 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2099 17.51762435 13.88598

CanESM2 Fri Jan 01 2100 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2100 17.51762435 19.36153

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



 

 

 

SIX BASINS 

 

MODELED ANNUAL AVERAGE TEMPERATURE 

CAL-ADAPT METHOD: RCP 4.5 (CANESM2) 

 

CAL-ADAPT DATA 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



N
o

te
s:

P
ro

je
ct

e
d

 M
o

d
el

ed
 A

ve
ra

ge
 in

cl
u

d
es

 m
o

d
el

ed
 y

ea
rs

 2
0

2
0

 t
h

ro
u

gh
 2

0
4

5

H
is

to
ri

ca
l M

o
d

el
ed

 A
ve

ra
ge

 in
cl

u
d

es
 m

o
d

el
ed

 y
ea

rs
 1

9
5

0
 t

h
ro

u
gh

 2
0

1
9

C
al

-A
d

ap
t 

d
ef

in
es

 t
h

e 
ge

n
er

al
 c

ir
cu

la
ti

o
n

 m
o

d
el

 (
G

C
M

) 
C

an
ES

M
2

 a
s 

an
 "

av
er

ag
e 

si
m

u
la

ti
o

n
"

C
al

-A
d

ap
t 

d
ef

in
es

 R
C

P
 4

.5
 a

s 
a 

sc
en

ar
io

 in
 w

h
ic

h
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

p
ea

k 
ar

o
u

n
d

 2
0

4
0

, t
h

en
 d

ec
lin

e

7
5

7
6

7
7

7
8

7
9

8
0

8
1

8
2

8
3

8
4

Average Maximum Temperature (degrees F)

C
al

en
d

ar
 Y

ea
r

Si
x 

B
as

in
s

M
o

d
el

ed
 A

n
n

u
al

 A
ve

ra
ge

 M
ax

im
u

m
 T

em
p

er
at

u
re

C
al

-A
d

ap
t 

M
et

h
o

d
: R

C
P

 4
.5

 (
C

an
ES

M
2

)

P
ro

je
ct

ed
 M

o
d

e
le

d
P

ro
je

ct
ed

 M
o

d
e

le
d

 A
ve

ra
ge

H
is

to
ri

ca
l M

o
d

e
le

d
 A

ve
ra

ge

D
at

a
So

u
rc

e:
 C

al
-A

d
ap

t

8
1

.2
o

 F
7

7
.7

o
 F

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



location User Defined Boundary - Six Basins

climate variable Maximum Temperature

units °F

scenario rcp45 

Projected Modeled Average: 81.17734 °F

Historical Modeled Average: 77.6521 °F

 

 name date Year Historical Average Modeled Average value

CanESM2 Sun Jan 01 1950 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1950 79.11843

CanESM2 Mon Jan 01 1951 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1951 77.21186

CanESM2 Tue Jan 01 1952 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1952 76.16514

CanESM2 Thu Jan 01 1953 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1953 76.99082

CanESM2 Fri Jan 01 1954 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1954 76.0918

CanESM2 Sat Jan 01 1955 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1955 75.30013

CanESM2 Sun Jan 01 1956 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1956 77.08365

CanESM2 Tue Jan 01 1957 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1957 77.05849

CanESM2 Wed Jan 01 1958 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1958 77.18396

CanESM2 Thu Jan 01 1959 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1959 78.19288

CanESM2 Fri Jan 01 1960 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1960 77.56661

CanESM2 Sun Jan 01 1961 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1961 75.85142

CanESM2 Mon Jan 01 1962 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1962 76.96335

CanESM2 Tue Jan 01 1963 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1963 79.77442

CanESM2 Wed Jan 01 1964 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1964 75.2569

CanESM2 Fri Jan 01 1965 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1965 73.80181

CanESM2 Sat Jan 01 1966 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1966 75.74799

CanESM2 Sun Jan 01 1967 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1967 76.96972

CanESM2 Mon Jan 01 1968 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1968 76.51379

CanESM2 Wed Jan 01 1969 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1969 75.89427

CanESM2 Thu Jan 01 1970 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1970 75.39115

CanESM2 Fri Jan 01 1971 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1971 76.74011

CanESM2 Sat Jan 01 1972 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1972 77.33749

CanESM2 Mon Jan 01 1973 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1973 76.15047

CanESM2 Tue Jan 01 1974 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1974 76.81119

CanESM2 Wed Jan 01 1975 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1975 78.71127

CanESM2 Thu Jan 01 1976 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1976 76.97933

CanESM2 Sat Jan 01 1977 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1977 76.01441

CanESM2 Sun Jan 01 1978 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1978 78.06616

CanESM2 Mon Jan 01 1979 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1979 78.12768

CanESM2 Tue Jan 01 1980 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1980 79.6728

CanESM2 Thu Jan 01 1981 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1981 79.11189

CanESM2 Fri Jan 01 1982 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1982 75.72931

CanESM2 Sat Jan 01 1983 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1983 76.80042

CanESM2 Sun Jan 01 1984 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1984 76.16464

CanESM2 Tue Jan 01 1985 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1985 75.38417

CanESM2 Wed Jan 01 1986 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1986 77.23801

CanESM2 Thu Jan 01 1987 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1987 75.92047

CanESM2 Fri Jan 01 1988 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1988 76.79108

CanESM2 Sun Jan 01 1989 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1989 76.02232

CanESM2 Mon Jan 01 1990 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1990 76.97521

CanESM2 Tue Jan 01 1991 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1991 77.65027

CanESM2 Wed Jan 01 1992 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1992 74.94648

CanESM2 Fri Jan 01 1993 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1993 78.63558

CanESM2 Sat Jan 01 1994 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1994 75.45031

CanESM2 Sun Jan 01 1995 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1995 78.52709

CanESM2 Mon Jan 01 1996 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1996 78.87376

CanESM2 Wed Jan 01 1997 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1997 76.52142

Cal-Adapt 

Annual Averages Tool - Maximum Temperature

Six Basins

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



location User Defined Boundary - Six Basins

climate variable Maximum Temperature

units °F

scenario rcp45 

Projected Modeled Average: 81.17734 °F

Historical Modeled Average: 77.6521 °F

 

 name date Year Historical Average Modeled Average value

Cal-Adapt 

Annual Averages Tool - Maximum Temperature

Six Basins

CanESM2 Thu Jan 01 1998 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1998 78.24408

CanESM2 Fri Jan 01 1999 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 1999 78.96154

CanESM2 Sat Jan 01 2000 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2000 79.13018

CanESM2 Mon Jan 01 2001 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2001 79.16611

CanESM2 Tue Jan 01 2002 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2002 79.26389

CanESM2 Wed Jan 01 2003 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2003 77.20318

CanESM2 Thu Jan 01 2004 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2004 78.61284

CanESM2 Sat Jan 01 2005 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2005 78.3317

CanESM2 Sun Jan 01 2006 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2006 78.07231

CanESM2 Mon Jan 01 2007 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2007 79.80595

CanESM2 Tue Jan 01 2008 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2008 79.53404

CanESM2 Thu Jan 01 2009 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2009 80.11214

CanESM2 Fri Jan 01 2010 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2010 79.27762

CanESM2 Sat Jan 01 2011 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2011 79.95471

CanESM2 Sun Jan 01 2012 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2012 80.43091

CanESM2 Tue Jan 01 2013 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2013 81.51729

CanESM2 Wed Jan 01 2014 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2014 78.55626

CanESM2 Thu Jan 01 2015 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2015 78.62981

CanESM2 Fri Jan 01 2016 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2016 77.94388

CanESM2 Sun Jan 01 2017 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2017 79.30042

CanESM2 Mon Jan 01 2018 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2018 81.95817

CanESM2 Tue Jan 01 2019 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2019 77.65210214 80.15817

CanESM2 Wed Jan 01 2020 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2020 77.65210214 81.17733535 80.75182

CanESM2 Fri Jan 01 2021 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2021 77.65210214 81.17733535 81.68764

CanESM2 Sat Jan 01 2022 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2022 77.65210214 81.17733535 78.01282

CanESM2 Sun Jan 01 2023 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2023 77.65210214 81.17733535 80.27457

CanESM2 Mon Jan 01 2024 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2024 77.65210214 81.17733535 80.33972

CanESM2 Wed Jan 01 2025 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2025 77.65210214 81.17733535 82.07694

CanESM2 Thu Jan 01 2026 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2026 77.65210214 81.17733535 80.77044

CanESM2 Fri Jan 01 2027 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2027 77.65210214 81.17733535 80.01854

CanESM2 Sat Jan 01 2028 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2028 77.65210214 81.17733535 80.93172

CanESM2 Mon Jan 01 2029 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2029 77.65210214 81.17733535 79.33206

CanESM2 Tue Jan 01 2030 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2030 77.65210214 81.17733535 81.63078

CanESM2 Wed Jan 01 2031 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2031 77.65210214 81.17733535 82.50117

CanESM2 Thu Jan 01 2032 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2032 77.65210214 81.17733535 81.26966

CanESM2 Sat Jan 01 2033 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2033 77.65210214 81.17733535 81.47313

CanESM2 Sun Jan 01 2034 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2034 77.65210214 81.17733535 81.60914

CanESM2 Mon Jan 01 2035 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2035 77.65210214 81.17733535 80.63267

CanESM2 Tue Jan 01 2036 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2036 77.65210214 81.17733535 81.80695

CanESM2 Thu Jan 01 2037 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2037 77.65210214 81.17733535 80.76033

CanESM2 Fri Jan 01 2038 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2038 77.65210214 81.17733535 82.92805

CanESM2 Sat Jan 01 2039 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2039 77.65210214 81.17733535 82.47948

CanESM2 Sun Jan 01 2040 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2040 77.65210214 81.17733535 80.702

CanESM2 Tue Jan 01 2041 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2041 77.65210214 81.17733535 81.5319

CanESM2 Wed Jan 01 2042 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2042 77.65210214 81.17733535 80.72924

CanESM2 Thu Jan 01 2043 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2043 77.65210214 81.17733535 82.4998

CanESM2 Fri Jan 01 2044 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2044 77.65210214 81.17733535 81.14464

CanESM2 Sun Jan 01 2045 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2045 77.65210214 81.17733535 82.71552

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



location User Defined Boundary - Six Basins

climate variable Maximum Temperature

units °F

scenario rcp45 

Projected Modeled Average: 81.17734 °F

Historical Modeled Average: 77.6521 °F

 

 name date Year Historical Average Modeled Average value

Cal-Adapt 

Annual Averages Tool - Maximum Temperature

Six Basins

CanESM2 Mon Jan 01 2046 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2046 81.4082

CanESM2 Tue Jan 01 2047 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2047 80.99226

CanESM2 Wed Jan 01 2048 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2048 81.58156

CanESM2 Fri Jan 01 2049 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2049 81.49949

CanESM2 Sat Jan 01 2050 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2050 82.41422

CanESM2 Sun Jan 01 2051 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2051 82.49519

CanESM2 Mon Jan 01 2052 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2052 81.14502

CanESM2 Wed Jan 01 2053 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2053 82.52161

CanESM2 Thu Jan 01 2054 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2054 83.74257

CanESM2 Fri Jan 01 2055 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2055 84.49997

CanESM2 Sat Jan 01 2056 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2056 82.3945

CanESM2 Mon Jan 01 2057 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2057 81.98059

CanESM2 Tue Jan 01 2058 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2058 84.85472

CanESM2 Wed Jan 01 2059 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2059 82.18087

CanESM2 Thu Jan 01 2060 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2060 81.14321

CanESM2 Sat Jan 01 2061 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2061 84.00196

CanESM2 Sun Jan 01 2062 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2062 84.03195

CanESM2 Mon Jan 01 2063 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2063 84.51447

CanESM2 Tue Jan 01 2064 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2064 84.59566

CanESM2 Thu Jan 01 2065 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2065 82.6541

CanESM2 Fri Jan 01 2066 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2066 82.07968

CanESM2 Sat Jan 01 2067 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2067 80.55055

CanESM2 Sun Jan 01 2068 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2068 81.78151

CanESM2 Tue Jan 01 2069 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2069 82.90388

CanESM2 Wed Jan 01 2070 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2070 81.9434

CanESM2 Thu Jan 01 2071 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2071 82.59351

CanESM2 Fri Jan 01 2072 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2072 84.91525

CanESM2 Sun Jan 01 2073 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2073 82.06628

CanESM2 Mon Jan 01 2074 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2074 85.02094

CanESM2 Tue Jan 01 2075 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2075 83.11915

CanESM2 Wed Jan 01 2076 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2076 83.45704

CanESM2 Fri Jan 01 2077 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2077 83.7601

CanESM2 Sat Jan 01 2078 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2078 82.65548

CanESM2 Sun Jan 01 2079 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2079 83.93417

CanESM2 Mon Jan 01 2080 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2080 82.41152

CanESM2 Wed Jan 01 2081 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2081 82.67388

CanESM2 Thu Jan 01 2082 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2082 84.10952

CanESM2 Fri Jan 01 2083 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2083 82.22003

CanESM2 Sat Jan 01 2084 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2084 82.45695

CanESM2 Mon Jan 01 2085 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2085 83.29296

CanESM2 Tue Jan 01 2086 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2086 82.81176

CanESM2 Wed Jan 01 2087 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2087 84.6908

CanESM2 Thu Jan 01 2088 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2088 83.01923

CanESM2 Sat Jan 01 2089 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2089 83.10526

CanESM2 Sun Jan 01 2090 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2090 82.85554

CanESM2 Mon Jan 01 2091 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2091 82.54144

CanESM2 Tue Jan 01 2092 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2092 84.29156

CanESM2 Thu Jan 01 2093 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2093 82.85828

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



location User Defined Boundary - Six Basins

climate variable Maximum Temperature

units °F

scenario rcp45 

Projected Modeled Average: 81.17734 °F

Historical Modeled Average: 77.6521 °F

 

 name date Year Historical Average Modeled Average value

Cal-Adapt 

Annual Averages Tool - Maximum Temperature

Six Basins

CanESM2 Fri Jan 01 2094 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2094 81.32196

CanESM2 Sat Jan 01 2095 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2095 83.76718

CanESM2 Sun Jan 01 2096 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2096 83.06625

CanESM2 Tue Jan 01 2097 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2097 83.63205

CanESM2 Wed Jan 01 2098 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2098 82.17735

CanESM2 Thu Jan 01 2099 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2099 83.99185

CanESM2 Fri Jan 01 2100 00:00:00 GMT-0800 (Pacific Standard Time) 2100 84.48942

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



 
APPENDIX F 

 
 

HISTORICAL SOURCES OF WATER SUPPLY AVAILABLE TO MWD 
 
 
  

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Item 8.E - Exhibit D



 
APPENDIX G 

 
 

SIX BASINS JUDGMENT 
 
 
  

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



SCOTTS. SLATER, ESQ. (State Bar No. 117317) 
ROBERT J. SAPERSTEIN, ESQ. (State Bar No. 166051) 

2 HATCH AND PARENT, PC 
21 East Carrillo Street 

3 Santa Barbara, CA 93101 
Telephone: (805) 963-7000 

4 
Attorneys for Plaintiff, 

5 Special Counsel for Southern California Water Company 

6 

7 

8 

.L1 1L~L 
,\IGELI!S SUPSRIOP 

DEC i 8 1998 
~c~~ 
~~ 

9 
SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

FOR THE COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 
10 

11 
SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA WATER COMPANY ) 

12 Plaintiff, 

13 vs. 

14 CITY OF LA VERNE, CITY OF CLAREMONT, 
CITY OF POMONA, CITY OF UPLAND, 
POMONA COLLEGE, POMONA VALLEY 15 PROTECTIVE ASSOCIATION, SAN ANTONIO 

16 WATER COMPANY, SIMPSON PAPER 
COMPANY, THREE VALLEYS MUNICIPAL 
WATER DISTRJCT, WEST END 17 CONSOLIDATEDWATERCOMPANY, and 

18 DOES 1 through 1 ,000, Inclusive, 

19 Respondents and Defendants. 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

) 
) 
) 

. ) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

25 

26 

THE DOCU:VIENT TO WH!C:-1 THiS GCI1TiFICATE IS 
ATTACHED iS A FULL. TRUE. AND CORRECT COPY 
OF THE ORlGlNAL ON FilE AND OF RECORD IN 
MY OFFICE. 

DEC 1 8 1998 
27 

28 
HATCH AND PARENT 

21 EAST CARRILLO STRE 
SANTA BARBARA. CA 

93101-2782 
144876.16774.54 

ATIEST __ 

JOHN A. CLARKE 

1": MORALES 

CASE NO. KC029152 

Assigned for All 
Purposes to Judge 
William 0. McVittie 

Department 0 

(Complaint Filed, September 28, 
1998) 

JUDGMENT 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

2 PAGE 

3 PRELINIINARY FINDINGS 1 
. 1 A Complaint .. 

4 B. Answers and Cross-Complaints ..... 2 
C Jurisdiction . . . . . . . . .. 2 

5 D. Parties . . . . . . . . 2 
E. Settlement Negotiations . 4 

1. Importance of Groundwater ..... 4 
2. Coordinated Study .... 4 
3 . Overdraft . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 

6 

7 
a. Native Safe Yield . . . . . . . . . . . 4 

8 b. Safe Yield . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ......... 5 
c. Groundwater Production . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5 

9 F. Stipulation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5 

10 JUDGMENT .. 6 

11 I. INTRODUCTION .... 
A 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Definitions 
1. 
2. 
3. 
4. 
5. 
6. 
6. 
8. 
9. 
10. 
11. 
12. 
13. 
13. 
14. 
15. 
16. 
17. 
18. 
19. 
20. 
21. 
22. 
23. 
24. 
25. 
26. 
27. 
28. 
29. 
30 
31 
32. 

Base Annual Production Right . . . . . . . . . . . ..... 
Carryover Rights . . ....... . 
Effective Date . . ................. . 
Fiscal Year . . . . ......... . 
Four Basins or Four Basins Area .. 
Groundwater . 
Imported Water 
In Lieu Procedures 
Minimal Producers 
Native Groundwater 
Native Safe Yield 
Native Water 
Non-party .... 
Operating Plan 
Operating Safe Yield . 
Overdraft .... . 
Party or Parties .. . 
Physical Solution .. 
Producer ... 
Production 
Replacement Water . 
Replacement Water Assessment 
Replenishment ..... 
Replenishment Water 
Return Flows 
Safe Yield . . . . . ..... . 
Six Basins or Six Basins Area 
Spreading 
Storage and Recovery . . ..... . 
Storage and Recovery Agreement . 
Transfer 
Two Basins or Two Basins Area .. 
Water Shortage Emergency . 

.6 
6 
6 
6 

. . 6 
6 
6 

. .. 6 
.. 6 
. . 6 

6 
... 6 

7 
.. 7 

7 
. . 7 
. . 7 
.7 

. . 7 
.8 
.8 

. . 8 

. . 8 

8 
.8 

. . 8 
. .. 8 

.8 
9 

.9 

9 
9 

HATCH AND PARENT 

21 ~~~K~~~~~~~,(T2-f 
93101-2782 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



2 

" .) 

4 

5 

6 

7 II. 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 III. 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 
HATCH AND PARENT 

21 ~~~~K~~~~~~~?T~f 
93101-2782 

B. 

33. 
34 

Watermaster 
Year 

Exhibits 
Exhibit A: 
Exhibit B: 
Exhibit C: 
Exhibit D: 
Exhibit E 
Exhibit F: 
Exhibit G 

Six Basin Map . 
Description of the Six Basins Area . 
Memorandum of Agreement (Re. PVPA Operations) .. 
Base Annual Production of Parties ............ . 
Description of Spreading Activities ....... . 
City ofPomona Storage and Recovery Agreement. 
Initial Operating Plan . . .......... . 

10 
.. 10 

10 
. .. 10 

10 
10 
10 
11 

. . 11 
. 1 1 

FINDINGS AND HYDROLOGIC CONDITIONS 11 
1 1 
1 1 
11 
1 1 
11 

A. Safe Yield ........................ . 
B. Overdraft and Prescriptive Circumstances . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ..... . 

c. 
D. 

1. Adversity . . . . . . ..... . 
2. Continuity . . . . . ..... . 
3. Notice . . . .... . 

High Groundwater Levels ... 
Water Quality Problems .. 

12 
12 

DECLARATION OF RIGHTS AND RESPONSffiiLITIES 12 

A. General Provisions 
1. 
2. 
3. 
4. 
5. 
6. 
7. 

Surface Water Rights 
Loss ofPriorities ..... 
Limitations on Export . . . . ............ . 
No Abandonment ofRights . 
Pre-Existing Rights . . . . ..... . 
Physical Solution ........................ . 
Portability Between the Two Basins and Four Basins Areas 

12 
13 
13 

.. 14 
14 
14 
14 

B. Rights ofthe Parties to Produce Groundwater from the Four Basins. . . 15 

c. 

D. 

1. Declaration of Rights . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15 
2. Carryover Rights . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 15 
3. Transferability of Rights . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15 
4. Portability of Rights Among the Four Basins . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 

a. No Substantial Injury . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 
b. Advance Written Notice to Watermaster . . .. 16 
c. Prior Watermaster Approval . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 
d. New Facility Defined . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ..... 16 
e. Procedure for Resolution ofDisputes . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 17 

5. Rights to Unused Groundwater Storage Capacity . . . . . ........ 17 
6. Priorities for Use of Groundwater Storage Capacity . . . . . . . . 17 
7. Loss of Stored and Carry-Over Water . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 17 
8. Consideration of Groundwater Levels . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 

The Parties' Rights to Groundwater and Storage in the Two Basins 
1. Declaration of Rights ...... . 
2. Storage and Recovery . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .... . 
3. Transferability of Rights 

Rights and Responsibilities ofPVP A. 
1. Spreading Operations 

11 

18 
18 
18 
19 

19 
19 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



2 

.., 
.) 

4 IV 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 
V. 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 VI. 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 
HATCH AND PARENT 

21 EAST CARRILLO STRE 
SANTA BARBARA CA 

93101-2782 ' 

2. Waiver of Claims against PVPA 

E. Non-Parties 
1 . Minimal Producers . . . . . . . . 
2. Parties' Rights Versus Non-Parties Reserved .. 

REMEDIES. 
A. Injunctions ............ . 

1. Injunction Against Unauthorized Production ... 
2. Injunction Against Unauthorized Storage 
3. Injunction Against Unauthorized Replenishment 

B. Continuing Jurisdiction . . . ..... . 
I. Jurisdiction Reserved ...... . 
2. Intervention After Judgment .. 

c. Reservation of Other Remedies .... 
I. Claims By and Against Non-parties 
2. Claims Between Parties Unrelated to the Judgment 
3. Groundwater Levels ............... . 

WATERMASTER. . . . . . . .. 
A. Composition, Voting and Compensation .. 
B. Nomination and Appointment Process 
C. Succession . . . . . ..... . 

D 
E. 
F. 

I. Partial Succession . . . . . ..... 
2. Non-Party Successor . 
3. Party Successor 
Powers and Duties 
Organization and Meetings ..... . 
Limits on Assessments 

PHYSICAL SOLUTION FOR THE SIX BASINS AREA .. 

19 

19 
19 

. '20 

'20 
. '20 

. ... 20 

.... 20 
...... 20 

... 20 
'20 

20 

. ' . ' 21 
....... 21 

.. 21 
. 21 

. . 21 
. 21 

.. '' 22 
22 

. 23 
. '. '23 

')'"' .. ' ' _.) 

. 23 
. .. '. 24 

25 

A. General Purposes and Objectives . . . . . . . . . . .............. . 
'24 
. 24 

1. Physical Solution is Consistent With the Public Interest . . . ... 25 
2. Balance ofEquities . . . . . . . . ..... '25 
3. Flexibility ... 25 

B. Guidelines for Operation ofFour Basins Area .. ')~ 
...... ..... ) 

1. Replenishment .. ' .. ' .. . 25 
2. Storage and Recovery .. .......... '26 
") Operating Safe Yield . . 26 .) . . . . . . 

4. Production ........ '' 26 
5. Replacement Water . . . . . . . . . . . . . ....... '' 26 

a. Obligation to Provide Replacement Water . 27 
b. In Lieu Procedures ........ '' 27 
C. Replacement Water Assessment .. 27 

6. Development, Maintenance and Implementation of the Operating Plan . 27 
7. Initial Operating Plan 28 
8. Annual Review of the Operating Plan 28 
9. Replenishment 28 
10 Storage and Recovery Pursuant to Storage and Recovery Agreements 29 
11. Special Projects . '30 
12. Temporary Surplus Groundwater 30 

lll 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

c. GUIDELINES FOR OPERATION OF THE TWO BASINS AREA 
1. Replenishment . . . . . . . . . . . . ......... . 
2. Storage and Recovery ............... . 
3. Production ....... . 

VII. ASSESSrvfENTS ..... 

A. Ground Rules ............. . 
1. Authorization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ..... . 
2. Assessment Spread ...................... . 
3 . Administrative Assessment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
4. Replacement Water Assessments . . ........... . 

VIII. DISPUTE RESOLUTION .................. . 

A. 
B. 
c. 

Entity for Resolution of Dispute . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .... . 
Determination Regarding Substantial Injury ............ . 
Notice and Hearing .............................. . 

IX. ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS ................ . 

A. Procedure.... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ...... . 
1. Designation of Address for Notice and Service 
2. Service ofDocuments .................... . 
3. Recordation of Notice . . . . . . . .... . 
4. Judgment Binding on Successors ............ . 
5. Costs ................................... . 
6. Review Procedures . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

a. Effective Date ofWatermaster Action ... 
b. Notice ofMotion. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .... . 
c. Time for Motion . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .... . 
d. De Novo Nature of Proceeding ....... . 
e. Payment of Assessments . . . . . .. 

B. Entry of Judgmenr ................ . 

19 CODES 

20 California Constitution 
Article X, § 2 ............ . 

21 
California Open Meetings Law (Brown Act) 

22 
Government Code 

23 § 54950 .... 

24 Public Utilities Code 
§ 1001 

25 § 2701 

26 Water Code 
. § 2529 

27 § 4999 

28 
HATCH AND PARENT 

21 EAST CARRILLO STRE 
SANTMt,R~fa~A CA 

IV 

. 30 
. .. 30 

31 
. .. 31 

. 31 

....... 31 
. 31 
. 31 
. 32 

. ...... 32 

32 

. .. 32 
. . 32 

.... -. 
. .) .) 

33 

. . 33 
... 33 
. .. 34 
... 34 

34 
. .. 34 
... 34 

. . 34 
.... 35 

. .. 35 
. 35 
. 35 

.... 35 

1, 2, 5, 8 

.... 24 

.. 24 

2 
.2 

. 33 
5,11,12 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



PRELIMINARY FINDINGS 

2 A. Complaint. 

3 The Southern California Water Company (" SCWC"), (or "Plaintiff"), and the City of La Verne 

4 ("La Verne"), City of Claremont ("Claremont"), City of Pomona ("Pomona"), City of Upland 

5 ("Upland"), Pomona College ("Pomona College"), Pomona Valley Protective Association ("PVP A"), 

6 San Antonio Water Company ("San Antonio"), Simpson Paper Company ("Simpson"), Three Valleys 

7 Municipal Water District ("TVMWD"), West End Consolidated Water Company ("West End"), 

8 collectively (Defendants) either: 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 On or about 

1. account for essentially all of the current·production of groundwater from or the 

replenishment to the Canyon Basin, the Upper Claremont Heights Basin, the 

Lower Claremont Heights Basin, the Pomona Basin, the Live Oak Basin and 

the Ganesha Basin ("Six Basins Area"), located in Los Angeles and San 

Bernardino Counties, and described in Exhibits "A,"and "B" attached hereto, 

and further defined in Judgment Section I( A) below; or 

n. are public agencies with an interest in the efficient and responsible 

management of groundwater resources within the Six Basins. 

September 28, 1998 the Plaintiff filed a complaint against Defendants and Does 

18 through 1, 000 requesting a declaration of their individual and collective rights to groundwater and 

19 a mandatory and prohibitory injunction requiring the reasonable use and equitable management of 

20 groundwater within the Six Basins pursuant to Article X. Section 2 of the California Constitution. 

21 The pleadings further allege that the Plaintiff and Defendants collectively claim substantially all 

22 rights of groundwater use, replenishment and storage within the Six Basins Area, that the available 

23 Safe Yield (as defined in Judgment Section I(A), below) is being exceeded and that the groundwater 

24 supply to the Six Basins Area is inadequate to meet the current and long term demands of Plaintiff 

25 and Defendants without the imposition of a physical solution. Plaintiff requests a determination of 

26 all groundwater rights, including replenishment and storage rights, of whatever nature within the 

2 7 boundaries of the Six Basins and request the imposition of an equitable physical solution. 

28 
HATCH AND PARENT 

1 ~~~~K~~~~~~~rt:.f 
93101-2782 

144876.16774.54 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



B. Answers and Cross-Complaints. On or before November 13, 1998, Plaintiff and 

2 Defendants filed a stipulation for entry of judgment. 

3 c. Jurisdiction. This Court has jurisdiction to enter judgment declaring and adjudicating 

4 the Plaintiffs and Defendants' ("the Parties") rights to the reasonable and beneficial use of 

5 groundwater by the Parties in the Six Basins Area pursuant to Article X Section 2 of the California 

6 Constitution and to impose a complete physical solution. All pre-existing rights to groundwater 

7 within the Basin held or claimed by any Party (as defined in Section I(A) of the Judgment below) are 

8 hereby settled and defined as the production allocations and the other rights and obligations set forth 

9 under this judgment ("Judgment"). The respective allocations for each Party are expressly set forth 

1 0 in Exhibit "D." 

11 D. Parties. 

12 1. SCWC is an investor-owned public utility incorporated under the laws of the 

13 State of California. (See Public Utilities Code Section 1001 et seq. and 2 701 et seq.) SCWC produces 

14 groundwater from the Six Basins and delivers it for use on land within its certificated service area 

15 that predominantly overlies some portion of the Six Basins, and otherwise is within the Counties of 

16 Los Angeles and San Bernardino. 

17 2. Pomona is a charter city situated in the County of Los Angeles. Pomona 

18 produces groundwater from the Six Basins and delivers it for use on land within its incorporated 

19 boundaries, on land lying outside its incorporated boundaries within the County of Los Angeles and 

20 on City owned lands that predominantly overlie some portion of the Six Basins.· Pomona owns and 

21 controls land in the Six Basins Area upon which it has historically diverted, for direct use and 

22 spreading, surface water from San Antonio Creek and Evey Canyon. 

23 3. La Verne is a general law city situated in the County of Los Angeles. La Verne 

24 produces groundwater from the Six Basins and delivers it for use on land within its incorporated 

25 boundaries, on land lying outside its incorporated boundaries within the County ofLos Angeles and 

26 on City owned lands that predominantly overlie some portion of the Six Basins. 

27 

28 
HATCH AND PARENT 

21 EAST CARRI~l~ STRE 
SANT9\~t1R2tsl CA 

144876.16774.54 2 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



4. Upland is a general law city situated in the County of San Bernardino Upland 

2 produces groundwater from the Six Basins and delivers it for use on land within its incorporated 

3 boundaries some portion of which overlie the Six Basins. It possesses a majority of the shares of 

4 stock in San Antonio and West End. 

5 5. San Antonio is a mutual water corporation incorporated under the laws of the 

6 State of California, with its principal place of business in San Bernardino County San Antonio 

7 produces groundwater from the Six Basins and delivers it for use by its shareholders. 

8 6. West End is a mutual water corporation, incorporated under the laws of the 

9 State of California, with its principal place of business in San Bernardino County. West End 

10 produces groundwater from the Six Basins and delivers it for use by its shareholders. 

11 7. Claremont is a general law city situated in the County of Los Angeles. 

12 Claremont's incorporated boundaries and City owned lands overlie a portion of the Six Basins. The 

13 City has executed an agreement with SCWC with respect to its groundwater rights. 

14 8. Pomona College is a California corporation, with a principal place of business 

15 in the County ofLos Angeles. Pomona College owns land and groundwater production facilities that 

16 · overlie the Six Basins Area and it has executed operating leases with SCWC regarding these 

17 facilities. Pomona College has executed an agreement with SCWC with respect to its groundwater 

18 rights. 

19 9. Simpson is a Washington corporation, which is doing business in the State of 

20 California and the County of Los Angeles. Simpson produces groundwater from the Six Basins for 

21 its own use and also purchases water service from Pomona. 

22 10. PVP A is a California corporation, operating on a non-profit basis for the mutual 

23 benefit of its members with its principal place of business in the County of Los Angeles. 

24 Shareholders of PVP A include Pomona, Pomona College, San Antonio, SCWC, Simpson, Upland 

25 and West End. PVP A owns the primary spreading grounds and recharge facilities for the Six Basins 

26 and owns other lands which also overlie the Six Basins. PVP A has undertaken ongoing studies and 

27 evaluation of groundwater conditions in the Six Basins Area. 

28 
HATCH AND PARENT 

21 ~~~1~~~~~~~~K.Tt'K 
93101-2782 

144876.1 6774.54 ) 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



11. TVMWD is a California Municipal Water District formed pursuant to the 

2 provisions of the municipal water district act and with the power to acquire, control, distribute, store, 

3 and spread water for beneficial purposes within its boundaries. 

4 E. Settlement Ne1:otiations. 

5 1. Importance of Groundwater. Groundwater is an important water supply 

6 source for businesses, individuals and public agencies that overlie or extract groundwater from the 

7 Six Basins. The Parties have a mutual and collective interest in the efficient and reasonable use of 

8 groundwater and the coordinated management of water resources to ensure the prudent use of the 

9 resource. The Parties have a further collective interest in furthering the efficient and reasonable use 

10 of groundwater and the coordinated and comprehensive management of water resources to ensure that 

11 the common resource may be sustained and enhanced. 

12 2. Coordinated Study. PVP A has conducted and continues to conduct technical 

13 studies of the Six Basins and has developed groundwater models of the Six Basins. To achieve the 

14 goals of coordinated basin management and to ensure and promote the sustainable and enhanced use 

15 of the groundwater resources of the Six Basins, the Parties joined in a collaborative process, reviewed 

16 prior groundwater production reports and hydrologic studies, other historical data and engaged in new 

1 7 technical studies to supplement the previous work of PVP A Substantial engineering, hydrologic and 

18 geologic data not previously known have been collected and jointly analyzed and verified by the 

19 Parties. Included therein are estimates of production and reported production from the Six Basins 

20 and further refinement of PVP A's groundwater models. The results of these efforts provide the 

21 technical foundation for this Judgment 

22 3. Overdraft. 

23 a. Native Safe Yield. The Native Safe Yield (as defined in Judgment, 

24 Section I(A), below) of the Six Basins Area has historically been augmented generally by the 

25 spreading activities conducted by PVP A, Pomona and La Verne and from return flows from water 

26 imported to the Six Basins Area through TVMWD. There is no precise estimate of the Native Safe 

2 7 Yield; however, without augmentation comprised of the substantial spreading operations conducted 

28 
HATCH AND PARENT 

21 ~~YK~~~~~~~~Tt'K 
93101-2782 ' 

144876.1 6774.54 4 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



by PVP A and others, and the return flows from imported water, the amount of groundwater 

2 comprising the Native Safe Yield is substantially less than the Safe Yield which is allocated to the 

3 parties pursuant to this Judgment 

4 b. Safe Yield. Safe Yield (as defined in Judgment, Section I(A), below) 

5 for all groundwater supplies within the Six Basins, including the benefits of historic augmentation 

6 is nineteen thousand three hundred ( 19,300) acre feet per year 

7 c. Groundwater Production. Reports filed with the State of California 

8 pursuant to Water Code Section 4999 et seq., production records reported to PVP A by its members, 

9 and independent verification by the Parties all demonstrate that the cumulative groundwater 

10 production of the Parties from the Six Basins Area annually has been greater than twenty thousand 

11 (20, 000) acre feet in each of the five years immediately preceding the filing of this action. Therefore, 

12 groundwater production has exceeded the available Safe Yield and a fortiori the Native Safe Yield 

13 in each of the last five years. 

14 F. Stipulation. The Parties, whose production from the Six Basins cumulatively comprise 

15 essentially all of the groundwater production in the Six Basins Area, which have engaged in long-

16 standing groundwater replenishment activities or otherwise have an interest in the efficient and 

17 coordinated management of groundwater, have stipulated to the entry of this Judgment. Each of the 

18 Parties stipulate that this Judgment is a physical solution (as defined in Judgment, Section I(A), 

19 below) which provides due c~:msideration to the environment, the respective groundwater rights of 

20 the Parties, and that this Judgment will not cause substantial material injury to any Party under these 

21 circumstances of a lengthy period of overdraft and the competing claims to groundwater The Parties 

22 further stipulate that the Judgment is a fair and equitable allocation ofwater in accordance with the 

23 provisions of Article X Section 2 of the California Constitution. 

24 II 

25 II 

26 II 

27 II 

28 
HATCH ANO PARENT 

21 %~~~x~~~~~~?'2ff 
93101·2782 

144876.16774.54 5 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



JUDGMENT 

2 IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED: 

3 I. INTRODUCTION 

4 A. Definitions. 

5 1. "Base Annual Production Right" means the average annual production, in acre-feet, 

6 for each Party for the twelve year period beginning on January 1 of 1985 and ending on 

7 December 31 of 1996 as set forth in Exhibit "D". 

8 2. "Carryover Rights" means the maximum percentage of a Party's annual allocation 

9 of Operating Safe Yield production of which may be deferred until the following Year free 

10 of any Replacement Water Assessment. 

11 3. "Effective Date" means January 1, 1999. 

12 4. "Four Basins or Four Basins Area" means the following groundwater basins and 

13 the area overlying them: Canyon, Upper Claremont Heights, Lower Claremont Heights and 

14 Pomona as shown on Exhibit "A" and further described in Exhibit "B". 

15 5. "Groundwater" means all water beneath the ground surface and contained 

16 within any one of the Six Basins except as provided in Article IliA Section 1. 

17 6. "Imported Water" means water that is not naturally tributary to the Six Basins Area 

18 and which is delivered to the Six Basins Area. 

19 7. "In Lieu Procedures" means a method of either providing Replacement Water or 

20 water to be stored under a Storage and Recovery Agreement whereby a Party receives direct 

21 deliveries of Imported Water or water other than Replenishment Water in exchange for 

22 foregoing the production of an equivalent amount of such Party's share of the Operating Safe 

23 Yield. 

24 8. "Minimal Producers" means any producer whose production is less than 25 acre 

25 feet each Year. 

26 9. "Native Groundwater" means groundwater within the Six Basins Area that 

27 originates from the deep percolation of rainfall, natural stream flow or subsurface inflow, and 

28 

144876.16774.54 6 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



expressly excluding groundwater which originates from (a) the Parties' replenishment 

2 activities and (b) return flows from both imported water and the Parties' replenishment 

3 activities, and water described in Article IliA Section 1. 

4 10. "Native Safe Yield" means the amount ofNative Groundwater, in acre feet, that can 

5 be extracted from the Six Basins Area on an annual basis without causing an undesirable 

6 result. Expressed as a formula: Native Safe Annual Yield= Annually Available Groundwater 

7 -(Replenishment Water+ return flows from Imported Water and Replenishment Water). 

8 

9 

10 

11. 

12. 

13. 

"Native Water" means water which is naturally tributary to the Six Basins Area. 

"Non-party" means any person or entity which is not a party to this Judgment 

"Operating Plan" means the plan, developed by Watermaster (as defined m 

11 Judgment, Article V below) for the Four Basins Area, by which the purpose and objectives 

12 of the Physical Solution will be implemented and realized. 

13 14. "Operating Safe Yield" means the amount of groundwater, in acre feet, which the 

14 Watermaster shall determine can be produced from the Four Basins Area by the Parties during 

15 any single year, free of any replacement obligation under the Physical Solution herein 

16 Because of the benefits created by coordinated management of groundwater provided by the 

17 Physical Solution, the Operating Safe Yield set by Watermaster may exceed the Safe Yield 

18 that would otherwise be available for production by the Parties. The Two Basins Area is 

19 excluded from the Operating Safe Yield allocated pursuant to this Judgment with its annual 

20 Safe Yield being equivalent to the amount of groundwater La Verne may reasonably produce 

21 from the Two Basins Area on an annual basis without causing substantial injury to any other 

22 Party. 

23 15. "Overdraft" means a condition wherein the total annual production from a 

24 groundwater basin exceeds the Safe Yield. 

25 16. "Party or Parties" means any person(s) or entity(ies) named in this action, who 

26 has/have intervened in this case or has/have become subject to this Judgment through 

27 succession, stipulation, transfer, default, trial or otherwise. 

28 
HATCH AND PARENT 

21 EAST CARRILLO STRE 
SANTA BARBARA. CA 

93101-2782 
144876.1 6774.54 7 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



17. "Physical Solution" means the efficient and equitable coordinated management of 

2 groundwater within the Six Basins Area to maximize the reasonable and beneficial use of 

3 groundwater resources in a manner that is consistent with the public interest, Article X. 

4 Section 2 of the California Constitution, and with due regard for the environment. 

5 18. "Producer" means a person, firm, association, organization, joint venture, partner-

6 ship, business, trust, corporation or public entity who, or which, produces or has a right to 

7 produce groundwater from the Six Basins Area. 

8 19. "Production" means the process of pumping groundwater; also, the gross amount 

9 of groundwater pumped. 

10 20. "Replacement Water" means imported water or water other than Replenishment 

11 Water supplied through in-lieu procedures that is acquired by the Watermaster or provided 

12 by a Party to replace production by such Party in excess of the amount of its share of the 

13 Operating Safe Yield, Carry-Over Rights and Storage and Recovery rights authorized by 

14 W atermaster. 

15 21. "Replacement Water Assessment" means an assessment levied by Watermaster 

16 pursuant to Article XII A, Section 4 of this Judgment. 

17 22. "Replenishment" means a program to spread or inject Replenishment Water into 

18 the Six Basins Area. A description of the current replenishment programs is attached hereto 

19 as Exhibit "E." 

20 23. "Replenishment Water" means native water which augments the Native Safe Yield 

21 and thereby comprises a portion of the Operating Safe Yield pursuant to a historical 

22 replenishment program as described in Article VIB, Section 9 and Exhibit E. 

23 24. "Return Flows" means water which percolates, infiltrates or seeps into the Six 

24 Basins after having been previously applied to some end use by one of the Parties or any user 

25 ofwater. 

26 25. "Safe Yield" means the amount of groundwater, including Replenishment and return 

27 flows from Imported Water, that can be reasonably produced from the combined Two Basins 

28 
HATCH AND PARENT 

1 EAST CARRI~LO STRE 
SANT~~t,RA~A CA 

l-1-4876.16774.54 8 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



and the Four Basins Areas on an annual basis without causing an undesirable result, including 

2 but not limited to land subsidence, water quality degradation, and harm from high 

3 groundwater levels, i.e. 19,300 acre feet per year. 

4 26. "Six Basins or Six Basins Area" means the Four Basins Area plus the Two Basins 

5 Area, as shown on Exhibit "A" and further described in Exhibit "B." 

6 27. "Spreading" means a method of groundwater recharge whereby water is placed in 

7 permeable impoundments and allowed to percolate into a basin. 

8 28. "Storage and Recovery" means a program administered under an agreement 

9 between the Watermaster and a Party to store water either directly by sinking, spreading or 

10 injecting or by in-lieu procedures, into the Four Basins, and subsequently recovering such 

11 water without regard to the limitations imposed by the Party's Base Annual Production Right 

12 29. "Storage and Recovery Agreement" means an agreement between W atermaster and 

13 a Party for Storage and Recovery of water by such Party. An acceptable pre-approved 

14 Storage and Recovery Agreement between Watermaster and Pomona is listed on Exhibit "F." 

15 30. "Transfer" means temporary or permanent assignment, sale, contract or lease of any 

16 Party's Base Annual Production Right and its associated percentage of the Safe Yield, Carry-

17 Over Rights or rights to recover water stored under a Storage and Recover Agreement to any 

18 other Party or a person that becomes a Party. A lease shall not be considered a "permanent 

19 transfer" unless both the Lessee and Lessor jointly agree to such characterization. 

20 31. "Two Basins or Two Basins Area" means the Live Oak and Ganesha Basins and 

21 the areas overlying them, as shown on Exhibit "A" and further described in Exhibit "B." 

22 32. "Water Shortage Emergency" means the substantial impairment, which cannot be 

23 promptly mitigated, of the ability of the Parties to provide sufficient water for human 

24 consumption, sanitation and fire protection because of: (a) a sudden occurrence such as 

25 storm, flood, fire, unexpected equipment outage; or (b) an extended period of drought 

26 33. "Watermaster" means the committee with the powers and duties defined in Article 

27 V ofthis Judgment. 

28 
HATCH AND PARENT 

21 EAST CARRILLO STRE 
SANTt3~t1~~;8~ CA 

1-+4876.16774.54 9 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 II. 

12 

34. "Year" means a calendar year. 

B. Exhibits. Each exhibit is expressly incorporated herein and made part of this 

Judgment. 

Exhibit A 

Exhibit B: 

Exhibit C: 

Exhibit D: 

Exhibit E: 

Exhibit F: 

Exhibit G: 

Six Basin Map 

General Description of the Six Basins Area 

Memorandum of Agreement between Watermaster and PVP A 

Base Annual Production Rights ofParties 

Description of Replenishment Programs 

City ofPomona Storage and Recovery Agreement 

Initial Operating Plan 

FINDINGS AND HYDROLOGIC CONDITIONS 

A. Safe Yield. Prior to the imposition of this Physical Solution, the Safe Yield of the Six 

13 Basins is historically found to be 19,300 acre feet per year. 

14 B. Overdraft and Prescriptive Circumstances. For a period in excess of five 

15 consecutive Years prior to the filing of the complaint herein, the Native Safe Yield and the Safe Yield 

16 have been exceeded by the aggregate Production therefrom and the Six Basins have been in a 

17 continuous state of Overdraft. The court finds that the Production constituting such Overdraft has 

18 been ope~ notorious, continuous, adverse, hostile, and under claim of right. The court further finds 

19 that the groundwater Production has exceeded the Native Safe Yield and the Safe Yield in each of 

20 the last five years and thus all the required elements necessary to establish prescription have been 

21 satisfied. 

22 1. Adversitv. The Native Safe Yield of the Six Basins Area has been continuously 

23 exceeded for decades. It is only through the ongoing Replenishment undertaken by PVP A, Pomona 

24 and La Verne coupled with the availability of and return flows from Imported Water that a further 

25 decline in water levels has been averted. An unmanaged downward decline in water levels is known 

26 to have severe adverse impacts on the rights of groundwater producers and groundwater quality, to 

27 cause land subsidence and to cause increased pump-lifts. Moreover, the Court finds that presently 

28 
HATCH AND PARENT 

21 EAST CARRI~LO STRE 
SANT~3~t1R2;8~ CA 

!44876.!6774.54 10 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



estimated Safe Yield of 19,300 acre feet, with the full benefit ofthe Replenishment carried on by the 

2 Parties has been exceeded and ifProduction is not managed pursuant to this Physical Solution, severe 

3 adverse impacts will result 

4 2. Continuity. The Native Safe Yield has been continuously exceeded for at least two 

5 decades. For each of the last five Years the Safe Yield has been exceeded. The Court finds that 

6 cumulative total Production from the Six Basins Area for the Years 1993 through 1997 is as follows 

7 1993 21,020 acre feet 

8 1994 20,313 acre feet 

9 1995 22,959 acre feet 

10 1996 23,5 84 acre feet 

11 1997 21,902 acre feet 

12 3. Notice. Each of the Parties with a Base Annual Production Right, or their agents, have 

13 filed groundwater production reports with the State Department of Water Resources pursuant to 

14 Water Code Section 4999. These reports are public records and are available for inspection by any 

15 member of the public. SCWC is an investor-owned public utility subject to regulation by the 

16 California Public Utilities Commission (PUC). Its records, reports and filings with the PUC regularly 

1 7 include information regdrding the wells used and groundwater produced from the Six Basins Area 

18 The PUC has held publicly noticed rate hearings which have been attended by the public and 

19 representatives from Claremont Pomona, La Verne and Upland are all public entities and their 

20 groundwater production information are public records and open to public inspection upon reasonable 

21 notice. PVP A has frequently published reports which indicate the nature of its Replenishment and 

22 the volume of groundwater produced in the Six Basins Area. At least two settlement agreements 

23 have been entered between certain Parties on matters related to the adverse impacts of increased 

24 groundwater production. Both of these agreements were approved by a public entity and are public 

25 records. Moreover, the negotiations leading up to the entry of this Judgment were open to all persons 

26 claiming the right to produce groundwater by virtue of their owning overlying land or having 

2 7 corporate boundaries overlying the Six Basins Area. Regular meetings concerning these negotiations 

28 
HATCH AND PARENT 

21 EAST CARRILLO STRE 
SANTM~,~~fs~ CA 

144876.1 6774.54 11 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



have been held at the headquarters ofTVMWD, a public agency, and were personally attended by 

2 representatives from each of the Parties. These meetings have taken place at regular intervals for 

3 more than twelve consecutive months and the contents of this Judgment and the status of groundwater 

4 conditions in the Six Basins Area has remained readily available. Accordingly, the Court finds that 

5 all persons claiming the right to produce had actual notice, constructive notice or could have easily 

6 determined upon reasonable diligence that the Six Basins Area was in Overdraft and of each Party's 

7 claim to groundwater. The circumstances of such Overdraft and water use are such that each of the 

8 Parties either: (i) had actual knowledge of such circumstances; or (ii) should have discovered such 

9 circumstances upon the exercise of reasonable diligence or (iii) received constructive notice of the 

10 adverse nature of such aggregate production through the public record filings with the State of 

11 California pursuant to Water Code Section 4999 and through the various reports published by the 

12 Parties. 

13 c. Hi~h Groundwater Levels. There are cienegas and springs in the Four Basins Area 

14 and there is a potential for groundwater to rise to the surface regardless of the replenishment, 

15 replacement or storage operations of the Watermaster and carried out by the Parties. Periodically, 

16 though not in the past twelve years, high groundwater levels have constituted an important causative 

17 factor, in creating damage in the Four Basins Area. 

18 D. Water Quality Problems. Some of the Six Basins have experienced problems of high 

19 concentrations of nitrates and volatile organic compounds (VOC's) in groundwater. Potential sources 

20 of the nitrate are historical agricultural practices and individual wastewater disposal systems, most 

21 of which have been abandoned. The Two Basins Area and some of the Four Basins Area have been 

22 adversely impacted by high concentrations of nitrates and VOC's and may also require remediation. 

23 ill. DECLARATION OF RIGHTS AND RESPONSffiiLITIES 

24 A. General Provisions. 

25 1. Surface Water Ri~hts. Pomona and San Antonio have prior and paramount pre-

26 1914 water rights, superior to the rights of any other party, to the surface water and supporting 

27 

28 
HATCH AND PARENT 

I EAST CARRI~l~ STRE 
SANTM~,~2tal CA 

!4-4876.! 6774.54 12 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



subsurface flows historically and presently diverted therefrom in San Antonio and Evey Canyon, 

2 except as provided in Anicle VIB Section 9 and as referenced in Anicle IliA Section 1 d. 

3 a. Historically, Pomona and San Antonio have diverted, and presently are 

4 diverting, surface waters and supporting subsurface flows from San Antonio Canyon. 

5 b. Historically, Pomona has diverted, and presently is diverting, surface water 

6 and supporting subsurface flows from Evey Canyon. 

7 c. Pomona and San Antonio are under no obligation to spread such waters. 

8 d. Surface waters and supporting subsurface flows diverted in San Antonio and 

9 Evey Canyons at existing diversion locations are excluded from (i) the operation of this Judgment 

10 and (ii) the determination of Operating Safe Yield, except to the extent of the portion of such waters 

11 which are spread by Pomona at its Pedley Treatment Plant, which portion is governed by the 

12 provisions of Article VIB, Section 9 

13 e. The diversion and the use of surface waters and supporting subsurface flows 

14 shall not be subject to this Judgment 

15 f. The above-referenced surface waters and supporting subsurface flows shall 

16 not be subject to allocation among the Parties pursuant to this Judgment. 

17 g. Surface waters and supporting subsurface flows may be used by Pomona and 

18 San Antonio to satisfy Replacement Water obligations as provided in Article VIB, Section 5. 

19 2. Loss of Priorities. By reason of the long continued overdraft in the Six Basins, and 

20 in light of the complexity of determining appropriative priorities and the need for conserving and 

21 making maximum beneficial use ofthe water resources of the State, each and all of the Parties listed 

22 in Exhibit "D" are estopped and barred from asserting special priorities or preferences inter se to 

23 groundwater except as expressly provided herein. All the Parties' rights to groundwater are 

24 accordingly deemed and considered to be of equal priority unless otherwise expressly stated herein. 

25 3. Limitations on Export. Other than the limitation on Pomona's use of l 09 acre feet 

26 as further described in Exhibit "D", any Party's share of the Operating Safe Yield, including 

27 Carryover Rights and Transfers, may be produced and exported for use outside the Six Basins Area. 

28 
HATCH AND PARENT 

21 EAST CARRILLO STRE 
SANTA BARBARA, CA 

93101-2782 !44876.!6774.54 13 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



However, groundwater stored and recovered pursuant to a Storage and Recovery Agreement may be 

2 produced and exported only in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Storage and Recovery 

3 Agreement. 

4 4. No Abandonment of Ri~hts. It is in the interest of reasonable beneficial use of the 

5 Six Basins Area and its water supply, that no Party be encouraged to take and use more water in any 

6 Year than is actually required. Failure to produce all of the water to which a Party is entitled 

7 hereunder shall, in and of itself, not be deemed to be, or constitute an abandonment of such Party's 

8 right, in whole or in part. 

9 5. Pre-Existin~ Ri~hts. This Judgment controls each Party's rights to the Production, 

10 Replenishment, Storage and Recovery of groundwater and expressly supersedes other rights, claims 

11 or defenses arising from agreement, operation of law, prior use or a prior judgment to the extent that 

12 they are inconsistent with this Judgment. However, nothing in this Judgment shall alter or affect any 

13 rights or remedies that any Party may have under any contract or agreement with any other Party on 

14 matters which are not inconsistent with or are unrelated to the provisions of this Judgment or as 

15 provided in Article IVC herein. 

16 6. Physical Solution. This Judgment represents a total and complete Physical Solution 

17 for the Six Basins Area and all basins included therein. Although prior hydrologic and physical 

18 conditions limited the Safe Yield to 19,300 acre feet per year, through the coordinated and equitable 

19 management ofthe Four Basins and Two Basins Areas provided under this Judgment, an Operating 

20 Safe Yield, Operating Plan and Base Annual Production Rights shall be independently established 

21 for the Four Basins Area. However, La Verne shall be entitled to produce groundwater from the Two 

22 Bas ins Area in addition to its equitable share of the Four Basins Operating Safe Yield, as provided 

in accordance with the terms of this Judgment. 

24 7. Portability Between the Two Basins and Four Basins Areas. A Party's right to 

25 produce, store or recover groundwater accruing under this Judgment in the Four Basins Area may not 

26 be transferred, exchanged or exercised in the Two Basins Area. A Party's right to produce, store or 

27 

28 

144876.16774.54 14 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



1 recover groundwater accruing under this Judgment in the Two Basins Area may not be transferred, 

2 exchanged or exercised in the Four Basins Area. 

3 B. Riehts of the Parties to Produce Groundwater from the Four Basins. 

4 1. Declaration of Ri~hts. The Parties listed in Exhibit "D" are the owners of 

5 appropriative rights, including rights by prescription, and exercised and unexercised overlying rights 

6 of equal priority, and each Party shall be entitled to produce groundwater under the Physical Solution 

7 and to share in the Operating Safe Yield of the Four Basins according to the percentages set forth in 

8 Exhibit "D" as Base Annual Production Rights in a manner consistent with the provisions of this 

9 Judgment. 

10 2. Carryover Riehts. Any Party that produces less than its share of the Operating Safe 

11 Yield in any Year shall have the right to carry the unproduced portion forward to be produced in the 

12 following year subject to the following limitations: (a) the first water produced in any Year shall be 

13 deemed to be an exercise of any Carryover Right; (b) a Party's Carryover Right cannot exceed 25 

14 (twenty-five) per cent of such Party's share of the current Operating Safe Yield for the prior Year; 

15 and (c) Carryover Rights may be lost in the event replenishment is discontinued or curtailed as 

16 provided below in Article IIIB, Section 7. 

17 3. 
-r 

Transferability of Rights. Subject to the limitations set forth in his Judgment, a Base 
·"-

18 Annual Production Right and its associated percentage of the Operating Safe Yield, as well as any 

19 Carryover Rights and water stored under a Storage and Recovery Agreement, may be transferred, in 

20 whole or in part, among existing Parties or to any other person that becomes a Party on either a 

21 temporary or permanent basis provided that no Party is substantially injured by the Transfer. Pro-

22 duction pursuant to any such Transfer shall be subject to the limitations on carryover and portability 

23 set forth in Article IIIB, Section 4. Any such Transfer shall become effective upon being recorded 

24 with Watermaster. Watermaster shall revise Exhibit "D" annually, to reflect any permanent 

25 Transfers. The permanent Transfer of any Party's full Base Annual Production Right shall require 

26 Watermaster approval. Upon Watermaster approval the permanent Transfer of a Party's full Base 

27 Annual Production Right may require an adjustment in the Party representatives to the Watermaster 

28 
HATCH AND PARENT 

'1 EAST CARRI~LO STRE 
SANT M~1~2ta~ CA 

l..J-4876.1 6774.54 15 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



and the number of votes of the Party's representatives as provided in Article V. Notwithstanding the 

2 provision of this Article IIIB, Section 3, Pomona shall not be entitled to Transfer 109 acre feet of its 

3 Base Annual Production Right and its associated percentage of Operating Safe Yield. 

4 4. Portabilitv of Ri~hts Among the Four Basins. Any Party with a Base Annual 

5 Production Right, shall have the right to produce its share ofthe Operating Safe Yield ofthe Four 

6 Basins, including any Carryover Rights or Transfers, from any or all ofthe Four Basins, subject to 

7 the following conditions. 

8 a. No Substantial Injury. Any groundwater production from a "new" location 

9 shall not cause substantial injury to another Party. 

10 b. Advance Written Notice to Watermaster. Any Party that intends to 

11 undertake any of the following actions shall provide thirty (30) days' advance written notice to the 

12 Watermaster: (i) acquire, construct or operate a "new" groundwater production facility in any one 

13 of the Four Basins in which it is then producing groundwater; (ii) change the point of extraction from 

14 an existing groundwater production facility to a "new" groundwater production facility where the old 

15 and the new groundwater production facilities are both within the Canyon or Upper Claremont 

16 Heights or Lower Claremont Heights Basins; (iii) change the point of extraction from an existing 

17 groundwater production facility on one side ofthe Indian Hill Fault to a "new" facility on the other 

18 side of the Indian Hill Fault. 

19 C. Prior Watennaster Approval. Any Party that changes the point of extraction 

20 from an existing groundwater production facility on one side of the Indian Hill Fault to a "new" 

21 facility located on the other side of the Indian Hill Fault and increases the cumulative rate of annual 

22 extraction therefrom by more than 2,000 acre feet per year shall be required to obtain the prior written 

23 approval of the W atermaster. 

24 d. New Facility Defined. "New" as used in this Section 4 means either (i) an 

25 increase or enlargement in the pre-existing design capacity of a groundwater production facility or 

26 (ii) a movement in the location of a groundwater extraction facility by more than three hundred (3 00) 

27 feet or from one legal parcel to another legal parceL 

28 

144876.1 6774.54 16 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



e. Procedure for Resolution of Disputes. The Watermaster shall make all 

2 necessary determinations and resolve all disputes arising under this Article IIIB, Section 4 in 

3 accordance with the provisions of Article VIII. 

4 5. Riehts to Unused Groundwater Stora~e Capacity. From time to time there may 

5 exist in the Four Basins, unused storage capacity. Parties holding Base Annual Production Rights 

6 pursuant to this Judgment and TVMWD for the sole purpose of storing Imported Water, shall have 

7 the exclusive rights to use such storage capacity, and subject to the complete discretion of the 

8 Watermaster, may sink, spread or inject water into the Four Basins Area pursuant to a Storage and 

9 Recovery Agreement 

10 6. Priorities for Use of Groundwater Storage Capacity. In directing spreading and 

11 controlling the use of groundwater storage capacity, the Watermaster shall give first priority to 

12 Replenishment Water; second priority to Carryover Rights; third priority to Storage and Recovery 

13 of water which is naturally tributary to the Six Basins Area; fourth priority to Storage and Recovery 

14 oflmported Water, and fifth priority to Storage and Recovery of other water. 

15 7. Loss of Stored and Carryover Water. After providing notice and opportunity to be 

16 heard to any affected Party pursuant to Article IXA, if the Watermaster reasonably determines that 

1 7 Replenishment had to be terminated or curtailed in any year, or that Replenishment Water was 

18 rejected because of insufficient storage capacity, some or all of a Party's unproduced Carryover 

19 Rights or Storage and Recovery rights may be deemed lost The amount of water subject to loss shall 

20 be equal to that quantity of Replenishment Water which was curtailed or rejected solely because of 

21 insufficient storage capacity in the Four Basins. 

22 The burden of a determination by Watermaster that rejected recharge has occurred and that 

23 there shall be a loss of stored and Carryover water, shall be shared proportionately by each Party to 

24 the extent the quantity of water held by each Party at the time of the loss bears to the total quantity 

25 of water within each of the classification. Any losses shall be charged first to the storage of other 

26 water, then to the storage ofimported Water, then to the storage ofNative Water, then to Carryover 

27 Water as expressly set forth below. 

28 
HATCH AND PARENT 

21 ~~~j-f~~~~~~~~ft<? 
93101-2782 

1-+-+876.16774.54 17 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 8. 

a. Highest priority shall be given to Replenishment Water. 

b. 

c. 

d. 

e. 

Second priority against loss shall be given to Carryover Water. 

Third priority against loss shall be given to storage ofNative Water. 

Fourth priority against loss shall be given to storage ofimported Water. 

Fifth priority against loss shall be given to storage of other water 

Consideration of Groundwater Levels. Watermaster shall make every reasonable 

7 effort to establish water operations limits so that the spreading of Replenishment or Replacement 

8 water, groundwater storage pursuant to a Storage and Recovery Agreement, or the determination of 

9 Operating Safe Yield shall not cause high groundwater levels that result in material damage to 

10 overlying property (not including sand and gravel excavations or operations) or cause groundwater 

11 to surface above the undisturbed natural terrain. 

12 

13 

c. 

l. 

The Parties' Ri~hts to Groundwater and Stora~e in the Two Basins. 

Declaration of Ri~hts. In recognition of the remediation efforts that are likely to be 

14 necessary to maximize groundwater production from the Two Basins; because of the detected high 

15 nitrate concentrations and in recognition that La Verne is uniquely situated to remedy these water 

16 quality conditions and exploit future opportunities; because of the minimal hydrologic 

17 communication between the Four Basins and Two Basins, and in furtherance of a complete and total 

18 physical solution for the Six Basins Area, La Verne shall have the right to produce as much 

19 groundwater as it may reasonably withdraw from the Two Basins Area on an annual basis so long 

20 as it does not substantially injure the rights of any other Party. 

21 2. Storage and Recovery. La Verne has the sole right to use available storage capacity 

22 in the Two Basins in its complete discretion for the Storage and Recovery of groundwater so long 

23 as it does not cause substantial injury to any other Party. La Verne shall not be required to obtain a 

24 Storage and Recovery Agreement from the Watermaster for Storage and Recovery programs carried 

25 out within the Two Basins Area provided that (i) such production or use of storage capacity shall not 

26 cause substantial injury to any other Party and (ii) La Verne provides 60 (sixty) days' advance written 

27 notice to Watermaster before initiating such a Storage and Recovery program 

28 
HATCH AND PARENT 

, §~~1x~~~~~~~-ft<I 
93101-2782 

144876.16774.54 18 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



1 3. Transferability of Riehts. Subject to the limitations set forth in Article III A., 

2 Section 7, La Verne's right to produce groundwater from the Two Basins Area may be transferred, 

3 in whole or in part, among existing Parties or to any other person that becomes a Party, on either a 

4 temporary or permanent basis provided that no Party is substantially injured by the Transfer. The 

5 permanent Transfer of the right to produce groundwater from the Two Basins Area shall not be 

6 effective until approved by Watermaster. 

7 

8 

D. 

1. 

Rights and Responsibilities of PVP A. 

Spreading Operations. PVP A and the other Parties have negotiated a Supplemental 

9 Memorandum of Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit "Cu This Supplemental Memorandum of 

10 Agreement and all modifications or amendments thereto shall include a provision for Waterrnaster's 

11 indemnity of PVP A for all Replenishment activities undertaken by PVP A at the direction of the 

12 Watermaster Within sixty (60) days of entry of this Judgment, Watermaste~ and PVPA shall execute 

13 the Agreement. Upon execution, the Agreement shall become part of the Physical Solution. PVP A 

14 shall not be required to execute a Storage and Recovery Agreement with Watermaster for its 

15 Replenishment activities carried out under the direction of the Watermaster. The Spreading 

16 operations conducted by PVP A may result in incidental Replenishment to the Two Basins Area and 

17 none of the Parties have a right to object thereto. This Replenishment is authorized under the 

18 Judgment. 

19 2. Waiver of Claims Against PVPA. The Parties expressly waive any and all claims 

20 against PVP A arising from facts, conditions or occurrences in existence before the Effective Date and 

21 arising from PVP A's spreading operations including but not limited to water quality degradation, 

22 subsurface infiltration, high groundwater or groundwater Overdraft within the Six Basins Area. 

23 E. Non-parties. 

24 1. Minimal Producers. Minimal producers are not bound or affected by this Judgment 

25 No person may produce twenty-five acre feet or more in any Year without becoming a Party. 

26 

27 

28 

144876.1 6774.54 19 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



2. Parties' Rights Versus Non-parties Reserved. The Parties expressly reserve all 

2 rights, without limitation, concerning any and all claims raised by persons not a Party to this 

3 Judgment as provided in Article IV C Section 1. 

4 IV. REMEDIES 

5 A. Injunctions. 

6 1. Injunction A~ainst Unauthorized Production. Each and every Party, its officers, 

7 agents, employees, successors and assigns is enjoined and restrained from producing water from the 

8 Six Basins except as authorized herein. 

9 Injunction Against Unauthorized Storage. Each and every Party, its officers, 

10 agents, employees, successors and assigns is enjoined and restrained from storing water in the Six 

2. 

1 1 Basin Area except as authorized herein. 

12 3. Iniunction Aeainst Unauthorized Replenishment. Each and every Party, its 

13 officers, agents, employees, successors and assigns is enjoined and restrained from replenishing water 

14 in the Six Basin Area except as authorized herein. 

15 B. Continuin~ Jurisdiction 

16 1. Jurisdiction Reserved. Full jurisdiction, power and authority are retained by and 

1 7 reserved to the Court upon the application of any Party, by a motion noticed in accordance with the 

18 review procedures of Article XIA, Section 6 hereof, to make such further or supplemental order or 

19 directions as may be necessary or appropriate for interpretation, enforcement or implementation of 

20 this Judgment, and to modify, amend or amplify any of the provisions of this Judgment or to add to 

21 the provisions thereof consistent with the rights herein decreed; provided that nothing in this 

22 paragraph shall authorize a reduction of the Base Annual Production Right of any Party except 

23 pursuant to a Transfer. 

24 2. Intervention After Judgment. Any Non-party who proposes to produce 

25 Groundwater from the Six Basins Area in an amount equal to or greater than 25 acre feet per Year, 

26 may seek to become a Party to this Judgment through (a) a stipulation for intervention entered into 

27 with Watermaster or (b) any Party or Watermaster filing a complaint against the Non-party requesting 

28 
HATCH AND PARENT 

21 EAST CARRILLO STRE 
SANTMt1R~fsrr- cA 

144876.16774.54 20 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



that the Non-party be joined in and bound by this Judgment. Watermaster may execute said Stipu-

2 lation on behalf of the other Parties herein, but such stipulation shall not preclude a Party from 

3 opposing such intervention at the time of the Court hearing thereon. A stipulation for intervention 

4 must thereupon be filed with the Court, which will consider an order confirming said intervention 

5 following thirty (30) days' notice to the Parties. Thereafter, if approved by the Court, such intervenor 

6 shall be a Party bound by this Judgment and entitled to the rights and privileges accorded under the 

7 Physical Solution herein, including a Base Annual Production Right in an amount equal to its average 

8 annual production in the twelve-year period beginning on January 1, of 1985 and ending on 

9 December 31, 1996, or any Base Annual Production Right it may obtain by a transfer. 

10 c. Reservation of Other Remedies. 

11 l. Claims By and A~ainst Non-parties. Nothing in this Judgment shall expand or 

12 restrict the rights, remedies or defenses available to any Party in raising or defending against claims 

13 made by any Non-party. Any Party shall have the right to initiate an action against any Non-party 

14 to enforce or compel compliance with the provisions of this Judgment. 

15 2. Claims Between Parties on Matters Unrelated to the Judgment. Nothing in this 

16 Judgment shall either expand or restrict the rights or remedies of the Parties concerning subject 

17 matter which is unrelated to the quantity and quality of groundwater allocated and equitably managed 

18 pursuant to this Judgment other than as provided in Article IIIA, Section 1. 

19 3. Groundwater Levels. Except as expressly provided herein, nothing in this Judgment 

20 shall either expand or restrict the rights or remedies at law that any Party may have against any other 

21 Party for money damages to real or personal property resulting from high groundwater or defenses 

22 thereto for events or occurrences after the Effective Date. 

23 v. W A TERMASTER 

24 A. Composition. Voting and Compensation. The Watermaster shall be a committee 

25 composed of one representative of each of the following Parties, and each representative shall have 

26 the authority to cast the indicated number of votes on any question before the committee 

27 

28 
HATCH AND PARENT 

21 EAST CARRILLO STRE 
SANTMt,R~fa~A cA 

144876.16774.54 

City ofLa Verne 5 votes 

21 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



City ofPomona 5 votes 

2 City of Upland 5 votes 

3 Southern California Water Company 5 votes 

4 City of Claremont 2 votes 

5 TVMWD 2 votes 

6 PVPA 2 votes 

7 Simpson Paper 1 vote 

8 Pomona College . 1 vote 

9 San Antonio 1 vote 

10 Committee representatives having the combined authority to cast twenty votes shall constitute a 

11 quorum for the transaction of affairs ofWatermaster and seventeen affirmative votes shall be required 

12 to constitute action by Watermaster. Representatives shall be compensated for their services by their 

13 respective appointing authorities. Representatives may be reimbursed by W atermaster for out of 

14 pocket expenses incurred on authorized Watermaster business. 

15 B. Nomination and Appointment Process. Each of the Parties named in Article VA, 

16 above, shall within thirty (30) days of entry of this Judgment submit to the Court its nominees for its 

17 representative member of the Watermaster Committee and one alternate and the Court shall in the 

18 ordinary course confirm the same by an appropriate order of appointment. Once appointed 

19 representatives and their alternates shall normally serve until a replacement is designated by the Party 

20 or until removed by the Court. If a representative or alternate is no longer willing or able to serve 

21 for any reason the Party represented by such member or alternate shall promptly submit a 

22 replacement for the member or their alternate. There shall be no need for replacement representative 

23 members or alternates to be approved by the Court. In its annual report to the Court, Watermaster 

24 shall update the list of its representative members and alternates. 

25 c. Succession. For the purpose of determining whether a permanent Transfer of a Base 

26 Annual Production Right shall affect whether a Party shall have a Representative on the Watermaster 

27 Committee and the number of votes held by the representative, the following guidelines shall apply 

28 

144876.16774.54 22 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



1. Partial Succession. The pennanent Transfer ofless than any Party's full Base 

2 Annual Production Right shall be considered a "partial" succession. A partial succession shall not 

3 create any new or additional voting rights in the successor Party or require any modifications to the 

4 rules and procedures under this Article V The full Base Annual Production Right of any Party shall 

5 be equal to the entire quantity of the Base Annual Production Right for that Party set forth in Exhibit 

6 D on the Effective Date. 

7 2. Non-Partv Successor. A permanent Transfer of the full Base Annual 

8 Production Right of any Party to a Non-Party shall automatically include the authority to cast the 

9 number of votes held by the Party. In addition, the Non-Party shall succeed to all other rights and 

10 responsibilities of their predecessor Party under this Judgment. 

11 3. Party Successor. A permanent Transfer of the full Base Annual Production 

12 Right between Parties shall automatically include the authority to cast a number of votes equal to the 

13 greater of: (a) the number of votes indicated for the acquiring Party on the Effective Date or (b) the 

14 number of votes indicated for the Party whose Base Annual Production Right has been acquired at 

15 the time the Transfer is approved by the Watennaster. The number of votes equal to the lesser of 3(a) 

16 or 3 (b) shall be extinguished. The acquisition of one Party's full Base Annual Production Right by 

17 another Party shall not cause a change in the number of votes required to constitute a quorum or to 

18 take an action under this Article. However, in the event more than two votes are eliminated, any 

19 Party or the Watermaster upon its own motion, may petition the Court to revise the required number 

20 of votes to constitute a quorum or to take action under this Judgment. 

21 D. Powers and Duties. Subject to the continuing supervision and control of the Court 

22 and the limitations set forth in this Judgment, Watermaster shall have and may exercise the following 

23 express powers, and shall perform the following duties, together with any specific powers, authority 

24 and duties granted or imposed elsewhere in this Judgment or hereafter ordered or authorized by the 

25 Court in the exercise of its continuing jurisdiction: 

26 

27 

28 

1. 

2. 

Developing, Maintaining and Implementing the Operating Plan_ 

Adopting Rules, Regulations, Procedures, Criteria and Time Schedules 

HATCH AND PARENT 
EAST CARRILLO STRE 
SANTA BARBARA. CA 

93101-2782 
144876.1:6774 54 23 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

3. Acquiring or Investing in Facilities or Facility Improvements. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

10. 

11. 

12. 

13. 

14. 

15. 

16. 

17. 

18. 

E. 

Acquiring or Investing in Monitoring Facilities. 

Inspecting and Testing Measuring Devices. 

Levying Assessments 

Requiring the Acquisition of and Recharge of Replacement Water. 

Contracting for Necessary Services. (Including the execution of agreements regarding 

spreading and groundwater modeling.) 

Employing Agents, Experts and Legal Counsel provided that Watermaster shall not 

contract with or otherwise engage a Party with a Base Annual Production Right to 

perform directly or indirectly, administrative services. However, this limitation shall 

not apply to spreading services under Exhibit C, and meter reading. 

Adopting an annual budget for monitoring and reporting legal and administrative 

costs. 

Managing Watermaster Funds. 

Cooperating with Federal, State and Local Agencies. 

Entering and Administering Storage and Recovery Agreements. 

Maintaining a Notice List 

Reporting Annually to the Court. 

Engaging in Dispute Resolution 

Prosecuting litigation against Non-parties in furtherance of the Judgment 

Limiting groundwater production to Operating Safe Yield during a Water Shortage 

Emergency 

O~anization and Meetines. At its first meeting in each Year W atermaster shall elect 

24 a chair, vice chair, secretary and treasurer and such other officers as may be appropriate. Watermaster 

25 shall hold regular meetings at places and times specified in its rules and regulations, and may hold 

26 such special meetings as may be required. Watermaster shall provide notices of all regular and special 

2 7 meetings to all parties and any person requesting notice in writing. Any meeting may be adjourned 

28 
HATCH AND PARENT 

21 ~~~~a~~~~~~r~ 
93101-2782 144876.16774.54 24 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



to a time and place specified in the order of adjournment Meetings shall be conducted to the extent 

2 practicable in accordance with the provisions of the California Open Meetings Law ("Brown Act") 

3 California Government Code Section 5-1950, et seq as it may be amended from time to time. 

4 F. Limits on Assessments. Watermaster shall not have the authority to levy assessments 

5 beyond those specifically described herein. 

6 VI. 

7 

8 

PHYSICAL SOLUTION FOR THE SIX BASINS AREA 

A. 

1. 

General Purposes and Objectives. 

Physical Solution is Consistent With the Public Interest. The Physical Solution 

9 is· consistent with each Party's full enjoyment and the reasonable exercise of its respective water 

10 rights will not materially injure the interests of any Parties and will promote coordinated groundwater 

11 management with due regard for the environment and it is therefore consistent with the public interest 

12 and the reasonable and beneficial use of water. 

13 2. Balance of Equities. This Physical Solution constitutes a legal and practical means 

14 for balancing the needs of the Parties for a reliable water supply, providing an appropriate incentive 

15 for remediation of poor water quality conditions, managing the available groundwater storage 

16 capacity to protect against loss of available groundwater and against damage from high groundwater 

1 7 levels with due regard for the environment . 

18 3. Flexibility. It is essential that this Physical Solution provides maximum flexibility 

19 so that the Watermaster and the Court may be free to adapt and accommodate future changed 

20 conditions or new institutional or technological considerations. To that end the Court's retained 

21 jurisdiction may be utilized to augment or adjust the Physical Solution without adjustment to a Party's 

22 Base Annual Production Right 

23 B. Guidelines for Operation of Four Basins Area. 

24 All production, replenishment, replacement, and Storage and Recovery ofwater in the Four 

25 Basins Area must be conducted pursuant to the Operating Plan adopted by Watermaster in accordance 

26 with the principles and procedures contained in this Judgment The following general pattern 

27 operations is contemplated: 

28 
HATCH AND PARENT 

21 EAST CARRILLO STRE 
SANTA BARBARA. CA 

93101-2782 
!44876.1 6774.54 25 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



1. Replenishment. Groundwater will be replenished pursuant to Exhibit "E" or under 

2 any other replenishment program or activity to the extent water which is naturally tributary to the Six 

3 Basin Area, is available for that purpose and can safely be spread. 

4 2. Stora~e and Recovery. Other Native Water, imported water or other water may be 

5 stored and recovered pursuant to Storage and Recovery Agreements. 

6 3. Operatin~ Safe Yield. Watermaster will annually, not later than September 15, 

7 establish the Operating Safe Yield for the Four Basins for the following Year, taking into 

8 consideration the amount of water in storage and the need to control water table elevations_ 

9 Watermaster shall review the condition of the Four Basins at least quarterly during the Year and may 

10 make any appropriate adjustments of the Operating Safe Yield. 

11 4. Production. In any Year, each Party will be free to produce its share of the Operating 

12 Safe Yield, including any Carryover Rights or Transfers, plus any water authorized to be recovered 

13 pursuant to a Storage and Recovery Agreement. Except upon Transfer, no change shall be made to 

14 any Party's Base Annual Production Rights. 

15 5. Replacement Water. Notwithstanding any limitation contained in this Judgment, a 

16 Party may produce and export water from the Four Basins in excess of its Base Annual Production 

17 Right and its share of the Operating Safe Yield, plus unused Carryover rights and recoverable 

18 groundwater pursuant to an approved Storage and Recovery Agreement, subject to the requirement 

19 to provide Replacement Water in the manner set forth herein. 

20 a. Obligation to Provide Replacement Water. To the extent a Party's 

21 production in the Four Basins or in any basin exceeds that Party's share of the Operating Safe Yield, 

22 plus unused Carryover rights and recoverable groundwater pursuant to an approved Storage and 

23 Recovery Agreement, the Party shall arrange for delivery ofReplacement Water in an amount equal 

24 to the Party's excess production by any of the following: (i) acquiring Replacement Water directly 

25 from TVMWD except Upland which may also acquire Replacement Water from the Inland Empire 

26 Utilities Agency ("the Empire"); (ii) arranging for delivery of a Native water supply other than 

27 Replenishment Water; or (iii) paying a Replacement Water Assessment to Watermaster for the 

28 
HATCH AND PARENT 

21 ~~~~a~~~~~~?T~ 
93101-2782 . 

144876.1 6774.54 26 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



purpose of acquiring Replacement Water directly from TVMWD except as to Upland for which 

2 Watermaster may acquire replacement water from the Empire . 

.., 

.) b . In Lieu Procedures. Replacement Water may be supplied through In-Lieu 

4 Procedures, spreading or other method at a place, time and manner, acceptable to Watermaster, for 

5 a price and upon terms to be determined by TVMWD except as to Upland for which the price and 

6 terms may be determined by the Empire. 

7 c. Replacement Water Assessment. Watermaster will use Replacement Water 

8 Assessment proceeds to acquire Replacement Water from TVMWD, or as to Upland, the Empire. 

9 6. Development, Maintenance and Implementation of the Operatin~ Plan. Water-

10 master is directed to maintain and implement the Operating Plan such that Production, Replenishment 

11 and Storage and Recovery of water are consistent with and implement the purpose and objectives of 

12 the Physical Solution herein. The Operating Plan shall include rules, regulations, procedures, criteria , 
13 and time schedules, as appropriate, for at least the following elements: 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 
HATCH AND PARENT 

21 EAST CARRILLO STRE 
SANTA BARBARA. CA 

93101-2782 
!44876.!6774.54 

a. 

b. 

C. 

d. 

e. 

f 

g. 

h. 

1. 

J. 

k. 

1. 

Establishing and adjusting the Operating Safe Yield. 

Replenishment 

Execution of supplemental agreements with PVP A regarding spreading 

grounds and the funding thereof 

Acquisition and delivery of Replacement Water. 

Standard terms and conditions of Storage Agreements. 

Replenishment, replacement and storage limits needed to protect against high 

groundwater levels. 

Remediation of water quality problems. 

Monitoring systems and protocols, including such for groundwater levels. 

Monitoring, reporting and verification programs. 

Transfers. 

Annual budgets. 

Financial management 

27 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



m. Reporting to the Court. 

2 n. Levying Assessments. 

7. Initial Operating Plan. Within six months of the effective date of this Judgment 

4 Watennaster shall submit to the Court for approval an initial Operating Plan. An outline of the Initial 

5 Operating Plan is attached as Exhibit "G." 

6 8. Annual Review of the Operating Plan. Watennaster shall review the Operating Plan 

7 at least annually and, subsequent to each such review, submit to the Court for its approval any 

8 proposed amendments or revisions. 

9 9. Replenishment. PVP A and Pomona historically augmented the Native Safe Yield 

10 within the Four Basins Area through replenishment programs or activities. For many years these 

11 replenishment programs or activities have resulted in the spreading and percolation of native waters 

12 originating in the San Antonio Canyon and Evey Canyon. To the extent such waters have been 

13 historically spread, they comprise a portion of the Safe Yield and Operating Safe Yield subject to 

14 management under this Physical Solution. 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 
HATCH AND PARENT 

·1 EAST CARRILLO STRE 
SANTA BARBARA CA 

93101-2782 . 
144876.1 6774.54 

a. All Replenishment shall be at the direction of the Watennaster. 

b. At the direction and sole discretion of the W atermaster PVP A shall, pursuant 

to the Memorandum of Agreement set forth in Exhibit "C" or any subsequent 

amendments thereto, continue to spread such native waters as it receives. 

c. Unless it is acting for the benefit of another Party pursuant to a Storage and 

Recovery Agreement approved by the Watermaster, except for Replacement Water, 

all water PVP A spreads, sinks or injects shall be considered Replenishment and shall 

comprise a portion of the Operating Safe Yield. 

d. Although Pomona has no continuing obligation to spread or replenish, all 

waters spread in excess of its "historical replenishment" shall not be considered 

Replenishment and a part of the Operating Safe Yield of the Four Basins Area. The 

"historical replenishment" of Pomona shall be equal to a twelve (12) year annual 

average for the twelve (12) years immediately preceding the filing ofthe complaint 

28 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 10. 

(1985-1996), which is determined to be one-hundred and thirty) acre feet. All water 

Pomona spreads, sinks or injects, or causes to be spread, sunk or injected (collectively 

augmentation) in excess of the historical replenishment shall not be considered a 

portion of the Operating Safe Yield, and shall not be allocated among the Parties 

pursuant to their Base Annual Production Rights. Pomona shall be entitled to produce 

such excess quantity in addition to its Base Annual Production Right under a pre-

approved Storage and Recovery Agreement as provided in Article VIA, Section 10 

in a form substantially similar to Exhibit F hereto, which is ordered to be executed by 

Watermaster and Pomona within sixty (60) days from the Effective Date. 

Measurement of Pomona's rights to recover water under any Storage and Recovery 

Agreement shall be administered as follows: 

L 

lL 

lll. 

Pomona shall be entitled to recover the amount by which its 

augmentation of water over the twelve (12) year period ending with 

the current year exceeds 1,560 acre feet. 

If less than twelve ( 12) years have elapsed since the effective date of 

this Judgment, Pomona shall have the right to recover the amount by 

which the total number of acre feet of groundwater augmented by 

Pomona exceeds one hundred thirty (130) acre feet times the number 

ofyears elapsed. 

The amount in excess of Pomona's historical replenishment may be 

recovered by Pomona as provided in the Storage and Recovery 

Agreement. 

Storage and Recovery Pursuant to Storage and Recovery Agreements. 

24 Watermaster may enter a Storage and Recovery Agreement with any Party holding a Base Annual 

25 Production Right or TVMWD so long as the Storage and Recovery of groundwater will not cause an 

26 unreasonably high groundwater table and physical damage. A Storage and Recovery Agreement 

27 shall contain uniform terms and conditions as set forth in the Operating Plan and may also contain 

28 
HATCH AND PARENT 

21 t::AST CARRILLO STRE 
SANTA BARBARA. CA 

93101-2782 
144876.16774.54 29 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



special terms and conditions as deemed appropriate by Watermaster. Water that may be stored 

2 pursuant to a Storage Agreement includes any water other than Replenishment Water including 

3 augmentation in excess of historical replenishment as expressly set forth under Article VIB, Section 

4 9. 

5 11. Special Projects. Any Party may propose for Watermaster approval, special projects 

6 including projects for controlling water levels or for remediation of water quality problems. Any such 

7 proposal shall be accompanied by an analysis that identifies the benefits of the project as well as any 

8 potential adverse impacts on any Party and any proposed mitigation measures. After notice to all 

9 Parties, if any Party files a written objection to the proposed project, Watermaster shall hold a hearing 

10 to determine whether the objections to the proposed project can be resolved. If there are no 

11 objections or if objections are resolved to the satisfaction of the Parties or if Waterrnaster determines 

12 that the objections are without merit, then Watermaster shall approve the proposed project 

13 Groundwater produced under authorization as a Special Project shall not be eligible for the accrual 

14 of Carryover Rights unless authorized by Watermaster. 

15 12. Temporary Surplus Groundwater. From time to time it may be in the best interest 

16 of the Parties, for the control of high groundwater, water quality remediation or other reasons, to · 

1 7 produce groundwater over and above the then declared Operating Safe Yield. Therefore, from time 

18 to time, the Watermaster may declare a Temporary Surplus of groundwater to be available for 

19 production. The Parties' rights to the Temporary Surplus shall be in the same percentages as the Base 

20 Annual Production Right bears to the Operating Safe Yield. A Party's rights to temporary surplus 

21 shall not be eligible for the accrual of Carryover Rights set forth in Article IIIB, Section 2. 

22 c. Guidelines for Operation of the Two Basins Area. All Production, Replenishment 

23 and Storage and Recovery rights for groundwater in the Two Basins Area are reserved to La Verne. 

24 However, La Verne's Production, Replenishment and Storage and Recovery of groundwater must not 

25 substantially injure other Parties. 

26 1. Replenishment. La Verne shall have sole and complete discretion in the operation 

27 of Replenishment programs in the Two Basins Area provided that no other Party is substantially 

28 
HATCH AND PARENT 

21 EAST CARRILLO STRE 
SANTA BARBARA. CA 

93101-2782 
144876.1 6774.54 30 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



injured by the program. La Verne shall provide written notice to Watermaster sixty (60) days in 

2 advance of any Replenishment program being undertaken. 

3 2. Storage and Recovery. La Verne shall have sole and complete discretion in the 

4 operation of a Storage and Recovery program in the Two Basins Area provided that no other Party 

5 is substantially injured by the program. La Verne shall provide written notice to Watermaster sixty 

6 (60) days in advance of any Storage and Recovery program being undertaken. La Verne shall 

7 annually report the quantity of groundwater stored pursuant to a Storage and Recovery Program in 

8 the Two Basins Area. 

9 3. Production. La Verne shall have sole and complete discretion to produce 

10 groundwater from the Two Basins Area provided that no other Party is substantially injured by such 

11 production. La Verne shall report its groundwater production to the W atermaster on a monthly basis. 

12 VII. ASSESSMENTS 

13 A. Ground Rules 

14 1. Authorization. Subject to the continuing supervision of the Court and the limitations 

15 set forth in the Judgment, Watermaster is authorized to levy assessments to fund Replacement Water 

16 acquisition costs, administrative costs and other costs determined by Watermaster to be necessary for 

17 the implementation of the physical solution. 

18 2. Assessment Spread. Excluding Replacement Water Assessments, all assessments 

19 levied by the Watermaster shall be spread such that Claremont, Pomona College and TVMWD 

20 (collectively, the "Minor Parties") shall each individually be assessed three and one half (3. 5) percent 

21 ofthetotal assessment, and eighty-nine and one half(89.5) percent ofthe total assessment is spread 

22 among La Verne, Pomona, Upland, San Antonio, West End,·&intpsM. and SCWC (collectively, the 

23 ")Jajor Parties") in proportion to their then-current holdings of Base Annual Production Rights, 

24 provided that for assessments other than for Replacement Water or administration (a) the total amount 

25 spread among Minor Parties shall not exceed sixty-thousand $60,000, escalated, in any year without 

26 their unanimous consent and (b) the total amount spread among the Major Parties in any year shall 

27 not exceed ten dollars (S 10 00), escalated, per acre foot of their Base Annual Production Rights 

28 
HATCH AND PARENT 

?1 ~~~~K~~~~~~~tTt'J 
93101-2782 

144876.16774.54 31 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



without their unanimous consent "Escalated" shall mean an annual adjustment in the specified dollar 

2 value based up.on the Consumer Price Index for Southern California in the immediately preceding 

3 Year. No escalation adjustment shall be made until the Judgment has been in effect for twelve 

4 consecutive calendar months. PVP A shall not have any obligation to pay any assessments. 

5 3. Administrative Assessment. Watermaster is authorized to levy an annual assessment 

6 that is sufficient to fund the costs of administering the Judgment. The administrative assessment shall 

7 not exceed the cost ofWatermaster's administrative budget and shall be due and payable according 

8 to a schedule established by Watermaster. The administrative assessment for the first Year following 
f.#¥ AF 

9 entry of Judgment shall be $8.00 and shall be due and payable on January 15, 1999. Late payment 
A 

10 shall bear an interest penalty to be established annually by Watermaster. (u~4'~'?) 
11 4. Replacement Water Assessments. To the extent Watermaster must acquire and 

12 recharge the groundwater with Replacement Water pursuant to the terms of this Judgment, in order 

13 to fund the costs thereof, Watermaster is authorized to levy Replacement Water Assessments 

14 Replacement Water Assessments levied against any Party shall be sufficient to pay the costs to 

15 replace such Party's production in excess of the sum of such Party's share of the Operating Safe Yield, 

16 any Carryover Right or Transfers and any storage recovery, Production of Temporary Surplus or. 

17 pursuant to Special Project authorization, during the prior Year, minus any Replacement Water 

18 provided to Watermaster by the Party. Any Replacement Water Assessment shall be paid within 

19 sixty ( 60) days from the date of the written invoice from Watermaster. 

20 Vill. DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

21 A. Entity for Resolution of Dispute. All disputes arising under this Judgment initially 

22 shall be submitted to Watermaster for resolution in accordance with the provisions of this Article. 

23 B. Determination Re~ardine Substantial Injury. Any Party having a right to be 

24 protected against "substantial injury" caused by any other Party; the right to proceed so long as not 

25 causing substantial injury to another party; or any other claim, right or remedy against any other 

26 Party arising under the provisions of this Judgment may file a written request with the Watermaster 

27 to hold a hearing. 

28 
HATCH AND PARENT 

1 EAST CARRILLO STRE 
SANTM61~~f8~A cA 

144876.1 6774.54 32 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



C. Notice and Hearing. Upon receipt of the written request, Watermaster shall provide 

2 written notice to each Party which generally describes the nature of the dispute. Thereafter, 

3 Watermaster shall cause an item to be placed on the agenda for the next regularly scheduled meeting 

4 of the Watermaster or if requested by the moving Party, call a special meeting for the purpose of 

5 providing a full hearing of the dispute and providing the interested Parties with notice and 

6 opportunity to be heard. No later than 30 days following the conclusion of the hearing(s) 

7 Watermaster shall issue a written decision which is dispositive of the dispute and which is supported 

8 by written findings. Any Party may seek review of an adverse decision of the Watermaster in 

9 accordance with the provisions of Article IX. 

10 IX. ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS 

11 A. Procedure 

12 1. Designation of Address for Notice and Service. Each Party shall designate the name 

13 and address to be used for purposes of all subsequent notices and service herein, either by its 

14 endorsement on the Stipulation for Judgment or by a separate designation to be filed within thirty 

15 (30) days after Judgment has been entered. Said designation may be changed from time to time by 

16 filing a written notice of such change with Watermaster. Any Party desiring to be relieved of 

17 receiving notices of Watermaster activity may file a waiver of notice on a form to be provided by 

18 Watermaster. Watermaster shall maintain at all times a current list of Parties to whom notices are 

19 to be sent and their address for purposes of service. Watermaster shall also maintain a full current 

20 list of names and addresses ofall Parties or their successors, as filed herein. Copies of such lists shall 

21 be available to any person. If no designation is made, a Party's designee shall be deemed to be, in 

22 order of priority: (i) the Party's attorney of record; (ii) if the Party does not have an attorney of 

23 record, the Party itself at the address on the Watermaster list 

24 2. Service of Documents. Delivery to or service upon any Party by Watermaster, by any 

25 other Party, or by the Court, of any document required to be served upon or delivered to a Party under 

26 or pursuant to this Judgment shall be deemed made if made by deposit thereof (or by copy thereof) 

27 

28 
HATCH AND PARENT 

~1 EAST CARRI~LO STRE 
SANT~Mb',~2f8~. CA 

144876.16774.54 33 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



in the mail, first class postage prepaid, addressed to the designee of the Party and at the address 

2 shown in the latest designation filed by that Party. 

3. 3 Recordation of Notice. Within sixty (60) days following entry of this Judgment, 

4 Watermaster shall record in the office of the County Recorder of the Los Angeles and San Bernardino 

5 Counties a notice substantially complying with the notice content requirements set forth in Section 

6 2529 of the California Water Code as it exists on the Effective Date~ 

7 4. Judement Bindine on Successors. Subject to specific provisiOns hereinbefore 

8 contained, this Judgment and all provisions thereof are applicable to and binding upon and inure to 

9 the benefit of not only the Parties to this action, but also to their respective heirs, executors, 

1 0 administrators, successors, assigns, lessees, licensees and to the agents, employees and attorneys in 

1 1 fact of any such Persons. 

12 Costs. No Party stipulating to this Judgment shall recover any costs or attorneys fees 

13 in this proceeding from another stipulating Party. In any future proceedings, the costs of notice or 

5. 

14 service, shall be levied in accordance with the provisions of Article XIA, Section 6. 

15 6. Review Procedures. Any action, decision, rule or procedure ofWatermaster pursuant 

16 to this Judgment shall be subject to review by the Court on its own motion or on timely motion by 

17 any Party, as follows: 

18 a. Effective Date of Watermaster Action. Any order, decision or action of 

19 Watermaster pursuant to this Judgment on noticed specific agenda items shall be deemed to have 

20 occurred on the date ofthe order, decision or action. 

21 b. Notice of Motion. Any Party may, by a regularly noticed motion, petition the 

22 Court for review ofWatermaster's action or decision pursuant to this Judgment. The motion shall 

23 be deemed to be filed when a copy, conformed as filed with the Court, has been delivered to 

24 Watermaster together with the service fee established by Watermaster sufficient to cover the cost to 

25 photocopy and mail the motion to each Party. Watermaster shall prepare copies and mail a copy of 

26 the motion to each Party or its designee according to the official service list which shall be 

2 7 maintained by Watermaster according to Article XIA, Section 1, a Party's obligation to serve notice 

28 
HATCH AND PARENT 

21 EAST CARRILLO STRE 
SANTM~1~~fs~A CA 

144876.1 6774.54 34 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



1 of a motion upon the Parties is deemed to be satisfied by filing the motion as provided herein. Unless 

2 ordered by the Court, any such petition shall not operate to stay the effect of any Watermaster action 

3 or decision which is challenged. 

4 c. Time for Motion. A motion to review any Watermaster action or decision 

5 shall be filed within ninety (90) days after such Watermaster action or decision, except that motions 

6 to review Watermaster Assessments hereunder shall be filed within thirty (30) days of mailing of 

7 notice of the Assessment 

8 d. De Novo Nature of Proceedine. Upon filing of a petition to review 

9 W atermaster action, the Watermaster shall notify the Parties of a date when the Court will take 

10 evidence and hear argument The Court's review shall be de novo and the Watermaster decision or 

11 action shall have no evidentiary weight in such proceeding. 

12 e. Payment of Assessments. Payment of Assessments levied by Watermaster 

13 hereunder shall be made when due, notwithstanding any motion for review ofWatermaster action, 

14 decision, rules or procedures, including review ofWatermaster Assessments. 

15 

16 B. Entry of Judgment. The Clerk shall enter this Judgment 

17 

18 DEC 1 g1998 
Dated: 1998 

19 

20 WILLIAM J. Th!cVITIIE 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 
HATCH AND PARENT 

1 EAST CARRILLO STRE 
SANTA BARBARA. CA 

93101.2782 
144876.1 6774.54 35 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



•
..

.. !
' 

se
A

I.
£:

1
"

•2
0

0
0

' 

~
"! 

. 
.. 

1'1
 .
..

..
 ;.; ..

..
 

"* 
1

IQ
L

 A
ll
l 

N
U

III
E

R
 

s
w

t
l
l
f
 

C
I!

Y
il

f 
:M

l1
 

..
..

..
.,

 

=
 -=

t·(.
riE

srll
tM

1ij 
11

11
10

1 
tR

A
m

 V
IE

l1
. 

:: 
=

 =
 (lMC

1M
) 

11
ft1

 
t.

P
lM

J 
VI

El
1.

 

=· 
=

 =,
. (lMC

1M
) 

..
. 

..
..

..
..

 W
E

lL
 ,
,
 (

D
ES

11
00

1'U
>)

 
11

.1
01

 
..

..
..

.,
 W

E
lL

 ,
.
 (D

E
S1

R
IJ

rm
) 

=
 

=
=
s
!
:
~
 

.J
IH

01
 

l.P
lA

N
D

 W
E

ll
. 

f1
8

 
U

P
lA

N
D

 W
E

ll
 f

1
7

 

M
'l

 ,
,
 

li
E

U
. 

AN
D

 
N

U
M

B
ER

 

IJ
TA

Tt
 0

 
f 

CO
M

PA
HY

 1
0 

I 

.II
C

I.I
 

.M
ID

I 

!:0
 

m
n:

 .
. 

, 
.....

 
IR

1 
IL

l 
I
U

 
ll
Q

 
....

, 
:IG

:l ... , .....
. .... W

.l
 

.....
 

.... ... 

_
,.

 .. ,
 

::
:"

"'
' 

_.
..

.,
, 

=c
:r,

. 
IW

1I
liD

I1
0 

11
11

.1.
1 

,
, 

-
1

3
 

.,_
, 

"""
""'

' 
PO

M
EU

.O
 #

1 
P

O
U

ru
.D

 f
4

 
PD

U
U

O
V

 
II:

IC
H

M
D

S 
11

10
 

·==
··-

• 
W

E
ll.

N
O

N
U

III
IE

R
 

=
 

ID
 
I 

CO
M

PA
NY

' 
ID

 f
 

1C
FI

 
CO

L1
£0

1r
: 

W
El

J.
 t

h
 1

 
C

O
u

m
li

: 
w

n
l.

 N
a.

 
2 

5
6

 

I 
• 

-·-
I I 

S
7 

! 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



EXHIBIT B 

DESCRIPTION OF SIX BASINS AREA 

The Six Basins Area lies between the San Jose Hills on the south, the Chino Basin on the 
east, the San Gabriel Mountains on the north and the Main San Gabriel Basin on the west The 
boundaries of the Main San Gabriel Basin are set forth in the Judgment in the case of the Upper San 
Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District vs. City of Alhambra, eta!., Superior Court of the State of 
California, Los Angeles County, Case No. 924128, and the boundaries ofthe Chino Basin are set 
forth in the Judgment in the case of Chino Basin Municipal Water District vs. City of Chino, eta!, 
Superior Court for the State of California, San Bernardino County, Case No. 164327. The Area 
consists of six interconnected groundwater basins. Each basin consists of all alluvium or other 
water-bearing formations lying beneath the surface of the basin. The approximate boundaries of the 
surface of each basin are shown on EXHIBIT A and are described generally as follows: 

Canyon Basin. The surface ofthe Canyon Basin is bounded on the south and east by the 
surface trace of the Sierra Madre/Cucamonga Fault and on the north and west by the surface trace 
of the bedrock/alluvium interface between( a) the point of intersection in Township 1 North, Range 
8 West, Section 31, SBB&M, of the Sierra Madre/Cucamonga Fault with easterly boundary of the 
Main San Gabriel Basin and (b) the point of intersection in Township 1 North, Range 8 West, 
Section 20, SBB&M, of the Sierra Madre/Cucamonga Fault with the San Gabriel Mountains. The 
northernmost extent of the bedrock/alluvium interface is assumed to be at the southern boundary of 
Township 1 North, Range 8 West, Section 13, SBB&M in San Antonio Canyon. 

Upper Claremont Heights Basin. The surface ofthe Upper Claremont Heights Basin is 
bounded on the south by the surface trace of the Indian Hill Fault, on the east by the westerly 
boundary of the Chino Basin, on the north by the surface trace of the Sierra Madre/Cucamonga Fault 
and on the west by the surface trace of the Claremont Heights Barrier. 

Lower Claremont Heights Basin. The surface of the Lower Claremont Heights Basin is 
bounded on the south by the surface trace of the Indian Hill Fault, on the east by the surface trace 
ofthe Claremont Heights Barrier, on the north by the surface trace of the Sierra Madre/Cucamonga 
Fault on the west by the surface trace of the Thompson Wash Barrier. 

Live Oak Basin. The surface of the Live Oak Basin is bounded on the south by the surface 
trace ofthe Indian Hill Fault, on the east by the surface trace of the Thompson Wash Barrier, on the 
north by the surface trace of the Sierra Madre/Cucamonga Fault and on the west by the easterly 
boundary of the Main San Gabriel Basin. 

Ganesha Basin. The surface of the Ganesha Basin is bounded on the south and east by the 
surface ofthe San Antonio Fault, on the north surface trace of the Indian Hill Fault, and on the west 
by easterly boundary ofthe Main San Gabriel Basin and by the surface trace of the bedrock/alluvium 
interface between (a) the point of intersection in Township 1 South, Range 9 West, Section 11, 
SBB&M, of the easterly boundary of the Main San Gabriel Basin with the San Jose Hills and (b) 

138293.1 6774.54 EXHIBIT B 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



the point of intersection in Township 1 South, Range 9 West, Section 14, SBB&M, ofthe surface 
trace of the San Antonio Fault with the San Jose Hills. 

Pomona Basin. The surface of the Pomona Basin is bounded on the south by the surface 
trace of the bedrock/alluvium boundary between (a) the intersection in Township 1 South, Range 
9 West, Section 14, SBB&M, ofthe surface trace of the San Antonio Fault with the San Jose Hills 
and (b) the intersection in Township 1 South, Range 8 West, Section 19, SBB&M, of the boundary 
of the Chino Basin, on the north by the surface trace of the Indian Hill Fault on the west by the 
surface ofthe San Antonio Fault. 

138293.\677-1-.54 EXHIBIT B 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



2 

3 

4 

5 

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE POMONA VALLEY PROTECTIVE ASSOCIATION 

AND WATER.J\1ASTER OF THE SIX BASINS RELATING TO 

WATER SPREADING AND RELATED ACTIVITIES 

6 THE AGREEMENT, made, entered into, and executed as of this_ day of ___ _ 

7 1999, by and between the Pomona Valley Protective Association ("PVP A"), and Watermaster of the 

8 Six Basins ("Watermaster"), relating to water spreading and related activities in connection with the 

9 Canyon Basin, the Upper Claremont Height Basin, the Lower Claremont Heights Basin, the Live 

10 Oak Basin, the Ganesha Basin and the Pomona Basin (collectively, the "Six Basins") 

11 RECITALS 

12 WHEREAS, the rights to groundwater in connection with the Six Basins were adjudicated 

13 by the court in an action entitled "Southern California Water Company v. City of La Verne, eta!," 

14 Case No. KC029152 in the Superior Court ofthe State of California, County ofLos Angeles, (the 

15 "Judgment"); and 

16 WHEREAS, the Judgment requires the Watermaster to determine annually an Operating Safe 

17 Yield of the Six Basins and to develop an Operating Plan, which will include the monitoring and 

18 direction of all production, replenishment, replacement and storage of groundwater in the Six 

19 Basins; and 

20 WHEREAS, PVPA, a California corporation, formed in 1910 by various water interests in 

21 Pomona Valley, engages in water conservation activities for the benefit of its shareholders, which 

22 include the City of Upland, Southern California Water Company, the City of Pomona, Simpson 

23 Paper Co., Pomona College, the San Antonio Water Company, and the West End Water Company; 

24 and 

25 WHEREAS, PVP A owns certain real property in and around the Six Basins area primarily 

26 consisting of two spreading grounds the San Antonio Spreading Grounds and the Thompson Creek 

27 Spreading Grounds together with appurtenant diversion and conveyance facilities (the "Spreading 

28 Grounds" herein); and 
HATCH AND PARENT 
EAST CARRILL~ STRE 
SANTM~,~~fs/ CA 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



WHEREAS, in connection with its water conservation activities, PVP A has conducted 

2 several technical studies of the Six Basins including the development of a numerical groundwater 

3 model which assists in the prediction of the Six Basins' response to PVP A's spreading activities, and 

4 is used to control the groundwater resources for the Six Basins and to mitigate high groundwater in 

5 the Six Basins; and 

6 WHEREAS, the parties to the Judgment have conducted additional studies including the 

7 enhancement and refinement of the PVP A groundwater model. 

8 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of mutual promises, agreements, and covenants of 

9 Watermaster and PVP A collectively referred to herein as "the Parties" agree as follows 

10 I. DEFINITIONS 

1 1 A. The Judgment defines certain important terms. Except as to the definitions provided 

12 in this Agreement, the terms used in this Agreement which have been defined in the Judgment shall 

13 have the meaning set forth in the Judgment and the definitions set forth in the Judgment are 

14 incorporated herein by this reference 

15 

16 

B. 

c 

"Emergency" shall mean a sudden event which threatens life or property. 

"Models" shall mean the spreadsheet and the basin wide models used by PVP A in 

17 development of an Operating Plan and any subsequent version or improvement thereof 

18 D. "Parties" written with an upper case P, refer to the Watermaster and to PVPA. 

19 Parties written with a lower case p, refer to the parties to the Judgment as defined therein. 

20 II. SPREADING GROUNDS AND SPREADING OPERATIONS 

21 A. Watermaster Direction and PVP A Reservation. PVP A shall use and operate the 

22 Spreading Grounds primarily for the spreading of replenishment, replacement and storage water 

23 under the direction of the Watermaster Plan. PVP A reserves the right to use the Spreading Grounds 

24 for other lawful activities consistent with its water spreading activities so long as doing so does not 

25 impair PVP A's ability to spread replenishment water in quantities substantially comparable to 

26 historic quantities. 

27 B. Impossibility and related defenses PVP A shall not be liable, in breach or in default 

28 of the Agreement if PVP A is unable, either temporarily or permanently, to perform its obligations 
HATCH AND PARENT 

21 EAST CARRILLO STRE 
SANTMt,R~ff:t CA 

-2-

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



under the Agreement for reasons beyond PVP A's reasonable control, including but not limited to, 

2 acts of God, eminent domain, impossibility or impracticability of performance, interference of a 

3 third party and natural disasters, including without limitation, floods, earthquakes, and fires 

4 c PVP A Discretion. P\lPA shall have discretion to make operational decisions in 

5 discharging its obligation hereunder within the scope ofWatermaster direction. 

Common conditions of spreading. In addition to the direction of Watermaster PVP A 

7 shall spread replenishment, replacement or storage waters subject to the following conditions. 

6 D. 

8 1. Cessation of Spreading for Emergencies. PVP A reserves the right to cease 

9 spreading at any time, without prior notice to Watermaster if, in the discretion of PVP A, such action 

10 shall be warranted by, and in connection with, any emergency condition. PVP A will gtve 

1 1 Watermaster immediate notice of any such cessation. 

12 2. Water Quality. PVP A bears no responsibility for the quality of replenishment, 

13 replacement or storage water or the impacts of spreading such water upon water quality of the Six 

14 Basins. 

15 3 High Groundwater. PVP A bears no responsibility for high groundwater due 

16 to any spreading of replenishment, replacement or storage water. 

17 4. Rejected water. PVP A bears no responsibility for .loss of replenishment, 

18 replacement or storage water which is rejected or otherwise lost. 

19 5 Measurement and Reporting. Watermaster shall provide adequate measuring 

20 devices to measure the spreading of replenishment, replacement and storage waters and any such 

21 water rejected or lost PVP A will keep, maintain and furnish to Watermaster on a monthly basis, 

22 records of the quantities of replenishment waters spread and rejected. 

Record ofDeliveries and Spreading. Watermaster shall keep, maintain and 

24 furnish to PVP A records of the quantities and quality of replacement or storage waters delivered 

23 6 

25 within 30 days following delivery of such waters. PVP A shall keep, maintain, and furnish to 

26 Watermaster the quantities of replacement and storage waters spread within 30 days .following 

27 delivery of such water together with an estimate of the quantities of water bypassing the spreading 

28 facilities, if any. 
HATCH AND PARENT 

21 EAST CARRILLO STRE-
SANTM~,~~.fs~A cA 

1 i57x7 2 677-+ 5-+ hhibit c 

-, 
-.)-

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



7. Compensation. Subject to revtew by the court under its continuing 

"> jurisdiction in Case No. KC029152, Watermaster shall pay PVP A's actual, reasonable and necessary 

3 costs incurred by PVP A in spreading replenishment, replacement and storage water. PVP A will 

4 bill Watermaster such costs on a quarterly basis and such bill will include a reasonably detailed 

5 accounting of such costs under generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) Payment is due 

6 upon billing. PVP A's costs may be subject to review or audit by an outside accounting firm selected 

7 and paid by Watermaster (within thirty days following billing). Within thirty (30) days following 

8 billing, Watermaster shall either contest the billing or accept said billing. 

9 E Replenishment water. In addition to the above, PVP A shall spread replenishment 

10 water as it becomes available. PVP A has no control over the availability of replenishment waters 

11 and is under no obligation to spread any specific quantity of replenishment water. 

12 F. Replacement Water. In addition to the above, PVP A shall spread Replacement 

13 Water on the Spreading Grounds under the following terms and conditions. Pursuant to the 

14 Judgment, only qualified parties under the Judgment may store water in the Six Basins upon entry 

15 into a Storage and Recovery Agreement with Watermaster. Upon request, PVP A shall spread 

16 storage water under the following terms and conditions: 

17 1. Terms ofDelivery Watermaster shall deliver and PVP A shall spread storage 

18 water under the same terms and conditions as replacement waters. 

19 2. Replacement Water Flows. PVPA will assist Watermaster in determining the 

20 allowable daily rates and the duration of replacement water deliveries, based upon conditions 

21 existing from time to time, including any unused capacity available at and in PVP A spreading 

22 facilities. 

3. Notice ofNew or Changed Replacement Water Flows. Watermaster, at least 

24 seven (7) days prior to any anticipated delivery of replacement water, shall notify PVP A that water 

25 will be available for transport and spreading and shall give PVP A at least forty-eight ( 48) hours 

26 notice of any anticipated change in previously established flow rates of delivery for such water. 

27 4. Spreading Grounds Limitations. PVP A may require changes in delivery flow 

28 rates when, in PVP A's opinion, continued spreading (in whole or in part) cannot be carried out 
HATCH AND PARENT 

21 EAST CARRILLO STRE-
SANTA BARBARA CA 

93101-2782 . 
-4-

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



hereunder due to operational and/or maintenance problems, including, but not limited to, trespassing, 

2 insect infestations, scarification, weed abatement, and/or construction in or at PVP A's conveyance 

3 and spreading facilities. When it is reasonable to do so, PVP A will give Watermaster at least twenty-

4 four (24) hours' notice of any such changes. 

5 III. OWNERSHIP AND IMPROVEMENTS OF SPREADING GROUNDS 

6 A. No Dedication. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as a dedication of the 

7 PVP A Spreading Grounds or its facilities to Watermaster, the other parties to the Judgment, or to 

8 the public use or benefit. The spreading grounds and appurtenant facilities are, and remain, the sole 

9 property ofPVP A. PVP A may sell, lease, or otherwise dispose of portions of its spreading grounds 

10 at its own discretion but not inconsistent with this Agreement. 

11 B. Spreading Grounds Improvements. Nothing in this Agreement obligates or otherwise 

12 requires PVPA to construct new or additional facilities in connection with its spreading operations 

13 PVP A may at its discretion construct new or additional facilities. Watermaster may propose 

14 improvements to PVP A's spreading grounds and facilities at its own expense. 

15 c. Condemnation. Watermaster agrees to and does waive and disclaim any interest in 

16 any award or settlement which may be made in any proceeding in eminent domain concerning all 

17 or part of the Spreading Grounds whether the taking be total or partial, or for easement purposes. 

18 If the taking be such as to render the Spreading Grounds totally unfit and unsuitable for the above 
~ 

19 use, then, pursuant to Paragraph II,;( PVP A is not in default or breach. 

20 

21 

IV. 

A. 

GROUNDWATER MODEL 

License for use. PVP A grants Watermaster a license to use its Spreadsheet Models 

22 pursuant to the terms and conditions of this agreement for the development of an Operating Plan. 

23 In developing the initial operating plan, Watermaster has used PVP A's Groundwater Models. In 

24 developing subsequent operating plans or revising such plans, Watermaster shall use PVP A's 

25 Groundwater Models and any subsequent version or improvement thereof, or other criteria at 

26 Watermaster's discretion. 

27 

28 
HATCH AND PARENT 

~1 EAST CARRILLO STRE 
SANT~Mt1~~flf CA 

li57R72t'77454 ExhihitC 

-5-

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



1. Custody of the PVP A's Groundwater Models. Watermaster shall have 

2 physical custody of a copy of the model. However, PVP A shall have the right to access the Models 

3 for any purpose which is not inconsistent with the Judgment or the direction of the Watermaster 

4 2. Updates to Model. 

5 

6 Said license shall include, following consultation with PVP A, the right to make changes, 

7 modifications, improvements, updates, or refinements in or to PVP A's Groundwater Model at the 

8 sole expense of Watermaster and without any contribution from PVP A. 

9 B. Terms and Conditions. For daily operations, Watermaster shall be responsible for 

10 keeping, maintaining and reporting on the data base necessary for use of PVP A's Groundwater 

11 Models. Watermaster shall collect water level and quality data necessary, including key well levels 

12 and rainfall data, to use the Groundwater Models to implement the Physical Solution. Watermaster 

13 shall provide this data to PVP A by the fifteenth day of each month. PVP A shall provide 

14 Watermaster readings of replenishment water spread, on a daily basis. PVP A then shall provide 

15 Watermaster with a monthly report on available storage and water levels of monitoring wells. 

16 1. Compensation PVP A grants Watermaster this license at no cost other than· 

1 7 the continuing costs which may be incurred by PVP A as a result of Watermaster operating the 

18 Models. 

19 2. No Warranty. PVPA makes no warranty and disclaims all warranties 

20 regarding PVP A's Groundwater Model and its subsequent updates or improvements. 

21 3. Field Conditions. PVP A shall report to Watermaster any field conditions that 

22 may have an impact on Spreading Operations. 

23 

24 

v. 

A. 

INDEMNIFICATION 

Watermaster Obligations To the extent which is allowed by law, Watermaster shall 

25 indemnify and hold harmless, PVP A, its officers, directors, employees, agents, and representatives 

26 against any and all claims, demands, costs, and/or liabilities due to, or arising from any act or 

27 omission by PVP A, its officers, directors, employees, or agents arising from any activities not 

28 connected with the spreading of water under the direction of Watermaster 
HATCH AND PARENT 

21 EAST CARRILLO STRE 
SANTA BARBARA CA 

93101-2782 . -6-
11.:::101 '""'! .t:._'i/1 .::: .1 L •. L.~i-.:t f' 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



VI. INSURANCE 

2 A. Subject to the above, PVP A shall obtain and maintain during the term of this 

3 Agreement the following insurance policies: 

4 1. General Liabilitv Insurance: PVP A shall maintain general liability insurance 

5 for bodily injury, property damage, personal injury, errors and omissions, and if practicable, 

6 flooding. The insurance shall be on an occurrence basis. The policy limits shall be at least 

7 $1,000,000. 

8 2. Property PVP A shall obtain insurance to provide for replacement of real and 

9 personal property owned by PVPA in the event of loss by fire, flood or vandalism. This insurance 

10 shall be provided on an occurrence basis and the policy limits shall be at least $1,000,000 

11 VII. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

12 A. Effective Date. This Agreement shall not be effective until executed by the Parties 

13 and approved by the court upon motion ofWatermaster in said action in Case No. KC029152. 

14 B. Written Amendments. This Agreement may only be modified, amended, or 

15 supplemented by a subsequent writing executed by each Party hereto and approved by the Court 

16 with jurisdiction in Case No. KC029152. 

17 c Choice ofLaw. This Agreement shall be governed by and interpreted under the laws 

18 of the State of California. 

19 D. Deliverv ofNotices. All notices permitted or required under this Agreement shall 

20 be addressed to the representative Parties at the following address, or such other address as the 

21 respective Parties may provide in writing for this purpose: 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 
HATCH AND PARENT 

e1 EAST CARRILLO STRE 
SANT M&,R~fa~A cA 

PVPA 

Six Basins Watermaster 

President 
Pomona Valley Protective Association 
414 Yale Avenue, Suite H 
Claremont, California 91711 

As may be designated by W atermaster 

-7-

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Such Notices shall be deemed made when personally delivered or, when mailed, forty-eight 

2 ( 48) hours after deposit in the US mail, first class postage pre-paid and addressed to the Party at 

3 its applicable address. 

4 E. Successors and Assigns This Agreement is binding on and shall inure to the benefit 

5 of the Parties, their respective successors in interest and assigns. 

6 F. Assignment. No Party shall have the right to assign it rights or delegate any of its 

7 obligations hereunder without the express written consent of the other Party. 

8 G. Construction. Each Party and/or its respective counsel has taken part in the 

9 negotiation, drafting, and preparation of this Agreement, and, therefore, any ambiguity or 

10 uncertainty in this Agreement shall not be construed against any Party. To ensure that this 

11 Agreement is not construed against any Party, the Parties expressly agree that any common law or 

12 statutory provision providing that an ambiguous or uncertain term will be construed against the 

13 drafter of an Agreement is waived and shall not apply to the construction of this Agreement 

14 H. Entire Agreement. This Agreement embodies the entire and final Agreement and 

15 understanding of the Parties pertaining to the subject matter of this Agreement, and supersedes all 

16 prior Agreements, understandings, negotiations, representations, and discussions pertaining to that 

17 subject matter, whether verbal or written, of the Parties. The Parties acknowledge that there are no 

18 representations, promises, warrantees, conditions, or obligations of any Party, or counsel (or any 

19 Party), pertaining to that subject matter other than is contained in this Agreement, and that no Party 

20 has executed this agreement in reliance on any representation, promise, warranty, condition, or 

21 obligation, other than is contained in this Agreement. 

22 I. Execution. The Parties to this Agreement acknowledge that they have executed this 

23 Agreement voluntarily and without any duress or undue influence. The Parties further acknowledge 

24 that they ( 1) have been represented by counsel of their own choice in connection with the 

25 negotiation and execution ofthis Agreement, or have been advised to seek independent counsel of 

26 their own choice prior to executing this agreement; (2) have read this Agreement in its entirety; and 

27 (3) have entered into this Agreement of their own volition and not as a result of any representations 

28 or advice by other Party or counsel for any other Party. 
HATCH AND PARENT 

i EAST CARRILLO STRE 
SANTA BARBARA. CA 

93101-2782 -8-

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



J. Counter Parts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each 

2 of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same 

3 instrument. This agreement shall become effective and binding immediately upon its execution by 

4 both Parties. This Agreement consists of nine (9) pages, including the signature page. 

5 K. Termination. Upon motion made by either Party to this Agreement in accordance 

6 with the procedures set forth in Article IX, Section A of the Judgment and approval of the Court, 

7 this Agreement shall be terminated. 

8 

9 DATED: W ATERMASTER 

10 

11 

12 By: 

13 

14 DATED: POMONA VALLEY PROTECTIVE ASSOCIATION 

15 I 

16 

17 By: 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 
HATCH AND PARENT 

1 EAST CARRI~LO STRE 
SANTM~1Rzf's~A. CA 

-9-
1 < .,-,n ~-1)77-t <;-t Fxh1h1t \ 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



E
X

H
IB

IT
 D

 
B

A
S

E
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 G

R
O

U
N

D
W

A
T

E
R

 P
R

O
D

U
C

T
IO

N
 I

N
 E

A
C

H
 B

A
S

IN
, 

19
85

-
19

96
 

A
N

D
 T

O
T

A
L

 B
A

S
E

 A
N

N
U

A
L

 G
R

O
U

N
D

W
A

T
E

R
 P

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

, 
19

85
-

19
96

 
F

O
R

 E
A

C
H

 P
A

R
T

Y
, 

A
N

D
 E

A
C

H
 P

A
R

T
Y

'S
 P

E
R

C
E

N
T

A
G

E
 O

F
 T

H
E

 A
G

G
R

E
G

A
T

E
 O

P
E

R
A

T
IN

G
 S

A
F

E
 

Y
IE

L
D

 F
O

R
 T

H
E

 C
A

N
Y

O
N

, 
U

P
P

E
R

 C
L

A
R

E
M

O
N

T
 H

E
IG

H
T

S
, 

L
O

W
E

R
 C

L
A

R
E

M
O

N
T

 H
E

IG
H

T
S

 A
N

D
 P

O
M

O
N

A
 B

A
S

JN
S

 

P
ar

ty
 

B
as

e 
A

nn
ua

l 
P

ro
du

ct
io

n)
 A

cr
e 

F
ee

t 
Q

er
 Y

ea
r 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

o
f 

C
an

yo
n 

B
as

in
 

U
pp

er
 

L
ow

er
 

P
om

on
a 

T
ot

al
 

A
gg

re
ga

te
 

B
as

in
 

C
la

re
m

on
t 

C
la

re
m

on
t 

B
as

in
 

O
pe

ra
ti

ng
 

H
ei

gh
ts

 
H

ei
gh

ts
 

S
af

e 
Y

ie
ld

 
B

as
in

 
B

as
in

 

C
it

y 
o

f 
L

a 
V

er
ne

 
0 

0 
0 

1,
49

2 
1,

49
2 

7.
73

1 
C

it
y 

o
f 

P
om

on
a*

 
0 

1,
23

4 
96

1 
1,

12
8 

3,
32

3 
17

.2
18

 

S
im

ps
on

 P
ap

er
 

0 
0 

0 
69

1 
69

1 
3.

58
0 

S
ou

th
er

n 
C

al
. 

W
at

er
 C

o.
 

56
 

2,
89

5 
10

7 
3,

64
7 

6,
70

5 
34

.7
41

 

C
it

y 
o

f C
la

re
m

on
t 

0 
26

7 
0 

26
8 

53
5 

2
7

7
2

 

P
om

on
a 

C
ol

le
ge

 
0 

35
7 

0 
0 

35
7 

1.
85

0 

C
it

y 
o

f 
U

pl
an

d 
40

8 
1,

43
4 

0 
0 

1,
84

2 
9.

54
4 

W
es

t 
E

nd
 C

on
so

li
da

te
d 

W
at

er
 C

om
pa

ny
 

0 
2,

97
2 

0 
0 

2,
97

2 
15

.3
99

 

S
an

 A
nt

on
io

 W
at

er
 

C
om

pa
ny

 
0 

I ,
38

3 
0 

0 
1,

38
3 

7.
16

6 

T
O

T
A

L
 

46
4 

10
,5

42
 

1,
06

8 
7,

22
6 

19
,3

00
 

10
0.

00
0%

 

* 
P

om
on

a 
sh

al
l 

ha
ve

 t
he

 r
ig

ht
 t

o
 p

ro
du

ce
 a

n 
ad

di
ti

on
al

 
10

9 
ac

re
 f

ee
t 

o
f g

ro
un

dw
at

er
 p

er
 y

ea
r 

su
bj

ec
t 

to
 t

he
 f

ol
lo

w
in

g:
 

13
73

51
.1

 6
77

4.
54

 
ll

!1
9

/9
g

 1
5:

16
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



(a
) 

P
om

on
a 

sh
al

l 
pr

ov
id

e 
at

 l
ea

st
 4

36
 a

cr
e 

fe
et

 o
f 

re
cy

cl
ed

 w
at

er
 t

o 
th

e 
pr

op
er

ty
 p

re
se

nt
ly

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

by
 t

he
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

C
ou

nt
y 

A
ss

es
so

r 
as

 A
ss

es
so

r'
s 

P
ar

ce
l 

N
os

. 
83

4-
80

0-
80

0 
I,

 8
34

-8
00

-8
00

2,
 8

34
-8

00
-8

00
9,

 8
34

-8
00

-5
01

3 
an

d 
83

4-
80

0-
60

0 
I 

(b
) 

P
om

on
a'

s 
ad

di
ti

on
al

 p
ro

du
ct

io
n 

ri
gh

t 
sh

al
l 

be
 a

dd
ed

 t
o

 i
ts

 B
as

e 
A

nn
ua

l 
P

ro
du

ct
io

n 
R

ig
ht

 a
nd

 s
ha

ll 
be

 s
ub

je
ct

 t
o 

al
l 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 o

f 
th

e 
Ju

dg
m

en
t 

re
la

ti
ng

 t
o 

B
as

e 
A

nn
ua

l 
P

ro
du

ct
io

n 
Ri
gh
ts
~ 

pr
ov

id
ed

 h
ow

ev
er

, 
su

ch
 a

dd
it

io
na

l 
ri

gh
t 

sh
al

l 
no

t 
be

 s
ub

je
ct

 t
o 

tr
an

sf
er

 o
r 

th
e 

w
at

er
 p

ro
du

ce
d 

de
li

ve
re

d 
fo

r 
us

e 
ou

ts
id

e 
th

e 
P

om
on

a 
se

rv
ic

e 
ar

ea
. 

(c
) 

T
o

 t
he

 e
xt

en
t 

in
 a

ny
 y

ea
r 

P
om

on
a 

pr
ov

id
es

 l
es

s 
th

an
 4

3
6

 a
cr

e 
fe

et
 o

f 
re

cy
cl

ed
 w

at
er

 t
o 

th
e 

ab
ov

e 
de

sc
ri

be
d 

pr
op

er
ty

, 
th

e 
ad

di
ti

on
al

 r
ig

ht
 o

f P
om

on
a 

sh
al

l 
be

 r
ed

uc
ed

 t
o 

an
 a

m
ou

nt
 e

qu
al

 t
o 

on
e 

fo
ur

th
 (

l/
4

) 
o

f 
th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f 

re
cy

cl
ed

 w
at

er
 p

ro
vi

de
d.

 
H

ow
ev

er
, 

no
 r

ed
uc

ti
on

 s
ha

ll 
o

cc
u

r 
to

 t
he

 e
xt

en
t 

th
e 

fa
il

ur
e 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 r

ec
yc

le
d 

w
at

er
 is

 t
he

 r
es

ul
t 

o
f 

su
dd

en
 o

cc
ur

re
nc

es
 s

uc
h 

as
 s

to
rm

s,
 

fl
oo

ds
, 

fi
re

s,
 e

ar
th

qu
ak

es
, 

ac
ci

de
nt

s 
o

r 
un

ex
pe

ct
ed

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t 

ou
ta

ge
) 

o
r 

ac
ts

 o
r 

om
is

si
on

s 
o

f 
th

e 
L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
S

an
it

at
io

n 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

w
hi

ch
 i

m
pa

ir
 t

he
 a

bi
li

ty
 o

f 
P

om
on

a 
to

 m
ak

e 
re

cy
cl

ed
 w

at
er

 d
el

iv
er

ie
s.

 

ll
/1

9
/9

K
 1

5:
 J

()
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



EXHffiiT E 

DESCRIPTION OF REPLENISHMENT PROGRAMS 

San Antonio Spreadin~ Grounds 
Owned and operated by the Pomona Valley Protective Association (PVP A), this private facility is 
comprised of 600 acres of spreading grounds on both the east and west sides of San Antonio 
channeL The grounds consist of ditches, check levees, gates, metering stations, shallow basins and 
deep basins. The primary source of water for this facility is from San Antonio Creek by way of 
controlled releases from San Antonio Dam which is owned and operated by the U.S. Army Corps 
of Engineers. Water is released from the dam directly into San Antonio Flood Control ChanneL 
Upon entering the channel, water is diverted into an underground basin where control gates allow 
regulated flow onto the spreading grounds. Additional sources of water include uncontrolled surface 
flows from adjacent properties in San Bernardino and Los Angeles Counties. The Corps coordinates 
its releases with PVP A. Four metering stations are used for flow measurements, and a series of 
ditches, check levees, gates and appurtenances allow the water to be directed into shallow and deep 
basins. Since 1896, PVP A has regularly spread water at its facility. 

Thompson Creek Spreadinf: Grounds 
Owned and maintained by PVP A, this private facility is comprised of approximately 53 acres of 
spreading grounds south of Thompson Creek Dam and east of Thompson Creek. PVP A operates 
this facility with the cooperation of the Los Angeles County Flood Control District. The grounds 
consist of ditches, check levees, gates, shallow and deep basins. The sources of water for this 
facility are Cabal, Williams, Palmer, and Padua Creeks which are diverted to the grounds by PVP A 
with the cooperation of the Los Angeles County Department of Public Works through the Palmer 
Diversion. Surface runoff is diverted onto the grounds by way of Chicken Creek through a diversion 
located directly north of the grounds. PVP A's facility can also receive water from Thompson Creek 
Dam when the reservoir exceeds the elevation of 1625 feet above sea level. Since 1918, PVP A has 
spread water at this facility. 

Pomona Spreading Grounds 
Owned and operated by the City of Pomona, this facility is comprised of 8 acres of spreading 
grounds adjacent to the City's Pedley Water Treatment Plant. The City acquired this property in 
October 1926. The present deep basin configuration of the facility was completed in 1957 The 
source of water for this facility is San Antonio Creek water delivered through the Loop Merserve 
Canyon Water Company pipeline and Evey Canyon water. This facility also receives some local 
runoff. Water has been spread in this vicinity on and off since about 1897. 

Live Oak Spreading Grounds 
Owned and operated by the Los Angeles County Department of Public Works, this facility consists 
of approximately 5 acres of spreading grounds. Approximately 1. 5 acres north of Baseline Road and 
3. 5 acres south of route 3.0 freeway extension. The source of water for this facility is controlled 
releases from Live Oak Dam and Live Oak Debris Basin This facility was first used in the 1961-62 
water year. 

137413.2 6774.54 EXHIBIT E 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



WATER STORAGE AND RECOVERY AGREEMENT 

1. IDENTIFICATION 

THIS AGREEMENT dated by and between the CITY OF POMONA, a -------

chartered municipal corporation (Pomona), and the SIX BASINS WATERMASTER, a court 

appointed entity established by the Los Angeles County Superior Court (Watermaster), and is based 

upon the following recitals. 

2. RECITALS 

2.1 Water rights have been adjudicated in the Six Basins Area according to the Judgment 

in Los Angeles County Superior Court Case No. KC 029152, entitled Southern California Water 

Company v. the City of La Verne. 

2.2 Said Judgment establishes the Watermaster as the court empowered entity responsible 

for managing the Six Basins Area. Under the provisions of Paragraph VI.B.1 0 of the Judgment, 

Watermaster is authorized to enter into Storage and Recovery Agreements with any party holding 

a base annual production right. 

2.3 Pomona is a party holding a base annual production right. In addition, Pomona has 

historically replenished the Six Basins Area. While Pomona is under no obligation to replenish the 

Six Basins Area, to the extent that it does augment groundwater supplies in excess of its historical 

replenishment as provided in Paragraph VI. B. 9 of the Judgment, Pomona is authorized to recover 

such water. 

2.4 Spreading and injecting or otherwise recharging groundwater in the Six Basins Area 

is restricted according to Paragraph IV.B of the Judgment; however, pursuant to Paragraph VLB.l 0, 

1373571 6774.54 EXHIBIT F 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Watermaster is authorized to enter into storage and recovery agreements for the utilization of 

groundwater storage capacity and for subsequent recovery use or credit by the storing entity. 

2.5 Pomona and Water master desire to enter into an agreement for the storage and 

recovery of water. 

3. AGREEMENTS 

In consideration for the mutual promises and conditions contained herein and for other 

valuable consideration, the parties agree as follows: 

3.1 Pomona may, subject to the conditions hereinafter set forth, spread and cause to be 

spread water which would be stored for Pomona's account. The amount of water stored and 

recovered shall be all amounts it has spread or caused to be spread in the Six Basins Area in excess 

of 13 0 acre feet annually as specifically provided in Paragraph VI.B. 9 of the Judgment. Without 

limitation on accumulations, Pomona shall acquire and retain ownership of all such storage in excess 

of the historical replenishment of 130 acre feet per year until such water is produced by Pomona or 

transferred as a credit toward any Replacement Water obligation. 

3 .2 Pomona shall issue a report to Watermaster on a quarterly basis indicating the amount 

of water which Pomona has spread. The report shall be due the last day of the month next following 

the end of the relevant quarter. 

3.3 Recovery ofwater by Pomona shall be accounted for as follows: 

3.3. 1 The first water Pomona produces in a calendar year shall be the carryover of 

unused rights in accordance with Paragraph III.B.2. 

3 3.2 The next such water produced shall be Pomona's Base Annual Production 

Right. 

.2 

137357.1 6774.54 EXHIBIT F 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



3. 3. 3 The next such water produced shall be water stored pursuant to this 

storage and Recovery Agreement 

3.4 This Agreement shall be effective upon court approval of the Judgment in the 

above-referenced case. 

3. 5 Any notices required hereunder may be given by mail postage prepaid and 

addressed as follows: 

TO WATERMASTER: 

TO CITY OF POMONA: 

Henry Pepper, Director of Utilities 
Public Works Department 
City of Pomona 
505 S. Garey Avenue 
Pomona, CA 91769-0660 

EXECUTED this ____ day of ___ , 1998, at ________ , CA 

CITY OF POMONA 

By: 

W ATERMASTER 

By: 

3 

137357.1 6774.54 EXHIBIT F 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



EXHffiiTG 

INITIAL OPERATING PLAN 

1. Replenishment. PVP A shall continue to replenish the basin as it has historically done. 
PVP A shall curtail replenishment when the Index Water Level is at 14 55 or higher, where the Index 
Water Level is the average of the water level elevations above Mean Sea Level for the following five 
Key Wells: 

Upland-Foothill No. 3 (Owner: WECWC) 
Mountain View No. 4 (Owner: WECWC) 
Miramar No. 3 (Owner: SCWC) 
College No. 1 (Owner: Pomona College) 
Tunnel Well No. 3 (Owner: Pomona) 

On the second Monday of each month owners of the Key Wells shall measure and report to 
Watermaster and to PVP A the water level elevations in the Key Wells. Water level elevations shall 
be measured using protocols specified by Watermaster. 

2. Production Measurement and Reporting. Within 180 days following Entry of Judgment 
each producer shall have installed on all of its producing wells a calibrated device to measure 
production. Such devices shall conform to, and be regularly calibrated in accordance with, 
specifications developed by Watermaster. Each producer shall record the monthly production from 
each well in acre feet and shall report such monthly production for each well and the total for all 
wells for the month and for the year to date to Watermaster by not later than the third working day 
following the end of the month. 

3. Operating Safe Yield. The initial Operating Safe Yield of the Four Basins is 24,000 acre 
feet per year. 

137333 16774.54 EXHIBIT G 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



PROOF OF SERVICE 

2 I am a resident of the State of California, over the age of eighteen years, and not a party to the within 
action. My business address is 21 East Carrillo Street, Santa Barbara, California 93101-2782. On 

3 December ;J.; , 1998, I served the within document: 

4 NOTICE OF ENTRY OF JUDGMENT 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

D 

D 
D 

by transmitting via facsimile the document( s) listed above to the fax number( s) set 
forth below on this date before 5:00p.m. 

by placing the document listed above in a sealed envelope with postage thereon 
fully prepaid, in the United States mail at Santa Barbara, California as set forth 
below. 

by causing personal delivery by of the document( s) listed 
above to the person(s) at the address(es) set forth below. 

by personally delivering the document(s) listed above to the person(s) at the 
address(es) set forth below. 

SEE ATTACHED LIST 

I am readily familiar with the firm's practice of collection and processing correspondence for 
15 mailing. Under that practice it would be deposited with the U.S. Postal Service on that same day 

with postage thereon fully prepaid in the ordinary course of business. I am aware that on motion 
16 of the party served, service is presumed invalid if postal cancellation date or postage meter date is 

more than one day after date of deposit for mailing in affidavit. 
17 

18 (State) I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California 
that the above is true and correct. 

19 
Executed on December d I , 1998, at Santa Barbara, California. 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

147283.1:9.22 

GINAM. LANE 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



16 James Markman, Esq. 
Boyd Hill, Esq. 

1 7 Markman, Arczynski, Hanson, Curley 
& Slough 

18 One Civic Center Circle 
Brea, CA 92822-1059 

19 

20 Arthur Kidman, Esq. 
McCormick, Kidman & Behrens 

21 695 Town Center Drive, Suite 1400 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626-1924 

22 

23 Jerome Craig, Esq. 
Morrison & Foerster, LLP 

24 555 West Fifth St., Suite 3500 
Los Angeles, CA 90013 

25 

26 Keith Johnson 
Allard, Shelton & O'Connor 

27 319 Harvard Ave. 
Claremont, CA 91 711 

28 

147283.1:9.22 

Tom McPeters, Esq. 
San Antonio Water Company 
Home Savings of Am. Building, 2nd Floor 
4 West Redlands Blvd. 
Redlands, CA 923 78 

Jeanne Verville, Esq. 
Simpson Paper Company 
1301 Fifth Ave., Suite 2800 
Seattle, Washington 98101-2613 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



 
APPENDIX H 

 
 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY ALL-HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN 
 
 
  

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



©
iS

to
ck

.c
om

/G
om

ez
Da

vi
d,

 G
DM

at
t6

6,
 L

PE
TT

ET
, a

nd
 p

an
da

pi
x

PU
BL

IC
 D

RA
FT

 

20
19

 C
ou

nt
y 

of
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

A
ll-

H
az

ar
ds

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
Pl

an
Ch

ie
f E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

O
ffi

ce
 - 

O
ffi

ce
 o

f E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

M
an

ag
em

en
t

            

2
0

1
9

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 
O

F
 L

O
S

 A
N

G
E

L
E

S
 

A
L

L
-H

A
Z

A
R

D
S

 
M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N

 
P

L
A

N
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

ii 

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 

1 
In

tro
du

ct
io

n.
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 1

-1
 

1.
1 

H
az

ar
d 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 ...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 1-

1 
1.

2 
20

19
 A

ll-
H

az
ar

ds
 M

iti
ga

tio
n 

Pl
an

 S
yn

op
si

s .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 1
-1

 

2 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 P

ro
ce

ss
 ...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 2

-1
 

2.
1 

O
ve

rv
ie

w
 o

f 2
01

9 
A

H
M

P 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 P

ro
ce

ss
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 2
-1

 

2.
2 

O
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r S
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s.
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 2

-4
 

2.
3 

Pu
bl

ic
 In

vo
lv

em
en

t .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 2-

4 
2.

4 
Re

vi
ew

 a
nd

 In
co

rp
or

at
io

n 
of

 E
xi

st
in

g 
Pl

an
s a

nd
 R

ep
or

ts
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 2-
5 

2.
5 

C
on

tin
ue

d 
Pu

bl
ic

 P
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n.
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 2

-5
 

2.
6 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

M
et

ho
d 

an
d 

Sc
he

du
le

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 2
-6

 

3 
C

om
m

un
ity

 P
ro

fil
e 

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 3-

1 
3.

1 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 A

re
a .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 3-

1 
3.

2 
Po

pu
la

tio
n 

an
d 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t T
re

nd
s .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 3
-1

4 
3.

3 
V

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
Po

pu
la

tio
ns

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 3

-1
4 

3.
4 

C
rit

ic
al

 F
ac

ili
tie

s .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 3

-1
7 

4 
H

az
ar

d 
Id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

an
d 

R
isk

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 4-
1 

4.
1 

C
lim

at
e 

C
ha

ng
e .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 4-
2 

4.
2 

D
am

 F
ai

lu
re

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 4
-9

 

4.
3 

Ea
rt

hq
ua

ke
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 4

-1
6 

4.
4 

Fl
oo

d.
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 4-
25

 

4.
5 

La
nd

sl
id

e .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 4

-3
2 

4.
6 

Ts
un

am
i ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 4-

37
 

4.
7 

W
ild

fir
e 

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 4

-4
2 

5 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

St
ra

te
gy

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 5-

1 
5.

1 
A

ut
ho

rit
ie

s, 
Po

lic
ie

s, 
Pr

og
ra

m
s, 

an
d 

Re
so

ur
ce

s.
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 5
-1

 

5.
2 

N
FI

P 
Pa

rti
ci

pa
tio

n .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 5

-9
 

5.
3 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
G

oa
ls

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 5-
9 

5.
4 

Po
te

nt
ia

l M
iti

ga
tio

n 
A

ct
io

ns
 a

nd
 P

ro
je

ct
s.

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 5
-9

 

5.
5 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
s .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 5-

14
 

5.
6 

Pl
an

 I
nt

eg
ra

tio
n .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 5

-1
5 

6 
Pl

an
 R

ev
ie

w
, E

va
lu

at
io

n,
 a

nd
 Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n.

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 6
-1

 

6.
1 

C
ha

ng
es

 in
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 6-

1 
6.

2 
Pr

og
es

s 
in

 L
oc

al
 M

iti
ga

tio
n 

Ef
fo

rts
 ...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 6-

1 

CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

iii
 

6.
3 

C
ha

ng
es

 in
 P

rio
rit

ie
s .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 6

-2
 

7 
Pl

an
 A

do
pt

io
n .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 7

-1
 

7.
1 

Fo
rm

al
 A

do
pt

io
n .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 7

-1
 

 

L
IS

T
 O

F
 A

P
P

E
N

D
IC

E
S
 

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

 –
 P

lan
ni

ng
 P

ro
ce

ss
 

A
pp

en
di

x 
B 

– 
C

om
m

un
ity

 P
ro

file
 

A
pp

en
di

x 
C

 –
 R

isk
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 

 
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

iv
 

 

L
IS

T
 O

F
 F

IG
U

R
E

S
 

Fi
gu

re
 3

-1
. L

oc
at

io
n.

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 3
-8

 
Fi

gu
re

 3
-2

. S
up

er
vi

so
ria

l D
ist

ric
t 1

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 3

-9
 

Fi
gu

re
 3

-3
. S

up
er

vi
so

ria
l D

ist
ric

t 2
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 3

-1
0 

Fi
gu

re
 3

-4
. S

up
er

vi
so

ria
l D

ist
ric

t 3
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 3

-1
1 

Fi
gu

re
 3

-5
. S

up
er

vi
so

ria
l D

ist
ric

t 4
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 3

-1
2 

Fi
gu

re
 3

-6
. S

up
er

vi
so

ria
l D

ist
ric

t 5
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 3

-1
3 

Fi
gu

re
 3

-7
. P

eo
pl

e 
Ex

pe
rie

nc
in

g 
H

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

in
 th

e 
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 3

-1
5 

Fi
gu

re
 3

-8
. P

eo
pl

e 
Ex

pe
rie

nc
in

g 
H

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

in
 U

ni
nc

or
po

ra
te

d 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y .

...
...

. 3
-1

6 
Fi

gu
re

 3
-9

. L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

A
ni

m
al

 C
ar

e 
&

 C
on

tro
l ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 3
-1

8 
Fi

gu
re

 3
-1

0.
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 3
-1

9 
Fi

gu
re

 3
-1

1.
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
H

ea
lth

 S
er

vi
ce

s.
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 3

-2
0 

Fi
gu

re
 3

-1
2.

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Li
br

ar
y .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 3
-2

1 
Fi

gu
re

 3
-1

3.
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
M

us
eu

m
 o

f A
rt 

an
d 

M
us

eu
m

 o
f N

at
ur

al
 H

ist
or

y .
...

...
...

...
...

 3-
22

 
Fi

gu
re

 3
-1

4.
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
O

ffi
ce

 o
f E

du
ca

tio
n .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 3-
23

 
Fi

gu
re

 3
-1

5.
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
O

th
er

 (O
ffi

ce
s)

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 3-

24
 

Fi
gu

re
 3

-1
6.

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Pa
rk

s 
&

 R
ec

re
at

io
n.

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 3
-2

5 
Fi

gu
re

 3
-1

7.
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f P

ub
lic

 H
ea

lth
 ...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 3
-2

6 
Fi

gu
re

 3
-1

8.
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 ...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 3
-2

7 
Fi

gu
re

 3
-1

9.
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Sh

er
iff

’s
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 3
-2

8 
Fi

gu
re

 4
-1

. T
em

pe
ra

tu
re

 C
ha

ng
e .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 4-
7 

Fi
gu

re
 4

-2
. S

ea
 L

ev
el

 R
ise

 In
un

da
tio

n 
A

re
as

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 4-
8 

Fi
gu

re
 4

-3
. D

am
 B

re
ac

h 
In

un
da

tio
n 

A
re

as
 ...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 4

-1
3 

Fi
gu

re
 4

-4
. M

aj
or

 F
au

lts
 in

 S
ou

th
er

n 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 4-
22

 
Fi

gu
re

 4
-5

. H
ist

or
ic

al
 E

ar
th

qu
ak

es
 (1

76
9-

20
19

) .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 4
-2

3 
Fi

gu
re

 4
-6

. S
ei

sm
ic

 H
az

ar
d 

A
re

as
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 4
-2

4 
Fi

gu
re

 4
-7

. L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fl
oo

d 
C

on
tro

l S
ys

te
m

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 4-
30

 
Fi

gu
re

 4
-8

. S
pe

ci
al

 F
lo

od
 H

az
ar

d 
A

re
as

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 4-
31

 
Fi

gu
re

 4
-9

. D
ee

p-
Se

at
ed

 L
an

ds
lid

e 
Su

sc
ep

tib
ili

ty
 A

re
as

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 4

-3
6 

Fi
gu

re
 4

-1
0.

 T
su

na
m

i I
nu

nd
at

io
n 

A
re

as
 ...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 4-

41
 

Fi
gu

re
 4

-1
1.

 F
ire

 H
az

ar
d 

Se
ve

rit
y 

Zo
ne

s.
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 4
-4

7 
Fi

gu
re

 4
-1

2.
 R

ec
en

t W
ild

fir
es

 (2
00

0-
20

18
)..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 4

-4
8 

  
 

CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

v 

L
IS

T
 O

F
 T

A
B

L
E

S
 

Ta
bl

e 
2-

1.
 A

H
M

P 
Ti

m
el

in
e .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 2
-1

 
Ta

bl
e 

2-
2.

 H
az

ar
d 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
A

dv
iso

ry
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 2
-3

 
Ta

bl
e 

2-
3.

 E
xi

st
in

g 
Pl

an
s a

nd
 R

ep
or

ts
 ...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 2
-5

 
Ta

bl
e 

3-
1.

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

La
nd

 A
re

a 
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 3-
1 

Ta
bl

e 
3-

2.
 S

up
er

vi
so

ria
l D

ist
ric

t 1
 ...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 3
-1

 
Ta

bl
e 

3-
3.

 S
up

er
vi

so
ria

l D
ist

ric
t 2

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 3

-3
 

Ta
bl

e 
3-

4.
 S

up
er

vi
so

ria
l D

ist
ric

t 3
 ...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 3
-4

 
Ta

bl
e 

3-
5.

 S
up

er
vi

so
ria

l D
ist

ric
t 4

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 3

-4
 

Ta
bl

e 
3-

6.
 S

up
er

vi
so

ria
l D

ist
ric

t 5
 ...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 3
-5

 
Ta

bl
e 

3-
7.

 P
eo

pl
e 

Ex
pe

rie
nc

in
g 

H
om

el
es

sn
es

s .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 3-

14
 

Ta
bl

e 
3-

8.
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y-
O

w
ne

d 
an

d 
C

ou
nt

y-
Re

la
te

d 
C

rit
ic

al
 F

ac
ili

tie
s.

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 3

-1
7 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

1.
 C

lim
at

e 
C

ha
ng

e 
Id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

Pr
of

ile
 ...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 4-

2 
Ta

bl
e 

4-
2.

 C
lim

at
e 

C
ha

ng
e 

Im
pa

ct
 o

n 
La

nd
 A

re
a .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 4

-4
 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

3.
 C

lim
at

e 
C

ha
ng

e 
Im

pa
ct

 o
n 

V
uln

er
ab

le 
Po

pu
lat

io
ns

 –
 P

eo
pl

e 
Ex

pe
rie

nc
in

g 
H

om
el

es
sn

es
s .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 4-
4 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

4.
 C

lim
at

e 
C

ha
ng

e 
Im

pa
ct

 o
n 

C
ou

nt
y 

C
rit

ic
al

 F
ac

ili
tie

s.
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 4
-5

 
Ta

bl
e 

4-
5.

 O
ve

ra
ll 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 V
ul

ne
ra

bi
lit

y 
to

 C
lim

at
e 

C
ha

ng
e .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 4-

6 
Ta

bl
e 

4-
6.

 D
am

 F
ai

lu
re

 Id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
Pr

of
ile

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 4-
9 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

7.
 D

am
 F

ai
lu

re
 I

m
pa

ct
 o

n 
La

nd
 A

re
a .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 4
-1

1 
Ta

bl
e 

4-
8.

 D
am

 F
ail

ur
e 

Im
pa

ct
 o

n 
V

uln
er

ab
le 

Po
pu

lat
io

ns
 –

 P
eo

pl
e 

Ex
pe

rie
nc

in
g 

 
H

om
el

es
sn

es
s .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 4

-1
1 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

9.
 D

am
 F

ai
lu

re
 I

m
pa

ct
 o

n 
C

ou
nt

y 
C

rit
ica

l F
ac

ili
tie

s .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 4

-1
1 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

10
. O

ve
ra

ll 
Su

m
m

ar
y 

of
 V

ul
ne

ra
bi

lit
y 

to
 D

am
 F

ai
lu

re
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 4-

12
 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

11
. D

ro
ug

ht
 Id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

Pr
of

ile
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 4-
14

 
Ta

bl
e 

4-
12

. D
ro

ug
ht

 Im
pa

ct
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 4

-1
5 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

13
. O

ve
ra

ll 
Su

m
m

ar
y 

of
 V

ul
ne

ra
bi

lit
y 

to
 D

ro
ug

ht
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 4

-1
5 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

14
. E

ar
th

qu
ak

e 
Id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

Pr
of

ile
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 4
-1

6 
Ta

bl
e 

4-
15

. S
ei

sm
ic

 H
az

ar
d 

Im
pa

ct
 o

n 
La

nd
 A

re
a .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 4
-1

9 
Ta

bl
e 

4-
16

. S
eis

m
ic 

H
az

ar
d 

Im
pa

ct
 o

n 
V

uln
er

ab
le 

Po
pu

lat
io

ns
 –

 P
eo

pl
e 

Ex
pe

rie
nc

in
g 

H
om

el
es

sn
es

s .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 4
-2

0 
Ta

bl
e 

4-
17

. S
ei

sm
ic

 H
az

ar
d 

Im
pa

ct
 o

n 
C

ou
nt

y 
C

rit
ic

al
 F

ac
ili

tie
s .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 4
-2

1 
Ta

bl
e 

4-
18

. O
ve

ra
ll 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 V
ul

ne
ra

bi
lit

y 
to

 E
ar

th
qu

ak
es

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 4-
21

 
Ta

bl
e 

4-
19

. F
lo

od
 Id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

Pr
of

ile
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 4

-2
5 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

20
. F

lo
od

 Im
pa

ct
 o

n 
La

nd
 A

re
a.

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 4

-2
7 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

21
. F

lo
od

 Im
pa

ct
 o

n 
V

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
Po

pu
la

tio
ns

 –
 P

eo
pl

e 
Ex

pe
rie

nc
in

g 
H

om
el

es
sn

es
s .

. 4
-2

7 
Ta

bl
e 

4-
22

. F
lo

od
 Im

pa
ct

 o
n 

C
ou

nt
y 

C
rit

ica
l F

ac
ili

tie
s .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 4

-2
8 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

23
. O

ve
ra

ll 
Su

m
m

ar
y 

of
 V

ul
ne

ra
bi

lit
y 

to
 F

lo
od

s .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 4

-2
9 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

24
. L

an
ds

lid
e 

Id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
Pr

of
ile

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 4-
32

 
Ta

bl
e 

4-
25

. L
an

ds
lid

e 
Im

pa
ct

 o
n 

La
nd

 A
re

a 
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 4
-3

4 
Ta

bl
e 

4-
26

. L
an

ds
lid

e 
Im

pa
ct

 o
n 

V
uln

er
ab

le 
Po

pu
lat

io
ns

 –
 P

eo
pl

e 
Ex

pe
rie

nc
in

g 
 

H
om

el
es

sn
es

s .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 4
-3

4 
Ta

bl
e 

4-
27

. L
an

ds
lid

e 
Im

pa
ct

 o
n 

C
ou

nt
y 

C
rit

ic
al

 F
ac

ili
tie

s .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 4
-3

4 
Ta

bl
e 

4-
28

. O
ve

ra
ll 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 V
ul

ne
ra

bi
lit

y 
to

 L
an

ds
lid

es
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 4-
35

 
Ta

bl
e 

4-
29

. T
su

na
m

i I
de

nt
ifi

ca
tio

n 
Pr

of
ile

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 4
-3

7 
Ta

bl
e 

4-
30

. T
su

na
m

i I
m

pa
ct

 o
n 

La
nd

 A
re

a .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 4-

39
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

vi
 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

31
. T

su
na

m
i 

Im
pa

ct
 o

n 
V

uln
er

ab
le 

Po
pu

lat
io

ns
 –

 P
eo

pl
e 

Ex
pe

rie
nc

in
g 

 
H

om
el

es
sn

es
s .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 4

-3
9 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

32
. T

su
na

m
i I

m
pa

ct
 o

n 
C

ou
nt

y 
C

rit
ic

al
 F

ac
ili

tie
s.

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 4
-3

9 
Ta

bl
e 

4-
33

. O
ve

ra
ll 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 V
ul

ne
ra

bi
lit

y 
to

 T
su

na
m

is
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 4
-4

0 
Ta

bl
e 

4-
34

. W
ild

fir
e 

Id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
Pr

of
ile

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 4
-4

2 
Ta

bl
e 

4-
35

. W
ild

fir
e 

Im
pa

ct
 o

n 
La

nd
 A

re
a.

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 4
-4

4 
Ta

bl
e 

4-
36

. W
ild

fir
e 

Im
pa

ct
 o

n 
V

uln
er

ab
le

 P
op

ula
tio

ns
 –

 P
eo

pl
e 

Ex
pe

rie
nc

in
g 

 
H

om
el

es
sn

es
s .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 4

-4
5 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

37
. W

ild
fir

e 
Im

pa
ct

 o
n 

C
ou

nt
y 

C
rit

ica
l F

ac
ili

tie
s .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 4
-4

5 
Ta

bl
e 

4-
38

. O
ve

ra
ll 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 V
ul

ne
ra

bi
lit

y 
to

 W
ild

fir
es

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 4

-4
6 

Ta
bl

e 
5-

1 
H

um
an

 a
nd

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 fo
r H

az
ar

d 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 5
-2

 
Ta

bl
e 

5-
2.

 F
in

an
ci

al
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 fo
r H

az
ar

d 
M

iti
ga

tio
n.

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 5-

4 
Ta

bl
e 

5-
3.

 L
eg

al
 a

nd
 R

eg
ul

at
or

y 
Re

so
ur

ce
s 

fo
r H

az
ar

d 
M

iti
ga

tio
n .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 5
-7

 
Ta

bl
e 

5-
4.

 P
ot

en
tia

l M
iti

ga
tio

n 
A

ct
io

ns
 a

nd
 P

ro
je

ct
s .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 5

-9
 

Ta
bl

e 
5-

5.
 T

ier
 1

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 5
-1

4 
Ta

bl
e 

5-
6.

 T
ier

 2
 M

iti
ga

tio
n 

A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 5

-1
5 

Ta
bl

e 
6-

1.
 C

om
pl

et
ed

 L
oc

al
 M

iti
ga

tio
n 

Ef
fo

rts
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 6-
1 

  
 

CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

vi
i 

L
IS

T
 O

F
 A

C
R

O
N

Y
M

S
 A

N
D

 A
B

B
R

E
V

IA
T

IO
N

S
 

°F
 

 
de

gr
ee

s 
Fa

hr
en

he
it 

A
EC

O
M

 
A

EC
O

M
 T

ec
hn

ica
l 

Se
rv

ice
s, 

In
c.

 
A

B 
 

A
ss

em
bl

y 
Bi

ll 

A
H

M
P 

 
A

ll-
H

az
ar

ds
 M

itig
at

io
n 

Pl
an

 
C

al 
FI

RE
 

C
ali

fo
rn

ia
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
of

 F
or

es
try

 a
nd

 F
ire

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

C
al 

O
ES

 
C

ali
fo

rn
ia

 O
ffi

ce
 o

f E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

Se
rv

ice
s 

C
FR

 
 

C
od

e 
of

 F
ed

er
al 

Re
gu

lat
io

ns
 

C
G

S 
 

C
ali

fo
rn

ia
 G

eo
lo

gic
al

 S
ur

ve
y 

C
W

PP
  

C
om

m
un

ity
 W

ild
fir

e 
Pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

Pl
an

s 
C

PG
 

 
C

om
pr

eh
en

siv
e 

Pr
ep

ar
ed

ne
ss

 G
uid

e 
C

RS
 

 
C

om
m

un
ity

 R
at

ing
 S

ys
te

m
 

D
FI

RM
 

 
D

igi
ta

l 
Fl

oo
d 

In
su

ra
nc

e 
Ra

te
 M

ap
 

D
H

S 
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 H

om
ela

nd
 S

ec
ur

ity
 

D
M

A
 

 
D

isa
ste

r 
M

itig
at

io
n 

A
ct

 
D

R 
 

D
isa

ste
r 

D
ec

lar
at

io
n 

N
um

be
r 

D
SO

D
  

D
ivi

sio
n 

of
 S

af
et

y 
of

 D
am

s 

EA
P 

 
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

 
EP

A
 

 
En

vir
on

m
en

ta
l 

Pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
A

ge
nc

y 

EQ
 

 
Ea

rth
qu

ak
e 

FE
M

A
  

Fe
de

ra
l E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
A

ge
nc

y 
FH

SZ
  

Fi
re

 H
az

ar
d 

Se
ve

rit
y 

Zo
ne

s 

G
IS

 
 

G
eo

gr
ap

hic
 I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

Sy
ste

m
 

IP
C

C
 

 
In

te
rg

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l 

Pa
ne

l o
n 

C
lim

at
e 

C
ha

ng
e 

LA
C

M
A

 
Lo

s 
A

ng
ele

s 
C

ou
nt

y 
M

us
eu

m
 o

f A
rt 

LR
A

 
 

Lo
ca

l R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 A

re
a 

M
 

 
M

ag
nit

ud
e 

M
A

RA
C

 
M

ut
ua

l 
A

id
 R

eg
io

na
l 

A
dv

iso
ry

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 

N
FI

P 
 

N
at

io
na

l 
Fl

oo
d 

In
su

ra
nc

e 
Pr

og
ra

m
 

N
H

M
 

 
Lo

s 
A

ng
ele

s 
C

ou
nt

y 
N

at
ur

al 
H

ist
or

y 
M

us
eu

m
  

O
EM

 
 

O
ffi

ce
 o

f E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

PG
A

 
 

Pe
ak

 G
ro

un
d 

A
cc

ele
ra

tio
n 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

vi
ii 

RL
 

 
Re

pe
tit

iv
e 

Lo
ss

 
SF

H
A

  
Sp

ec
ial

 F
lo

od
 H

az
ar

d 
A

re
a 

SR
A

 
 

St
at

e 
Re

sp
on

sib
ili

ty
 A

re
a 

U
.S

. 
 

U
nit

ed
 S

ta
te

s 

U
SA

C
E 

U
nit

ed
 S

ta
te

s 
A

rm
y 

C
or

ps
 o

f E
ng

ine
er

s 
U

SG
S 

 
U

.S
. G

eo
lo

gic
al

 S
ur

ve
y 

W
U

I 
 

w
ild

la
nd

-u
rb

an
 i

nt
er

fa
ce

 

 

CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

1-
1 

1 
IN

T
R

O
D

U
C

T
IO

N
 

1.
1 

H
A

ZA
R

D
 M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N

 P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 

A
s 

de
fin

ed
 i

n 
Ti

tle
 4

4 
of

 th
e 

C
od

e 
of

 F
ed

er
al 

Re
gu

lat
io

ns
 (

C
FR

), 
Su

bp
ar

t 
M

, S
ec

tio
n 

20
6.

40
1,

 
ha

za
rd

 m
iti

ga
tio

n 
is 

“a
ny

 a
ct

io
n 

ta
ke

n 
to

 re
du

ce
 o

r e
lim

in
at

e 
th

e 
lo

ng
-te

rm
 r

isk
 to

 h
um

an
 l

ife
 a

nd
 

pr
op

er
ty

 f
ro

m
 n

at
ur

al 
ha

za
rd

s.”
 A

s 
su

ch
, 

ha
za

rd
 m

itig
at

io
n 

is 
an

y 
w

or
k 

to
 m

ini
m

iz
e 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
s 

of
 a

ny
 ty

pe
 o

f h
az

ar
d 

ev
en

t 
be

fo
re

 it
 o

cc
ur

s. 
H

az
ar

d 
m

itig
at

io
n 

aim
s 

to
 re

du
ce

 lo
ss

es
 f

ro
m

 f
ut

ur
e 

di
sa

ste
rs

. 
It 

is 
a 

pr
oc

es
s 

th
at

 id
en

tif
ie

s 
an

d 
pr

of
ile

s 
ha

za
rd

s, 
an

aly
ze

s 
th

e 
pe

op
le 

an
d 

fa
cil

iti
es

 a
t 

ris
k,

 a
nd

 d
ev

elo
ps

 m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ac

tio
ns

 to
 re

du
ce

 o
r e

lim
in

at
e 

ha
za

rd
 r

isk
. T

he
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

ac
tio

ns
, 

w
hic

h 
inc

lud
e 

sh
or

t- 
an

d 
lo

ng
-te

rm
 s

tra
te

gie
s 

th
at

 m
ay

 in
vo

lv
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

, 
po

lic
y 

ch
an

ge
s, 

pr
og

ra
m

s, 
pr

oj
ec

ts,
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 a
ct

ivi
tie

s, 
is 

th
e 

en
d 

re
su

lt 
of

 th
is 

pr
oc

es
s. 

In
 r

ec
en

t 
ye

ar
s, 

lo
ca

l 
ha

za
rd

 m
iti

ga
tio

n 
pl

an
ni

ng
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

dr
ive

n 
by

 a
 fe

de
ra

l 
law

, k
no

w
n 

as
 th

e 
D

isa
ste

r 
M

itig
at

io
n 

A
ct

 o
f 2

00
0 

(D
M

A
 2

00
0)

. O
n 

O
ct

ob
er

 3
0,

 2
00

0,
 C

on
gr

es
s 

pa
ss

ed
 th

e 
D

M
A

 
20

00
 (P

ub
lic

 L
aw

 1
06

-3
90

), 
w

hic
h 

am
en

de
d 

th
e 

Ro
be

rt 
T.

 S
ta

ffo
rd

 D
isa

ste
r 

Re
lie

f 
an

d 
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

A
ss

ist
an

ce
 A

ct
 o

f 1
98

8 
(S

ta
ffo

rd
 A

ct
) (

Ti
tle

 4
2 

of
 th

e 
U

nit
ed

 S
ta

te
s 

C
od

e S
ec

tio
n 

51
21

 e
t s

eq
.) 

by
 

re
pe

ali
ng

 
th

e 
ac

t’s
 p

re
vio

us
 

m
itig

at
io

n 
pl

an
ni

ng
 

se
ct

io
n 

(4
09

) 
an

d 
re

pl
ac

ing
 

it 
w

ith
 

a 
ne

w
 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
pl

an
ni

ng
 s

ec
tio

n 
(3

22
). 

Th
is 

ne
w

 s
ec

tio
n 

em
ph

as
ize

d 
th

e 
ne

ed
 fo

r 
sta

te
, t

rib
al,

 a
nd

 lo
ca

l 
en

tit
ies

 
to

 c
lo

se
ly 

co
or

di
na

te
 m

iti
ga

tio
n 

pl
an

ni
ng

 
an

d 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

ef
fo

rts
. 

Th
is 

ne
w

 s
ec

tio
n 

als
o 

pr
ov

id
ed

 
th

e 
leg

al 
ba

sis
 f

or
 t

he
 F

ed
er

al 
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

A
ge

nc
y’

s 
(F

EM
A

’s
) 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
pl

an
 r

eq
uir

em
en

ts 
fo

r 
th

e 
H

az
ar

d 
M

itig
at

io
n 

A
ss

ist
an

ce
 g

ra
nt

 p
ro

gr
am

s. 
 

1.
2 

20
19

 A
L

L
-H

A
ZA

R
D

S 
M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N

 P
L

A
N

 S
Y

N
O

PS
IS

 
To

 m
ee

t 
th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 

of
 t

he
 D

M
A

 2
00

0,
 t

he
 L

os
 A

ng
ele

s 
C

ou
nt

y 
O

ffi
ce

 o
f 

Em
er

ge
nc

y 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
(O

EM
) h

as
 p

re
pa

re
d 

an
 A

ll-
 H

az
ar

ds
 M

itig
at

io
n 

Pl
an

 (
A

H
M

P)
 (

he
re

ina
fte

r 
re

fe
rre

d 
to

 a
s 

th
e 

20
19

 A
H

M
P)

 to
 a

ss
es

s 
ris

ks
 p

os
ed

 b
y 

na
tu

ra
l 

ha
za

rd
s 

an
d 

to
 d

ev
elo

p 
a 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

 f
or

 re
du

cin
g 

th
e 

ris
ks

 in
 U

nin
co

rp
or

at
ed

 L
os

 A
ng

ele
s 

C
ou

nt
y.

 T
he

 2
01

9 
A

H
M

P 
re

pl
ac

es
 t

he
 

A
H

M
P 

th
at

 w
as

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
in 

20
14

.  
Th

e 
20

19
 A

H
M

P 
is 

or
ga

niz
ed

 
to

 fo
llo

w
 

FE
M

A
’s

 L
oc

al 
M

itig
at

io
n 

Pl
an

 R
ev

iew
 

To
ol

, 
w

hi
ch

 
de

m
on

str
at

es
 

ho
w

 l
oc

al 
A

H
M

Ps
 m

ee
t 

th
e 

D
M

A
 2

00
0 

re
gu

lat
io

ns
. 

A
s 

su
ch

, 
sp

ec
ific

 
pl

an
ni

ng
 

ele
m

en
ts 

of
 th

is 
re

vie
w

 t
oo

l a
re

 in
 t

he
ir 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 p

lan
 s

ec
tio

ns
. 

 

Th
e 

20
19

 A
H

M
P 

str
uc

tu
re

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
up

da
te

d 
to

 in
clu

di
ng

 t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
se

ct
io

ns
: 

• 
Se

ct
io

n 
2 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 P
ro

ce
ss

 p
ro

vid
es

 a
n 

ov
er

vie
w

 o
f t

he
 2

01
9 

pl
an

ni
ng

 p
ro

ce
ss

, s
ta

rti
ng

 
w

ith
 a

 p
lan

 u
pd

at
e 

tim
el

in
e.

 I
t i

de
nt

ifi
es

 a
dv

iso
ry

 c
om

m
itt

ee
 m

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 d

es
cr

ib
es

 t
he

ir 
inv

ol
ve

m
en

t 
w

ith
 t

he
 p

lan
 u

pd
at

e 
pr

oc
es

s. 
It 

als
o 

de
ta

ils
 s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
 o

ut
re

ac
h,

 p
ub

lic
 

inv
ol

ve
m

en
t 

an
d 

co
nt

inu
ed

 p
ub

lic
 i

nv
ol

ve
m

en
t. 

It 
pr

ov
id

es
 a

n 
ov

er
vie

w
 o

f t
he

 e
xis

tin
g 

pl
an

s 
an

d 
re

po
rts

 a
nd

 h
ow

 th
ey

 w
er

e 
inc

or
po

ra
te

d 
int

o 
th

e 
20

19
 A

H
M

P 
an

d 
las

tly
 l

ay
s 

ou
t a

 p
lan

 u
pd

at
e 

m
et

ho
d 

an
d 

sc
he

du
le.

 S
up

po
rti

ng
 p

lan
ni

ng
 p

ro
ce

ss
 d

oc
um

en
ta

tio
n 

is 
lis

te
d 

in 
A

pp
en

di
x 

A
. 

• 
Se

ct
io

n 
3 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

ro
fil

e 
de

sc
rib

es
 th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

re
a 

fo
r t

he
 2

01
9 

A
H

M
P,

 w
hic

h 
inc

lud
es

 t
he

 u
nin

co
rp

or
at

ed
 a

re
as

 o
f t

he
 c

ou
nt

y.
 I

t t
ou

ch
es

 o
n 

th
e 

cu
rre

nt
 p

op
ula

tio
n 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

tre
nd

s 
in 

th
e 

co
un

ty
 a

nd
 d

isc
us

se
s 

vu
lne

ra
bl

e 
po

pu
lat

io
ns

 i
n 

th
e 

co
un

ty
, 

inc
lud

in
g 

th
e 

gr
ow

ing
 h

om
ele

ss
 c

ris
is.

 F
ina

lly
, 

th
is 

se
ct

io
n 

lis
ts 

th
e 

co
un

ty
-o

w
ne

d 
an

d 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

1-
2 

co
un

ty
-r

ela
te

d 
cr

itic
al

 f
ac

ilit
ie

s 
inc

lud
ed

 i
n 

th
is 

pl
an

. S
up

po
rti

ng
 c

om
m

un
ity

 p
ro

file
 

inf
or

m
at

io
n 

ca
n 

be
 fo

un
d 

in 
A

pp
en

di
x 

B
. 

• 
Se

ct
io

n 
4 

H
az

ar
d 

Id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
an

d 
R

is
k 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t d

es
cr

ib
es

 e
ac

h 
of

 th
e 

eig
ht

 
ha

za
rd

s 
ad

dr
es

se
d 

in 
th

is 
pl

an
. A

dd
itio

na
lly

, 
it 

inc
lud

es
 i

m
pa

ct
 (

i.e
., 

ris
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
t) 

ta
bl

es
 fo

r 
th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

re
a,

 v
uln

er
ab

le
 p

op
ula

tio
ns

 a
nd

 c
rit

ica
l 

fa
cil

iti
es

 w
ith

in
 e

ac
h 

ha
za

rd
 a

re
a.

 A
n 

ov
er

all
 s

um
m

ar
y 

de
sc

rip
tio

n 
is 

als
o 

pr
ov

id
ed

 f
or

 e
ac

h 
ha

za
rd

. 
A

pp
en

di
x 

C
 c

on
ta

ins
 s

up
po

rti
ng

 h
az

ar
d 

id
en

tif
ica

tio
n 

an
d 

ris
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

inf
or

m
at

io
n.

  
• 

Se
ct

io
n 

5 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

St
ra

te
gy

 d
et

ail
s 

Lo
s 

A
ng

ele
s 

C
ou

nt
y’

s 
ca

pa
bi

lit
ies

 (
au

th
or

iti
es

, 
po

lic
ies

, 
pr

og
ra

m
s 

an
d 

re
so

ur
ce

s)
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

fo
r 

ha
za

rd
 m

iti
ga

tio
n.

 I
t a

lso
 d

isc
us

se
s 

th
e 

co
un

ty
’s

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n 
in 

th
e 

N
at

io
na

l 
Fl

oo
d 

In
su

ra
nc

e 
Pr

og
ra

m
 (

N
FI

P)
. F

ina
lly

, 
it 

de
sc

rib
es

 t
he

 m
iti

ga
tio

n 
str

at
eg

y,
 w

hic
h 

is 
th

e 
bl

ue
pr

in
t 

fo
r h

ow
 th

e 
C

ou
nt

y 
w

ill 
re

du
ce

 
its

 r
isk

s 
to

 h
az

ar
ds

. 
Th

e 
m

itig
at

io
n 

str
at

eg
y 

is 
m

ad
e 

up
 o

f t
hr

ee
 m

ain
 c

om
po

ne
nt

s: 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

go
al(

s)
; 

po
te

nt
ial

 m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ac

tio
ns

 a
nd

 p
ro

je
ct

s; 
an

d 
a 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

. 
 

• 
Se

ct
io

n 
6 

Pl
an

 R
ev

ie
w,

 E
va

lu
at

io
n 

an
d 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
di

sc
us

se
s 

th
e 

re
vis

io
ns

 m
ad

e 
to

 th
e 

20
19

 A
H

M
P 

to
 a

dd
re

ss
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 d
ev

elo
pm

en
t, 

pr
og

re
ss

 m
ad

e 
in 

lo
ca

l m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ef

fo
rts

 a
nd

 c
ha

ng
es

 t
o 

pr
io

rit
ie

s. 
 

• 
Se

ct
io

n 
7 

Pl
an

 A
do

pt
io

n 
co

nt
ain

s 
a 

sc
an

ne
d 

co
py

 o
f t

he
 a

do
pt

io
n 

re
so

lut
io

n.
 

CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

2-
1 

2 
PL

A
N

N
IN

G
 P

R
O

C
E

SS
 

Se
ct

io
n 

2 
– 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 
Pr

oc
es

s 
ad

dr
es

se
s 

El
em

en
t 

A
 o

f 
th

e 
Lo

ca
l 

M
itig

at
io

n 
Pl

an
 R

eg
ula

tio
n 

C
he

ck
lis

t. 

R
eg

ul
at

io
n 

C
he

ck
lis

t –
 4

4 
C

FR
 2

01
.6

 L
oc

al
 M

iti
ga

tio
n 

Pl
an

s 

El
em

en
t 

A
: P

la
nn

in
g 

Pr
oc

es
s 

A
1.

 D
oe

s 
th

e P
la

n 
do

cu
m

en
t t

he
 p

la
nn

in
g 

pr
oc

es
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
ho

w
 it

 w
as

 p
re

pa
re

d 
an

d 
w

ho
 w

as
 in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 th
e 

pr
oc

es
s f

or
 e

ac
h 

ju
ris

di
ct

io
n?

 (R
eq

ui
re

m
en

t 
§2

01
.6

(c
)(1

))
 

A
2.

 D
oe

s 
th

e P
la

n 
do

cu
m

en
t a

n 
op

po
rtu

ni
ty

 fo
r n

ei
gh

bo
rin

g  
co

m
m

un
iti

es
, 

lo
ca

l a
nd

 re
gi

on
al

 a
ge

nc
ie

s 
in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 
ha

za
rd

 m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ac

tiv
iti

es
, a

ge
nc

ie
s t

ha
t h

av
e 

th
e a

ut
ho

rit
y 

to
 re

gu
la

te
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

s w
el

l a
s 

ot
he

r i
nt

er
es

ts
 to

 b
e 

in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 th

e p
la

nn
in

g 
pr

oc
es

s?
 (R

eq
ui

re
m

en
t 

§2
01

.6
(b

)(2
)) 

A
3.

 D
oe

s 
th

e P
la

n 
do

cu
m

en
t h

ow
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 w
as

 in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 p

ro
ce

ss
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
dr

af
tin

g 
st

ag
e?

 
(R

eq
ui

re
m

en
t 

§2
01

.6
(b

)(1
)) 

A
4.

 D
oe

s 
th

e P
la

n 
de

sc
rib

e 
th

e r
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 in
co

rp
or

at
io

n 
of

 e
xis

tin
g  

pl
an

s,
 s

tu
di

es
, r

ep
or

ts
, a

nd
 te

ch
ni

ca
l 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n?

 (
Re

qu
ire

m
en

t 
§2

01
.6

(b
)(3

)) 
A

5.
 Is

 th
er

e 
di

sc
us

si
on

 o
f h

ow
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

(ie
s)

 w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 p
ub

lic
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

in
 th

e 
pl

an
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 

pr
oc

es
s?

 (R
eq

ui
re

m
en

t 
§2

01
.6

(c
)(4

)(
iii

)) 
A

6.
 Is

 th
er

e 
a 

de
sc

rip
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

m
et

ho
d 

an
d 

sc
he

du
le

 fo
r k

ee
pi

ng
 th

e 
pl

an
 c

ur
re

nt
 (m

on
ito

rin
g,

 e
va

lu
at

in
g 

an
d 

up
da

tin
g 

th
e 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
pl

an
 w

ith
in

 a
 5

‐y
ea

r c
yc

le
)?

 (R
eq

ui
re

m
en

t 
§2

01
.6

(c
)(4

)(
i))

 

 2.
1 

O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
 O

F 
20

19
 A

H
M

P 
PL

A
N

N
IN

G
 P

R
O

C
E

SS
 

Th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

of
 th

e 
20

19
 A

H
M

P 
w

as
 c

ol
lab

or
at

iv
e 

ef
fo

rt 
be

tw
ee

n 
Lo

s A
ng

ele
s 

C
ou

nt
y 

O
EM

, 
A

EC
O

M
 T

ec
hn

ica
l 

Se
rv

ice
s, 

In
c.

 
(A

EC
O

M
), 

an
 

ad
vis

or
y 

co
m

m
itt

ee
, 

an
d 

va
rio

us
 

co
un

ty
 

de
pa

rtm
en

ts 
an

d 
ag

en
cie

s. 
Ta

bl
e 

2-
1 

pr
ov

id
es

 a
 t

im
el

in
e 

of
 t

he
 m

aj
or

 p
lan

 u
pd

at
e 

ta
sk

s 
an

d 
m

ile
sto

ne
s 

by
 m

on
th

 o
ve

r a
 9

-m
on

th
 p

er
io

d.
 T

ab
le

 2
-2

 lis
ts 

th
e 

ad
vis

or
y 

co
m

m
itt

ee
 m

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 

ho
w

 th
ey

 c
on

tri
bu

te
d 

to
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
of

 th
e 

pl
an

.  

Ta
bl

e 
2-

1.
 A

H
M

P 
Ti

m
el

in
e 

D
at

e 
Ta

sk
s 

Pe
op

le
 I

nv
ol

ve
d 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
9 

Re
vi

ew
ed

 t
he

 20
14

 A
H

M
P 

an
d 

de
ci

de
d 

to
 co

nt
in

ue
 e

ffo
rts

 to
 

st
re

am
lin

e 
th

e 
pl

an
 

H
el

d 
20

19
 A

H
M

P 
ad

vi
so

ry
 co

m
m

itt
ee

 k
ic

k-
of

f 
m

ee
tin

g 
(M

ar
ch

 
15

) 

A
H

M
P 

pr
oj

ec
t m

an
ag

er
, 

ad
vi

so
ry

 co
m

m
itt

ee
 

A
pr

il 
20

19
 

D
et

er
m

in
ed

 t
he

 h
az

ar
ds

 to
 b

e 
pr

of
ile

d,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

cl
im

at
e 

ch
an

ge
 (n

ew
 to

 th
e 2

01
9 

A
H

M
P)

, d
ro

ug
ht

, d
am

 f
ai

lu
re

, 
ea

rth
qu

ak
e,

 fl
oo

d,
 la

nd
sl

id
e,

 ts
un

am
i a

nd
 w

ild
fir

e 
(a

ll 
ad

dr
es

se
d 

in
 th

e 2
01

4 
A

H
M

P)
 

A
H

M
P 

pr
oj

ec
t m

an
ag

er
, 

A
EC

O
M

 

M
ay

 2
01

9 
Co

lle
ct

ed
 lo

ca
l a

nd
 re

gi
on

al
 e

xis
tin

g 
pl

an
s a

nd
 re

po
rts

 
A

EC
O

M
 

Ju
ne

 2
01

9 

D
et

er
m

in
ed

 t
he

 G
eo

gr
ap

hi
c 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

Sy
st

em
 (G

IS
) 

st
ra

te
gy

 
fo

r r
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t i
nc

lu
di

ng
 la

nd
 a

re
a/

ge
og

ra
ph

ic
al

 b
ou

nd
ar

ies
 

an
d 

cr
iti

ca
l f

ac
ili

tie
s 

an
d 

di
sc

us
se

d 
ho

w
 to

 in
co

rp
or

at
e 

pe
op

le
 

ex
pe

rie
nc

in
g 

ho
m

el
es

sn
es

s 

A
H

M
P 

pr
oj

ec
t m

an
ag

er
, 

A
EC

O
M

, 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 

Co
un

ty
 O

ffi
ce

 o
f 

Em
er

ge
nc

y 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

2-
2 

Ta
bl

e 
2-

1.
 A

H
M

P 
Ti

m
el

in
e 

D
at

e 
Ta

sk
s 

Pe
op

le
 I

nv
ol

ve
d 

Ju
ly

 2
01

9 

Id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

iti
al

 l
is

t o
f s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s  

Cr
af

te
d 

pu
bl

ic
 o

ut
re

ac
h 

m
es

sa
ge

s f
or

 th
e 

Tw
itt

er
 h

an
dl

e 
@

Re
ad

yL
A

Co
un

ty
  

Cr
ea

te
d 

dr
af

t h
az

ar
d 

fig
ur

es
  

D
ev

el
op

ed
 h

om
el

es
s 

pe
op

le
 ri

sk
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t t
ab

le
s 

D
ev

el
op

ed
 la

nd
 a

re
a/

ge
og

ra
ph

ic
 b

ou
nd

ar
ie

s r
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
ta

bl
es

 
Re

w
ro

te
/u

pd
at

ed
 th

e 
ha

za
rd

 p
ro

fil
es

 in
to

 a
 s

tre
am

lin
ed

 t
ab

ul
ar

 
fo

rm
at

 
Be

ga
n 

de
ve

lo
pi

ng
/u

pd
at

in
g/

co
lle

ct
in

g 
dr

af
t m

iti
ga

tio
n 

ac
tio

ns
 

St
re

am
lin

ed
 a

nd
 u

pd
at

ed
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 p
ro

fil
e 

se
ct

io
n 

to
 o

nl
y 

ad
dr

es
s t

he
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ar
ea

, p
op

ul
at

io
n 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t t

re
nd

s 
an

d 
co

un
ty

 cr
iti

ca
l f

ac
ili

tie
s 

(d
el

et
ed

 g
en

er
al

 C
ou

nt
y 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n)

 

A
H

M
P 

pr
oj

ec
t m

an
ag

er
, 

A
EC

O
M

 

A
ug

us
t 2

01
9 

Tw
ee

te
d 

pu
bl

ic
 o

ut
re

ac
h 

m
es

sa
ge

s a
bo

ut
 th

e 
20

19
 A

H
M

P 
Em

ai
le

d 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
 ab

ou
t t

he
 20

19
 A

H
M

P 
Co

nd
uc

te
d 

co
nf

er
en

ce
 c

al
l w

ith
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Re

gi
on

al
 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 (A
ug

us
t 5

) t
o 

di
sc

us
s j

oi
nt

 p
ub

lic
 o

ut
re

ac
h 

ef
fo

rts
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 

Co
nd

uc
te

d 
m

ee
tin

g 
w

ith
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

(A
ug

us
t 7

) t
o 

di
sc

us
s 2

01
9 

A
H

M
P,

 p
ro

gr
es

s m
ad

e 
to

 d
at

e,
 a

nd
 

ex
is

tin
g 

an
d 

ne
w

 m
iti

ga
tio

n 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 
D

ev
el

op
ed

 c
rit

ic
al

 f
ac

ili
tie

s 
ris

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t t
ab

le
s 

Cr
ea

te
d 

dr
af

t r
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t t
ab

le
s 

Re
vi

se
d 

pl
an

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
fro

m
 q

ua
rte

rly
 m

ee
tin

gs
 to

 
an

nu
al

 re
vi

ew
 q

ue
st

io
nn

ai
re

s 

A
H

M
P 

pr
oj

ec
t m

an
ag

er
, 

A
EC

O
M

, 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 

Co
un

ty
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f 

Re
gi

on
al

 P
la

nn
in

g,
 L

os
 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Pu
bl

ic
 

W
or

ks
, a

dv
is

or
y 

co
m

m
itt

ee
 

Se
pt

em
be

r 2
01

9 

U
pd

at
ed

 th
e c

ap
ab

ili
ty

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t t

ab
le

s 
D

ev
el

op
ed

 a
 li

st
 o

f p
ot

en
tia

l m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ac

tio
ns

 an
d 

pr
io

rit
ize

d 
ac

tio
ns

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
a 

ne
w

 ti
er

ed
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

Cr
ea

te
d 

pu
bl

ic
 o

ut
re

ac
h 

fly
er

s 
in

 E
ng

lis
h 

an
d 

Sp
an

is
h 

an
d 

pl
ac

ed
 o

n 
th

e L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

O
EM

 w
eb

si
te

 
D

oc
um

en
te

d 
pr

og
re

ss
 in

 lo
ca

l m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ef

fo
rts

 
A

dd
re

ss
ed

 ch
an

ge
s i

n 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t s
in

ce
 th

e 2
01

4 
A

H
M

P 
Cr

ea
te

d 
In

iti
al

 D
ra

ft 
A

H
M

P 
Cr

ea
te

d 
Pu

bl
ic

 D
ra

ft 
A

H
M

P 

A
H

M
P 

pr
oj

ec
t m

an
ag

er
, 

A
EC

O
M

, 
ad

vi
so

ry
 

co
m

m
itt

ee
 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

9 
Cr

ea
te

d 
Fi

na
l D

ra
ft 

A
H

M
P 

A
EC

O
M

 

  
 

CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

2-
3 

Ta
bl

e 
2-

2.
 H

az
ar

d 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

A
dv

is
or

y 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 

N
am

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
/ A

ge
nc

y,
 T

itl
e 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 

Em
ily

 M
on

ta
ne

z 
O

ffi
ce

 o
f E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
M

an
ag

em
en

t, 
A

H
M

P 
pr

oj
ec

t 
m

an
ag

er
, S

en
io

r P
ro

gr
am

 
M

an
ag

er
 

Le
d 

ki
ck

-o
ff 

m
ee

tin
g,

 r
ev

ie
w

ed
 d

ra
ft 

ha
za

rd
 fi

gu
re

s 
an

d 
ris

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t t
ab

le
s,

 d
ra

ft 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

ac
tio

ns
 

an
d 

in
iti

al
 d

ra
ft 

pl
an

. 

M
ar

ga
re

t C
ar

lin
 

O
ffi

ce
 o

f E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

GI
S 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

Su
pe

rv
is

or
 

Pr
ov

id
ed

 in
pu

t o
n 

GI
S,

 r
ev

ie
w

ed
 d

ra
ft 

ha
za

rd
 

fig
ur

es
 a

nd
 ri

sk
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t t
ab

le
s,

 d
ra

ft 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

ac
tio

ns
 an

d 
in

iti
al

 d
ra

ft 
pl

an
. 

St
ep

ha
ni

e 
K

im
 

O
ffi

ce
 o

f E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

A
ca

de
m

ic
 I

nt
er

n 
Re

vi
ew

ed
 a

nd
 u

pd
at

ed
 th

e c
om

m
un

ity
 p

ro
fil

e,
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 in
pu

t o
n 

pe
op

le
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

in
g 

ho
m

el
es

sn
es

s,
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

ed
 o

n 
co

nf
er

en
ce

 c
al

ls
, 

at
te

nd
ed

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
t m

ee
tin

gs
, a

nd
 re

vi
ew

ed
 t

he
 

in
iti

al
 d

ra
ft 

pl
an

.  

Ca
ro

lin
e 

Ch
en

 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
of

 R
eg

io
na

l P
la

nn
in

g,
 R

eg
io

na
l 

Pl
an

ne
r 

A
tte

nd
ed

 ki
ck

-o
ff 

m
ee

tin
g,

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
ed

 o
n 

co
nf

er
en

ce
 c

al
l, 

re
vi

ew
ed

 d
ra

ft 
ha

za
rd

 fi
gu

re
s 

an
d 

ris
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
t t

ab
le

s,
 d

ra
ft 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ac

tio
ns

, a
nd

 
in

iti
al

 d
ra

ft 
pl

an
. 

Iri
s 

Ch
i 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 R

eg
io

na
l P

la
nn

in
g,

 R
eg

io
na

l 
Pl

an
ne

r  

A
tte

nd
ed

 ki
ck

-o
ff 

m
ee

tin
g,

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
ed

 o
n 

co
nf

er
en

ce
 c

al
l, 

re
vi

ew
ed

 d
ra

ft 
ha

za
rd

 fi
gu

re
s 

an
d 

ris
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
t t

ab
le

s,
 d

ra
ft 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ac

tio
ns

 a
nd

 
in

iti
al

 d
ra

ft 
pl

an
. 

Lo
ni

 E
az

el
l 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Pu
bl

ic
 

W
or

ks
, D

is
as

te
r S

er
vi

ce
s 

Sp
ec

ia
lis

t 

Co
or

di
na

te
d 

A
ug

us
t 7

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
t m

ee
tin

g,
 

re
vi

ew
ed

 d
ra

ft 
ha

za
rd

 fi
gu

re
s 

an
d 

ris
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

ta
bl

es
, d

ra
ft 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ac

tio
ns

, a
nd

 in
iti

al
 d

ra
ft 

pl
an

. 

Fr
an

k 
Fo

rm
an

 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t, 

Ba
tta

lio
n 

Ch
ie

f 
Re

vi
ew

ed
 d

ra
ft 

ha
za

rd
 fi

gu
re

s 
an

d 
ris

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
ta

bl
es

, d
ra

ft 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

ac
tio

ns
 a

nd
 in

iti
al

 d
ra

ft 
pl

an
. 

A
nd

re
w

 G
an

o 
Ci

ty
 o

f G
le

nd
al

e 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t, 
Ca

pt
ai

n 
 

A
tte

nd
ed

 ki
ck

-o
ff 

m
ee

tin
g,

 re
vi

ew
ed

 d
ra

ft 
ha

za
rd

 
fig

ur
es

 a
nd

 ri
sk

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t t

ab
le

s,
 d

ra
ft 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ac

tio
ns

, a
nd

 in
iti

al
 d

ra
ft 

pl
an

. 

A
ng

in
e 

Ge
ra

go
os

ia
n 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Pu
bl

ic
 

W
or

ks
, D

is
as

te
r S

er
vi

ce
s 

A
na

ly
st

  
A

tte
nd

ed
 ki

ck
-o

ff 
m

ee
tin

g,
 re

vi
ew

ed
 d

ra
ft 

ha
za

rd
 

fig
ur

es
 a

nd
 ri

sk
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t t
ab

le
s,

 d
ra

ft 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

ac
tio

ns
, a

nd
 in

iti
al

 d
ra

ft 
pl

an
. 

Pa
tri

ci
a 

H
ac

hi
ya

 
Re

gi
on

al
 P

la
nn

in
g,

 S
up

er
vi

si
ng

 
Re

gi
on

al
 P

la
nn

er
 

A
tte

nd
ed

 ki
ck

-o
ff 

m
ee

tin
g,

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
ed

 o
n 

co
nf

er
en

ce
 c

al
l, 

re
vi

ew
ed

 d
ra

ft 
ha

za
rd

 fi
gu

re
s 

an
d 

ris
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
t t

ab
le

s,
 d

ra
ft 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ac

tio
ns

, a
nd

 
in

iti
al

 d
ra

ft 
pl

an
. 

Ja
ck

 H
us

te
d 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f P
ub

lic
 W

or
ks

, 
Se

ni
or

 C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
  

A
tte

nd
ed

 A
ug

us
t 7

 m
ee

tin
g,

 r
ev

ie
w

ed
 d

ra
ft 

ha
za

rd
 

fig
ur

es
 a

nd
 ri

sk
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t t
ab

le
s,

 d
ra

ft 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

ac
tio

ns
, a

nd
 in

iti
al

 d
ra

ft 
pl

an
. 

Sh
er

yl
l J

on
es

 
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

Se
rv

ic
es

 C
oo

rd
in

at
or

, 
So

ut
he

rn
 R

eg
io

n 
Ca

l O
ES

 
A

dv
is

ed
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
O

EM
 a

bo
ut

 in
iti

al
 

up
da

te
 p

ro
ce

ss
 an

d 
re

vi
ew

ed
 in

iti
al

 d
ra

ft 
pl

an
.  

Si
na

n 
K

ha
n 

O
ffi

ce
 o

f E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

A
ss

oc
ia

te
 D

ire
ct

or
 

Re
vi

ew
ed

 d
ra

ft 
ha

za
rd

 fi
gu

re
s 

an
d 

ris
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

ta
bl

es
, d

ra
ft 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ac

tio
ns

 a
nd

 in
iti

al
 d

ra
ft 

pl
an

. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

2-
4 

Ta
bl

e 
2-

2.
 H

az
ar

d 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

A
dv

is
or

y 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 

N
am

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
/ A

ge
nc

y,
 T

itl
e 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 

D
ia

na
 M

an
za

no
 

A
re

a 
D

 D
is

as
te

r M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

Co
or

di
na

to
r 

A
tte

nd
ed

 ki
ck

-o
ff 

m
ee

tin
g,

 re
vi

ew
ed

 d
ra

ft 
ha

za
rd

 
fig

ur
es

 a
nd

 ri
sk

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t t

ab
le

s,
 d

ra
ft 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ac

tio
ns

, a
nd

 in
iti

al
 d

ra
ft 

pl
an

. 

Jo
hn

 E
ric

 P
ea

rc
e 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t, 

Ca
pt

ai
n 

Re
vi

ew
ed

 d
ra

ft 
ha

za
rd

 fi
gu

re
s 

an
d 

ris
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

ta
bl

es
, d

ra
ft 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ac

tio
ns

, a
nd

 in
iti

al
 d

ra
ft 

pl
an

. 

Ch
ris

tin
e 

Sh
af

fe
r 

Sh
er

iff
’s

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t, 

D
ep

ut
y 

 
Re

vi
ew

ed
 d

ra
ft 

ha
za

rd
 fi

gu
re

s 
an

d 
ris

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
ta

bl
es

, d
ra

ft 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

ac
tio

ns
, a

nd
 in

iti
al

 d
ra

ft 
pl

an
. 

N
at

ha
ni

el
 V

er
Go

w
 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 H
om

el
es

s 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

A
ut

ho
rit

y,
 D

ire
ct

or
 o

f A
cc

es
s a

nd
 

En
ga

ge
m

en
t 

Re
vi

ew
ed

 d
ra

ft 
ha

za
rd

 fi
gu

re
s 

an
d 

ris
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

ta
bl

es
, d

ra
ft 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ac

tio
ns

, a
nd

 in
iti

al
 d

ra
ft 

pl
an

. 

St
ev

en
 W

al
la

ce
 

Sa
n 

Ga
br

ie
l 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t, 

In
te

rim
 F

ire
 C

hi
ef

 
Re

vi
ew

ed
 d

ra
ft 

ha
za

rd
 fi

gu
re

s 
an

d 
ris

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
ta

bl
es

, d
ra

ft 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

ac
tio

ns
, a

nd
 in

iti
al

 d
ra

ft 
pl

an
. 

Ia
in

 W
at

t 
O

ffi
ce

 o
f E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
M

an
ag

em
en

t, 
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

M
an

ag
em

en
t C

oo
rd

in
at

or
  

Pa
rti

ci
pa

te
d 

on
 c

on
fe

re
nc

e 
ca

ll,
 re

vi
ew

ed
 d

ra
ft 

ha
za

rd
 fi

gu
re

s 
an

d 
ris

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t t
ab

le
s,

 d
ra

ft 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

ac
tio

ns
, a

nd
 in

iti
al

 d
ra

ft 
pl

an
. 

2.
2 

O
PP

O
R

T
U

N
IT

IE
S 

FO
R

 S
T

A
K

E
H

O
LD

E
R

S 
O

n 
A

ug
us

t 
20

, 
20

19
, t

he
 A

H
M

P 
pr

oj
ec

t 
m

an
ag

er
 r

ea
ch

ed
 o

ut
 t

o 
sta

ke
ho

ld
er

s 
ab

ou
t 

th
e 

20
19

 
A

H
M

P 
to

 in
vit

e 
th

em
 t

o 
pa

rti
cip

at
e 

in 
th

e 
pl

an
 u

pd
at

e 
pr

oc
es

s. 
Th

e 
sta

ke
ho

ld
er

s 
w

er
e 

als
o 

no
tif

ie
d 

on
 O

ct
ob

er
 4

, 2
01

9,
 th

at
 a

 co
py

 o
f t

he
 p

ub
lic

 d
ra

ft 
pl

an
 w

as
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

fo
r r

ev
iew

 o
n 

th
e 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 

C
ou

nt
y 

O
EM

 w
eb

sit
e.

 S
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s 
inc

lud
e 

m
em

be
rs

 
of

 t
he

 M
ut

ua
l 

A
id

 R
eg

io
na

l 
A

dv
iso

ry
 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 (

M
A

RA
C

) 
fo

r t
he

 S
ou

th
er

n 
Re

gio
n.

 T
he

 M
A

RA
C

 c
on

sis
ts 

of
: t

he
 C

ali
fo

rn
ia

 O
ffi

ce
 o

f 
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

Se
rv

ice
s 

(C
al 

O
ES

) r
eg

io
na

l 
ad

m
ini

str
at

or
, 

or
 d

ep
ut

y,
 f

or
 th

e 
A

dm
in

ist
ra

tiv
e 

Re
gi

on
 

en
co

m
pa

ss
in

g 
th

e 
m

ut
ua

l 
aid

 r
eg

io
n(

s)
; 

re
gio

na
l 

m
ut

ua
l 

aid
 c

oo
rd

ina
to

rs
 (

fir
e,

 l
aw

 e
nf

or
ce

m
en

t, 
di

sa
ste

r 
m

ed
ica

l 
an

d 
ot

he
r e

sta
bl

ish
ed

 m
ut

ua
l 

aid
 s

ys
te

m
s)

; 
a 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

e 
fro

m
 e

ac
h 

op
er

at
io

na
l 

ar
ea

 lo
ca

te
d 

in 
th

e 
m

ut
ua

l 
aid

 r
eg

io
n;

 r
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
es

 
fro

m
 t

w
o 

m
un

ic
ip

al
iti

es
 

(s
m

all
/la

rg
e 

an
d 

ro
ta

te
s 

bi
-a

nn
ua

lly
); 

re
gio

na
l 

pu
bl

ic 
ut

ilit
y 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

e;
 p

riv
at

e 
ut

ilit
y 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

e;
 

sp
ec

ia
l 

di
str

ict
 r

ep
re

se
nt

at
iv

e;
 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
de

sig
ne

e 
as

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 b

y 
an

 in
di

vi
du

al
 

M
A

RA
C

. 
St

ak
eh

ol
de

r 
do

cu
m

en
ta

tio
n 

is 
lo

ca
te

d 
in 

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

. 

2.
3 

PU
B

L
IC

 IN
V

O
L

V
E

M
E

N
T

 
Th

e 
Lo

s 
A

ng
ele

s 
C

ou
nt

y 
O

EM
 e

ng
ag

ed
 t

he
 p

ub
lic

 i
n 

th
e 

pl
an

 u
pd

at
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

va
rio

us
 

m
ed

ia 
fo

rm
at

s. 
A

 fl
ye

r 
ab

ou
t t

he
 2

01
9 

A
H

M
P 

w
as

 c
re

at
ed

 in
 b

ot
h 

En
gl

ish
 a

nd
 S

pa
nis

h 
an

d 
pl

ac
ed

 
on

 th
e 

Lo
s 

A
ng

ele
s 

C
ou

nt
y 

O
EM

 w
eb

sit
e.

 T
he

 w
eb

sit
e 

als
o 

inc
lud

es
 a

 c
op

y 
of

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic 
dr

af
t 

pl
an

 f
or

 p
ub

lic
 c

om
m

en
t 

on
 O

ct
ob

er
 4

, 2
01

9.
 

ht
tp

s:/
/w

w
w

.la
co

un
ty

.g
ov

/e
m

er
ge

nc
y/

co
un

ty
-o

f-l
os

-a
ng

el
es

-a
ll-

ha
za

rd
s-

m
iti

ga
tio

n-
pl

an
/ 

CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

2-
5 

A
dd

itio
na

lly
, 

th
e 

Lo
s 

A
ng

ele
s 

C
ou

nt
y 

O
EM

 u
se

d 
Tw

itt
er

, 
@

Re
ad

yL
A

C
ou

nt
y,

 
to

 e
ng

ag
e 

th
e 

pu
bl

ic 
th

ro
ug

h 
a 

se
rie

s 
of

 tw
ee

ts 
ab

ou
t t

he
 2

01
9 

A
H

M
P,

 h
az

ar
ds

 i
n 

Lo
s 

A
ng

ele
s 

C
ou

nt
y,

 h
az

ar
d 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
pl

an
ni

ng
, 

an
d 

th
e 

pu
bl

ic 
dr

af
t p

lan
.  

2.
4 

R
E

V
IE

W
 A

N
D

 IN
C

O
R

PO
R

A
T

IO
N

 O
F 

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 P
L

A
N

S 
A

N
D

 R
EP

O
R

T
S 

 
Th

e 
co

ns
ult

an
t 

re
vie

w
ed

 e
xis

tin
g 

re
lev

an
t 

inf
or

m
at

io
n 

to
 in

clu
de

 i
n 

th
e 

20
19

 A
H

M
P.

 T
ab

le
 2

-3
 

lis
ts 

th
e 

pl
an

s 
an

d 
re

po
rts

 re
vie

w
ed

 a
s w

ell
 a

s i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
to

 b
e i

nc
or

po
ra

te
d 

int
o 

th
e 

20
19

 A
H

M
P.

 

Ta
bl

e 
2-

3.
 E

xi
st

in
g 

Pl
an

s 
an

d 
R

ep
or

ts
 

Pl
an

s 
an

d 
R

ep
or

ts
 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

to
 b

e 
In

co
rp

or
at

ed
 i

nt
o 

th
e 

20
19

 A
H

M
P 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l A

re
a 

Em
er

ge
nc

y 
Re

sp
on

se
 P

la
n 

(2
01

2)
 

A
pp

en
di

x 
K

 H
az

ar
ds

-S
pe

ci
fic

 t
o 

th
e o

pe
ra

tio
na

l a
re

a 
in

to
 S

ec
tio

n 
4 

H
az

ar
d 

Id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
an

d 
Ri

sk
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

20
35

 G
en

er
al

 P
la

n 
(2

01
5)

 
Sa

fe
ty

 e
le

m
en

t 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

po
lic

ie
s 

in
to

 S
ec

tio
n 

5 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

St
ra

te
gy

 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fl
oo

dp
la

in
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t P

la
n 

(2
01

6)
 

Fl
oo

d 
ha

za
rd

 p
ro

fil
e,

 n
on

-im
pl

em
en

te
d 

flo
od

 m
iti

ga
tio

n 
in

iti
at

iv
es

 
in

to
 S

ec
tio

n 
4 

H
az

ar
d 

Id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
an

d 
Ri

sk
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 

Co
un

ty
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
lo

od
pl

ai
n 

M
an

ag
em

en
t P

la
n 

Pr
og

re
ss

 R
ep

or
t 2

01
7 

– 
20

18
  

N
on

-im
pl

em
en

te
d 

flo
od

 m
iti

ga
tio

n 
in

iti
at

iv
es

 in
to

 S
ec

tio
n 

5 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

St
ra

te
gy

, i
m

pl
em

en
te

d 
flo

od
 m

iti
ga

tio
n 

in
iti

at
iv

es
 in

to
 

Se
ct

io
n 

6 
Pl

an
 R

ev
ie

w
, 

Ev
al

ua
tio

n,
 a

nd
 Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

 

Co
un

ty
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 R
ep

et
iti

ve
 L

os
s 

A
re

a 
A

na
ly

si
s P

ro
gr

es
s 

Re
po

rt 
20

17
 –

 
20

18
 

N
on

-im
pl

em
en

te
d 

flo
od

 m
iti

ga
tio

n 
in

iti
at

iv
es

 in
to

 S
ec

tio
n 

5 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

St
ra

te
gy

, i
m

pl
em

en
te

d 
flo

od
 m

iti
ga

tio
n 

in
iti

at
iv

es
 in

to
 

Se
ct

io
n 

6 
Pl

an
 R

ev
ie

w
, 

Ev
al

ua
tio

n,
 a

nd
 Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

U
ni

nc
or

po
ra

te
d 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 C

lim
at

e 
A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
 2

02
0 

Cl
im

at
e 

ch
an

ge
 m

iti
ga

tio
n 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 in

to
 S

ec
tio

n 
5 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
St

ra
te

gy
 

20
19

 G
re

at
er

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 H
om

el
es

s 
Co

un
t R

es
ul

ts
 

Pe
op

le
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

in
g 

ho
m

el
es

sn
es

s c
ou

nt
 in

to
 S

ec
tio

n 
4 

H
az

ar
d 

Id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
an

d 
Ri

sk
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

20
18

 S
tra

te
gi

c 
Fi

re
 P

la
n 

Ve
ge

ta
tio

n 
m

an
ag

em
en

t p
ro

gr
am

s 
in

to
 S

ec
tio

n 
5 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
St

ra
te

gy
 

So
ut

he
rn

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 E

ar
th

qu
ak

e 
D

at
a 

Ce
nt

er
’s

 E
ar

th
qu

ak
e 

Ca
ta

lo
gs

 
H

is
to

ric
 s

ei
sm

ic
 d

at
a i

nt
o 

Se
ct

io
n 

4 
H

az
ar

d 
Id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

an
d 

Ri
sk

 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t 

M
ar

iti
m

e 
Ts

un
am

i R
es

po
ns

e P
la

yb
oo

ks
: 

Ba
ck

gr
ou

nd
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d 
Gu

id
an

ce
 

fo
r R

es
po

ns
e a

nd
 H

az
ar

d 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

U
se

 
(2

01
6)

 

H
is

to
ric

al
 t

su
na

m
i i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

an
d 

ev
al

ua
tio

n 
da

ta
 in

to
 S

ec
tio

n 
4 

H
az

ar
d 

Id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
an

d 
Ri

sk
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 

FE
M

A
 F

lo
od

 In
su

ra
nc

e S
tu

dy
, L

os
 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y,

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 (

20
18

) 
H

is
to

ric
al

 f
lo

od
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d 
flo

od
 h

az
ar

d 
ar

ea
s i

nt
o 

Se
ct

io
n 

4 
H

az
ar

d 
Id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

an
d 

Ri
sk

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

U
.S

. G
eo

lo
gi

ca
l 

Su
rv

ey
 (U

SG
S)

: 
Ra

in
fa

ll 
an

d 
La

nd
sl

id
es

 in
 S

ou
th

er
n 

Ca
lif

or
ni

a 
(a

ct
iv

e)
 

La
nd

sl
id

e 
na

tu
re

, l
oc

at
io

n,
 h

is
to

ric
al

 a
nd

 ex
te

nt
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
in

to
 

Se
ct

io
n 

4 
H

az
ar

d 
Id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

an
d 

Ri
sk

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

 2.
5 

C
O

N
T

IN
U

E
D

 P
U

B
L

IC
 P

A
R

T
IC

IP
A

T
IO

N
 

A
 c

op
y 

of
 t

he
 2

01
9 

A
H

M
P 

w
ill 

be
 k

ep
t o

n 
th

e 
Lo

s 
A

ng
ele

s 
C

ou
nt

y 
O

EM
 w

eb
sit

e 
alo

ng
 w

ith
 

co
nt

ac
t 

inf
or

m
at

io
n.

 T
he

 L
os

 A
ng

ele
s 

C
ou

nt
y 

O
EM

 w
ill 

als
o 

no
tif

y 
re

sid
en

ts 
of

 a
ny

 c
ha

ng
es

 o
r 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

2-
6 

up
da

te
s 

to
 t

he
 2

01
9 

A
H

M
P,

 i
nc

lud
in

g 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

pr
oj

ec
ts 

id
en

tif
ied

 
in 

th
e 

pl
an

 a
s 

th
ey

 a
re

 
im

pl
em

en
te

d,
 v

ia 
@

Re
ad

yL
A

C
ou

nt
y 

on
 T

w
itt

er
. 

 

2.
6 

PL
A

N
 U

PD
A

T
E

 M
E

T
H

O
D

 A
N

D
 S

C
H

E
D

U
L

E
 

Th
e 

20
14

 A
H

M
P 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
qu

ar
te

rly
 

m
ee

tin
gs

 
to

 d
isc

us
s 

an
d 

tra
ck

 m
iti

ga
tio

n 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
life

sp
an

 
of

 t
he

 
20

14
 A

H
M

P.
 

It 
is 

un
kn

ow
n 

ho
w

 
of

te
n 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

de
pa

rtm
en

ts/
ag

en
ci

es
 m

et
 to

 tr
ac

k 
th

e 
sta

tu
s 

of
 th

eir
 m

itig
at

io
n 

ac
tio

ns
. 

Fo
r t

he
 2

01
9 

A
H

M
P,

 th
e 

pl
an

 u
pd

at
e 

m
et

ho
d 

an
d 

sc
he

du
le 

ha
s 

be
en

 r
ev

ise
d 

to
 in

clu
de

 a
n 

an
nu

al 
re

vie
w

 a
nd

 a
n 

ad
vis

or
y 

co
m

m
itt

ee
 

ro
un

dt
ab

le 
pr

io
r 

to
 t

he
 5

-y
ea

r 
up

da
te

. 
M

itig
at

io
n 

pr
oj

ec
ts 

w
ill 

be
 m

on
ito

re
d 

via
 a

 
pr

og
re

ss
 p

ro
je

ct
 r

ep
or

t. 
D

et
ail

s 
ar

e 
as

 fo
llo

w
s:

 

• 
A

nn
ua

l 
R

ev
ie

w 
W

or
ks

he
et

s: 
Ev

er
y 

12
 m

on
th

s 
fro

m
 p

lan
 a

do
pt

io
n,

 t
he

 A
H

M
P 

pr
oj

ec
t 

m
an

ag
er

 w
ill 

em
ail

 e
ac

h 
m

em
be

r 
of

 th
e 

ad
vis

or
y 

co
m

m
itt

ee
 a

n 
A

nn
ua

l 
Re

vie
w

 
W

or
ks

he
et

 to
 c

om
pl

et
e.

 A
s 

sh
ow

n 
in 

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

, t
he

 A
nn

ua
l 

Re
vie

w
 W

or
ks

he
et

 r
ef

lec
ts 

th
e 

Lo
ca

l M
itig

at
io

n 
Pl

an
 R

ev
iew

 T
oo

l a
nd

 in
clu

de
s 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g:
 p

lan
ni

ng
 p

ro
ce

ss
, 

ha
za

rd
 p

ro
file

, 
ris

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t, 
an

d 
m

itig
at

io
n 

str
at

eg
y.

 E
ac

h 
m

em
be

r 
of

 th
e 

ad
vis

or
y 

co
m

m
itt

ee
 w

ill 
em

ail
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 w
or

ks
he

et
s 

ba
ck

 to
 th

e 
A

H
M

P 
pr

oj
ec

t m
an

ag
er

 t
o 

re
vie

w
. 

Th
e 

A
H

M
P 

pr
oj

ec
t m

an
ag

er
 w

ill 
su

m
m

ar
ize

 t
he

se
 fi

nd
in

gs
 a

nd
 e

m
ail

 t
he

m
 o

ut
 to

 
th

e 
co

m
m

itt
ee

. 
If 

th
e 

A
H

M
P 

pr
oj

ec
t m

an
ag

er
 b

eli
ev

es
 t

ha
t t

he
 2

01
9 

A
H

M
P 

ne
ed

s 
to

 b
e 

up
da

te
d 

ba
se

d 
on

 th
e 

fin
di

ng
s, 

th
en

 a
n 

inv
ita

tio
n 

w
ill 

be
 se

nt
 to

 a
dv

iso
ry

 c
om

m
itt

ee
 

m
em

be
rs

 t
o 

at
te

nd
 a

 fo
rm

al 
A

H
M

P 
up

da
te

 m
ee

tin
g.

  
• 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
Pr

og
re

ss
 P

ro
je

ct
 R

ep
or

ts
: M

itig
at

io
n 

ac
tio

ns
 w

ill 
be

 m
on

ito
re

d 
an

d 
up

da
te

d 
us

ing
 t

he
 M

itig
at

io
n 

Pr
oj

ec
t P

ro
gr

es
s 

Re
po

rt.
 D

ur
ing

 e
ac

h 
an

nu
al 

re
vie

w
, 

ea
ch

 
de

pa
rtm

en
t 

or
 a

ge
nc

y 
cu

rre
nt

ly 
ad

m
in

ist
er

in
g 

a 
m

itig
at

io
n 

pr
oj

ec
t w

ill 
su

bm
it 

a 
pr

og
re

ss
 

re
po

rt 
to

 th
e 

A
H

M
P 

pr
oj

ec
t m

an
ag

er
. 

Fo
r p

ro
je

ct
s 

th
at

 a
re

 b
ein

g 
fu

nd
ed

 b
y 

a 
FE

M
A

 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

gr
an

t, 
FE

M
A

 q
ua

rte
rly

 r
ep

or
ts 

m
ay

 b
e 

us
ed

 a
s 

th
e 

pr
ef

er
re

d 
re

po
rti

ng
 t

oo
l. 

A
s 

sh
ow

n 
in 

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

, t
he

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
re

po
rt 

w
ill 

di
sc

us
s 

th
e 

cu
rre

nt
 s

ta
tu

s 
of

 th
e 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
pr

oj
ec

t, 
inc

lud
in

g 
an

y 
ch

an
ge

s 
m

ad
e 

to
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t, 
id

en
tif

y 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

pr
ob

lem
s, 

an
d 

de
sc

rib
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 s

tra
te

gie
s 

to
 o

ve
rc

om
e 

th
em

. 
 

• 
A

dv
is

or
y 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 R

ou
nd

ta
bl

e:
 O

n 
th

e 
fo

ur
th

 y
ea

r o
f t

he
 u

pd
at

e,
 th

e 
A

H
M

P 
pr

oj
ec

t 
m

an
ag

er
 w

ill 
re

co
nv

en
e 

th
e 

ad
vis

or
y 

co
m

m
itt

ee
 u

pd
at

ing
 m

em
be

rs
hi

p,
 i

f 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y)

 a
nd

 
lea

d 
a 

ta
bl

et
op

 e
xe

rc
ise

 w
ith

 t
he

 a
dv

iso
ry

 c
om

m
itt

ee
 t

o:
 c

ol
lec

t 
th

e 
A

nn
ua

l 
Re

vie
w

 
W

or
ks

he
et

 a
nd

 a
ny

 M
itig

at
io

n 
Pr

oj
ec

t P
ro

gr
es

s 
Re

po
rts

 a
nd

 F
EM

A
 q

ua
rte

rly
 r

ep
or

ts;
 

de
te

rm
ine

 h
az

ar
ds

 t
o 

be
 in

clu
de

d 
in 

th
e 

20
24

 A
H

M
P;

 d
ev

elo
p 

a 
ne

w
 w

or
k 

pl
an

; 
an

d 
be

gin
 t

he
 p

lan
 u

pd
at

e 
pr

oc
es

s. 
 

CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

3-
1 

3 
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 P

R
O

FI
LE

 

3.
1 

P L
A

N
N

IN
G

 A
R

E
A

 
W

ith
 a

pp
ro

xim
at

el
y 

4,
76

0.
72

 s
qu

ar
e 

m
ile

s, 
Lo

s 
A

ng
ele

s 
C

ou
nt

y 
is 

ge
og

ra
ph

ica
lly

 
on

e 
of

 t
he

 
lar

ge
st 

co
un

tie
s 

in 
th

e 
co

un
try

. 
A

s 
sh

ow
n 

in 
Fi

gu
re

 3
-1

, t
he

 c
ou

nt
y 

str
et

ch
es

 a
lo

ng
 7

5 
m

ile
s 

of
 th

e 
Pa

cif
ic 

co
as

t 
of

 S
ou

th
er

n 
C

ali
fo

rn
ia

 
an

d 
is 

bo
rd

er
ed

 t
o 

th
e 

ea
st 

by
 O

ra
ng

e 
C

ou
nt

y 
an

d 
Sa

n 
Be

rn
ar

di
no

 C
ou

nt
y,

 to
 th

e 
no

rth
 b

y 
K

er
n 

C
ou

nt
y,

 a
nd

 to
 th

e 
w

es
t b

y 
V

en
tu

ra
 C

ou
nt

y.
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

C
ou

nt
y 

ha
s 

tw
o 

isl
an

ds
, 

Sa
nt

a 
C

at
ali

na
 

(7
5.

00
 s

qu
ar

e 
m

ile
s)

 
an

d 
Sa

n 
C

lem
en

te
 (

60
.6

9 
sq

ua
re

 
m

ile
s)

, 
w

hic
h 

ar
e 

pa
rt 

of
 a

n 
eig

ht
-is

la
nd

 g
ro

up
 c

all
ed

 t
he

 C
ha

nn
el 

Is
lan

ds
. 

 

A
s 

sh
ow

n 
in 

Ta
bl

es
 3

-1
 –

 3
-6

 a
nd

 F
ig

ur
es

 3
-2

 –
 3

-6
, t

he
 c

ou
nt

y 
is 

di
vid

ed
 i

nt
o 

fiv
e 

su
pe

rv
iso

ri
al

 
di

str
ict

s, 
ea

ch
 r

ep
re

se
nt

in
g 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
2 

m
ill

io
n 

pe
op

le 
in 

88
 c

itie
s 

an
d 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
14

0 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 o

r 1
22

 c
ou

nt
y-

w
id

e 
sta

tis
tic

al
 a

re
as

. T
he

 fi
ve

 s
up

er
vis

or
ia

l 
di

str
ict

s 
co

ns
ist

 o
f 4

,1
50

 
sq

ua
re

 m
ile

s, 
w

ith
 3

,0
14

.1
7 

sq
ua

re
 m

ile
s 

lo
ca

te
d 

in 
th

e 
un

inc
or

po
ra

te
d 

ar
ea

s. 
Th

e 
re

m
ain

in
g 

ar
ea

 
of

 L
os

 A
ng

ele
s 

C
ou

nt
y 

is 
fe

de
ra

l 
lan

d,
 i

nc
lud

in
g 

th
e 

Lo
s 

Pa
dr

es
 N

at
io

na
l 

Fo
re

st 
an

d 
A

ng
el

es
 

N
at

io
na

l 
Fo

re
st.

 
Fo

r 
th

e 
20

19
 A

H
M

P,
 t

he
 p

lan
ni

ng
 

ar
ea

 i
s 

de
fin

ed
 

as
 U

nin
co

rp
or

at
ed

 
Lo

s 
A

ng
ele

s 
C

ou
nt

y.
 

H
ow

ev
er

, 
th

e 
pl

an
’s

 r
isk

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t 

inc
lud

es
: 

Lo
s 

A
ng

ele
s 

C
ou

nt
y,

 U
nin

co
rp

or
at

ed
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

C
ou

nt
y,

 a
nd

 s
up

er
vis

or
ia

l 
di

str
ict

s 
1-

5.
 I

n 
ad

di
tio

n,
 

sp
ec

ific
 

co
un

ty
-w

id
e 

sta
tis

tic
al

 
ar

ea
 r

isk
 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

inf
or

m
at

io
n 

is 
pr

ov
id

ed
 in

 A
pp

en
di

x 
C

. 

Ta
bl

e 
3-

1.
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
La

nd
 A

re
a 

En
tit

y 
Sq

ua
re

 M
ile

s 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

4,
76

0.
72

 

U
ni

nc
or

po
ra

te
d 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

3,
04

1.
17

 

Su
pe

rv
is

or
ia

l D
is

tri
ct

 1
 

24
6.

19
 

Su
pe

rv
is

or
ia

l D
is

tri
ct

 2
 

16
1.

83
 

Su
pe

rv
is

or
ia

l D
is

tri
ct

 3
 

43
1.

21
 

Su
pe

rv
is

or
ia

l D
is

tri
ct

 4
 

43
9.

95
 

Su
pe

rv
is

or
ia

l D
is

tri
ct

 5
 

2,
80

7.
00

 

 

Ta
bl

e 
3-

2.
 S

up
er

vi
so

ria
l 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
1 

C
ity

 
C

ou
nt

y-
wi

de
 

St
at

is
tic

al
 A

re
a 

A
zu

sa
 

A
rc

ad
ia

  

Ba
ld

w
in

 P
ar

k 
A

ng
el

es
 N

at
io

na
l F

or
es

t 

Be
ll 

A
vo

ca
do

 H
ei

gh
ts

 

Be
ll 

Ga
rd

en
s 

A
zu

sa
 

Cl
ar

em
on

t 
Ba

nd
in

i I
sl

an
ds

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

3-
2 

Ta
bl

e 
3-

2.
 S

up
er

vi
so

ria
l 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
1 

C
ity

 
C

ou
nt

y-
wi

de
 

St
at

is
tic

al
 A

re
a 

Co
m

m
er

ce
 

Ba
ss

et
t 

Cu
da

hy
 

Ch
ar

te
r O

ak
 

El
 M

on
te

 
Cl

ar
em

on
t 

H
un

tin
gt

on
 P

ar
k 

Co
vi

na
 

In
du

st
ry

 
Co

vi
na

 (C
ha

rte
r 

O
ak

) 

Irw
in

da
le

 
D

ua
rte

 

La
 P

ue
nt

e 
Ea

st
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

M
ay

w
oo

d 
El

 M
on

te
 

M
on

te
be

llo
 

Fl
or

en
ce

 –
 F

ire
st

on
e 

 

M
on

te
re

y 
Pa

rk
 

Gl
en

do
ra

 

Pi
co

 R
iv

er
a 

H
ac

ie
nd

a 
H

ei
gh

ts
 

Po
m

on
a 

La
 V

er
ne

 

Ro
se

m
ea

d 
Ly

nw
oo

d 

So
ut

h 
El

 M
on

te
 

N
or

th
 W

hi
tti

er
 

So
ut

h 
Ga

te
 

Pa
du

a 
H

ill
s 

Ve
rn

on
 

Pe
lli

ss
ie

r 
Vi

lla
ge

 

W
al

nu
t 

Po
m

on
a 

W
es

t C
ov

in
a 

Ro
w

la
nd

 H
ei

gh
ts

 

 
Sa

n 
Jo

se
 H

ill
s 

 
So

ut
h 

El
 M

on
te

 

 
So

ut
h 

Sa
n 

Ga
br

ie
l 

 
Su

nr
is

e 
Vi

lla
ge

 

 
Va

lin
da

 

 
W

al
nu

t 

 
W

al
nu

t P
ar

k 

 
W

es
t P

ue
nt

e V
al

le
y 

 
W

es
t W

hi
tti

er
 / 

Lo
s 

N
ie

to
s 

 
W

hi
tti

er
 

 
W

hi
tti

er
 N

ar
ro

w
s 

  
 

CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

3-
3 

Ta
bl

e 
3-

3.
 S

up
er

vi
so

ria
l 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
2 

C
ity

 
C

ou
nt

y-
wi

de
 

St
at

is
tic

al
 A

re
a 

Ca
rs

on
 

A
th

en
s V

ill
ag

e 

Co
m

pt
on

 
A

th
en

s-
W

es
tm

on
t 

Cu
lv

er
 C

ity
 

D
el

 A
ire

 

Ga
rd

en
a 

D
el

 R
ey

 

H
aw

th
or

ne
 

Ea
st

 R
an

ch
o 

D
om

in
gu

ez
 

In
gl

ew
oo

d 
El

 C
am

in
o 

Vi
lla

ge
 

La
w

nd
al

e 
Fl

or
en

ce
 –

 F
ire

st
on

e 
 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 (p
or

tio
n)

 
H

aw
th

or
ne

 

Ly
nw

oo
d 

La
de

ra
 H

ei
gh

ts
 

 
Le

nn
ox

 

 
Ly

nw
oo

d 

 
M

ar
in

a 
de

l R
ey

 

 
Ra

nc
ho

 D
om

in
gu

ez
 

 
Ro

se
w

oo
d 

 
Ro

se
w

oo
d/

Ea
st

 G
ar

de
na

 

 
Ro

se
w

oo
d/

W
es

t R
an

ch
o 

D
om

in
gu

ez
 

 
Vi

ew
 P

ar
k/

W
in

ds
or

 H
ill

s 

 
W

al
nu

t P
ar

k 

 
W

es
t C

ar
se

n 

 
W

es
t R

an
ch

o 
D

om
in

gu
ez

 

 
W

ill
ow

br
oo

k 

 
W

is
eb

ur
n 

  
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

3-
4 

Ta
bl

e 
3-

4.
 S

up
er

vi
so

ria
l 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
3 

C
ity

 
C

ou
nt

y-
wi

de
 

St
at

is
tic

al
 A

re
a 

A
go

ur
a H

ill
s 

A
ng

el
es

 N
at

io
na

l F
or

es
t 

Be
ve

rly
 H

ill
s 

Fr
an

kl
in

 C
an

yo
n 

Ca
la

ba
sa

s 
M

ar
in

a 
de

l R
ey

 

H
id

de
n 

H
ill

s 
M

ira
cl

e 
M

ile
 

M
al

ib
u 

K
ag

el
/L

op
ez

 C
an

yo
ns

 

Sa
n 

Fe
rn

an
do

 
Sa

nt
a 

M
on

ic
a 

M
ou

nt
ai

ns
 

Sa
nt

a 
M

on
ic

a 
U

ni
ve

rs
al

 C
ity

 

W
es

t H
ol

ly
w

oo
d 

W
es

t L
A

 

W
es

tla
ke

 V
ill

ag
e 

W
es

th
ill

s 

 

Ta
bl

e 
3-

5.
 S

up
er

vi
so

ria
l 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
4 

C
ity

 
C

ou
nt

y-
wi

de
 

St
at

is
tic

al
 A

re
a 

A
rte

si
a 

Ce
rri

to
s 

A
va

lo
n 

D
el

 A
ire

 

Be
llf

lo
w

er
 

Ea
st

 L
a 

M
ira

da
 

Ce
rri

to
s 

Ea
st

 R
an

ch
o 

D
om

in
gu

ez
 

D
ia

m
on

d 
Ba

r 
Ea

st
 W

hi
tti

er
 

D
ow

ne
y 

El
 C

am
in

o 
Vi

lla
ge

 

El
 S

eg
un

do
 

H
ac

ie
nd

a 
H

ei
gh

ts
 

H
aw

ai
ia

n 
Ga

rd
en

s 
H

ar
bo

r G
at

ew
ay

 

H
er

m
os

a 
Be

ac
h 

La
 H

ab
ra

 H
ei

gh
ts

 

La
 H

ab
ra

 H
ei

gh
ts

 
La

 R
am

bl
a 

La
 M

ira
da

 
La

ke
w

oo
d 

La
ke

w
oo

d 
Le

nn
ox

 

Lo
m

ita
 

Lo
ng

 B
ea

ch
 

Lo
ng

 B
ea

ch
 

Ly
nw

oo
d 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 (p
or

tio
n)

 
M

ar
in

a 
de

l R
ey

 

M
an

ha
tta

n 
Be

ac
h 

Pa
lo

s 
Ve

rd
es

 P
en

in
su

la
 

N
or

w
al

k 
Ra

nc
ho

 D
om

in
gu

ez
 

Pa
lo

s 
Ve

rd
es

 E
st

at
es

 
Ro

w
la

nd
 H

ei
gh

ts
 

Pa
ra

m
ou

nt
 

Sa
n 

Cl
em

en
te

 I
sl

an
d 

Ra
nc

ho
 P

al
os

 V
er

de
s 

Sa
nt

a 
Ca

ta
lin

a 
Is

la
nd

 

CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

3-
5 

Ta
bl

e 
3-

5.
 S

up
er

vi
so

ria
l 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
4 

C
ity

 
C

ou
nt

y-
wi

de
 

St
at

is
tic

al
 A

re
a 

Re
do

nd
o 

Be
ac

h 
So

ut
h 

W
hi

tti
er

 

Ro
lli

ng
 H

ill
s 

 
Su

nr
is

e 
Vi

lla
ge

 

Ro
lli

ng
 H

ill
s 

Es
ta

te
s 

W
es

t C
ar

so
n 

Sa
nt

a 
Fe

 S
pr

in
gs

 
W

es
t W

hi
tti

er
 / 

Lo
s 

N
ie

to
s 

Si
gn

al
 H

ill
 

W
es

tfi
el

d/
A

ca
de

m
y 

H
ill

s 

To
rra

nc
e 

W
hi

tti
er

 

W
hi

tti
er

 
 

 

Ta
bl

e 
3-

6.
 S

up
er

vi
so

ria
l 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
5 

C
ity

 
C

ou
nt

y-
wi

de
 

St
at

is
tic

al
 A

re
a 

A
lh

am
br

a 
A

ct
on

 

A
rc

ad
ia

 
A

gu
a D

ul
ce

 

Br
ad

bu
ry

 
A

lta
de

na
 

Co
vi

na
 

A
na

ve
rd

e 

D
ua

rte
 

A
ng

el
es

 N
at

io
na

l F
or

es
t 

Gl
en

da
le

 
A

rc
ad

ia
 

Gl
en

do
ra

 
A

zu
sa

 

La
 C

an
ad

a 
– 

Fl
in

tri
dg

e 
 

Bo
uq

ue
t C

an
yo

n 

La
 V

er
ne

 
Br

ad
bu

ry
 

La
nc

as
te

r 
Ca

ny
on

 C
ou

nt
ry

 

M
on

ro
vi

a 
Ca

st
ai

c 

Pa
lm

da
le

 
Cl

ar
em

on
t 

Pa
sa

de
na

 
Co

vi
na

 

Sa
n 

D
im

as
 

Co
vi

na
 (C

ha
rte

r 
O

ak
) 

Sa
n 

Ga
br

ie
l 

D
el

 S
ur

 

Sa
n 

M
ar

in
o 

D
es

er
t V

ie
w

 H
ig

hl
an

ds
 

Sa
nt

a 
Cl

ar
ita

 
D

ua
rte

 

Si
er

ra
 M

ad
re

 
Ea

st
 C

ov
in

a 

So
ut

h 
Pa

sa
de

na
 

Ea
st

 L
an

ca
st

er
 

Te
m

pl
e 

Ci
ty

 
Ea

st
 P

as
ad

en
a 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ity

 
El

iza
be

th
 L

ak
e 

Ca
no

ga
 P

ar
k 

(p
or

tio
n)

 
Gl

en
do

ra
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

3-
6 

Ta
bl

e 
3-

6.
 S

up
er

vi
so

ria
l 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
5 

C
ity

 
C

ou
nt

y-
wi

de
 

St
at

is
tic

al
 A

re
a 

Ch
at

sw
or

th
 (p

or
tio

n)
 

H
i V

is
ta

  

Gr
an

ad
a 

H
ill

s 
(p

or
tio

n)
 

K
ag

el
 / 

Lo
pe

z 
Ca

ny
on

s 

H
an

se
n 

D
am

 (
po

rti
on

) 
La

 C
re

sc
en

ta
-M

on
tro

se
  

La
ke

 V
ie

w
 T

er
ra

ce
 (p

or
tio

n)
 

La
 V

er
ne

 

M
is

si
on

 H
ill

s 
(p

or
tio

n)
 

La
ke

 H
ug

he
s 

N
or

th
rid

ge
 (p

or
tio

n)
 

La
ke

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 

O
liv

e 
Vi

ew
 H

os
pi

ta
l (

Sy
lm

ar
) 

La
ke

 M
an

or
 

Po
rte

r R
an

ch
 

Le
on

a 
Va

lle
y 

Sh
ad

ow
 H

ill
s 

Li
ttl

er
oc

k 

Su
n 

Va
lle

y 
(p

or
tio

n)
 

Li
ttl

er
oc

k/
Ju

ni
pe

r 
H

ill
s 

Su
nl

an
d 

Li
ttl

er
oc

k/
Pe

ar
bl

os
so

m
 

Sy
lm

ar
 (

po
rti

on
) 

Ll
an

o 

Tu
ju

ng
a 

M
on

ro
vi

a 

W
es

t H
ill

s 
(p

or
tio

n)
 

N
ew

ha
ll 

 
N

or
th

 L
an

ca
st

er
 

 
N

or
th

ea
st

 S
an

 G
ab

rie
l 

 
Pa

lm
da

le
 

 
Pe

ar
bl

os
so

m
/L

la
no

 

 
Pl

ac
er

ita
 C

an
yo

n 

 
Po

m
on

a 
 

 
Q

ua
rtz

 H
ill

 

 
Ro

os
ev

el
t 

 
Sa

n 
Fr

an
ci

sq
ui

to
 C

an
yo

n/
Bo

uq
ue

t C
an

yo
n 

 
Sa

n 
Pa

sq
ua

l 

 
Sa

nd
 C

an
yo

n 

 
Sa

ug
us

 

 
Sa

ug
us

/C
an

yo
n 

Co
un

try
 

 
So

ut
h 

A
nt

el
op

e 
Va

lle
y 

 
So

ut
h 

Ed
w

ar
ds

 

 
So

ut
he

as
t A

nt
el

op
e V

al
le

y 

 
St

ev
en

so
n 

Ra
nc

h 

 
Su

n 
Vi

lla
ge

 

 
Tw

in
 L

ak
es

/O
at

 M
ou

nt
ai

n 

CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

3-
7 

Ta
bl

e 
3-

6.
 S

up
er

vi
so

ria
l 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
5 

C
ity

 
C

ou
nt

y-
wi

de
 

St
at

is
tic

al
 A

re
a 

 
Va

l 
Ve

rd
e 

 
Va

le
nc

ia
 

 
W

es
t A

nt
el

op
e V

al
le

y 

 
W

es
t C

ha
ts

w
or

th
 

 
W

hi
te

 F
en

ce
 F

ar
m

s 

  
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Lo
s A

ng
ele

s

40
5

21
0

5

10

60
5

11
0

71
0

10
5

14
13

8

60

39

91

11
8

13
4

1

2

19

11
0

21
0

57

27

72

17
0

21
3

12
6

66

23

10
7

18

42

10
3

90

47

71

22

2

39
2

2

39

91

90

10
1

20
19

 Lo
s A

ng
ele

s C
ou

nty
 

All
-H

az
ard

s M
itig

ati
on

 Pl
an

Le
ge

nd U
n

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d

C
o

u
n

ty
 B

o
u
n

d
a

ry

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
F

o
re

s
t

0
5

1
0

1
5

2
.5

M
ile

s

Lo
s A

ng
ele

s C
ou

nty
Fig

ur
e 3

-1

V 
e n

 t u
 r 

a
C 

o u
 n 

t y

O 
r a

 n 
g e

C 
o u

 n 
t y

S a n  B e r n a r d i n o
C o u n t y

K 
e r

 n 
 C

 o 
u n

 t y

P a
 c 

i f 
i c

   O
 c 

e a
 n

So
ur

ce
h
tt

p
s
:/

/e
g

is
3

.l
a

c
o
u
n
ty

.g
o
v
, 

2
0
1
9

Lo
s A

ng
ele

s

21
0

10

5

60
5

11
0

71
0

40
5

10
5

60

39

91

13
4

2

19

11
0

21
0

57

72

21
3

66

42

1
10

3

47

71

22

39
2

2

39

91

2

71
10

1

20
19

 Lo
s A

ng
ele

s C
ou

nty
 

All
-H

az
ard

s M
itig

ati
on

 Pl
an

Le
ge

nd C
it
y
 B

o
u

n
d

a
ry

S
u

p
e
rv

is
o
ri
a

l 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

1
B

o
u

n
d

a
ry

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
F

o
re

s
t

0
5

2
.5

M
ile

s

Lo
s A

ng
ele

s C
ou

nty
 S

up
er

vis
or

ial
 D

ist
ric

t 1
Fig

ur
e 3

-2

O 
r a

 n 
g e

C 
o u

 n 
t y

S a n  B e r n a r d i n o
C o u n t y

So
ur

ce
h
tt

p
s
:/

/e
g

is
3

.l
a

c
o
u
n
ty

.g
o
v
, 

2
0
1
9

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Lo
s A

ng
ele

s

40
5

11
0

71
0

10

10
5

5

1

91

21
3

2

10
7

60

42

11
0 10
3

90

47

2

91

90

10
1 20

19
 Lo

s A
ng

ele
s C

ou
nty

 
All

-H
az

ard
s M

itig
ati

on
 Pl

an

Le
ge

nd C
it
y
 B

o
u

n
d

a
ry

S
u

p
e
rv

is
o
ri
a

l 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

2
B

o
u

n
d

a
ry

0
1

2
0
.5

M
ile

s

Lo
s A

ng
ele

s C
ou

nty
 S

up
er

vis
or

ial
 D

ist
ric

t 2
Fig

ur
e 3

-3

So
ur

ce
h
tt

p
s
:/

/e
g

is
3

.l
a

c
o
u
n
ty

.g
o
v
, 

2
0
1
9

P a
 c 

i f 
i c

O 
c e

 a 
n

Lo
s A

ng
ele

s

40
5

5

11
0

21
0 10

10
5

14

11
8

1

13
4

27

2

17
0

21
3

12
6

91

23

10
7

42

90

47

2

912

90

10
1

20
19

 Lo
s A

ng
ele

s C
ou

nty
 

All
-H

az
ard

s M
itig

ati
on

 Pl
an

Le
ge

nd C
it
y
 B

o
u

n
d

a
ry

S
u

p
e
rv

is
o
ri
a

l 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

3
B

o
u

n
d

a
ry

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
F

o
re

s
t

0
5

2
.5

M
ile

s

Lo
s A

ng
ele

s C
ou

nty
 S

up
er

vis
or

ial
 D

ist
ric

t 3
Fig

ur
e 3

-4

So
ur

ce
h
tt

p
s
:/

/e
g

is
3

.l
a

c
o
u
n
ty

.g
o
v
, 

2
0
1
9

V 
e n

 t u
 r 

a
C 

o u
 n 

t y

P a
 c 

i f 
i c

   O
 c 

e a
 n

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Lo
s A

ng
ele

s

40
5

10

60
5

11
0

5

71
0

10
5

60

91

1

19

72

57

21
3

2

10
7

42

10
3

90

47

27
71

39

22

90

2

91

39

20
19

 Lo
s A

ng
ele

s C
ou

nty
 

All
-H

az
ard

s M
itig

ati
on

 Pl
an

Le
ge

nd C
it
y
 B

o
u

n
d

a
ry

S
u

p
e
rv

is
o
ri
a

l 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

4
B

o
u

n
d

a
ry

0
1
0

5
M

ile
s

Lo
s A

ng
ele

s C
ou

nty
 S

up
er

vis
or

ial
 D

ist
ric

t 4
Fig

ur
e 3

-5

So
ur

ce
h
tt

p
s
:/

/e
g

is
3

.l
a

c
o
u
n
ty

.g
o
v
, 

2
0
1
9

O 
r a

 n 
g e

C 
o u

 n 
t y

S a n  B e r n a r d i n o
C o u n t y

P a
 c 

i f 
i c

   O
 c 

e a
 n

Lo
s A

ng
ele

s

40
5

21
0

5

10

60
5

11
0

71
0

10
5

14
13

8

60

39

91

11
8

13
4

1

2

19

11
0

21
0

57

27

72

17
0

21
3

12
6

66

23

10
7

18

42

10
3

90

47

71

22

2

39
2

2

39

91

90

10
1

20
19

 Lo
s A

ng
ele

s C
ou

nty
 

All
-H

az
ard

s M
itig

ati
on

 Pl
an

Le
ge

nd C
it
y
 B

o
u

n
d

a
ry

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
F

o
re

s
t

S
u

p
e
rv

is
o
ri
a

l 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

5
B

o
u

n
d

a
ry

0
5

1
0

2
.5

M
ile

s

Lo
s A

ng
ele

s C
ou

nty
 S

up
er

vis
or

ial
 D

ist
ric

t 5
Fig

ur
e 3

-6

So
ur

ce
h
tt

p
s
:/

/e
g

is
3

.l
a

c
o
u
n
ty

.g
o
v
, 

2
0
1
9

V 
e n

 t u
 r 

a
C 

o u
 n 

t y

O 
r a

 n 
g e

C 
o u

 n 
t y

S a n  B e r n a r d i n o
C o u n t y

K 
e r

 n 
 C

 o 
u n

 t y

P a
 c 

i f 
i c

O 
c e

 a 
n

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

3-
14

 

3.
2 

PO
PU

L
A

T
IO

N
 A

N
D

 D
E

V
E

L
O

PM
E

N
T

 T
R

E
N

D
S 

Si
nc

e 
th

e 
dr

af
tin

g 
of

 th
e 

20
14

 A
H

M
P,

 U
nit

ed
 S

ta
te

s 
(U

.S
.) 

C
en

su
s 

Bu
re

au
 I

nt
er

ce
ns

al
 E

sti
m

at
es

 
fro

m
 J

uly
 1

, 2
01

5,
 to

 J
uly

 1
, 2

01
8,

 s
ho

w
 t

he
 n

um
be

r 
of

 p
eo

pl
e 

re
sid

ing
 i

n 
Lo

s 
A

ng
ele

s 
C

ou
nt

y 
on

ly 
gr

ew
 f

ro
m

 1
0,

09
7,

03
7 

to
 1

0,
10

5,
51

8.
 W

hil
e 

th
e 

co
un

ty
 e

xp
er

ien
ce

d 
po

pu
lat

io
n 

gr
ow

th
 o

f 
0.

50
 p

er
ce

nt
 in

 2
01

5 
an

d 
0.

23
 p

er
ce

nt
 in

 2
01

6,
 th

e 
co

un
ty

 p
op

ula
tio

n 
fe

ll 
by

 0
.0

2 
pe

rc
en

t i
n 

20
17

 
an

d 
0.

13
 p

er
ce

nt
 in

 2
01

8.
 

Th
e 

C
ali

fo
rn

ia
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
of

 F
ina

nc
e 

no
te

d 
th

at
 th

e 
de

cli
ne

 i
n 

po
pu

lat
io

n 
ca

n 
be

 lin
ke

d 
in 

pa
rt 

to
 

a 
de

cli
ne

 i
n 

bi
rth

ra
te

. 
Re

se
ar

ch
er

s 
at

 th
e 

U
niv

er
si

ty
 o

f 
So

ut
he

rn
 C

ali
fo

rn
ia

 L
us

k 
C

en
te

r 
fo

r 
Re

al
 

Es
ta

te
 a

lso
 s

ug
ge

st 
th

at
 o

ne
 o

f t
he

 b
igg

es
t 

re
as

on
s 

be
hin

d 
Lo

s 
A

ng
ele

s 
C

ou
nt

y’
s 

gr
ow

th
 r

at
e 

sli
p 

is 
du

e 
th

e 
lac

k 
of

 h
ou

sin
g.

 D
es

pi
te

 t
he

 c
ity

 o
f 

Lo
s 

A
ng

ele
s 

ad
di

ng
 b

et
w

ee
n 

15
,0

00
 a

nd
 1

7,
00

0 
un

its
 o

f h
ou

sin
g 

ea
ch

 y
ea

r 
fro

m
 2

01
4 

to
 2

01
8,

 h
ou

sin
g 

ha
s 

be
co

m
e 

pr
oh

ib
iti

ve
ly

 
un

af
fo

rd
ab

le
, 

w
hic

h 
ha

s 
led

 m
an

y 
yo

un
g 

Lo
s 

A
ng

ele
s 

C
ou

nt
y 

re
sid

en
ts 

to
 m

ov
e 

ou
t-o

f-s
ta

te
 o

r p
ut

 d
ow

n 
ro

ot
s 

in 
ne

ar
by

 In
lan

d 
Em

pi
re

 c
ou

nt
ies

, 
w

he
re

 th
ou

sa
nd

s 
of

 n
ew

 jo
bs

 in
 d

ist
rib

ut
io

n 
hu

bs
 a

nd
 fu

lfi
llm

en
t 

ce
nt

er
s 

ha
ve

 f
ue

led
 m

or
e 

af
fo

rd
ab

le 
ho

us
in

g 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 
 

Fo
r t

he
 2

01
9 

A
H

M
P,

 p
op

ula
tio

n 
an

d 
re

sid
en

tia
l 

bu
ild

in
gs

 a
re

 n
ot

 in
clu

de
d 

in 
th

e 
ris

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t. 
A

s 
20

20
 U

.S
. C

en
su

s 
da

ta
 b

ec
om

e 
av

ail
ab

le,
 t

his
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
m

ay
 b

e 
inc

lud
ed

 i
n 

pl
an

 u
pd

at
es

.  

3.
3 

V
U

L
N

E
R

A
B

L
E

 P
O

PU
L

A
T

IO
N

S 
A

s 
no

te
d 

by
 th

e 
C

en
te

r f
or

 D
ise

as
e 

C
on

tro
l (

C
D

C
), 

“E
ve

ry
on

e 
m

us
t 

re
m

ain
 s

af
e 

in 
an

 e
m

er
ge

nc
y.

 
Bu

t 
fo

r 
so

m
e,

 i
t’s

 m
or

e 
di

ffi
cu

lt.
” 

V
uln

er
ab

le
 

or
 a

t-r
isk

 g
ro

up
s 

inc
lud

e 
pe

op
le 

th
at

 m
ay

 h
av

e 
di

ffi
cu

lty
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
in

g 
or

 a
cc

es
sin

g 
m

ed
ica

l 
ca

re
, n

ee
d 

he
lp

 m
ain

ta
in

in
g 

ind
ep

en
de

nc
e,

 r
eq

ui
re

 
su

pe
rv

isi
on

, 
an

d 
ne

ed
 h

elp
 a

cc
es

sin
g 

tra
ns

po
rta

tio
n.

  

Fo
r t

he
 2

01
9 

A
H

M
P,

 v
uln

er
ab

le 
po

pu
lat

io
n 

gr
ou

ps
 a

dd
re

ss
ed

 in
 th

e 
ris

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
inc

lud
e 

pe
op

le
 

ex
pe

rie
nc

in
g 

ho
m

ele
ss

ne
ss

. 
Pe

op
le 

ex
pe

rie
nc

in
g 

ho
m

ele
ss

ne
ss

 h
av

e 
be

co
m

e 
a 

re
gio

na
l 

cr
isi

s 
as

 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 th
is 

vu
lne

ra
bl

e 
po

pu
lat

io
n 

gr
ou

p 
ha

s 
ris

en
 t

o 
ne

ar
ly 

60
,0

00
 in

 L
os

 A
ng

ele
s 

C
ou

nt
y 

alo
ne

. 
Ta

bl
e 

3-
7 

an
d 

Fi
gu

re
s 

3-
7 

an
d 

3-
8 

sh
ow

 t
he

 t
ot

al 
po

int
-in

-t
im

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 p
eo

pl
e 

ex
pe

rie
nc

in
g 

ho
m

ele
ss

ne
ss

 i
n 

th
e 

cit
y 

of
 L

os
 A

ng
ele

s 
an

d 
U

nin
co

rp
or

at
ed

 L
os

 A
ng

ele
s 

C
ou

nt
y,

 
as

 c
ap

tu
re

d 
fo

r 
th

e 
20

19
 G

re
at

er
 L

os
 A

ng
ele

s 
H

om
ele

ss
 C

ou
nt

.  

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
se

ve
ra

l o
th

er
 v

uln
er

ab
le 

gr
ou

ps
 a

t-r
isk

 to
 h

az
ar

ds
 in

 L
os

 A
ng

ele
s 

C
ou

nt
y;

 f
ut

ur
e 

up
da

te
s 

of
 

th
e 

A
H

M
P 

w
ill 

ex
pa

nd
 

vu
lne

ra
bl

e 
po

pu
lat

io
n 

ca
te

go
rie

s 
as

 
th

e 
20

20
 

U
.S

. 
C

en
su

s 
so

cio
ec

on
om

ic 
sta

tu
s, 

ho
us

eh
ol

d 
co

m
po

sit
io

n 
an

d 
di

sa
bi

lit
y,

 
m

ino
rit

y 
sta

tu
s 

an
d 

lan
gu

ag
e,

 a
nd

 
ho

us
in

g 
an

d 
tra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
da

te
 b

ec
om

es
 a

va
ila

bl
e.

 

Ta
bl

e 
3-

7.
 P

eo
pl

e 
Ex

pe
rie

nc
in

g 
H

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

En
tit

y 
To

ta
l 

# 
of

 P
eo

pl
e 

Ex
pe

ri
en

ci
ng

 H
om

el
es

sn
es

s 
(S

he
lte

re
d 

an
d 

Un
sh

el
te

re
d)

 

Ci
ty

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

32
,9

31
 

U
ni

nc
or

po
ra

te
d 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

5,
88

1 

 

Lo
s A

ng
ele

s

40
5

5

21
0

11
0

71
0

10
5

10

60
5

11
8

13
4

91

1

2

60

19

11
0

27

17
0

21
3

10
7

42

10
3

90

47

14

22

2

2

2

91

90

10
1

20
19

 Lo
s A

ng
ele

s C
ou

nty
 

All
-H

az
ard

s M
itig

ati
on

 Pl
an

Le
ge

nd
Ho

me
les

s P
op

ula
tio

n C
ou

nt 
-

Ci
ty 

of 
Lo

s A
ng

ele
s

1
-2

5

2
6
-1

0
0

1
0
0

-1
0
0

0

1
0
0

0
+

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
F

o
re

s
t

0
5

2
.5

M
ile

s

Pe
op

le 
Ex

pe
rie

nc
ing

 H
om

ele
ss

ne
ss

 
in 

th
e C

ity
 of

 Lo
s A

ng
ele

s
Fig

ur
e 3

-7

V 
e n

 t u
 r 

a
C 

o u
 n 

t y P a
 c 

i f 
i c

   O
 c 

e a
 n

So
ur

ce
L
o

s
 A

n
g
e

le
s
 C

o
u
n
ty

H
o
m

e
le

s
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
, 

2
0
1
9

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Lo
s A

ng
ele

s

40
5

21
0

5

10

60
5

11
0

71
0

10
5

14
13

8

60

39

91

11
8

13
4

1

2

19

11
0

21
0

57

27

72

17
0

21
3

12
6

66

23

10
7

18

42

10
3

90

47

71

22

2

39
2

2

39

91

90

10
1

20
19

 Lo
s A

ng
ele

s C
ou

nty
 

All
-H

az
ard

s M
itig

ati
on

 Pl
an

Le
ge

nd
Ho

me
les

s P
op

ula
tio

n C
ou

nt 
-

Un
inc

or
po

rat
ed

 Lo
s A

ng
ele

s C
ou

nty
1
-2

5

2
6

-1
0

0

1
0

0
+

0
5

1
0

1
5

2
.5

M
ile

s

Pe
op

le 
Ex

pe
rie

nc
ing

 H
om

ele
ss

ne
ss

 in
 

Un
inc

or
po

rat
ed

 Lo
s A

ng
ele

s C
ou

nty
Fig

ur
e 3

-8

V 
e n

 t u
 r 

a
C 

o u
 n 

t y

O 
r a

 n 
g e

C 
o u

 n 
t y

S a n  B e r n a r d i n o
C o u n t y

K 
e r

 n 
 C

 o 
u n

 t y

P a
 c 

i f 
i c

   O
 c 

e a
 n

So
ur

ce
L
o

s
 A

n
g
e

le
s
 C

o
u
n
ty

H
o
m

e
le

s
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
, 

2
0
1
9

CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

3-
17

 

3.
4 

C
R

IT
IC

A
L

 F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S 
A

 c
rit

ica
l 

fa
cil

ity
 p

ro
vid

es
 s

er
vic

es
 a

nd
 fu

nc
tio

ns
 e

ss
en

tia
l 

to
 a

 c
om

m
un

ity
, 

es
pe

cia
lly

 d
ur

ing
 a

nd
 

af
te

r 
a 

di
sa

ste
r. 

C
om

m
on

 t
yp

es
 o

f c
rit

ica
l 

fa
cil

iti
es

 i
nc

lud
e:

 f
ire

 s
ta

tio
ns

, 
po

lic
e 

sta
tio

ns
, 

ho
sp

ita
ls

, 
sc

ho
ol

s, 
w

at
er

 a
nd

 w
as

te
 w

at
er

 s
ys

te
m

s, 
an

d 
ut

ilit
ie

s. 
C

rit
ica

l 
fa

cil
iti

es
 m

ay
 a

lso
 in

clu
de

 p
lac

es
 

th
at

 c
an

 b
e 

us
ed

 f
or

 s
he

lte
rin

g 
or

 s
ta

gin
g 

pu
rp

os
es

, 
su

ch
 a

s 
co

m
m

un
ity

 
ce

nt
er

s 
an

d 
lib

ra
rie

s.
 

C
rit

ica
l 

fa
cil

iti
es

 m
ay

 a
lso

 in
clu

de
 l

ar
ge

 p
ub

lic
 g

at
he

rin
g 

sp
ot

s. 
Lo

s 
A

ng
ele

s 
C

ou
nt

y 
do

es
 n

ot
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 m
ain

ta
in

 a
 c

en
tra

liz
ed

 c
rit

ica
l 

fa
cil

iti
es

 d
at

ab
as

e.
 F

or
 th

e 
20

19
 A

H
M

P,
 9

15
 m

aj
or

 c
ou

nt
y-

ow
ne

d 
an

d 
co

un
ty

-r
ela

te
d 

cr
itic

al
 f

ac
ili

tie
s 

w
er

e 
co

lle
ct

ed
 f

ro
m

 
va

rio
us

 
co

un
ty

 
de

pa
rtm

en
t 

an
d 

ag
en

cie
s 

an
d 

als
o 

fro
m

 
th

e 
U

.S
. 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 H

om
el

an
d 

Se
cu

rit
y’

s 
(D

H
S)

 H
om

ela
nd

 I
nf

ra
str

uc
tu

re
-F

ou
nd

at
io

n-
Le

ve
l 

D
at

a 
sit

e.
 C

rit
ica

l 
fa

cil
ity

 n
am

es
 a

nd
 

ad
dr

es
se

s 
w

er
e 

th
en

 g
eo

co
de

d 
to

 a
 lo

ca
tio

n 
an

d 
th

e 
re

su
lti

ng
 g

eo
gr

ap
hic

 f
ea

tu
re

s 
w

er
e 

us
ed

 fo
r t

he
 

ris
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
t. 

Th
e 

re
su

lts
 o

f t
his

 p
ro

ce
ss

 a
re

 sh
ow

n 
in 

Ta
bl

e 
3-

8 
an

d 
Fi

gu
re

 3
-9

 th
ro

ug
h 

Fi
gu

re
 

3-
19

. F
ac

ilit
y-

sp
ec

ifi
c 

inf
or

m
at

io
n 

is 
pr

ov
id

ed
 i

n 
A

pp
en

di
x 

B
. S

om
e 

de
pa

rtm
en

ts 
an

d 
ag

en
ci

es
 

ha
ve

 m
ult

ip
le

 f
ac

ilit
ie

s 
at

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
lo

ca
tio

n;
 h

en
ce

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
du

pl
ica

tio
ns

 o
f f

ac
ilit

y 
sit

es
. 

 

Th
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

ho
pe

s 
to

 im
pl

em
en

t 
a 

co
or

di
na

te
d 

da
ta

 c
ol

lec
tio

n 
an

d 
da

ta
ba

se
 s

ys
te

m
 f

or
 c

rit
ic

al
 

fa
cil

iti
es

; 
as

 su
ch

, f
ut

ur
e 

up
da

te
s 

to
 th

is 
pl

an
 w

ill 
lik

el
y 

inc
lud

e 
an

 e
xp

an
de

d 
cr

itic
al

 f
ac

ilit
ie

s 
lis

t. 
 

Ta
bl

e 
3-

8.
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y-
O

w
ne

d 
an

d 
C

ou
nt

y-
R

el
at

ed
 C

rit
ic

al
 F

ac
ili

tie
s 

 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

/ A
ge

nc
y 

# 
of

 F
ac

ili
tie

s 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

A
ni

m
al

 C
ar

e 
&

 C
on

tro
l 

7 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

33
7*

 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

H
ea

lth
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

29
 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Li
br

ar
y 

85
 

LA
CM

A
 &

 N
H

M
 

4 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

O
ffi

ce
 o

f E
du

ca
tio

n 
37

 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

- O
th

er
 (o

ffi
ce

s)
 

24
 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Pa
rk

s 
&

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

11
7 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Pu
bl

ic
 H

ea
lth

 
14

 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
23

0 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Sh
er

iff
’s

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

31
 

N
ot

e:
 T

he
 fi

re
 s

ta
tio

ns
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

fo
r t

hi
s p

la
n 

in
cl

ud
e 

th
os

e l
oc

at
ed

 w
ith

in
 th

e 5
9 

ci
tie

s 
an

d 
al

l t
he

 u
ni

nc
or

po
ra

te
d 

ar
ea

s 
th

at
 th

e 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t s
er

ve
s.

  
 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



40
5

21
0

5

10

60
5

11
0

71
0

10
5

14
13

8

60

39

91

11
8

13
4

1

2

19

11
0

21
0

57

27

72

17
0

21
3

12
6

66

23

10
7

18

42

10
3

90

47

71

22

2

39
2

2

39

91

90

10
1

20
19

 Lo
s A

ng
ele

s C
ou

nty
 

All
-H

az
ard

s M
itig

ati
on

 Pl
an

Le
ge

nd A
n

im
a

l 
S

h
e
lt
e
r

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
F

o
re

s
t

0
5

1
0

1
5

2
.5

M
ile

s

Lo
s A

ng
ele

s C
ou

nty
 A

nim
al 

Ca
re 

& 
Co

ntr
ol

Fig
ur

e 3
-9

V 
e n

 t u
 r 

a
C 

o u
 n 

t y

O 
r a

 n 
g e

C 
o u

 n 
t y

S a n  B e r n a r d i n o
C o u n t y

K 
e r

 n 
 C

 o 
u n

 t y

P a
 c 

i f 
i c

   O
 c 

e a
 n

So
ur

ce
L
o

s
 A

n
g
e

le
s
 C

o
u
n
ty

A
n

im
a

l 
C

a
re

 a
n

d
 C

o
n
tr

o
l,
 2

0
1
9

40
5

21
0

10

11
0

10
5

14
13

8

39

91

11
8

13
4

1

2

19

57

27

17
0

21
3

12
6

6618

10
3

47

39

10
1

20
19

 Lo
s A

ng
ele

s C
ou

nty
 

All
-H

az
ard

s M
itig

ati
on

 Pl
an

Le
ge

nd F
ir

e
 S

ta
ti
o

n

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
F

o
re

s
t

0
5

1
0

1
5

2
.5

M
ile

s

Lo
s A

ng
ele

s C
ou

nty
 Fi

re 
De

pa
rtm

en
t

Fig
ur

e 3
-10

V 
e n

 t u
 r 

a
C 

o u
 n 

t y

O 
r a

 n 
g e

C 
o u

 n 
t y

S a n  B e r n a r d i n o
C o u n t y

K 
e r

 n 
 C

 o 
u n

 t y

P a
 c 

i f 
i c

   O
 c 

e a
 n

So
ur

ce
H

o
m

e
la

n
d

 I
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re

F
o

u
n
d

a
ti
o

n
-L

e
v
e
l 
D

a
ta

, 
2
0
1
9

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Lo
s A

ng
ele

s

40
5

21
0

5

10

60
5

11
0

71
0

10
5

14
13

8

60

39

91

11
8

13
4

1

2

19

11
0

21
0

57

27

17
0

21
3

12
6

66

23

10
7

18

42

10
3

90

47

71

22

39
2

2

39

91

2

10
1

20
19

 Lo
s A

ng
ele

s C
ou

nty
 

All
-H

az
ard

s M
itig

ati
on

 Pl
an

Le
ge

nd H
o

s
p

it
a
l 
a

n
d

 C
lin

ic

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
F

o
re

s
t

0
5

1
0

1
5

2
.5

M
ile

s

Lo
s A

ng
ele

s C
ou

nty
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f H

ea
lth

 Se
rvi

ce
s

Fig
ur

e 3
-11

V 
e n

 t u
 r 

a
C 

o u
 n 

t y

O 
r a

 n 
g e

C 
o u

 n 
t y

S a n  B e r n a r d i n o
C o u n t y

K 
e r

 n 
 C

 o 
u n

 t y

P a
 c 

i f 
i c

   O
 c 

e a
 n

So
ur

ce
L
o

s
 A

n
g
e

le
s
 C

o
u

n
ty

 D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

H
u

m
a

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

2
0
1
9

Lo
s A

ng
ele

s

40
5

21
0

5

10

60
5

11
0

10
5

14
13

8

60

39

91

11
8

13
4

1

2

19

11
0

21
0

57

27

72

17
0

21
3

12
6

23

10
7

18

42

10
3

90

47

71

22

2

39

2

39

10
1

20
19

 Lo
s A

ng
ele

s C
ou

nty
 

All
-H

az
ard

s M
itig

ati
on

 Pl
an

Le
ge

nd L
ib

ra
ry

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
F

o
re

s
t

0
5

1
0

1
5

2
.5

M
ile

s

Lo
s A

ng
ele

s C
ou

nty
 Li

br
ary

Fig
ur

e 3
-12

V 
e n

 t u
 r 

a
C 

o u
 n 

t y

O 
r a

 n 
g e

C 
o u

 n 
t y

S a n  B e r n a r d i n o
C o u n t y

K 
e r

 n 
 C

 o 
u n

 t y

P a
 c 

i f 
i c

   O
 c 

e a
 n

So
ur

ce
L
o

s
 A

n
g
e

le
s
 C

o
u
n
ty

 

L
ib

ra
ry

, 
2
0
1
9

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Lo
s A

ng
ele

s

40
5

21
0

5

10

60
5

11
0

71
0

10
5

14
13

8

60

39

91

11
8

13
4

1

2

19

11
0

21
0

57

27

72

17
0

21
3

12
6

66

23

10
7

18

42

10
3

90

47

71

22

2

39
2

2

39

91

90

10
1

20
19

 Lo
s A

ng
ele

s C
ou

nty
 

All
-H

az
ard

s M
itig

ati
on

 Pl
an

Le
ge

nd M
u

s
e

u
m

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
F

o
re

s
t

0
5

1
0

1
5

2
.5

M
ile

s

Lo
s A

ng
ele

s C
ou

nty
 M

us
eu

m 
of 

Ar
t 

an
d M

us
eu

m 
of

 N
atu

ral
 H

ist
or

y
Fig

ur
e 3

-13

V 
e n

 t u
 r 

a
C 

o u
 n 

t y

O 
r a

 n 
g e

C 
o u

 n 
t y

S a n  B e r n a r d i n o
C o u n t y

K 
e r

 n 
 C

 o 
u n

 t y

P a
 c 

i f 
i c

   O
 c 

e a
 n

So
ur

ce
L
o

s
 A

n
g
e

le
s
 C

o
u

n
ty

 M
u
s
e
u
m

 o
f 

A
rt

a
n

d
 M

u
s
e

u
m

 o
f 

N
a

tu
ra

l 
H

is
to

ry
, 

2
0
1
9

Lo
s A

ng
ele

s

40
5

10

60
5

11
0

71
0

10
5

14
13

8

60

39

91

11
8

13
4

1

2

19

11
0

21
0

57

27

72

17
0

21
3

12
6

66

23

10
7

18

42

10
3

90

47

71

22

2

39

2

39

90

10
1

20
19

 Lo
s A

ng
ele

s C
ou

nty
 

All
-H

az
ard

s M
itig

ati
on

 Pl
an

Le
ge

nd S
c
h

o
o
l

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
F

o
re

s
t

0
5

1
0

1
5

2
.5

M
ile

s

Lo
s A

ng
ele

s C
ou

nty
 O

ffic
e o

f E
du

ca
tio

n
Fig

ur
e 3

-14

V 
e n

 t u
 r 

a
C 

o u
 n 

t y

O 
r a

 n 
g e

C 
o u

 n 
t y

S a n  B e r n a r d i n o
C o u n t y

K 
e r

 n 
 C

 o 
u n

 t y

P a
 c 

i f 
i c

   O
 c 

e a
 n

So
ur

ce
L
o

s
 A

n
g
e

le
s
 C

o
u
n
ty

 

O
ff
ic

e
 o

f 
E

d
u

c
a
ti
o
n
, 

2
0
1
9

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Lo
s A

ng
ele

s

40
5

21
0

5

10

60
5

11
0

71
0

10
5

14
13

8

60

39

91

11
8

13
4

1

2

19

11
0

21
0

57

27

72

17
0

21
3

12
6

66

23

10
7

18

42

10
3

90

47

71

22

2

39
2

2

39

91

10
1

20
19

 Lo
s A

ng
ele

s C
ou

nty
 

All
-H

az
ard

s M
itig

ati
on

 Pl
an

Le
ge

nd O
ff
ic

e

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l

0
5

1
0

1
5

2
.5

M
ile

s

Lo
s A

ng
ele

s C
ou

nty
 

Ot
he

r (
Ex

ec
uti

ve
/Ad

mi
nis

tra
tio

n)
Fig

ur
e 3

-15

V 
e n

 t u
 r 

a
C 

o u
 n 

t y

O 
r a

 n 
g e

C 
o u

 n 
t y

S a n  B e r n a r d i n o
C o u n t y

K 
e r

 n 
 C

 o 
u n

 t y

P a
 c 

i f 
i c

   O
 c 

e a
 n

So
ur

ce
la

c
o

u
n
ty

.g
o
v
, 

2
0
1
9

Lo
s A

ng
ele

s

40
5

21
0

5

1060
5

11
0

71
0

10
5

14

13
8

60

39

91

11
8

13
4

1

2

19

11
0

21
0

57

27

17
0

21
3

12
6

66

23

10
7

18

42

10
3

90

47

71

22

2

39
2

2

39

91

90

10
1

20
19

 Lo
s A

ng
ele

s C
ou

nty
 

All
-H

az
ard

s M
itig

ati
on

 Pl
an

Le
ge

nd A
m

p
it
h
e

a
tr

e

A
u

d
it
o
ri
u

m

C
o

m
m

u
n
it
y 

C
e
n

te
r

G
y
m

n
a
s
iu

m

In
d

o
o

r 
T

h
e

a
te

r

S
e

n
io

r 
C

e
n

te
r

T
e

e
n
 C

e
n

te
r

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
F

o
re

s
t

0
5

1
0

1
5

2
.5

M
ile

s

Lo
s A

ng
ele

s C
ou

nty
 P

ar
ks

 &
 R

ec
rea

tio
n

Fig
ur

e 3
-16

V 
e n

 t u
 r 

a
C 

o u
 n 

t y

O 
r a

 n 
g e

C 
o u

 n 
t y

S a n  B e r n a r d i n o
C o u n t y

K 
e r

 n 
 C

 o 
u n

 t y

P a
 c 

i f 
i c

   O
 c 

e a
 n

So
ur

ce
L
o

s
 A

n
g
e

le
s
 C

o
u
n
ty

 

P
a

rk
s
 a

n
d

 R
e

c
re

a
ti
o
n
, 

2
0
1
9

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



40
5

21
0

5

10

60
5

11
0

71
0

10
5

14
13

8

60

39

91

11
8

13
4

1

2

19

11
0

21
0

57

27

72

17
0

21
3

12
6

66

23

10
7

18

42

10
3

90

47

71

22

2

39
2

2

39

91

10
1

Lo
s A

ng
ele

s

20
19

 Lo
s A

ng
ele

s C
ou

nty
 

All
-H

az
ard

s M
itig

ati
on

 Pl
an

Le
ge

nd C
lin

ic

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
F

o
re

s
t

0
5

1
0

1
5

2
.5

M
ile

s

De
pa

rtm
en

t o
f P

ub
lic

 H
ea

lth
Fig

ur
e 3

-17

V 
e n

 t u
 r 

a
C 

o u
 n 

t y

O 
r a

 n 
g e

C 
o u

 n 
t y

S a n  B e r n a r d i n o
C o u n t y

K 
e r

 n 
 C

 o 
u n

 t y

P a
 c 

i f 
i c

   O
 c 

e a
 n

So
ur

ce
L
o

s
 A

n
g
e

le
s
 C

o
u
n
ty

 

D
e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

o
f 
P

u
b

lic
 H

e
a
lt
h
, 

2
0
1
9

Lo
s A

ng
ele

s

40
5

21
0

5

10

60
5

11
0

10
5

14
13

8

60

39

91

11
8

13
4

1

2

19

11
0

21
0

57

27
17

0

21
3

12
6

66

23

10
7

18

42

90

47

71
2

39

2

10
1

20
19

 Lo
s A

ng
ele

s C
ou

nty
 

All
-H

az
ard

s M
itig

ati
on

 Pl
an

Le
ge

nd C
o

m
m

u
n
ic

a
ti
o

n
s

D
ri

n
k
in

g
 W

e
ll 

w
a

te
r

M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

/O
p
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

P
u

m
p

 S
ta

ti
o

n

S
to

rm
w

a
te

r 
P

u
m

p
in

g

T
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
P

la
n

t

Y
a

rd

W
a

te
r 

T
a

n
k
/W

a
te

r 
T

a
n

k
 p

u
m

p

s
ta

ti
o

n

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
F

o
re

s
t

0
5

1
0

1
5

2
.5

M
ile

s

Lo
s A

ng
ele

s C
ou

nty
 Pu

bli
c W

or
ks

Fig
ur

e 3
-18

V 
e n

 t u
 r 

a
C 

o u
 n 

t y

O 
r a

 n 
g e

C 
o u

 n 
t y

S a n  B e r n a r d i n o
C o u n t y

K 
e r

 n 
 C

 o 
u n

 t y

P a
 c 

i f 
i c

   O
 c 

e a
 n

So
ur

ce
L
o

s
 A

n
g
e

le
s
 C

o
u
n
ty

 

D
e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

o
f 
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s
, 

2
0
1
9

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Lo
s A
ng
ele
s

40
5

21
0

5

10

60
5

11
0

71
0

10
5

14
13
8

60

39

91

11
8

13
4

1

2

19

11
0

21
0

57

27

72

17
0

21
3

12
6

66

23

10
7

18

42

10
3

90

47

71

22

2

39
2

2

39

91

10
1

20
19

 Lo
s A

ng
ele

s C
ou

nty
 

All
-H

az
ard

s M
itig

ati
on

 Pl
an

Le
ge

nd C
o

rr
e

c
ti
o
n

 F
a

c
ili

ty

P
a

tr
o

l 
S

ta
ti
o

n

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
F

o
re

s
t

0
5

1
0

1
5

2
.5

M
ile

s

Lo
s A
ng
ele
s C
ou
nty
 S
he
rif
f’s
 D
ep
art
me
nt

Fig
ur
e 3
-19

V 
e n

 t u
 r 

a
C 

o u
 n 

t y

O 
r a

 n 
g e

C 
o u

 n 
t y

S a n  B e r n a r d i n o
C o u n t y

K 
e r

 n 
 C

 o 
u n

 t y

P a
 c 

i f 
i c

   O
 c 

e a
 n

So
ur
ce

L
o

s
 A

n
g
e

le
s
 C

o
u
n
ty

 

S
h

e
ri
ff
's

 D
e

p
a
rt

m
e
n
t,

 2
0
1
9

CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

4-
1 

4 
H

A
ZA

R
D

 I
D

E
N

T
IF

IC
A

T
IO

N
 A

N
D

 R
IS

K
 A

SS
E

SS
M

EN
T 

Se
ct

io
n 

4 
– 

H
az

ar
d 

Id
en

tif
ica

tio
n 

an
d 

Ri
sk

 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
ad

dr
es

se
s 

El
em

en
t 

B 
of

 t
he

 L
oc

al
 

M
itig

at
io

n 
Pl

an
 R

eg
ula

tio
n 

C
he

ck
lis

t. 

R
eg

ul
at

io
n 

C
he

ck
lis

t –
 4

4 
C

FR
 2

01
.6

 L
oc

al
 M

iti
ga

tio
n 

Pl
an

s 

El
em

en
t 

B
: H

az
ar

d 
Id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

an
d 

R
is

k 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t 

B1
. D

oe
s 

th
e 

Pl
an

 in
cl

ud
e 

a 
de

sc
rip

tio
n 

of
 th

e t
yp

e,
 lo

ca
tio

n,
 a

nd
 e

xt
en

t o
f a

ll 
na

tu
ra

l h
az

ar
ds

 th
at

 ca
n 

af
fe

ct
 e

ac
h 

ju
ris

di
ct

io
n(

s)
? 

(R
eq

ui
re

m
en

t 
§ 

20
1.

6(
c)

(2
)(

ii)
) 

B2
. D

oe
s 

th
e 

Pl
an

 in
cl

ud
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

oc
cu

rre
nc

es
 o

f h
az

ar
d 

ev
en

ts
 an

d 
on

 th
e p

ro
ba

bi
lit

y 
of

 fu
tu

re
 

ha
za

rd
 e

ve
nt

s f
or

 e
ac

h 
ju

ris
di

ct
io

n?
 (R

eq
ui

re
m

en
t 

§ 
20

1.
6(

c)
(2

)(
i))

 
B3

. I
s 

th
er

e 
a 

de
sc

rip
tio

n 
of

 e
ac

h 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

ha
za

rd
’s

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e c
om

m
un

ity
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s a
n 

ov
er

al
l s

um
m

ar
y 

of
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

’s
 v

ul
ne

ra
bi

lit
y 

fo
r e

ac
h 

ju
ris

di
ct

io
n?

 (R
eq

ui
re

m
en

t 
§2

01
.6

(c
)(2

)(
ii)

) 
B4

. D
oe

s 
th

e 
Pl

an
 a

dd
re

ss
 N

FI
P 

in
su

re
d 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

ju
ris

di
ct

io
n 

th
at

 h
av

e b
ee

n 
re

pe
tit

iv
el

y 
da

m
ag

ed
 b

y 
flo

od
s?

 (R
eq

ui
re

m
en

t 
§2

01
.6

(c
)(2

)(
ii)

) 

Fo
r t

he
 2

01
9 

A
H

M
P,

 th
e 

A
H

M
P 

pr
oj

ec
t m

an
ag

er
 a

nd
 c

on
su

lta
nt

 r
ev

isi
te

d 
th

e 
ha

za
rd

s 
ad

dr
es

se
d 

in 
th

e 
20

14
 A

H
M

P.
 It

 w
as

 d
et

er
m

ine
d 

th
at

 th
e 

pr
im

ar
y 

fo
cu

s 
of

 th
e 

20
19

 A
H

M
P 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
na

tu
ra

l 
ha

za
rd

s 
an

d 
se

co
nd

ar
y 

ha
za

rd
s, 

as
 a

 r
es

ult
 o

f 
a 

na
tu

ra
l 

ha
za

rd
. 

In
 a

dd
itio

n,
 i

t 
w

as
 d

ec
id

ed
 t

ha
t 

cli
m

at
e 

ch
an

ge
 s

ho
uld

 b
e 

inc
lud

ed
 i

n 
th

e 
pl

an
, a

s i
nc

re
as

in
g 

su
rfa

ce
 t

em
pe

ra
tu

re
s 

w
ill 

lik
ely

 r
es

ul
t 

in 
m

or
e 

dr
ou

gh
ts 

an
d 

su
bs

eq
ue

nt
ly

 t
he

 r
isk

 o
f w

ild
fir

es
. 

Th
er

ef
or

e,
 c

lim
at

e 
ch

an
ge

, 
da

m
 f

ail
ur

e,
 

dr
ou

gh
t, 

ea
rth

qu
ak

e,
 f

lo
od

, 
lan

ds
lid

e,
 t

su
na

m
i, 

an
d 

w
ild

fir
e 

ar
e 

pr
of

ile
d 

in 
th

e 
20

19
 A

H
M

P.
 

H
az

ar
d 

id
en

tif
ica

tio
n 

co
ns

ist
s 

of
 d

es
cr

ib
in

g 
th

e 
na

tu
re

 o
f 

th
e 

ha
za

rd
, 

di
sa

ste
r 

his
to

ry
, 

lo
ca

tio
n,

 
ex

te
nt

/se
ve

rit
y,

 
an

d 
pr

ob
ab

ilit
y 

of
 

fu
tu

re
 

ev
en

ts.
 

H
az

ar
d 

id
en

tif
ica

tio
n 

pr
of

ile
s 

ha
ve

 
be

en
 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
fo

r e
ac

h 
of

 th
e 

eig
ht

 h
az

ar
ds

 a
dd

re
ss

ed
 in

 S
ec

tio
n 

4.
1 

th
ro

ug
h 

Se
ct

io
n 

4.
8.

 A
dd

itio
na

ll
y,

 
im

pa
ct

 (
i.e

., 
ris

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t) 
ta

bl
es

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

re
at

ed
 fo

r 
ea

ch
 h

az
ar

d.
 Q

ua
nt

ita
tiv

e 
im

pa
ct

 t
ab

le
s 

w
er

e 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 u

sin
g 

G
IS

 a
na

lys
is 

fo
r 

cli
m

at
e 

ch
an

ge
 (

se
a 

lev
el 

ris
e)

, 
da

m
 f

ail
ur

e,
 

ea
rth

qu
ak

e,
 

flo
od

, 
lan

ds
lid

e,
 t

su
na

m
i, 

an
d 

w
ild

fir
e,

 w
hil

e 
a 

qu
ali

ta
tiv

e 
im

pa
ct

 t
ab

le 
w

as
 p

re
pa

re
d 

fo
r 

dr
ou

gh
t. 

Im
pa

ct
s 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 

inc
lud

e:
 

lan
d 

ar
ea

, 
vu

lne
ra

bl
e 

po
pu

lat
io

ns
 

an
d 

cr
itic

al
 

fa
cil

iti
es

. 
O

ve
ra

ll 
su

m
m

ar
y 

de
sc

rip
tio

ns
 h

av
e 

be
en

 d
ev

elo
pe

d 
as

 w
ell

. N
FI

P 
ins

ur
ed

 s
tru

ct
ur

es
 a

re
 d

isc
us

se
d 

in 
Ta

bl
e 

4-
23

. 
A

pp
en

di
x 

C
 c

on
ta

ins
 

un
inc

or
po

ra
te

d 
ar

ea
-s

pe
cif

ic 
an

d 
cr

itic
al 

fa
cil

ity
-s

pe
ci

fic
 

im
pa

ct
 

ta
bl

es
.  

A
cc

or
di

ng
 

to
 

th
e 

C
om

pr
eh

en
siv

e 
Pr

ep
ar

ed
ne

ss
 

G
ui

de
 

(C
PG

) 
20

1:
 

Th
re

at
 

an
d 

H
az

ar
d 

Id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
an

d 
Ri

sk
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t G
ui

de
—

Se
co

nd
 E

di
tio

n 
(C

PG
 2

01
) d

ro
ug

ht
, 

ea
rth

qu
ak

e,
 f

lo
od

, 
lan

ds
lid

e,
 t

su
na

m
i, 

an
d 

w
ild

fir
e 

ar
e 

cla
ss

ifi
ed

 n
at

ur
al 

ha
za

rd
s, 

w
hil

e 
da

m
 fa

ilu
re

 i
s 

cla
ss

ifi
ed

 a
s a

 
te

ch
no

lo
gi

ca
l 

ha
za

rd
 (

bu
t i

s 
of

te
n 

a 
se

co
nd

ar
y 

ha
za

rd
 o

f o
th

er
 n

at
ur

al 
ha

za
rd

s)
. 

C
PG

 2
01

 d
oe

s n
ot

 
cla

ss
ify

 c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
. 

A
s s

uc
h,

 th
e 

ha
za

rd
s 

pr
of

ile
d 

fo
r t

his
 A

H
M

P 
ar

e 
di

sc
us

se
d 

in 
alp

ha
be

tic
al

 
or

de
r a

nd
 n

ot
 b

y 
C

PG
 2

01
 c

las
sif

ica
tio

n.
 T

he
 o

rd
er

 d
oe

s n
ot

 s
ig

ni
fy

 le
ve

l o
f r

is
k.

 
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

4-
2 

4.
1 

C
L

IM
A

T
E

 C
H

A
N

G
E

 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

1.
 C

lim
at

e 
C

ha
ng

e 
Id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

Pr
of

ile
 

Pr
of

ile
 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

N
at

ur
e 

Cl
im

at
e 

ch
an

ge
 is

 d
ef

in
ed

 a
s 

th
e a

ve
ra

ge
 s

ta
tis

tic
s o

f w
ea

th
er

, w
hi

ch
 in

cl
ud

es
 te

m
pe

ra
tu

re
, 

pr
ec

ip
ita

tio
n,

 a
nd

 s
ea

so
na

l p
at

te
rn

s i
n 

a 
pa

rti
cu

la
r r

eg
io

n.
 C

lim
at

e 
ch

an
ge

 re
fe

rs
 to

 th
e 

lo
ng

-te
rm

 
an

d 
irr

ev
oc

ab
le

 s
hi

ft 
in

 th
es

e w
ea

th
er

-re
la

te
d 

pa
tte

rn
s,

 ei
th

er
 re

gi
on

al
ly

 o
r g

lo
ba

lly
. T

he
 E

ar
th

 a
nd

 
its

 n
at

ur
al

 e
co

sy
st

em
 ar

e 
ve

ry
 c

lo
se

ly
 ti

ed
 to

 th
e 

cl
im

at
e 

an
d 

an
y 

pe
rm

an
en

t c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
 w

ill
 

le
ad

 to
 an

 im
ba

la
nc

e 
in

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

ec
os

ys
te

m
, im

pa
ct

in
g 

th
e 

w
ay

 p
eo

pl
e 

liv
e,

 t
he

 fo
od

 th
ey

 
gr

ow
, t

he
ir 

he
al

th
, t

he
 w

ild
lif

e,
 t

he
 a

va
ila

bi
lit

y 
of

 w
at

er
, a

nd
 m

uc
h 

m
or

e.
 R

es
ea

rc
h 

in
di

ca
te

s t
ha

t 
m

uc
h 

of
 th

is
 w

ar
m

in
g 

is
 d

ue
 to

 h
um

an
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

, p
rim

ar
ily

 b
ur

ni
ng

 fo
ss

il 
fu

el
s 

an
d 

cl
ea

rin
g 

fo
re

st
s,

 th
at

 re
le

as
e 

ca
rb

on
 d

io
xid

e 
(C

O
2)

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 g

as
es

 in
to

 th
e a

tm
os

ph
er

e,
 tr

ap
pi

ng
 in

 h
ea

t 
th

at
 w

ou
ld

 o
th

er
w

is
e 

es
ca

pe
 in

to
 s

pa
ce

. O
nc

e 
in

 th
e a

tm
os

ph
er

e,
 th

es
e h

ea
t-t

ra
pp

in
g 

em
is

si
on

s 
re

m
ai

n 
th

er
e 

fo
r m

an
y 

ye
ar

s 
(fo

r e
xa

m
pl

e,
 C

O
2 

la
st

s a
bo

ut
 10

0 
ye

ar
s.

 If
 le

ft 
un

ch
ec

ke
d,

 b
y 

th
e 

en
d 

of
 th

e 
ce

nt
ur

y,
 C

O
2 

co
nc

en
tra

tio
ns

 co
ul

d 
re

ac
h 

le
ve

ls
 th

re
e 

tim
es

 h
ig

he
r t

ha
n 

pr
e-

in
du

st
ria

l 
tim

es
. 

A
cc

or
di

ng
 to

 m
os

t c
lim

at
ol

og
is

ts
, t

he
 p

la
ne

t i
s 

st
ar

tin
g 

to
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
sh

ift
s i

n 
cl

im
at

e 
pa

tte
rn

s a
nd

 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

fre
qu

en
cy

 o
f e

xt
re

m
e 

w
ea

th
er

 e
ve

nt
s a

t b
ot

h 
th

e 
gl

ob
al

 a
nd

 lo
ca

l l
ev

el
s.

 O
ve

r t
he

 n
ex

t 
ce

nt
ur

y,
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 a
tm

os
ph

er
ic

 g
re

en
ho

us
e g

as
 co

nc
en

tra
tio

ns
 ar

e e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 c
au

se
 a 

va
rie

ty
 o

f 
ch

an
ge

s t
o 

lo
ca

l c
lim

at
e 

co
nd

iti
on

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

se
a l

ev
el

 ri
se

 a
nd

 s
to

rm
 s

ur
ge

 in
 c

oa
st

al
 a

re
as

, 
re

du
ce

d 
m

ou
nt

ai
n 

sn
ow

 p
ac

k,
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

riv
er

in
e 

flo
od

in
g,

 a
nd

 m
or

e 
fre

qu
en

t, 
hi

gh
er

 te
m

pe
ra

tu
re

s 
(le

ad
in

g 
to

 e
xt

re
m

e 
he

at
 e

ve
nt

s a
nd

 w
ild

fir
es

), 
pa

rti
cu

la
rly

 in
la

nd
, d

ec
re

as
in

g 
ai

r 
qu

al
ity

, a
nd

 
ex

te
nd

ed
 p

er
io

ds
 o

f d
ro

ug
ht

.  
Th

es
e e

ffe
ct

s 
of

 c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
 ar

e 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 n
eg

at
iv

el
y 

im
pa

ct
 w

at
er

 a
nd

 el
ec

tri
ci

ty
 d

em
an

d 
an

d 
su

pp
lie

s i
n 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y.

 D
ec

re
as

in
g 

ai
r q

ua
lit

y 
an

d 
ex

tre
m

e 
he

at
 d

ay
s w

ill
 d

eg
ra

de
 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ea
lth

, a
s w

el
l 

as
 an

d 
in

cr
ea

se
 w

ild
fir

e 
ris

k.
 A

nd
 lo

w
-ly

in
g 

w
at

er
 fr

on
t a

re
as

 m
ay

 f
lo

od
 o

r 
be

 u
nd

er
w

at
er

 fr
om

 s
ea

 le
ve

l r
is

e.
  

Lo
ca

tio
n 

A
cc

or
di

ng
 to

 th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
lim

at
e 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t, 

th
e e

nt
ire

 P
ac

ifi
c 

co
as

ta
l r

eg
io

n,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y,

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
af

fe
ct

ed
 b

y 
cl

im
at

e 
ch

an
ge

.  

H
is

to
ry

 

Th
e 

hi
st

or
y 

of
 th

e 
sc

ie
nt

ifi
c 

di
sc

ov
er

y 
of

 c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
 b

eg
an

 in
 th

e 
ea

rly
 1

9t
h 

ce
nt

ur
y,

 w
he

n 
ic

e 
ag

es
 an

d 
ot

he
r n

at
ur

al
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 p
al

eo
cl

im
at

e 
w

er
e 

fir
st

 s
us

pe
ct

ed
 an

d 
th

e n
at

ur
al

 g
re

en
ho

us
e 

ef
fe

ct
 fi

rs
t i

de
nt

ifi
ed

. I
n 

th
e l

at
e 

19
th

 c
en

tu
ry

, s
ci

en
tis

ts
 fi

rs
t a

rg
ue

d 
th

at
 h

um
an

 e
m

is
si

on
s 

of
 

gr
ee

nh
ou

se
 g

as
es

 co
ul

d 
ch

an
ge

 th
e c

lim
at

e.
 M

an
y 

ot
he

r t
he

or
ie

s 
of

 c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
 w

er
e 

ad
va

nc
ed

, in
vo

lv
in

g 
fo

rc
es

 fr
om

 v
ol

ca
ni

sm
 to

 s
ol

ar
 v

ar
ia

tio
n.

 In
 th

e 
19

60
s,

 t
he

 w
ar

m
in

g 
ef

fe
ct

 o
f 

ca
rb

on
 d

io
xid

e 
ga

s b
ec

am
e 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
ly

 c
on

vi
nc

in
g,

 a
lth

ou
gh

 so
m

e 
sc

ie
nt

is
ts

 al
so

 p
oi

nt
ed

 o
ut

 th
at

 
hu

m
an

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
, i

n 
th

e 
fo

rm
 o

f a
tm

os
ph

er
ic

 a
er

os
ol

s (
e.

g.
, "

po
llu

tio
n"

), 
co

ul
d 

ha
ve

 co
ol

in
g 

ef
fe

ct
s 

as
 w

el
l. 

D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

19
70

s,
 s

ci
en

tif
ic

 o
pi

ni
on

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
ly

 fa
vo

re
d 

th
e 

w
ar

m
in

g 
vi

ew
po

in
t. 

By
 th

e 
19

90
s,

 a
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 im

pr
ov

in
g 

fid
el

ity
 o

f c
om

pu
te

r m
od

el
s 

an
d 

ob
se

rv
at

io
na

l w
or

k 
co

nf
irm

in
g 

th
e M

ila
nk

ov
itc

h 
th

eo
ry

 o
f t

he
 ic

e 
ag

es
, a

 c
on

se
ns

us
 p

os
iti

on
 fo

rm
ed

: g
re

en
ho

us
e 

ga
se

s w
er

e 
de

ep
ly

 in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 m

os
t c

lim
at

e 
ch

an
ge

s,
 an

d 
hu

m
an

 e
m

is
si

on
s 

w
er

e 
br

in
gi

ng
 s

er
io

us
 

gl
ob

al
 w

ar
m

in
g.

 
Si

nc
e 

th
e 

19
90

s,
 s

ci
en

tif
ic

 re
se

ar
ch

 o
n 

cl
im

at
e 

ch
an

ge
 h

as
 in

cl
ud

ed
 m

ul
tip

le
 d

is
ci

pl
in

es
 a

nd
 h

as
 

ex
pa

nd
ed

, s
ig

ni
fic

an
tly

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
 o

ur
 u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 o
f c

au
sa

l r
el

at
io

ns
, l

in
ks

 w
ith

 h
is

to
ric

 d
at

a,
 

an
d 

ab
ili

ty
 to

 n
um

er
ic

al
ly

 m
od

el
 c

lim
at

e 
ch

an
ge

. T
he

 m
os

t r
ec

en
t w

or
k 

ha
s b

ee
n 

su
m

m
ar

ize
d 

in
 

th
e 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t R

ep
or

ts
 b

y 
th

e 
In

te
rg

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l P

an
el

 o
n 

Cl
im

at
e 

Ch
an

ge
 (I

PC
C)

. 
Cl

im
at

e 
ch

an
ge

 is
 a

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t a

nd
 la

st
in

g 
ch

an
ge

 in
 th

e s
ta

tis
tic

al
 d

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
of

 w
ea

th
er

 p
at

te
rn

s o
ve

r 
pe

rio
ds

 ra
ng

in
g 

fro
m

 d
ec

ad
es

 to
 m

ill
io

ns
 o

f y
ea

rs
. I

t m
ay

 b
e 

a 
ch

an
ge

 in
 a

ve
ra

ge
 w

ea
th

er
 

co
nd

iti
on

s,
 o

r i
n 

th
e 

di
st

rib
ut

io
n 

of
 w

ea
th

er
 a

ro
un

d 
th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
co

nd
iti

on
s (

i.e
., 

m
or

e 
or

 fe
w

er
 

ex
tre

m
e 

w
ea

th
er

 e
ve

nt
s)

. C
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
 is

 c
au

se
d 

by
 fa

ct
or

s 
th

at
 in

cl
ud

e 
oc

ea
ni

c 
pr

oc
es

se
s (

su
ch

 
as

 o
ce

an
ic

 c
irc

ul
at

io
n)

, b
io

tic
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

, v
ar

ia
tio

ns
 in

 s
ol

ar
 ra

di
at

io
n 

re
ce

iv
ed

 b
y 

Ea
rth

, p
la

te
 

CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

4-
3 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

1.
 C

lim
at

e 
C

ha
ng

e 
Id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

Pr
of

ile
 

Pr
of

ile
 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

te
ct

on
ic

s a
nd

 v
ol

ca
ni

c 
er

up
tio

ns
, a

nd
 h

um
an

-in
du

ce
d 

al
te

ra
tio

ns
 o

f t
he

 n
at

ur
al

 w
or

ld
; 

th
es

e l
at

te
r 

ef
fe

ct
s 

ar
e 

cu
rre

nt
ly

 c
au

si
ng

 g
lo

ba
l w

ar
m

in
g,

 a
nd

 "c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
" i

s 
of

te
n 

us
ed

 to
 d

es
cr

ib
e 

hu
m

an
-s

pe
ci

fic
 im

pa
ct

s.
 

Ex
te

nt
 /

 
Se

ve
rit

y 

O
ve

r t
he

 n
ex

t c
en

tu
ry

, w
ea

th
er

 p
at

te
rn

s t
ha

t a
re

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

ex
tre

m
e 

to
da

y 
ar

e 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 b
ec

om
e 

th
e 

no
rm

. T
he

 a
ve

ra
ge

 su
m

m
er

 t
em

pe
ra

tu
re

 w
ill

 r
is

e,
 a

nd
 in

 in
la

nd
 a

re
as

 10
0-

pl
us

 d
eg

re
e 

Fa
hr

en
he

it 
(°

F)
 d

ay
s w

ill
 o

cc
ur

 m
or

e 
fre

qu
en

tly
. A

 te
m

pe
ra

tu
re

 c
ha

ng
e 

m
ap

 (F
ig

ur
e 

4-
1)

 
pr

od
uc

ed
 b

y 
th

e C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 N

ev
ad

a 
Cl

im
at

e 
A

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 P

ro
gr

am
 p

re
di

ct
 th

at
 th

e a
ve

ra
ge

 
te

m
pe

ra
tu

re
 in

 th
e r

eg
io

n 
is

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 ri
se

 b
et

w
ee

n 
2.

5 
an

d 
8°

F.
 D

rie
r 

co
nd

iti
on

s w
ill

 a
ls

o 
m

ak
e 

w
ild

fir
es

 m
or

e 
fre

qu
en

t a
nd

 in
te

ns
e.

 
Th

e 
N

at
io

na
l O

ce
an

ic
 a

nd
 A

tm
os

ph
er

ic
 A

dm
in

is
tra

tio
n 

ha
s p

ro
du

ce
d 

a 
se

a l
ev

el
 ri

se
 v

ie
w

 th
at

 
sh

ow
s t

he
 im

pa
ct

s 
of

 p
re

di
ct

ed
 s

ea
 le

ve
l r

is
e.

 A
s s

ho
w

n 
in

 F
ig

ur
e 

4-
2,

 a
 s

ea
 le

ve
l r

is
e 

of
 ju

st
 3 

fe
et

 a
bo

ve
 m

ea
n 

hi
gh

er
 h

ig
h 

tid
e 

(a
pp

ro
xim

at
e 

ye
ar

 2
05

0 
– 

20
60

) 
w

ill
 r

es
ul

t i
n 

co
as

ta
l f

lo
od

in
g 

of
 

2.
25

 s
qu

ar
e m

ile
s 

of
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
an

d 
0.

03
 s

qu
ar

e m
ile

s 
of

 u
ni

nc
or

po
ra

te
d 

ar
ea

s o
f L

os
 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y,

 w
hi

le
 a

 s
ea

 le
ve

l r
is

e 
of

 6
 fe

et
 a

bo
ve

 m
ea

n 
hi

gh
er

 h
ig

h 
tid

e 
(a

pp
ro

xim
at

e 
ye

ar
 

21
00

) 
w

ill
 r

es
ul

t i
n 

co
as

ta
l f

lo
od

in
g 

of
 6

.1
3 

sq
ua

re
 m

ile
s 

of
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
an

d 
0.

15
 s

qu
ar

e 
m

ile
s 

of
 u

ni
nc

or
po

ra
te

d 
ar

ea
s o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y.

  

Re
cu

rre
nc

e 
Pr

ob
ab

ili
ty

 

Th
e 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

pr
ob

ab
ili

ty
 o

f t
he

 e
xt

en
t a

nd
 fr

eq
ue

nc
y 

cl
im

at
e 

ch
an

ge
 in

du
ce

d 
im

pa
ct

s 
is

 u
nc

er
ta

in
 

an
d 

de
pe

nd
s o

n 
va

rio
us

 cl
im

at
e 

m
od

el
in

g 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
. W

hi
le

 th
er

e 
is

 s
om

e 
un

ce
rta

in
ty

 ab
ou

t t
he

 
ra

te
 o

f c
lim

at
e 

of
 c

ha
ng

e a
nd

 th
e s

ev
er

ity
 a

nd
 fr

eq
ue

nc
y 

of
 e

xt
re

m
e 

w
ea

th
er

 e
ve

nt
s,

 th
e 

IP
CC

, 
in

 
its

 F
ift

h 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t o
f C

lim
at

e 
Ch

an
ge

 (2
01

4)
, 

co
nc

lu
de

d 
th

at
:  

…
w

ar
m

in
g 

of
 th

e c
lim

at
e 

sy
st

em
 is

 u
ne

qu
iv

oc
al

, a
nd

 s
in

ce
 th

e 1
95

0s
, 

m
an

y 
of

 th
e 

ob
se

rv
ed

 ch
an

ge
s a

re
 u

np
re

ce
de

nt
ed

 o
ve

r d
ec

ad
es

 to
 m

ill
en

ni
a.

 T
he

 
at

m
os

ph
er

e 
an

d 
oc

ea
n 

ha
ve

 w
ar

m
ed

, 
th

e 
am

ou
nt

s o
f s

no
w

 an
d 

ic
e 

ha
ve

 
di

m
in

is
he

d,
 s

ea
 le

ve
l h

as
 ri

se
n,

 a
nd

 th
e 

co
nc

en
tra

tio
ns

 o
f g

re
en

ho
us

e g
as

es
 

ha
ve

 in
cr

ea
se

d…
It 

is
 e

xt
re

m
el

y 
lik

el
y 

th
at

 h
um

an
 in

flu
en

ce
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

th
e 

do
m

in
an

t c
au

se
 o

f t
he

 o
bs

er
ve

d 
w

ar
m

in
g 

si
nc

e 
th

e m
id

-2
0t

h 
ce

nt
ur

y.
 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

4-
4 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

2.
 C

lim
at

e 
C

ha
ng

e 
Im

pa
ct

 o
n 

La
nd

 A
re

a 

 
3 

Ft
. S

ea
 L

ev
el

 R
is

e 
6 

Ft
. S

ea
 L

ev
el

 R
is

e 

En
tit

y 
# 

of
 S

q.
 M

ile
s 

%
 of

 S
q.

 M
ile

s 
# 

of
 S

q.
 M

ile
s 

%
 of

 S
q.

 M
ile

s 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

2.
25

 
0.

05
 

6.
13

 
0.

13
 

U
ni

nc
or

po
ra

te
d 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

0.
03

 
0.

00
 

0.
15

 
0.

00
 

Su
pe

rv
is

or
ia

l 
D

is
tri

ct
 1

 
0.

00
 

0.
00

 
0.

00
 

0.
00

 

Su
pe

rv
is

or
ia

l 
D

is
tri

ct
 2

 
0.

03
 

0.
02

 
0.

07
 

0.
04

 

Su
pe

rv
is

or
ia

l 
D

is
tri

ct
 3

 
0.

14
 

0.
03

 
0.

34
 

0.
08

 

Su
pe

rv
is

or
ia

l 
D

is
tri

ct
 4

 
1.

98
 

0.
45

 
5.

58
 

1.
27

 

Su
pe

rv
is

or
ia

l 
D

is
tri

ct
 5

 
0.

00
 

0.
00

 
0.

00
 

0.
00

 

 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

3.
 C

lim
at

e 
C

ha
ng

e 
Im

pa
ct

 o
n 

V
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

Po
pu

la
tio

ns
 –

 P
eo

pl
e 

Ex
pe

rie
nc

in
g 

H
om

el
es

sn
es

s 

 
3 

Ft
. S

ea
 L

ev
el

 R
is

e 
6 

Ft
. S

ea
 L

ev
el

 R
is

e 
 

En
tit

y 
# 

of
 H

om
el

es
s 

 
%

 of
 H

om
el

es
s 

 
# 

of
 H

om
el

es
s 

 
%

 of
 H

om
el

es
s 

 

Ci
ty

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

51
 

0.
15

 
12

6 
0.

38
 

U
ni

nc
or

po
ra

te
d 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

0 
0.

00
 

2 
0.

04
 

   
 

CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

4-
5 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

4.
 C

lim
at

e 
C

ha
ng

e 
Im

pa
ct

 o
n 

C
ou

nt
y 

C
rit

ic
al

 F
ac

ili
tie

s 

 
3 

Ft
. S

ea
 L

ev
el

 R
is

e 
6 

Ft
. S

ea
 L

ev
el

 R
is

e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t/ 

A
ge

nc
y 

# 
of

 F
ac

ili
tie

s 
%

 of
 F

ac
ili

tie
s 

# 
of

 F
ac

ili
tie

s 
%

 of
 F

ac
ili

tie
s 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
A

ni
m

al
 C

ar
e &

 C
on

tro
l 

0 
0.

00
 

0 
0.

00
 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
1 

0.
00

 
5 

1.
4 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
H

ea
lth

 Se
rv

ic
es

 
0 

0.
00

 
0 

0.
00

 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Li

br
ar

y 
0 

0.
00

 
0 

0.
00

 

LA
CM

A
 &

 N
H

M
 

0 
0.

00
 

0 
0.

00
 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
O

ff
ic

e o
f E

du
ca

tio
n 

0 
0.

00
 

0 
0.

00
 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
- 

O
th

er
 (o

ffi
ce

s)
 

0 
0.

00
 

0 
0.

00
 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

0 
0.

00
 

0 
0.

00
 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Pu

bl
ic

 H
ea

lth
 

0 
0.

00
 

0 
0.

00
 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

3 
1.

30
 

6 
2.

61
 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Sh

er
iff

’s
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
1 

3.
23

 
0 

0.
00

 

LA
C

M
A

 =
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
M

us
eu

m
 o

f A
rt

 
N

H
M

 =
 N

at
ur

al
 H

is
to

ry
 M

us
eu

m
 

 

         

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

4-
6 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

5.
 O

ve
ra

ll 
Su

m
m

ar
y 

of
 V

ul
ne

ra
bi

lit
y 

to
 C

lim
at

e 
C

ha
ng

e 

C
lim

at
e 

C
ha

ng
e 

Su
m

m
ar

y 

Cl
im

at
e 

ch
an

ge
 w

ill
 a

ffe
ct

 e
ve

ry
 p

er
so

n 
an

d 
ev

er
y 

ar
ea

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y.
 A

s n
ot

ed
 

ab
ov

e,
 th

e n
um

be
r o

f e
xt

re
m

e 
he

at
 d

ay
s w

ill
 r

is
e,

 a
nd

 in
la

nd
 c

ou
nt

y 
ar

ea
s w

ill
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
da

ys
 w

ith
 te

m
pe

ra
tu

re
s 

in
 e

xc
es

s 
of

 1
00

°F
 m

or
e 

fre
qu

en
tly

. E
xt

re
m

e 
he

at
 c

an
 tr

ig
ge

r a
 

va
rie

ty
 o

f h
ea

t s
tre

ss
 co

nd
iti

on
s,

 su
ch

 as
 h

ea
t s

tro
ke

. H
ig

he
r t

em
pe

ra
tu

re
s 

ca
n 

al
so

 
co

nt
rib

ut
e t

o 
th

e 
bu

ild
-u

p 
of

 h
ar

m
fu

l p
ol

lu
ta

nt
s a

nd
 c

au
se

 re
sp

ira
to

ry
 is

su
es

. D
rie

r, 
ho

tte
r 

co
nd

iti
on

s w
ill

 a
ls

o 
m

ak
e 

w
ild

fir
es

 m
or

e 
fre

qu
en

t a
nd

 in
te

ns
e,

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 in
 th

e 
H

ig
h 

an
d 

Ve
ry

 H
ig

h 
Fi

re
 H

az
ar

d 
Se

ve
rit

y 
Zo

ne
s (

FH
SZ

). 
W

ild
fir

es
 c

an
: b

ur
n 

ho
m

es
, b

us
in

es
se

s, 
an

d 
cr

iti
ca

l f
ac

ili
tie

s;
 in

te
rru

pt
 tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

ut
ili

tie
s;

 a
nd

 c
au

se
 d

ea
th

 to
 p

eo
pl

e 
an

d 
an

im
al

s.
  

In
 a

dd
iti

on
, m

eg
a 

st
or

m
s 

th
at

 ar
e 

lin
ke

d 
to

 cl
im

at
e 

ch
an

ge
 w

ill
 c

au
se

 se
ve

re
 fl

oo
di

ng
 in

 
ci

tie
s 

an
d 

fo
rm

 la
ke

s 
in

 th
e C

en
tra

l V
al

le
y 

an
d 

M
oj

av
e 

D
es

er
t. 

A
lo

ng
 th

e c
oa

st
, d

ea
dl

y 
an

d 
de

st
ru

ct
iv

e s
to

rm
 s

ur
ge

s w
ill

 p
us

h 
fa

rth
er

 in
la

nd
 th

an
 th

ey
 o

nc
e 

di
d,

 w
hi

ch
 m

ea
ns

 
m

or
e 

fre
qu

en
t n

ui
sa

nc
e f

lo
od

in
g.

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
is

 a
dd

re
ss

in
g 

cl
im

at
e 

ch
an

ge
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
20

15
 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 C

lim
at

e 
A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
. T

he
 p

la
n 

de
sc

rib
es

 h
ow

 th
e 

Co
un

ty
 w

ill
 a

dd
re

ss
 th

e 
im

pa
ct

s 
of

 c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
 b

y 
re

du
ci

ng
 g

re
en

ho
us

e g
as

 em
is

si
on

s f
ro

m
 c

om
m

un
ity

 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 in

 th
e 

un
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 ar

ea
s 

of
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
by

 a
t l

ea
st

 1
1%

 b
el

ow
 2

01
0 

le
ve

ls
 b

y 
20

20
. 

A
dd

iti
on

al
ly

, i
n 

A
pr

il 
20

19
 t

he
 m

ay
or

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 re

le
as

ed
 th

e c
ity

’s
 

Gr
ee

n 
N

ew
 D

ea
l, 

w
hi

ch
 “

se
ts

 ag
gr

es
si

ve
 g

oa
ls

 fo
r t

he
 ci

ty
’s

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 fu
tu

re
, t

ac
kl

es
 th

e 
cl

im
at

e 
em

er
ge

nc
y 

w
ith

 a
cc

el
er

at
ed

 ta
rg

et
s…

 a
nd

 s
et

s L
.A

. o
n 

co
ur

se
 to

 b
e 

ca
rb

on
 n

eu
tra

l 
by

 2
05

0.
” 

 

5

15

10

21
0

40
5

60
5

11
0

71
0

10
1

Lo
s A

ng
ele

s

0
1
0

2
0

M
ile

s

S a
 n 

 B
 e 

r n
 a 

r d
 i n

 o
C 

o u
 n 

t y
K 

e r
 n 

 C
 o 

u n
 t y

5

15

10

21
0

40
5

60
5

11
0

71
0

10
1

Lo
s A

ng
ele

s

5

15

10

21
0

40
5

60
5

11
0

71
0

10
1

Lo
s A

ng
ele

s

5

15

10

21
0

40
5

60
5

11
0

71
0

10
1

Lo
s A

ng
ele

s

V 
e n

 t u
 r 

a
C 

o u
 n 

t y

O 
r a

 n 
g e

C 
o u

 n 
t y

S a n  B e r n a r d i n o
C o u n t y

K 
e r

 n 
 C

 o 
u n

 t y

V 
e n

 t u
 r 

a
C 

o u
 n 

t y

O 
r a

 n 
g e

C 
o u

 n 
t y

S a n  B e r n a r d i n o
C o u n t y

K 
e r

 n 
 C

 o 
u n

 t y

V 
e n

 t u
 r 

a
C 

o u
 n 

t y

S a n  B e r n a r d i n o
C o u n t y

K 
e r

 n 
 C

 o 
u n

 t y

So
ur

ce
C

a
l A

d
a
p

t 
C

C
M

3
 A

n
n
u

a
l 
T
e

m
p

e
ra

tu
re

 M
o
d
e
l 
(2

0
1
9
)

h
tt

p
:/

/v
1
.c

a
l-
a
d
a
p
t.
o
rg

O 
r a

 n 
g e

C 
o u

 n 
t y

20
19

 Lo
s A

ng
ele

s C
ou

nty
 

All
-H

az
ard

s M
itig

ati
on

 Pl
an

Te
mp

era
tu

re
 C

ha
ng

e (
20

19
-20

79
)

Fig
ur

e 4
-1

V 
e n

 t u
 r 

a
C 

o u
 n 

t y

S a n  B e r n a r d i n o
C o u n t y

K 
e r

 n 
 C

 o 
u n

 t y

O 
r a

 n 
g e

C 
o u

 n 
t y

20
19

20
39

20
59

20
79

An
nu

al 
Me

an
 Te

mp
era

tur
e V

alu
es

(Fa
hr

en
he

it)
4
0

° 
- 

4
4
.9

°

4
5

° 
- 

4
9
.9

°

5
0

° 
- 

5
4
.9

°

5
5

° 
- 

5
9
.9

°

6
0

° 
- 

6
4
.9

°

6
5

° 
- 

6
9
.9

°

7
0

° 
- 

7
4
.9

°

7
5

° 
- 

7
9
.9

°

8
0

° 
- 

8
5
.9

°

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



40
5

10

10
5

1

2
23

42

27

40
5

11
0

71
0

1
21

3

91

10
7

19
91

No
te:

M
a

p
 p

a
n

e
ls

 g
o

 f
ro

m
 w

e
s
t 
to

 e
a

s
t

a
lo

n
g

 t
h

e
 c

o
a

s
t,
 s

ta
rt

in
g

 a
t 
th

e
 t
o

p
.

Le
ge

nd 3
-f

o
o

t 
S

e
a

 L
e

v
e
l 
R

is
e

6
-f

o
o

t 
S

e
a

 L
e

v
e
l 
R

is
e

O 
r a

 n 
g e

C 
o u

 n 
t y

P a
 c 

i f 
i c

   O
 c 

e a
 n

0
5

2
.5

M
ile

s

20
19

 Lo
s A

ng
ele

s C
ou

nty
 

All
-H

az
ard

s M
itig

ati
on

 Pl
an

Se
a L

ev
el 

Ri
se

 In
un

da
tio

n A
rea

s
Fig

ur
e 4

-2
So

ur
ce

N
O

A
A

 S
e
a

 L
e

v
e
l 
R

is
e

 D
a
ta

b
a
s
e
 (

2
0
1
7
)

h
tt

p
s
:/

/c
o

a
s
t.

n
o
a
a
.g

o
v

CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

4-
9 

4.
2 

D
A

M
 F

A
IL

U
R

E
 Ta

bl
e 

4-
6.

 D
am

 F
ai

lu
re

 I
de

nt
ifi

ca
tio

n 
Pr

of
ile

 

Pr
of

ile
 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

N
at

ur
e 

D
am

 f
ai

lu
re

 is
 th

e s
tru

ct
ur

al
 c

ol
la

ps
e 

of
 a

 d
am

 th
at

 re
le

as
es

 th
e 

w
at

er
 s

to
re

d 
in

 th
e 

re
se

rv
oi

r 
be

hi
nd

 th
e d

am
. A

 d
am

 fa
ilu

re
 is

 u
su

al
ly

 th
e 

re
su

lt 
of

 th
e 

ag
e 

of
 th

e 
st

ru
ct

ur
e,

 in
ad

eq
ua

te
 sp

ill
w

ay
 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 u
se

d 
in

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 o

r s
tru

ct
ur

al
 d

am
ag

e 
ca

us
ed

 b
y 

an
 e

ar
th

qu
ak

e 
or

 fl
oo

d.
 W

he
n 

a 
da

m
 fa

ils
, a

 la
rg

e 
qu

an
tit

y 
of

 w
at

er
 is

 s
ud

de
nl

y 
re

le
as

ed
 w

ith
 a

 g
re

at
 p

ot
en

tia
l t

o 
ca

us
e h

um
an

 
ca

su
al

tie
s,

 e
co

no
m

ic
 lo

ss
, a

nd
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l d

am
ag

e.
 T

hi
s 

ty
pe

 o
f d

is
as

te
r i

s 
es

pe
ci

al
ly

 
da

ng
er

ou
s b

ec
au

se
 it

 ca
n 

oc
cu

r s
ud

de
nl

y,
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 li
ttl

e 
w

ar
ni

ng
 a

nd
 e

va
cu

at
io

n 
tim

e 
fo

r t
he

 
pe

op
le

 li
vi

ng
 d

ow
ns

tre
am

. T
he

 fl
ow

s 
re

su
lti

ng
 fr

om
 d

am
 fa

ilu
re

 g
en

er
al

ly
 a

re
 m

uc
h 

la
rg

er
 th

an
 

th
e 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 o
f t

he
 d

ow
ns

tre
am

 c
ha

nn
el

s a
nd

 th
er

ef
or

e 
le

ad
 to

 ex
te

ns
iv

e 
flo

od
in

g.
 F

lo
od

 d
am

ag
e 

oc
cu

rs
 as

 a
 re

su
lt 

of
 th

e 
m

om
en

tu
m

 o
f t

he
 fl

oo
d 

ca
us

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
se

di
m

en
t-l

ad
en

 w
at

er
 fl

oo
di

ng
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

ch
an

ne
l b

an
ks

 a
nd

 im
pa

ct
 d

eb
ris

 c
ar

rie
d 

by
 th

e 
flo

w
. 

Lo
ca

tio
n 

A
cc

or
di

ng
 to

 th
e 

Ca
lif

or
ni

a 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
of

 W
at

er
 R

es
ou

rc
e’

s 
D

iv
is

io
n 

of
 S

af
et

y 
of

 D
am

s 
(D

SO
D

), 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

90
 d

am
s 

un
de

r S
ta

te
 ju

ris
di

ct
io

n 
in

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y.

 A
 d

am
 b

re
ac

h 
in

un
da

tio
n 

m
ap

 s
ho

w
s f

lo
od

in
g 

th
at

 co
ul

d 
re

su
lt 

fro
m

 a
 h

yp
ot

he
tic

al
 fa

ilu
re

 o
f a

 d
am

 o
r i

ts
 c

rit
ic

al
 

ap
pu

rte
na

nt
 st

ru
ct

ur
e.

 In
 2

01
7,

 t
he

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 L

eg
is

la
tu

re
 p

as
se

d 
a l

aw
 r

eq
ui

rin
g 

al
l S

ta
te

 
ju

ris
di

ct
io

na
l d

am
 o

w
ne

rs
, e

xc
ep

t f
or

 o
w

ne
rs

 o
f l

ow
-h

az
ar

d 
da

m
s,

 to
 d

ev
el

op
 in

un
da

tio
n 

m
ap

s 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 b

y 
D

SO
D

 a
nd

 e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
s a

pp
ro

ve
d 

by
 C

al
 O

ES
. 

 
A

t t
he

 ti
m

e 
of

 th
e d

ra
fti

ng
 o

f t
hi

s 
pl

an
 in

 e
ar

ly
 J

ul
y 

20
19

, 
12

 S
ta

te
 ju

ris
di

ct
io

na
l d

am
s 

in
 L

os
 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

ha
d 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 d
am

 b
re

ac
h 

in
un

da
tio

n 
m

ap
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g:
  

• 
Ca

st
ai

c 
La

ke
 D

am
: 

an
 ea

rth
en

 d
am

 w
ith

 a
 s

to
ra

ge
 ca

pa
ci

ty
 o

f 3
23

,7
00

 a
cr

e-
fe

et
 in

 W
ar

m
 

Sp
rin

gs
 M

ou
nt

ai
n 

• 
Py

ra
m

id
 D

am
: 

an
 ea

rth
en

 a
nd

 ro
ck

 d
am

 w
ith

 a
 s

to
ra

ge
 ca

pa
ci

ty
 o

f 1
78

,7
00

 a
cr

e-
fe

et
 in

 
Bl

ac
k 

M
ou

nt
ai

n 
• 

Ch
ev

y 
Ch

as
e 

12
90

: 
an

 e
ar

th
en

 d
am

 w
ith

 a
 s

to
ra

ge
 ca

pa
ci

ty
 1

7 
ac

re
-fe

et
 o

f i
n 

Pa
sa

de
na

 
• 

El
ys

ia
n 

D
am

: 
an

d 
ea

rth
en

 d
am

 w
ith

 a
 s

to
ra

ge
 ca

pa
ci

ty
 o

f 1
67

 a
cr

e-
fe

et
 in

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 
• 

Lo
w

er
 S

an
 F

er
na

nd
o 

D
am

: 
hy

dr
au

lic
 fi

ll 
da

m
 w

ith
 a

 s
to

ra
ge

 ca
pa

ci
ty

 o
f 9

,8
43

 a
cr

e-
fe

et
 

in
 S

an
 F

er
na

nd
o 

• 
Ea

gl
e 

Ro
ck

 D
am

: 
an

 e
ar

th
en

 d
am

 w
ith

 a
 s

to
ra

ge
 ca

pa
ci

ty
 o

f 2
54

 a
cr

e-
fe

et
 in

 P
as

ad
en

a 
• 

Sa
nt

a 
Yn

ez
 C

an
yo

n 
D

am
: 

an
 e

ar
th

en
 d

am
 w

ith
 a

 s
to

ra
ge

 ca
pa

ci
ty

 3
56

 a
cr

e-
fe

et
 in

 
To

pa
ng

a 
• 

D
ev

ils
 G

at
e 

D
am

: 
a 

gr
av

ity
 d

am
 w

ith
 a

 s
to

ra
ge

 ca
pa

ci
ty

 o
f 2

,6
00

 a
cr

e-
fe

et
 P

as
ad

en
a 

• 
Pa

lo
s 

Ve
rd

es
 R

es
er

vo
ir:

 a
n 

ea
rth

en
 d

am
 w

ith
 a

 s
to

ra
ge

 ca
pa

ci
ty

 o
f 1

,1
00

 a
cr

e-
fe

et
 in

 
To

rra
nc

e 
• 

Li
ttl

er
oc

k 
– 

Pa
lm

da
le

 D
am

: 
a 

ro
lle

r-c
om

pa
ct

ed
 c

on
cr

et
e d

am
 w

ith
 a

 s
to

ra
ge

 ca
pa

ci
ty

 o
f 

4,
60

0 
ac

re
-fe

et
 in

 P
ac

ifi
co

 M
ou

nt
ai

n 
 

• 
H

ar
ol

d 
Re

se
rv

oi
r: 

an
 e

ar
th

en
 d

am
 w

ith
 a

 s
to

ra
ge

 ca
pa

ci
ty

 o
f 3

,8
70

 a
cr

e-
fe

et
 in

 P
al

m
da

le
 

• 
W

es
tla

ke
 R

es
er

vo
ir:

 a
n 

ea
rth

en
 d

am
 w

ith
 a

 s
to

ra
ge

 ca
pa

ci
ty

 o
f 9

,2
00

 a
cr

e-
fe

et
 in

 
W

es
tla

ke
 V

ill
ag

e 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

4-
10

 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

6.
 D

am
 F

ai
lu

re
 I

de
nt

ifi
ca

tio
n 

Pr
of

ile
 

Pr
of

ile
 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

H
is

to
ry

 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

w
as

 th
e 

sc
en

e o
f t

he
 w

or
st

 d
am

 fa
ilu

re
 in

 U
ni

te
d 

St
at

es
 h

is
to

ry
. T

he
 S

t. 
Fr

an
ci

s 
D

am
 w

as
 b

ui
lt 

in
 S

an
 F

ra
nc

is
qu

ito
 C

an
yo

n,
 a

pp
ro

xim
at

el
y 

40
 m

ile
s 

no
rth

w
es

t o
f 

do
w

nt
ow

n 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
, in

 1
92

4.
 O

n 
th

e 
ni

gh
t o

f M
ar

ch
 1

2-
13

, 
19

28
, 

th
e 

da
m

 c
at

as
tro

ph
ic

al
ly

 
fa

ile
d,

 r
el

ea
si

ng
 a

pp
ro

xim
at

el
y 

12
.4

 b
ill

io
n 

ga
llo

ns
 o

f w
at

er
. A

t l
ea

st
 4

11
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

er
e 

ki
lle

d.
 

Su
bs

eq
ue

nt
 in

ve
st

ig
at

io
ns

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 th
at

 th
e 

da
m

 fa
ile

d 
as

 a 
re

su
lt 

of
 d

ef
ec

tiv
e 

fo
un

da
tio

ns
 th

at
 

ha
d 

be
en

 b
ui

lt 
up

on
 an

 u
ns

ta
bl

e r
oc

k 
fo

rm
at

io
n.

 A
s a

 re
su

lt 
of

 th
e d

is
as

te
r, 

th
e S

ta
te

 o
f C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

da
m

 s
af

et
y 

le
gi

sl
at

io
n 

an
d 

ov
er

si
gh

t, 
an

d 
cr

ea
te

d 
a 

st
at

e B
oa

rd
 o

f R
eg

is
tra

tio
n 

fo
r c

iv
il 

en
gi

ne
er

s t
o 

re
gu

la
te

 th
e 

in
du

st
ry

. 

Ex
te

nt
 /

 
Se

ve
rit

y 

Th
e 

Fe
de

ra
l G

ui
de

lin
es

 f
or

 In
un

da
tio

n 
M

ap
pi

ng
 o

f F
lo

od
 R

is
ks

 A
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 D
am

 I
nc

id
en

ts
 

an
d 

Fa
ilu

re
s 

(F
EM

A
 P

-9
46

, 
Ju

ly
 2

01
3)

 d
ef

in
es

 d
ow

ns
tre

am
 h

az
ar

ds
 fo

r d
am

 in
ci

de
nt

s.
 

D
ow

ns
tre

am
 h

az
ar

ds
 a

re
 b

as
ed

 “s
ol

el
y 

on
 th

e p
ot

en
tia

l d
ow

ns
tre

am
 im

pa
ct

s 
to

 lif
e 

an
d 

pr
op

er
ty

 
sh

ou
ld

 th
e 

da
m

 fa
il 

w
he

n 
op

er
at

in
g 

w
ith

 a
 fu

ll 
re

se
rv

oi
r.”

 F
EM

A
 h

as
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 th
re

e 
ca

te
go

rie
s 

in
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 s
ev

er
ity

 fo
r d

ow
ns

tre
am

 h
az

ar
ds

: L
ow

, S
ig

ni
fic

an
t, 

an
d 

H
ig

h.
 D

SO
D

 a
dd

s a
 fo

ur
th

 
ca

te
go

ry
 o

f E
xt

re
m

el
y 

H
ig

h.
 In

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
40

 d
am

s 
th

at
 a

re
 c

la
ss

ifi
ed

 a
s H

ig
h,

 
w

ith
 th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l i

m
pa

ct
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 c

au
se

 lo
ss

 o
f a

t l
ea

st
 o

ne
 h

um
an

 li
fe

, 
an

d 
30

 d
am

s 
cl

as
si

fie
d 

as
 E

xt
re

m
el

y 
H

ig
h,

 w
ith

 th
e p

ot
en

tia
l i

m
pa

ct
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 ca

us
e c

on
si

de
ra

bl
e 

lo
ss

 o
f h

um
an

 li
fe

 o
r 

re
su

lt 
in

 a
n 

in
un

da
tio

n 
ar

ea
 w

ith
 a

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

of
 1

,0
00

 o
r m

or
e.

 
A

s n
ot

ed
 in

 F
ig

ur
e 

4-
3,

 n
in

e 
Ex

tre
m

el
y 

H
ig

h 
ha

za
rd

 d
am

s 
an

d 
th

re
e 

H
ig

h 
ha

za
rd

 d
am

s 
in

 th
e 

co
un

ty
 h

av
e a

pp
ro

ve
d 

da
m

 b
re

ac
h 

in
un

da
tio

n 
m

ap
s 

fo
r a

 to
ta

l o
f 4

5.
70

 s
qu

ar
e m

ile
s 

(0
.9

6 
%

) i
n 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y,

 a
nd

 a
 to

ta
l o

f 1
3.

37
 s

qu
ar

e m
ile

s 
(0

.4
4 

%
) i

n 
th

e 
un

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 ar
ea

s 
of

 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y.
 

Re
cu

rre
nc

e 
Pr

ob
ab

ili
ty

 

D
am

s 
fa

il 
fo

r a
 v

ar
ie

ty
 o

f r
ea

so
ns

, in
cl

ud
in

g 
Su

b-
st

an
da

rd
 co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
m

at
er

ia
ls

/te
ch

ni
qu

es
, 

sp
ill

w
ay

 d
es

ig
n 

er
ro

r, 
ge

ol
og

ic
al

 in
st

ab
ili

ty
, p

oo
r m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
, a

nd
 e

ar
th

qu
ak

es
, a

nd
 th

er
ef

or
e 

re
cu

rre
nc

e 
pr

ob
ab

ili
tie

s 
ar

e 
un

kn
ow

n.
 S

ta
te

 ju
ris

di
ct

io
n 

da
m

s 
ar

e 
re

gu
la

te
d 

by
 th

e 
D

SO
D

 a
nd

 
ea

ch
 d

am
 u

nd
er

go
es

 in
sp

ec
tio

n 
on

 an
 a

nn
ua

l b
as

is
 to

 e
ns

ur
e i

t i
s 

sa
fe

, p
er

fo
rm

in
g 

as
 in

te
nd

ed
, a

nd
 

is
 n

ot
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
is

su
es

. H
ow

ev
er

, i
n 

20
17

, 
th

e 
U

ni
te

d 
St

at
es

 A
rm

y 
Co

rp
s 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rs

 (U
SA

CE
) 

di
sc

ov
er

ed
 th

at
 th

e 
W

hi
tti

er
 N

ar
ro

w
s 

D
am

 w
as

 s
tru

ct
ur

al
ly

 u
ns

af
e a

nd
 th

at
 a

n 
in

te
ns

e s
to

rm
 c

ou
ld

 
pr

em
at

ur
el

y 
op

en
 th

e 
da

m
’s

 m
as

si
ve

 s
pi

llw
ay

 a
nd

 fl
oo

d 
th

e a
re

a 
be

lo
w

 fr
om

 P
ic

o 
Ri

ve
ra

 t
o 

Lo
ng

 
Be

ac
h.

 T
he

 U
SA

CE
 h

as
 re

cl
as

si
fie

d 
th

e 
da

m
 a

s 
th

e a
ge

nc
y’

s h
ig

he
st

 d
am

 p
rio

rit
y 

na
tio

na
lly

 
be

ca
us

e o
f t

he
 ri

sk
 o

f “
ve

ry
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t l
os

s o
f l

ife
 a

nd
 ec

on
om

ic
 im

pa
ct

s.
” 

Co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

on
 th

e 
da

m
 is

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 s
ta

rt 
in

 2
02

1 
an

d 
co

nc
lu

de
 b

y 
20

25
. 

  
 

CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

4-
11

 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

7.
 D

am
 F

ai
lu

re
 I

m
pa

ct
 o

n 
La

nd
 A

re
a 

En
tit

y 
D

am
 B

re
ac

h 
In

un
da

tio
n 

# 
of

 S
q.

 M
ile

s 
%

 of
 S

q.
 M

ile
s 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

45
.7

0 
0.

96
 

U
ni

nc
or

po
ra

te
d 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

13
.3

7 
0.

44
 

Su
pe

rv
is

or
ia

l D
is

tri
ct

 1
 

1.
40

 
0.

57
 

Su
pe

rv
is

or
ia

l D
is

tri
ct

 2
 

0.
00

 
0.

00
 

Su
pe

rv
is

or
ia

l D
is

tri
ct

 3
 

24
.8

4 
5.

76
 

Su
pe

rv
is

or
ia

l D
is

tri
ct

 4
 

0.
67

 
0.

15
 

Su
pe

rv
is

or
ia

l D
is

tri
ct

 5
 

18
.0

0 
0.

64
 

 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

8.
 D

am
 F

ai
lu

re
 I

m
pa

ct
 o

n 
V

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
Po

pu
la

tio
ns

 –
 P

eo
pl

e 
Ex

pe
rie

nc
in

g 
H

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

En
tit

y 
D

am
 B

re
ac

h 
In

un
da

tio
n 

# 
of

 H
om

el
es

s 
%

 of
 H

om
el

es
s 

Ci
ty

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

1,
19

3 
3.

62
 

U
ni

nc
or

po
ra

te
d 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

13
 

0.
22

 

 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

9.
 D

am
 F

ai
lu

re
 I

m
pa

ct
 o

n 
C

ou
nt

y 
C

rit
ic

al
 F

ac
ili

tie
s 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

/ A
ge

nc
y 

D
am

 B
re

ac
h 

In
un

da
tio

n 

# 
of

 F
ac

ili
tie

s 
%

 of
 F

ac
ili

tie
s 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

A
ni

m
al

 C
ar

e 
&

 
C

on
tr

ol
 

1 
14

.2
9 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

3 
0.

89
 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

H
ea

lth
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

2 
6.

90
 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Li
br

ar
y 

1 
1.

18
 

LA
C

M
A

 &
 N

H
M

 
0 

0.
00

 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

O
ff

ic
e 

of
 E

du
ca

tio
n 

2 
5.

41
 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

- O
th

er
 (o

ff
ic

es
) 

0 
0.

00
 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
2 

1.
71

 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Pu
bl

ic
 H

ea
lth

 
0 

0.
00

 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
1 

0.
43

 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Sh
er

iff
’s

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

3 
9.

68
 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

4-
12

 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

10
. O

ve
ra

ll 
Su

m
m

ar
y 

of
 V

ul
ne

ra
bi

lit
y 

to
 D

am
 F

ai
lu

re
 

D
am

 F
ai

lu
re

 

Su
m

m
ar

y 

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
90

 d
am

s 
in

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

un
de

r S
ta

te
 ju

ris
di

ct
io

n.
 S

ev
en

ty
 d

am
s 

ar
e 

cl
as

si
fie

d 
as

 H
ig

h 
an

d 
Ex

tre
m

el
y 

H
ig

h 
ha

za
rd

 a
nd

 fa
ilu

re
 o

f t
he

se
 ty

pe
s o

f d
am

s 
w

ill
 

ca
us

e l
os

s o
f h

um
an

 li
fe

 a
nd

/o
r r

es
ul

t i
n 

an
 in

un
da

tio
n 

ar
ea

 w
ith

 a
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
of

 1
,0

00
 o

r 
m

or
e.

  
A

s o
f J

un
e 2

01
7,

 a
ll 

da
m

s 
ex

ce
pt

 th
os

e c
la

ss
ifi

ed
 a

s 
Lo

w
 h

az
ar

d 
ar

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
by

 th
e 

D
SO

D
 t

o 
ha

ve
 a

n 
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

 (E
A

P)
. A

n 
EA

P 
id

en
tif

ie
s 

in
ci

de
nt

s 
th

at
 ca

n 
le

ad
 to

 p
ot

en
tia

l e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

co
nd

iti
on

s a
t a

 d
am

, i
de

nt
ifi

es
 th

e a
re

as
 th

at
 c

ou
ld

 b
e a

ffe
ct

ed
 

by
 th

e l
os

s o
f a

 re
se

rv
oi

r a
nd

 sp
ec

ifi
es

 p
re

-p
la

nn
ed

 a
ct

io
ns

 to
 b

e 
fo

llo
w

ed
 t

o 
m

in
im

ize
 

pr
op

er
ty

 d
am

ag
e,

 p
ot

en
tia

l l
os

s o
f i

nf
ra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
an

d 
w

at
er

 re
so

ur
ce

s,
 an

d 
po

te
nt

ia
l l

os
s o

f 
lif

e 
du

e 
to

 fa
ilu

re
 o

r m
is

op
er

at
io

n 
of

 a
 d

am
. E

A
Ps

 a
ls

o 
re

qu
ire

 d
am

 b
re

ac
h 

in
un

da
tio

n 
m

ap
s 

to
 b

e 
pr

ep
ar

ed
. 

W
hi

le
 th

e 
St

at
e 

re
gu

la
te

s d
am

s 
to

 p
re

ve
nt

 fa
ilu

re
, s

af
eg

ua
rd

 lif
e,

 a
nd

 p
ro

te
ct

 p
ro

pe
rty

, 
so

m
e 

re
se

ar
ch

er
s 

do
ub

t t
ha

t t
he

 “
ov

er
al

l s
af

et
y 

of
 a

gi
ng

 fe
de

ra
l f

lo
od

 c
on

tro
l s

ys
te

m
s t

ha
t 

w
er

e 
no

t d
es

ig
ne

d 
w

ith
 c

lim
at

e 
ch

an
ge

 in
 m

in
d.

” 
Th

ey
 a

rg
ue

 th
at

 as
 C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 
ex

pe
rie

nc
es

 m
or

e 
in

te
ns

e s
to

rm
s,

 th
e 

ag
in

g 
da

m
s 

in
 th

e 
ar

ea
 c

ou
ld

 fa
il 

an
d/

or
 p

re
m

at
ur

el
y 

op
en

 an
d 

flo
od

 h
om

es
, s

ch
oo

ls
, b

us
in

es
se

s, 
an

d 
ro

ad
s.

 
In

 2
01

6,
 C

lim
at

e-
Sa

fe
 I

nf
ra

st
ru

ct
ur

e B
ill

 (
A

ss
em

bl
y 

Bi
ll 

[A
B]

 2
80

0)
 b

ec
am

e 
la

w
 a

nd
 

“e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

th
e C

lim
at

e-
Sa

fe
 I

nf
ra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
W

or
ki

ng
 G

ro
up

 to
 d

ev
el

op
 re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

to
 th

e C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 l

eg
is

la
tu

re
 o

n 
ho

w
 to

 b
ui

ld
 a

nd
 d

es
ig

n 
ou

r i
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

to
 b

e 
sa

fe
r f

or
 

Ca
lif

or
ni

an
s 

in
 th

e 
fa

ce
 o

f g
ro

w
in

g 
cl

im
at

e 
ex

tre
m

es
.”

 T
he

 W
or

ki
ng

 G
ro

up
’s

 2
01

8 
re

po
rt 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
ne

ar
ly

 7
00

 H
ig

h 
ha

za
rd

 d
am

s 
in

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 n

ee
di

ng
 re

pa
irs

 a
nd

 u
pg

ra
de

s.
  

 
Ely

sia
n

Py
ram

id

Ca
sta

ic
Lit

tle
ro

ck

De
vil

s G
ate

Ha
ro

ld 
Re

se
rvo

ir

Pa
los

 Ve
rd

es
 R

es

Ch
ev

y C
ha

se
 12

90

Sa
nta

 Yn
ez

 C
an

yo
n

We
stl

ak
e R

es
erv

oir

Lo
we

r S
an

 Fe
rn

an
do

Ea
gle

 R
oc

k

Lo
s A

ng
ele

s

40
5

10

60
5

11
0

71
0

10
5

14
13

8

60

39

91

11
8

13
4

1

2

19

11
0

21
0

57

27

72

17
0

21
3

66

23

10
7

18

42

10
3

90

47

71

22

2

39

2

39

91

90

20
19

 Lo
s A

ng
ele

s C
ou

nty
 

All
-H

az
ard

s M
itig

ati
on

 Pl
an

Le
ge

nd D
a
m

s
 W

it
h

 I
n

u
n

d
a

ti
o
n
 M

a
p

p
in

g

D
a
m

 I
n

u
n

d
a
ti
o
n

N
a
ti
o
n

a
l 
F

o
re

s
t

0
5

1
0

1
5

2
.5

M
ile

s

Da
m 

Br
ea

ch
 In

un
da

tio
n A

rea
s

Fig
ur

e 4
-3

V 
e n

 t u
 r 

a
C 

o u
 n 

t y

O 
r a

 n 
g e

C 
o u

 n 
t y

S a n  B e r n a r d i n o
C o u n t y

K 
e r

 n 
 C

 o 
u n

 t y

P a
 c 

i f 
i c

   O
 c 

e a
 n

So
ur

ce
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

o
f 
W

a
te

r 
R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

D
a
ta

b
a

s
e
 (

2
0
1
9
)

h
tt

p
s
:/

/f
m

d
s
.w

a
te

r.
c
a
.g

o
v

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

4-
14

 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

11
. D

ro
ug

ht
 I

de
nt

ifi
ca

tio
n 

Pr
of

ile
 

Pr
of

ile
 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

N
at

ur
e 

D
ro

ug
ht

 is
 a

 n
or

m
al

, 
re

cu
rre

nt
 fe

at
ur

e 
of

 v
irt

ua
lly

 a
ll 

cl
im

at
ic

 z
on

es
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 a
re

as
 o

f b
ot

h 
hi

gh
 

an
d 

lo
w

 ra
in

fa
ll,

 a
lth

ou
gh

 ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s 
w

ill
 v

ar
y 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ly

 fr
om

 o
ne

 re
gi

on
 to

 a
no

th
er

. 
D

ro
ug

ht
 d

iff
er

s 
fro

m
 n

or
m

al
 a

rid
ity

, w
hi

ch
 is

 a
 p

er
m

an
en

t f
ea

tu
re

 o
f t

he
 cl

im
at

e 
in

 a
re

as
 o

f l
ow

 
ra

in
fa

ll.
 D

ro
ug

ht
 is

 th
e 

re
su

lt 
of

 a
 n

at
ur

al
 d

ec
lin

e 
in

 th
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 p
re

ci
pi

ta
tio

n 
ov

er
 a

n 
ex

te
nd

ed
 

pe
rio

d 
of

 ti
m

e,
 t

yp
ic

al
ly

 o
ne

 o
r m

or
e 

se
as

on
s i

n 
le

ng
th

. O
th

er
 c

lim
at

ic
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

is
tic

s,
 s

uc
h 

as
 

hi
gh

 te
m

pe
ra

tu
re

, h
ig

h 
w

in
d,

 a
nd

 lo
w

 r
el

at
iv

e 
hu

m
id

ity
, i

m
pa

ct
 t

he
 se

ve
rit

y 
of

 d
ro

ug
ht

 co
nd

iti
on

s. 
Fo

ur
 c

om
m

on
 d

ef
in

iti
on

s 
fo

r d
ro

ug
ht

 ar
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 a
s f

ol
lo

w
s:

 
• 

M
et

eo
ro

lo
gi

ca
l 

dr
ou

gh
t 

is
 d

ef
in

ed
 s

ol
el

y 
on

 th
e 

de
gr

ee
 o

f d
ry

ne
ss

, e
xp

re
ss

ed
 a

s a
 

de
pa

rtu
re

 o
f a

ct
ua

l p
re

ci
pi

ta
tio

n 
fro

m
 a

n 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 a

ve
ra

ge
 o

r n
or

m
al

 a
m

ou
nt

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
m

on
th

ly
, s

ea
so

na
l, o

r a
nn

ua
l t

im
e 

sc
al

es
. 

• 
H

yd
ro

lo
gi

ca
l 

dr
ou

gh
t 

is
 re

la
te

d 
to

 th
e 

ef
fe

ct
s 

of
 p

re
ci

pi
ta

tio
n 

sh
or

tfa
lls

 o
n 

st
re

am
 fl

ow
s 

an
d 

re
se

rv
oi

r, 
la

ke
, a

nd
 g

ro
un

dw
at

er
 le

ve
ls

. 
• 

A
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l d
ro

ug
ht

 i
s 

de
fin

ed
 p

rin
ci

pa
lly

 in
 te

rm
s 

of
 s

oi
l m

oi
st

ur
e 

de
fic

ie
nc

ie
s 

re
la

tiv
e 

to
 w

at
er

 d
em

an
ds

 o
f p

la
nt

 li
fe

, 
us

ua
lly

 c
ro

ps
. 

• 
So

ci
oe

co
no

m
ic

 d
ro

ug
ht

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
s t

he
 su

pp
ly

 an
d 

de
m

an
d 

of
 e

co
no

m
ic

 g
oo

ds
 o

r 
se

rv
ic

es
 w

ith
 e

le
m

en
ts

 o
f m

et
eo

ro
lo

gi
ca

l, 
hy

dr
ol

og
ic

, a
nd

 ag
ric

ul
tu

ra
l d

ro
ug

ht
. 

So
ci

oe
co

no
m

ic
 d

ro
ug

ht
 o

cc
ur

s w
he

n 
th

e d
em

an
d 

fo
r w

at
er

 e
xc

ee
ds

 th
e 

su
pp

ly
 as

 a 
re

su
lt 

of
 w

ea
th

er
-re

la
te

d 
su

pp
ly

 sh
or

tfa
ll.

 It
 m

ay
 a

ls
o 

be
 re

fe
rre

d 
to

 a
s a

 w
at

er
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
dr

ou
gh

t. 
A

 d
ro

ug
ht

’s
 se

ve
rit

y 
de

pe
nd

s o
n 

nu
m

er
ou

s 
fa

ct
or

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

du
ra

tio
n,

 in
te

ns
ity

, a
nd

 g
eo

gr
ap

hi
c 

ex
te

nt
, a

s 
w

el
l a

s r
eg

io
na

l w
at

er
 s

up
pl

y 
de

m
an

ds
 b

y 
hu

m
an

s 
an

d 
ve

ge
ta

tio
n.

 D
ue

 to
 it

s 
m

ul
ti-

di
m

en
si

on
al

 n
at

ur
e,

 d
ro

ug
ht

 is
 d

iff
ic

ul
t 

to
 d

ef
in

e 
in

 e
xa

ct
 te

rm
s 

an
d 

po
se

s d
iff

ic
ul

tie
s 

in
 te

rm
s 

of
 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 ri

sk
 a

ss
es

sm
en

ts
. 

D
ro

ug
ht

 d
iff

er
s 

fro
m

 o
th

er
 n

at
ur

al
 h

az
ar

ds
 in

 th
re

e 
w

ay
s.

 F
irs

t, 
th

e 
on

se
t a

nd
 en

d 
of

 a
 d

ro
ug

ht
 ar

e 
di

ffi
cu

lt 
to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

du
e t

o 
th

e 
sl

ow
 a

cc
um

ul
at

io
n 

an
d 

lin
ge

rin
g 

of
 e

ffe
ct

s 
of

 a
n 

ev
en

t a
fte

r i
ts

 
ap

pa
re

nt
 en

d.
 S

ec
on

d,
 th

e 
la

ck
 o

f a
n 

ex
ac

t a
nd

 u
ni

ve
rs

al
ly

 a
cc

ep
te

d 
de

fin
iti

on
 a

dd
s t

o 
th

e 
co

nf
us

io
n 

of
 it

s 
ex

is
te

nc
e 

an
d 

se
ve

rit
y.

 T
hi

rd
, i

n 
co

nt
ra

st
 w

ith
 o

th
er

 n
at

ur
al

 h
az

ar
ds

, t
he

 im
pa

ct
 o

f 
dr

ou
gh

t i
s 

le
ss

 o
bv

io
us

 an
d 

m
ay

 b
e 

sp
re

ad
 o

ve
r a

 la
rg

er
 g

eo
gr

ap
hi

c a
re

a.
 T

he
se

 ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s 
ha

ve
 h

in
de

re
d 

th
e p

re
pa

ra
tio

n 
of

 d
ro

ug
ht

 co
nt

in
ge

nc
y 

or
 m

iti
ga

tio
n 

pl
an

s b
y 

m
an

y 
go

ve
rn

m
en

ts
.  

Lo
ca

tio
n 

Th
e 

oc
cu

rre
nc

e 
of

 d
ro

ug
ht

 is
 re

gi
on

al
 in

 n
at

ur
e 

an
d 

sc
op

e,
 w

hi
ch

 h
ol

ds
 tr

ue
 fo

r L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 
Co

un
ty

. A
s s

uc
h,

 w
he

n 
dr

ou
gh

t o
cc

ur
s i

t t
yp

ic
al

ly
 a

ffe
ct

s 
th

e 
en

tir
e 

co
un

ty
. 

H
is

to
ry

 

D
ro

ug
ht

 is
 a

 c
yc

lic
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 c
lim

at
e 

of
 C

al
ifo

rn
ia

, 
oc

cu
rri

ng
 in

 b
ot

h 
su

m
m

er
 a

nd
 w

in
te

r, 
w

ith
 a

n 
av

er
ag

e 
re

cu
rre

nc
e 

in
te

rv
al

 b
et

w
ee

n 
3 

an
d 

10
 y

ea
rs

. D
ro

ug
ht

s i
n 

Ca
lif

or
ni

a 
ov

er
 th

e p
as

t 1
00

 
ye

ar
s a

re
 li

st
ed

 a
s 

fo
llo

w
s.

 T
he

 m
os

t r
ec

en
t d

ro
ug

ht
 fr

om
 2

01
1 

to
 2

01
5 

w
as

 th
e d

rie
st

 4
-y

ea
r 

pe
rio

d 
on

 re
co

rd
 in

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 s

in
ce

 re
co

rd
ke

ep
in

g 
be

ga
n 

in
 1

89
5.

  
• 

19
17

-1
92

1,
 S

ta
te

w
id

e 
ex

ce
pt

 f
or

 c
en

tra
l S

ie
rra

 N
ev

ad
a 

an
d 

no
rth

 co
as

t 
• 

19
22

-1
92

6,
 S

ta
te

w
id

e 
ex

ce
pt

 f
or

 c
en

tra
l S

ie
rra

 N
ev

ad
a 

• 
19

28
-1

93
7,

 S
ta

te
w

id
e 

• 
19

43
-1

95
1,

 S
ta

te
w

id
e 

• 
19

59
-1

96
2,

 S
ta

te
w

id
e 

• 
19

76
-1

97
7,

 S
ta

te
w

id
e,

 e
xc

ep
t f

or
 s

ou
th

w
es

te
rn

 d
es

er
ts

 
• 

19
87

-1
99

2,
 S

ta
te

w
id

e 
• 

20
07

-2
00

9,
 S

ta
te

w
id

e,
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 t

he
 ce

nt
ra

l c
oa

st
 

• 
20

11
-2

01
5,

 S
ta

te
w

id
e 

CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

4-
15

 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

11
. D

ro
ug

ht
 I

de
nt

ifi
ca

tio
n 

Pr
of

ile
 

Pr
of

ile
 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

Ex
te

nt
 /

 
Se

ve
rit

y 

Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l D
ro

ug
ht

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
Ce

nt
er

 p
ro

du
ce

s d
ro

ug
ht

 m
on

ito
r m

ap
s 

fo
r t

he
 U

ni
te

d 
St

at
es

. I
t 

cl
as

si
fie

s 
dr

ou
gh

ts
 in

to
 fi

ve
 c

at
eg

or
ie

s:
 D

0 
is

 th
e 

le
as

t s
ev

er
e,

 w
ith

 a
bn

or
m

al
ly

 d
ry

 c
on

di
tio

ns
; 

an
d 

D
4 

is
 th

e 
m

os
t s

ev
er

e,
 w

ith
 e

xc
ep

tio
na

l d
ro

ug
ht

 co
nd

iti
on

s.
 C

al
ifo

rn
ia

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 
Co

un
ty

, w
as

 in
 s

om
e 

fo
rm

 o
f d

ro
ug

ht
 fo

r 3
76

 c
on

se
cu

tiv
e w

ee
ks

 fr
om

 D
ec

em
be

r 
20

, 2
01

1 
un

til
 

M
ar

ch
 1

4,
 2

01
9.

 A
s o

f A
ug

us
t 1

3,
 2

01
9,

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

re
m

ai
ns

 f
re

e 
of

 d
ro

ug
ht

.  

Re
cu

rre
nc

e 
Pr

ob
ab

ili
ty

 

Re
se

ar
ch

er
s 

fo
r C

al
ifo

rn
ia

’s
 F

ou
rth

 C
lim

at
e 

Ch
an

ge
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t h
av

e n
ot

ed
 th

at
 C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 h
as

 a 
“h

ig
hl

y 
va

ria
bl

e 
cl

im
at

e”
 w

ith
 w

et
 o

r d
ry

 p
er

io
ds

 th
at

 ca
n 

sp
an

 y
ea

rs
 an

d 
th

at
 ar

e 
“h

ea
vi

ly
 

af
fe

ct
ed

 b
y 

ex
tre

m
e 

pr
ec

ip
ita

tio
n 

ev
en

ts
.”

 F
ur

th
er

m
or

e,
 c

lim
at

e 
sc

ie
nt

is
ts

 al
so

 su
gg

es
t t

he
 

po
ss

ib
ili

ty
 o

f l
on

ge
r a

nd
 m

or
e 

de
st

ru
ct

iv
e d

ro
ug

ht
s w

ith
 c

lim
at

e 
ch

an
ge

. A
s s

uc
h,

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 i

s 
lik

el
y 

to
 ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

lo
ng

-te
rm

 d
ro

ug
ht

s a
t l

ea
st

 e
ve

ry
 d

ec
ad

e.
 

 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

12
. D

ro
ug

ht
 I

m
pa

ct
 

D
ro

ug
ht

 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
Se

ve
re

 d
ro

ug
ht

s c
an

 im
pa

ct
 th

e 
re

gi
on

’s
 a

gr
ic

ul
tu

re
, f

or
es

ts
, h

yd
ro

po
w

er
, g

ro
un

dw
at

er
 

su
pp

ly
, r

ec
re

at
io

n,
 a

qu
at

ic
 e

co
sy

st
em

s,
 as

 w
el

l a
s 

is
ol

at
ed

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 t
ha

t h
av

e 
lim

ite
d 

w
at

er
 s

up
pl

y.
  

 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

13
. O

ve
ra

ll 
Su

m
m

ar
y 

of
 V

ul
ne

ra
bi

lit
y 

to
 D

ro
ug

ht
 

D
ro

ug
ht

 

Su
m

m
ar

y 

Cl
im

at
e 

sc
ie

nt
is

ts
 p

re
di

ct
 th

at
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
an

d 
th

e 
re

st
 o

f s
ou

th
er

n 
Ca

lif
or

ni
a 

w
ill

 
ge

t d
rie

r a
nd

 n
or

th
er

n 
Ca

lif
or

ni
a 

w
ill

 g
et

 h
ot

te
r. 

Th
e 

re
su

lti
ng

 lo
ss

 o
f s

no
w

pa
ck

 in
 th

e 
Si

er
ra

 N
ev

ad
a 

w
ill

 m
ea

n 
le

ss
 w

at
er

 fo
r a

ll 
Ca

lif
or

ni
an

s 
– 

fa
rm

er
s,

 r
es

id
en

ts
, u

til
iti

es
, a

nd
 

ev
en

 h
at

ch
er

y 
fis

h.
 H

ow
ev

er
, w

hi
le

 d
ro

ug
ht

 ca
nn

ot
 b

e 
co

nt
ro

lle
d,

 a
cc

or
di

ng
 to

 th
e 

U
SG

S,
 

dr
ou

gh
t c

an
 b

e 
m

an
ag

ed
 in

 tw
o 

w
ay

s:
 th

ro
ug

h 
dr

ou
gh

t p
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
in

 h
el

pi
ng

 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 m

ak
e 

th
e 

be
st

 d
ay

-to
-d

ay
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
de

ci
si

on
s w

hi
le

 th
e 

dr
ou

gh
t i

s 
ta

ki
ng

 
pl

ac
e.

 D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

dr
af

tin
g 

of
 th

is
 p

la
n 

up
da

te
, t

he
 G

ov
er

no
r 

of
 C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 s
ig

ne
d 

an
 

ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
or

de
r d

ire
ct

in
g 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

St
at

e 
ag

en
ci

es
 to

 d
ev

el
op

 a
 W

at
er

 R
es

ili
en

ce
 P

or
tfo

lio
 

to
 “

en
su

re
 sa

fe
 a

nd
 d

ep
en

da
bl

e w
at

er
 s

up
pl

ie
s,

 fl
oo

d 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

an
d 

he
al

th
y 

w
at

er
w

ay
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

st
at

e’
s c

om
m

un
iti

es
, e

co
no

m
y 

an
d 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t.”

 

  
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

4-
16

 

4.
3 

E
A

R
T

H
Q

U
A

K
E

 Ta
bl

e 
4-

14
. E

ar
th

qu
ak

e 
Id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

Pr
of

ile
 

Pr
of

ile
 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

N
at

ur
e 

A
n 

ea
rth

qu
ak

e i
s 

a 
su

dd
en

 m
ot

io
n 

or
 tr

em
bl

in
g 

ca
us

ed
 b

y 
a 

re
le

as
e 

of
 s

tra
in

 a
cc

um
ul

at
ed

 in
 o

r 
al

on
g 

th
e 

ed
ge

 o
f E

ar
th

’s
 te

ct
on

ic
 p

la
te

s.
 T

he
 e

ffe
ct

s 
of

 a
n 

ea
rth

qu
ak

e 
ca

n 
be

 fe
lt 

fa
r b

ey
on

d 
th

e 
si

te
 o

f i
ts

 o
cc

ur
re

nc
e.

 E
ar

th
qu

ak
es

 u
su

al
ly

 o
cc

ur
 w

ith
ou

t w
ar

ni
ng

 a
nd

 ca
n 

ca
us

e m
as

si
ve

 d
am

ag
e 

an
d 

ex
te

ns
iv

e 
ca

su
al

tie
s i

n 
a 

fe
w

 s
ec

on
ds

. C
om

m
on

 e
ffe

ct
s 

of
 e

ar
th

qu
ak

es
 ar

e 
gr

ou
nd

 m
ot

io
n 

an
d 

sh
ak

in
g,

 s
ur

fa
ce

 fa
ul

t r
up

tu
re

s,
 an

d 
gr

ou
nd

 fa
ilu

re
. G

ro
un

d 
m

ot
io

n 
is

 th
e v

ib
ra

tio
n 

or
 s

ha
ki

ng
 o

f 
th

e 
gr

ou
nd

 d
ur

in
g 

an
 e

ar
th

qu
ak

e.
 W

he
n 

a 
fa

ul
t r

up
tu

re
s,

 s
ei

sm
ic

 w
av

es
 ra

di
at

e,
 c

au
si

ng
 th

e 
gr

ou
nd

 to
 v

ib
ra

te
. T

he
 s

ev
er

ity
 o

f t
he

 v
ib

ra
tio

n 
in

cr
ea

se
s w

ith
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f e

ne
rg

y 
re

le
as

ed
 a

nd
 

de
cr

ea
se

s w
ith

 d
is

ta
nc

e 
fro

m
 t

he
 ca

us
at

iv
e f

au
lt 

or
 e

pi
ce

nt
er

. S
of

t s
oi

ls
 c

an
 am

pl
ify

 g
ro

un
d 

m
ot

io
ns

.  
In

 a
dd

iti
on

 to
 g

ro
un

d 
m

ot
io

n,
 s

ev
er

al
 s

ec
on

da
ry

 n
at

ur
al

 h
az

ar
ds

 c
an

 o
cc

ur
 fr

om
 e

ar
th

qu
ak

es
, 

su
ch

 as
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g:

 
• 

Su
rf

ac
e 

Fa
ul

tin
g:

 S
ur

fa
ce

 fa
ul

tin
g 

is
 th

e 
di

ffe
re

nt
ia

l 
m

ov
em

en
t o

f t
w

o 
si

de
s o

f a
 fa

ul
t 

at
 th

e 
Ea

rth
’s

 s
ur

fa
ce

. D
is

pl
ac

em
en

t a
lo

ng
 fa

ul
ts

, b
ot

h 
in

 te
rm

s 
of

 le
ng

th
 an

d 
w

id
th

, 
va

rie
s 

bu
t c

an
 b

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 (e
.g

., 
up

 to
 2

0 
fe

et
), 

as
 ca

n 
th

e l
en

gt
h 

of
 th

e s
ur

fa
ce

 ru
pt

ur
e 

(e
.g

., 
up

 to
 2

00
 m

ile
s)

. 
Su

rfa
ce

 fa
ul

tin
g 

ca
n 

ca
us

e s
ev

er
e d

am
ag

e 
to

 li
ne

ar
 s

tru
ct

ur
es

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

ra
ilw

ay
s,

 h
ig

hw
ay

s,
 p

ip
el

in
es

, t
un

ne
ls

 an
d 

da
m

s.
 

• 
Li

qu
ef

ac
tio

n:
 

Li
qu

ef
ac

tio
n 

oc
cu

rs
 w

he
n 

se
is

m
ic

 w
av

es
 p

as
s t

hr
ou

gh
 sa

tu
ra

te
d 

gr
an

ul
ar

 
so

il,
 d

is
to

rti
ng

 it
s 

gr
an

ul
ar

 s
tru

ct
ur

e,
 an

d 
ca

us
in

g 
so

m
e 

of
 th

e 
em

pt
y 

sp
ac

es
 b

et
w

ee
n 

gr
an

ul
es

 to
 co

lla
ps

e.
 L

iq
ue

fa
ct

io
n 

ca
us

es
 la

te
ra

l s
pr

ea
ds

 (i
.e

., 
ho

riz
on

ta
l m

ov
em

en
ts

 o
f 

co
m

m
on

ly
 1

0 
to

 1
5 

fe
et

, b
ut

 u
p 

to
 1

00
 f

ee
t),

 fl
ow

 f
ai

lu
re

s 
(i.

e.
, 

m
as

si
ve

 fl
ow

s 
of

 s
oi

l, 
ty

pi
ca

lly
 h

un
dr

ed
s o

f f
ee

t, 
bu

t u
p 

to
 1

2 
m

ile
s)

, 
an

d 
lo

ss
 o

f b
ea

rin
g 

st
re

ng
th

 (i
.e

., 
so

il 
de

fo
rm

at
io

ns
 c

au
si

ng
 st

ru
ct

ur
es

 to
 se

ttl
e o

r t
ip

). 
Li

qu
ef

ac
tio

n 
ca

n 
ca

us
e s

ev
er

e 
da

m
ag

e 
to

 p
ro

pe
rty

.  
• 

La
nd

sl
id

es
/D

eb
ri

s 
Fl

ow
s:

 L
an

ds
lid

es
/d

eb
ris

 fl
ow

s 
oc

cu
r a

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
of

 h
or

izo
nt

al
 

se
is

m
ic

 in
er

tia
 f

or
ce

s 
in

du
ce

d 
in

 th
e 

sl
op

es
 b

y 
th

e 
gr

ou
nd

 sh
ak

in
g.

 T
he

 m
os

t c
om

m
on

 
ea

rth
qu

ak
e-

in
du

ce
d 

la
nd

sl
id

es
 in

cl
ud

e 
sh

al
lo

w
, d

is
ru

pt
ed

 la
nd

sl
id

es
 s

uc
h 

as
 ro

ck
 fa

lls
, 

ro
ck

sl
id

es
, a

nd
 so

il 
sl

id
es

. D
eb

ris
 fl

ow
s 

ar
e 

cr
ea

te
d 

w
he

n 
su

rfa
ce

 so
il 

on
 s

te
ep

 sl
op

es
 

be
co

m
es

 to
ta

lly
 s

at
ur

at
ed

 w
ith

 w
at

er
. O

nc
e 

th
e s

oi
l l

iq
ue

fie
s,

 it
 lo

se
s t

he
 a

bi
lit

y 
to

 h
ol

d 
to

ge
th

er
 an

d 
ca

n 
flo

w
 d

ow
nh

ill
 a

t v
er

y 
hi

gh
 s

pe
ed

s,
 ta

ki
ng

 v
eg

et
at

io
n 

an
d/

or
 st

ru
ct

ur
es

 
w

ith
 it

. S
lid

e 
ris

ks
 in

cr
ea

se
 a

fte
r a

n 
ea

rth
qu

ak
e 

du
rin

g 
a 

w
et

 w
in

te
r. 

 
Th

e 
tw

o 
m

os
t c

om
m

on
 m

ea
su

re
s 

of
 e

ar
th

qu
ak

e 
in

te
ns

ity
 u

se
d 

in
 th

e U
ni

te
d 

St
at

es
 ar

e 
th

e 
M

od
ifi

ed
 M

er
ca

lli
 I

nt
en

si
ty

 S
ca

le
, w

hi
ch

 m
ea

su
re

s 
fe

lt 
in

te
ns

ity
, a

nd
 p

ea
k 

gr
ou

nd
 ac

ce
le

ra
tio

n 
(P

GA
), 

w
hi

ch
 m

ea
su

re
s 

in
st

ru
m

en
ta

l i
nt

en
si

ty
 b

y 
qu

an
tif

yi
ng

 h
ow

 h
ar

d 
th

e 
ea

rth
 s

ha
ke

s i
n 

a 
gi

ve
n 

lo
ca

tio
n.

 M
ag

ni
tu

de
 (M

) i
s 

m
ea

su
re

d 
by

 th
e 

am
pl

itu
de

 o
f t

he
 e

ar
th

qu
ak

e w
av

es
 re

co
rd

ed
 

on
 a

 s
ei

sm
og

ra
ph

 u
si

ng
 a 

lo
ga

rit
hm

ic
 s

ca
le

. 

CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

4-
17

 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

14
. E

ar
th

qu
ak

e 
Id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

Pr
of

ile
 

Pr
of

ile
 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

Lo
ca

tio
n 

A
s i

n 
m

os
t o

f s
ou

th
er

n 
an

d 
co

as
ta

l C
al

ifo
rn

ia
, 

th
e p

ot
en

tia
l f

or
 e

ar
th

qu
ak

e 
da

m
ag

e 
ex

is
ts

 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

be
ca

us
e o

f t
he

 n
um

be
r o

f a
ct

iv
e 

fa
ul

ts
 in

 a
nd

 n
ea

r t
he

 co
un

ty
. 

Th
es

e f
au

lts
 a

re
 s

ho
w

n 
on

 th
e C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 G
eo

lo
gi

ca
l 

Su
rv

ey
 (C

GS
) 

Fa
ul

t A
ct

iv
ity

 M
ap

 o
f 

Ca
lif

or
ni

a.
 D

es
cr

ip
tio

ns
 o

f t
he

 a
ct

iv
e 

fa
ul

ts
 a

re
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

be
lo

w
. T

he
 lo

ca
tio

ns
 o

f t
he

 a
ct

iv
e 

an
d 

po
te

nt
ia

lly
 a

ct
iv

e 
fa

ul
ts

 a
re

 s
ho

w
n 

on
 F

ig
ur

e 
4-

4.
 S

om
e 

of
 th

e m
or

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 fa
ul

ts
 a

re
 

de
sc

rib
ed

 b
el

ow
: 

• 
M

al
ib

u 
C

oa
st

 f
au

lt 
sy

st
em

: T
he

 M
al

ib
u 

Co
as

t f
au

lt 
sy

st
em

 in
cl

ud
es

 th
e M

al
ib

u 
Co

as
t, 

Sa
nt

a 
M

on
ic

a,
 a

nd
 H

ol
ly

w
oo

d 
fa

ul
ts

. T
he

 s
ys

te
m

 b
eg

in
s i

n 
th

e 
H

ol
ly

w
oo

d 
ar

ea
, e

xt
en

ds
 

al
on

g 
th

e 
so

ut
he

rn
 b

as
e o

f t
he

 S
an

ta
 M

on
ic

a 
M

ou
nt

ai
ns

, a
nd

 p
as

se
s o

ffs
ho

re
 a 

fe
w

 m
ile

s 
w

es
t o

f P
oi

nt
 D

um
e.

 T
he

 1
97

3 
Po

in
t M

ug
u 

ea
rth

qu
ak

e 
is

 b
el

ie
ve

d 
to

 h
av

e 
or

ig
in

at
ed

 o
n 

th
is

 fa
ul

t s
ys

te
m

. 
• 

O
ak

 R
id

ge
 fa

ul
t 

sy
st

em
: 

Th
e 

O
ak

 R
id

ge
 f

au
lt 

sy
st

em
 is

 a
 s

te
ep

 (6
5 

de
gr

ee
s)

 s
ou

th
er

ly
 

di
pp

in
g 

re
ve

rs
e 

fa
ul

t t
ha

t e
xt

en
ds

 fr
om

 t
he

 S
an

ta
 S

us
an

a M
ou

nt
ai

ns
 w

es
tw

ar
d 

al
on

g 
th

e 
so

ut
he

rly
 si

de
 o

f t
he

 S
an

ta
 C

la
ra

 R
iv

er
 V

al
le

y 
an

d 
in

to
 th

e O
xn

ar
d 

Pl
ai

n.
 T

he
 s

ys
te

m
 is

 
m

or
e 

th
an

 50
 m

ile
s 

lo
ng

 o
n 

th
e m

ai
nl

an
d 

an
d 

m
ay

 e
xt

en
d 

an
 e

qu
al

 o
r g

re
at

er
 d

is
ta

nc
e 

of
fs

ho
re

. S
ev

er
al

 re
co

rd
ed

 e
ar

th
qu

ak
e 

ep
ic

en
te

rs
 o

n 
la

nd
 a

nd
 o

ffs
ho

re
 m

ay
 h

av
e 

be
en

 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

O
ak

 R
id

ge
 f

au
lt 

sy
st

em
. P

or
tio

ns
 o

f t
he

 s
ys

te
m

 ar
e 

zo
ne

d 
by

 th
e 

st
at

e a
s a

ct
iv

e.
 

• 
Pi

ne
 M

ou
nt

ai
n 

th
ru

st
 fa

ul
t 

an
d 

B
ig

 P
in

e 
fa

ul
t: 

Th
es

e t
w

o 
la

rg
e 

fa
ul

ts
 o

cc
ur

 in
 th

e 
m

ou
nt

ai
no

us
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 V
en

tu
ra

 C
ou

nt
y 

no
rth

 o
f t

he
 S

an
ta

 Y
ne

z 
fa

ul
t; 

th
e 

fa
ul

ts
 a

re
 

lo
ca

te
d 

9 
an

d 
16

 m
ile

s 
no

rth
 o

f t
he

 c
ity

 o
f O

ja
i, 

re
sp

ec
tiv

el
y.

 T
he

 P
in

e 
M

ou
nt

ai
n 

th
ru

st
 

fa
ul

t i
s 

re
po

rte
d 

to
 h

av
e r

up
tu

re
d 

th
e g

ro
un

d 
su

rfa
ce

 fo
r 3

0 
m

ile
s 

al
on

g 
its

 le
ng

th
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
no

rth
er

n 
Ve

nt
ur

a 
Co

un
ty

 e
ar

th
qu

ak
es

 o
f N

ov
em

be
r 1

85
2.

 
• 

Sa
n 

A
nd

re
as

 f
au

lt:
 S

an
 A

nd
re

as
 is

 th
e 

lo
ng

es
t a

nd
 m

os
t s

ig
ni

fic
an

t f
au

lt 
in

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
. 

Be
ca

us
e 

of
 c

le
ar

ly
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
hi

st
or

ic
al

 e
ar

th
qu

ak
e 

ac
tiv

ity
, t

hi
s 

fa
ul

t h
as

 b
ee

n 
de

si
gn

at
ed

 as
 ac

tiv
e 

by
 th

e S
ta

te
 o

f C
al

ifo
rn

ia
. 

Th
e 

la
st

 m
aj

or
 e

ar
th

qu
ak

e 
on

 th
is

 fa
ul

t 
ne

ar
 V

en
tu

ra
 C

ou
nt

y 
w

as
 th

e 
Fo

rt 
Te

jo
n 

ea
rth

qu
ak

e 
of

 1
85

7,
 w

hi
ch

 w
as

 e
st

im
at

ed
 a

t 
m

ag
ni

tu
de

 (M
) 8

.0
 a

nd
 w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
ca

us
ed

 co
ns

id
er

ab
le

 d
am

ag
e 

if 
th

er
e 

ha
d 

be
en

 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

 in
 th

e 
so

ut
he

rn
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 c
ou

nt
y.

 T
he

re
 is

 a
 5

9 
%

 c
ha

nc
e t

ha
t a

n 
M

 6
.7

 q
ua

ke
 

or
 la

rg
er

 w
ill

 o
cc

ur
 o

n 
th

is
 fa

ul
t i

n 
th

e n
ex

t 
30

 y
ea

rs
. 

• 
Sa

n 
C

ay
et

an
o–

R
ed

 M
ou

nt
ai

n–
Sa

nt
a 

Su
sa

na
 fa

ul
t 

sy
st

em
: T

hi
s 

fa
ul

t s
ys

te
m

 c
on

si
st

s 
of

 a
 m

aj
or

 s
er

ie
s 

of
 n

or
th

-d
ip

pi
ng

 re
ve

rs
e 

fa
ul

ts
 th

at
 ex

te
nd

 o
ve

r 1
50

 m
ile

s 
fro

m
 S

an
ta

 
Ba

rb
ar

a 
Co

un
ty

 in
to

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y.

 In
 th

is
 s

ys
te

m
, t

he
 S

an
 C

ay
et

an
o 

fa
ul

t i
s 

th
e 

gr
ea

te
st

 h
az

ar
d 

to
 V

en
tu

ra
 C

ou
nt

y;
 it

 is
 a

 m
aj

or
, 

no
rth

-d
ip

pi
ng

 re
ve

rs
e 

fa
ul

t t
ha

t e
xt

en
ds

 
fo

r 2
5 

m
ile

s 
al

on
g 

th
e n

or
th

er
n 

po
rti

on
 o

f t
he

 V
en

tu
ra

 B
as

in
. T

he
 S

an
 F

er
na

nd
o 

ea
rth

qu
ak

e 
of

 1
97

1,
 d

es
cr

ib
ed

 in
 th

e p
re

vi
ou

s 
se

ct
io

n,
 w

as
 c

au
se

d 
by

 a
ct

iv
ity

 a
lo

ng
 th

is
 

fa
ul

t. 
• 

Si
m

i–
Sa

nt
a 

R
os

a 
fa

ul
t 

sy
st

em
: T

hi
s 

fa
ul

t s
ys

te
m

 e
xt

en
ds

 fr
om

 t
he

 S
an

ta
 S

us
an

a 
M

ou
nt

ai
ns

 w
es

tw
ar

d 
al

on
g 

th
e n

or
th

er
n 

m
ar

gi
n 

of
 th

e S
im

i 
an

d 
Ti

er
ra

 R
ej

ad
a 

va
lle

ys
 

an
d 

al
on

g 
th

e s
ou

th
er

n 
sl

op
e a

nd
 c

re
st

 o
f t

he
 L

as
 P

os
as

 H
ill

s 
to

 th
ei

r w
es

te
rly

 
te

rm
in

at
io

n.
 

• 
V

en
tu

ra
-P

ita
s 

Po
in

t 
fa

ul
t: 

Th
e 

w
es

te
rn

 h
al

f 
of

 th
is

 fa
ul

t i
s 

kn
ow

n 
as

 th
e P

ita
s 

Po
in

t 
fa

ul
t, 

an
d 

th
e e

as
te

rn
 h

al
f 

is
 k

no
w

n 
as

 th
e V

en
tu

ra
 f

au
lt.

 T
he

 P
ita

s 
Po

in
t f

au
lt 

ex
te

nd
s 

of
fs

ho
re

 in
to

 th
e 

Pa
ci

fic
 O

ce
an

 a
nd

 is
 ro

ug
hl

y 
14

 m
ile

s 
lo

ng
. T

he
 V

en
tu

ra
 f

au
lt 

ex
te

nd
s 

in
to

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 o
f V

en
tu

ra
 a

nd
 S

ea
 C

lif
f 

an
d 

ru
ns

 ro
ug

hl
y 

pa
ra

lle
l 

to
 p

or
tio

ns
 o

f 
U

.S
. 1

01
 a

nd
 S

ta
te

 R
ou

te
 1

26
. 

Th
e 

fa
ul

t i
s 

ro
ug

hl
y 

12
 m

ile
s 

lo
ng

 a
nd

 is
 a

 le
ft-

re
ve

rs
e 

fa
ul

t. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

4-
18

 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

14
. E

ar
th

qu
ak

e 
Id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

Pr
of

ile
 

Pr
of

ile
 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

H
is

to
ry

 

A
s s

ho
w

n 
in

 F
ig

ur
e 

4-
5,

 a
cc

or
di

ng
 to

 th
e 

U
SG

S,
 1

63
 e

ar
th

qu
ak

es
 M

 5
.0

> 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

re
co

rd
ed

 in
 

so
ut

he
rn

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 s

in
ce

 17
69

. 
Fo

ur
 o

f t
he

se
 ea

rth
qu

ak
es

 h
av

e b
ee

n 
la

rg
er

 th
an

 M
 7

.0
 in

cl
ud

in
g:

 
• 

Sa
n 

Ju
an

 C
ap

is
tra

no
 E

ar
th

qu
ak

e 
(M

 7
.5

), 
D

ec
em

be
r 

8,
 1

81
2 

• 
K

er
n 

Co
un

ty
 E

ar
th

qu
ak

e 
(M

 7
.5

), 
Ju

ly
 2

1,
 1

95
2 

• 
W

es
t V

en
tu

ra
 E

ar
th

qu
ak

e 
(M

 7
.1

), 
D

ec
em

be
r 

21
, 1

81
2 

• 
 R

id
ge

cr
es

t, 
(M

 7
.1

), 
Ju

ly
 6

, 2
01

9 
In

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y,

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t e

ar
th

qu
ak

es
 o

ve
r t

he
 p

as
t 5

0 
ye

ar
s i

nc
lu

de
:  

• 
La

 H
ab

ra
 (M

 5
.1

), 
M

ar
ch

 2
8,

 2
01

4,
 r

es
ul

tin
g 

in
 a

 fe
w

 in
ju

rie
s 

an
d 

$1
0 

m
ill

io
n 

do
lla

rs
 in

 
da

m
ag

es
 

• 
Ch

in
o 

H
ill

s 
(M

 5
.5

), 
Ju

ly
 2

9,
 2

00
8,

 r
es

ul
tin

g 
in

 8
 in

ju
rie

s 
an

d 
lim

ite
d 

da
m

ag
es

 
• 

N
or

th
rid

ge
 (M

 6
.7

), 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
17

, 1
99

4,
 r

es
ul

tin
g 

in
 5

7 
de

at
hs

, 8
,7

00
 i

nj
ur

ie
s 

an
d 

up
 to

 
$4

0 
bi

lli
on

 d
ol

la
rs

 in
 d

am
ag

es
.  

• 
Si

er
ra

 M
ad

re
 (M

 5
.6

), 
Ju

ne
 2

8,
 1

99
, r

es
ul

tin
g 

in
 1

 d
ea

th
, 1

00
+ 

in
ju

rie
s 

an
d 

up
 to

 $
40

 
m

ill
io

n 
do

lla
rs

 in
 d

am
ag

es
. 

• 
U

pl
an

d 
(M

 5
.7

), 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

8,
 1

99
0,

 r
es

ul
tin

g 
in

 3
0 

in
ju

rie
s 

an
d 

$1
2.

7 
m

ill
io

n 
do

lla
rs

 in
 

da
m

ag
es

 
• 

W
hi

tte
r (

M
 5

.9
), 

O
ct

ob
er

 1
, 1

98
7,

 r
es

ul
tin

g 
in

 8
 d

ea
th

s,
 20

0 
in

ju
rie

s 
an

d 
$3

58
 m

ill
io

n 
in

 
da

m
ag

es
 

• 
Sa

n 
Fe

rn
an

do
 (M

 6
.6

), 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 9

, 1
97

1,
 r

es
ul

tin
g 

in
 5

8 
– 

65
 d

ea
th

s,
 20

0 
– 

2,
00

0 
in

ju
rie

s 
an

d 
up

 to
 $5

53
 m

ill
io

n 
in

 d
am

ag
es

 

Ex
te

nt
 /

 
Se

ve
rit

y 

Th
e 

st
re

ng
th

 o
f a

n 
ea

rth
qu

ak
e’

s g
ro

un
d 

m
ov

em
en

t 
ca

n 
be

 m
ea

su
re

d 
by

 P
GA

. P
GA

 m
ea

su
re

s 
th

e 
ra

te
 in

 c
ha

ng
e o

f m
ot

io
n 

re
la

tiv
e 

to
 th

e e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

ra
te

 o
f a

cc
el

er
at

io
n 

du
e t

o 
gr

av
ity

 (g
 =

 9
80

 
ce

nt
im

et
er

s 
pe

r s
ec

on
d,

 p
er

 s
ec

on
d)

. P
GA

 is
 u

se
d 

to
 p

ro
je

ct
 th

e r
is

k 
of

 d
am

ag
e 

fro
m

 f
ut

ur
e 

ea
rth

qu
ak

es
 b

y 
sh

ow
in

g 
ea

rth
qu

ak
e 

gr
ou

nd
 m

ot
io

ns
 th

at
 h

av
e a

 s
pe

ci
fie

d 
pr

ob
ab

ili
ty

 (e
.g

., 
10

%
, 

5%
, o

r 2
%

) o
f b

ei
ng

 e
xc

ee
de

d 
in

 5
0 

ye
ar

s.
 T

he
 g

ro
un

d 
m

ot
io

n 
va

lu
es

 a
re

 u
se

d 
fo

r r
ef

er
en

ce
 in

 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
de

si
gn

 fo
r e

ar
th

qu
ak

e 
re

si
st

an
ce

 an
d 

ca
n 

al
so

 b
e 

us
ed

 to
 a

ss
es

s r
el

at
iv

e h
az

ar
d 

be
tw

ee
n 

si
te

s w
he

n 
m

ak
in

g 
ec

on
om

ic
 a

nd
 sa

fe
ty

 d
ec

is
io

ns
. 

In
 2

00
8,

 C
GS

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 an

 u
pd

at
ed

 m
ap

 o
f e

ar
th

qu
ak

e 
sh

ak
in

g 
po

te
nt

ia
l f

or
 C

al
ifo

rn
ia

. 
Th

e 
m

ap
 

sh
ow

s t
he

 re
la

tiv
e 

in
te

ns
ity

 o
f g

ro
un

d 
sh

ak
in

g 
an

d 
da

m
ag

e 
in

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 f

ro
m

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 fu
tu

re
 

ea
rth

qu
ak

es
. R

eg
io

ns
 n

ea
r m

aj
or

, 
ac

tiv
e 

fa
ul

ts
 a

re
 s

ho
w

n 
in

 re
d 

an
d 

pi
nk

 a
nd

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

st
ro

ng
er

 
ea

rth
qu

ak
e 

sh
ak

in
g 

m
or

e 
fre

qu
en

tly
. R

eg
io

ns
 th

at
 ar

e 
di

st
an

t f
ro

m
 k

no
w

n,
 a

ct
iv

e 
fa

ul
ts

 a
re

 
sh

ow
n 

in
 o

ra
ng

e 
an

d 
ye

llo
w

 a
nd

 ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
lo

w
er

 le
ve

ls
 o

f s
ha

ki
ng

 le
ss

 fr
eq

ue
nt

ly
. F

ig
ur

e 
4-

6 
in

di
ca

te
s 

th
e l

ev
el

 o
f l

ow
-fr

eq
ue

nc
y 

sh
ak

in
g 

po
te

nt
ia

l i
n 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

(in
 w

hi
ch

 lo
ca

l s
oi

l 
co

nd
iti

on
s h

av
e g

re
at

er
 e

ffe
ct

 o
n 

lo
w

 fr
eq

ue
nc

y)
. I

n 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

3,
04

1.
91

 
(6

3.
90

%
) 

sq
ua

re
 m

ile
s 

w
ith

 v
io

le
nt

 lo
w

 f
re

qu
en

cy
 sh

ak
in

g 
po

te
nt

ia
l; 

an
d 

71
1.

01
 s

qu
ar

e m
ile

s 
(1

4.
93

%
) 

w
ith

 e
xt

re
m

e 
lo

w
 fr

eq
ue

nc
y 

sh
ak

in
g 

po
te

nt
ia

l. 
In

 u
ni

nc
or

po
ra

te
d 

ar
ea

s 
of

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 
Co

un
ty

, t
he

re
 a

re
 1

,7
83

.5
7 

(5
8.

65
%

) 
sq

ua
re

 m
ile

s 
w

ith
 v

io
le

nt
 lo

w
 fr

eq
ue

nc
y 

sh
ak

in
g 

po
te

nt
ia

l; 
an

d 
52

7.
60

 s
qu

ar
e m

ile
s 

(1
7.

35
%

) 
w

ith
 e

xt
re

m
e 

lo
w

 fr
eq

ue
nc

y 
sh

ak
in

g 
po

te
nt

ia
l. 

 

CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

4-
19

 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

14
. E

ar
th

qu
ak

e 
Id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

Pr
of

ile
 

Pr
of

ile
 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

Re
cu

rre
nc

e 
Pr

ob
ab

ili
ty

 

O
ng

oi
ng

 fi
el

d 
an

d 
la

bo
ra

to
ry

 s
tu

di
es

 su
gg

es
t t

he
 lik

el
y 

m
ax

im
um

 m
ag

ni
tu

de
s 

an
d 

re
cu

rre
nc

e 
in

te
rv

al
s 

fo
r t

he
 m

aj
or

 lo
ca

l f
au

lts
 a

re
 a

s 
fo

llo
w

s:
  

• 
Ch

at
sw

or
th

 fa
ul

t: 
M

 6
.0

-6
.8

, 
un

kn
ow

n 
re

cu
rre

nc
e 

in
te

rv
al

  
• 

H
ol

ly
w

oo
d 

fa
ul

t: 
M

 5
.8

-6
.5

, 
re

cu
rre

nc
e 

in
te

rv
al

 a
pp

ro
xim

at
el

y 
ev

er
y 

16
00

 y
ea

rs
 

• 
M

al
ib

u 
Co

as
t f

au
lt:

 M
 6

.7
, 

re
cu

rre
nc

e 
in

te
rv

al
 2

,9
08

 y
ea

rs
 

• 
N

ew
po

rt-
In

gl
ew

oo
d 

fa
ul

t: 
M

 6
.0

-7
.4

, 
un

kn
ow

n 
re

cu
rre

nc
e 

in
te

rv
al

 
• 

O
ak

 R
id

ge
 fa

ul
t: 

M
 6

.9
, 

re
cu

rre
nc

e 
in

te
rv

al
 2

99
 y

ea
rs

 
• 

Pa
lo

s 
Ve

rd
es

 fa
ul

t: 
M

 6
.0

-7
.0

 o
r g

re
at

er
, u

nk
no

w
n 

re
cu

rre
nc

e 
in

te
rv

al
 

• 
Re

d 
H

ill
 f

au
lt 

(a
ka

 E
tiw

an
da

 A
ve

nu
e f

au
lt)

: M
 6

.0
-7

.0
, 

un
kn

ow
n 

re
cu

rre
nc

e 
in

te
rv

al
  

• 
Ra

ym
on

d 
fa

ul
t: 

M
 6

.0
-7

.0
, 

re
cu

rre
nc

e 
in

te
rv

al
 a

pp
ro

xim
at

el
y 

45
00

 y
ea

rs
 

• 
Sa

n 
A

nd
re

as
 fa

ul
t: 

M
 6

.8
-8

.0
, 

re
cu

rre
nc

e 
in

te
rv

al
 o

f 1
40

 y
ea

rs
 o

n 
M

oj
av

e 
se

gm
en

t t
o 

30
0 

ye
ar

s 
• 

Sa
n 

Ca
ye

ta
no

 fa
ul

t: 
M

. 6
.5

-7
.3

, 
un

kn
ow

n 
re

cu
rre

nc
e 

in
te

rv
al

  
• 

Sa
n 

Fe
rn

an
do

 fa
ul

t: 
M

 6
.0

-6
.8

, 
re

cu
rre

nc
e 

in
te

rv
al

 a
pp

ro
xim

at
el

y 
ev

er
y 

20
0 

ye
ar

s 
• 

Sa
n 

Jo
se

 fa
ul

t: 
M

 6
.0

-6
.5

, 
un

kn
ow

n 
re

cu
rre

nc
e 

in
te

rv
al

 
• 

Sa
nt

a 
Su

sa
na

 fa
ul

t s
ys

te
m

: M
 6

.6
, 

re
cu

rre
nc

e 
in

te
rv

al
 1

38
 y

ea
rs

 
• 

Sa
nt

a 
M

on
ic

a 
fa

ul
t: 

M
 6

.0
-7

.0
, 

un
kn

ow
n 

re
cu

rre
nc

e 
in

te
rv

al
  

• 
Si

er
ra

 M
ad

re
 fa

ul
t: 

M
 6

.0
-7

.0
, 

re
cu

rre
nc

e 
in

te
rv

al
 s

ev
er

al
 th

ou
sa

nd
 y

ea
rs

 
• 

Si
m

i–
Sa

nt
a 

Ro
sa

 fa
ul

t: 
M

 6
.7

, r
ec

ur
re

nc
e 

in
te

rv
al

 9
33

 y
ea

rs
 

• 
Ve

rd
ug

o 
fa

ul
t: 

M
 6

.0
-6

.8
, 

un
kn

ow
n 

re
cu

rre
nc

e 
in

te
rv

al
  

• 
W

hi
tti

er
 fa

ul
t: 

M
 6

.0
-7

.2
, 

un
kn

ow
n 

re
cu

rre
nc

e 
in

te
rv

al
  

 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

15
. S

ei
sm

ic
 H

az
ar

d 
Im

pa
ct

 o
n 

La
nd

 A
re

a 

 
V

io
le

nt
 E

Q
 S

ha
ki

ng
  

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 S

ha
ki

ng
 

En
tit

y 
# 

of
 S

q.
 M

ile
s 

%
 of

 S
q.

 M
ile

s 
# 

of
 S

q.
 M

ile
s 

%
 of

 S
q.

 M
ile

s 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

3,
04

1.
91

 
63

.9
0 

71
1.

01
 

14
.9

3 

U
ni

nc
or

po
ra

te
d 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

1,
78

3.
57

 
58

.6
5 

52
7.

60
 

17
.3

5 

Su
pe

rv
is

or
ia

l 
D

is
tri

ct
 1

 
24

4.
34

 
99

.2
5 

0.
00

 
0.

00
 

Su
pe

rv
is

or
ia

l 
D

is
tri

ct
 2

 
16

1.
74

 
99

.9
4 

0.
00

 
0.

00
 

Su
pe

rv
is

or
ia

l 
D

is
tri

ct
 3

 
37

9.
41

 
87

.9
9 

41
.7

3 
9.

68
 

Su
pe

rv
is

or
ia

l 
D

is
tri

ct
 4

 
30

5.
40

 
69

.4
2 

0.
00

 
0.

00
 

Su
pe

rv
is

or
ia

l 
D

is
tri

ct
 5

 
1,

95
0.

78
 

69
.5

0 
66

9.
26

 
23

.8
4 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

4-
20

 

EQ
 =

 e
ar

th
qu

ak
e 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

16
. S

ei
sm

ic
 H

az
ar

d 
Im

pa
ct

 o
n 

V
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

Po
pu

la
tio

ns
 –

 P
eo

pl
e 

Ex
pe

rie
nc

in
g 

H
om

el
es

sn
es

s 

 
V

io
le

nt
 E

Q
 S

ha
ki

ng
 

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 S

ha
ki

ng
 

En
tit

y 
# 

of
 H

om
el

es
s 

 
%

 of
 H

om
el

es
s 

 
# 

of
 H

om
el

es
s 

 
%

 of
 H

om
el

es
s 

 

Ci
ty

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

31
,0

37
 

94
.2

5 
1,

82
7 

5.
55

 

U
ni

nc
or

po
ra

te
d 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

5,
32

8 
90

.6
0 

36
1 

6.
14

 

EQ
 =

 e
ar

th
qu

ak
e 

  

CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

4-
21

 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

17
. S

ei
sm

ic
 H

az
ar

d 
Im

pa
ct

 o
n 

C
ou

nt
y 

C
rit

ic
al

 F
ac

ili
tie

s 

 
V

io
le

nt
 E

Q
 S

ha
ki

ng
 

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 S

ha
ki

ng
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

/ 
A

ge
nc

y 
# 

of
 F

ac
ili

tie
s 

%
 of

 F
ac

ili
tie

s 
# 

of
 F

ac
ili

tie
s 

%
 of

 F
ac

ili
tie

s 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
A

ni
m

al
 C

ar
e &

 C
on

tro
l 

6 
85

.7
1 

1 
14

.2
9 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
31

4 
93

.1
8 

19
 

5.
64

 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
H

ea
lth

 Se
rv

ic
es

 
24

 
82

.7
6 

5 
17

.2
4 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Li

br
ar

y 
79

 
92

.9
4 

5 
5.

88
 

LA
CM

A
 &

 N
H

M
 

3 
75

.0
0 

1 
25

.0
0 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
O

ff
ic

e o
f E

du
ca

tio
n 

32
 

86
.4

9 
5 

13
.5

1 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
- 

O
th

er
 (o

ffi
ce

s)
 

24
 

10
0.

00
 

0 
0.

00
 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

10
3 

88
.0

3 
14

 
11

.9
7 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Pu

bl
ic

 H
ea

lth
 

13
 

92
.8

6 
1 

7.
14

 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

20
1 

87
.3

9 
21

 
9.

13
 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Sh

er
iff

’s
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
28

 
90

.3
2 

2 
6.

45
 

EQ
 =

 e
ar

th
qu

ak
e 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

18
. O

ve
ra

ll 
Su

m
m

ar
y 

of
 V

ul
ne

ra
bi

lit
y 

to
 E

ar
th

qu
ak

es
 

Ea
rt

hq
ua

ke
 

Su
m

m
ar

y 

O
ve

r 7
5%

 o
f u

ni
nc

or
po

ra
te

d 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
is

 a
t r

is
k 

to
 v

io
le

nt
 a

nd
 e

xt
re

m
e 

pe
rc

ei
ve

d 
sh

ak
in

g 
fro

m
 f

ut
ur

e 
ea

rth
qu

ak
es

. V
io

le
nt

 p
er

ce
iv

ed
 s

ha
ki

ng
 c

an
 p

ro
du

ce
 th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l f

or
 h

ea
vy

 d
am

ag
e.

 A
cc

or
di

ng
 to

 th
e U

SG
S,

 t
hi

s 
co

ul
d 

m
ea

n 
th

at
 w

el
l-d

es
ig

ne
d 

fra
m

ed
 s

tru
ct

ur
es

 co
ul

d 
be

 th
ro

w
n 

ou
t o

f p
lu

m
b 

an
d 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l b

ui
ld

in
gs

 c
ou

ld
 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
pa

rti
al

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
co

lla
ps

e.
 In

 e
xt

re
m

e 
sh

ak
in

g,
 th

e U
SG

S 
no

te
s t

ha
t s

om
e 

w
el

l-
bu

ilt
 w

oo
de

n 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

 co
ul

d 
be

 d
es

tro
ye

d,
 an

d 
m

os
t m

as
on

ry
 a

nd
 fr

am
e 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
 w

ith
 

fo
un

da
tio

ns
 co

ul
d 

be
 d

es
tro

ye
d.

  
M

an
y 

pe
op

le
 in

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 a

re
 lo

ok
in

g 
to

 b
oo

st
 se

is
m

ic
 re

gu
la

tio
ns

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 A
ss

em
bl

y 
Bi

ll 
(A

B)
 1

85
7 

an
d 

A
B 

26
81

. 
A

B 
18

57
 w

ill
 i

ns
tru

ct
 th

e 
Ca

lif
or

ni
a 

Bu
ild

in
g 

St
an

da
rd

s C
om

m
is

si
on

 t
o 

in
cr

ea
se

 m
in

im
um

 m
an

da
to

ry
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 fo
r 

m
os

t t
yp

es
 o

f b
ui

ld
in

gs
 in

 th
e 

st
at

e,
 su

ch
 as

 ap
ar

tm
en

ts
, o

ffi
ce

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
, a

nd
 co

m
m

er
ci

al
 

sp
ac

es
, b

ut
 w

ou
ld

 e
xe

m
pt

 s
in

gl
e-

fa
m

ily
 h

ou
se

s a
nd

 d
up

le
xe

s,
 w

hi
le

 A
B 

26
81

 w
ill

 r
eq

ui
re

 
ci

tie
s 

an
d 

co
un

tie
s t

o 
cr

ea
te

 a
n 

in
ve

nt
or

y 
of

 p
ot

en
tia

lly
 v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
bu

ild
in

gs
.  

  
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



V 
e n

 t u
 r 

a
C 

o u
 n 

t y

O 
r a

 n 
g e

C 
o u

 n 
t y

S a
 n 

 B
 e 

r n
 a 

r d
 i n

 o
C 

o u
 n 

t y
K 

e r
 n 

 C
 o 

u n
 t y

R 
i v

 e 
r s

 i d
 e

C 
o u

 n 
t y

S a
 n 

 D
 i e

 g 
o

C 
o u

 n 
t y

S a
 n 

t a
 

B 
a r

 b 
a r

 a
C 

o u
 n 

t y

San
And

re
as

S
a
n

A
n
d
re

a
s

S
a
n

A
n

d
re

a
s

B
ig

P
in

e

P
in

e
M

o
u
n
ta

in

R
e

d
M

o
u
n

ta
in

O
a
k

R
id

g
e

V
e

n
tu

ra

S
im

i-
S

a
n
ta

R
o
s
a

M
a
lib

u
C

o
a
s
t

S
a

n
C

a
y
e
ta

n
o5

15

840 10

21
5

80
5

21
0

60
5

11
0

71
0

10
1

Lo
s A

ng
ele

s

20
19

 Lo
s A

ng
ele

s C
ou

nty
 

All
-H

az
ard

s M
itig

ati
on

 Pl
an

P a
 c 

i f 
i c

   O
 c 

e a
 n

0
1
0

2
0

3
0

4
0

5
0

M
ile

s

Ma
jor

 Fa
ult

s i
n S

ou
the

rn
 C

ali
for

nia
Fig

ur
e 4

-4

Le
ge

nd
Qu

ate
rn

ary
 an

d Y
ou

ng
er 

Fa
ult

s
In

fe
rr

e
d

M
o
d

e
ra

te
ly

 C
o
n
s
tr

a
in

e
d

W
e
ll 

C
o

n
s
tr

a
in

e
d

So
ur

ce
Q

u
a

te
rn

a
ry

 F
a

u
lt
 a

n
d

 F
o
ld

 D
a
ta

b
a
s
e
 

o
f 

th
e

 U
n

it
e

d
 S

ta
te

s
 (

2
0
1
8
)

h
tt

p
s
:/

/e
a

rt
h
q

u
a
k
e
.u

s
g
s
.g

o
v

V 
e n

 t u
 r 

a
C 

o u
 n 

t y

O 
r a

 n 
g e

C 
o u

 n 
t y

S a
 n 

 B
 e 

r n
 a 

r d
 i n

 o
C 

o u
 n 

t y
K 

e r
 n 

 C
 o 

u n
 t y

R 
i v

 e 
r s

 i d
 e

C 
o u

 n 
t y

S a
 n 

 D
 i e

 g 
o

C 
o u

 n 
t y

S a
 n 

t a
 

B 
a r

 b 
a r

 a
C 

o u
 n 

t y

R
id

g
e

c
re

s
t 

E
a
rt

h
q

u
a
k
e

M
a
g

n
it
u

d
e
: 
7
.1

D
a
te

: 
2
0
1
9

K
e

rn
 C

o
u

n
ty

 E
a
rt

h
q

u
a
k
e

M
a
g

n
it
u

d
e
: 
7
.5

D
a
te

: 
1
9
5
2

W
e
s
t 
V

e
n
tu

ra
 E

a
rt

h
q

u
a
k
e

M
a
g

n
it
u

d
e
: 
7
.1

D
a
te

: 
1
8
1
2

S
a

n
 J

u
a

n
 C

a
p

is
tr

a
n
o
 E

a
rt

h
q

u
a
k
e

M
a
g

n
it
u

d
e
: 
7
.5

D
a
te

:1
8
1
2

5

15

840 10

21
5

80
5

21
0

60
5

11
0

71
0

10
1

Lo
s A

ng
ele

s

20
19

 Lo
s A

ng
ele

s C
ou

nty
 

All
-H

az
ard

s M
itig

ati
on

 Pl
an

P a
 c 

i f 
i c

   O
 c 

e a
 n

0
1
0

2
0

3
0

4
0

5
0

M
ile

s

Hi
sto

ric
al 

Ea
rth

qu
ak

es
 (1

76
9-2

01
9)

Fig
ur

e 4
-5

Le
ge

nd
Ea

rth
qu

ak
es

 M
 5.

0 >

7
+

6
 -

 7

5
 -

 6

Qu
ate

rn
ary

 an
d Y

ou
ng

er 
Fa

ult
s

In
fe

rr
e
d

M
o
d

e
ra

te
ly

 C
o
n
s
tr

a
in

e
d

W
e
ll 

C
o

n
s
tr

a
in

e
d

So
ur

ce
H

is
to

ri
c
 E

a
rt

h
q

u
a
k
e
s
, 

1
7
6
9
 t

o
 2

0
1
5
 -

C
a
li
fo

rn
ia

 (
M

a
g

n
it
u
d

e
 5

.0
-p

lu
s
) 

(2
0
1
9
)

h
tt

p
s
:/

/h
u

b
.a

rc
g
is

.c
o
m

/

E
a

rt
h

q
u

a
k
e

 C
a
ta

lo
g

s
 1

9
3
2
-2

0
1
9
 (

2
0
1
9
)

h
tt

p
:/

/s
e

rv
ic

e
.s

c
e
d
c
.c

a
lt
e
c
h
.e

d
u

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



V 
e n

 t u
 r 

a
C 

o u
 n 

t y

O 
r a

 n 
g e

C 
o u

 n 
t y

S a n  B e r n a r d i n o
C o u n t y

K 
e r

 n 
 C

 o 
u n

 t y Lo
s A

ng
ele

s

40
5

21
0

5

10

60
5

11
0

71
0

10
5

14
13

8

60

39

91

11
8

13
4

1

2

19

11
0

21
0

57

27

72

17
0

21
3

12
6

66

23

10
7

18

42

10
3

90

47

71

22

39
2

2

39

91

2

10
1

20
19

 Lo
s A

ng
ele

s C
ou

nty
 

All
-H

az
ard

s M
itig

ati
on

 Pl
an

P a
 c 

i f 
i c

   O
 c 

e a
 n

0
5

10
15

20
25

2.5
Mi
les

Se
ism

ic 
Ha

za
rd

 Ar
ea

s
Fig

ur
e 4

-6

Le
ge

nd
Qu

ate
rn

ary
 an

d Y
ou

ng
er 

Fa
ult

s
Inf
err
ed

Mo
de
rat
ely
 C
on
str
ain
ed

We
ll C
on
str
ain
ed

Pe
ak

 G
ro

un
d A

cc
ele

rat
ion

 ex
pr

es
se

d
in 

% 
g (

gr
av

ity
) fo

r 2
% 

pr
ob

ab
ilit

y o
f

ex
ce

ed
an

ce
 in

 50
 ye

ars
Se
ve
re 
(≥ 
0.3
5 t
o <
 0.
65
)

Vio
len
t (≥
 0.
65
 to
 < 
1.2
5)

Ex
tre
me
 (≥
 1.
25
 to
 < 
2.4
5)

Na
tio
na
l F
ore
st

So
ur

ce
Ea
rth
qu
ak
e S
ha
kin
g P
ote
nti
al 
for
 C
ali
for
nia
 (2
01
6)

htt
ps
://m
ap
s.c
on
se
rva
tio
n.c
a.g
ov

CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

4-
25

 

4.
4 

FL
O

O
D

 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

19
. F

lo
od

 I
de

nt
ifi

ca
tio

n 
Pr

of
ile

 

Pr
of

ile
 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

N
at

ur
e 

A
 fl

oo
d 

oc
cu

rs
 w

he
n 

th
e e

xis
tin

g 
ch

an
ne

l o
f a

 s
tre

am
, r

iv
er

, c
an

yo
n,

 o
r o

th
er

 w
at

er
co

ur
se

 c
an

no
t 

co
nt

ai
n 

ex
ce

ss
 ru

no
ff 

fro
m

 r
ai

nf
al

l 
or

 s
no

w
m

el
t, 

re
su

lti
ng

 in
 o

ve
rfl

ow
 o

nt
o 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 la
nd

s.
 In

 
co

as
ta

l a
re

as
, f

lo
od

in
g 

m
ay

 o
cc

ur
 w

he
n 

hi
gh

 w
in

ds
 o

r t
id

es
 re

su
lt 

in
 a

 s
ur

ge
 o

f s
ea

w
at

er
 in

to
 a

re
as

 
th

at
 ar

e 
ab

ov
e t

he
 n

or
m

al
 h

ig
h 

tid
e 

lin
e.

 
Se

co
nd

ar
y 

ha
za

rd
s 

fro
m

 f
lo

od
s 

ca
n 

in
cl

ud
e:

 

• 
Er

os
io

n 
or

 s
co

ur
in

g 
of

 s
tre

am
 b

an
ks

, r
oa

dw
ay

 e
m

ba
nk

m
en

ts
, f

ou
nd

at
io

ns
, f

oo
tin

gs
 fo

r 
br

id
ge

 p
ie

rs
, a

nd
 o

th
er

 fe
at

ur
es

. 

• 
Im

pa
ct

 d
am

ag
e 

to
 s

tru
ct

ur
es

, r
oa

ds
, b

rid
ge

s,
 c

ul
ve

rts
, a

nd
 o

th
er

 fe
at

ur
es

 fr
om

 h
ig

h-
ve

lo
ci

ty
 fl

ow
 a

nd
 fr

om
 d

eb
ris

 c
ar

rie
d 

by
 fl

oo
dw

at
er

s.
 S

uc
h 

de
br

is
 m

ay
 a

ls
o 

ac
cu

m
ul

at
e 

on
 b

rid
ge

 p
ie

rs
 a

nd
 in

 c
ul

ve
rts

, i
nc

re
as

in
g 

lo
ad

s o
n 

th
es

e f
ea

tu
re

s o
r c

au
si

ng
 o

ve
rto

pp
in

g 
or

 b
ac

kw
at

er
 e

ffe
ct

s.
 

• 
D

es
tru

ct
io

n 
of

 c
ro

ps
, e

ro
si

on
 o

f t
op

so
il,

 a
nd

 d
ep

os
iti

on
 o

f d
eb

ris
 a

nd
 se

di
m

en
t o

n 
cr

op
la

nd
s.

 

• 
Re

le
as

e 
of

 s
ew

ag
e 

an
d 

ha
za

rd
ou

s 
or

 to
xic

 m
at

er
ia

ls
 w

he
n 

w
as

te
w

at
er

 tr
ea

tm
en

t p
la

nt
s 

ar
e 

in
un

da
te

d,
 st

or
ag

e t
an

ks
 ar

e 
da

m
ag

ed
, a

nd
 p

ip
el

in
es

 a
re

 s
ev

er
ed

. 
In

 a
re

as
 s

uc
h 

as
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
th

at
 d

o 
no

t h
av

e e
xt

en
de

d 
pe

rio
ds

 o
f b

el
ow

-fr
ee

zin
g 

te
m

pe
ra

tu
re

s 
or

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t s

no
w

fa
ll,

 f
lo

od
s 

us
ua

lly
 o

cc
ur

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e s

ea
so

n 
of

 h
ig

he
st

 
pr

ec
ip

ita
tio

n 
or

 d
ur

in
g 

he
av

y 
ra

in
fa

lls
 a

fte
r p

ro
lo

ng
ed

 d
ry

 p
er

io
ds

. L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

is
 d

ry
 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
la

te
 s

pr
in

g,
 s

um
m

er
, 

an
d 

ea
rly

 fa
ll,

 a
nd

 re
ce

iv
es

 m
os

t o
f i

ts
 ra

in
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e w
in

te
r 

m
on

th
s.

 T
he

 ra
in

fa
ll 

se
as

on
 ex

te
nd

s f
ro

m
 N

ov
em

be
r 

th
ro

ug
h 

A
pr

il,
 w

ith
 a

pp
ro

xim
at

el
y 

95
%

 o
f 

th
e 

an
nu

al
 ra

in
fa

ll 
oc

cu
rri

ng
 d

ur
in

g 
th

is
 p

er
io

d.
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
av

er
ag

es
 o

nl
y 

15
 in

ch
es

 o
f 

pr
ec

ip
ita

tio
n 

pe
r y

ea
r; 

le
ss

 in
 a

lo
ng

 th
e 

co
as

t a
nd

 th
e 

de
ss

er
t, 

an
d 

m
or

e 
in

 th
e f

oo
th

ill
s 

an
d 

m
ou

nt
ai

ns
. 

Lo
ca

tio
n 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

ha
s a

n 
ex

te
ns

iv
e 

flo
od

 c
on

tro
l s

ys
te

m
 (F

ig
ur

e 
4-

7)
 th

at
 h

as
 el

im
in

at
ed

 m
uc

h 
of

 th
ei

r f
lo

od
 h

az
ar

ds
. H

ow
ev

er
, m

aj
or

 f
lo

od
 s

ou
rc

es
 in

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

st
ill

 in
cl

ud
e 

Ba
llo

na
 

Cr
ee

k,
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 R

iv
er

, M
al

ib
u 

Cr
ee

k,
 P

ac
ifi

c 
O

ce
an

, R
io

 H
on

do
 R

iv
er

, S
an

 G
ab

rie
l 

Ri
ve

r 
an

d 
its

 tr
ib

ut
ar

ie
s,

 S
an

ta
 C

la
ra

 R
iv

er
, T

op
an

ga
 C

an
yo

n,
 a

nd
 th

e 
Pa

ci
fic

 O
ce

an
.  

In
 th

e 
un

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 ar
ea

s 
of

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y,

 fl
oo

di
ng

 s
ou

rc
es

 in
cl

ud
e:

 
• 

Li
ttl

e 
Ro

ck
 a

nd
 B

ig
 R

oc
k 

W
as

he
s:

 F
lo

od
in

g 
oc

cu
rs

 w
he

n 
th

e f
lo

w
s 

re
ac

h 
th

e v
al

le
y 

flo
or

 
w

he
re

 th
e 

ch
an

ne
ls

 fl
at

te
n 

ou
t. 

Th
is

 a
llo

w
s 

th
e 

flo
w

s 
to

 sp
re

ad
 o

ve
r g

re
at

 d
is

ta
nc

es
, 

in
un

da
tin

g 
th

e 
su

rro
un

di
ng

 ar
ea

s.
  

• 
A

nt
el

op
e V

al
le

y:
 F

lo
od

in
g 

oc
cu

rs
 w

he
n 

flo
w

s 
fro

m
 t

he
 m

ou
nt

ai
ns

 re
ac

h 
th

e b
ro

ad
 

al
lu

vi
al

 p
la

n 
in

 th
e 

A
nt

el
op

e V
al

le
y 

ar
e 

no
rth

er
ly

 fr
om

 t
he

 m
ou

nt
ai

ns
 a

cr
os

s t
he

 b
ro

ad
 

al
lu

vi
al

 p
la

in
. D

ur
in

g 
m

in
or

 s
to

rm
s,

 m
uc

h 
of

 th
e f

lo
w

 p
er

co
la

te
s 

in
to

 th
e g

ro
un

d.
 In

 
m

aj
or

 s
to

rm
s,

 fl
ow

s 
re

ac
h 

th
e 

la
ke

 a
t t

he
 n

or
th

er
n 

co
un

ty
 lim

its
, 

w
he

re
 fl

oo
d 

flo
w

s 
po

nd
 

un
til

 e
va

po
ra

te
d.

  
• 

Fo
ot

hi
lls

 o
f S

an
ta

 C
la

rit
a:

 F
lo

od
in

g 
an

d 
m

ud
flo

w
s 

oc
cu

r i
n 

th
e 

fo
ot

hi
ll 

ar
ea

s 
du

rin
g 

in
te

ns
e r

ai
nf

al
l, 

us
ua

lly
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

fir
es

 in
 th

e 
up

st
re

am
 w

at
er

sh
ed

.  
• 

Co
as

tli
ne

: F
lo

od
in

g 
is

 c
au

se
d 

by
 w

av
es

 g
en

er
at

ed
 b

y 
w

in
te

r s
to

rm
s.

 T
he

 o
cc

ur
re

nc
e 

of
 

su
ch

 a 
st

or
m

 e
ve

nt
 in

 c
om

bi
na

tio
n 

w
ith

 h
ig

h 
as

tro
no

m
ic

al
 ti

de
s 

an
d 

st
ro

ng
 w

in
ds

 c
an

 
ca

us
e a

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t w

av
e 

ru
nu

p 
an

d 
al

lo
w

 s
to

rm
 w

av
es

 to
 re

ac
h 

hi
gh

er
 th

an
 n

or
m

al
 

el
ev

at
io

ns
 al

on
g 

th
e 

co
as

tli
ne

. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

4-
26

 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

19
. F

lo
od

 I
de

nt
ifi

ca
tio

n 
Pr

of
ile

 

Pr
of

ile
 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

H
is

to
ry

 

Th
e 

fe
de

ra
l g

ov
er

nm
en

t h
as

 d
ec

la
re

d 
13

 f
lo

od
in

g 
em

er
ge

nc
ie

s 
af

fe
ct

in
g 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y,

 
in

cl
ud

in
g:

 
• 

Ca
lif

or
ni

a 
Fl

oo
d 

an
d 

Er
os

io
n 

(D
is

as
te

r D
ec

la
ra

tio
n 

N
um

be
r 

[D
R]

-1
5)

, 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 5

, 1
95

4 
• 

Ca
lif

or
ni

a 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 (D

R-
47

), 
D

ec
em

be
r 

23
, 1

95
5 

• 
Ca

lif
or

ni
a 

H
ea

vy
 R

ai
ns

to
rm

s,
 F

lo
od

 (D
R-

82
), 

A
pr

il 
4,

 1
95

8 
• 

Ca
lif

or
ni

a 
Fl

oo
ds

 (D
R-

12
2)

, 
M

ar
ch

 6
, 1

96
2 

• 
Ca

lif
or

ni
a 

Se
ve

re
 S

to
rm

s,
 F

lo
od

in
g 

(D
R-

13
8)

, 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

4,
 1

96
2 

• 
Ca

lif
or

ni
a 

Se
ve

re
 S

to
rm

s,
 H

ea
vy

 R
ai

ns
, F

lo
od

in
g 

(D
R-

14
5)

, 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

5,
 1

96
3 

• 
Ca

lif
or

ni
a 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 (D
R-

27
0)

, 
A

ug
us

t 1
5,

 1
96

9 
• 

Ca
lif

or
ni

a 
W

in
te

r S
to

rm
s 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 (D
R-

54
7)

, 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 1

5,
 1

97
8 

• 
So

ut
he

rn
 C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 W
in

te
r S

to
rm

s 
(D

R-
61

5)
, 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 7
 a

nd
 2

1,
 1

98
0 

• 
Co

as
ta

l S
to

rm
s 

(D
R-

81
2)

, 
D

ec
em

be
r 

21
, 1

98
8 

• 
Ca

lif
or

ni
a 

W
in

te
r S

to
rm

s 
(D

R-
93

5)
, 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 1
2 

an
d 

19
, 1

99
2 

• 
Ca

lif
or

ni
a 

W
in

te
r S

to
rm

s 
(D

R-
97

9)
, 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

7,
 1

99
3-

Fe
br

ua
ry

 1
9,

 1
99

3 
• 

Ca
lif

or
ni

a 
Se

ve
re

 W
in

te
r S

to
rm

s,
 F

lo
od

in
g,

 a
nd

 M
ud

sl
id

es
 (D

R-
43

05
), 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

18
, 

20
17

-J
an

ua
ry

 2
3,

 2
01

7 

Ex
te

nt
 /

 
Se

ve
rit

y 

Th
e 

m
ag

ni
tu

de
 o

f f
lo

od
in

g 
th

at
 is

 u
se

d 
as

 th
e s

ta
nd

ar
d 

fo
r f

lo
od

pl
ai

n 
m

an
ag

em
en

t i
n 

th
e 

U
ni

te
d 

St
at

es
 is

 a
 fl

oo
d 

w
ith

 a
 p

ro
ba

bi
lit

y 
of

 o
cc

ur
re

nc
e 

of
 1

%
 in

 a
ny

 g
iv

en
 y

ea
r. 

Th
is

 fl
oo

d 
is

 a
ls

o 
kn

ow
n 

as
 th

e 
10

0-
ye

ar
 f

lo
od

 (i
.e

., 
ba

se
 fl

oo
d)

. T
he

 1
00

-y
ea

r 
flo

od
, a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
th

e 5
00

-y
ea

r 
flo

od
 

(0
.2

%
), 

ar
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 S

pe
ci

al
 F

lo
od

 H
az

ar
d 

A
re

as
 (S

FH
A

) 
an

d 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

on
 F

EM
A

’s
 D

ig
it 

Fl
oo

d 
In

su
ra

nc
e 

Ra
te

 M
ap

s (
D

IF
RM

). 
Th

e 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
D

FI
RM

 (
Fi

gu
re

 4
-8

) i
de

nt
ifi

es
 

4.
19

 s
qu

ar
e m

ile
s 

(0
.0

9%
) 

w
ith

 a
 1

%
 a

nn
ua

l c
ha

nc
e o

f f
lo

od
in

g,
 a

nd
 24

3.
32

 s
qu

ar
e 

m
ile

s 
(5

.1
1%

) 
w

ith
 a

 0
.2

%
 a

nn
ua

l c
ha

nc
e 

of
 fl

oo
di

ng
. I

n 
th

e 
un

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 ar
ea

s 
of

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y,

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
1.

23
 s

qu
ar

e m
ile

s 
(0

.0
4%

) 
w

ith
 a

 1
%

 a
nn

ua
l c

ha
nc

e o
f f

lo
od

in
g,

 a
nd

 a
n 

ad
di

tio
na

l 6
4.

77
 

sq
ua

re
 m

ile
s 

(2
.1

3 
%

) w
ith

 a
 0

.2
%

 a
nn

ua
l c

ha
nc

e o
f f

lo
od

in
g.

 

Re
cu

rre
nc

e 
Pr

ob
ab

ili
ty

 
Fl

oo
ds

 c
an

 o
cc

ur
 at

 a
ny

 ti
m

e 
bu

t a
re

 m
os

t c
om

m
on

 w
ith

 w
in

te
r 

st
or

m
s 

pa
ck

ed
 w

ith
 s

ub
tro

pi
ca

l 
m

oi
st

ur
e.

 

  
 

CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

4-
27

 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

20
. F

lo
od

 I
m

pa
ct

 o
n 

La
nd

 A
re

a 

 
0.

2%
 A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
of

 F
lo

od
in

g 
1%

 A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

of
 F

lo
od

in
g 

En
tit

y 
# 

of
 S

q.
 M

ile
s 

%
 of

 S
q.

 M
ile

s 
# 

of
 S

q.
 M

ile
s 

%
 of

 S
q.

 M
ile

s 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

24
3.

32
 

5.
11

 
4.

19
 

0.
09

 

U
ni

nc
or

po
ra

te
d 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

64
.7

7 
2.

13
 

1.
23

 
0.

04
 

Su
pe

rv
is

or
ia

l 
D

is
tri

ct
 1

 
27

.1
4 

11
.0

2 
0.

90
 

0.
37

 

Su
pe

rv
is

or
ia

l 
D

is
tri

ct
 2

 
19

.3
2 

11
.9

4 
0.

20
 

0.
12

 

Su
pe

rv
is

or
ia

l 
D

is
tri

ct
 3

 
4.

38
 

1.
01

 
1.

31
 

0.
30

 

Su
pe

rv
is

or
ia

l 
D

is
tri

ct
 4

 
80

.0
6 

18
.2

0 
0.

32
 

0.
07

 

Su
pe

rv
is

or
ia

l 
D

is
tri

ct
 5

 
11

2.
39

 
4.

00
 

1.
45

 
0.

05
 

 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

21
. F

lo
od

 I
m

pa
ct

 o
n 

V
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

Po
pu

la
tio

ns
 –

 P
eo

pl
e 

Ex
pe

rie
nc

in
g 

H
om

el
es

sn
es

s 

 
0.

2%
 A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
of

 F
lo

od
in

g 
1%

 A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

of
 F

lo
od

in
g 

En
tit

y 
# 

of
 H

om
el

es
s 

 
%

 of
 H

om
el

es
s 

 
# 

of
 H

om
el

es
s 

 
%

 of
 H

om
el

es
s 

 

Ci
ty

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

1,
60

1 
4.

86
 

87
 

0.
26

 

U
ni

nc
or

po
ra

te
d 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

17
0 

2.
88

 
0 

0.
00

 

  
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

4-
28

 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

22
. F

lo
od

 I
m

pa
ct

 o
n 

C
ou

nt
y 

C
rit

ic
al

 F
ac

ili
tie

s 

 
0.

2%
 A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
of

 F
lo

od
in

g 
1%

 A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

of
 F

lo
od

in
g 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

/ 
A

ge
nc

y 
# 

of
 F

ac
ili

tie
s 

%
 of

 F
ac

ili
tie

s 
# 

of
 F

ac
ili

tie
s 

%
 of

 F
ac

ili
tie

s 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
A

ni
m

al
 C

ar
e &

 C
on

tro
l 

2 
28

.5
7 

0 
0.

00
 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

46
 

13
.6

5 
0 

0.
00

 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
H

ea
lth

 Se
rv

ic
es

 
5 

17
.2

4 
0 

0.
00

 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Li

br
ar

y 
15

 
17

.6
5 

0 
0.

00
 

LA
CM

A
 &

 N
H

M
 

0 
0.

00
 

0 
0.

00
 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
O

ff
ic

e o
f E

du
ca

tio
n 

5 
13

.5
1 

0 
0.

00
 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
- 

O
th

er
 (o

ffi
ce

s)
 

2 
8.

33
 

0 
0.

00
 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

8 
6.

84
 

0 
0.

00
 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Pu

bl
ic

 H
ea

lth
 

0 
0 

0 
0.

00
 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

41
 

17
.3

8 
1 

0.
43

 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Sh

er
iff

’s
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
5 

16
.1

3 
0 

0.
00

0 

  
 

CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

4-
29

 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

23
. O

ve
ra

ll 
Su

m
m

ar
y 

of
 V

ul
ne

ra
bi

lit
y 

to
 F

lo
od

s 

Fl
oo

d 

Su
m

m
ar

y 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

ha
s a

 lo
ng

 h
is

to
ry

 o
f m

od
er

at
e 

to
 s

ev
er

e f
lo

od
in

g 
du

rin
g 

m
aj

or
 

st
or

m
s.

 In
 th

e L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 b
as

in
 ar

ea
, a

n 
ex

te
ns

iv
e 

flo
od

 c
on

tro
l s

ys
te

m
 h

as
 el

im
in

at
ed

 
m

uc
h 

of
 th

is
 p

ro
bl

em
. H

ow
ev

er
, i

n 
th

e 
le

ss
 d

en
se

ly
 p

op
ul

at
ed

 ar
ea

s 
w

he
re

 re
la

tiv
el

y 
fe

w
 

flo
od

 c
on

tro
ls

 h
av

e b
ee

n 
co

ns
tru

ct
ed

, f
lo

od
in

g 
re

m
ai

ns
 a

 p
ro

bl
em

. I
n 

ar
ea

s 
w

ith
 a

llu
vi

al
 

fa
ns

, f
lo

od
 fl

ow
s 

di
sc

ha
rg

e 
fro

m
 t

he
 m

ou
nt

ai
no

us
 ca

ny
on

s i
n 

an
 u

nc
on

tro
lle

d 
m

an
ne

r 
on

to
 th

e 
de

se
rt 

flo
or

, t
he

re
by

 re
su

lti
ng

 in
 w

id
es

pr
ea

d 
da

m
ag

e 
to

 a
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l l
an

d,
 

bu
ild

in
gs

, a
nd

 in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e.
 In

 th
e 

fo
ot

hi
ll 

ar
ea

s 
th

at
 ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

in
te

ns
e r

ai
nf

al
l, 

m
ud

flo
w

s 
po

se
 a 

ris
k 

to
 th

os
e d

ow
ns

tre
am

. F
in

al
ly

, 
al

on
g 

th
e c

oa
st

, w
av

es
 g

en
er

at
ed

 b
y 

w
in

te
r s

to
rm

s 
in

 c
om

bi
na

tio
n 

w
ith

 h
ig

h 
as

tro
no

m
ic

al
 ti

de
s 

an
d 

st
ro

ng
 w

in
ds

 ca
n 

ca
us

e a
 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 w

av
e 

ru
nu

p,
 re

su
lti

ng
 in

 e
ro

si
on

 an
d 

co
as

ta
l f

lo
od

in
g 

to
 lo

w
-ly

in
g 

po
rti

on
s o

f 
th

e 
sh

or
el

in
e.

 
A

cc
or

di
ng

 to
 th

e 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
, t

he
re

 a
re

 5
5 

Re
pe

tit
iv

e 
Lo

ss
 (R

L)
 

pr
op

er
tie

s 
in

 2
2 

RL
 a

re
as

 o
f u

ni
nc

or
po

ra
te

d 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
as

 o
f t

he
 la

st
 s

ub
m

itt
ed

 
20

19
 C

om
m

un
ity

 R
at

in
g 

Sy
st

em
 (C

RS
) 

Re
ce

rti
fic

at
io

n.
 A

 R
ep

et
iti

ve
 L

os
s 

(R
L)

 p
ro

pe
rty

 
is

 a
ny

 in
su

ra
bl

e 
bu

ild
in

g 
fo

r w
hi

ch
 tw

o 
or

 m
or

e 
cl

ai
m

s 
of

 m
or

e 
th

an
 $1

,0
00

 w
er

e 
pa

id
 b

y 
th

e 
N

at
io

na
l F

lo
od

 In
su

ra
nc

e 
Pr

og
ra

m
 (

N
FI

P)
 i

n 
an

y 
ro

lli
ng

 1
0-

ye
ar

 p
er

io
d,

 s
in

ce
 1

97
8.

 
U

pd
at

ed
 lo

ca
tio

n 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ab

ou
t R

L 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

in
 th

e 
un

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 ar
ea

s o
f L

os
 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

w
er

e 
no

t a
va

ila
bl

e 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

dr
af

tin
g 

of
 th

is
 p

la
n.

 D
at

a 
fro

m
 2

01
1 

sh
ow

ed
 th

at
 26

 R
L 

pr
op

er
tie

s 
w

er
e 

lo
ca

te
d 

in
 th

e 
SF

H
A

. A
t t

he
 ti

m
e,

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 s
ta

te
d,

 “t
he

 m
aj

or
ity

 o
f t

he
 re

pe
tit

iv
e 

lo
ss

es
 ar

e 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
ith

 lo
ca

liz
ed

 
ur

ba
n 

dr
ai

na
ge

 fl
oo

d 
pr

ob
le

m
s,

 e
ve

n 
fo

r p
ro

pe
rti

es
 w

ith
in

 a
 F

EM
A

-d
es

ig
na

te
d 

flo
od

 
zo

ne
.”

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 o
ve

rs
ee

s R
L 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
pr

oj
ec

ts
. 

 
 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Lo
s A

ng
ele

s

40
5

21
0

5

10

60
5

11
0

71
0

10
5

14
13

8

60

39

91

11
8

13
4

1

2

19

11
0

21
0

57

27

72

17
0

21
3

12
6

66

23

10
7

18

42

10
3

90

47

71

22

2

39
2

2

39

91

90

10
1

20
19

 Lo
s A

ng
ele

s C
ou

nty
 

All
-H

az
ard

s M
itig

ati
on

 Pl
an

Le
ge

nd D
e
b

ri
s
 B

a
s
in

C
o
n

c
re

te
 L

in
e

d
 C

h
a
n
n
e
ls

S
o

ft
 B

o
tt
o

m
 C

h
a
n
n
e
ls

L
A

C
F

C
D

 l
e
v
e
e
s

U
S

A
C

E
 l
e
v
e
e
s

N
a
ti
o
n

a
l 
F

o
re

s
t

0
5

1
0

1
5

2
.5

M
ile

s

Lo
s A

ng
ele

s C
ou

nty
 Fl

oo
d C

on
tro

l S
ys

tem
Fig

ur
e 4

-7

V 
e n

 t u
 r 

a
C 

o u
 n 

t y

O 
r a

 n 
g e

C 
o u

 n 
t y

S a n  B e r n a r d i n o
C o u n t y

K 
e r

 n 
 C

 o 
u n

 t y

P a
 c 

i f 
i c

   O
 c 

e a
 n

So
ur

ce
D

P
W

 (
2

0
1
9
)

h
tt

p
:/

/e
g
is

g
c
x
.i
s
d
.l
a
c
o
u
n
ty

.g
o
v

Lo
s A

ng
ele

s

40
5

21
0

5

10

60
5

11
0

71
0

10
5

14
13

8

60

39

91

11
8

13
4

1

2

19

11
0

21
0

57

27

72

17
0

21
3

12
6

66

23

10
7

18

42

10
3

90

47

71

22

2

39
2

2

39

91

90

10
1

20
19

 Lo
s A

ng
ele

s C
ou

nty
 

All
-H

az
ard

s M
itig

ati
on

 Pl
an

Le
ge

nd
FE

MA
 Fl

oo
d Z

on
es

1
%

 A
n

n
u

a
l 
C

h
a
n
c
e
 F

lo
o
d

0
.2

%
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
C

h
a
n
c
e
 F

lo
o
d

N
a
ti
o
n

a
l 
F

o
re

s
t

0
5

1
0

1
5

2
.5

M
ile

s

Sp
ec

ial
 Fl

oo
d H

az
ard

 Ar
ea

s
Fig

ur
e 4

-8

V 
e n

 t u
 r 

a
C 

o u
 n 

t y

O 
r a

 n 
g e

C 
o u

 n 
t y

S a n  B e r n a r d i n o
C o u n t y

K 
e r

 n 
 C

 o 
u n

 t y

P a
 c 

i f 
i c

   O
 c 

e a
 n

So
ur

ce
F

E
M

A
 D

ig
it
a

l 
F

lo
o
d

 I
n
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 R

a
te

 M
a
p

(2
0

1
6

, 
2
0
1
8
)

h
tt

p
s
:/

/g
e

o
h

u
b
.l
a
c
it
y
.o

rg

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

4-
32

 

4.
5 

LA
N

D
SL

ID
E

 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

24
. L

an
ds

lid
e 

Id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
Pr

of
ile

 

Pr
of

ile
 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

N
at

ur
e 

La
nd

sl
id

e 
is

 a
 g

en
er

al
 te

rm
 f

or
 th

e d
is

lo
dg

in
g 

an
d 

fa
ll 

of
 a

 m
as

s 
of

 s
oi

l o
r r

oc
ks

 a
lo

ng
 a

 s
lo

pe
d 

su
rfa

ce
, o

r f
or

 th
e d

is
lo

dg
ed

 m
as

s 
its

el
f. 

Th
e 

te
rm

 is
 u

se
d 

fo
r v

ar
yi

ng
 p

he
no

m
en

a,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

m
ud

flo
w

s,
 m

ud
sl

id
es

, d
eb

ris
 fl

ow
s,

 ro
ck

 fa
lls

, r
oc

ks
lid

es
, d

eb
ris

 a
va

la
nc

he
s,

 d
eb

ris
 s

lid
es

, a
nd

 
sl

um
p-

ea
rth

 fl
ow

s.
 L

an
ds

lid
es

 m
ay

 r
es

ul
t f

ro
m

 a
 w

id
e 

ra
ng

e 
of

 c
om

bi
na

tio
ns

 o
f n

at
ur

al
 ro

ck
, s

oi
l, 

or
 a

rti
fic

ia
l 

fil
l. 

Th
e 

su
sc

ep
tib

ili
ty

 o
f h

ill
si

de
 a

nd
 m

ou
nt

ai
no

us
 a

re
as

 to
 la

nd
sl

id
es

 d
ep

en
ds

 o
n 

va
ria

tio
ns

 in
 g

eo
lo

gy
, t

op
og

ra
ph

y,
 v

eg
et

at
io

n,
 an

d 
w

ea
th

er
. L

an
ds

lid
es

 m
ay

 a
ls

o 
oc

cu
r b

ec
au

se
 o

f 
in

di
sc

rim
in

at
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f s
lo

pi
ng

 g
ro

un
d 

or
 th

e c
re

at
io

n 
of

 c
ut

-a
nd

-fi
ll 

sl
op

es
 in

 a
re

as
 o

f 
un

st
ab

le
 o

r i
na

de
qu

at
el

y 
st

ab
le

 g
eo

lo
gi

c 
co

nd
iti

on
s.

 
A

dd
iti

on
al

ly
, l

an
ds

lid
es

 o
fte

n 
oc

cu
r t

og
et

he
r w

ith
 o

th
er

 n
at

ur
al

 h
az

ar
ds

, t
he

re
by

 ex
ac

er
ba

tin
g 

co
nd

iti
on

s,
 as

 d
es

cr
ib

ed
 b

el
ow

: 
• 

Sh
ak

in
g 

du
e 

to
 ea

rth
qu

ak
es

 ca
n 

tri
gg

er
 e

ve
nt

s r
an

gi
ng

 fr
om

 r
oc

k 
fa

lls
 a

nd
 to

pp
le

s t
o 

m
as

si
ve

 s
lid

es
. 

• 
In

te
ns

e o
r p

ro
lo

ng
ed

 p
re

ci
pi

ta
tio

n 
th

at
 c

au
se

s f
lo

od
in

g 
ca

n 
al

so
 s

at
ur

at
e s

lo
pe

s a
nd

 ca
us

e 
fa

ilu
re

s 
le

ad
in

g 
to

 la
nd

sl
id

es
. 

• 
W

ild
fir

es
 c

an
 re

m
ov

e 
ve

ge
ta

tio
n 

fro
m

 h
ill

si
de

s,
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

tly
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 ru
no

ff 
an

d 
la

nd
sl

id
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l. 
• 

La
nd

sl
id

es
 in

to
 a

 re
se

rv
oi

r c
an

 in
di

re
ct

ly
 c

om
pr

om
is

e 
da

m
 s

af
et

y;
 a 

la
nd

sl
id

e 
ca

n 
ev

en
 

af
fe

ct
 th

e d
am

 it
se

lf.
 

• 
A

no
th

er
 ty

pe
 o

f l
an

ds
lid

e 
oc

cu
rs

 in
 a

re
as

 c
ut

 b
y 

pe
re

nn
ia

l s
tre

am
s.

 A
s f

lo
od

w
at

er
s 

er
od

e 
ch

an
ne

l b
an

ks
, r

iv
er

s 
ha

ve
 u

nd
er

cu
t c

la
y-

ric
h 

se
di

m
en

ta
ry

 ro
ck

s 
al

on
g 

th
ei

r s
ou

th
 b

an
k,

 
th

er
eb

y 
de

st
ab

ili
zin

g 
th

e g
ro

un
d 

an
d 

ca
us

in
g 

th
e 

gr
ou

nd
 ab

ov
e i

t t
o 

sl
id

e.
 

Lo
ca

tio
n 

In
 2

01
1,

 C
GS

 c
re

at
ed

 a
 d

ee
p-

se
at

ed
 la

nd
sl

id
e 

gr
ip

 m
ap

 to
 s

ho
w

 th
e 

re
la

tiv
e 

lik
el

ih
oo

d 
of

 d
ee

p 
la

nd
sl

id
es

 in
 C

al
ifo

rn
ia

. 
Th

e 
m

ap
 c

om
bi

ne
s 

la
nd

sl
id

e 
in

ve
nt

or
y,

 g
eo

lo
gy

, r
oc

k 
st

re
ng

th
, s

lo
pe

, 
av

er
ag

e 
an

nu
al

 ra
in

fa
ll 

an
d 

ea
rth

qu
ak

e 
sh

ak
in

g 
po

te
nt

ia
l l

ay
er

s 
to

 c
re

at
e 

cl
as

se
s o

f l
an

ds
lid

e 
su

sc
ep

tib
ili

ty
. A

s s
ho

w
n 

in
 F

ig
ur

e 
4-

9,
 th

e 
m

ap
 s

ho
w

s a
re

as
 o

f l
ow

 la
nd

sl
id

e 
su

sc
ep

tib
ili

ty
, 

m
ai

nl
y,

 t
he

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 B
as

in
, t

o 
ar

ea
s o

f h
ig

h 
su

sc
ep

tib
ili

ty
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 th
e 

Sa
nt

a 
M

on
ic

a 
M

ou
nt

ai
ns

, t
he

 S
an

 G
ab

rie
l 

M
ou

nt
ai

ns
, t

he
 S

ie
rra

 P
el

on
a 

M
ou

nt
ai

ns
, t

he
 B

al
dw

in
 H

ill
s,

 t
he

 
Pu

en
te

 H
ill

s,
 a

nd
 th

e P
al

os
 V

er
de

s 
H

ill
s.

 

CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

4-
33

 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

24
. L

an
ds

lid
e 

Id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
Pr

of
ile

 

Pr
of

ile
 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

H
is

to
ry

 

Li
ke

 m
uc

h 
of

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
, 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

ha
s e

xp
er

ie
nc

ed
 la

nd
sl

id
es

. L
an

ds
lid

es
 in

 L
os

 
A

ng
el

es
 ar

e 
ge

ne
ra

lly
 tr

ig
ge

d 
by

 in
te

ns
e 

an
d/

or
 p

ro
lo

ng
ed

 ra
in

fa
ll 

bu
t c

an
 al

so
 o

cc
ur

 a
fte

r a
n 

ea
rth

qu
ak

e.
 N

ot
ab

le
 re

ce
nt

 la
nd

sl
id

es
 in

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

in
cl

ud
e:

 
• 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

19
94

, 
th

e 
N

or
th

rid
ge

 e
ar

th
qu

ak
e 

tri
gg

er
ed

 m
or

e 
th

an
 11

,0
00

 l
an

ds
lid

es
, w

ith
 th

e 
m

aj
or

ity
 c

on
ce

nt
ra

te
d 

in
 th

e S
an

ta
 S

us
an

a M
ou

nt
ai

ns
 an

d 
th

e 
m

ou
nt

ai
ns

 n
or

th
 o

f t
he

 
Sa

nt
a 

Cl
ar

a 
Ri

ve
r 

va
lle

y.
 M

os
t o

f t
he

 tr
ig

ge
re

d 
la

nd
sl

id
es

 w
er

e 
sh

al
lo

w
 h

ig
hl

y 
di

sr
up

te
d 

fa
lls

 a
nd

 s
lid

es
. H

ow
ev

er
, t

he
 la

rg
er

 d
is

ru
pt

ed
 sl

id
es

 w
er

e 
re

ac
tiv

at
io

ns
 o

f p
re

vi
ou

sl
y 

ex
is

tin
g 

la
nd

sl
id

es
.  

• 
M

ar
ch

 1
99

5,
 h

ea
vy

 ra
in

s 
w

ea
ke

ne
d 

th
e g

eo
lo

gi
ca

lly
 u

ns
ta

bl
e P

ac
ifi

c 
Pa

lis
ad

es
 b

lu
ffs

. A
 

30
0-

fo
ot

 s
ec

tio
n 

ga
ve

 w
ay

 a
nd

 b
ur

ie
d 

pa
rt 

of
 P

ac
ifi

c 
Co

as
t H

ig
hw

ay
 u

nd
er

 u
p 

to
 30

 f
ee

t 
of

 ra
in

-s
oa

ke
d 

ea
rth

, r
oc

k,
 a

nd
 d

eb
ris

.  
• 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
5,

 a
 s

lid
e 

ne
ar

 S
un

se
t M

es
a c

au
se

d 
20

,0
00

 c
ub

ic
 y

ar
ds

 o
f d

eb
ris

 to
 c

ov
er

 th
e 

Pa
ci

fic
 C

oa
st

 H
ig

hw
ay

.  
• 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
18

, 
a 

hi
lls

id
e 

in
 M

al
ib

u 
ga

ve
 w

ay
 le

av
in

g 
a 

ho
us

e u
ni

nh
ab

ita
bl

e.
  

• 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
18

, 
he

av
y 

ra
in

 o
n 

th
e 

W
oo

ls
ey

 F
ire

 b
ur

ne
d 

hi
lls

id
es

 c
re

at
ed

 d
eb

ris
 fl

ow
s 

an
d 

m
ud

sl
id

es
 in

 a
nd

 ar
ou

nd
 M

al
ib

u 
ca

us
in

g 
se

ve
ra

l r
oa

d 
cl

os
ur

es
.  

• 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

19
, 

se
ct

io
ns

 o
f t

he
 P

ac
ifi

c 
Co

as
t H

ig
hw

ay
 n

ea
r t

he
 V

en
tu

ra
 C

ou
nt

y 
lin

e 
w

er
e 

cl
os

ed
 d

ue
 to

 m
ud

sl
id

es
.  

Ex
te

nt
 /

 
Se

ve
rit

y 

Fi
gu

re
 4

-9
 s

ho
w

s d
ee

p 
se

at
ed

 la
nd

sl
id

e 
su

sc
ep

tib
ili

ty
 ar

ea
s 

in
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y.
 A

cc
or

di
ng

 to
 

th
e 

Su
sc

ep
tib

ili
ty

 to
 D

ee
p-

Se
at

ed
 L

an
ds

lid
es

 g
rip

 m
ap

, t
he

re
 a

re
 7

50
.0

2 
sq

ua
re

 m
ile

s 
(1

5.
75

%
) 

of
 

la
nd

 in
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
lo

ca
te

d 
in

 th
e C

la
ss

es
 IX

 a
nd

 X
. I

n 
th

e 
un

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 ar
ea

s 
of

 L
os

 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y,
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

57
7.

63
 s

qu
ar

e m
ile

s 
(1

8.
99

%
) 

in
 th

is
 h

az
ar

d 
ar

ea
.  

Re
cu

rre
nc

e 
Pr

ob
ab

ili
ty

 

Sh
al

lo
w

 la
nd

sl
id

es
 c

an
 o

cc
ur

 a
t a

ny
 ti

m
e 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
w

in
te

r b
ut

 a
re

 m
or

e 
lik

el
y 

ha
pp

en
 w

he
n 

th
e 

gr
ou

nd
 is

 n
ea

rly
 s

at
ur

at
ed

. A
cc

or
di

ng
 to

 th
e 

U
SG

S,
 i

n 
So

ut
he

rn
 C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 “
at

 le
as

t 1
0 

in
ch

es
 o

f 
ra

in
fa

ll 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

w
in

te
r i

s 
ne

ed
ed

 to
 n

ea
rly

 s
at

ur
at

e t
he

 g
ro

un
d.

 A
fte

r t
hi

s 
po

in
t, 

a 
ra

in
 b

ur
st

 o
f 

0.
2 

to
 0

.2
5 

in
 in

 o
ne

 h
ou

r h
as

 b
ee

n 
ob

se
rv

ed
 to

 tr
ig

ge
r a

bu
nd

an
t s

ha
llo

w
 la

nd
sl

id
es

.”
 H

ow
ev

er
, 

de
ep

-s
ea

te
d 

la
nd

sl
id

es
 g

en
er

al
ly

 n
ee

d 
de

ep
 in

fil
tra

tio
n 

of
 ra

in
fa

ll 
(w

hi
ch

 c
an

 ta
ke

 w
ee

ks
 o

r 
m

on
th

s 
to

 o
cc

ur
) t

o 
be

 tr
ig

ge
re

d.
 

 
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

4-
34

 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

25
. L

an
ds

lid
e 

Im
pa

ct
 o

n 
La

nd
 A

re
a 

En
tit

y 
D

ee
p 

Se
at

ed
 L

an
ds

lid
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 a
nd

 X
 

# 
of

 S
q.

 M
ile

s 
%

 of
 S

q.
 M

ile
s 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

75
0.

02
 

15
.7

5 

U
ni

nc
or

po
ra

te
d 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

57
7.

63
 

18
.9

9 

Su
pe

rv
is

or
ia

l D
is

tri
ct

 1
 

17
.2

9 
7.

02
 

Su
pe

rv
is

or
ia

l D
is

tri
ct

 2
 

2.
73

 
1.

68
 

Su
pe

rv
is

or
ia

l D
is

tri
ct

 3
 

11
4.

61
 

26
.5

8 

Su
pe

rv
is

or
ia

l D
is

tri
ct

 4
 

10
5.

12
 

23
.8

9 

Su
pe

rv
is

or
ia

l D
is

tri
ct

 5
 

50
9.

31
 

18
.1

4 

 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

26
. L

an
ds

lid
e 

Im
pa

ct
 o

n 
V

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
Po

pu
la

tio
ns

 –
 P

eo
pl

e 
Ex

pe
rie

nc
in

g 
H

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

En
tit

y 
D

ee
p 

Se
at

ed
 L

an
ds

lid
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 a
nd

 X
 

# 
of

 H
om

el
es

s 
%

 of
 H

om
el

es
s 

Ci
ty

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

23
4 

0.
71

 

U
ni

nc
or

po
ra

te
d 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

32
5 

5.
55

 

 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

27
. L

an
ds

lid
e 

Im
pa

ct
 o

n 
C

ou
nt

y 
C

rit
ic

al
 F

ac
ili

tie
s 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

/ A
ge

nc
y 

D
ee

p 
Se

at
ed

 L
an

ds
lid

e 
C

la
ss

 IX
 a

nd
 X

 

# 
of

 F
ac

ili
tie

s 
%

 of
 F

ac
ili

tie
s 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
A

ni
m

al 
Ca

re
 &

 C
on

tro
l 

0 
0.

00
 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
7 

2.
08

 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
H

ea
lth

 Se
rv

ic
es

 
0 

0.
00

 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Li

br
ar

y 
0 

0.
00

 

LA
CM

A
 &

 N
H

M
 

0 
0.

00
 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
O

ffi
ce

 o
f E

du
ca

tio
n 

1 
2.

70
 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
- O

th
er

 (o
ff

ice
s)

 
0 

0.
00

 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
ati

on
 

2 
1.

71
 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Pu

bl
ic

 H
ea

lth
 

0 
0.

00
 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

37
 

16
.0

9 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Sh

er
iff

’s
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
1 

3.
23

 

 

CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

4-
35

 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

28
. O

ve
ra

ll 
Su

m
m

ar
y 

of
 V

ul
ne

ra
bi

lit
y 

to
 L

an
ds

lid
es

 

La
nd

sl
id

e 

Su
m

m
ar

y 

A
re

as
 p

ro
ne

 to
 la

nd
sl

id
e 

in
cl

ud
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

ol
d 

la
nd

sl
id

es
, b

as
e o

f s
lo

pe
s,

 b
as

e o
f m

in
or

 
dr

ai
na

ge
 h

ol
lo

w
s,

 b
as

e o
r t

op
 o

f a
n 

ol
d 

fil
l 

sl
op

e,
 b

as
e o

r t
op

 o
f a

 s
te

ep
 cu

t s
lo

pe
, a

nd
 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
hi

lls
id

es
 w

he
re

 le
ac

h 
fie

ld
 s

ep
tic

 s
ys

te
m

s a
re

 u
se

d.
 In

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y,

 th
e 

m
aj

or
ity

 o
f l

an
ds

lid
e-

pr
on

e 
ar

ea
s 

in
cl

ud
e 

th
e S

an
ta

 M
on

ic
a 

M
ou

nt
ai

ns
, t

he
 S

an
 G

ab
rie

l 
M

ou
nt

ai
ns

, t
he

 S
ie

rra
 P

el
on

a 
M

ou
nt

ai
ns

, t
he

 B
al

dw
in

 H
ill

s,
 t

he
 P

ue
nt

e 
H

ill
s,

 a
nd

 th
e 

Pa
lo

s 
Ve

rd
es

 H
ill

s.
 L

an
ds

lid
es

 m
ay

: c
au

se
 in

ju
ry

 o
r d

ea
th

 to
 th

os
e t

ra
pp

ed
; b

re
ak

 u
til

ity
 

lin
es

; b
lo

ck
/d

am
ag

e 
ro

ad
w

ay
s;

 d
am

ag
e 

fo
un

da
tio

ns
, c

hi
m

ne
ys

, o
r s

ur
ro

un
di

ng
 la

nd
; a

nd
 

le
ad

 to
 fl

as
h 

flo
od

in
g 

an
d 

ad
di

tio
na

l l
an

ds
lid

in
g.

 
In

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y,

 la
nd

sl
id

e 
ris

ks
 a

re
 m

iti
ga

te
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

H
ill

si
de

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

A
re

a 
O

rd
in

an
ce

 &
 H

ill
si

de
 D

es
ig

n 
Gu

id
el

in
es

 (
Ta

bl
e 

5-
3)

. 

  
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Lo
s A

ng
ele

s

40
5

21
0

5

10

60
5

11
0

71
0

10
5

14
13

8

60

39

91

11
8

13
4

1

2

19

11
0

21
0

57

27

72

17
0

21
3

12
6

66

23

10
7

18

42

10
3

90

47

71

22

2

39
2

2

39

91

90

10
1

20
19

 Lo
s A

ng
ele

s C
ou

nty
 

All
-H

az
ard

s M
itig

ati
on

 Pl
an

N
a
ti
o
n

a
l 
F

o
re

s
t

0
5

1
0

1
5

2
.5

M
ile

s

De
ep

 Se
ate

d L
an

ds
lid

e S
us

ce
pti

bil
ity

 Ar
ea

Fig
ur

e 4
-9

V 
e n

 t u
 r 

a
C 

o u
 n 

t y

O 
r a

 n 
g e

C 
o u

 n 
t y

S a n  B e r n a r d i n o
C o u n t y

K 
e r

 n 
 C

 o 
u n

 t y

P a
 c 

i f 
i c

   O
 c 

e a
 n

So
ur

ce
S

u
s
c
e

p
ti
b

ili
ty

 t
o
 D

e
e
p
-S

e
a
te

d
 

L
a

n
d

s
lid

e
s
 i
n

 C
a

lif
o
rn

ia
 (

2
0
1
8
)

h
tt

p
s
:/

/m
a

p
s
.c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
.c

a
.g

o
v

CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

4-
37

 

4.
6 

T
SU

N
A

M
I 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

29
. T

su
na

m
i 

Id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
Pr

of
ile

 

Pr
of

ile
 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

N
at

ur
e 

A
 ts

un
am

i i
s 

a 
se

rie
s 

of
 tr

av
el

in
g 

oc
ea

n 
w

av
es

 o
f e

xt
re

m
el

y 
lo

ng
 le

ng
th

, g
en

er
at

ed
 b

y 
di

st
ur

ba
nc

es
 as

so
ci

at
ed

 p
rim

ar
ily

 w
ith

 e
ar

th
qu

ak
es

 o
cc

ur
rin

g 
be

lo
w

 o
r n

ea
r t

he
 o

ce
an

 fl
oo

r. 
Su

bd
uc

tio
n 

zo
ne

 e
ar

th
qu

ak
es

 at
 p

la
te

 b
ou

nd
ar

ie
s o

fte
n 

ca
us

e t
su

na
m

is
. H

ow
ev

er
, t

su
na

m
is

 c
an

 
al

so
 b

e 
ge

ne
ra

te
d 

by
 u

nd
er

w
at

er
 la

nd
sl

id
es

 o
r v

ol
ca

ni
c 

er
up

tio
ns

, t
he

 c
ol

la
ps

e 
of

 v
ol

ca
ni

c 
ed

ifi
ce

s,
 a

nd
—

in
 v

er
y 

ra
re

 in
st

an
ce

s—
la

rg
e m

et
eo

rit
e 

im
pa

ct
s 

in
 th

e 
oc

ea
n.

 
In

 th
e 

de
ep

 o
ce

an
, a

 ts
un

am
i m

ay
 h

av
e a

 le
ng

th
 fr

om
 w

av
e 

cr
es

t t
o 

w
av

e 
cr

es
t o

f 1
00

 m
ile

s 
or

 
m

or
e,

 b
ut

 a 
w

av
e 

he
ig

ht
 o

f o
nl

y 
a 

fe
w

 fe
et

 o
r l

es
s.

 T
hu

s,
 th

e w
av

e 
pe

rio
d 

ca
n 

be
 u

p 
to

 se
ve

ra
l 

ho
ur

s,
 an

d 
w

av
el

en
gt

hs
 ca

n 
ex

ce
ed

 s
ev

er
al

 h
un

dr
ed

 m
ile

s.
 T

he
re

fo
re

, t
su

na
m

is
 a

re
 u

nl
ik

e 
ty

pi
ca

l 
w

in
d-

ge
ne

ra
te

d 
sw

el
ls

 o
n 

th
e o

ce
an

, w
hi

ch
 m

ig
ht

 h
av

e 
a 

pe
rio

d 
of

 a
bo

ut
 10

 s
ec

on
ds

 an
d 

a 
w

av
el

en
gt

h 
of

 u
p 

to
 3

00
 f

ee
t T

su
na

m
is

 c
an

no
t b

e f
el

t a
bo

ar
d 

sh
ip

s a
nd

 th
ey

 c
an

no
t b

e 
se

en
 fr

om
 

th
e 

ai
r o

r t
he

 o
pe

n 
oc

ea
n.

 In
 d

ee
p 

w
at

er
, t

he
 w

av
es

 m
ay

 re
ac

h 
sp

ee
ds

 ex
ce

ed
in

g 
70

0 
m

ile
s 

pe
r 

ho
ur

. 
Ts

un
am

is
 a

rri
ve

 a
s a

 s
er

ie
s 

of
 s

uc
ce

ss
iv

e c
re

st
s (

hi
gh

 w
at

er
 le

ve
ls

) a
nd

 tr
ou

gh
s (

lo
w

 w
at

er
 le

ve
ls

). 
Th

es
e s

uc
ce

ss
iv

e c
re

st
s a

nd
 tr

ou
gh

s c
an

 o
cc

ur
 an

yw
he

re
 fr

om
 5

 to
 90

 m
in

ut
es

 a
pa

rt;
 h

ow
ev

er
, 

th
ey

 u
su

al
ly

 o
cc

ur
 1

0 
to

 4
5 

m
in

ut
es

 a
pa

rt.
 

Ts
un

am
is

 n
ot

 o
nl

y 
af

fe
ct

 b
ea

ch
es

 th
at

 ar
e 

op
en

 to
 th

e o
ce

an
, b

ut
 a

ls
o 

ba
y 

m
ou

th
s,

 ti
da

l f
la

ts
, a

nd
 

th
e 

sh
or

es
 o

f l
ar

ge
 c

oa
st

al
 ri

ve
rs

. T
su

na
m

i w
av

es
 c

an
 al

so
 d

iff
ra

ct
 a

ro
un

d 
la

nd
 m

as
se

s.
 B

ec
au

se
 

ts
un

am
is

 a
re

 a
sy

m
m

et
ric

al
, 

th
e 

w
av

es
 m

ay
 b

e m
uc

h 
st

ro
ng

er
 in

 o
ne

 d
ire

ct
io

n 
th

an
 an

ot
he

r, 
de

pe
nd

in
g 

on
 th

e n
at

ur
e 

of
 th

e 
so

ur
ce

 an
d 

th
e s

ur
ro

un
di

ng
 g

eo
gr

ap
hy

. H
ow

ev
er

, t
su

na
m

is
 d

o 
pr

op
ag

at
e o

ut
w

ar
d 

fro
m

 t
he

ir 
so

ur
ce

, s
o 

co
as

ts
 in

 th
e 

sh
ad

ow
 o

f a
ffe

ct
ed

 la
nd

 m
as

se
s a

re
 s

af
er

. 

Lo
ca

tio
n 

Fi
gu

re
 4

-1
0 

sh
ow

s t
su

na
m

i e
va

cu
at

io
n 

ar
ea

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
M

ax
im

um
 P

ha
se

 a
s d

es
cr

ib
ed

 in
 th

e 
Ca

lif
or

ni
a 

Ts
un

am
i E

va
cu

at
io

n 
Pl

ay
bo

ok
. T

hi
s 

m
ap

 il
lu

st
ra

te
s 

co
as

ta
l l

an
d 

ar
ea

s 
th

at
 ca

n 
be

co
m

e 
su

bm
er

ge
d 

du
e t

o 
ts

un
am

i r
un

-u
p.

 T
he

 a
re

a 
of

 la
nd

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 in

un
da

tio
n 

is
 a

 fa
ct

or
 o

f: 
• 

D
is

ta
nc

e 
of

 s
ho

re
lin

e 
fro

m
 t

he
 ts

un
am

i-g
en

er
at

in
g 

ev
en

t 
• 

M
ag

ni
tu

de
 o

f t
he

 ea
rth

qu
ak

e 
ca

us
in

g 
th

e 
ev

en
t; 

du
ra

tio
n 

an
d 

pe
rio

d 
of

 w
av

es
 

• 
Ru

n-
up

 e
le

va
tio

ns
 

• 
Ti

da
l l

ev
el

 a
t t

im
e 

of
 o

cc
ur

re
nc

e 
• 

Lo
ca

tio
n 

al
on

g 
sh

or
e a

nd
 d

ire
ct

io
n 

of
 s

ho
re

 in
 re

sp
ec

t t
o 

pr
op

ag
at

ed
 w

av
es

 
• 

To
po

gr
ap

hy
 o

f t
he

 s
ea

be
d 

In
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y,
 a

re
as

 a
t r

is
k 

to
 th

e m
ax

im
um

 
ts

un
am

i r
un

 u
p 

in
cl

ud
e 

th
e p

or
ts

 o
f L

on
g 

Be
ac

h 
an

d 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
, C

at
al

in
a 

Is
la

nd
, a

nd
 a

re
as

 in
 th

e 
ci

tie
s 

of
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
, L

on
g 

Be
ac

h,
 

M
an

ha
tta

n 
Be

ac
h,

 R
ed

on
do

 B
ea

ch
, H

er
m

os
a 

Be
ac

h,
 E

l 
Se

gu
nd

o,
 P

al
os

 V
er

de
s,

 S
an

ta
 M

on
ic

a,
 

an
d 

M
al

ib
u.

 In
 th

e 
un

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 ar
ea

s 
of

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y,

 th
e 

fiv
e 

co
as

ta
l z

on
es

 (i
.e

., 
M

ar
in

 
D

el
 R

ey
, S

an
ta

 C
at

al
in

a 
Is

la
nd

, S
an

ta
 M

on
ic

a 
M

ou
nt

ai
ns

, S
an

 C
le

m
en

te
 I

sl
an

d,
 a

nd
 B

al
lo

na
 

W
et

la
nd

s A
re

a 
A

) a
re

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 in

un
da

tio
n.

  

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

4-
38

 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

29
. T

su
na

m
i 

Id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
Pr

of
ile

 

Pr
of

ile
 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

H
is

to
ry

 

Be
tw

ee
n 

19
23

 a
nd

 2
01

1,
 1

1 
m

aj
or

 t
su

na
m

i e
ve

nt
s o

cc
ur

re
d 

in
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y,
 in

cl
ud

in
g:

 
• 

A
pr

il 
13

, 
19

23
, 

a 
M

 7
.2

 e
ar

th
qu

ak
e 

in
 K

am
ch

at
ka

 c
au

se
d 

a 
ts

un
am

i i
n 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

. 
• 

A
ug

us
t 3

0,
 1

93
0,

 a
 p

ro
ba

bl
e 

m
et

eo
ts

un
am

i (
i.e

., 
a 

ts
un

am
i o

f m
et

eo
ro

lo
gi

ca
l 

or
ig

in
) w

ith
 

a 
10

-fo
ot

 r
un

-u
p 

am
pl

itu
de

 h
it 

Sa
nt

a 
M

on
ic

a.
 

• 
A

pr
il 

1,
 1

94
6,

 a
 M

 8
.8

 e
ar

th
qu

ak
e i

n 
th

e 
A

le
ut

ia
n 

Is
la

nd
s c

au
se

d 
ts

un
am

is
 w

ith
 ru

n-
up

 
am

pl
itu

de
s 

ra
ng

in
g 

fro
m

 1
 to

 6
 fe

et
 in

 C
at

al
in

a 
Is

la
nd

, L
os

 A
ng

el
es

, a
nd

 L
on

g 
Be

ac
h,

 
br

ea
ki

ng
 s

hi
ps

 fr
om

 t
he

ir 
m

oo
rin

gs
. 

• 
N

ov
em

be
r 

4,
 1

95
2,

 a
 M

 9
.0

 e
ar

th
qu

ak
e 

in
 K

am
ch

at
ka

 c
au

se
d 

ts
un

am
is

 w
ith

 ru
n-

up
 

am
pl

itu
de

s 
ra

ng
in

g 
fro

m
 1

 to
 2

 fe
et

 in
 S

an
ta

 M
on

ic
a,

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

, a
nd

 L
on

g 
Be

ac
h.

 
• 

M
ar

ch
 9

, 1
95

7,
 a

 M
 8

.6
 e

ar
th

qu
ak

e 
in

 th
e A

le
ut

ia
n 

Is
la

nd
s c

au
se

d 
ts

un
am

is
 w

ith
 ru

n-
up

 
am

pl
itu

de
s 

ra
ng

in
g 

fro
m

 1
 to

 2
 fe

et
 in

 S
an

ta
 M

on
ic

a,
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
, a

nd
 L

on
g 

Be
ac

h.
 

• 
M

ay
 2

2,
 1

96
0,

 a
 M

 9
.5

 e
ar

th
qu

ak
e i

n 
Ch

ile
 c

au
se

d 
ts

un
am

is
 w

ith
 ru

n-
up

 a
m

pl
itu

de
s 

ra
ng

in
g 

fro
m

 2
 to

 5
 fe

et
 in

 C
at

al
in

a 
Is

la
nd

, L
os

 A
ng

el
es

, L
on

g 
Be

ac
h,

 a
nd

 S
an

ta
 M

on
ic

a.
 

O
ne

 p
er

so
n 

di
ed

, 8
00

 s
m

al
l 

cr
af

t w
er

e 
un

m
oo

re
d,

 2
00

 b
oa

ts
 w

er
e 

da
m

ag
ed

, a
nd

 4
0 

bo
at

s 
w

er
e 

su
nk

. T
he

 ts
un

am
is

 re
su

lti
ng

 in
 $

1 
m

ill
io

n 
do

lla
rs

 in
 d

am
ag

es
. 

• 
M

ar
ch

 2
8,

 1
96

4,
 a

 M
 9

.2
 e

ar
th

qu
ak

e 
in

 A
la

sk
a 

ca
us

ed
 ts

un
am

is
 w

ith
 ru

n-
up

 a
m

pl
itu

de
s 

ra
ng

in
g 

fro
m

 2
 to

 3
 fe

et
 in

 C
at

al
in

a 
Is

la
nd

, L
os

 A
ng

el
es

, L
on

g 
Be

ac
h,

 a
nd

 S
an

ta
 M

on
ic

a.
 

O
ne

 lo
ng

sh
or

em
an

 w
as

 k
ill

ed
, 

10
0 

bo
at

s w
er

e 
un

m
oo

re
d,

 a
nd

 7
 b

oa
ts

 w
er

e 
su

nk
. T

he
 

ts
un

am
is

 c
au

se
d 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
$3

50
 t

ho
us

an
d 

do
lla

rs
 in

 d
am

ag
es

. 
• 

N
ov

em
be

r 
29

, 1
97

5,
 a

 M
 7

.1
 e

ar
th

qu
ak

e 
in

 H
aw

ai
i 

ca
us

ed
 a 

ts
un

am
i w

ith
 a

 ru
n-

up
 

am
pl

itu
de

 o
f 4

 fe
et

 in
 C

at
al

in
a 

Is
la

nd
, d

am
ag

in
g 

do
ck

s 
an

d 
bo

at
s.

 
• 

Se
pt

em
be

r 2
9,

 2
00

9,
 a

 M
 8

.0
 e

ar
th

qu
ak

e 
in

 S
am

oa
 c

au
se

d 
a 

ts
un

am
i w

ith
 a

 1
-fo

ot
 ru

n-
up

 
am

pl
itu

de
 in

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

. 
• 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
7,

 2
01

0,
 a

 M
 8

.8
 e

ar
th

qu
ak

e 
in

 C
hi

le
 c

au
se

d 
ts

un
am

is
 w

ith
 ru

n-
up

 am
pl

itu
de

s 
ra

ng
in

g 
fro

m
 1

 to
 3

 fe
et

 in
 C

at
al

in
a 

Is
la

nd
, L

os
 A

ng
el

es
, L

on
g 

Be
ac

h,
 a

nd
 S

an
ta

 M
on

ic
a,

 
ca

us
in

g 
m

in
or

 d
am

ag
e 

to
 d

oc
ks

 an
d 

bo
at

s.
 

• 
M

ar
ch

 1
1,

 2
01

1,
 a

 M
 9

.0
 e

ar
th

qu
ak

e 
in

 J
ap

an
 ca

us
ed

 ts
un

am
is

 w
ith

 ru
n-

up
 a

m
pl

itu
de

s 
ra

ng
in

g 
fro

m
 2

 to
 3

 fe
et

 in
 C

at
al

in
a 

Is
la

nd
, L

os
 A

ng
el

es
, L

on
g 

Be
ac

h,
 R

ed
on

do
 B

ea
ch

, 
an

d 
Sa

nt
a 

M
on

ic
a,

 d
am

ag
in

g 
do

ck
s a

nd
 b

oa
ts

. 

Ex
te

nt
 /

 
Se

ve
rit

y 

Fi
gu

re
 4

-1
0 

sh
ow

s t
he

 m
ax

im
um

 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 ts
un

am
i r

un
up

 fr
om

 a
 n

um
be

r o
f e

xt
re

m
e 

ts
un

am
i 

so
ur

ce
s.

 T
he

re
 a

re
 4

3.
35

 s
qu

ar
e m

ile
s 

(0
.9

1%
) 

in
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
lo

ca
te

d 
in

 th
is

 h
az

ar
d 

ar
ea

. 
In

 th
e 

un
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 ar

ea
s 

of
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

2.
07

 s
qu

ar
e m

ile
s 

(0
.0

7%
) 

at
 ri

sk
 to

 
a 

m
ax

im
um

 
ts

un
am

i r
un

up
. 

Re
cu

rre
nc

e 
Pr

ob
ab

ili
ty

 
Ba

se
d 

on
 th

e h
is

to
ry

 o
f t

su
na

m
i r

un
-u

ps
 in

 th
e 

re
gi

on
 a

nd
 th

e 
hi

st
or

y 
of

 e
ar

th
qu

ak
es

 in
 th

e 
Pa

ci
fic

 
Ri

m
, 

an
ot

he
r t

su
na

m
i e

ve
nt

 is
 li

ke
ly

 t
o 

oc
cu

r, 
al

th
ou

gh
 th

e e
xt

en
t a

nd
 p

ro
ba

bi
lit

y 
is

 u
nk

no
w

n.
 

 

CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

4-
39

 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

30
. T

su
na

m
i 

Im
pa

ct
 o

n 
La

nd
 A

re
a 

En
tit

y 
M

ax
im

um
 

Ts
un

am
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 A

re
a 

# 
of

 S
q.

 M
ile

s 
%

 of
 S

q.
 M

ile
s 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

43
.3

5 
0.

91
 

U
ni

nc
or

po
ra

te
d 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

2.
07

 
0.

07
 

Su
pe

rv
is

or
ia

l D
is

tri
ct

 1
 

0.
00

 
0.

00
 

Su
pe

rv
is

or
ia

l D
is

tri
ct

 2
 

0.
12

 
0.

08
 

Su
pe

rv
is

or
ia

l D
is

tri
ct

 3
 

2.
65

 
0.

61
 

Su
pe

rv
is

or
ia

l D
is

tri
ct

 4
 

18
.0

0 
4.

09
 

Su
pe

rv
is

or
ia

l D
is

tri
ct

 5
 

0.
00

 
0.

00
 

 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

31
. T

su
na

m
i 

Im
pa

ct
 o

n 
V

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
Po

pu
la

tio
ns

 –
 P

eo
pl

e 
Ex

pe
rie

nc
in

g 
H

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

En
tit

y 
M

ax
im

um
 

Ts
un

am
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 A

re
a 

# 
of

 H
om

el
es

s 
%

 of
 H

om
el

es
s 

Ci
ty

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

62
2 

1.
89

 

U
ni

nc
or

po
ra

te
d 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

20
 

0.
34

 

 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

32
. T

su
na

m
i 

Im
pa

ct
 o

n 
C

ou
nt

y 
C

rit
ic

al
 F

ac
ili

tie
s 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

/ A
ge

nc
y 

M
ax

im
um

 
Ts

un
am

i 
In

un
da

ti
on

 A
re

a 

# 
of

 F
ac

ili
tie

s 
%

 of
 S

qu
ar

e 
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
A

ni
m

al 
Ca

re
 &

 C
on

tro
l 

0 
0.

00
 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
14

 
4.

15
 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
H

ea
lth

 Se
rv

ic
es

 
0 

0.
00

 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Li

br
ar

y 
1 

1.
18

 

LA
CM

A
 &

 N
H

M
 

0 
0.

00
 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
O

ffi
ce

 o
f E

du
ca

tio
n 

0 
0.

00
 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
- O

th
er

 (o
ff

ice
s)

 
1 

4.
17

 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
ati

on
 

0 
0.

00
 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Pu

bl
ic

 H
ea

lth
 

0 
0.

00
 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

15
 

6.
52

 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Sh

er
iff

’s
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
1 

3.
23

 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

4-
40

 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

33
. O

ve
ra

ll 
Su

m
m

ar
y 

of
 V

ul
ne

ra
bi

lit
y 

to
 T

su
na

m
is

 

Ts
un

am
i 

Su
m

m
ar

y 

In
 S

ou
th

er
n 

Ca
lif

or
ni

a,
 a

n 
ea

rth
qu

ak
e c

ou
ld

 tr
ig

ge
r a

n 
un

de
rw

at
er

 a
va

la
nc

he
 o

r s
ub

m
ar

in
e 

la
nd

sl
id

e 
in

 th
e 

Sa
nt

a 
M

on
ic

a 
Ba

y 
an

d 
pr

od
uc

e 
a 

ts
un

am
i t

ha
t c

ou
ld

 in
un

da
te

 lo
w

-ly
in

g 
ar

ea
s 

of
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y.
 In

 fa
ct

, a
cc

or
di

ng
 to

 re
se

ar
ch

er
s 

a 
lo

ca
lly

 g
en

er
at

ed
 ts

un
am

i 
co

ul
d 

br
in

g 
w

at
er

 a
s 

hi
gh

 a
s 5

 fe
et

 in
 M

ar
in

a 
de

l R
ey

, 7
 fe

et
 in

 M
an

ha
tta

n 
Be

ac
h,

 8
 fe

et
 a

t 
th

e 
po

rts
, a

nd
 1

1 
fe

et
 in

 R
ed

on
do

 B
ea

ch
. S

uc
h 

a 
ts

un
am

i c
ou

ld
 fl

oo
d 

ho
m

es
 a

nd
 d

es
tro

y 
m

an
y 

sm
al

l b
oa

ts
 in

 n
ea

rb
y 

ha
rb

or
s,

 th
er

eb
y 

cr
ea

tin
g 

da
ng

er
ou

s d
eb

ris
. 

Re
se

ar
ch

er
s 

w
ar

n 
th

at
 C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 n
ee

ds
 to

 b
e 

be
tte

r p
re

pa
re

d 
fo

r t
su

na
m

is
 a

nd
 w

hi
le

 n
ew

 
de

ep
-s

ea
 se

ns
or

s h
av

e h
el

pe
d 

in
 ts

un
am

i d
et

ec
tio

n,
 th

ey
 ar

e 
be

tte
r s

ui
te

d 
fo

r f
ar

-a
w

ay
 

ts
un

am
is

 ra
th

er
 th

an
 lo

ca
l t

su
na

m
is

.  
Ca

lif
or

ni
a 

O
ES

 a
nd

 C
GS

 l
ea

d 
Ts

un
am

i P
re

pa
re

dn
es

s W
ee

k 
in

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 a

nn
ua

lly
. D

ur
in

g 
th

is
 w

ee
k,

 g
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l a
ge

nc
ie

s,
 s

uc
h 

as
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
O

EM
, a

nd
 c

om
m

un
ity

 
or

ga
ni

za
tio

ns
, p

ar
tic

ip
at

e 
in

 e
xe

rc
is

es
, t

es
t w

ar
ni

ng
 s

ys
te

m
s a

nd
 re

sp
on

se
 p

la
ns

, a
nd

 h
os

t 
co

m
m

un
ity

 e
ve

nt
s t

o 
pr

om
ot

e 
ts

un
am

i a
w

ar
en

es
s.

 

   
 

40
5

10

10
5

1

2
23

42

90

27

90

40
5

11
0

71
0

60
5

1
21

3

91

10
7

10
3

19

47

22

91

No
te:

M
a

p
 p

a
n

e
ls

 g
o

 f
ro

m
 w

e
s
t 
to

 e
a

s
t

a
lo

n
g

 t
h

e
 c

o
a

s
t,
 s

ta
rt

in
g

 a
t 
th

e
 t
o

p
.

Le
ge

nd M
a
x
im

u
m

 I
n

u
n
d
a
ti
o
n

O 
r a

 n 
g e

C 
o u

 n 
t y

P a
 c 

i f 
i c

   O
 c 

e a
 n

0
5

2
.5

M
ile

s

20
19

 Lo
s A

ng
ele

s C
ou

nty
 

All
-H

az
ard

s M
itig

ati
on

 Pl
an

Ts
un

am
i In

un
da

tio
n A

rea
Fig

ur
e 4

-10

So
ur

ce
U

S
C

 T
s
u

n
a

m
i 
In

u
n

d
a

ti
o
n
 M

o
d
e
l,
 2

0
0
9

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

4-
42

 

4.
7 

W
IL

D
FI

R
E

 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

34
. W

ild
fir

e 
Id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

Pr
of

ile
 

Pr
of

ile
 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

N
at

ur
e 

W
ild

fir
es

 s
pr

ea
d 

by
 c

on
su

m
in

g 
fla

m
m

ab
le

 v
eg

et
at

io
n.

 T
hi

s 
fir

e 
ty

pe
 o

fte
n 

be
gi

ns
 u

nn
ot

ic
ed

, 
sp

re
ad

s q
ui

ck
ly

, a
nd

 is
 u

su
al

ly
 s

ig
na

le
d 

by
 d

en
se

 sm
ok

e 
th

at
 m

ay
 b

e 
vi

si
bl

e 
fro

m
 m

ile
s 

ar
ou

nd
. 

W
ild

fir
es

 c
an

 b
e c

au
se

d 
by

 h
um

an
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 (e
.g

., 
un

at
te

nd
ed

 b
ur

ns
, c

am
pf

ire
s,

 o
r o

ff-
ro

ad
 

ve
hi

cl
es

 w
ith

ou
t s

pa
rk

 a
rre

st
in

g 
m

uf
fle

s)
 o

r b
y 

na
tu

ra
l e

ve
nt

s s
uc

h 
as

 lig
ht

ni
ng

.  
W

ild
fir

es
 o

fte
n 

oc
cu

r i
n 

fo
re

st
s o

r o
th

er
 h

ig
hl

y 
ve

ge
ta

te
d 

ar
ea

s.
 In

 a
dd

iti
on

, w
ild

fir
es

 c
an

 b
e 

cl
as

si
fie

d 
as

 fo
re

st
, u

rb
an

, i
nt

er
fa

ce
 o

r i
nt

er
m

ix 
fir

es
, a

nd
 p

re
sc

rib
ed

 b
ur

ns
. 

Th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

re
e 

fa
ct

or
s 

co
nt

rib
ut

e s
ig

ni
fic

an
tly

 to
 w

ild
fir

e 
be

ha
vi

or
 a

nd
 ca

n 
be

 u
se

d 
to

 
id

en
tif

y 
w

ild
fir

e 
ha

za
rd

 a
re

as
: 

• 
To

po
gr

ap
hy

 d
es

cr
ib

es
 sl

op
e i

nc
re

as
es

, w
hi

ch
 in

flu
en

ce
s 

w
ild

fir
e 

sp
re

ad
 ra

te
 in

cr
ea

se
s.

 
So

ut
h-

fa
ci

ng
 s

lo
pe

s a
re

 a
ls

o 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

m
or

e 
so

la
r r

ad
ia

tio
n,

 m
ak

in
g 

th
em

 d
rie

r a
nd

 
th

er
eb

y 
in

te
ns

ify
in

g 
w

ild
fir

e 
be

ha
vi

or
. H

ow
ev

er
, r

id
ge

 to
ps

 m
ay

 m
ar

k 
th

e 
en

d 
of

 w
ild

fir
e 

sp
re

ad
 si

nc
e 

fir
e 

sp
re

ad
s m

or
e 

sl
ow

ly
 o

r m
ay

 e
ve

n 
be

 u
na

bl
e 

to
 s

pr
ea

d 
do

w
nh

ill
. 

• 
Fu

el
 is

 th
e 

ty
pe

 an
d 

co
nd

iti
on

 o
f v

eg
et

at
io

n 
th

at
 p

la
ys

 a
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t r
ol

e 
in

 w
ild

fir
e 

sp
re

ad
 

oc
cu

rre
nc

e.
 C

er
ta

in
 p

la
nt

 ty
pe

s a
re

 m
or

e 
su

sc
ep

tib
le

 to
 b

ur
ni

ng
 o

r w
ill

 b
ur

n 
w

ith
 g

re
at

er
 

in
te

ns
ity

. D
en

se
 o

r o
ve

rg
ro

w
n 

ve
ge

ta
tio

n 
in

cr
ea

se
s t

he
 a

m
ou

nt
 o

f c
om

bu
st

ib
le

 m
at

er
ia

l 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

as
 fi

re
 f

ue
l (

re
fe

rre
d 

to
 a

s t
he

 “
fu

el
 lo

ad
”)

. T
he

 li
vi

ng
-to

-d
ea

d 
pl

an
t m

at
te

r r
at

io
 

is
 a

ls
o 

im
po

rta
nt

. C
er

ta
in

 c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
s m

ay
 in

cr
ea

se
 w

ild
fir

e 
ris

k 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

ly
 d

ur
in

g 
pr

ol
on

ge
d 

dr
ou

gh
t p

er
io

ds
, a

s 
bo

th
 liv

in
g 

an
d 

de
ad

 p
la

nt
 m

at
te

r 
m

oi
st

ur
e 

co
nt

en
t 

de
cr

ea
se

s.
 B

ot
h 

th
e 

ho
riz

on
ta

l a
nd

 v
er

tic
al

 fu
el

 lo
ad

 c
on

tin
ui

ty
 is

 a
ls

o 
an

 im
po

rta
nt

 
fa

ct
or

. 
• 

W
ea

th
er

 is
 th

e m
os

t v
ar

ia
bl

e 
fa

ct
or

 a
ffe

ct
in

g 
w

ild
fir

e 
be

ha
vi

or
. T

em
pe

ra
tu

re
, h

um
id

ity
, 

w
in

d,
 a

nd
 li

gh
tn

in
g 

ca
n 

af
fe

ct
 ig

ni
tio

n 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s a
nd

 fi
re

 s
pr

ea
d 

ra
te

. E
xt

re
m

e 
w

ea
th

er
, s

uc
h 

as
 h

ig
h 

te
m

pe
ra

tu
re

s 
an

d 
lo

w
 h

um
id

ity
, c

an
 le

ad
 to

 ex
tre

m
e 

w
ild

fir
e 

ac
tiv

ity
. C

lim
at

e 
ch

an
ge

 in
cr

ea
se

s 
fir

e 
to

 v
eg

et
at

io
n 

ig
ni

tio
n 

su
sc

ep
tib

ili
ty

 d
ue

 to
 lo

ng
er

 
dr

y 
se

as
on

s.
 B

y 
co

nt
ra

st
, c

oo
lin

g 
an

d 
hi

gh
er

 h
um

id
ity

 o
fte

n 
si

gn
al

 re
du

ce
d 

w
ild

fir
e 

oc
cu

rre
nc

e 
an

d 
ea

si
er

 c
on

ta
in

m
en

t. 
W

ild
fir

e 
fre

qu
en

cy
 an

d 
se

ve
rit

y 
so

m
et

im
es

 r
es

ul
t f

ro
m

 o
th

er
 h

az
ar

d 
im

pa
ct

s,
 s

uc
h 

as
 lig

ht
ni

ng
, 

dr
ou

gh
t, 

an
d 

in
fe

st
at

io
ns

 (e
.g

., 
da

m
ag

e 
ca

us
ed

 b
y 

sp
ru

ce
-b

ar
k 

be
et

le
 in

fe
st

at
io

ns
). 

If 
no

t p
ro

m
pt

ly
 

co
nt

ro
lle

d,
 w

ild
fir

es
 m

ay
 g

ro
w

 in
to

 a
n 

em
er

ge
nc

y 
or

 d
is

as
te

r. 
Ev

en
 s

m
al

l f
ire

s 
ca

n 
th

re
at

en
 liv

es
 

an
d 

re
so

ur
ce

s a
nd

 d
es

tro
y 

im
pr

ov
ed

 p
ro

pe
rti

es
. I

n 
ad

di
tio

n 
to

 a
ffe

ct
in

g 
pe

op
le

, w
ild

fir
es

 m
ay

 
se

ve
re

ly
 a

ffe
ct

 li
ve

st
oc

k 
an

d 
pe

ts
. S

uc
h 

ev
en

ts
 m

ay
 re

qu
ire

 e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

w
at

er
/fo

od
, e

va
cu

at
io

n,
 

an
d 

sh
el

te
r. 

In
di

re
ct

 w
ild

fir
e 

ef
fe

ct
s 

ca
n 

be
 c

at
as

tro
ph

ic
. I

n 
ad

di
tio

n 
to

 st
rip

pi
ng

 th
e 

la
nd

 o
f v

eg
et

at
io

n 
an

d 
de

st
ro

yi
ng

 fo
re

st
 re

so
ur

ce
s,

 la
rg

e,
 in

te
ns

e f
ire

s 
ca

n 
ha

rm
 th

e 
so

il,
 w

at
er

w
ay

s,
 a

nd
 th

e 
la

nd
 it

se
lf.

 
So

il 
ex

po
se

d 
to

 in
te

ns
e h

ea
t m

ay
 lo

se
 it

s 
ca

pa
bi

lit
y 

to
 a

bs
or

b 
m

oi
st

ur
e 

an
d 

su
pp

or
t l

ife
. E

xp
os

ed
 

so
ils

 e
ro

de
 q

ui
ck

ly
 a

nd
 e

xa
ce

rb
at

e 
riv

er
 a

nd
 st

re
am

 s
ilt

at
io

n;
 th

er
eb

y 
in

cr
ea

si
ng

 fl
oo

d 
po

te
nt

ia
l, 

ha
rm

in
g 

aq
ua

tic
 li

fe
, a

nd
 d

eg
ra

di
ng

 w
at

er
 q

ua
lit

y.
 V

eg
et

at
io

n-
st

rip
pe

d 
la

nd
s 

ar
e 

m
or

e 
su

sc
ep

tib
le

 
to

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
de

br
is

 fl
ow

 h
az

ar
ds

. 

Lo
ca

tio
n 

Pu
bl

ic
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 C
od

e 
42

01
 4

20
4 

an
d 

Go
ve

rn
m

en
t 

Co
de

 5
11

75
 8

9 
di

re
ct

ed
 th

e C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f F
or

es
try

 a
nd

 F
ire

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

(C
al

 F
IR

E)
 t

o 
m

ap
 a

re
as

 o
f s

ig
ni

fic
an

t f
ire

 h
az

ar
ds

 
ba

se
d 

on
 fu

el
s,

 te
rra

in
, w

ea
th

er
, a

nd
 o

th
er

 re
le

va
nt

 fa
ct

or
s.

 T
he

se
 F

H
SZ

 a
re

 re
pr

es
en

te
d 

as
 v

er
y 

hi
gh

, h
ig

h,
 o

r m
od

er
at

e.
 S

pe
ci

fic
al

ly
, 

th
e 

m
ap

s 
w

er
e 

cr
ea

te
d 

us
in

g 
da

ta
 a

nd
 m

od
el

s 
de

sc
rib

in
g 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t p

at
te

rn
s,

 p
ot

en
tia

l f
ue

ls
 o

ve
r a

 3
0-

 t
o 

50
-y

ea
r 

tim
e 

ho
riz

on
, e

xp
ec

te
d 

fir
e 

be
ha

vi
or

, 
an

d 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 b

ur
n 

pr
ob

ab
ili

tie
s.

 T
he

 m
ap

s 
ar

e 
di

vi
de

d 
in

to
 lo

ca
l r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
ty

 a
re

as
 (L

RA
s)

 a
nd

 
st

at
e r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
ty

 a
re

as
 (S

RA
s)

. L
RA

s 
ge

ne
ra

lly
 in

cl
ud

e 
ci

tie
s,

 c
ul

tiv
at

ed
 a

gr
ic

ul
tu

re
 la

nd
s,

 a
nd

 
po

rti
on

s o
f t

he
 d

es
er

t. 
LR

A
 f

ire
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n 
is

 ty
pi

ca
lly

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 c
ity

 fi
re

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
ts

, f
ire

 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

di
st

ric
ts

, c
ou

nt
ie

s,
 an

d 
by

 C
al

 F
IR

E 
un

de
r c

on
tra

ct
 to

 th
e l

oc
al

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t. 

SR
A

 is
 a

 

CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

4-
43

 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

34
. W

ild
fir

e 
Id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

Pr
of

ile
 

Pr
of

ile
 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

le
ga

l t
er

m
 d

ef
in

in
g 

th
e a

re
a 

w
he

re
 th

e 
st

at
e h

as
 fi

na
nc

ia
l r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
ty

 fo
r w

ild
fir

e 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n.

 
Th

e 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t i
s 

on
e 

of
 s

ix 
co

nt
ra

ct
 c

ou
nt

ie
s,

 w
hi

ch
 h

as
 ex

ec
ut

ed
 a

 
co

nt
ra

ct
 w

ith
 th

e 
St

at
e 

of
 C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 t
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

w
ild

la
nd

 f
ire

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

on
 S

RA
.  

Fi
gu

re
 4

-1
1 

di
sp

la
ys

 th
e 

ar
ea

s o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
m

os
t s

us
ce

pt
ib

le
 to

 w
ild

fir
es

 a
nd

 in
di

ca
te

s 
ar

ea
s 

of
 lo

ca
l o

r s
ta

te
 re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y.

 V
er

y 
hi

gh
 F

H
SZ

s 
ar

e 
ge

ne
ra

lly
 lo

ca
te

d 
in

 m
ou

nt
ai

no
us

 o
r 

hi
lls

id
e 

ar
ea

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

Sa
nt

a 
M

on
ic

a 
M

ou
nt

ai
ns

, S
an

 G
ab

rie
l 

M
ou

nt
ai

ns
, P

al
os

 V
er

de
s 

H
ill

s,
 

an
d 

Pu
en

te
 H

ill
s.

  

H
is

to
ry

 

A
s s

ho
w

n 
in

 F
ig

ur
e 

4-
12

, w
ild

fir
es

 a
re

 a
 c

om
m

on
 o

cc
ur

re
nc

e 
in

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y.

  
So

m
e 

of
 th

e 
co

un
ty

’s
 m

os
t d

es
tru

ct
iv

e f
ire

s 
ha

ve
 o

cc
ur

re
d 

si
nc

e 
20

00
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g:
 

• 
Th

e 
Gr

an
d 

Pr
ix 

Fi
re

 s
ta

rte
d 

on
 O

ct
ob

er
 2

1,
 2

00
3 

an
d 

bu
rn

ed
 a 

to
ta

l o
f 5

0,
61

8 
ac

re
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

Cl
ar

em
on

t 
an

d 
Ly

tle
 C

re
ek

. T
he

 fi
re

 d
es

tro
ye

d 
13

6 
ho

m
es

 a
nd

 w
as

 ru
le

d 
“a

cc
id

en
ta

l b
ut

 h
um

an
-in

iti
at

ed
.”

 
• 

Th
e 

Si
m

i 
Fi

re
 s

ta
rte

d 
on

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
5,

 2
00

3 
an

d 
bu

rn
ed

 a 
to

ta
l o

f 1
07

,5
70

 a
cr

es
 b

et
w

ee
n 

Si
m

i 
H

ill
s 

an
d 

so
ut

he
as

te
rn

 S
im

i V
al

le
y,

 i
n 

ea
st

er
n 

Ve
nt

ur
a 

Co
un

ty
 a

nd
 w

es
te

rn
 L

os
 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y,

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
. 

It 
de

st
ro

ye
d 

37
 h

om
es

 a
nd

 2
78

 o
ut

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
. T

he
 c

au
se

 o
f 

th
e 

fir
e 

re
m

ai
ns

 u
nk

no
w

n.
 

• 
Th

e 
D

ay
 F

ire
 s

ta
rte

d 
on

 O
ct

ob
er

 3
0,

 2
00

6 
an

d 
bu

rn
ed

 a 
to

ta
l o

f 1
61

,8
16

 a
cr

es
. T

he
 fi

re
 

pr
im

ar
ily

 b
ur

ne
d 

th
e 

Lo
s 

Pa
dr

es
 N

at
io

na
l F

or
es

t. 
Th

e 
ca

us
e o

f t
he

 fi
re

 w
as

 h
um

an
-

ig
ni

te
d 

de
br

is
. 

• 
Th

e 
Ra

nc
h 

Fi
re

 s
ta

rte
d 

on
 O

ct
ob

er
 2

0,
 2

00
7 

an
d 

bu
rn

ed
 a 

to
ta

l o
f 5

8,
41

0 
ac

re
s 

ne
ar

 
To

w
ns

en
d 

Pe
ak

 in
 th

e 
A

ng
el

es
 N

at
io

na
l F

or
es

t. 
Th

e 
ca

us
e o

f t
he

 fi
re

 w
as

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t. 

• 
Th

e 
St

at
io

n 
Fi

re
 s

ta
rte

d 
on

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

2,
 2

00
9 

an
d 

bu
rn

ed
 a 

to
ta

l o
f 1

60
,8

83
 a

cr
es

 in
 th

e 
A

ng
el

es
 N

at
io

na
l F

or
es

t. 
Th

e 
St

at
io

n 
Fi

re
 is

 th
e l

ar
ge

st
 re

co
rd

ed
 fi

re
 in

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 
Co

un
ty

. I
t d

es
tro

ye
d 

89
 re

si
de

nc
es

 an
d 

an
ot

he
r 1

20
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 o
f s

ig
ni

fic
an

ce
. T

w
o 

fir
ef

ig
ht

er
s 

w
er

e 
ki

lle
d.

 T
he

 c
au

se
 o

f t
he

 fi
re

 w
as

 a
rs

on
. 

• 
Th

e 
W

oo
ls

ey
 F

ire
 s

ta
rte

d 
N

ov
em

be
r 8

, 2
01

8 
an

d 
bu

rn
ed

 a
 to

ta
l o

f 9
6,

94
9 

ac
re

s 
in

 L
os

 
A

ng
el

es
 an

d 
Ve

nt
ur

a 
co

un
tie

s i
nc

lu
di

ng
 T

ho
us

an
d 

O
ak

s,
 A

go
ur

a 
H

ill
s,

 C
al

ab
as

as
, t

he
 

Sa
nt

a 
M

on
ic

a 
M

ou
nt

ai
ns

, M
al

ib
u,

 a
nd

 W
es

t H
ill

s.
 A

 to
ta

l o
f 1

,6
43

 s
tru

ct
ur

es
 w

er
e 

de
st

ro
ye

d 
an

d 
3 

pe
op

le
 w

er
e 

ki
lle

d.
 

Ex
te

nt
 /

 
Se

ve
rit

y 

A
s s

ho
w

n 
on

 th
e 

Ca
l F

IR
E 

FH
SZ

 m
ap

s,
 in

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y,

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
38

6.
06

 s
qu

ar
e m

ile
s 

(8
.1

1%
) 

lo
ca

te
d 

in
 th

e 
ve

ry
 h

ig
h 

LR
A

 F
H

SZ
, 6

25
.0

1 
sq

ua
re

 m
ile

s 
(1

3.
13

%
) 

in
 th

e v
er

y 
hi

gh
 S

RA
 

FH
SZ

, a
nd

 1
32

.7
7 

sq
ua

re
 m

ile
s 

(2
.7

9%
) 

in
 th

e h
ig

h 
SR

A
 F

H
SZ

. I
n 

th
e 

U
ni

nc
or

po
ra

te
d 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y,

 th
is

 in
cl

ud
es

: 2
3.

53
 s

qu
ar

e 
m

ile
s 

(0
.7

7%
) 

of
 v

er
y 

hi
gh

 L
RA

 F
H

SZ
; 

61
0.

94
 

sq
ua

re
 m

ile
s 

(2
0.

09
%

) 
of

 v
er

y 
hi

gh
 S

RA
 F

H
SZ

; a
nd

 1
32

.0
6 

sq
ua

re
 m

ile
s 

(4
.3

4%
) 

of
 h

ig
h 

SR
A

 
FH

SZ
. 

Re
cu

rre
nc

e 
Pr

ob
ab

ili
ty

 

Th
e 

cl
im

at
e 

in
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
is

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
ize

d 
as

 M
ed

ite
rra

ne
an

 d
ry

-s
um

m
er

 f
ea

tu
rin

g 
co

ol
, 

w
et

 w
in

te
rs

 a
nd

 w
ar

m
, 

dr
y 

su
m

m
er

s.
 H

ig
h 

m
oi

st
ur

e 
le

ve
ls

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

w
in

te
r r

ai
ny

 s
ea

so
n 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ly

 in
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

gr
ow

th
 o

f p
la

nt
s.

 H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 v
eg

et
at

io
n 

is
 d

rie
d 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
lo

ng
, h

ot
 

su
m

m
er

s,
 d

ec
re

as
in

g 
pl

an
t m

oi
st

ur
e 

co
nt

en
t a

nd
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 th
e r

at
io

 o
f d

ea
d 

fu
el

 to
 li

vi
ng

 fu
el

. A
s 

a 
re

su
lt,

 fi
re

 s
us

ce
pt

ib
ili

ty
 in

cr
ea

se
s d

ra
m

at
ic

al
ly

, 
pa

rti
cu

la
rly

 in
 la

te
 s

um
m

er
 a

nd
 ea

rly
 a

ut
um

n.
 In

 
ad

di
tio

n,
 th

e 
pr

es
en

ce
 o

f c
ha

pa
rra

l, 
a 

dr
ou

gh
t-r

es
is

ta
nt

 v
ar

ie
ty

 o
f v

eg
et

at
io

n 
th

at
 is

 d
ep

en
de

nt
 o

n 
oc

ca
si

on
al

 w
ild

fir
es

, 
is

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
in

 M
ed

ite
rra

ne
an

 d
ry

-s
um

m
er

 c
lim

at
es

. T
he

 h
is

to
ry

 o
f p

la
nt

 
su

cc
es

si
on

 in
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
is

 im
po

rta
nt

 in
 p

re
di

ct
in

g 
fir

e 
su

sc
ep

tib
ili

ty
. F

or
 s

ev
er

al
 y

ea
rs

 
af

te
r a

 fi
re

 h
as

 o
cc

ur
re

d,
 e

as
ily

 fl
am

m
ab

le
 h

er
ba

ce
ou

s s
pe

ci
es

 th
riv

e 
an

d 
in

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
lik

el
ih

oo
d 

of
 n

ew
 fi

re
s.

 W
he

n 
w

oo
dy

 sp
ec

ie
s b

ec
om

e 
re

-e
st

ab
lis

he
d,

 th
ey

 co
nt

rib
ut

e t
o 

a 
lo

w
er

 o
ve

ra
ll 

le
ve

l 
of

 fi
re

 s
us

ce
pt

ib
ili

ty
 fo

r a
pp

ro
xim

at
el

y 
10

 y
ea

rs
. H

ow
ev

er
, a

fte
r t

hi
s p

er
io

d,
 th

e 
sl

ow
 a

gi
ng

 p
la

nt
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

4-
44

 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

34
. W

ild
fir

e 
Id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

Pr
of

ile
 

Pr
of

ile
 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

co
m

m
un

ity
 b

ec
om

es
 e

ve
r m

or
e 

lik
el

y 
to

 b
ur

n 
be

ca
us

e o
f i

nc
re

as
ed

 le
ve

ls
 o

f d
ea

d 
pl

an
t m

at
er

ia
l 

an
d 

lo
w

er
ed

 p
la

nt
 m

oi
st

ur
e 

le
ve

ls
. 

A
dd

iti
on

al
ly

, a
 lo

ca
l m

et
eo

ro
lo

gi
ca

l 
ph

en
om

en
on

, k
no

w
n 

as
 th

e 
Sa

nt
a 

A
na

 w
in

ds
, c

on
tri

bu
te

s 
to

 
th

e 
hi

gh
 in

ci
de

nc
e 

of
 w

ild
fir

es
 i

n 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y.
 T

he
se

 w
in

ds
 o

rig
in

at
e 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
au

tu
m

n 
m

on
th

s 
in

 t
he

 h
ot

, d
ry

 in
te

rio
r 

de
se

rts
 to

 th
e 

no
rth

 a
nd

 e
as

t o
f 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y.

 T
he

y 
of

te
n 

sw
ee

p 
w

es
t i

nt
o 

th
e c

ou
nt

y,
 b

rin
gi

ng
 e

xt
re

m
el

y 
dr

y 
ai

r 
an

d 
hi

gh
 w

in
d 

sp
ee

ds
 th

at
 fu

rth
er

 d
es

ic
ca

te
 

pl
an

t 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
pe

rio
d 

of
 t

he
 y

ea
r 

w
he

n 
th

e 
co

ns
tit

ue
nt

 s
pe

ci
es

 h
av

e 
ve

ry
 l

ow
 

m
oi

st
ur

e 
co

nt
en

t. 
Th

e 
ef

fe
ct

 o
f t

he
se

 w
in

ds
 o

n 
ex

is
tin

g 
fir

es
 is

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 d
an

ge
ro

us
; t

he
 w

in
ds

 
ca

n 
gr

ea
tly

 in
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

ra
te

 a
t w

hi
ch

 fi
re

s 
sp

re
ad

. 

Ba
se

d 
on

 th
e c

on
di

tio
ns

 d
es

cr
ib

ed
 ab

ov
e a

nd
 th

e 
hi

st
or

y 
of

 o
cc

ur
re

nc
e i

n 
th

e p
as

t, 
fu

tu
re

 e
ve

nt
s a

re
 

ve
ry

 li
ke

ly
 t

o 
oc

cu
r. 

In
 th

e 
pa

st
, f

ire
s 

bu
rn

in
g 

m
or

e 
th

an
 1,

00
0 

ac
re

s 
ha

ve
 o

cc
ur

re
d 

ab
ou

t e
ve

ry
 1 

to
 

3 
ye

ar
s.

 T
he

 e
xt

en
t o

f f
ut

ur
e 

ev
en

ts
 w

ill
 d

ep
en

d 
on

 sp
ec

ifi
c 

co
nd

iti
on

s a
t t

he
 ti

m
e 

of
 th

e 
fir

e.
 

 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

35
. W

ild
fir

e 
Im

pa
ct

 o
n 

La
nd

 A
re

a 

 
V

er
y 

H
ig

h 
LR

A
 F

H
SZ

  
H

ig
h 

SR
A

 F
H

SZ
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

SR
A

 F
H

SZ
 

En
tit

y 
# 

of
 S

q.
 

M
ile

s 
%

 of
 S

q.
 

M
ile

s 
# 

of
 S

q.
 

M
ile

s 
%

 of
 S

q.
 

M
ile

s 
# 

of
 S

q.
 

M
ile

s 
%

 of
 S

q.
 

M
ile

s 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 

Co
un

ty
 

38
6.

06
 

8.
11

 
13

2.
77

 
2.

79
 

62
5.

01
 

13
.1

3 

U
ni

nc
or

po
ra

te
d 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 

Co
un

ty
 

23
.5

4 
0.

77
 

13
2.

06
 

4.
34

 
61

0.
94

 
20

.0
9 

Su
pe

rv
iso

ria
l 

D
ist

ric
t 1

 
31

.4
2 

12
.7

6 
0.

00
 

0.
00

 
1.

13
 

0.
46

 

Su
pe

rv
iso

ria
l 

D
ist

ric
t 2

 
3.

25
 

2.
01

 
0.

00
 

0.
00

 
0.

00
 

0.
00

 

Su
pe

rv
iso

ria
l 

D
ist

ric
t 3

 
14

0.
58

 
32

.6
0 

0.
01

 
0.

00
 

92
.1

8 
21

.3
8 

Su
pe

rv
iso

ria
l 

D
ist

ric
t 4

 
45

.7
8 

10
.4

1 
1.

11
 

0.
25

 
86

.6
1 

19
.6

9 

Su
pe

rv
iso

ria
l 

D
ist

ric
t 5

 
16

4.
90

 
5.

87
 

13
1.

65
 

4.
69

 
44

4.
99

 
15

.8
5 

 

CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

4-
45

 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

36
. W

ild
fir

e 
Im

pa
ct

 o
n 

V
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

Po
pu

la
tio

ns
 –

 P
eo

pl
e 

Ex
pe

rie
nc

in
g 

H
om

el
es

sn
es

s 

 
V

er
y 

H
ig

h 
LR

A
 F

H
SZ

  
H

ig
h 

SR
A

 F
H

SZ
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

SR
A

 F
H

SZ
 

En
tit

y 
# 

of
 

H
om

el
es

s 
%

 of
 

H
om

el
es

s 
# 

of
 

H
om

el
es

s 
%

 of
 

H
om

el
es

s 
# 

of
 

H
om

el
es

s 
%

 of
 

H
om

el
es

s 

Ci
ty

 o
f L

os
 

A
ng

el
es

  
1,

29
1 

3.
92

 
0 

0.
00

 
0 

0.
00

 

U
ni

nc
or

po
ra

te
d 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 

Co
un

ty
 

88
 

1.
49

 
58

 
0.

99
 

46
5 

7.
91

 

 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

37
. W

ild
fir

e 
Im

pa
ct

 o
n 

C
ou

nt
y 

C
rit

ic
al

 F
ac

ili
tie

s 

 
V

er
y 

H
ig

h 
LR

A
 F

H
SZ

  
H

ig
h 

SR
A

 F
H

SZ
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

SR
A

 F
H

SZ
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

/ A
ge

nc
y 

# 
of

 
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

%
 of

 
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

# 
of

 
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

%
 of

 
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

# 
of

 
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

%
 of

 
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 

Co
un

ty
 A

ni
m

al
 

Ca
re

 &
 C

on
tr

ol
 

1 
14

.2
9 

0 
0.

00
 

1 
14

.2
9 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 

Co
un

ty
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

39
 

11
.5

7 
1 

0.
30

 
14

 
4.

15
 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 

Co
un

ty
 H

ea
lth

 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

1 
3.

45
 

0 
0.

00
 

0 
0.

00
 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 

Co
un

ty
 L

ib
ra

ry
 

7 
8.

24
 

1 
1.

18
 

2 
2.

35
 

LA
CM

A
 &

 
N

H
M

 
1 

25
.0

0 
0 

0.
00

 
0 

0.
00

 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 

Co
un

ty
 O

ff
ic

e o
f 

Ed
uc

at
io

n 
3 

8.
11

 
0 

0.
00

 
3 

8.
11

 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 

Co
un

ty
 - 

O
th

er
 

(o
ff

ic
es

) 
0 

0.
00

 
0 

0.
00

 
0 

0.
00

 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 

Co
un

ty
 P

ar
ks

 &
 

Re
cr

ea
tio

n 
13

 
11

.1
1 

1 
0.

85
 

12
 

10
.2

6 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 

Co
un

ty
 P

ub
lic

 
H

ea
lth

 
52

 
22

.6
1 

4 
1.

74
 

41
 

17
.8

3 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 

Co
un

ty
 P

ub
lic

 
W

or
ks

 
0 

0.
00

 
0 

0.
00

 
0 

0.
00

 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 

Co
un

ty
 Sh

er
iff

’s 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
3 

9.
68

 
1 

3.
23

 
3 

9.
68

 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

4-
46

 

Ta
bl

e 
4-

38
. O

ve
ra

ll 
Su

m
m

ar
y 

of
 V

ul
ne

ra
bi

lit
y 

to
 W

ild
fir

es
 

W
ild

fir
e 

Su
m

m
ar

y 

W
ild

fir
es

 a
re

 n
ot

 o
nl

y 
ca

pa
bl

e 
of

 b
ur

ni
ng

 d
ow

n 
ve

ge
ta

tio
n,

 h
om

es
, c

rit
ic

al
 f

ac
ili

tie
s,

 a
nd

 
in

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e,

 b
ut

 th
ey

 ca
n 

al
so

 c
au

se
 lo

ss
 o

f l
ife

 t
o 

hu
m

an
s 

an
d 

an
im

al
s,

 s
oi

l e
ro

si
on

, 
de

br
is

 fl
ow

s,
 a

ir 
po

llu
tio

n,
 s

er
io

us
 h

ea
lth

 p
ro

bl
em

s,
 a

nd
 re

st
ric

tio
n 

of
 a

cc
es

s t
o 

re
cr

ea
tio

na
l a

re
as

.  
Th

e 
ar

ea
s 

in
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
th

at
 ar

e 
m

os
t s

us
ce

pt
ib

le
 to

 w
ild

fir
es

 a
re

 g
en

er
al

ly
 

lo
ca

te
d 

in
 m

ou
nt

ai
no

us
 o

r h
ill

si
de

 a
re

as
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 th
e S

an
ta

 M
on

ic
a 

M
ou

nt
ai

ns
, S

an
 

Ga
br

ie
l 

M
ou

nt
ai

ns
, P

al
os

 V
er

de
s 

H
ill

s,
 a

nd
 P

ue
nt

e H
ill

s.
 H

ow
ev

er
, t

he
 a

re
as

 th
at

 p
os

e 
gr

ea
te

st
 ri

sk
 to

 p
eo

pl
e 

ar
e 

ge
ne

ra
lly

 a
lo

ng
 th

e 
w

ild
la

nd
-u

rb
an

 in
te

rfa
ce

 (W
U

I) 
or

 in
te

rm
ix.

 
Th

es
e a

re
as

 a
re

 th
e t

ra
ns

iti
on

 zo
ne

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
w

ild
la

nd
s 

an
d 

hu
m

an
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 o

fte
n 

w
he

re
 a

re
as

 o
f h

ou
si

ng
 an

d 
ve

ge
ta

tio
n 

co
m

m
in

gl
e.

  
A

cc
or

di
ng

 to
 re

se
ar

ch
er

s 
at

 th
e U

ni
te

d 
St

at
es

 F
or

es
t S

er
vi

ce
, f

ire
s 

in
 th

e 
W

U
I a

re
as

 h
av

e 
no

t d
et

er
re

d 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

In
 fa

ct
, a

cc
or

di
ng

 to
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

re
se

ar
ch

er
s,

 th
er

e 
is

 a
 p

us
h 

to
 

re
tu

rn
 th

e 
ar

ea
 to

 “
no

rm
al

” 
as

 so
on

 as
 p

os
si

bl
e.

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 h

as
 th

e 
st

ric
te

st
 fi

re
 r

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 

in
 th

e c
ou

nt
ry

, w
hi

ch
 s

up
er

se
de

 an
y 

ty
pe

 o
f l

oc
al

 re
gu

la
tio

ns
. H

ow
ev

er
, t

he
 ru

le
s 

do
 n

ot
 

ap
pl

y 
to

 e
xis

tin
g 

ho
m

es
 b

ui
lt 

be
fo

re
 1

99
1,

 w
ith

 th
e 

av
er

ag
e h

om
e 

in
 C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 b
ui

lt 
de

ca
de

s p
rio

r. 
A

nd
 u

nl
ik

e 
ea

rth
qu

ak
es

 an
d 

flo
od

s,
 th

er
e 

is
 n

ot
 a 

re
tro

fit
 ty

pe
 o

f p
ro

gr
am

 to
 

en
co

ur
ag

e h
om

eo
w

ne
rs

 to
 b

rin
g 

th
ei

r h
om

es
 u

p 
to

 c
ur

re
nt

 fi
re

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
.  

 
 

Lo
s A

ng
ele

s

40
5

21
0

5

10

60
5

11
0

71
0

10
5

14
13

8

60

39

91

11
8

13
4

1

2

19

11
0

21
0

57

27

72

17
0

21
3

12
6

66

23

10
7

18

42

10
3

90

47

71

22

2

39
2

2

39

91

90

10
1

20
19

 Lo
s A

ng
ele

s C
ou

nty
 

All
-H

az
ard

s M
itig

ati
on

 Pl
an

Le
ge

nd
Fir

e H
az

ard
 Se

ve
rit

y Z
on

es
L
o

c
a

l 
R

e
s
p
o

n
s
ib

ili
ty

 A
re

a
 (

L
R

A
)

V
e

ry
 H

ig
h

S
ta

te
 R

e
s
p

o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 A
re

a
 (

S
R

A
)

V
e

ry
 H

ig
h

H
ig

h

M
o
d

e
ra

te

N
a
ti
o
n

a
l 
F

o
re

s
t

0
5

1
0

1
5

2
.5

M
ile

s

Fir
e H

az
ar

d S
ev

eri
ty 

Zo
ne

s
Fig

ur
e 4

-11

V 
e n

 t u
 r 

a
C 

o u
 n 

t y

O 
r a

 n 
g e

C 
o u

 n 
t y

S a n  B e r n a r d i n o
C o u n t y

K 
e r

 n 
 C

 o 
u n

 t y

P a
 c 

i f 
i c

   O
 c 

e a
 n

So
ur

ce
L
o

s
 A

n
g
e

le
s
 C

o
u

n
ty

 F
H

S
Z

 D
a
ta

b
a
s
e

S
R

A
 (

2
0

0
7

) 
a
n

d
 L

R
A

 (
2
0
1
2
)

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.f

ir
e
.c

a
.g

o
v

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Lo
s A

ng
ele

s

40
5

21
0

5

10

60
5

11
0

71
0

10
5

14
13

8

60

39

91

11
8

13
4

1

2

19

11
0

21
0

57

27

72

17
0

21
3

12
6

66

23

10
7

18

42

10
3

90

47

71

22

2

39
2

2

39

91

90

10
1

20
19

 Lo
s A

ng
ele

s C
ou

nty
 

All
-H

az
ard

s M
itig

ati
on

 Pl
an

Le
ge

nd
Bu

rn
ed

 Ar
ea

s
1

0
,0

0
0

 -
 4

9
,9

9
9

5
0

,0
0

0
 -

 9
9

,9
9

9

1
0

0
,0

0
0

+

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
F

o
re

s
t

0
5

1
0

1
5

2
.5

M
ile

s

Re
ce

nt 
Wi

ldf
ire

s (
20

00
-20

18
)

Fig
ur

e 4
-12

V 
e n

 t u
 r 

a
C 

o u
 n 

t y

O 
r a

 n 
g e

C 
o u

 n 
t y

S a n  B e r n a r d i n o
C o u n t y

K 
e r

 n 
 C

 o 
u n

 t y

P a
 c 

i f 
i c

   O
 c 

e a
 n

S
ta

ti
o
n
 F

ir
e

2
0

0
9

(1
6

0
,8

3
3

 A
c
re

s
)

D
a
y
 F

ir
e

2
0

0
6

(1
6

2
,7

0
2

 A
c
re

s
)

S
im

i 
F

ir
e

2
0

0
3

(1
0

7
,5

6
0

 A
c
re

s
)

So
ur

ce
F

ir
e

 R
e
s
o
u

rc
e

 a
n
d

 A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
F

ir
e

 P
e

ri
m

e
te

rs
 D

a
ta

b
a
s
e
 (

2
0
1
9
)

h
tt

p
:/

/f
ra

p
.f

ir
e
.c

a
.g

o
vW

o
o

ls
e

y
 F

ir
e

2
0

1
8

(9
6

,9
4

9
 A

c
re

s
)

R
a
n

c
h

 F
ir

e
2
0

0
7

(5
4

,7
1

6
 A

c
re

s
)

CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

5-
1 

5 
M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 

Se
ct

io
n 

5 
– 

M
itig

at
io

n 
St

ra
te

gy
 a

dd
re

ss
es

 E
lem

en
t 

C
 o

f 
th

e 
Lo

ca
l 

M
itig

at
io

n 
Pl

an
 R

eg
ula

tio
n 

C
he

ck
lis

t. 

R
eg

ul
at

io
n 

C
he

ck
lis

t –
 4

4 
C

FR
 2

01
.6

 L
oc

al
 M

iti
ga

tio
n 

Pl
an

s 

El
em

en
t 

C
: M

iti
ga

tio
n 

St
ra

te
gy

 

C1
. D

oe
s 

th
e 

Pl
an

 d
oc

um
en

t e
ac

h 
ju

ris
di

ct
io

n’
s 

ex
is

tin
g 

au
th

or
iti

es
, p

ol
ic

ie
s,

 p
ro

gr
am

s 
an

d 
re

so
ur

ce
s a

nd
 it

s 
ab

ili
ty

 
to

 e
xp

an
d 

on
 an

d 
im

pr
ov

e 
th

es
e e

xis
tin

g 
po

lic
ie

s 
an

d 
pr

og
ra

m
s?

 (R
eq

ui
re

m
en

t 
§ 

20
1.

6(
c)

(3
))

 
C2

. D
oe

s 
th

e 
Pl

an
 a

dd
re

ss
 ea

ch
 ju

ris
di

ct
io

n’
s 

pa
rti

ci
pa

tio
n 

in
 th

e 
N

FI
P 

an
d 

co
nt

in
ue

d 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 N

FI
P 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

, a
s 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
? 

(R
eq

ui
re

m
en

t 
§ 

20
1.

6(
c)

(3
)(

i))
 

C3
. D

oe
s 

th
e 

Pl
an

 in
cl

ud
e 

go
al

s 
to

 re
du

ce
/a

vo
id

 lo
ng

‐te
rm

 v
ul

ne
ra

bi
lit

ie
s 

to
 th

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

ha
za

rd
s?

  
(R

eq
ui

re
m

en
t 

§2
01

.6
(c

)(3
)(

i))
 

C4
. D

oe
s 

th
e 

Pl
an

 id
en

tif
y 

an
d 

an
al

yz
e 

a 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 ra
ng

e 
of

 s
pe

ci
fic

 m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ac

tio
ns

 an
d 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 fo
r e

ac
h 

ju
ris

di
ct

io
n 

be
in

g 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 to
 re

du
ce

 th
e e

ffe
ct

s 
of

 h
az

ar
ds

, w
ith

 e
m

ph
as

is
 o

n 
ne

w
 a

nd
 e

xis
tin

g 
bu

ild
in

gs
 a

nd
 

in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e?
 (R

eq
ui

re
m

en
t 

§2
01

.6
(c

)(3
)(

ii)
) 

C5
. D

oe
s 

th
e 

Pl
an

 c
on

ta
in

 an
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
 th

at
 d

es
cr

ib
es

 h
ow

 th
e 

ac
tio

ns
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

w
ill

 b
e 

pr
io

rit
ize

d 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

co
st

 
be

ne
fit

 re
vi

ew
), 

im
pl

em
en

te
d,

 a
nd

 a
dm

in
is

te
re

d 
by

 e
ac

h 
ju

ris
di

ct
io

n?
 (R

eq
ui

re
m

en
t 

§2
01

.6
(c

)(3
)(

iv
))

; 
(R

eq
ui

re
m

en
t 

§2
01

.6
(c

)(3
)(

iii
)) 

C6
. D

oe
s 

th
e 

Pl
an

 d
es

cr
ib

e a
 p

ro
ce

ss
 b

y 
w

hi
ch

 lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
ts

 w
ill

 i
nt

eg
ra

te
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 m
iti

ga
tio

n 
pl

an
 in

to
 o

th
er

 p
la

nn
in

g 
m

ec
ha

ni
sm

s,
 s

uc
h 

as
 co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 o
r c

ap
ita

l i
m

pr
ov

em
en

t 
pl

an
s,

 w
he

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

? 
(R

eq
ui

re
m

en
t 

§2
01

.6
(c

)(4
)(

ii)
) 

5.
1 

A
U

T
H

O
R

IT
IE

S,
 P

O
LI

C
IE

S,
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

S, 
A

N
D

 R
E

SO
U

R
C

E
S 

Lo
s 

A
ng

ele
s 

C
ou

nt
y’

s 
ex

ist
in

g 
au

th
or

iti
es

, 
po

lic
ies

, 
pr

og
ra

m
s 

an
d 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
av

ail
ab

le 
fo

r 
ha

za
rd

 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

ar
e 

lis
te

d 
in 

Ta
bl

e 
5-

1 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ta

bl
e 

5-
3.

 T
he

se
 t

ab
les

 h
av

e 
be

en
 u

pd
at

ed
 s

inc
e 

th
e 

20
14

 A
H

M
P 

to
 re

fle
ct

 a
ny

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 h

um
an

, 
te

ch
nic

al,
 f

ina
nc

ia
l, 

leg
al,

 a
nd

 re
gu

lat
or

y 
re

so
ur

ce
s.

 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

5-
2 

Ta
bl

e 
5-

1 
H

um
an

 a
nd

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 fo
r H

az
ar

d 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

St
af

f/P
er

so
nn

el
  

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

/ A
ge

nc
y 

Pr
in

ci
pa

l 
A

ct
iv

iti
es

 R
el

at
ed

 t
o 

H
az

ar
d 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 

Pl
an

ne
r(s

), 
en

gi
ne

er
(s

) a
nd

 
te

ch
ni

ca
l s

ta
ff 

w
ith

 k
no

w
le

dg
e 

of
 

la
nd

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t, 
la

nd
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t p

ra
ct

ic
es

, a
nd

 
hu

m
an

-c
au

se
d 

an
d 

na
tu

ra
l 

ha
za

rd
s.

 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f R
eg

io
na

l 
Pl

an
ni

ng
  

D
ev

el
op

s 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

ai
ns

 t
he

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

20
35

 G
en

er
al

 P
la

n,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

sa
fe

ty
 el

em
en

t. 
 

D
ev

el
op

s 
ar

ea
 p

la
ns

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
20

35
 G

en
er

al
 P

la
n,

 t
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

m
or

e 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
gu

id
an

ce
 fo

r t
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f m

or
e 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

ar
ea

s.
 

Re
vi

ew
s 

pr
iv

at
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t p

ro
je

ct
s a

nd
 p

ro
po

se
d 

ca
pi

ta
l i

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 p
ro

je
ct

s a
nd

 
ot

he
r p

hy
si

ca
l p

ro
je

ct
s i

nv
ol

vi
ng

 p
ro

pe
rty

 fo
r c

on
si

st
en

cy
 an

d 
co

nf
or

m
ity

 w
ith

 th
e L

os
 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

20
35

 G
en

er
al

 P
la

n.
 

A
nt

ic
ip

at
es

 an
d 

ac
ts

 o
n 

th
e 

ne
ed

 fo
r n

ew
 p

la
ns

, p
ol

ic
ie

s,
 a

nd
 c

od
e c

ha
ng

es
. 

A
pp

lie
s 

th
e a

pp
ro

ve
d 

pl
an

s,
 p

ol
ic

ie
s,

 c
od

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

, a
nd

 o
th

er
 re

gu
la

tio
ns

 to
 p

ro
po

se
d 

la
nd

 u
se

s.
 

En
gi

ne
er

(s
), 

Bu
ild

in
g 

In
sp

ec
to

rs
/C

od
e E

nf
or

ce
m

en
t 

O
ffi

ce
rs

 o
r o

th
er

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l(s
), 

an
d 

te
ch

ni
ca

l s
ta

ff 
tra

in
ed

 in
 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Pu
bl

ic
 

W
or

ks
 

O
ve

rs
ee

s t
he

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e,
 e

ffi
ci

en
t, 

fa
ir,

 a
nd

 s
af

e 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t o
f t

he
 2

01
7 

Co
un

ty
 o

f L
os

 
A

ng
el

es
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

Co
de

. 

En
gi

ne
er

s,
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

pr
oj

ec
t 

m
an

ag
er

s,
 a

nd
 su

pp
or

tin
g 

te
ch

ni
ca

l s
ta

ff 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Pu
bl

ic
 

W
or

ks
 

Pr
ov

id
es

 d
ire

ct
 o

r c
on

tra
ct

 ci
vi

l, 
st

ru
ct

ur
al

, a
nd

 m
ec

ha
ni

ca
l 

en
gi

ne
er

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

co
nt

ra
ct

, p
ro

je
ct

, a
nd

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
m

an
ag

em
en

t. 
 

En
gi

ne
er

(s
), 

pr
oj

ec
t m

an
ag

er
(s

), 
te

ch
ni

ca
l s

ta
ff,

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t 

op
er

at
or

s,
 an

d 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 a

nd
 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

st
af

f 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Pu
bl

ic
 

W
or

ks
 

M
ai

nt
ai

ns
 a

nd
 o

pe
ra

te
s o

f a
 w

id
e 

ra
ng

e 
of

 lo
ca

l e
qu

ip
m

en
t a

nd
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

an
d 

as
si

st
s 

m
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 p

ub
lic

. T
hi

s 
in

cl
ud

es
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 c

le
an

 fr
es

h 
w

at
er

, r
el

ia
bl

e 
se

w
er

 s
er

vi
ce

s,
 s

tre
et

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

, s
to

rm
 d

ra
in

ag
e 

sy
st

em
s,

 st
re

et
 cl

ea
ni

ng
, s

tre
et

 li
gh

ts
 

an
d 

tra
ffi

c 
si

gn
al

s.
  

Fl
oo

dp
la

in
 A

dm
in

is
tra

to
r 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Pu
bl

ic
 

W
or

ks
 

En
fo

rc
es

 th
e f

lo
od

pl
ai

n 
m

an
ag

em
en

t o
rd

in
an

ce
, e

ns
ur

es
 th

at
 n

ew
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

pr
op

os
al

s d
o 

no
t i

nc
re

as
e 

flo
od

 ri
sk

, a
nd

 th
at

 n
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 a

re
 n

ot
 lo

ca
te

d 
be

lo
w

 
th

e 
10

0-
ye

ar
 f

lo
od

 le
ve

l. 
In

 a
dd

iti
on

, t
he

 fl
oo

dp
la

in
 a

dm
in

is
tra

to
r 

is
 re

sp
on

si
bl

e f
or

 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

nd
 m

an
ag

in
g 

flo
od

 ri
sk

 re
du

ct
io

n 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e c

ou
nt

y.
 

Em
er

ge
nc

y 
M

an
ag

er
 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Ch
ie

f 
Ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

O
ffi

ce
 –

 O
ffi

ce
 o

f 
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

M
ai

nt
ai

ns
 a

nd
 u

pd
at

es
 th

e L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l A

re
a 

Em
er

ge
nc

y 
Re

sp
on

se
 

Pl
an

 fo
r t

he
 u

ni
nc

or
po

ra
te

d 
ar

ea
s o

f t
he

 co
un

ty
. I

n 
ad

di
tio

n,
 c

oo
rd

in
at

es
 lo

ca
l r

es
po

ns
e 

an
d 

re
lie

f 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 in

 th
e 

Em
er

ge
nc

y 
O

pe
ra

tio
n 

Ce
nt

er
, a

nd
 w

or
ks

 c
lo

se
ly

 w
ith

 lo
ca

l, 
st

at
e,

 an
d 

fe
de

ra
l p

ar
tn

er
s t

o 
su

pp
or

t p
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
tra

in
in

g 
an

d 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d 

co
or

di
na

te
 as

si
st

an
ce

. 

CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

5-
3 

Ta
bl

e 
5-

1 
H

um
an

 a
nd

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 fo
r H

az
ar

d 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

St
af

f/P
er

so
nn

el
  

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

/ A
ge

nc
y 

Pr
in

ci
pa

l 
A

ct
iv

iti
es

 R
el

at
ed

 t
o 

H
az

ar
d 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 

Pr
oc

ur
em

en
t S

er
vi

ce
s 

M
an

ag
er

 
 In

te
rn

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Pr
ov

id
es

 a
 fu

ll 
ra

ng
e 

of
 m

un
ic

ip
al

 f
in

an
ci

al
 s

er
vi

ce
s,

 a
dm

in
is

te
rs

 s
ev

er
al

 li
ce

ns
in

g 
m

ea
su

re
s,

 a
nd

 fu
nc

tio
ns

 as
 th

e 
co

un
ty

’s
 p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t s

er
vi

ce
s m

an
ag

er
.  

Co
m

pt
ro

lle
r 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

A
ud

ito
r -

 
Co

nt
ro

lle
r 

Pr
ov

id
es

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
er

vi
ce

s i
nc

lu
di

ng
 g

ra
nt

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
er

vi
ce

s.
 

D
is

tri
ct

 A
tto

rn
ey

 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
D

is
tri

ct
 

A
tto

rn
ey

 
Pr

ov
id

es
 le

ga
l s

er
vi

ce
s 

fo
r t

he
 c

ou
nt

y.
 

Fi
re

 C
hi

ef
 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Pr

ov
id

es
 fi

re
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n 
se

rv
ic

es
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

re
sp

on
se

, f
ire

 p
re

ve
nt

io
n,

 an
d 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 fo

r t
he

 c
ou

nt
y.

 

Sh
er

iff
 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Sh
er

iff
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Pr
ov

id
es

 la
w

 e
nf

or
ce

m
en

t s
er

vi
ce

s i
n 

th
e c

ou
nt

y.
 

  
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

5-
4 

Ta
bl

e 
5-

2.
 F

in
an

ci
al

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 fo

r H
az

ar
d 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 

Ty
pe

 
A

dm
in

is
tr

at
or

 
Pu

rp
os

e 
A

m
ou

nt
 

Ge
ne

ra
l 

Fu
nd

 
Ch

ie
f 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
O

ffi
ce

 
Pr

og
ra

m
 o

pe
ra

tio
ns

 an
d 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

pr
oj

ec
ts

.  
Va

ria
bl

e.
  

Ge
ne

ra
l 

O
bl

ig
at

io
n 

Bo
nd

s 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 
Co

un
ty

 A
ud

ito
r -

 
Co

nt
ro

lle
r 

Ge
ne

ra
l 

ob
lig

at
io

n 
bo

nd
s a

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
ly

 u
se

d 
fo

r t
he

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
an

d/
or

 
ac

qu
is

iti
on

 o
f i

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 t
o 

re
al

 p
ro

pe
rty

 b
ro

ad
ly

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
to

 re
si

de
nt

s a
nd

 
vi

si
to

rs
. S

uc
h 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
in

cl
ud

e 
bu

t a
re

 n
ot

 lim
ite

d 
to

: l
ib

ra
rie

s,
 h

os
pi

ta
ls

, p
ar

ks
, 

pu
bl

ic
 s

af
et

y 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s,

 a
nd

 c
ul

tu
ra

l a
nd

 e
du

ca
tio

na
l f

ac
ili

tie
s.

 

Va
ria

bl
e.

  

Sp
ec

ia
l T

ax
 a

nd
 

Re
ve

nu
e 

Bo
nd

s  
Co

m
pt

ro
lle

r 

Re
ve

nu
e 

bo
nd

s a
re

 u
se

d 
to

 fi
na

nc
e 

ca
pi

ta
l p

ro
je

ct
s t

ha
t: 

1)
 h

av
e a

n 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

bu
dg

et
ar

y 
st

re
am

 fo
r r

ep
ay

m
en

t (
e.

g.
, s

pe
ci

fie
d 

fe
es

, t
ax

 r
ec

ei
pt

s)
; 2

) g
en

er
at

e 
pr

oj
ec

t 
re

ve
nu

e 
bu

t r
el

y 
on

 a
 b

ro
ad

er
 p

le
dg

e 
of

 g
en

er
al

 fu
nd

 re
ve

nu
es

 to
 re

du
ce

 b
or

ro
w

in
g 

co
st

s;
 o

r 3
) 

fin
an

ce
 th

e 
ac

qu
is

iti
on

 a
nd

 in
st

al
la

tio
n 

of
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t f
or

 th
e 

lo
ca

l 
ju

ris
di

ct
io

n’
s 

ge
ne

ra
l g

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l p

ur
po

se
s.

 

Va
ria

bl
e.

 

Ve
ge

ta
tio

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Pr

og
ra

m
  

Ca
l F

IR
E 

Co
st

-s
ha

rin
g 

pr
og

ra
m

 b
et

w
ee

n 
Ca

l F
IR

E 
an

d 
pr

iv
at

e 
la

nd
 o

w
ne

rs
, w

hi
ch

 fo
cu

se
s o

n 
th

e 
us

e o
f p

re
sc

rib
ed

 fi
re

, m
ec

ha
ni

ca
l, 

bi
ol

og
ic

al
, a

nd
 ch

em
ic

al
 m

ea
ns

 a
dd

re
ss

in
g 

w
ild

la
nd

 f
ire

 f
ue

l h
az

ar
ds

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 re

so
ur

ce
 m

an
ag

em
en

t i
ss

ue
s o

n 
SR

A
 a

nd
 L

RA
 

la
nd

s 

Pr
oj

ec
t-s

pe
ci

fic
. 

W
ild

fir
e 

Em
er

ge
nc

y 
an

d 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

Fu
nd

s 
Ca

l F
IR

E 
A

dm
in

is
te

rs
 fu

nd
in

g 
fro

m
 t

he
 F

EM
A

, B
ur

ea
u 

of
 L

an
d 

M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

an
d 

U
.S

. F
or

es
t 

Se
rv

ic
e 

fo
r c

er
ta

in
 ty

pe
s o

f w
ild

fir
e 

em
er

ge
nc

y 
an

d 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

fu
nd

in
g 

Pr
oj

ec
t-s

pe
ci

fic
. 

Ca
lif

or
ni

a 
Re

si
de

nt
ia

l 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

Pr
og

ra
m

 

Ca
lif

or
ni

a 
Ea

rth
qu

ak
e 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
 

Cr
ea

te
d 

by
 th

e 
Ca

lif
or

ni
a 

Ea
rth

qu
ak

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

an
d 

th
e 

Go
ve

rn
or

’s
 O

ffi
ce

 o
f 

Em
er

ge
nc

y 
Se

rv
ic

es
, E

ar
th

qu
ak

e 
Br

ac
e 

+ 
Bo

lt:
 F

un
ds

 to
 S

tre
ng

th
en

 Y
ou

r 
Fo

un
da

tio
n 

is
 th

e 
fir

st
 in

ce
nt

iv
e 

pr
og

ra
m

 o
ffe

re
d 

by
 th

e 
Ca

lif
or

ni
a 

Re
si

de
nt

ia
l M

iti
ga

tio
n 

Pr
og

ra
m

. 

Pr
oj

ec
t-s

pe
ci

fic
. 

Pu
bl

ic
 H

ea
lth

 
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

Pr
ep

ar
ed

ne
ss

 
Co

op
er

at
iv

e 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t. 

Ce
nt

er
 fo

r D
is

ea
se

 
Co

nt
ro

l 

Fu
nd

s a
re

 in
te

nd
ed

 to
 u

pg
ra

de
 st

at
e a

nd
 lo

ca
l p

ub
lic

 h
ea

lth
 ju

ris
di

ct
io

ns
’ 

pr
ep

ar
ed

ne
ss

 an
d 

re
sp

on
se

 to
 b

io
te

rro
ris

m
, o

ut
br

ea
ks

 o
f i

nf
ec

tio
us

 d
is

ea
se

s,
 an

d 
ot

he
r 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ea
lth

 th
re

at
s a

nd
 em

er
ge

nc
ie

s.
 

Gr
an

t 
aw

ar
d 

ba
se

d 
on

 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 as

 th
ey

 
ar

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d.

  

CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

5-
5 

Ta
bl

e 
5-

2.
 F

in
an

ci
al

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 fo

r H
az

ar
d 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 

Ty
pe

 
A

dm
in

is
tr

at
or

 
Pu

rp
os

e 
A

m
ou

nt
 

H
az

ar
d 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
Gr

an
t 

Pr
og

ra
m

  
FE

M
A

 
Su

pp
or

ts
 p

re
- a

nd
 p

os
t-d

is
as

te
r m

iti
ga

tio
n 

pl
an

s 
an

d 
pr

oj
ec

ts
. A

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 a

fte
r a

 p
re

si
de

nt
ia

lly
 d

ec
la

re
d 

di
sa

st
er

 h
as

 o
cc

ur
re

d 
in

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
, 

ad
m

in
is

te
re

d 
by

 C
al

 O
ES

. 

Gr
an

t 
aw

ar
d 

ba
se

d 
on

 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 as

 th
ey

 
ar

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d.

 

Pr
e-

D
is

as
te

r 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

gr
an

t 
pr

og
ra

m
 

FE
M

A
 

Su
pp

or
ts

 p
re

-d
is

as
te

r m
iti

ga
tio

n 
pl

an
s a

nd
 p

ro
je

ct
s.

 A
va

ila
bl

e 
on

 an
 a

nn
ua

l b
as

is
 as

 a
 

na
tio

na
lly

 c
om

pe
tit

iv
e 

gr
an

t, 
ad

m
in

is
te

re
d 

by
 C

al
 O

ES
. 

Gr
an

t 
aw

ar
d 

ba
se

d 
on

 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 as

 th
ey

 
ar

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d.

 

Fl
oo

d 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

A
ss

is
ta

nc
e g

ra
nt

 
pr

og
ra

m
 

FE
M

A
 

M
iti

ga
te

s 
re

pe
tit

iv
el

y 
flo

od
ed

 s
tru

ct
ur

es
 an

d 
in

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e.

 A
va

ila
bl

e 
on

 a
n 

an
nu

al
 

ba
si

s,
 d

is
tri

bu
te

d 
to

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
, a

dm
in

is
te

re
d 

by
 C

al
 O

ES
. 

Gr
an

t 
aw

ar
d 

ba
se

d 
on

 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 as

 th
ey

 
ar

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d.

 

H
om

el
an

d 
Se

cu
rit

y 
Pr

ep
ar

ed
ne

ss
 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l 
A

ss
is

ta
nc

e 
Pr

og
ra

m
  

FE
M

A
/D

H
S 

Bu
ild

 a
nd

 s
us

ta
in

 p
re

pa
re

dn
es

s t
ec

hn
ic

al
 as

si
st

an
ce

 ac
tiv

iti
es

 in
 s

up
po

rt 
of

 th
e 

fo
ur

 
ho

m
el

an
d 

se
cu

rit
y 

m
is

si
on

 a
re

as
 (i

.e
., 

pr
ev

en
tio

n,
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n,
 re

sp
on

se
, r

ec
ov

er
y)

 a
nd

 
ho

m
el

an
d 

se
cu

rit
y 

pr
og

ra
m

 m
an

ag
em

en
t. 

Gr
an

t 
aw

ar
d 

ba
se

d 
on

 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 as

 th
ey

 
ar

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d.

 

A
ss

is
ta

nc
e t

o 
Fi

re
fig

ht
er

s 
Gr

an
t 

Pr
og

ra
m

 

FE
M

A
/U

.S
. 

Fi
re

 
A

dm
in

is
tra

tio
n 

Pr
ov

id
es

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t, 

pr
ot

ec
tiv

e 
ge

ar
, e

m
er

ge
nc

y 
ve

hi
cl

es
, t

ra
in

in
g,

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 

re
so

ur
ce

s n
ee

de
d 

to
 p

ro
te

ct
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 a
nd

 e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

pe
rs

on
ne

l f
ro

m
 f

ire
 a

nd
 re

la
te

d 
ha

za
rd

s.
 A

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 fi

re
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
 a

nd
 n

on
af

fil
ia

te
d 

em
er

ge
nc

y 
m

ed
ic

al
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

pr
ov

id
er

s.
 

Gr
an

t 
aw

ar
ds

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 as

 th
ey

 
ar

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d.

 

La
nd

 a
nd

 W
at

er
 

Co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

Fu
nd

s 

U
.S

. D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f 
th

e 
In

te
rio

r 
Su

pp
or

ts
 th

e p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

of
 fe

de
ra

l p
ub

lic
 la

nd
s 

an
d 

w
at

er
s 

an
d 

vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
on

 p
riv

at
e 

la
nd

. 
Pr

oj
ec

t-s
pe

ci
fic

. 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 

A
ct

io
n 

fo
r a

 
Re

ne
w

ed
 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

 

U
.S

. E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l 
Pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

A
ge

nc
y 

(E
PA

) 

Th
ro

ug
h 

fin
an

ci
al

 a
nd

 te
ch

ni
ca

l a
ss

is
ta

nc
e o

ffe
rs

 an
 in

no
va

tiv
e 

w
ay

 fo
r a

 c
om

m
un

ity
 

to
 o

rg
an

ize
 a

nd
 ta

ke
 a

ct
io

n 
to

 re
du

ce
 to

xic
 p

ol
lu

tio
n 

(e
.g

., 
st

or
m

w
at

er
) i

n 
its

 lo
ca

l 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t. 
Th

ro
ug

h 
th

is
 p

ro
gr

am
, a

 c
om

m
un

ity
 c

re
at

es
 a

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 th
at

 
im

pl
em

en
ts

 s
ol

ut
io

ns
 to

 re
du

ce
 re

le
as

es
 o

f t
ox

ic
 p

ol
lu

ta
nt

s a
nd

 m
in

im
iz

e 
pe

op
le

’s
 

ex
po

su
re

 to
 th

em
.  

Gr
an

t 
aw

ar
d 

ba
se

d 
on

 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 as

 th
ey

 
ar

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d.

 

Cl
ea

n 
W

at
er

 S
ta

te
 

Re
vo

lv
in

g 
Fu

nd
  

U
.S

. E
PA

 

A
 lo

an
 p

ro
gr

am
 t

ha
t p

ro
vi

de
s l

ow
-c

os
t f

in
an

ci
ng

 to
 e

lig
ib

le
 e

nt
iti

es
 o

n 
st

at
e a

nd
 tr

ib
al

 
la

nd
s f

or
 w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

pr
oj

ec
ts

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 a

ll 
ty

pe
s o

f n
on

-p
oi

nt
 so

ur
ce

, w
at

er
sh

ed
 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
or

 re
st

or
at

io
n,

 e
st

ua
ry

 m
an

ag
em

en
t p

ro
je

ct
s,

 a
nd

 m
or

e 
tra

di
tio

na
l 

m
un

ic
ip

al
 w

as
te

w
at

er
 tr

ea
tm

en
t p

ro
je

ct
s.

  

Va
ria

bl
e.

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

5-
6 

Ta
bl

e 
5-

2.
 F

in
an

ci
al

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 fo

r H
az

ar
d 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 

Ty
pe

 
A

dm
in

is
tr

at
or

 
Pu

rp
os

e 
A

m
ou

nt
 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 B

lo
ck

 
Gr

an
t 

Pr
og

ra
m

 
En

tit
le

m
en

t 
Co

m
m

un
iti

es
 

Gr
an

ts
 

U
.S

. D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f 
H

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 U

rb
an

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

A
cq

ui
si

tio
n 

of
 re

al
 p

ro
pe

rty
, r

el
oc

at
io

n 
an

d 
de

m
ol

iti
on

, 
re

ha
bi

lit
at

io
n 

of
 re

si
de

nt
ia

l 
an

d 
no

n-
re

si
de

nt
ia

l s
tru

ct
ur

es
, c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

of
 p

ub
lic

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
, 

su
ch

 as
 w

at
er

 a
nd

 s
ew

er
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s,

 s
tre

et
s,

 n
ei

gh
bo

rh
oo

d 
ce

nt
er

s,
 an

d 
th

e 
co

nv
er

si
on

 
of

 s
ch

oo
l b

ui
ld

in
gs

 fo
r e

lig
ib

le
 p

ur
po

se
s.

 

Gr
an

t 
aw

ar
d 

ba
se

d 
on

 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 as

 th
ey

 
ar

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d.

 

 
 

CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

5-
7 

Ta
bl

e 
5-

3.
 L

eg
al

 a
nd

 R
eg

ul
at

or
y 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 fo

r 
H

az
ar

d 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

N
am

e 
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 
H

az
ar

ds
 A

dd
re

ss
ed

 
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

 

Po
te

nt
ia

l 
to

 
A

ffe
ct

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

20
35

 
Ge

ne
ra

l 
Pl

an
 (2

01
5)

 
D

es
cr

ib
es

 h
az

ar
d 

ar
ea

s 
an

d 
lis

ts
 g

oa
ls

 an
d 

po
lic

ie
s 

to
 re

du
ce

 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l r

is
k 

of
 d

ea
th

, i
nj

ur
ie

s,
 a

nd
 ec

on
om

ic
 d

am
ag

e 
re

su
lti

ng
 fr

om
 n

at
ur

al
 a

nd
 h

um
an

-c
au

se
d 

ha
za

rd
s.

 

Se
is

m
ic

 a
nd

 g
eo

te
ch

ni
ca

l, 
flo

od
 a

nd
 in

un
da

tio
n 

ha
za

rd
s,

 a
nd

 fi
re

 h
az

ar
ds

. 

M
iti

ga
tio

n,
 

Pr
ep

ar
ed

ne
ss

, 
Re

sp
on

se
 

Ye
s 

Co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 F

lo
od

pl
ai

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t P
la

n 
(2

01
6)

 
Re

vi
ew

s 
ex

is
tin

g 
flo

od
pl

ai
n 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

pr
og

ra
m

s 
in

 th
e 

co
un

ty
 an

d 
re

co
m

m
en

ds
 e

nh
an

ce
m

en
ts

 to
 th

em
 th

ro
ug

h 
35

 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

ac
tio

ns
.  

Fl
oo

d 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

Ye
s 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 2
01

8 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

Fi
re

 P
la

n 

Id
en

tif
ie

s 
an

d 
pr

io
rit

ize
s 

pr
e-

fir
e 

an
d 

po
st

-fi
re

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 an

d 
ta

ct
ic

s 
m

ea
nt

 to
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

lo
ss

 o
f v

al
ue

s 
at

 ri
sk

 
in

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y.

 

W
ild

fir
e 

Pr
ep

ar
ed

ne
ss

, 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

 
Ye

s 

Gr
ea

te
r 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 
Co

un
ty

 R
eg

io
n 

In
te

gr
at

ed
 

Re
gi

on
al

 W
at

er
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t P

la
n 

(2
01

4)
 

Id
en

tif
ie

s 
a 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 s

et
 o

f s
ol

ut
io

ns
 to

 ac
hi

ev
e 

th
e 

se
ve

ra
l o

bj
ec

tiv
es

 o
ve

r t
he

 25
-y

ea
r 

pl
an

ni
ng

 h
or

izo
n 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
re

du
ci

ng
 fl

oo
d 

ris
k 

in
 fl

oo
d 

pr
on

e 
ar

ea
s b

y 
ei

th
er

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
or

 d
ec

re
as

in
g 

ne
ed

s u
si

ng
 in

te
gr

at
ed

 fl
oo

d 
m

an
ag

em
en

t a
pp

ro
ac

he
s a

nd
 ad

ap
tin

g 
to

 an
d 

m
iti

ga
te

 a
ga

in
st

 
cl

im
at

e 
ch

an
ge

 v
ul

ne
ra

bi
lit

ie
s.

 

Fl
oo

d,
 C

lim
at

e 
Ch

an
ge

 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

Ye
s 

U
ni

nc
or

po
ra

te
d 

Co
un

ty
 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 C

lim
at

e 
A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
 2

02
0 

(2
01

5)
 

Pr
ov

id
es

 a
 ro

ad
m

ap
 fo

r s
uc

ce
ss

fu
lly

 im
pl

em
en

tin
g 

gr
ee

nh
ou

se
 g

as
 re

du
ct

io
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
in

 th
e C

ou
nt

y.
 It

 is
 a

 
co

m
po

ne
nt

 o
f t

he
 G

en
er

al
 P

la
n 

A
ir 

Q
ua

lit
y 

El
em

en
t, 

th
e 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 C

lim
at

e 
A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
 a

ct
io

ns
 ar

e 
cl

os
el

y 
tie

d 
to

 
m

an
y 

of
 th

e 
go

al
s,

 p
ol

ic
ie

s,
 a

nd
 p

ro
gr

am
s 

of
 th

e G
en

er
al

 P
la

n,
 

as
 w

el
l 

as
 to

 s
ev

er
al

 o
th

er
 e

xis
tin

g 
pr

og
ra

m
s 

in
 th

e C
ou

nt
y.

 

Cl
im

at
e 

Ch
an

ge
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
 

Ye
s 

Co
un

ty
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 
Lo

ca
l C

oa
st

al
 P

ro
gr

am
s 

Re
qu

ire
s 

co
as

ta
l c

iti
es

 a
nd

 co
un

tie
s t

o 
es

ta
bl

is
h 

co
as

ta
l 

re
so

ur
ce

 c
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
ro

gr
am

s.
 

Cl
im

at
e 

ch
an

ge
, f

lo
od

 
Pr

ev
en

tio
n,

 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

Ye
s 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fl
oo

dp
la

in
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
O

rd
in

an
ce

 

Pr
om

ot
es

 th
e p

ub
lic

 h
ea

lth
, s

af
et

y,
 a

nd
 g

en
er

al
 w

el
fa

re
. 

A
dd

iti
on

al
ly

, a
im

s 
to

 m
in

im
iz

e 
pu

bl
ic

 a
nd

 p
riv

at
e 

lo
ss

es
 d

ue
 

to
 fl

oo
d 

co
nd

iti
on

s i
n 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

ar
ea

s b
y 

le
ga

lly
 e

nf
or

ce
ab

le
 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
 a

pp
lie

d 
un

ifo
rm

ly
 t

hr
ou

gh
ou

t t
he

 co
m

m
un

ity
 t

o 
al

l p
ub

lic
ly

 a
nd

 p
riv

at
el

y 
ow

ne
d 

la
nd

 in
 fl

oo
d 

pr
on

e,
 m

ud
sl

id
e 

(i.
e.

, m
ud

flo
w

) 
or

 fl
oo

d 
re

la
te

d 
er

os
io

n 
ar

ea
s.

 

Fl
oo

d 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

Ye
s 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

5-
8 

Ta
bl

e 
5-

3.
 L

eg
al

 a
nd

 R
eg

ul
at

or
y 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 fo

r 
H

az
ar

d 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

N
am

e 
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 
H

az
ar

ds
 A

dd
re

ss
ed

 
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

 

Po
te

nt
ia

l 
to

 
A

ffe
ct

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

H
ill

si
de

 M
an

ag
em

en
t A

re
a 

O
rd

in
an

ce
 &

 H
ill

si
de

 
D

es
ig

n 
Gu

id
el

in
es

 

Re
qu

ire
d 

fo
r d

ev
el

op
m

en
t i

n 
H

ill
si

de
 M

an
ag

em
en

t A
re

as
, 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 d

ef
in

ed
 a

s a
re

as
 w

ith
 2

5%
 o

r g
re

at
er

 n
at

ur
al

 s
lo

pe
s.

  
Th

e 
gu

id
el

in
es

 in
cl

ud
e 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

an
d 

m
ea

su
ra

bl
e 

de
si

gn
 

te
ch

ni
qu

es
 th

at
 ca

n 
be

 ap
pl

ie
d 

to
 re

si
de

nt
ia

l, 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
, 

in
du

st
ria

l, 
an

d 
ot

he
r t

yp
es

 o
f p

ro
je

ct
s.

 

La
nd

sl
id

e 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

Ye
s 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fu
el

 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
Co

de
 

Re
qu

ire
s 

th
e r

ev
ie

w
 a

sp
ec

ts
 su

ch
 as

 st
ru

ct
ur

e l
oc

at
io

n 
an

d 
ty

pe
 o

f c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 to

po
gr

ap
hy

, s
lo

pe
, a

m
ou

nt
 a

nd
 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
t o

f v
eg

et
at

io
n,

 a
nd

 o
ve

ra
ll 

si
te

 se
tti

ng
s f

or
 a

 n
ew

 
st

ru
ct

ur
e o

r a
n 

ad
di

tio
n 

th
at

 is
 e

qu
al

 to
 o

r g
re

at
er

 th
an

 50
%

 o
f 

th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

sq
ua

re
 fo

ot
ag

e.
 T

he
 o

bj
ec

tiv
e 

of
 th

is
 ap

pr
ov

al
 

pl
an

 p
ro

ce
ss

 is
 to

 c
re

at
e 

de
fe

ns
ib

le
 s

pa
ce

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 fo

r 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

fir
e 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
of

 h
om

es
 in

 th
e F

H
SZ

s.
 

W
ild

fir
e 

Pr
ep

ar
ed

ne
ss

, 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

Ye
s 

Ca
lif

or
ni

a 
Fi

re
 P

la
n 

Re
qu

ire
s 

th
e C

ou
nt

y 
of

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 P
la

n 
U

ni
t t

o 
im

pl
em

en
t 

th
e 

Ca
lif

or
ni

a 
Fi

re
 P

la
n,

 a
 s

ta
te

w
id

e 
fra

m
ew

or
k 

fo
r 

m
in

im
iz

in
g 

co
st

s a
nd

 lo
ss

es
 fr

om
 w

ild
la

nd
 f

ire
s.

 T
he

 F
ire

 
Pl

an
 U

ni
t u

se
s a

 G
IS

 p
la

tfo
rm

 t
o 

id
en

tif
y 

hi
gh

 h
az

ar
d\

hi
gh

 
va

lu
e 

ar
ea

s 
an

d 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 a

t r
is

k 
in

 th
e w

ild
la

nd
-u

rb
an

 
in

te
rfa

ce
. 

W
ild

fir
e 

Pr
ep

ar
ed

ne
ss

, 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

Ye
s 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Br
us

h 
Cl

ea
ra

nc
e 

Pr
og

ra
m

 
Le

ga
lly

 d
ec

la
re

s 
bo

th
 im

pr
ov

ed
 a

nd
 u

ni
m

pr
ov

ed
 p

ro
pe

rti
es

 a
 

pu
bl

ic
 n

ui
sa

nc
e,

 an
d 

w
he

re
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

, r
eq

ui
re

s t
he

 c
le

ar
an

ce
 

of
 h

az
ar

do
us

 v
eg

et
at

io
n.

 T
he

se
 m

ea
su

re
s 

cr
ea

te
 “

D
ef

en
si

bl
e 

Sp
ac

e”
 fo

r e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
fir

e 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

of
 p

ro
pe

rty
, l

ife
, a

nd
 th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t. 
Th

e 
Br

us
h 

Cl
ea

ra
nc

e 
Pr

og
ra

m
 is

 a
 jo

in
t e

ffo
rt 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e C

ou
nt

y 
of

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t a

nd
 th

e 
Co

un
ty

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
of

 A
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l 
Co

m
m

is
si

on
er

/W
ei

gh
ts

 a
nd

 M
ea

su
re

s,
 W

ee
d 

H
az

ar
d,

 a
nd

 
Pe

st
 A

ba
te

m
en

t B
ur

ea
u 

(W
ee

d 
A

ba
te

m
en

t D
iv

is
io

n)
. 

W
ild

fir
e 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
N

o 

CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

5-
9 

5.
2 

N
FI

P 
PA

R
T

IC
IP

A
T

IO
N

 
Th

e 
N

FI
P 

aim
s 

to
 r

ed
uc

e 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f f

lo
od

in
g 

to
 r

es
id

en
tia

l 
an

d 
no

n-
re

sid
en

tia
l 

bu
ild

in
gs

. 
It 

do
es

 so
 b

y 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

ins
ur

an
ce

 t
o 

pr
op

er
ty

 o
w

ne
rs

 a
nd

 b
y 

en
co

ur
ag

in
g 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 t
o 

ad
op

t a
nd

 
en

fo
rc

e 
flo

od
pl

ai
n 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

re
gu

lat
io

ns
. 

Lo
s 

A
ng

ele
s 

C
ou

nt
y 

en
te

re
d 

th
e 

N
FI

P 
in 

19
80

, a
nd

 
th

e 
fir

st 
Lo

s 
A

ng
ele

s 
C

ou
nt

y 
D

FI
RM

 w
as

 is
su

ed
 o

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 

2,
 1

98
0.

 T
he

 L
os

 A
ng

ele
s 

C
ou

nt
y 

Pu
bl

ic 
W

or
ks

 e
nf

or
ce

s 
th

e 
co

un
ty

’s
 f

lo
od

pl
ai

n 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
or

di
na

nc
e 

an
d 

pa
rti

cip
at

e 
in 

FE
M

A
’s

 
C

om
m

un
ity

 A
ss

ist
ed

 V
isi

ts,
 w

hic
h 

oc
cu

r o
n 

a 
3-

 to
 5

-y
ea

r c
yc

le.
 A

cc
or

di
ng

 t
o 

Lo
s A

ng
ele

s 
C

ou
nt

y 
Pu

bl
ic 

W
or

ks
, 

as
 o

f 
Se

pt
em

be
r 

30
, 

20
18

, 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

1,
55

3 
flo

od
pl

ai
n 

po
lic

ies
 

in 
fo

rc
e 

in 
th

e 
un

inc
or

po
ra

te
d 

ar
ea

s 
of

 L
os

 A
ng

ele
s 

C
ou

nt
y.

  

Lo
s 

A
ng

ele
s 

C
ou

nt
y 

als
o 

pa
rti

cip
at

es
 

in 
th

e 
C

RS
 p

ro
gr

am
. 

Th
e 

C
RS

 p
ro

gr
am

 i
s 

a 
vo

lun
ta

ry
 

pr
og

ra
m

 f
or

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 
th

at
 e

ng
ag

e 
in 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

flo
od

pl
ai

n 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
ac

tiv
iti

es
, 

w
hi

ch
 

ex
ce

ed
 th

e 
m

in
im

um
 N

FI
P 

sta
nd

ar
ds

. C
RS

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 b
en

ef
it 

fro
m

 r
ed

uc
ed

 in
su

ra
nc

e 
ra

te
s 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
ed

 
flo

od
pl

ai
n 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

pr
og

ra
m

s. 
Lo

s 
A

ng
ele

s 
C

ou
nt

y 
is 

cu
rre

nt
ly

 
a 

C
las

s 
7 

C
RS

 
co

m
m

un
ity

; 
th

er
ef

or
e,

 h
om

eo
w

ne
rs

 w
ho

 li
ve

 i
n 

th
e 

SF
H

A
 c

an
 r

ec
eiv

e 
a 

5 
to

 1
5 

pe
rc

en
t d

isc
ou

nt
 

on
 th

eir
 f

lo
od

 in
su

ra
nc

e 
po

lic
y.

 

5.
3 

M
IT

IG
A

T
IO

N
 G

O
A

LS
 

M
itig

at
io

n 
go

als
 a

re
 d

ef
ine

d 
as

 ge
ne

ra
l 

gu
id

el
in

es
 t

ha
t e

xp
lai

n 
w

ha
t a

 co
m

m
un

ity
 w

an
ts 

to
 ac

hi
ev

e 
in 

te
rm

s 
of

 h
az

ar
d 

an
d 

lo
ss

 p
re

ve
nt

io
n.

 G
oa

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts 

ar
e 

ty
pi

ca
lly

 l
on

g-
ra

ng
e,

 p
ol

icy
-o

rie
nt

ed
 

sta
te

m
en

ts 
re

pr
es

en
tin

g 
co

m
m

un
ity

-w
id

e 
vis

io
n.

 F
or

 th
e 

20
19

 A
H

M
P,

 th
e 

ov
er

ar
ch

in
g 

go
al 

is 
fo

r 
Lo

s 
A

ng
ele

s 
C

ou
nt

y 
to

 b
e 

a 
di

sa
ste

r 
re

sil
ie

nt
 c

om
m

un
ity

. 
A

 d
isa

ste
r 

re
sil

ie
nt

 c
om

m
un

ity
 i

s 
ab

le
 

to
 p

re
pa

re
 f

or
, 

re
sp

on
d 

to
, 

an
d 

re
co

ve
r 

fro
m

 
ad

ve
rs

e 
ha

za
rd

s 
an

d 
di

sa
ste

rs
. 

A
cc

or
di

ng
 

to
 

lar
es

ili
en

ce
.o

rg
, 

“in
 t

he
 re

sil
ie

nc
e 

fra
m

ew
or

k,
 l

es
s 

em
ph

as
is 

is 
pl

ac
ed

 o
n 

tra
di

tio
na

l, 
ind

iv
id

ua
ll

y-
fo

cu
se

d 
pr

ep
ar

ed
ne

ss
 e

ffo
rts

…
 b

uil
di

ng
 c

om
m

un
ity

 r
es

ilie
nc

e 
is 

re
all

y 
ab

ou
t m

ak
ing

 c
om

m
un

it
ie

s 
str

on
ge

r.”
 

5.
4 

PO
T

E
N

T
IA

L
 M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N

 A
C

T
IO

N
S 

A
N

D
 P

R
O

JE
C

TS
 

M
itig

at
io

n 
ac

tio
ns

 a
nd

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
he

lp
 a

ch
iev

e 
th

e 
go

als
 o

f 
th

e 
A

H
M

P.
 F

or
 t

he
 2

01
9 

A
H

M
P,

 
po

te
nt

ial
 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ac

tio
ns

 t
o 

be
 c

on
sid

er
ed

 
ar

e 
lis

te
d 

be
lo

w
 i

n 
Ta

bl
e 

5-
4 

an
d 

inc
lud

e 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ha
za

rd
 m

iti
ga

tio
n 

ca
te

go
rie

s: 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

an
d 

aw
ar

en
es

s; 
na

tu
ra

l 
sy

ste
m

s 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n;

 
str

uc
tu

re
 a

nd
 in

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

pr
oj

ec
ts;

 p
re

pa
re

dn
es

s 
an

d 
re

sp
on

se
; 

an
d 

lo
ca

l 
pl

an
s 

an
d 

re
gu

lat
io

ns
. 

Th
is 

lis
t 

ad
dr

es
se

s 
ev

er
y 

ha
za

rd
 p

ro
file

d 
in 

th
is 

pl
an

 a
nd

 is
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

pl
an

’s
 r

isk
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t 
as

 
w

ell
 a

s 
les

so
ns

 l
ea

rn
ed

 f
ro

m
 r

ec
en

t 
di

sa
ste

rs
. 

It 
w

as
 d

ev
elo

pe
d 

us
ing

: 
FE

M
A

 s
uc

ce
ss

 s
to

rie
s 

an
d 

be
st 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

pr
ac

tic
es

; 
FE

M
A

 jo
b 

aid
s; 

lo
ca

l a
nd

 r
eg

io
na

l 
pl

an
s 

an
d 

re
po

rts
; 

an
d 

inp
ut

 f
ro

m
 

su
bj

ec
t m

at
te

r 
ex

pe
rts

 a
nd

 p
er

tin
en

t 
Lo

s 
A

ng
ele

s 
C

ou
nt

y 
de

pa
rtm

en
ts 

an
d 

ag
en

cie
s. 

Ta
bl

e 
5-

4.
 P

ot
en

tia
l 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
A

ct
io

ns
 a

nd
 P

ro
je

ct
s 

R
ed

 F
la

g 
W

ar
ni

ng
 P

ub
lic

 O
ut

re
ac

h 

Pr
oj

ec
t D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 
Cr

ea
te

 a
n 

on
lin

e 
an

d 
of

fli
ne

 p
ub

lic
 o

ut
re

ac
h 

ca
m

pa
ig

n 
fo

r R
ed

 F
la

g 
W

ar
ni

ng
s.

 In
cl

ud
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t: 
w

ha
t i

s 
a 

Re
d 

Fl
ag

 W
ar

ni
ng

; w
ha

t l
an

d 
m

ay
 b

e 
cl

os
ed

; a
nd

 w
ha

t 
in

di
vi

du
al

s 
sh

ou
ld

 d
o 

to
 b

e 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 a

s w
el

l 
as

 w
ha

t a
ct

iv
iti

es
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 a
vo

id
ed

. T
ai

lo
r 

ou
tre

ac
h 

m
at

er
ia

l 
to

 v
ar

io
us

 ta
rg

et
 g

ro
up

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

pe
op

le
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

in
g 

ho
m

el
es

sn
es

s, 
th

e 
el

de
rly

, t
he

 y
ou

ng
, a

nd
 n

on
-E

ng
lis

h 
sp

ea
ki

ng
 re

si
de

nt
s.

  

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

5-
10

 

Ta
bl

e 
5-

4.
 P

ot
en

tia
l 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
A

ct
io

ns
 a

nd
 P

ro
je

ct
s 

Ty
pe

 o
f P

ro
je

ct
 

Ed
uc

at
io

n 
an

d 
A

w
ar

en
es

s P
ro

gr
am

s 

H
az

ar
d(

s)
 M

iti
ga

te
d 

W
ild

fir
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t S

ou
rc

e 
Re

d 
Fl

ag
 W

or
ki

ng
 G

ro
up

, 
L

A
 C

ou
nt

y 
H

om
el

es
s 

In
it

ia
ti

ve
s 

Pr
os

 
Ed

uc
at

io
n 

ca
n 

he
lp

 re
du

ce
 th

e 
ris

k 
of

 h
um

an
-c

au
se

d 
fir

es
 

Pu
bl

ic
 o

ut
re

ac
h 

is
 g

en
er

al
ly

 lo
w

-c
os

t 
Pu

bl
ic

 o
ut

re
ac

h 
to

 h
om

el
es

s 
in

di
vi

du
al

s 
ca

n 
he

lp
 b

ui
lt 

ra
pp

or
t w

ith
 c

ou
nt

y 
ag

en
ci

es
 

Co
ns

 
M

ay
be

 d
iff

ic
ul

t 
to

 re
ac

h 
so

m
e 

ta
rg

et
 g

ro
up

s 

V
eg

et
at

io
n 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Pr
og

ra
m

 

Pr
oj

ec
t D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 
Co

nt
in

ue
 to

 im
pl

em
en

t 
th

e 
Co

un
ty

’s
 V

eg
et

at
io

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t P
ro

gr
am

. 
Th

e 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Ve

ge
ta

tio
n 

M
an

ag
em

en
t U

ni
t w

or
ks

 c
lo

se
ly

 w
ith

 th
e 

Fi
re

 P
la

n 
U

ni
t a

nd
 th

e A
ir 

an
d 

W
ild

la
nd

 D
iv

is
io

n’
s 

Pr
es

cr
ib

ed
 F

ire
 O

ffi
ce

 t
o 

im
pl

em
en

t 
pr

oj
ec

ts
. T

he
 V

eg
et

at
io

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t U
ni

t p
ro

vi
de

s t
he

 S
ta

te
 a

nd
 C

ou
nt

y 
w

ith
 re

qu
ire

d 
pa

pe
rw

or
k 

fo
r p

re
sc

rib
ed

 b
ur

ni
ng

, m
ec

ha
ni

ca
l, 

bi
ol

og
ic

al
 a

nd
 c

he
m

ic
al

 t
re

at
m

en
t 

m
et

ho
ds

 u
se

d 
in

 p
ro

je
ct

 a
re

as
.  

Ty
pe

 o
f P

ro
je

ct
 

N
at

ur
al

 S
ys

te
m

s 
Pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

H
az

ar
d(

s)
 M

iti
ga

te
d 

W
ild

fir
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t S

ou
rc

e 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 

Pr
os

 
Pr

og
ra

m
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

in
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
fo

r t
he

 la
st

 4
0 

ye
ar

s a
nd

 a
re

 
ge

ne
ra

lly
 c

os
t e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

Ca
n 

be
 u

se
d 

se
le

ct
iv

el
y 

to
 tr

ea
t t

he
 m

os
t v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
ar

ea
s 

Co
ns

 
O

fte
n 

re
qu

ire
s 

on
go

in
g 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 
Ca

n 
ca

us
e s

oi
l d

is
tu

rb
an

ce
 an

d 
in

cr
ea

se
 s

ed
im

en
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

er
os

io
n 

Pr
es

cr
ib

ed
 fi

re
 a

nd
 c

he
m

ic
al

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

m
et

ho
ds

 re
qu

ire
 c

lo
se

 s
up

er
vi

si
on

 

Fi
re

pr
oo

f 
C

oa
tin

g 
of

 C
ri

tic
al

 A
ss

et
s 

Pr
oj

ec
t D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 
Fi

re
pr

oo
f 

co
at

 cr
iti

ca
l 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
in

 V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

FH
SZ

s 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 a
llo

w
 s

tru
ct

ur
es

 to
 

ex
te

nd
 th

ei
r s

tre
ng

th
 in

 th
e e

ve
nt

 o
f a

 fi
re

.  

Ty
pe

 o
f P

ro
je

ct
 

St
ru

ct
ur

e 
an

d 
In

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

Pr
oj

ec
ts

 

H
az

ar
d(

s)
 M

iti
ga

te
d 

W
ild

fir
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t S

ou
rc

e 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

Pr
os

 
Ge

ne
ra

lly
 c

os
t-e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

an
d 

no
n-

to
xic

 

Co
ns

 
N

on
e 

A
ux

ili
ar

y 
Po

we
r 

fo
r 

C
ri

tic
al

 F
ac

ili
tie

s 

Pr
oj

ec
t D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 
D

et
er

m
in

e 
w

hi
ch

 c
rit

ic
al

 f
ac

ili
tie

s 
ne

ed
 a

nd
 d

o 
no

t h
av

e 
au

xil
ia

ry
 p

ow
er

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 

re
m

ai
n 

fu
nc

tio
na

l d
ur

in
g 

de
-e

ne
rg

iza
tio

n 
or

 “
Pu

bl
ic

 S
af

et
y 

Po
w

er
 S

hu
t-O

ffs
” 

an
d/

or
 

ge
ne

ra
l l

os
s o

f p
ow

er
 a

nd
 in

st
al

l a
ux

ili
ar

y 
po

w
er

 s
ys

te
m

s.
 A

ux
ili

ar
y 

po
w

er
 s

ys
te

m
s 

m
ay

 in
cl

ud
e 

ba
ck

-u
p 

ge
ne

ra
to

rs
, lo

ca
l S

ol
ar

 P
ho

to
vo

lta
ic

 p
lu

s 
st

or
ag

e,
 an

d 
m

ic
ro

gr
id

s.
 

Ty
pe

 o
f P

ro
je

ct
 

St
ru

ct
ur

e 
an

d 
In

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

Pr
oj

ec
ts

 

H
az

ar
d(

s)
 M

iti
ga

te
d 

W
ild

fir
e 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
, b

ut
 al

so
 a

pp
lie

s 
to

 a
ll 

ha
za

rd
s 

CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

5-
11

 

Ta
bl

e 
5-

4.
 P

ot
en

tia
l 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
A

ct
io

ns
 a

nd
 P

ro
je

ct
s 

Pr
oj

ec
t S

ou
rc

e 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

Pr
os

  
Pr

ov
id

es
 e

m
er

ge
nc

y 
po

w
er

 to
 ke

ep
 c

rit
ic

al
 f

ac
ili

tie
s 

op
er

at
io

na
l a

nd
 fu

nc
tio

na
l 

Co
ns

 
D

ie
se

l g
en

er
at

or
s c

an
 b

e 
ex

pe
ns

iv
e 

to
 o

pe
ra

te
 a

nd
 c

on
tri

bu
te

 to
 a

ir 
po

llu
tio

n 

Ea
rt

hq
ua

ke
-R

es
is

ta
nt

 
D

uc
til

e 
Ir

on
 P

ip
es

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t 

Pr
oj

ec
t D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 
Co

nt
in

ue
 to

 re
pl

ac
e 

ag
in

g 
cr

iti
ca

l p
ip

es
 in

 e
xt

re
m

e 
or

 v
io

le
nt

 s
ha

ki
ng

 h
az

ar
d 

ar
ea

s 
an

d 
Cl

as
s 

IX
 a

nd
 X

 la
nd

sl
id

e 
ha

za
rd

 a
re

as
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

se
is

m
ic

 re
lia

bi
lit

y/
sa

fe
gu

ar
d 

cr
iti

ca
l 

w
at

er
 d

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
lin

es
 a

ga
in

st
 th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l d

es
tru

ct
iv

e i
m

pa
ct

s 
of

 la
rg

e-
sc

al
e 

ea
rth

qu
ak

es
 an

d 
ac

co
m

pa
ny

in
g 

la
nd

sl
id

es
. L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 it

s’
 fi

rs
t e

ar
th

qu
ak

e-
re

si
st

an
t d

uc
til

e 
iro

n 
pi

pe
 re

pl
ac

em
en

t p
ilo

t p
ro

gr
am

 in
 

20
13

. 
 

Ty
pe

 o
f P

ro
je

ct
 

St
ru

ct
ur

al
 a

nd
 In

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e P

ro
je

ct
s 

H
az

ar
d(

s)
 M

iti
ga

te
d 

La
nd

sl
id

es
, E

ar
th

qu
ak

es
 

Pr
oj

ec
t S

ou
rc

e 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

Pr
os

  
Im

pr
ov

es
 w

at
er

 re
lia

bi
lit

y 
 

Re
st

or
es

 th
os

e w
ith

ou
t s

er
vi

ce
 m

or
e 

ra
pi

dl
y 

 

Co
ns

 
N

on
e 

W
at

er
sh

ed
 E

co
sy

st
em

 R
es

to
ra

tio
n 

Pr
oj

ec
t D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 
M

od
er

ni
ze

 e
xis

tin
g 

flo
od

 c
on

tro
l r

et
en

tio
n 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

flo
od

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n,

 w
at

er
 

qu
al

ity
 a

nd
 e

co
lo

gi
ca

l h
ea

lth
. P

ot
en

tia
l p

ro
je

ct
s 

in
cl

ud
e:

 A
rro

yo
 S

ec
o 

an
d 

Co
m

pt
on

 
Cr

ee
k.

 

Ty
pe

 o
f P

ro
je

ct
 

N
at

ur
al

 S
ys

te
m

s 
Pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

H
az

ar
d(

s)
 M

iti
ga

te
d 

Cl
im

at
e 

Ch
an

ge
, F

lo
od

, T
su

na
m

i 

Pr
oj

ec
t S

ou
rc

e 
Co

un
ty

 o
f L

os
s 

A
ng

el
es

 R
ep

et
iti

ve
 P

ro
pe

rty
 L

os
s 

A
re

a 
A

na
ly

si
s P

ro
gr

es
s R

ep
or

t (
20

17
 

– 
20

18
), 

O
ur

W
at

er
LA

 

Pr
os

  
Re

du
ce

s 
th

e r
is

k 
of

 fl
oo

di
ng

 to
 th

e 
su

rro
un

di
ng

 n
ei

gh
bo

rh
oo

ds
 

Pr
ov

id
es

 n
ew

 re
cr

ea
tio

na
l s

pa
ce

 an
d 

sa
fe

ty
 a

m
en

iti
es

 

Co
ns

 
A

dd
iti

on
al

 s
tu

di
es

 n
ee

de
d 

to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
be

st
 ap

pr
oa

ch
es

 

G
re

en
 S

tr
ee

ts
 

Pr
oj

ec
t D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 
Im

pl
em

en
t 

th
e 

Gr
ee

n 
St

re
et

 M
as

te
r P

la
n 

w
ith

 th
e g

oa
l o

f i
de

nt
ify

in
g 

11
0 

fe
as

ib
le

 s
ite

s.
 

A
 g

re
en

 s
tre

et
 is

 a
 s

to
rm

w
at

er
 m

an
ag

em
en

t a
pp

ro
ac

h 
th

at
 in

co
rp

or
at

es
 v

eg
et

at
io

n,
 s

oi
l, 

an
d 

en
gi

ne
er

ed
 sy

st
em

s (
e.

g.
, p

er
m

ea
bl

e 
pa

ve
m

en
ts

) t
o 

sl
ow

, f
ilt

er
, a

nd
 c

le
an

se
 

st
or

m
w

at
er

 ru
no

ff 
fro

m
 im

pe
rv

io
us

 s
ur

fa
ce

s.
 In

 a
dd

iti
on

 to
 th

e 
tra

di
tio

na
l g

re
en

 s
tre

et
 

ap
pr

oa
ch

, i
nc

or
po

ra
te

 “
co

m
pl

et
e 

st
re

et
s”

 d
es

ig
n 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 m
or

e 
ro

om
 fo

r 
em

er
ge

nc
y 

re
sp

on
se

 v
eh

ic
le

s a
nd

 cr
ea

te
 d

ef
en

si
bl

e 
sp

ac
e i

n 
pl

az
a 

ar
ea

s 
an

d 
ar

ou
nd

 
bu

ild
in

gs
.  

Ty
pe

 o
f P

ro
je

ct
 

N
at

ur
al

 S
ys

te
m

s 
Pr

ot
ec

tio
n,

 P
re

pa
re

dn
es

s a
nd

 R
es

po
ns

e 

H
az

ar
d(

s)
 M

iti
ga

te
d 

St
or

m
w

at
er

/F
lo

od
, 

Cl
im

at
e 

Ch
an

ge
 

Pr
oj

ec
t S

ou
rc

e 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
, U

.S
. E

PA
 

Pr
os

  
Pr

ot
ec

ts
 w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

in
 ri

ve
rs

 a
nd

 s
tre

am
s 

by
 re

m
ov

in
g 

po
llu

ta
nt

s  

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

5-
12

 

Ta
bl

e 
5-

4.
 P

ot
en

tia
l 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
A

ct
io

ns
 a

nd
 P

ro
je

ct
s 

Re
pl

en
is

he
s 

gr
ou

nd
w

at
er

 s
up

pl
ie

s 
A

bs
or

bs
 ca

rb
on

 
Im

pr
ov

es
 a

ir 
qu

al
ity

 a
nd

 n
ei

gh
bo

rh
oo

d 
ae

st
he

tic
s 

Im
pr

ov
es

 p
ed

es
tri

an
 an

d 
bi

cy
cl

e 
sa

fe
ty

 

Co
ns

 
Re

qu
ire

s 
se

le
ct

ed
 si

te
 s

ui
ta

bi
lit

y 
to

 d
o 

ut
ili

ty
 c

on
fli

ct
s,

 a
nd

 g
eo

te
ch

ni
ca

l a
nd

 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l c

ha
ra

ct
er

is
tic

s 

C
oo

rd
in

at
ed

 D
at

a 
C

ol
le

ct
io

n 
an

d 
D

at
ab

as
e 

Sy
st

em
s 

Pr
oj

ec
t D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 
Cr

ea
te

 c
oo

rd
in

at
ed

 d
at

a 
co

lle
ct

io
n 

an
d 

da
ta

ba
se

 sy
st

em
 in

 w
hi

ch
 in

ta
ke

 a
nd

 as
se

ss
m

en
t 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ca
n 

be
 e

nt
er

ed
 in

 re
al

 t
im

e 
an

d 
ca

n 
su

pp
or

t m
ul

tip
le

 u
se

rs
 at

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
tim

e.
 

Co
m

po
ne

nt
s 

ca
n 

in
cl

ud
e 

cr
iti

ca
l 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

 p
op

ul
at

io
ns

.  

Ty
pe

 o
f P

ro
je

ct
 

Pr
ep

ar
ed

ne
ss

 an
d 

Re
sp

on
se

  

H
az

ar
d(

s)
 M

iti
ga

te
d 

A
ll 

ha
za

rd
s 

Pr
oj

ec
t S

ou
rc

e 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
O

EM
 

Pr
os

  
Co

or
di

na
te

d 
sy

st
em

s 

Co
ns

 
D

iff
er

en
t 

da
ta

 c
ol

le
ct

io
n 

ne
ed

s m
ay

 re
qu

ire
 p

ar
al

le
l d

at
ab

as
es

 

B
ru

sh
 C

le
ar

an
ce

 P
ro

gr
am

 

Pr
oj

ec
t D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 
Ex

pa
nd

 t
he

 C
ou

nt
y’

s B
ru

sh
 C

le
ar

an
ce

 P
ro

gr
am

 t
o 

in
cl

ud
e 

a 
gr

an
t f

un
da

bl
e 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
co

m
po

ne
nt

 fo
r q

ua
lif

ie
d 

lo
w

-in
co

m
e 

an
d/

or
 e

ld
er

ly
 h

om
eo

w
ne

rs
 th

at
 h

av
e p

ro
pe

rti
es

 
th

at
 ar

e 
fo

un
d 

to
 b

e 
no

n-
co

m
pl

ia
nt

. I
ns

te
ad

 o
f w

ar
ni

ng
 p

ro
pe

rty
 o

w
ne

rs
 a

nd
 im

po
si

ng
 

in
fra

ct
io

ns
 fo

r i
na

de
qu

at
e f

ire
 h

az
ar

d 
re

du
ct

io
n,

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

w
ill

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 th

e 
ho

m
eo

w
ne

r t
o 

de
ve

lo
p 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

t 
a 

fir
e 

re
du

ct
io

n 
pl

an
.  

Ty
pe

 o
f P

ro
je

ct
 

N
at

ur
al

 S
ys

te
m

s 
Pr

ot
ec

tio
n,

 P
re

pa
re

dn
es

s a
nd

 R
es

po
ns

e 

H
az

ar
d(

s)
 M

iti
ga

te
d 

W
ild

fir
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t S

ou
rc

e 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 

Pr
os

  
Pr

oa
ct

iv
e,

 n
ot

 re
ac

tiv
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 h

om
eo

w
ne

rs
 to

 re
du

ci
ng

 w
ild

fir
e 

fu
el

 
ha

za
rd

s 

Co
ns

 
O

fte
n 

re
qu

ire
s 

on
go

in
g 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 

W
ild

la
nd

 U
rb

an
-I

nt
er

fa
ce

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 

Pr
oj

ec
t D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 
Co

di
fy

in
g 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 to
 g

ui
de

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
n 

th
e 

W
U

I a
re

as
 th

at
 fa

ce
 a

 
se

ve
re

 th
re

at
 o

f w
ild

fir
es

. 
 

Ty
pe

 o
f P

ro
je

ct
 

Lo
ca

l P
la

ns
 a

nd
 R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 

H
az

ar
d(

s)
 M

iti
ga

te
d 

W
ild

fir
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t S

ou
rc

e 
D

ra
ft 

Sa
fe

ty
 E

le
m

en
t 

U
pd

at
e 

fo
r L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
20

35
 G

en
er

al
 P

la
n,

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 
Co

un
ty

 S
us

ta
in

ab
ili

ty
 P

la
n 

Pr
os

  
A

dd
iti

on
al

 re
vi

ew
 o

f d
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
n 

W
U

Is
 w

ill
 e

na
bl

e 
be

st
 p

ra
ct

ic
es

 ar
e 

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 
in

 th
e p

ro
je

ct
 d

es
ig

n.
  

Co
ns

 
A

dd
iti

on
al

 re
gu

la
tio

ns
 m

ay
 b

e 
pe

rc
ei

ve
d 

as
 to

o 
bu

rd
en

so
m

e 
by

 p
ro

pe
rty

 o
w

ne
rs

. 

CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

5-
13

 

Ta
bl

e 
5-

4.
 P

ot
en

tia
l 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
A

ct
io

ns
 a

nd
 P

ro
je

ct
s 

Ur
ba

n 
Fo

re
st

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Pl
an

 

Pr
oj

ec
t D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 
Cr

ea
te

 U
rb

an
 F

or
es

t M
an

ag
em

en
t P

la
n 

fo
r L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
w

ith
 a

 w
el

l-d
ef

in
ed

 
sc

op
e t

ha
t i

nc
lu

de
s 

s c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 tr

ee
 in

ve
nt

or
y,

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t o

f t
re

e 
he

al
th

, 
id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 s

ha
de

-p
oo

r n
ei

gh
bo

rh
oo

ds
, c

os
t-b

en
ef

it 
an

al
ys

is
 o

f t
re

e 
vs

 sh
ad

e-
st

ru
ct

ur
e i

nt
er

ve
nt

io
ns

, u
rb

an
 fo

re
st

 fi
na

nc
in

g 
pl

an
, a

nd
 a

 p
la

n 
fo

r s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t. 
 

Ty
pe

 o
f P

ro
je

ct
 

Lo
ca

l P
la

ns
 a

nd
 R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 

H
az

ar
d(

s)
 M

iti
ga

te
d 

Cl
im

at
e 

Ch
an

ge
, D

ro
ug

ht
 

Pr
oj

ec
t S

ou
rc

e 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Su

st
ai

na
bi

lit
y 

Pl
an

 (L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Ch
ie

f 
Su

st
ai

na
bi

lit
y 

O
ffi

ce
), 

A
 G

re
at

er
 L

.A
. C

lim
at

e 
A

ct
io

n 
Fr

am
ew

or
k 

(L
.A

. 
Re

gi
on

al
 C

ol
la

bo
ra

tiv
e 

fo
r 

Cl
im

at
e 

A
ct

io
n 

an
d 

Su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y,
 a

nd
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
20

35
 G

en
er

al
 P

la
n 

 

Pr
os

  
Ex

tre
m

e 
he

at
 is

 th
e 

gr
ea

te
st

 h
ea

lth
 th

re
at

 to
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
re

si
de

nt
s.

 P
ro

vi
di

ng
 

sh
ad

e w
ill

 h
el

p 
m

iti
ga

te
 t

he
 e

ffe
ct

s 
of

 e
xt

re
m

e 
he

at
 in

 d
is

ad
va

nt
ag

ed
 n

ei
gh

bo
rh

oo
ds

. 
Re

si
de

nt
s f

ro
m

 t
he

se
 co

m
m

un
iti

es
 m

ay
 n

ot
 h

av
e 

pr
iv

at
e 

ve
hi

cl
es

 a
nd

 e
nc

ou
nt

er
 

pr
ob

le
m

s 
tra

ve
lin

g 
to

 co
ol

in
g 

ce
nt

er
s;

 th
ey

 m
ay

 a
ls

o 
ha

ve
 li

m
ite

d 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 ai

r 
co

nd
iti

on
in

g.
  

Co
ns

 
Th

e 
in

ab
ili

ty
 o

f r
es

id
en

ts
 to

 p
ay

 fo
r w

at
er

 to
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

ne
w

ly
 p

la
nt

ed
 tr

ee
s 

m
ay

 h
in

de
r 

th
e 

es
ta

bl
is

hm
en

t o
f a

n 
ur

ba
n 

fo
re

st
. C

ou
nt

y-
w

id
e 

w
at

er
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
du

rin
g 

tim
es

 o
f d

ro
ug

ht
 m

ay
 a

ls
o 

co
nf

lic
t w

ith
 e

ffo
rts

 to
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

an
d 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
an

 u
rb

an
 

fo
re

st
. I

n 
su

ch
 si

tu
at

io
ns

, s
ha

de
 st

ru
ct

ur
es

 m
ay

 fu
lfi

ll 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

ne
ed

s.
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

W
ild

fir
e 

Pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
Pl

an
s 

Pr
oj

ec
t D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 
Co

nt
in

ue
 to

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 t

o 
de

ve
lo

p 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 W
ild

fir
e 

Pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
Pl

an
s 

(C
W

PP
). 

CW
PP

s 
en

ab
le

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 t
o 

pl
an

 h
ow

 th
ey

 w
ill

 r
ed

uc
e 

th
e r

is
k 

of
 w

ild
fir

e 
by

 id
en

tif
yi

ng
 s

tra
te

gi
c s

ite
s a

nd
 m

et
ho

ds
 fo

r f
ue

l r
ed

uc
tio

n 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

la
nd

sc
ap

e a
nd

 ju
ris

di
ct

io
na

l b
ou

nd
ar

ie
s.

 

Ty
pe

 o
f P

ro
je

ct
 

Lo
ca

l P
la

ns
 a

nd
 R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 

H
az

ar
d(

s)
 M

iti
ga

te
d 

W
ild

fir
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t S

ou
rc

e 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 2
01

8 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

Fi
re

 P
la

n 
 

Pr
os

  
O

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 to

 es
ta

bl
is

h 
a 

lo
ca

liz
ed

 d
ef

in
iti

on
 a

nd
 b

ou
nd

ar
y 

fo
r t

he
 W

U
I. 

Pr
io

rit
y 

fu
nd

in
g 

is
 o

fte
n 

gi
ve

n 
to

 p
ro

je
ct

s a
nd

 tr
ea

tm
en

t a
re

as
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 a

 C
W

PP
. 

Co
ns

 
M

ay
 b

e 
di

ffi
cu

lt 
to

 g
et

 co
lla

bo
ra

tio
n 

fro
m

 s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s.
  

  
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

5-
14

 

5.
5 

M
IT

IG
A

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

IO
N

 P
LA

N
S 

A
 m

iti
ga

tio
n 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 i

s 
a 

pr
io

rit
ize

d 
lis

t 
of

 p
ro

po
se

d 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

pr
oj

ec
ts 

an
d 

ac
tio

ns
 t

ha
t 

a 
co

m
m

un
ity

 h
op

es
 to

 im
pl

em
en

t 
to

 re
du

ce
 it

s’
 ri

sk
s 

an
d 

vu
lne

ra
bi

lit
ie

s. 
Th

e 
20

19
 A

H
M

P 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
, 

as
 sh

ow
n 

in 
Ta

bl
e 

5-
5 

an
d 

Ta
bl

e 
5-

6,
 is

 p
rio

rit
ize

d 
int

o 
Ti

er
 1

 a
nd

 T
ier

 2
 a

ct
ivi

tie
s: 

• 
Ti

er
 1

 ac
tiv

iti
es

 a
re

 e
ss

en
tia

l 
to

 re
m

ed
y 

or
 p

re
ve

nt
 a

 m
aj

or
 h

ea
lth

/sa
fe

ty
 h

az
ar

d.
 T

he
y 

m
ee

t 
FE

M
A

 H
M

A
 g

ra
nt

 c
rit

er
ia,

 i
nc

lud
in

g 
pr

oj
ec

t 
eli

gib
ili

ty
, 

be
ne

fit
-c

os
t, 

an
d 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 

pe
rio

d.
 

• 
Ti

er
 2

 a
ct

ivi
tie

s 
ar

e 
im

po
rta

nt
 i

n 
bu

ild
in

g 
a 

cu
ltu

re
 a

nd
 p

ra
ct

ice
 o

f d
isa

ste
r 

re
sil

ie
nc

e 
th

at
 

w
ill 

pr
ev

en
t 

ne
w

 r
isk

s. 
Th

ey
 d

o 
no

t 
ne

ce
ss

ar
ily

 r
eq

uir
e 

an
d/

or
 m

ee
t 

FE
M

A
 H

M
A

 g
ra

nt
 

cr
ite

ria
 (

bu
t m

ay
 q

ua
lif

y 
fo

r 
ot

he
r 

sta
te

 a
nd

 fe
de

ra
l f

un
ds

). 

Ta
bl

e 
5-

5.
 T

ie
r 

1 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

N
am

e 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

ti
on

 D
et

ai
ls

 

Re
d 

Fl
ag

 W
ar

ni
ng

 P
ub

lic
 O

ut
re

ac
h 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t/A

ge
nc

y:
 L

A
H

SA
, L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
O

EM
, 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t, 

an
d 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Sh
er

iff
’s

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Po

te
nt

ia
l F

un
di

ng
 S

ou
rc

e:
 F

EM
A

 g
ra

nt
s 

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 P

er
io

d:
 6

 m
on

th
s 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t, 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
pr

io
r 

to
 e

ve
ry

 s
um

m
er

/fa
ll 

 

Ve
ge

ta
tio

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t P
ro

gr
am

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t/A
ge

nc
y:

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Po
te

nt
ia

l F
un

di
ng

 S
ou

rc
e:

 C
al

 F
IR

E,
 F

EM
A

 g
ra

nt
s 

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 P

er
io

d:
 O

ng
oi

ng
 

Fi
re

pr
oo

f 
Co

at
in

g 
of

 C
rit

ic
al

 F
ac

ili
tie

s 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t/A

ge
nc

y:
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
, L

os
 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Po
te

nt
ia

l F
un

di
ng

 S
ou

rc
e:

 C
al

 F
IR

E,
 F

EM
A

 g
ra

nt
s 

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 P

er
io

d:
 1

-3
 y

ea
rs

 

A
ux

ili
ar

y 
Po

w
er

 f
or

 C
rit

ic
al

 F
ac

ili
tie

s 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t/A
ge

nc
y:

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
Po

te
nt

ia
l F

un
di

ng
 S

ou
rc

e:
 F

EM
A

 g
ra

nt
s 

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 P

er
io

d:
 O

ng
oi

ng
 

Ea
rth

qu
ak

e-
Re

si
st

an
t D

uc
til

e 
Iro

n 
Pi

pe
s 

Re
pl

ac
em

en
t 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t/A

ge
nc

y:
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

Po
te

nt
ia

l F
un

di
ng

 S
ou

rc
e:

 F
EM

A
 g

ra
nt

s 
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 P
er

io
d:

 O
ng

oi
ng

 

Br
us

h 
Cl

ea
ra

nc
e 

Pr
og

ra
m

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t/A
ge

nc
y:

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Po
te

nt
ia

l F
un

di
ng

 S
ou

rc
e:

 C
al

 F
IR

E,
 F

EM
A

 g
ra

nt
s 

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 P

er
io

d:
 O

ng
oi

ng
 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 W

ild
fir

e 
Pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

Pl
an

s 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t /
 A

ge
nc

y:
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Po

te
nt

ia
l F

un
di

ng
 S

ou
rc

e:
 C

al
 F

IR
E,

 F
EM

A
 g

ra
nt

s 
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 P
er

io
d:

 O
ng

oi
ng

 

 

CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

5-
15

 

Ta
bl

e 
5-

6.
 T

ie
r 

2 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

N
am

e 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

ti
on

 D
et

ai
ls

 

W
at

er
sh

ed
 E

co
sy

st
em

 R
es

to
ra

tio
n 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t/A

ge
nc

y:
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

Po
te

nt
ia

l F
un

di
ng

 S
ou

rc
e:

 U
.S

. E
PA

, U
.S

. D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f I
nt

er
io

r 
gr

an
ts

 
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 P
er

io
d:

 3
-5

 y
ea

rs
 

Gr
ee

n 
St

re
et

s 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t/A
ge

nc
y:

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
Po

te
nt

ia
l F

un
di

ng
 S

ou
rc

e:
 U

.S
. E

PA
 g

ra
nt

s 
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 P
er

io
d:

 3
-5

 y
ea

rs
 

Co
or

di
na

te
d 

D
at

a 
Co

lle
ct

io
n 

&
 D

at
ab

as
e 

Sy
st

em
s 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t/A

ge
nc

y:
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
O

EM
 

Po
te

nt
ia

l F
un

di
ng

 S
ou

rc
e:

 C
ou

nt
y 

fu
nd

s 
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 P
er

io
d:

 1
-2

ye
ar

s,
 O

ng
oi

ng
 

W
ild

la
nd

 U
rb

an
-In

te
rfa

ce
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t/A

ge
nc

y:
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
of

 R
eg

io
na

l 
Pl

an
ni

ng
, L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Po

te
nt

ia
l F

un
di

ng
 S

ou
rc

e:
 C

ou
nt

y 
fu

nd
s 

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 P

er
io

d:
 6

 m
on

th
s 

– 
1 

ye
ar

 

U
rb

an
 F

or
es

t M
an

ag
em

en
t P

la
n 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t/A

ge
nc

y:
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
of

 R
eg

io
na

l 
Pl

an
ni

ng
, L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Po

te
nt

ia
l F

un
di

ng
 S

ou
rc

e:
 C

ou
nt

y 
fu

nd
s 

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 P

er
io

d:
 1

-2
 y

ea
rs

 

 5.
6 

PL
A

N
 IN

T
E

G
R

A
T

IO
N

  
Th

e 
A

H
M

P 
pr

oj
ec

t 
m

an
ag

er
 w

ill 
be

 th
e 

lea
d 

in 
w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 L

os
 A

ng
ele

s 
C

ou
nt

y 
de

pa
rtm

en
ts

 
an

d 
ag

en
cie

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 e
lem

en
ts 

of
 th

e 
20

19
 A

H
M

P 
ar

e 
inc

or
po

ra
te

d 
int

o 
ot

he
r r

ele
va

nt
 c

ou
nt

y 
pl

an
ni

ng
 d

oc
um

en
ts 

as
 th

ey
 a

re
 c

re
at

ed
 o

r u
pd

at
ed

.  
A

s 
su

ch
, t

he
 A

H
M

P 
pr

oj
ec

t m
an

ag
er

 w
ill 

w
or

k 
w

ith
: 

 

• 
Th

e 
Lo

s 
A

ng
ele

s 
C

ou
nt

y 
Pu

bl
ic 

W
or

ks
 to

 in
co

rp
or

at
e 

th
e 

flo
od

 r
isk

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t 

an
d 

flo
od

 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

ac
tio

ns
 i

nt
o 

th
e 

co
un

ty
’s

 C
om

pr
eh

en
siv

e 
Fl

oo
dp

lai
n 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Pl
an

. 
Th

e 
C

om
pr

eh
en

siv
e 

Fl
oo

dp
lai

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Pl

an
 is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 b

ein
g 

up
da

te
d 

an
d 

is 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 

to
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 in
 2

02
1.

 

• 
Th

e 
Lo

s 
A

ng
ele

s 
C

ou
nt

y 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
of

 R
eg

io
na

l 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 t

he
 2

01
9 

A
H

M
P’

s 
ha

za
rd

 p
ro

file
s 

an
d 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
pr

oj
ec

ts 
an

d 
ac

tio
ns

 a
lig

n 
w

ith
 t

ho
se

 a
dd

re
ss

ed
 in

 
th

e 
G

en
er

al 
Pl

an
’s

 S
af

et
y 

El
em

en
t. 

Th
e 

Sa
fe

ty
 E

lem
en

t 
is 

cu
rre

nt
ly

 b
ein

g 
up

da
te

d 
an

d 
is 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 i
n 

20
21

. 

• 
Th

e 
Lo

s 
A

ng
ele

s 
C

ou
nt

y 
O

EM
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 t
he

 h
az

ar
d 

pr
of

ile
s 

ar
e 

inc
lud

ed
 i

n 
th

e 
Lo

s 
A

ng
ele

s 
C

ou
nt

y 
Th

re
at

 a
nd

 H
az

ar
d 

Id
en

tif
ica

tio
n 

Ri
sk

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

an
d 

th
e 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 
C

ou
nt

y 
O

pe
ra

tio
na

l 
A

re
a 

Em
er

ge
nc

y 
Re

sp
on

se
 P

lan
s 

an
d 

A
nn

ex
es

 a
s t

he
y 

ar
e 

up
da

te
d.

  

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

6-
1 

6 
PL

A
N

 R
E

V
IE

W
, E

V
A

LU
A

T
IO

N
, A

N
D

 IM
PL

E
M

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
 

Se
ct

io
n 

4 
– 

Pl
an

 R
ev

iew
, 

Ev
alu

at
io

n,
 

an
d 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
ad

dr
es

se
s 

El
em

en
t 

D
 o

f 
th

e 
Lo

ca
l 

M
itig

at
io

n 
Pl

an
 R

eg
ula

tio
n 

C
he

ck
lis

t. 

R
eg

ul
at

io
n 

C
he

ck
lis

t –
 4

4 
C

FR
 2

01
.6

 L
oc

al
 M

iti
ga

tio
n 

Pl
an

s 

El
em

en
t 

D
: P

la
n 

R
ev

ie
w,

 E
va

lu
at

io
n,

 
an

d 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

D
1.

 W
as

 th
e 

pl
an

 re
vi

se
d 

to
 re

fle
ct

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t?

 (R
eq

ui
re

m
en

t 
§ 

20
1.

6(
d)

(3
)) 

D
2.

 W
as

 th
e 

pl
an

 re
vi

se
d 

to
 re

fle
ct

 p
ro

gr
es

s i
n 

lo
ca

l m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ef

fo
rts

? 
(R

eq
ui

re
m

en
t 

§ 
20

1.
6(

d)
(3

))
 

D
3.

 W
as

 th
e 

pl
an

 re
vi

se
d 

to
 re

fle
ct

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 p

rio
rit

ie
s?

 R
eq

ui
re

m
en

t 
§2

01
.6

(d
)(3

)) 

6.
1 

C
H

A
N

G
E

S 
IN

 D
E

V
E

L
O

PM
E

N
T

 
A

s 
no

te
d 

in 
Se

ct
io

n 
3.

2,
 th

e 
slo

w
in

g 
po

pu
lat

io
n 

gr
ow

th
 i

s 
in 

pa
rt 

du
e 

to
 th

e 
lac

k 
of

 h
ou

sin
g.

 M
os

t 
ec

on
om

ist
s 

ag
re

e 
th

at
 b

uil
di

ng
 n

ew
 h

ou
sin

g 
is 

ke
y 

to
 a

dd
re

ss
ing

 t
he

 s
ta

te
’s

 h
ou

sin
g 

cr
isi

s. 
D

ur
in

g 
th

e 
dr

af
tin

g 
of

 t
he

 2
01

9 
A

H
M

P,
 n

ea
rly

 2
8,

00
0 

un
its

 w
er

e 
un

de
r 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

in 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 

C
ou

nt
y.

 I
n 

th
e 

cit
y 

of
 L

os
 A

ng
ele

s, 
de

ve
lo

pe
rs

 h
av

e 
ta

rg
et

ed
 p

ro
pe

rti
es

 i
n 

ol
de

r 
ne

igh
bo

rh
oo

ds
, 

ra
th

er
 th

an
 u

nd
ev

elo
pe

d 
lan

d 
in 

th
e 

cit
y’

s 
ou

tsk
irt

s. 
H

ow
ev

er
, 

as
 th

e 
St

at
e 

of
 C

ali
fo

rn
ia

 p
us

he
s 

fo
r 

gr
ea

te
r 

gr
ow

th
 i

n 
or

de
r 

to
 m

ee
t 

th
e 

go
ve

rn
or

’s
 g

oa
l 

of
 3

.5
 m

illi
on

 
ne

w
 u

nit
s 

by
 2

02
5,

 th
er

e 
is 

gr
ow

ing
 c

on
ce

rn
 t

ha
t w

ith
ou

t 
lan

d-
us

e 
re

str
ict

io
ns

, 
ne

w
 d

ev
elo

pm
en

t 
w

ill 
oc

cu
r 

in 
fir

e-
pr

on
e 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
ha

za
rd

 a
re

as
 o

f t
he

 c
ou

nt
y.

 T
he

se
 c

on
ce

rn
s 

ar
e 

ad
dr

es
se

d 
w

ith
in 

th
e 

20
19

 A
H

M
P 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
str

at
eg

y.
 

6.
2 

PR
O

G
E

SS
 IN

 L
O

C
A

L
 M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N

 E
FF

O
R

TS
 

Th
e 

20
14

 A
H

M
P 

M
itig

at
io

n 
A

ct
io

ns
 M

at
rix

 w
as

 r
ev

iew
ed

 b
y 

ea
ch

 o
f t

he
 c

oo
rd

ina
tin

g 
ag

en
ci

es
 

id
en

tif
ied

 o
n 

th
e 

m
at

rix
 i

n 
or

de
r t

o 
de

te
rm

ine
 m

itig
at

io
n 

ac
tio

n 
sta

tu
s. 

M
itig

at
io

n 
ac

tio
ns

 t
ha

t w
er

e 
id

en
tif

ied
 a

s 
no

t h
av

ing
 b

ee
n 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

or
 d

ef
er

re
d 

w
er

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 f
or

 T
ab

le
 5

-4
. M

itig
at

io
n 

ac
tio

ns
 t

ha
t w

er
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
as

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 a

re
 sh

ow
n 

in 
Ta

bl
e 

6-
1.

 
In

 a
dd

itio
n,

 t
he

 c
on

su
lta

nt
 r

ev
iew

ed
 th

e 
C

ou
nt

y 
of

 L
os

 A
ng

ele
s 

Fl
oo

dp
lai

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Pl

an
 2

01
8 

Pr
og

re
ss

 R
ep

or
t t

o 
de

te
rm

ine
 m

iti
ga

tio
n 

ac
tio

n 
sta

tu
s. 

Fl
oo

d 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

ac
tio

ns
 t

ha
t w

er
e 

lis
te

d 
as

 
“n

o 
pr

og
re

ss
” 

w
er

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 f
or

 T
ab

le
 5

-4
. R

ele
va

nt
 f

lo
od

 m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ac

tio
ns

 t
ha

t w
er

e 
lis

te
d 

as
 

“p
ro

je
ct

 c
om

pl
et

e”
 a

re
 s

ho
w

n 
in 

Ta
bl

e 
6-

1.
 

Ta
bl

e 
6-

1.
 C

om
pl

et
ed

 L
oc

al
 M

iti
ga

tio
n 

Ef
fo

rt
s 

C
oo

rd
in

at
in

g 
A

ge
nc

y 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f 
Co

ro
ne

r  

Pu
rc

ha
se

d 
eq

ui
pm

en
t t

o 
se

t u
p 

an
 o

ff-
si

te
 m

ob
ile

 m
or

gu
e.

 T
hi

s 
eq

ui
pm

en
t w

as
 in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 in

to
 th

e b
us

in
es

s c
on

tin
ui

ty
 p

la
n 

in
 c

as
e 

th
e 

m
ai

n 
fa

ci
lit

y 
is

 u
nu

sa
bl

e a
nd

 w
ou

ld
 h

el
p 

to
 a

vo
id

 u
nn

ec
es

sa
ry

 
ex

po
su

re
 o

f e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

or
 th

e p
ub

lic
 to

 b
io

lo
gi

ca
l, 

ra
di

ol
og

ic
al

, o
r 

ch
em

ic
al

 a
ge

nt
s.

 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f 
Re

gi
on

al
 P

la
nn

in
g 

U
pd

at
ed

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
co

de
s o

n 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

7.
 

CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

6-
2 

Ta
bl

e 
6-

1.
 C

om
pl

et
ed

 L
oc

al
 M

iti
ga

tio
n 

Ef
fo

rt
s 

C
oo

rd
in

at
in

g 
A

ge
nc

y 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 

Co
nt

in
ue

 th
e 

se
is

m
ic

 u
pg

ra
de

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
w

at
er

 re
lia

bi
lit

y 
th

ro
ug

h 
ea

rth
qu

ak
e-

re
si

st
an

t p
ip

e 
in

st
al

la
tio

n.
 T

he
 w

or
k 

to
ok

 p
la

ce
 o

n 
Re

se
da

 B
ou

le
va

rd
 fr

om
 R

os
co

e 
to

 S
tra

th
er

n;
 E

tiw
an

da
 A

ve
nu

e f
ro

m
 

Ro
sc

oe
 to

 S
tra

th
er

n;
 C

an
ta

ra
 S

tre
et

 fr
om

 R
es

ed
a 

to
 E

tiw
an

da
; 

an
d 

St
ra

th
er

n 
St

re
et

 fr
om

 R
es

ed
a 

to
 E

tiw
an

da
.  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 

In
 O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
7,

 t
he

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 m
ai

le
d 

3,
55

1 
co

pi
es

 o
f "

A
re

 Y
ou

 P
re

pa
re

d 
fo

r A
 F

lo
od

?"
 b

ro
ch

ur
e t

o 
pr

op
er

ty
 o

w
ne

rs
 an

d 
re

si
de

nt
s i

n 
Sp

ec
ia

l F
lo

od
 H

az
ar

d 
A

re
as

, 
Co

un
ty

 F
lo

od
w

ay
s,

 a
nd

 p
os

si
bl

e g
ap

s i
n 

flo
od

pl
ai

n 
m

ap
pi

ng
 (i

.e
., 

ar
ea

s 
w

ith
 p

os
si

bl
e f

lo
od

 h
az

ar
ds

 th
at

 a
re

 n
ot

 o
n 

FE
M

A
 o

r C
ou

nt
y 

m
ap

s)
. T

he
 C

ou
nt

y 
of

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

’ N
at

io
na

l F
lo

od
 In

su
ra

nc
e 

Pr
og

ra
m

 (
N

FI
P)

 w
eb

si
te

 li
nk

s 
w

er
e 

ch
ec

ke
d 

an
d 

up
da

te
d.

 
Pr

ev
io

us
ly

, b
ro

ch
ur

es
 w

er
e 

di
st

rib
ut

ed
 to

 th
e 

M
al

ib
u,

 R
os

em
ea

d,
 

an
d 

Ca
st

ai
c 

Pu
bl

ic
 L

ib
ra

rie
s.

 B
ro

ch
ur

es
 w

er
e 

di
st

rib
ut

ed
 to

 
ad

di
tio

na
l p

ub
lic

 li
br

ar
ie

s 
cl

os
er

 to
 th

e 
flo

od
pl

ai
ns

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
To

pa
ng

a,
 A

lta
de

na
, D

ua
rte

, a
nd

 S
an

 D
im

as
. 

 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 

In
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 th
e 

ou
tre

ac
h 

ef
fo

rts
 m

en
tio

ne
d 

in
 In

iti
at

iv
e 

N
o.

 1
 

ab
ov

e,
 th

e L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 m
ai

le
d 

22
6 

co
pi

es
 o

f 
CD

s 
co

nt
ai

ni
ng

 C
ou

nt
y 

of
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 an

d 
FE

M
A

 p
ub

lic
at

io
ns

 to
 

al
l p

ro
pe

rty
 o

w
ne

rs
 a

nd
 re

si
de

nt
s i

n 
RL

 p
ro

pe
rti

es
 a

nd
 p

ro
pe

rti
es

 in
 

th
e 

RL
 a

re
as

. 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 

In
 D

ec
em

be
r 

20
17

, 
th

e 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 m

ai
le

d 
a 

le
tte

r a
nd

 o
ut

re
ac

h 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 t
o 

ow
ne

rs
 o

f c
rit

ic
al

 f
ac

ili
tie

s 
lo

ca
te

d 
in

 
FE

M
A

’s
-d

es
ig

na
te

d 
Sp

ec
ia

l F
lo

od
 H

az
ar

d 
A

re
as

. C
rit

ic
al

 f
ac

ili
tie

s 
th

at
 re

ce
iv

ed
 o

ut
re

ac
h 

m
at

er
ia

ls
 in

cl
ud

e 
sc

ho
ol

s,
 h

os
pi

ta
ls

, f
ire

 
st

at
io

ns
, a

nd
 h

ea
lth

 c
ar

e 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s.

 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 

Co
un

ty
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 O
ffi

ce
 o

f E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t, 
Sh

er
iff

’s
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t, 
an

d 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
’ D

is
as

te
r 

Se
rv

ic
e 

Gr
ou

p 
pa

rti
ci

pa
te

d 
in

 e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

pr
ep

ar
ed

ne
ss

 ev
en

ts
 su

ch
 

as
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y’
s P

re
pa

ra
tio

n 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
is

 re
po

rti
ng

 
pe

rio
d.

 P
ar

tic
ip

an
ts

 a
t t

he
 fa

ir 
pr

ov
id

ed
 at

te
nd

ee
s w

ith
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d 
re

so
ur

ce
s f

or
 p

re
pa

ra
tio

n,
 s

uc
h 

as
 th

e “
A

re
 Y

ou
 P

re
pa

re
d 

fo
r a

 
Fl

oo
d?

”,
 “

A
LE

RT
 L

A
 C

O
U

N
TY

” 
br

oc
hu

re
, “

H
om

eo
w

ne
r's

 G
ui

de
 

fo
r F

lo
od

, D
eb

ris
, a

nd
 E

ro
si

on
 C

on
tro

l,”
 a

nd
 th

e 
“E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
Su

rv
iv

al
 G

ui
de

.”
 

 6.
3 

C
H

A
N

G
E

S 
IN

 P
R

IO
R

IT
IE

S 
Th

e 
20

14
 A

H
M

P’
s 

M
itig

at
io

n 
A

ct
io

n 
M

at
rix

 w
as

 p
rio

rit
ize

d 
us

ing
 a

 n
um

be
r 

ra
nk

ing
 s

ys
te

m
 t

o 
de

te
rm

ine
 a

 p
ro

je
ct

’s
 p

rio
rit

y.
 F

or
 th

e 
20

19
 A

H
M

P,
 m

iti
ga

tio
n 

ac
tio

ns
 w

er
e 

pr
io

rit
iz

ed
 i

nt
o 

tw
o 

se
pa

ra
te

 g
ro

up
s, 

w
hic

h 
bo

th
 h

elp
ed

 a
ch

iev
e 

m
ee

tin
g 

th
e 

go
al 

of
 d

isa
ste

r 
re

sil
ie

nc
y.

 A
s 

no
te

d 
in

 
Se

ct
io

n 
5.

3,
 re

sil
ie

nt
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 a

re
 a

bl
e 

to
 m

in
im

iz
e 

an
y 

di
sa

ste
r, 

m
ak

ing
 t

he
 r

et
ur

n 
to

 n
or

m
al

 
life

 a
s s

oo
n 

an
d 

as
 e

ffo
rtl

es
s 

as
 p

os
sib

le.
 A

s s
uc

h,
 th

e 
fir

st 
pa

rt 
(i.

e.
, f

irs
t 

pr
io

rit
y)

 o
f t

his
 g

oa
l i

s 
to

 
en

su
re

 t
ha

t 
life

-s
af

et
y 

ne
ed

s 
ar

e 
ad

dr
es

se
d 

as
 s

oo
n 

as
 p

os
sib

le.
 T

he
 s

ec
on

d 
pa

rt 
(i.

e.
, 

se
co

nd
 

pr
io

rit
y)

 
is 

to
 i

m
pl

em
en

t 
pl

an
s, 

po
lic

ies
, 

an
d 

pr
og

ra
m

s 
to

 r
ed

uc
e 

cu
rre

nt
 

ris
ks

 a
nd

 p
re

ve
nt

 
ne

w
/fu

tu
re

 o
ne

s. 
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

7-
1 

7 
PL

A
N

 A
D

O
PT

IO
N

 

Se
ct

io
n 

6 
– 

Pl
an

 A
do

pt
io

n 
ad

dr
es

se
s E

lem
en

t 
E 

of
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l M

itig
at

io
n 

Pl
an

 R
eg

ula
tio

n 
C

he
ck

lis
t. 

R
eg

ul
at

io
n 

C
he

ck
lis

t –
 4

4 
C

FR
 2

01
.6

 L
oc

al
 M

iti
ga

tio
n 

Pl
an

s 

El
em

en
t 

E:
 P

la
n 

A
do

pt
io

n 

E1
. D

oe
s 

th
e 

Pl
an

 in
cl

ud
e 

do
cu

m
en

ta
tio

n 
th

at
 th

e 
pl

an
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

fo
rm

al
ly

 a
do

pt
ed

 b
y 

th
e g

ov
er

ni
ng

 b
od

y 
of

 th
e 

ju
ris

di
ct

io
n 

re
qu

es
tin

g 
ap

pr
ov

al
? 

(R
eq

ui
re

m
en

t 
§2

01
.6

(c
)(5

)) 
E2

. 
Fo

r 
m

ul
ti‐

ju
ris

di
ct

io
na

l 
pl

an
s,

 h
as

 e
ac

h 
ju

ris
di

ct
io

n 
re

qu
es

tin
g 

ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f 

th
e 

pl
an

 d
oc

um
en

te
d 

fo
rm

al
 p

la
n 

ad
op

tio
n?

 (R
eq

ui
re

m
en

t 
§2

01
.6

(c
)(5

)) 

7.
1 

FO
R

M
A

L
 A

D
O

PT
IO

N
 

[T
o 

be
 c

om
pl

et
ed

] 
Th

e 
20

19
 A

H
M

P 
w

as
 fo

rm
al

ly
 a

do
pt

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Lo

s 
A

ng
ele

s 
C

ou
nt

y 
Bo

ar
d 

of
 

Su
pe

rv
iso

rs
 v

ia 
re

so
lut

io
n 

on
 [T

o 
be

 c
om

pl
et

ed
]. 

A
 sc

an
ne

d 
co

py
 o

f t
he

 r
es

ol
ut

io
n 

is 
inc

lud
ed

 a
s 

Fi
gu

re
 7

-2
. I

t w
ill 

als
o 

be
 k

ep
t o

n 
file

 w
ith

 L
os

 A
ng

ele
s 

C
ou

nt
y 

O
EM

 a
nd

 a
dd

itio
na

l 
be

 se
nt

 t
o 

C
al 

O
ES

 a
nd

 F
EM

A
. 

  

CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
PA

GE
 | 

7-
2 

A
D

O
PT

IO
N

 R
E

SO
L

U
T

IO
N

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
  

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

 –
 P

L
A

N
N

IN
G

 P
R

O
C

E
S

S
 

 
 

Fr
om

: S
te

ph
an

ie
 K

im
  

Se
nt

: T
ue

sd
ay

, A
ug

us
t 2

0,
 2

01
9 

2:
44

 P
M

 
To

: X
XX

@
m

on
os

he
rif

f.o
rg

; X
XX

@
oc

sd
.o

rg
; X

XX
@

riv
co

.o
rg

; X
XX

@
on

ta
rio

ca
.g

ov
; X

XX
@

in
yo

co
un

ty
.u

s;
 

XX
X@

co
.im

pe
ria

l.c
a.

us
; X

XX
@

la
qu

in
ta

ca
.g

ov
; X

XX
@

sb
co

em
.o

rg
; X

XX
@

m
on

o.
ca

.g
ov

; X
XX

@
lc

f.c
a.

go
v;

 
XX

X@
sa

.o
cg

ov
.c

om
; X

XX
@

riv
co

.o
rg

; X
XX

@
cb

cit
y.

or
g;

 X
XX

@
in

yo
co

un
ty

.u
s;

 X
XX

@
ci

ty
of

bi
sh

op
.co

m
; 

XX
X@

sa
nd

ie
go

.g
ov

; X
XX

@
riv

co
.o

rg
; X

XX
@

oc
ta

.n
et

; X
XX

@
sb

cs
d.

or
g;

 X
XX

@
sa

nd
ie

go
.g

ov
; X

XX
@

oc
ta

.n
et

; 
XX

X@
rc

oe
.u

s;
 X

XX
@

dg
s.

ca
.g

ov
; X

XX
@

sb
cs

d.
or

g;
 X

XX
@

la
w

a.
or

g;
 X

XX
@

riv
co

.o
rg

; X
XX

@
la

us
d.

ne
t; 

XX
X@

in
yo

co
un

ty
.u

s; 
XX

X@
oc

ta
.n

et
; X

XX
@

ra
nc

ho
m

ira
ge

ca
.g

ov
; X

XX
@

riv
co

.o
rg

; X
XX

@
in

yo
co

un
ty

.u
s;

 
XX

X@
sb

cc
d.

ed
u;

 X
XX

@
m

or
on

go
-n

sn
.g

ov
; X

XX
@

no
aa

.g
ov

; X
XX

@
ci

ty
of

re
dl

an
ds

.o
rg

; X
XX

@
m

or
on

go
-

ns
n.

go
v;

 X
XX

@
co

ac
he

lla
.o

rg
; X

XX
@

oc
sd

.o
rg

; X
XX

@
sb

cs
d.

or
g;

 X
XX

@
cit

yo
fte

m
ec

ul
a.

or
g;

 
XX

X@
sa

nt
ab

ar
ba

ra
ca

.g
ov

; X
XX

@
m

w
dh

2o
.c

om
; X

XX
@

sb
cs

d.
or

g;
 X

XX
@

ke
rn

co
un

ty
fir

e.
or

g 
Cc

: X
XX

@
ce

oo
em

.la
co

un
ty

.g
ov

 
Su

bj
ec

t: 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y H

az
ar

d 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

  De
ar

 S
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s, 

  W
e 

ar
e 

re
ac

hi
ng

 o
ut

 to
 le

t y
ou

 k
no

w
 th

at
 th

e 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

O
ffi

ce
 o

f E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

is 
in

 th
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

of
 u

pd
at

in
g 

its
' A

ll-
Ha

za
rd

s 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

Pl
an

. I
'm

 a
tta

ch
in

g 
ou

r p
ub

lic
 o

ut
re

ac
h 

fly
er

 fo
r y

ou
r i

nf
or

m
at

io
n.

 W
e 

w
ill

 se
nd

 o
ut

 a
n 

ad
di

tio
na

l e
m

ai
l 

w
he

n 
ou

r d
ra

ft 
pl

an
 g

oe
s 

ou
t t

o 
pu

bl
ic 

co
m

m
en

t l
at

er
 th

is 
fa

ll. 
If 

yo
u 

ha
ve

 a
ny

 q
ue

st
io

ns
 

or
 w

ou
ld

 li
ke

 to
 b

e 
pa

rt 
of

 th
e 

pl
an

 u
pd

at
e 

pr
oc

es
s, 

pl
ea

se
 c

on
ta

ct
 m

e!
 

  Em
ily

 M
on

ta
ne

z 

em
on

ta
ne

z@
ce

oo
em

.la
co

un
ty

.g
ov

 

(3
23

) 9
80

-2
81

3 

    St
ep

ha
ni

e 
Ki

m
  

Ac
ad

em
ic

 In
te

rn
 

LA
 C

ou
nt

y 
CE

O 
Of

fic
e 

of
 E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
M

an
ag

em
en

t  
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Th
e 

Lo
s 

An
ge

le
s 

Co
un

ty
 O

ffi
ce

 o
f E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
M

an
ag

em
en

t i
s 

up
da

tin
g 

th
e 

Co
un

ty
’s 

A
ll-

H
az

ar
ds

 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

Pl
an

! O
ve

r t
he

 n
ex

t f
ew

 m
on

th
s,

 w
e 

w
ill

 re
-a

ss
es

s 
ris

ks
 p

os
ed

 b
y 

na
tu

ra
l d

is
as

te
rs

 a
nd

 
re

vi
ew

 a
nd

 re
vi

se
 e

xi
st

in
g 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
de

ve
lo

p 
ne

w
 o

ne
s 

to
 p

ro
te

ct
 li

fe
 a

nd
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

fu
tu

re
 e

ve
nt

s.
 

N
at

ur
al

 d
is

as
te

rs
 a

dd
re

ss
ed

 in
 o

ur
 p

la
n 

in
cl

ud
e:

 c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
, d

am
 fa

ilu
re

, d
ro

ug
ht

, fl
oo

d,
 

ea
rt

hq
ua

ke
, l

an
ds

lid
e,

 ts
un

am
i, 

an
d 

w
ild

fir
e.

 
O

nc
e 

ou
r p

la
n 

is
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 a
nd

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
by

 F
EM

A
, t

he
 C

ou
nt

y 
w

ill
 b

e 
re

-e
lig

ib
le

 to
 a

pp
ly

 fo
r a

nd
 

re
ce

iv
e 

ce
rt

ai
n 

ty
pe

s 
of

 n
on

-e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

di
sa

st
er

 a
ss

is
ta

nc
e,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
fu

nd
in

g 
fo

r m
iti

ga
tio

n 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 id

en
tifi

ed
 in

 o
ur

 p
la

n.
 

To
 le

ar
n 

m
or

e 
ab

ou
t h

az
ar

d 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

pl
an

ni
ng

, p
le

as
e 

vi
si

t: 
ht

tp
s:

//w
w

w
.f

em
a.

go
v/

ha
za

rd
-

m
iti

ga
tio

n-
pl

an
ni

ng
.

To
 le

ar
n 

m
or

e 
ab

ou
t o

ur
 p

la
n 

an
d/

or
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

e 
in

 o
ur

 p
la

nn
in

g 
pr

oc
es

s,
 p

le
as

e 
vi

si
t o

ur
 w

eb
si

te
 

la
co

un
ty

.g
ov

/e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

or
 o

ur
 T

w
itt

er
 a

cc
ou

nt
 @

Re
ad

yL
A

Co
un

ty
.

20
19

 C
ou

nt
y 

of
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

A
ll-

H
az

ar
ds

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
Pl

an

©
iS

to
ck

.c
om

/G
om

ez
Da

vi
d,

 G
DM

at
t6

6,
 L

PE
TT

ET
, a

nd
 p

an
da

pi
x

¡L
a 

O
fic

in
a 

de
 M

an
ej

o 
de

 E
m

er
ge

nc
ia

s 
de

l C
on

da
do

 d
e 

Lo
s 

Á
ng

el
es

 e
st

á 
ac

tu
al

iz
an

do
 e

l P
la

n 
de

 
M

iti
ga

ci
ón

 p
ar

a 
To

do
s 

lo
s 

Pe
lig

ro
s 

de
l C

on
da

do
! E

n 
lo

s 
pr

óx
im

os
 m

es
es

, r
ee

va
lu

ar
em

os
 lo

s 
rie

sg
os

 
de

bi
do

s 
a 

lo
s 

de
sa

st
re

s 
na

tu
ra

le
s 

y 
re

pa
sa

re
m

os
 y

 re
vi

sa
re

m
os

 la
s 

es
tr

at
eg

ia
s 

ex
is

te
nt

es
, y

 ta
m

bi
én

 
de

sa
rr

ol
la

re
m

os
 o

tr
as

 n
ue

va
s 

pa
ra

 p
ro

te
ge

r v
id

as
 y

 p
ro

pi
ed

ad
es

 a
nt

es
 d

e 
qu

e 
oc

ur
ra

n 
in

ci
de

nt
es

 
fu

tu
ro

s.
Lo

s 
rie

sg
os

 d
is

cu
tid

os
 e

n 
nu

es
tr

o 
pl

an
 in

cl
uy

en
: c

am
bi

os
 c

lim
át

ic
os

, f
al

la
 d

e 
pr

es
as

, s
eq

uí
as

, 
in

un
da

ci
on

es
, t

er
re

m
ot

os
, d

es
liz

am
ie

nt
os

 d
e 

tie
rr

a,
 ts

un
am

i e
 in

ce
nd

io
s 

fo
re

st
al

es
.

Un
a 

ve
z 

qu
e 

FE
M

A
 c

om
pl

et
e 

y 
ap

ru
eb

e 
nu

es
tr

o 
pl

an
, e

l C
on

da
do

 v
ol

ve
rá

 a
 s

er
 e

le
gi

bl
e 

pa
ra

 s
ol

ic
ita

r y
 

re
ci

bi
r c

ie
rt

os
 ti

po
s 

de
 a

si
st

en
ci

a 
po

r d
es

as
tr

e 
qu

e 
no

 s
ea

 d
e 

em
er

ge
nc

ia
, i

nc
lu

ye
nd

o 
la

 fi
na

nc
ia

ci
ón

 
pa

ra
 p

ro
ye

ct
os

 d
e 

m
iti

ga
ci

ón
 id

en
tifi

ca
do

s 
en

 n
ue

st
ro

 p
la

n.
Pa

ra
 o

bt
en

er
 m

ás
 in

fo
rm

ac
ió

n 
so

br
e 

la
 p

la
ni

fic
ac

ió
n 

de
 m

iti
ga

ci
ón

 d
e 

rie
sg

os
, p

or
 fa

vo
r v

is
ite

:  
 

ht
tp

s:
//w

w
w

.f
em

a.
go

v/
ha

za
rd

-m
iti

ga
tio

n-
pl

an
ni

ng
.

Pa
ra

 o
bt

en
er

 m
ás

 in
fo

rm
ac

ió
n 

so
br

e 
nu

es
tr

o 
pl

an
 y

 / 
o 

pa
rt

ic
ip

ar
 e

n 
nu

es
tr

o 
pr

oc
es

o 
de

 p
la

ni
fic

ac
ió

n,
 

vi
si

te
 n

ue
st

ro
 s

iti
o 

w
eb

 la
co

un
ty

.g
ov

/e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

o 
nu

es
tr

a 
cu

en
ta

 d
e 

Tw
itt

er
 @

Re
ad

yL
A

Co
un

ty
.

Pl
an

 d
e 

M
iti

ga
ci

ón
 p

ar
a 

To
do

s 
lo

s 
Pe

lig
ro

s 
de

l 
Co

nd
ad

o 
de

 L
os

 Á
ng

el
es

 2
01

9

©
iS

to
ck

.c
om

/G
om

ez
Da

vi
d,

 G
DM

at
t6

6,
 L

PE
TT

ET
, a

nd
 p

an
da

pi
x

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Item 8.E - Exhibit D



2
0

1
9

 A
H

M
P

 -
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
R

e
v
ie

w
 W

o
rk

s
h

e
e

t 

H
M

P 
Se

ct
io

n 
Q

ue
st

io
ns

 
Ye

s 
N

o 
C

om
m

en
ts

 

PL
A

N
N

IN
G

 
PR

O
C

ES
S 

H
as

 y
ou

r C
ou

nt
y 

de
pa

rtm
en

t/a
ge

nc
y 

(o
r o

th
er

 ty
pe

 o
f 

or
ga

ni
za

tio
n)

 d
on

e 
an

y 
pu

bl
ic

 o
ut

re
ac

h 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
th

e 
A

H
M

P 
or

 a
 m

iti
ga

tio
n 

pr
oj

ec
t?

 If
 y

es
, 

pl
ea

se
 d

es
cr

ib
e.

 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

H
as

 y
ou

r C
ou

nt
y 

de
pa

rtm
en

t/a
ge

nc
y 

(o
r o

th
er

 ty
pe

 o
f 

or
ga

ni
za

tio
n)

 in
te

gr
at

ed
 a

ny
 o

f t
he

 A
H

M
P’

s 
el

em
en

ts
 

in
to

 o
th

er
 p

la
ns

 o
r p

ol
ic

ie
s?

 If
 y

es
, p

le
as

e 
de

sc
rib

e.
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

H
A

ZA
R

D
 

ID
EN

T
IF

IC
A

T
IO

N
 

H
as

 a
 d

is
as

te
r o

cc
ur

re
d 

in
 th

is
 re

po
rti

ng
 p

er
io

d 
th

at
 

af
fe

ct
ed

 y
ou

r d
ep

ar
tm

en
t/a

ge
nc

y 
(o

r o
th

er
 ty

pe
 o

f 
or

ga
ni

za
tio

n)
? 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

D
o 

yo
u 

kn
ow

 o
f n

ew
 h

az
ar

d 
st

ud
ie

s,
 re

po
rts

 an
d/

or
 

m
ap

pi
ng

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
fo

r L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y?

 If
 s

o,
 w

ha
t 

ar
e 

th
ey

? 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

R
IS

K
 

A
SS

ES
SM

EN
T 

D
oe

s 
yo

ur
 C

ou
nt

y 
de

pa
rtm

en
t/a

ge
nc

y 
ha

ve
 an

y 
ne

w
 

cr
iti

ca
l a

ss
et

s t
ha

t s
ho

ul
d 

be
 in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

20
24

 A
H

M
P 

ris
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
t?

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

H
av

e 
th

er
e 

be
en

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t t

re
nd

s t
ha

t 
co

ul
d 

cr
ea

te
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 ri
sk

s?
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

M
IT

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

ST
R

A
TE

G
Y 

A
re

 th
er

e 
di

ffe
re

nt
 o

r a
dd

iti
on

al
 re

so
ur

ce
s (

fin
an

ci
al

, 
te

ch
ni

ca
l, 

an
d 

hu
m

an
) t

ha
t a

re
 n

ow
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

fo
r 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
pl

an
ni

ng
? 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

Sh
ou

ld
 n

ew
 m

iti
ga

tio
n 

ac
tio

ns
 b

e 
ad

de
d?

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



2
0

1
9

 A
H

M
P

 -
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
R

e
v
ie

w
 W

o
rk

s
h

e
e

t 

H
M

P 
Se

ct
io

n 
Q

ue
st

io
ns

 
Ye

s 
N

o 
C

om
m

en
ts

 

PL
A

N
N

IN
G

 
PR

O
C

ES
S 

H
as

 y
ou

r C
ou

nt
y 

de
pa

rtm
en

t/a
ge

nc
y 

(o
r o

th
er

 ty
pe

 o
f 

or
ga

ni
za

tio
n)

 d
on

e 
an

y 
pu

bl
ic

 o
ut

re
ac

h 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
th

e 
A

H
M

P 
or

 a
 m

iti
ga

tio
n 

pr
oj

ec
t?

 If
 y

es
, 

pl
ea

se
 d

es
cr

ib
e.

 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

H
as

 y
ou

r C
ou

nt
y 

de
pa

rtm
en

t/a
ge

nc
y 

(o
r o

th
er

 ty
pe

 o
f 

or
ga

ni
za

tio
n)

 in
te

gr
at

ed
 a

ny
 o

f t
he

 A
H

M
P’

s 
el

em
en

ts
 

in
to

 o
th

er
 p

la
ns

 o
r p

ol
ic

ie
s?

 If
 y

es
, p

le
as

e 
de

sc
rib

e.
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

H
A

ZA
R

D
 

ID
EN

T
IF

IC
A

T
IO

N
 

H
as

 a
 d

is
as

te
r o

cc
ur

re
d 

in
 th

is
 re

po
rti

ng
 p

er
io

d 
th

at
 

af
fe

ct
ed

 y
ou

r d
ep

ar
tm

en
t/a

ge
nc

y 
(o

r o
th

er
 ty

pe
 o

f 
or

ga
ni

za
tio

n)
? 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

D
o 

yo
u 

kn
ow

 o
f n

ew
 h

az
ar

d 
st

ud
ie

s,
 re

po
rts

 an
d/

or
 

m
ap

pi
ng

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
fo

r L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y?

 If
 s

o,
 w

ha
t 

ar
e 

th
ey

? 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

R
IS

K
 

A
SS

ES
SM

EN
T 

D
oe

s 
yo

ur
 C

ou
nt

y 
de

pa
rtm

en
t/a

ge
nc

y 
ha

ve
 an

y 
ne

w
 

cr
iti

ca
l a

ss
et

s t
ha

t s
ho

ul
d 

be
 in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

20
24

 A
H

M
P 

ris
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
t?

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

H
av

e 
th

er
e 

be
en

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t t

re
nd

s t
ha

t 
co

ul
d 

cr
ea

te
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 ri
sk

s?
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

M
IT

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

ST
R

A
TE

G
Y 

A
re

 th
er

e 
di

ffe
re

nt
 o

r a
dd

iti
on

al
 re

so
ur

ce
s (

fin
an

ci
al

, 
te

ch
ni

ca
l, 

an
d 

hu
m

an
) t

ha
t a

re
 n

ow
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

fo
r 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
pl

an
ni

ng
? 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

Sh
ou

ld
 n

ew
 m

iti
ga

tio
n 

ac
tio

ns
 b

e 
ad

de
d?

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

20
19

 A
H

M
P 

- M
iti

ga
tio

n 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
Pr

og
re

ss
 R

ep
or

t 

Pr
og

re
ss

 R
ep

or
t 

Pe
ri

od
 F

ro
m

 (
da

te
): 

  
  

  
To

 (
da

te
): 

  
  

  

Pr
oj

ec
t 

Ti
tle

: 
  

  
  

Pr
oj

ec
t 

ID
: 

  
  

  

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 P

ro
je

ct
: 

  
  

  

Im
pl

em
en

tin
g 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t/

A
ge

nc
y:

 
  

  
  

Su
pp

or
tin

g 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t/A
ge

nc
ie

s:
 

  
  

  

C
on

ta
ct

 N
am

e:
 

  
  

  

C
on

ta
ct

 E
-m

ai
l: 

  
  

  

C
on

ta
ct

 N
um

be
r:

 
  

  
  

G
ra

nt
/F

in
an

ce
 A

dm
in

is
tr

at
or

: 
  

  
  

To
ta

l 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
C

os
t: 

  
  

  

A
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 C
os

t O
ve

rr
un

/U
nd

er
ru

n:
 

  
  

  

D
at

e 
of

 P
ro

je
ct

 A
pp

ro
va

l: 
  

  
  

Pr
oj

ec
t 

St
ar

t D
at

e:
 

  
  

  

A
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 C
om

pl
et

io
n 

D
at

e:
 

  
  

  

Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 P
ro

gr
es

s o
f 

Pr
oj

ec
t f

or
 t

hi
s 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
Pe

ri
od

 

1.
 W

ha
t 

wa
s 

ac
co

m
pl

is
he

d 
du

ri
ng

 t
hi

s 
re

po
rt

in
g 

pe
ri

od
? 

  
  

  

2.
 W

ha
t 

ob
st

ac
le

s,
 p

ro
bl

em
s,

 o
r 

de
la

ys
 d

id
 t

he
 p

ro
je

ct
 e

nc
ou

nt
er

, 
if 

an
y?

 

  
  

  

3.
 H

ow
 w

er
e 

th
e 

pr
ob

le
m

s 
re

so
lv

ed
? 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
  

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

 –
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 P

R
O

F
IL

E
 

 
 

T
ab

le
 B

-1
. C

ou
nt

y 
C

ri
tic

al
 F

ac
ili

tie
s 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t /

 A
ge

nc
y 

Fa
ci

lit
y 

N
am

e 
A

ni
m

al
 C

ar
e 

&
 C

on
tro

l 
A

go
ur

a 
A

ni
m

al
 C

ar
e 

C
en

te
r 

A
ni

m
al

 C
ar

e 
&

 C
on

tro
l 

B
al

dw
in

 P
ar

k 
A

ni
m

al
 C

ar
e 

C
en

te
r 

A
ni

m
al

 C
ar

e 
&

 C
on

tro
l 

C
ar

so
n 

A
ni

m
al

 C
ar

e 
C

en
te

r 
A

ni
m

al
 C

ar
e 

&
 C

on
tro

l 
C

as
ta

ic
 A

ni
m

al
 C

ar
e 

C
en

te
r (

C
as

ta
ic

) 
A

ni
m

al
 C

ar
e 

&
 C

on
tro

l 
D

ow
ne

y 
A

ni
m

al
 C

ar
e 

C
en

te
r 

A
ni

m
al

 C
ar

e 
&

 C
on

tro
l 

La
nc

as
te

r C
ou

nt
y 

A
ni

m
al

 C
ar

e 
C

en
te

r 
A

ni
m

al
 C

ar
e 

&
 C

on
tro

l 
Pa

lm
da

le
 A

ni
m

al
 C

ar
e 

C
en

te
r 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

B
ob

 H
op

e 
A

irp
or

t F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f A

lh
am

br
a 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t -

 T
ra

in
in

g 
Fa

ci
lit

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f A
lh

am
br

a 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

71
 - 

H
ea

dq
ua

rte
rs

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f A
lh

am
br

a 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

72
 - 

So
ut

he
as

t D
is

tri
ct

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f A
lh

am
br

a 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

73
 - 

N
or

th
w

es
t 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f A

lh
am

br
a 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
74

 - 
So

ut
hw

es
t 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f A

rc
ad

ia
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

10
5 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f A

rc
ad

ia
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

10
6 

- H
ea

dq
ua

rte
rs

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f A
rc

ad
ia

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
10

7 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f A
va

lo
n 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f B

ev
er

ly
 H

ill
s F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

1 
- H

ea
dq

ua
rte

rs
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f B

ev
er

ly
 H

ill
s F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

2 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f B
ev

er
ly

 H
ill

s F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
3 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f B

ur
ba

nk
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

11
 - 

H
ea

dq
ua

rte
rs

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f B
ur

ba
nk

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
12

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f B
ur

ba
nk

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
13

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f B
ur

ba
nk

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
14

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f B
ur

ba
nk

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
15

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f B
ur

ba
nk

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
16

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f C
om

pt
on

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
1 

- H
ea

dq
ua

rte
rs

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f C
om

pt
on

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
2 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f C

om
pt

on
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

3 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f C
om

pt
on

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
4 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f D

ow
ne

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

1 
- H

ea
dq

ua
rte

rs
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f D

ow
ne

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

2 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f D
ow

ne
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
3 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f D

ow
ne

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

4 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f G
le

nd
al

e 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

21
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f G

le
nd

al
e 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
22

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f G
le

nd
al

e 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

23
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f G

le
nd

al
e 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
24

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f G
le

nd
al

e 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

25
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f G

le
nd

al
e 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
26

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f G
le

nd
al

e 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

27
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f G

le
nd

al
e 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
28

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f L
on

g 
B

ea
ch

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t -

 B
ea

ch
 O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f L
on

g 
B

ea
ch

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t -

 H
ea

dq
ua

rte
rs

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f L
on

g 
B

ea
ch

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
1 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f L

on
g 

B
ea

ch
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

10
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f L

on
g 

B
ea

ch
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

11
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f L

on
g 

B
ea

ch
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

12
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f L

on
g 

B
ea

ch
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

13
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f L

on
g 

B
ea

ch
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

14
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f L

on
g 

B
ea

ch
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

15
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f L

on
g 

B
ea

ch
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

16
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f L

on
g 

B
ea

ch
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

17
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f L

on
g 

B
ea

ch
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

18
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f L

on
g 

B
ea

ch
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

19
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



T
ab

le
 B

-1
. C

ou
nt

y 
C

ri
tic

al
 F

ac
ili

tie
s 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t /

 A
ge

nc
y 

Fa
ci

lit
y 

N
am

e 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f L
on

g 
B

ea
ch

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
2 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f L

on
g 

B
ea

ch
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

20
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f L

on
g 

B
ea

ch
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

21
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f L

on
g 

B
ea

ch
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

22
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f L

on
g 

B
ea

ch
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

24
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f L

on
g 

B
ea

ch
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

3 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f L
on

g 
B

ea
ch

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
4 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f L

on
g 

B
ea

ch
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

5 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f L
on

g 
B

ea
ch

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
6 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f L

on
g 

B
ea

ch
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

7 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f L
on

g 
B

ea
ch

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
8 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f L

on
g 

B
ea

ch
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

9 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
1 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

10
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

10
8 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

10
9 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

11
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

12
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

13
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

14
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

15
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

16
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

17
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

19
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

2 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
20

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
21

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
25

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
26

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
27

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
29

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
3 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

33
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

34
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

35
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

37
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

4 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
41

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
42

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
43

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
44

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
46

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
47

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
5 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

50
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

51
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

52
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

56
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

57
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

58
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

59
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

6 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
61

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
62

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
64

 

T
ab

le
 B

-1
. C

ou
nt

y 
C

ri
tic

al
 F

ac
ili

tie
s 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t /

 A
ge

nc
y 

Fa
ci

lit
y 

N
am

e 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
65

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
66

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
67

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
68

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
7 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

71
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

76
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

80
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

82
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

9 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
92

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
94

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
95

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
97

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
99

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f M
on

te
re

y 
Pa

rk
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

61
 - 

H
ea

dq
ua

rte
rs

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f M
on

te
re

y 
Pa

rk
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

62
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f M

on
te

re
y 

Pa
rk

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
63

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f S
an

ta
 F

e 
Sp

rin
gs

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
1 

- H
ea

dq
ua

rte
rs

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f S
an

ta
 F

e 
Sp

rin
gs

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
2 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f S

an
ta

 F
e 

Sp
rin

gs
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

3 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f S
an

ta
 F

e 
Sp

rin
gs

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
4 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f S

an
ta

 M
on

ic
a 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t -

 T
ra

in
in

g 
Fa

ci
lit

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f S
an

ta
 M

on
ic

a 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

1 
- H

ea
dq

ua
rte

rs
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f S

an
ta

 M
on

ic
a 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
2 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f S

an
ta

 M
on

ic
a 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
3 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f S

an
ta

 M
on

ic
a 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
5 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f V

er
no

n 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

2 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f V
er

no
n 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
3 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f V

er
no

n 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

4 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f W
es

t C
ov

in
a 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
1 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f W

es
t C

ov
in

a 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

2 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f W
es

t C
ov

in
a 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
3 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ity

 o
f W

es
t C

ov
in

a 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

4 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ity
 o

f W
es

t C
ov

in
a 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
5 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ul

ve
r C

ity
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

1 
- H

ea
dq

ua
rte

rs
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
ul

ve
r C

ity
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

2 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ul
ve

r C
ity

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
3 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

La
 V

er
ne

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
1 

- H
ea

dq
ua

rte
rs

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
La

 V
er

ne
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

2 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t -

 H
Q

/H
el

ip
or

t/T
ra

in
in

g 
Fa

ci
lit

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
1 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

10
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

10
1 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

10
2 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

10
3 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

10
4 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

10
5 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

10
6 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

10
7 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

11
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

11
0 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

11
1 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

11
2 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

11
4 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



T
ab

le
 B

-1
. C

ou
nt

y 
C

ri
tic

al
 F

ac
ili

tie
s 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t /

 A
ge

nc
y 

Fa
ci

lit
y 

N
am

e 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
11

5 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
11

6 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
11

7 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
11

8 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
11

9 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
12

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
12

0 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
12

1 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
12

2 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
12

3 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
12

4 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
12

5 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
12

6 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
12

7 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
12

9 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
13

0 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
13

1 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
13

2 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
13

4 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
13

5 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
14

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
14

0 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
14

1 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
14

4 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
14

5 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
14

6 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
14

7 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
14

8 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
14

9 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
15

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
15

1 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
15

2 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
15

3 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
15

4 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
15

5 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
15

6 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
15

7 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
15

8 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
15

9 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
16

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
16

0 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
16

1 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
16

2 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
16

3 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
16

4 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
16

5 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
16

6 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
16

7 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
16

8 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
16

9 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
17

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
17

0 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
17

1 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
17

2 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
17

3 

T
ab

le
 B

-1
. C

ou
nt

y 
C

ri
tic

al
 F

ac
ili

tie
s 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t /

 A
ge

nc
y 

Fa
ci

lit
y 

N
am

e 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
18

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
18

1 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
18

2 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
18

3 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
18

4 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
18

5 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
18

6 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
18

7 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
18

8 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
19

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
2 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

20
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

21
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

22
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

23
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

24
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

25
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

26
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

27
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

28
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

29
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

3 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
30

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
31

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
32

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
33

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
34

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
35

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
36

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
37

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
38

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
39

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
4 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

40
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

41
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

42
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

43
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

44
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

45
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

47
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

48
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

49
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

5 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
50

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
51

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
53

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
54

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
55

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
56

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
57

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
58

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
59

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
6 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

60
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

61
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



T
ab

le
 B

-1
. C

ou
nt

y 
C

ri
tic

al
 F

ac
ili

tie
s 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t /

 A
ge

nc
y 

Fa
ci

lit
y 

N
am

e 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
62

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
63

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
64

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
65

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
66

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
67

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
68

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
69

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
7 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

70
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

71
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

72
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

73
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

74
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

75
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

76
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

77
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

78
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

79
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

8 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
80

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
81

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
82

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
83

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
84

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
85

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
86

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
87

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
88

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
89

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
90

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
91

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
92

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
94

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
95

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
96

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
97

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
98

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
99

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
M

an
ha

tta
n 

B
ea

ch
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

1 
- H

ea
dq

ua
rte

rs
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

M
an

ha
tta

n 
B

ea
ch

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
2 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

M
on

te
be

llo
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

1 
- H

ea
dq

ua
rte

rs
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

M
on

te
be

llo
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

2 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
M

on
te

be
llo

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
3 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Pa
sa

de
na

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
31

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Pa

sa
de

na
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

32
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Pa
sa

de
na

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
33

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Pa

sa
de

na
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

34
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Pa
sa

de
na

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
36

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Pa

sa
de

na
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

37
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Pa
sa

de
na

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
38

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Pa

sa
de

na
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

39
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

R
ed

on
do

 B
ea

ch
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

1 
- H

ea
dq

ua
rte

rs
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

R
ed

on
do

 B
ea

ch
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

2 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
R

ed
on

do
 B

ea
ch

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
3 

T
ab

le
 B

-1
. C

ou
nt

y 
C

ri
tic

al
 F

ac
ili

tie
s 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t /

 A
ge

nc
y 

Fa
ci

lit
y 

N
am

e 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Sa

n 
G

ab
rie

l F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
1 

- H
ea

dq
ua

rte
rs

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Sa

n 
G

ab
rie

l F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
2 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Sa
n 

M
ar

in
o 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Si
er

ra
 M

ad
re

 V
ol

un
te

er
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
So

ut
h 

Pa
sa

de
na

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Th
e 

C
ity

 o
f E

l S
eg

un
do

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
1 

- H
ea

dq
ua

rte
rs

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Th

e 
C

ity
 o

f E
l S

eg
un

do
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

2 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
To

rr
an

ce
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t F
ire

 S
ta

tio
n 

1 
- H

ea
dq

ua
rte

rs
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

To
rr

an
ce

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t F

ire
 S

ta
tio

n 
2 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

To
rr

an
ce

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t F

ire
 S

ta
tio

n 
3 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

To
rr

an
ce

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t F

ire
 S

ta
tio

n 
4 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

To
rr

an
ce

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t F

ire
 S

ta
tio

n 
5 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

To
rr

an
ce

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t F

ire
 S

ta
tio

n 
6 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

V
er

no
n 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

H
ea

lth
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

A
nt

el
op

e 
V

al
le

y 
H

ea
lth

 C
en

te
r  

H
ea

lth
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
el

lfl
ow

er
 H

ea
lth

 C
en

te
r 

H
ea

lth
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

C
en

tra
l P

ub
lic

 H
ea

lth
 C

en
te

r 
H

ea
lth

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
C

ur
tis

 R
. T

uc
ke

r H
ea

lth
 C

en
te

r 
H

ea
lth

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
D

ol
la

rh
id

e 
H

ea
lth

 C
en

te
r 

H
ea

lth
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Ea
st

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 H
ea

lth
 C

en
te

r 
H

ea
lth

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
Ea

st
 S

an
 G

ab
rie

l V
al

le
y 

H
ea

lth
 C

en
te

r 
H

ea
lth

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
Ed

w
ar

d 
R

. R
oy

ba
l C

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 H
el

at
h 

C
en

te
r 

H
ea

lth
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

El
 M

on
te

 C
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 H

ea
lth

 C
en

te
r 

H
ea

lth
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

G
le

nd
al

e 
H

ea
lth

 C
en

te
r 

H
ea

lth
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

H
. C

la
ud

e 
H

ud
so

n 
C

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 H
ea

lth
 C

en
te

r 
H

ea
lth

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
H

ar
bo

r-
U

C
LA

 M
ed

ic
al

 C
en

te
r  

H
ea

lth
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

H
ig

h 
D

es
er

t R
eg

io
na

l H
ea

lth
 C

en
te

r 
H

ea
lth

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
H

ub
er

t H
. H

um
ph

re
y 

C
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 H

ea
lth

 C
en

te
r 

H
ea

lth
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

La
 P

ue
nt

e 
H

ea
lth

 C
en

te
r 

H
ea

lth
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

LA
C

 +
 U

SC
 M

ed
ic

al
 C

en
te

r 
H

ea
lth

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
La

ke
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

om
m

un
ity

 C
lin

ic
 

H
ea

lth
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Li
ttl

er
oc

k 
C

om
m

un
ity

 C
lin

ic
 

H
ea

lth
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Lo
ng

 B
ea

ch
 C

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 H
ea

lth
 C

en
te

r 
H

ea
lth

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
M

ar
tin

 L
ut

he
r K

in
g,

 Jr
. O

ut
pa

tie
nt

 C
en

te
r 

H
ea

lth
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

M
id

 V
al

le
y 

C
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 H

ea
lth

 C
en

te
r 

H
ea

lth
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

O
liv

e 
V

ie
w

-U
C

LA
 M

ed
ic

al
 C

en
te

r 
H

ea
lth

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
R

an
ch

o 
Lo

s A
m

ig
os

 N
at

io
na

l R
eh

ab
ili

ta
tio

n 
C

en
te

r 
H

ea
lth

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
Sa

n 
Fe

rn
an

do
 H

ea
lth

 C
en

te
r 

H
ea

lth
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

So
ut

h 
V

al
le

y 
H

ea
lth

 C
en

te
r 

H
ea

lth
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

To
rr

an
ce

 H
ea

lth
 C

en
te

r 
H

ea
lth

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
V

au
gh

n 
Sc

ho
ol

 B
as

ed
 H

ea
lth

 C
en

te
r 

H
ea

lth
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

W
es

t V
al

le
y 

H
ea

lth
 C

en
te

r 
H

ea
lth

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
W

ilm
in

gt
on

 H
ea

lth
 C

en
te

r 
Li

br
ar

y 
A

 C
 B

ilb
re

w
 L

ib
ra

ry
 

Li
br

ar
y 

A
ct

on
 A

gu
a 

D
ul

ce
 L

ib
ra

ry
 

Li
br

ar
y 

A
go

ur
a 

H
ill

s L
ib

ra
ry

 
Li

br
ar

y 
A

lo
nd

ra
 L

ib
ra

ry
 

Li
br

ar
y 

A
ng

el
o 

M
. I

ac
ob

on
i L

ib
ra

ry
 

Li
br

ar
y 

A
nt

ho
ny

 Q
ui

nn
 L

ib
ra

ry
 

Li
br

ar
y 

A
rte

si
a 

Li
br

ar
y 

Li
br

ar
y 

A
va

lo
n 

Li
br

ar
y 

Li
br

ar
y 

B
al

dw
in

 P
ar

k 
Li

br
ar

y 
Li

br
ar

y 
B

el
l G

ar
de

ns
 L

ib
ra

ry
 

Li
br

ar
y 

B
el

l L
ib

ra
ry

 
Li

br
ar

y 
C

ar
so

n 
Li

br
ar

y 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



T
ab

le
 B

-1
. C

ou
nt

y 
C

ri
tic

al
 F

ac
ili

tie
s 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t /

 A
ge

nc
y 

Fa
ci

lit
y 

N
am

e 
Li

br
ar

y 
C

as
ta

ic
 L

ib
ra

ry
 

Li
br

ar
y 

C
ha

rte
r O

ak
 L

ib
ra

ry
 

Li
br

ar
y 

C
he

t H
ol

ifi
el

d 
Li

br
ar

y 
Li

br
ar

y 
C

ity
 T

er
ra

ce
 L

ib
ra

ry
 

Li
br

ar
y 

C
la

re
m

on
t H

el
en

 R
en

w
ic

k 
Li

br
ar

y 
Li

br
ar

y 
C

lif
to

n 
M

. B
ra

ke
ns

ie
k 

Li
br

ar
y 

Li
br

ar
y 

C
om

pt
on

 L
ib

ra
ry

 
Li

br
ar

y 
C

ud
ah

y 
Li

br
ar

y 
Li

br
ar

y 
C

ul
ve

r C
ity

 Ju
lia

n 
D

ix
on

 L
ib

ra
ry

 
Li

br
ar

y 
D

ia
m

on
d 

B
ar

 L
ib

ra
ry

 
Li

br
ar

y 
D

r. 
M

ar
tin

 L
ut

he
r K

in
g,

 Jr
. L

ib
ra

ry
 

Li
br

ar
y 

D
ua

rte
 L

ib
ra

ry
 

Li
br

ar
y 

Ea
st

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 L
ib

ra
ry

 
Li

br
ar

y 
Ea

st
 R

an
ch

o 
D

om
in

gu
ez

 L
ib

ra
ry

 
Li

br
ar

y 
El

 C
am

in
o 

R
ea

l L
ib

ra
ry

 
Li

br
ar

y 
El

 M
on

te
 L

ib
ra

ry
 

Li
br

ar
y 

Fl
or

en
ce

 E
xp

re
ss

 L
ib

ra
ry

 
Li

br
ar

y 
G

ar
de

na
 M

ay
m

e 
D

ea
r L

ib
ra

ry
 

Li
br

ar
y 

G
eo

rg
e 

N
ye

 Jr
. L

ib
ra

ry
 

Li
br

ar
y 

G
ra

ha
m

 L
ib

ra
ry

 
Li

br
ar

y 
H

ac
ie

nd
a 

H
ei

gh
ts

 L
ib

ra
ry

 
Li

br
ar

y 
H

aw
ai

ia
n 

G
ar

de
ns

 L
ib

ra
ry

 
Li

br
ar

y 
H

aw
th

or
ne

 L
ib

ra
ry

 
Li

br
ar

y 
H

er
m

os
a 

B
ea

ch
 L

ib
ra

ry
 

Li
br

ar
y 

H
ol

ly
da

le
 L

ib
ra

ry
 

Li
br

ar
y 

H
un

tin
gt

on
 P

ar
k 

Li
br

ar
y 

Li
br

ar
y 

La
 C

an
ad

a 
Fl

in
tri

dg
e 

Li
br

ar
y 

Li
br

ar
y 

La
 C

re
sc

en
ta

 L
ib

ra
ry

 
Li

br
ar

y 
La

 M
ira

da
 L

ib
ra

ry
 

Li
br

ar
y 

La
 P

ue
nt

e 
Li

br
ar

y 
Li

br
ar

y 
La

 V
er

ne
 L

ib
ra

ry
 

Li
br

ar
y 

La
ke

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 L
ib

ra
ry

 
Li

br
ar

y 
La

nc
as

te
r L

ib
ra

ry
 

Li
br

ar
y 

La
w

nd
al

e 
Li

br
ar

y 
Li

br
ar

y 
Le

la
nd

 R
. W

ea
ve

r L
ib

ra
ry

 
Li

br
ar

y 
Le

nn
ox

 L
ib

ra
ry

 
Li

br
ar

y 
Li

ttl
er

oc
k 

Li
br

ar
y 

Li
br

ar
y 

Li
ve

 O
ak

 L
ib

ra
ry

 
Li

br
ar

y 
Ll

oy
d 

Ta
be

r-
M

ar
in

a 
de

l R
ey

 L
ib

ra
ry

 
Li

br
ar

y 
Lo

m
ita

 L
ib

ra
ry

 
Li

br
ar

y 
Lo

s N
ie

to
s L

ib
ra

ry
 

Li
br

ar
y 

Ly
nw

oo
d 

Li
br

ar
y 

Li
br

ar
y 

M
al

ib
u 

Li
br

ar
y 

Li
br

ar
y 

M
an

ha
tta

n 
B

ea
ch

 L
ib

ra
ry

 
Li

br
ar

y 
M

as
ao

 W
. S

at
ow

 L
ib

ra
ry

 
Li

br
ar

y 
M

ay
w

oo
d 

C
es

ar
 C

ha
ve

z 
Li

br
ar

y 
Li

br
ar

y 
M

on
te

be
llo

 L
ib

ra
ry

 
Li

br
ar

y 
N

or
w

al
k 

Li
br

ar
y 

Li
br

ar
y 

N
or

w
oo

d 
Li

br
ar

y 
Li

br
ar

y 
Pa

ra
m

ou
nt

 L
ib

ra
ry

 
Li

br
ar

y 
Pi

co
 R

iv
er

a 
Li

br
ar

y 
Li

br
ar

y 
Q

ua
rtz

 H
ill

 L
ib

ra
ry

 
Li

br
ar

y 
R

iv
er

a 
Li

br
ar

y 
Li

br
ar

y 
R

os
em

ea
d 

Li
br

ar
y 

Li
br

ar
y 

R
ow

la
nd

 H
ei

gh
ts

 L
ib

ra
ry

 

T
ab

le
 B

-1
. C

ou
nt

y 
C

ri
tic

al
 F

ac
ili

tie
s 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t /

 A
ge

nc
y 

Fa
ci

lit
y 

N
am

e 
Li

br
ar

y 
Sa

n 
D

im
as

 L
ib

ra
ry

 
Li

br
ar

y 
Sa

n 
Fe

rn
an

do
 L

ib
ra

ry
 

Li
br

ar
y 

Sa
n 

G
ab

rie
l L

ib
ra

ry
 

Li
br

ar
y 

So
re

ns
en

 L
ib

ra
ry

 
Li

br
ar

y 
So

ut
h 

El
 M

on
te

 L
ib

ra
ry

 
Li

br
ar

y 
So

ut
h 

W
hi

tti
er

 L
ib

ra
ry

 
Li

br
ar

y 
St

ev
en

so
n 

R
an

ch
 L

ib
ra

ry
 

Li
br

ar
y 

Su
nk

is
t L

ib
ra

ry
 

Li
br

ar
y 

Te
m

pl
e 

C
ity

 L
ib

ra
ry

 
Li

br
ar

y 
To

pa
ng

a 
Li

br
ar

y 
Li

br
ar

y 
V

ie
w

 P
ar

k 
B

eb
e 

M
oo

re
 C

am
pb

el
l L

ib
ra

ry
 

Li
br

ar
y 

W
al

nu
t L

ib
ra

ry
 

Li
br

ar
y 

W
es

t C
ov

in
a 

Li
br

ar
y 

Li
br

ar
y 

W
es

t H
ol

ly
w

oo
d 

Li
br

ar
y 

Li
br

ar
y 

W
es

tla
ke

 V
ill

ag
e 

Li
br

ar
y 

Li
br

ar
y 

W
ill

ow
br

oo
k 

Li
br

ar
y 

Li
br

ar
y 

W
is

eb
ur

n 
Li

br
ar

y 
Li

br
ar

y 
W

oo
dc

re
st

 L
ib

ra
ry

 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

M
us

eu
m

 o
f A

rts
 &

 
M

us
eu

m
 o

f N
at

ur
al

 H
is

to
ry

 
La

 B
re

a 
Ta

rp
its

 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

M
us

eu
m

 o
f A

rts
 &

 
M

us
eu

m
 o

f N
at

ur
al

 H
is

to
ry

 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

M
us

eu
m

 o
f A

rt 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

M
us

eu
m

 o
f A

rts
 &

 
M

us
eu

m
 o

f N
at

ur
al

 H
is

to
ry

 
N

at
ur

al
 H

is
to

ry
 M

us
eu

m
 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
M

us
eu

m
 o

f A
rts

 &
 

M
us

eu
m

 o
f N

at
ur

al
 H

is
to

ry
 

W
ill

ia
m

 S
. H

ar
t M

us
eu

m
 

O
ffi

ce
 o

f E
du

ca
tio

n 
A

ffl
er

ba
ug

h-
Pa

ig
e 

C
am

p 
O

ffi
ce

 o
f E

du
ca

tio
n 

A
lm

a 
Fu

er
te

 P
ub

lic
 

O
ffi

ce
 o

f E
du

ca
tio

n 
A

ni
m

o 
C

ity
 o

f C
ha

m
pi

on
s C

ha
rte

r H
ig

h 
O

ffi
ce

 o
f E

du
ca

tio
n 

A
sp

ire
 A

nt
on

io
 M

ar
ia

 L
ug

o 
A

ca
de

m
y 

O
ffi

ce
 o

f E
du

ca
tio

n 
A

sp
ire

 O
lli

n 
U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 P
re

pa
ra

to
ry

 A
ca

de
m

y 
O

ffi
ce

 o
f E

du
ca

tio
n 

C
en

tra
l J

uv
en

ile
 H

al
l 

O
ffi

ce
 o

f E
du

ca
tio

n 
D

a 
V

in
ci

 R
IS

E 
H

ig
h 

O
ffi

ce
 o

f E
du

ca
tio

n 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l C

ha
rte

r M
id

dl
e 

O
ffi

ce
 o

f E
du

ca
tio

n 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l C

ha
rte

r M
id

dl
e 

- I
ng

le
w

oo
d 

O
ffi

ce
 o

f E
du

ca
tio

n 
In

te
lle

ct
ua

l V
irt

ue
s A

ca
de

m
y 

O
ffi

ce
 o

f E
du

ca
tio

n 
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l P

ol
yt

ec
hn

ic
 H

ig
h 

O
ffi

ce
 o

f E
du

ca
tio

n 
Ja

rd
in

 d
e 

la
 In

fa
nc

ia
 

O
ffi

ce
 o

f E
du

ca
tio

n 
K

irb
y,

 D
or

ot
hy

 C
am

p 
O

ffi
ce

 o
f E

du
ca

tio
n 

L.
A

. C
ou

nt
y 

H
ig

h 
Sc

ho
ol

 fo
r t

he
 A

rts
 

O
ffi

ce
 o

f E
du

ca
tio

n 
LA

's 
Pr

om
is

e 
C

ha
rte

r H
ig

h 
#1

 
O

ffi
ce

 o
f E

du
ca

tio
n 

LA
's 

Pr
om

is
e 

C
ha

rte
r M

id
dl

e 
#1

 
O

ffi
ce

 o
f E

du
ca

tio
n 

La
sh

on
 A

ca
de

m
y 

O
ffi

ce
 o

f E
du

ca
tio

n 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

du
ca

tio
n 

O
ffi

ce
 o

f E
du

ca
tio

n 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l C
ha

rte
r H

ig
h 

O
ffi

ce
 o

f E
du

ca
tio

n 
Lo

s P
ad

rin
os

 Ju
ve

ni
le

 H
al

l 
O

ffi
ce

 o
f E

du
ca

tio
n 

M
ag

no
lia

 S
ci

en
ce

 A
ca

de
m

y 
O

ffi
ce

 o
f E

du
ca

tio
n 

M
ag

no
lia

 S
ci

en
ce

 A
ca

de
m

y 
2 

O
ffi

ce
 o

f E
du

ca
tio

n 
M

ag
no

lia
 S

ci
en

ce
 A

ca
de

m
y 

3 
O

ffi
ce

 o
f E

du
ca

tio
n 

M
ag

no
lia

 S
ci

en
ce

 A
ca

de
m

y 
5 

O
ffi

ce
 o

f E
du

ca
tio

n 
M

cN
ai

r C
am

p 
O

ffi
ce

 o
f E

du
ca

tio
n 

N
id

or
f, 

B
ar

ry
 J.

 
O

ffi
ce

 o
f E

du
ca

tio
n 

N
or

th
 V

al
le

y 
M

ili
ta

ry
 In

st
itu

te
 C

ol
le

ge
 P

re
pa

ra
to

ry
 A

ca
de

m
y 

O
ffi

ce
 o

f E
du

ca
tio

n 
O

dy
ss

ey
 C

ha
rte

r 
O

ffi
ce

 o
f E

du
ca

tio
n 

O
ni

zu
ka

 C
am

p 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



T
ab

le
 B

-1
. C

ou
nt

y 
C

ri
tic

al
 F

ac
ili

tie
s 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t /

 A
ge

nc
y 

Fa
ci

lit
y 

N
am

e 
O

ffi
ce

 o
f E

du
ca

tio
n 

O
pt

im
is

t C
ha

rte
r 

O
ffi

ce
 o

f E
du

ca
tio

n 
Ph

oe
ni

x 
A

ca
de

m
y 

R
es

id
en

tia
l E

du
ca

tio
n 

C
en

te
r 

O
ffi

ce
 o

f E
du

ca
tio

n 
R

en
ai

ss
an

ce
 C

ou
nt

y 
C

om
m

un
ity

 
O

ffi
ce

 o
f E

du
ca

tio
n 

R
oa

d 
to

 S
uc

ce
ss

 A
ca

de
m

y 
at

 C
am

pu
s K

ilp
at

ric
k 

O
ffi

ce
 o

f E
du

ca
tio

n 
R

oc
ke

y,
 G

le
nn

 C
am

p 
O

ffi
ce

 o
f E

du
ca

tio
n 

Sc
ot

t, 
Jo

se
ph

 C
am

p 
O

ffi
ce

 o
f E

du
ca

tio
n 

So
le

il 
A

ca
de

m
y 

C
ha

rte
r 

O
ffi

ce
 o

f E
du

ca
tio

n 
V

al
ie

nt
e 

Co
lle

ge
 P

re
pa

ra
to

ry
 C

ha
rte

r 
O

th
er

 (O
ffi

ce
) 

10
00

 S
. F

re
m

on
t A

ve
. 

O
th

er
 (O

ffi
ce

) 
10

55
 W

ils
hi

re
 B

lv
d.

 
O

th
er

 (O
ffi

ce
) 

11
00

 N
or

th
 E

as
te

rn
 A

ve
. 

O
th

er
 (O

ffi
ce

) 
11

04
 N

. M
is

si
on

 R
d.

 
O

th
er

 (O
ffi

ce
) 

12
30

0 
Lo

w
er

 A
zu

sa
 R

d.
 

O
th

er
 (O

ffi
ce

) 
12

40
0 

Im
pe

ria
l H

ig
hw

ay
 

O
th

er
 (O

ffi
ce

) 
12

86
0 

C
ro

ss
ro

ad
s P

ar
kw

ay
 S

ou
th

 
O

th
er

 (O
ffi

ce
) 

13
20

 N
or

th
 E

as
te

rn
 A

ve
. 

O
th

er
 (O

ffi
ce

) 
13

83
7 

Fi
ji 

W
ay

 
O

th
er

 (O
ffi

ce
) 

18
16

 S
. F

ig
ue

ro
a 

O
th

er
 (O

ffi
ce

) 
21

0 
W

. T
em

pl
e 

St
. 

O
th

er
 (O

ffi
ce

) 
21

1 
W

. T
em

pl
e 

St
. 

O
th

er
 (O

ffi
ce

) 
31

3 
N

 F
ig

ue
ro

a 
St

. 
O

th
er

 (O
ffi

ce
) 

31
75

 W
es

t S
ix

th
 S

t. 
O

th
er

 (O
ffi

ce
) 

32
0 

W
es

t T
em

pl
e 

St
. 

O
th

er
 (O

ffi
ce

) 
42

5 
Sh

at
to

 P
la

ce
 

O
th

er
 (O

ffi
ce

) 
55

0 
So

ut
h 

V
er

m
on

t A
ve

. 
O

th
er

 (O
ffi

ce
) 

57
70

 S
. E

as
te

rn
 A

ve
. 

O
th

er
 (O

ffi
ce

) 
58

98
 C

he
rr

y 
A

ve
. 

O
th

er
 (O

ffi
ce

) 
59

05
 W

ils
hi

re
 B

lv
d.

 
O

th
er

 (O
ffi

ce
) 

70
0 

W
. M

ai
n 

St
. 

O
th

er
 (O

ffi
ce

) 
74

00
 E

as
t I

m
pe

ria
l H

ig
hw

ay
 

O
th

er
 (O

ffi
ce

) 
90

0 
So

ut
h 

Fr
em

on
t A

ve
. 

O
th

er
 (O

ffi
ce

) 
K

en
ne

th
 H

ah
n 

H
al

l o
f A

dm
in

is
tra

tio
n 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
A

ct
on

 P
ar

k 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

A
dv

en
tu

re
 P

ar
k 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
A

dv
en

tu
re

 P
ar

k 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

A
lle

n 
J. 

M
ar

tin
 P

ar
k 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
A

lo
nd

ra
 C

om
m

un
ity

 R
eg

io
na

l P
ar

k 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

A
lo

nd
ra

 C
om

m
un

ity
 R

eg
io

na
l P

ar
k 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
A

m
el

ia
 M

ay
be

rr
y 

Pa
rk

 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

A
m

el
ia

 M
ay

be
rr

y 
Pa

rk
 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
A

m
ig

o 
Pa

rk
 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
A

rc
ad

ia
 C

om
m

un
ity

 R
eg

io
na

l P
ar

k 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

A
rc

ad
ia

 C
om

m
un

ity
 R

eg
io

na
l P

ar
k 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
A

th
en

s P
ar

k 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

A
th

en
s P

ar
k 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
B

as
se

tt 
Pa

rk
 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
B

as
se

tt 
Pa

rk
 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
B

as
se

tt 
Pa

rk
 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
B

el
ve

de
re

 C
om

m
un

ity
 R

eg
io

na
l P

ar
k 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
B

el
ve

de
re

 C
om

m
un

ity
 R

eg
io

na
l P

ar
k 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
B

od
ge

r P
ar

k 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

C
ar

ol
yn

 R
os

as
 P

ar
k 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
C

as
ta

ic
 R

eg
io

na
l S

po
rts

 C
om

pl
ex

 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

C
as

ta
ic

 R
eg

io
na

l S
po

rts
 C

om
pl

ex
 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
C

ha
rle

s S
. F

ar
ns

w
or

th
 P

ar
k 

T
ab

le
 B

-1
. C

ou
nt

y 
C

ri
tic

al
 F

ac
ili

tie
s 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t /

 A
ge

nc
y 

Fa
ci

lit
y 

N
am

e 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

C
ha

rle
s S

. F
ar

ns
w

or
th

 P
ar

k 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

C
ha

rle
s S

. F
ar

ns
w

or
th

 P
ar

k 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

C
ha

rle
s S

. F
ar

ns
w

or
th

 P
ar

k 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

C
ha

rte
r O

ak
 P

ar
k 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
C

ity
 T

er
ra

ce
 P

ar
k 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
C

ity
 T

er
ra

ce
 P

ar
k 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
C

ol
. L

eo
n 

H
. W

as
hi

ng
to

n 
Pa

rk
 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
C

ol
. L

eo
n 

H
. W

as
hi

ng
to

n 
Pa

rk
 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
C

re
sc

en
ta

 V
al

le
y 

C
om

m
un

ity
 R

eg
io

na
l P

ar
k 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
C

re
sc

en
ta

 V
al

le
y 

C
om

m
un

ity
 R

eg
io

na
l P

ar
k 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
D

al
to

n 
Pa

rk
 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
D

el
 A

ire
 P

ar
k 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
D

el
 A

ire
 P

ar
k 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
D

ev
il'

s P
un

ch
bo

w
l N

at
ur

al
 A

re
a 

an
d 

N
at

ur
e 

C
en

te
r 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
D

ex
te

r P
ar

k 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

D
ex

te
r P

ar
k 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
D

on
 K

na
be

 C
om

m
un

ity
 R

eg
io

na
l P

ar
k 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
D

on
 K

na
be

 C
om

m
un

ity
 R

eg
io

na
l P

ar
k 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
D

on
 K

na
be

 C
om

m
un

ity
 R

eg
io

na
l P

ar
k 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
Ea

st
 R

an
ch

o 
D

om
in

gu
ez

 P
ar

k 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

Ea
st

 R
an

ch
o 

D
om

in
gu

ez
 P

ar
k 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
Ea

st
 R

an
ch

o 
D

om
in

gu
ez

 P
ar

k 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

El
 C

ar
is

o 
C

om
m

un
ity

 R
eg

io
na

l P
ar

k 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

El
 C

ar
is

o 
C

om
m

un
ity

 R
eg

io
na

l P
ar

k 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

El
 C

ar
is

o 
C

om
m

un
ity

 R
eg

io
na

l P
ar

k 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

En
te

rp
ris

e 
Pa

rk
 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
Eu

ge
ne

 A
. O

br
eg

on
 P

ar
k 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
Eu

ge
ne

 A
. O

br
eg

on
 P

ar
k 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
Fr

an
kl

in
 D

. R
oo

se
ve

lt 
Pa

rk
 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
Fr

an
kl

in
 D

. R
oo

se
ve

lt 
Pa

rk
 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
G

eo
rg

e 
La

ne
 P

ar
k 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
G

eo
rg

e 
La

ne
 P

ar
k 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
G

eo
rg

e 
W

as
hi

ng
to

n 
C

ar
ve

r P
ar

k 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

H
ac

ie
nd

a 
H

ei
gh

ts
 C

om
m

un
ity

 a
nd

 R
ec

 C
en

te
r 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
H

ac
ie

nd
a 

H
ei

gh
ts

 C
om

m
un

ity
 a

nd
 R

ec
 C

en
te

r 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

H
ac

ie
nd

a 
H

ei
gh

ts
 C

om
m

un
ity

 a
nd

 R
ec

 C
en

te
r 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
H

el
en

 K
el

le
r P

ar
k 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
H

ol
ly

w
oo

d 
B

ow
l 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
Ja

ck
ie

 R
ob

in
so

n 
Pa

rk
 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
Ja

ck
ie

 R
ob

in
so

n 
Pa

rk
 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
Je

ss
e 

O
w

en
s C

om
m

un
ity

 R
eg

io
na

l P
ar

k 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

Je
ss

e 
O

w
en

s C
om

m
un

ity
 R

eg
io

na
l P

ar
k 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
Jo

hn
 A

ns
on

 F
or

d 
A

m
ph

ith
ea

tre
 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
Jo

hn
 A

ns
on

 F
or

d 
A

m
ph

ith
ea

tre
 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
K

en
ne

th
 H

ah
n 

St
at

e 
R

ec
re

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
La

de
ra

 P
ar

k 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

La
de

ra
 P

ar
k 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
La

de
ra

 P
ar

k 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

Le
nn

ox
 P

ar
k 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
Le

nn
ox

 P
ar

k 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

Le
nn

ox
 P

ar
k 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
Lo

m
a 

A
lta

 P
ar

k 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

Lo
m

a 
A

lta
 P

ar
k 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

A
rb

or
et

um
 a

nd
 B

ot
an

ic
 G

ar
de

n 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

M
an

za
ni

ta
 P

ar
k 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



T
ab

le
 B

-1
. C

ou
nt

y 
C

ri
tic

al
 F

ac
ili

tie
s 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t /

 A
ge

nc
y 

Fa
ci

lit
y 

N
am

e 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

M
ar

y 
M

. B
et

hu
ne

 P
ar

k 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

M
ar

y 
M

. B
et

hu
ne

 P
ar

k 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

M
on

a 
Pa

rk
 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
M

on
a 

Pa
rk

 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

Pa
m

el
a 

C
ou

nt
y 

Pa
rk

 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

Pa
m

el
a 

C
ou

nt
y 

Pa
rk

 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

Pa
th

fin
de

r C
om

m
un

ity
 R

eg
io

na
l P

ar
k 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
Pe

ar
bl

os
so

m
 C

ou
nt

y 
Pa

rk
 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
Pe

te
r F

 S
ch

ab
ar

um
 R

eg
io

na
l C

ou
nt

y 
Pa

rk
 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
R

im
gr

ov
e 

Pa
rk

 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

R
ow

la
nd

 H
ei

gh
ts

 P
ar

k 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

R
oy

 C
am

pa
ne

lla
 P

ar
k 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
R

ub
en

 F
 S

al
az

ar
 P

ar
k 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
R

ub
en

 F
 S

al
az

ar
 P

ar
k 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
R

ub
en

 F
 S

al
az

ar
 P

ar
k 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
Sa

n 
A

ng
el

o 
Pa

rk
 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
Sa

n 
Fe

rn
an

do
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
Pa

rk
 a

nd
 A

qu
at

ic
 C

en
te

r 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

Sa
yb

ro
ok

 P
ar

k 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

So
re

ns
en

 P
ar

k 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

So
ut

h 
Co

as
t B

ot
an

ic
 G

ar
de

n 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

St
ep

he
n 

So
re

ns
en

 P
ar

k 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

Su
ns

hi
ne

 P
ar

k 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

Te
d 

W
at

ki
ns

 M
em

or
ia

l P
ar

k 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

Te
d 

W
at

ki
ns

 M
em

or
ia

l P
ar

k 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

Te
so

ro
 A

do
be

 H
is

to
ric

 P
ar

k 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

V
al

 V
er

de
 C

om
m

un
ity

 R
eg

io
na

l P
ar

k 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

V
al

 V
er

de
 C

om
m

un
ity

 R
eg

io
na

l P
ar

k 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

V
al

le
yd

al
e 

Pa
rk

 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

V
al

le
yd

al
e 

Pa
rk

 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

V
as

qu
ez

 R
oc

ks
 N

at
ur

al
 A

re
a 

an
d 

N
at

ur
e 

C
en

te
r 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
V

et
er

an
s M

em
or

ia
l C

om
m

un
ity

 R
eg

io
na

l P
ar

k 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

V
ic

to
ria

 C
om

m
un

ity
 R

eg
io

na
l P

ar
k 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
V

ic
to

ria
 C

om
m

un
ity

 R
eg

io
na

l P
ar

k 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

W
al

nu
t N

at
ur

e 
Pa

rk
 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
W

hi
tti

er
 N

ar
ro

w
s R

ec
re

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

Pa
rk

s &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
W

ill
ia

m
 S

. H
ar

t R
eg

io
na

l P
ar

k 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

W
ill

ia
m

 S
te

in
m

et
z 

Pa
rk

 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

W
ill

ia
m

 S
te

in
m

et
z 

Pa
rk

 
Pa

rk
s &

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

W
ill

ia
m

 S
te

in
m

et
z 

Pa
rk

 
Pu

bl
ic

 H
ea

lth
 

A
nt

el
op

e 
V

al
le

y 
H

ea
lth

 C
en

te
r  

Pu
bl

ic
 H

ea
lth

 
C

en
tra

l P
ub

lic
 H

ea
lth

 C
en

te
r 

Pu
bl

ic
 H

ea
lth

 
C

ur
tis

 R
. T

uc
ke

r H
ea

lth
 C

en
te

r 
Pu

bl
ic

 H
ea

lth
 

G
le

nd
al

e 
H

ea
lth

 C
en

te
r 

Pu
bl

ic
 H

ea
lth

 
H

ol
ly

w
oo

d/
W

ils
hi

re
 P

ub
lic

 H
ea

lth
 C

en
te

r 
Pu

bl
ic

 H
ea

lth
 

M
ar

tin
 L

ut
he

r K
in

g,
 Jr

. C
en

te
r f

or
 P

ub
lic

 H
ea

lth
 

Pu
bl

ic
 H

ea
lth

 
M

on
ro

vi
a 

Pu
bl

ic
 H

ea
lth

 C
en

te
r 

Pu
bl

ic
 H

ea
lth

 
N

or
th

 H
ol

ly
w

oo
d 

Pu
bl

ic
 H

ea
lth

 C
en

te
r 

Pu
bl

ic
 H

ea
lth

 
Pa

co
im

a 
Pu

bl
ic

 H
ea

lth
 C

en
te

r 
Pu

bl
ic

 H
ea

lth
 

Po
m

on
a 

Pu
bl

ic
 H

ea
lth

 C
en

te
r 

Pu
bl

ic
 H

ea
lth

 
R

ut
h-

Te
m

pl
e 

Pu
bl

ic
 H

ea
lth

 C
en

te
r 

Pu
bl

ic
 H

ea
lth

 
Si

m
m

s/
M

an
n 

H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 W

el
ln

es
s C

en
te

r 
Pu

bl
ic

 H
ea

lth
 

To
rr

an
ce

 P
ub

lic
 H

ea
lth

 C
en

te
r 

Pu
bl

ic
 H

ea
lth

 
W

hi
tti

er
 P

ub
lic

 H
ea

lth
 C

en
te

r 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

B
ig

 D
al

to
n 

D
am

 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

B
ig

 T
uj

un
ga

 D
am

 

T
ab

le
 B

-1
. C

ou
nt

y 
C

ri
tic

al
 F

ac
ili

tie
s 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t /

 A
ge

nc
y 

Fa
ci

lit
y 

N
am

e 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

B
ra

ck
et

t F
ie

ld
 A

irp
or

t 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

C
og

sw
el

l D
am

 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

C
om

pt
on

/W
oo

dl
ey

 A
irp

or
t 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
D

ev
il'

s G
at

e 
D

am
 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
Ea

to
n 

W
as

h 
D

am
 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
G

en
er

al
 W

m
. J

. F
ox

 A
irf

ie
ld

 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

Li
ve

 O
ak

 D
am

 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

M
or

ris
 D

am
 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
Pa

co
im

a 
D

am
 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
Pu

dd
in

gs
to

ne
 D

am
 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
Pu

dd
in

gs
to

ne
 D

iv
er

si
on

 D
am

 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 H

ea
dq

ua
rte

rs
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 IT
D

 –
 M

ou
nt

 W
ils

on
 R

ad
io

 A
nt

en
na

 T
ow

er
 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 IT
D

 –
 M

ou
nt

 W
ils

on
 R

ad
io

 F
ac

ili
ty

 B
ld

g.
 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 O
SD

 - 
Ea

to
n 

Y
ar

d 
– 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 O
ffi

ce
 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 R
M

D
 –

 5
18

-B
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 Y

ar
d 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 R
M

D
 –

 B
al

dw
in

 P
ar

k 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 Y

ar
d 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 R
M

D
 - 

D
iv

 4
46

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 Y
ar

d 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 R

M
D

 –
 D

iv
. #

11
6 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 Y
ar

d 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 R

M
D

 –
 D

iv
. #

14
1/

24
1 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 Y
ar

d 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 R

M
D

 –
 D

iv
. #

14
2 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 Y
ar

d 
 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 R
M

D
 –

 D
iv

. #
23

2 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 Y

ar
d 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 R
M

D
 –

 D
iv

. #
33

6 
M

ai
nt

. Y
d.

  
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 R

M
D

 –
 D

iv
. #

33
9/

53
9 

A
go

ur
a 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 Y
ar

d 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 R

M
D

 –
 D

iv
. #

41
7 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 Y
ar

d 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 R

M
D

 –
 D

iv
. #

44
6 

Su
b 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 Y
ar

d 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 R

M
D

 –
 D

iv
. #

51
8 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 Y
ar

d 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 R

M
D

 –
 D

iv
. #

51
9 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 Y
ar

d 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 R

M
D

 –
 D

iv
. #

52
3 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 Y
ar

d 
 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 R
M

D
 –

 D
iv

. #
52

4 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 Y

ar
d 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 R
M

D
 –

 D
iv

. #
52

6 
M

ai
nt

. Y
d.

  
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 R

M
D

 –
 D

iv
. #

55
1 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 Y
ar

d 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 R

M
D

 –
 D

iv
. #

55
5 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 Y
ar

d 
 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 R
M

D
 –

 D
iv

. #
55

8 
M

ai
nt

. Y
ar

d 
 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 R
M

D
 –

 D
iv

. #
55

8a
 Ja

ck
so

n 
La

ke
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 Y

d.
 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 R
M

D
 –

 D
iv

. #
55

9b
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 Y

ar
d 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 R
M

D
 - 

Lo
w

er
 C

en
tra

l Y
ar

d 
– 

D
iv

is
io

n 
A

dm
in

is
tra

tio
n 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 R
M

D
 –

 M
ai

nt
. D

is
tri

ct
 3

 Y
ar

d 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 R

M
D

 –
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 D

is
tri

ct
 N

o.
4 

Y
ar

d 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 R

M
D

 –
 P

al
m

da
le

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 D
is

t. 
N

o.
 5

 B
ld

g.
 Y

ar
d 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 R
M

D
 - 

U
pp

er
 C

en
tra

l Y
ar

d 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 R

M
D

 –
 V

an
 P

el
t B

rid
ge

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 Y
ar

d 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 S

M
D

 - 
13

2N
D

 S
tre

et
 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 S
M

D
 - 

21
3T

H
 S

tre
et

 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 S

M
D

 - 
A

G
A

V
E 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 S
M

D
 - 

B
al

fo
ur

 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 S

M
D

 - 
B

ra
dh

ur
st 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 S
M

D
 - 

B
ro

ad
w

ay
 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 S
M

D
 - 

C
A

PA
LL

ER
O

 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 S

M
D

 - 
C

en
tin

el
a 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 S
M

D
 –

 C
en

tra
l Y

ar
d 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 S
M

D
 - 

C
om

m
er

ce
 C

en
te

r D
riv

e 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 S

M
D

 - 
D

av
id

s R
oa

d 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 S

M
D

 –
 E

as
t Y

ar
d 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 S
M

D
 - 

H
ea

th
er

fie
ld

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



T
ab

le
 B

-1
. C

ou
nt

y 
C

ri
tic

al
 F

ac
ili

tie
s 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t /

 A
ge

nc
y 

Fa
ci

lit
y 

N
am

e 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 S

M
D

 –
 L

ak
e 

H
ug

he
s 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 S
M

D
 - 

La
ke

 H
ug

he
s -

 N
ew

va
le

 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 S

M
D

 - 
La

ke
 H

ug
he

s -
 T

ra
il 

K
 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 S
M

D
 - 

La
w

nd
al

e 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 S

M
D

 - 
LO

W
R

ID
G

E 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 S

M
D

 –
 M

al
ib

u 
M

es
a 

W
W

TP
 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 S
M

D
 –

 M
al

ib
u 

TP
 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 S
M

D
 - 

M
ar

in
a 

D
el

 R
ey

 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 S

M
D

 - 
M

ay
br

oo
k 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 S
M

D
 - 

M
us

ca
te

l 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 S

M
D

 –
 N

or
th

 Y
ar

d 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 S

M
D

 - 
Pa

in
te

r 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 S

M
D

 –
 S

ou
th

 Y
ar

d 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 S

M
D

 - 
Su

rre
y 

D
riv

e 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 S

M
D

 - 
Tr

an
ca

s W
W

TP
 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 S
M

D
 - 

TY
LE

R
 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 S
M

D
 - 

U
lm

us
 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 S
M

D
 - 

V
ie

w
rid

ge
 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 - 
12

0t
h 

St
. P

um
p 

St
at

io
n 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 - 
17

th
 S

t P
um

p 
St

at
io

n 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 –

 8
3r

d 
St

. M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 Y
ar

d 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 - 

A
la

m
ed

a 
St

re
et

 3
B

 P
um

p 
St

at
io

n 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 - 

A
la

m
ed

a 
St

re
et

 3
C

 P
um

p 
St

at
io

n 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 - 

A
la

m
ito

s B
ay

 P
um

p 
St

at
io

n 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 –

 A
la

m
ito

s M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 Y
ar

d 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 - 

A
lo

nd
ra

 P
um

p 
St

at
io

n 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 - 

A
na

he
im

 S
t. 

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 - 

A
pp

ia
n 

W
ay

 P
um

p 
St

at
io

n 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 - 

A
re

na
 P

um
p 

St
at

io
n 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 - 
A

va
lo

n 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 - 
B

el
m

on
t P

um
p 

St
at

io
n 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 - 
B

oo
ne

 O
liv

e 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 - 
C

en
tu

ry
 F

rw
y 

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 - 

C
er

rit
os

 P
um

p 
St

at
io

n 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 - 

C
la

re
tta

 P
um

p 
St

at
io

n 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 - 

C
om

pt
on

 C
re

ek
 P

um
p 

St
at

io
n 

#1
 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 - 
C

om
pt

on
 C

re
ek

 P
um

p 
St

at
io

n 
#2

 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 - 

C
or

do
va

 W
al

k 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 - 
D

om
in

ge
r P

um
p 

St
at

io
n 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 - 
D

om
in

gu
ez

 P
um

p 
St

at
io

n 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 - 

D
or

is
 P

um
p 

St
at

io
n 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 - 
Ea

st
 T

ol
ed

o 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 –
 E

at
on

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 Y
ar

d 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 - 

El
 D

or
ad

o 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 - 
El

 S
eg

un
do

 P
um

p 
St

at
io

n 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 –

 E
l S

eg
un

do
 Y

ar
d 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 - 
El

ec
tri

c 
A

ve
 P

um
p 

St
at

io
n 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 - 
G

ar
ne

t A
ve

nu
e 

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 - 

H
am

ilt
on

 B
ow

l S
ou

th
 P

um
p 

St
at

io
n 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 - 
H

am
ilt

on
 B

ow
l W

es
t P

um
p 

St
at

io
n 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 - 
H

ill
 S

t. 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 –
 Im

pe
ria

l Y
ar

d 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 - 

Jo
hn

so
n 

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 - 

La
ke

w
oo

d 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 - 
Le

nn
ox

 B
lv

d 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

T
ab

le
 B

-1
. C

ou
nt

y 
C

ri
tic

al
 F

ac
ili

tie
s 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t /

 A
ge

nc
y 

Fa
ci

lit
y 

N
am

e 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 –

 L
on

gd
en

 Y
ar

d 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 - 

Lo
s A

lto
s P

um
p 

St
at

io
n 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 - 
Ly

nw
oo

d 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 - 
M

an
ha

tta
n 

B
ea

ch
 P

um
p 

St
at

io
n 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 - 
M

ar
ke

t S
t. 

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 - 

N
ap

le
s P

um
p 

St
at

io
n 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 - 
O

xf
or

d 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 - 
Pa

ra
m

ou
nt

 P
um

p 
St

at
io

n 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 –

 P
ic

ke
ns

 Y
ar

d 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 - 

R
ed

on
do

 B
ea

ch
 B

lv
d 

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 –

 R
ed

on
do

 Y
ar

d 
O

ffi
ce

 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 –

 R
io

 H
on

do
 Y

ar
d 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 –
 R

iv
er

vi
ew

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 Y
ar

d 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 –

 R
ub

io
 Y

ar
d 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 –
 S

an
 D

im
as

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 Y
ar

d 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 –

 S
an

ta
 C

la
ra

 F
lo

od
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 Y

ar
d 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 –
 S

at
ic

oy
 Y

ar
d 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 - 
Se

as
id

e 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 - 
W

al
te

ria
 L

ak
e 

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 - 

W
es

t L
on

g 
B

ea
ch

 P
um

p 
St

at
io

n 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 - 

W
es

t N
ea

po
lit

an
 P

um
p 

St
at

io
n 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 - 
W

es
t T

ol
ed

o 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 - 
W

ilm
in

gt
on

 U
ni

t 2
 P

um
p 

St
at

io
n 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 W
W

D
 - 

11
6t

h 
st

re
et

 p
um

p 
st

at
io

n 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 W

W
D

 - 
11

6t
h 

st
re

et
 T

an
k 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 W
W

D
 - 

16
8t

h 
an

d 
G

 P
um

p 
st

at
io

n 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 W

W
D

 - 
27

 T
an

k 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 W

W
D

 - 
37

-1
 W

el
l 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 W
W

D
 - 

37
-3

 W
el

l 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 W

W
D

 - 
37

-4
 W

el
l 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 W
W

D
 - 

39
 T

an
k 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 W
W

D
 - 

A
do

be
 T

an
k 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 W
W

D
 - 

A
na

ve
rd

e 
Ta

nk
s a

nd
 p

um
p 

st
at

io
n 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 W
W

D
 - 

B
ev

 m
ar

tin
 ta

nk
 a

nd
 P

um
p 

St
at

io
n 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 W
W

D
 - 

B
lu

e 
R

oc
k 

Ta
nk

 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 W

W
D

 - 
B

ut
te

’s
 T

an
k 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 W
W

D
 - 

C
ity

 R
an

ch
 T

an
ks

 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 W

W
D

 - 
C

ro
w

n 
V

al
le

y 
Pu

m
p 

st
at

io
n 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 W
W

D
 - 

C
uy

am
a 

Ta
nk

 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 W

W
D

 - 
Ft

. T
ej

on
 T

an
k 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 W
W

D
 - 

H
as

le
y 

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 W

W
D

 - 
H

as
le

y 
Ta

nk
 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 W
W

D
 - 

Jo
sh

ua
 R

an
ch

 T
an

k 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 W

W
D

 - 
K

oh
l’s

 ta
nk

 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 W

W
D

 - 
Lo

s V
al

le
s P

um
p 

st
at

io
n 

an
d 

W
el

l 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 W

W
D

 - 
M

 &
 7

th
 w

es
t T

an
k 

si
te

 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 W

W
D

 - 
M

cC
en

ne
ry

 T
an

k 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 W

W
D

 - 
N

or
th

 T
an

k 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 W

W
D

 - 
O

ld
 ti

m
er

s t
an

k 
an

d 
pu

m
p 

st
at

io
n 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 W
W

D
 - 

P-
10

 P
um

p 
st

at
io

n 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 W

W
D

 - 
Q

-9
 T

an
ks

 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 W

W
D

 - 
R

an
ch

o 
V

is
ta

 ta
nk

s 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 W

W
D

 - 
So

ut
h 

Ta
nk

 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 W

W
D

 - 
Ti

er
ra

 S
ub

id
a 

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 W

W
D

 - 
Ti

er
ra

 S
ub

id
a 

Ta
nk

s 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



T
ab

le
 B

-1
. C

ou
nt

y 
C

ri
tic

al
 F

ac
ili

tie
s 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t /

 A
ge

nc
y 

Fa
ci

lit
y 

N
am

e 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 W

W
D

 - 
V

in
ce

nt
 P

um
p 

st
at

io
n 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 W
W

D
 #

04
 –

 M
/5

e 
W

at
er

 T
an

k 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
04

 –
 N

or
th

 A
dm

in
is

tra
tio

n 
Bu

ild
in

g 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
04

-M
8/

75
w

 W
at

er
 T

an
k 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 W
W

D
 #

29
 - 

20
85

8 
R

eg
ul

at
in

g 
St

at
io

n 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
B

ig
 R

oc
k 

10
10

 T
an

k 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
B

ig
 R

oc
k 

12
00

 T
an

k 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
B

ig
 R

oc
k 

90
0 

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
B

ro
ad

 B
ea

ch
 R

eg
ul

at
in

g 
St

at
io

n 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
C

ar
bo

n 
M

es
a 

Ta
nk

 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
En

tra
da

 P
um

p 
St

at
io

n 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
En

tra
da

 T
an

k 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
Fe

rn
w

oo
d 

Ta
nk

 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
G

ue
rn

se
y 

R
eg

ul
at

in
g 

St
at

io
n 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 W
W

D
 #

29
 - 

H
ea

th
er

 C
lif

f R
eg

ul
at

in
g 

St
at

io
n 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 W
W

D
 #

29
 - 

H
or

iz
on

 T
an

k 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
H

um
e 

Ta
nk

 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
La

 C
hu

sa
 F

ee
de

r R
eg

ul
at

in
g 

St
at

io
n 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 W
W

D
 #

29
 - 

La
 C

os
ta

 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
La

 C
os

ta
 R

eg
ul

at
in

g 
St

at
io

n 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 –
 L

A
D

W
P 

Em
er

ge
nc

y 
M

in
da

na
o 

C
on

ne
ct

io
n 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 W
W

D
 #

29
 - 

La
s F

lo
re

s P
um

p 
St

at
io

n 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
La

s F
lo

re
s T

an
k 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 W
W

D
 #

29
 - 

La
tig

o 
Ta

nk
 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 W
W

D
 #

29
 - 

Lo
w

er
 B

ig
 R

oc
k 

19
5 

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
Lo

w
er

 B
us

ch
 P

um
p 

St
at

io
n 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 W
W

D
 #

29
 - 

LV
M

W
D

 , 
Sa

dd
le

 P
ea

k 
In

te
rc

on
ne

ct
io

n 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
LV

M
W

D
, H

um
e 

C
on

ne
ct

io
n 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 W
W

D
 #

29
 - 

LV
M

W
D

, L
at

ig
o 

C
on

ne
ct

io
n 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 W
W

D
 #

29
 - 

M
al

ib
u 

B
ea

ch
 P

um
p 

St
at

io
n 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 W
W

D
 #

29
 - 

M
al

ib
u 

K
no

lls
 T

an
k 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 W
W

D
 #

29
 - 

N
ew

 S
um

m
it 

Ta
nk

 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
N

ic
ho

la
s B

ea
ch

 T
an

k 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
O

ld
 S

um
m

it 
Ta

nk
 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 W
W

D
 #

29
 - 

O
w

en
 P

um
p 

St
at

io
n 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 W
W

D
 #

29
 - 

Pe
pp

er
di

ne
 5

45
 P

um
p 

St
at

io
n 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 W
W

D
 #

29
 - 

Pe
pp

er
di

ne
 8

12
 T

an
k 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 W
W

D
 #

29
 - 

Pe
pp

er
di

ne
 9

07
 T

an
k 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 W
W

D
 #

29
 - 

Ph
ili

p 
Ta

nk
 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 W
W

D
 #

29
 - 

Po
in

t D
um

e 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

an
d 

Ta
nk

 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
Po

rts
he

ad
 T

an
k 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 W
W

D
 #

29
 - 

Sa
dd

le
 P

ea
k 

Ta
nk

 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
Sa

nt
a 

M
ar

ia
 T

an
k 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 W
W

D
 #

29
 - 

Se
rr

a 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 W
W

D
 #

29
 - 

Su
m

ac
 R

id
ge

 T
an

k 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
Sw

ee
tw

at
er

 H
yd

ro
 P

um
p 

St
at

io
n 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 W
W

D
 #

29
 - 

Sw
ee

tw
at

er
 M

es
a 

Ta
nk

 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
To

pa
ng

a 
B

ea
ch

 P
um

p 
St

at
io

n 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
To

pa
ng

a 
B

ea
ch

 T
an

k 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
To

pa
ng

a 
Fo

rk
s T

an
k 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 W
W

D
 #

29
 - 

To
pa

ng
a 

O
ak

s T
an

k 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
To

pa
ng

a 
Pa

rk
 P

um
p 

St
at

io
n 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 W
W

D
 #

29
 - 

Tr
an

ca
s T

an
k 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 W
W

D
 #

29
 - 

U
pp

er
 B

ig
 R

oc
k 

73
0 

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
U

pp
er

 E
nc

in
al

 T
an

k 

T
ab

le
 B

-1
. C

ou
nt

y 
C

ri
tic

al
 F

ac
ili

tie
s 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t /

 A
ge

nc
y 

Fa
ci

lit
y 

N
am

e 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
W

in
di

ng
 W

y 
Ta

nk
 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
PW

 W
W

D
 #

29
 L

A
D

W
P 

Em
er

ge
nc

y 
V

ia
 D

ol
ce

 C
on

ne
ct

io
n 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
Sa

n 
D

im
as

 D
am

 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

Sa
n 

G
ab

rie
l D

am
 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
Sa

n 
G

ab
rie

l V
al

le
y 

A
irp

or
t 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
Sa

nt
a 

A
ni

ta
 D

am
 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
Th

om
ps

on
 C

re
ek

 D
am

 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

W
hi

te
m

an
 A

irp
or

t 
Sh

er
iff

's 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
A

lta
de

na
 S

he
rif

f's
 S

ta
tio

n 
Sh

er
iff

's 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
A

va
lo

n 
Sh

er
iff

's 
St

at
io

n 
Sh

er
iff

's 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

ar
so

n 
Sh

er
iff

's 
St

at
io

n 
Sh

er
iff

's 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
C

en
tu

ry
 R

eg
io

na
l D

et
en

tio
n 

Fa
ci

lit
y 

Sh
er

iff
's 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
en

tu
ry

 S
he

rif
f's

 S
ta

tio
n 

Sh
er

iff
's 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
er

rit
os

 S
he

rif
f's

 S
ta

tio
n 

Sh
er

iff
's 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
om

pt
on

 S
he

rif
f's

 S
ta

tio
n 

Sh
er

iff
's 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
re

sc
en

ta
 V

al
le

y 
Sh

er
iff

's 
St

at
io

n 
Sh

er
iff

's 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Ea

st
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 S

he
rif

f's
 S

ta
tio

n 
Sh

er
iff

's 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
In

du
st

ry
 S

he
rif

f's
 S

ta
tio

n 
Sh

er
iff

's 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
In

m
at

e 
R

ec
ep

tio
n 

C
en

te
r 

Sh
er

iff
's 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

La
ke

w
oo

d 
Sh

er
iff

’s
 S

ta
tio

n 
Sh

er
iff

's 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
La

nc
as

te
r S

he
rif

f's
 S

ta
tio

n 
Sh

er
iff

's 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Lo

m
ita

 S
he

rif
f's

 S
ta

tio
n 

Sh
er

iff
's 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

M
al

ib
u/

Lo
st

 H
ill

s S
he

rif
f's

 S
ta

tio
n 

Sh
er

iff
's 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

M
ar

in
a 

D
el

 R
ey

 S
he

rif
f's

 S
ta

tio
n 

Sh
er

iff
's 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

M
en

's 
C

en
tra

l J
ai

l 
Sh

er
iff

's 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
N

or
th

 C
ou

nt
y 

C
or

re
ct

io
na

l F
ac

ili
ty

 
Sh

er
iff

's 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
N

or
w

al
k 

Sh
er

iff
's 

St
at

io
n 

Sh
er

iff
's 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Pa
lm

da
le

 S
he

rif
f's

 S
ta

tio
n 

Sh
er

iff
's 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Pi
co

 R
iv

er
a 

Sh
er

iff
's 

St
at

io
n 

Sh
er

iff
's 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Pi
tc

he
ss

 D
et

en
tio

n 
C

en
te

r E
as

t F
ac

ili
ty

 
Sh

er
iff

's 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Pi

tc
he

ss
 D

et
en

tio
n 

C
en

te
r N

or
th

 F
ac

ili
ty

 
Sh

er
iff

's 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Pi

tc
he

ss
 D

et
en

tio
n 

C
en

te
r S

ou
th

 F
ac

ili
ty

 
Sh

er
iff

's 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Sa

n 
D

im
as

 S
he

rif
f's

 S
ta

tio
n 

Sh
er

iff
's 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Sa
nt

a 
C

la
rit

a 
V

al
le

y 
Sh

er
iff

's 
St

at
io

n 
Sh

er
iff

's 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
So

ut
h 

Lo
s A

ng
el

es
 S

he
rif

f's
 S

ta
tio

n 
Sh

er
iff

's 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Te

m
pl

e 
Sh

er
iff

's 
St

at
io

n 
Sh

er
iff

's 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Tw

in
 T

ow
er

s C
or

re
ct

io
na

l F
ac

ili
ty

 
Sh

er
iff

's 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
W

al
nu

t/D
ia

m
on

d 
B

ar
 S

he
rif

f's
 S

ta
tio

n 
Sh

er
iff

's 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
W

es
t H

ol
ly

w
oo

d 
Sh

er
iff

's 
St

at
io

n 
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



CO
U

N
TY

 O
F 

LO
S 

A
N

GE
LE

S 
A

LL
-H

A
ZA

RD
S M

IT
IG

A
T

IO
N 

PL
A

N
 

20
19

 
  

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 C

 –
 R

IS
K

 A
S

S
E

S
S

M
E

N
T
 

 

Ta
bl

e 
C

-1
: C

ou
nt

y-
wi

de
 S

ta
tis

tic
al

 A
re

a 
H

az
ar

d 
Im

pa
ct

s 

C
S

A
 

S
.D

. 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
 

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

 

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

d 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 

A
vo

ca
do

 H
ei

gh
ts

 
1 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

B
an

di
ni

 I
sl

an
ds

 
1 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

B
as

se
tt

 
1 

  
  

  
1 

  
1 

  
1 

  
  

  
  

C
ha

rt
er

 O
ak

 
1 

  
  

  
1 

  
1 

  
1 

  
1 

  
  

Ea
st

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 
1 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

El
 M

on
te

 
1 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

N
or

th
 W

hi
tt

ie
r 

1 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  

Pa
du

a 
H

ill
s 

1 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

1 
  

1 
  

  

Pe
lli

ss
ie

r 
V

ill
ag

e 
1 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

Sa
n 

Jo
se

 H
ill

s 
1 

  
  

  
1 

  
1 

  
1 

  
  

  
  

So
ut

h 
El

 M
on

te
 

1 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
So

ut
h 

Sa
n 

G
ab

rie
l 

1 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
V

al
in

da
 

1 
  

  
  

1 
  

1 
  

1 
  

  
  

  
W

al
nu

t 
1 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

W
es

t P
ue

nt
e V

al
le

y 
1 

  
  

  
1 

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

W
hi

tt
ie

r N
ar

ro
w

s 
1 

  
  

  
1 

  
1 

  
1 

  
  

  
  

A
th

en
s V

ill
ag

e 
2 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

A
th

en
s-

W
es

tm
on

t 
2 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

D
el

 R
ey

 
2 

1 
1 

  
1 

  
  

1 
1 

  
  

  
  

H
aw

th
or

ne
 

2 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
La

de
ra

 H
ei

gh
ts

 
2 

  
  

  
1 

  
1 

  
1 

  
1 

  
  

R
os

ew
oo

d 
2 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

R
os

ew
oo

d/
Ea

st
 

G
ar

de
na

 
2 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

R
os

ew
oo

d/
W

es
t 

R
an

ch
o 

D
om

in
gu

ez
 

2 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Ta
bl

e 
C

-1
: C

ou
nt

y-
wi

de
 S

ta
tis

tic
al

 A
re

a 
H

az
ar

d 
Im

pa
ct

s 

C
S

A
 

S
.D

. 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
 

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

 

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

d 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
V

ie
w

 P
ar

k/
W

in
ds

or
 

H
ill

s 
2 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
1 

  
1 

  
  

W
es

t R
an

ch
o 

D
om

in
gu

ez
 

2 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
W

ill
ow

br
oo

k 
2 

  
  

  
1 

  
1 

  
1 

  
  

  
  

W
is

eb
ur

n 
2 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Fr
an

kl
in

 C
an

yo
n 

3 
  

  
  

1 
  

1 
  

1 
  

1 
  

  
M

ira
cl

e 
M

ile
 

3 
  

  
  

1 
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
Sa

nt
a 

M
on

ic
a 

M
ou

nt
ai

ns
 

3 
1 

1 
1 

1 
  

1 
1 

1 
1 

1 
1 

1 
U

ni
ve

rs
al

 C
ity

 
3 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
1 

  
1 

  
  

W
es

t L
A

 
3 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

W
es

th
ill

s 
3 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
1 

  
1 

  
1 

C
er

rit
os

 
4 

  
  

  
1 

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

Ea
st

 L
a 

M
ira

da
 

4 
  

  
  

1 
  

1 
  

1 
  

  
  

  
Ea

st
 W

hi
tt

ie
r 

4 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
H

ar
bo

r G
at

ew
ay

 
4 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

La
 H

ab
ra

 H
ei

gh
ts

 
4 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

La
 R

am
bl

a 
4 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

La
ke

w
oo

d 
4 

  
  

  
1 

  
1 

  
1 

  
  

  
  

Lo
ng

 B
ea

ch
 

4 
  

  
  

1 
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
Pa

lo
s 

V
er

de
s 

Pe
ni

ns
ul

a 
4 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
1 

  
1 

  
  

Sa
n 

C
le

m
en

te
 I

sl
an

d 
4 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

Sa
nt

a 
C

at
al

in
a 

Is
la

nd
 

4 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1 
1 

1 
1 

1 
So

ut
h 

W
hi

tt
ie

r 
4 

  
  

  
1 

  
1 

  
1 

  
  

  
  

W
es

tf
ie

ld
/A

ca
de

m
y 

H
ill

s 
4 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
1 

  
1 

  
  

A
ct

on
 

5 
  

  
  

1 
1 

  
  

1 
  

1 
  

1 

Ta
bl

e 
C

-1
: C

ou
nt

y-
wi

de
 S

ta
tis

tic
al

 A
re

a 
H

az
ar

d 
Im

pa
ct

s 

C
S

A
 

S
.D

. 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
 

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

 

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

d 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 

A
gu

a 
D

ul
ce

 
5 

  
  

  
1 

1 
  

  
1 

  
1 

1 
1 

A
lta

de
na

 
5 

  
  

  
1 

  
1 

  
1 

  
1 

1 
1 

A
na

ve
rd

e 
5 

  
  

1 
1 

1 
  

  
1 

  
  

1 
1 

B
ou

qu
et

 C
an

yo
n 

5 
  

  
  

1 
1 

1 
  

1 
  

1 
  

1 
B

ra
db

ur
y 

5 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

1 
  

1 
  

  
C

an
yo

n 
C

ou
nt

ry
 

5 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

1 
  

1 
1 

1 
C

as
ta

ic
 

5 
  

  
1 

1 
1 

1 
1 

1 
  

1 
1 

1 
D

el
 S

ur
 

5 
  

  
  

1 
1 

1 
  

1 
  

  
  

  

D
es

er
t V

ie
w

 H
ig

hl
an

ds
 

5 
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Ea

st
 C

ov
in

a 
5 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

Ea
st

 L
an

ca
st

er
 

5 
  

  
1 

1 
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
Ea

st
 P

as
ad

en
a 

5 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

1 
  

1 
  

1 
El

iz
ab

et
h 

La
ke

 
5 

  
  

  
1 

1 
  

  
1 

  
  

1 
1 

H
i V

is
ta

 
5 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

La
 C

re
sc

en
ta

-M
on

tr
os

e 
5 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
1 

  
1 

  
1 

La
ke

 H
ug

he
s 

5 
  

  
  

1 
1 

  
  

1 
  

  
  

1 
La

ke
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

5 
  

  
  

1 
1 

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
La

ke
 M

an
or

 
5 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
1 

  
1 

  
1 

Le
on

a 
V

al
le

y 
5 

  
  

  
1 

1 
1 

  
1 

  
1 

1 
1 

Li
tt

le
ro

ck
 

5 
  

  
1 

  
1 

1 
  

1 
  

  
1 

  

Li
tt

le
ro

ck
/J

un
ip

er
 H

ill
s 

5 
  

  
1 

1 
1 

1 
  

1 
  

  
1 

1 
Li

tt
le

ro
ck

/P
ea

rb
lo

ss
om

 
5 

  
  

1 
1 

1 
1 

  
1 

  
  

1 
  

Ll
an

o 
5 

  
  

  
1 

1 
  

  
1 

  
  

1 
1 

M
on

ro
vi

a 
5 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

N
ew

ha
ll 

5 
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

1 
  

1 
  

1 
N

or
th

 L
an

ca
st

er
 

5 
  

  
  

1 
  

1 
  

1 
  

  
  

  
N

or
th

ea
st

 S
an

 G
ab

rie
l 

5 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Ta
bl

e 
C

-1
: C

ou
nt

y-
wi

de
 S

ta
tis

tic
al

 A
re

a 
H

az
ar

d 
Im

pa
ct

s 

C
S

A
 

S
.D

. 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
 

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

 

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

d 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
Pa

lm
da

le
 

5 
  

  
1 

1 
1 

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
Pe

ar
bl

os
so

m
/L

la
no

 
5 

  
  

  
1 

1 
1 

  
1 

  
  

1 
  

Pl
ac

er
ita

 C
an

yo
n 

5 
  

  
  

1 
1 

  
  

1 
  

1 
  

1 
Q

ua
rt

z 
H

ill
 

5 
  

  
  

1 
1 

1 
  

1 
  

  
  

  
R

oo
se

ve
lt 

5 
  

  
  

1 
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
Sa

n 
Fr

an
ci

sq
ui

to
 

C
an

yo
n/

B
ou

qu
et

 
C

an
yo

n 
5 

  
  

  
1 

1 
  

  
1 

  
1 

  
1 

Sa
n 

Pa
sq

ua
l 

5 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Sa

nd
 C

an
yo

n 
5 

  
  

  
1 

1 
  

  
1 

  
1 

  
1 

Sa
ug

us
 

5 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

1 
  

1 
  

1 
Sa

ug
us

/C
an

yo
n 

C
ou

nt
ry

 
5 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
1 

So
ut

h 
A

nt
el

op
e V

al
le

y 
5 

  
  

1 
1 

1 
  

  
1 

  
  

1 
1 

So
ut

h 
Ed

w
ar

ds
 

5 
  

  
  

1 
  

1 
1 

1 
  

  
  

  
So

ut
he

as
t A

nt
el

op
e 

V
al

le
y 

5 
  

  
1 

1 
1 

  
  

1 
  

  
1 

1 
St

ev
en

so
n 

R
an

ch
 

5 
  

  
1 

1 
1 

  
  

1 
  

1 
1 

1 
Su

n 
V

ill
ag

e 
5 

  
  

1 
1 

1 
1 

  
1 

  
  

  
  

T
w

in
 L

ak
es

/O
at

 
M

ou
nt

ai
n 

5 
  

  
  

1 
1 

  
  

1 
  

1 
  

1 
V

al
 V

er
de

 
5 

  
  

1 
1 

1 
  

  
1 

  
1 

1 
1 

V
al

en
ci

a 
5 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
1 

  
1 

1 
1 

W
es

t A
nt

el
op

e V
al

le
y 

5 
  

  
  

1 
1 

1 
1 

1 
  

1 
1 

1 
W

es
t C

ha
ts

w
or

th
 

5 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

1 
  

1 
  

1 
W

hi
te

 F
en

ce
 F

ar
m

s 
5 

  
  

  
  

1 
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

Fl
or

en
ce

-F
ire

st
on

e 
1 

an
d 

2 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
W

al
nu

t P
ar

k 
1 

an
d 

2 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
H

ac
ie

nd
a 

H
ei

gh
ts

 
1 

an
d 

4 
  

  
  

1 
  

1 
  

1 
  

1 
1 

1 

Ta
bl

e 
C

-1
: C

ou
nt

y-
wi

de
 S

ta
tis

tic
al

 A
re

a 
H

az
ar

d 
Im

pa
ct

s 

C
S

A
 

S
.D

. 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
 

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

 

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

d 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
R

ow
la

nd
 H

ei
gh

ts
 

1 
an

d 
4 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
1 

  
1 

1 
1 

Su
nr

is
e 

V
ill

ag
e 

1 
an

d 
4 

  
  

  
1 

  
1 

  
1 

  
  

  
  

W
es

t W
hi

tt
ie

r/L
os

 
N

ie
to

s 
1 

an
d 

4 
  

  
  

1 
  

1 
  

1 
  

  
  

  
W

hi
tt

ie
r 

1 
an

d 
4 

  
  

  
1 

  
1 

  
1 

  
1 

1 
1 

A
rc

ad
ia

 
1 

an
d 

5 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
A

zu
sa

 
1 

an
d 

5 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

1 
  

1 
  

1 
C

la
re

m
on

t 
1 

an
d 

5 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

1 
  

1 
  

1 
C

ov
in

a 
1 

an
d 

5 
  

  
  

1 
  

1 
  

1 
  

1 
1 

1 

C
ov

in
a 

(C
ha

rt
er

 O
ak

) 
1 

an
d 

5 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
D

ua
rt

e 
1 

an
d 

5 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
G

le
nd

or
a 

1 
an

d 
5 

  
  

  
1 

  
1 

  
1 

  
1 

  
1 

La
 V

er
ne

 
1 

an
d 

5 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

1 
  

1 
  

1 
Po

m
on

a 
1 

an
d 

5 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

1 
  

1 
1 

1 

Ly
nw

oo
d 

1,
 2

, a
nd

 
4 

  
  

  
1 

  
1 

  
1 

  
  

  
  

A
ng

el
es

 N
at

io
na

l 
Fo

re
st

 
1,

 3
, a

nd
 

5 
  

  
1 

1 
1 

1 
1 

1 
  

1 
1 

1 
D

el
 A

ire
 

2 
an

d 
4 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

Ea
st

 R
an

ch
o 

D
om

in
gu

ez
 

2 
an

d 
4 

  
  

  
1 

  
1 

  
1 

  
  

  
  

El
 C

am
in

o 
V

ill
ag

e 
2 

an
d 

4 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
Le

nn
ox

 
2 

an
d 

4 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
R

an
ch

o 
D

om
in

gu
ez

 
2 

an
d 

4 
  

  
  

1 
  

1 
  

1 
  

  
  

  
W

es
t C

ar
so

n 
2 

an
d 

4 
  

  
  

1 
  

1 
  

1 
  

  
  

  

M
ar

in
a 

de
l R

ey
 

2,
 3

, a
nd

 
4 

1 
1 

  
1 

  
1 

1 
1 

1 
  

  
  

K
ag

el
/L

op
ez

 C
an

yo
ns

 
3 

an
d 

5 
  

  
  

1 
1 

1 
  

1 
  

1 
  

1 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Ta
bl

e 
C

-2
: A

ni
m

al
 C

ar
e 

&
 C

on
tr

ol
 F

ac
ili

ty
 H

az
ar

d 
Im

pa
ct

s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

 

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
 

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

 

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
A

go
ur

a 
A

ni
m

al
 

C
ar

e 
C

en
te

r 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
B

al
dw

in
 P

ar
k 

A
ni

m
al

 C
ar

e 
C

en
te

r 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
C

ar
so

n 
A

ni
m

al
 

C
ar

e 
C

en
te

r 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
C

as
ta

ic
 A

ni
m

al
 

C
ar

e 
C

en
te

r 
(C

as
ta

ic
) 

 
 

1 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1 

D
ow

ne
y 

A
ni

m
al

 
C

ar
e 

C
en

te
r 

 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

La
nc

as
te

r 
C

ou
nt

y 
A

ni
m

al
 

C
ar

e 
C

en
te

r 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Pa

lm
da

le
 A

ni
m

al
 

C
ar

e 
C

en
te

r 
 

 
 

 
1 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Ta
bl

e 
C

-3
: F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Fa

ci
lit

y 
H

az
ar

d 
Im

pa
ct

s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

 

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
 

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

 

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
B

ob
 H

op
e A

irp
or

t F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f A
lh

am
br

a 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t -

 T
ra

in
in

g 
Fa

ci
lit

y 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f A
lh

am
br

a 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
71

 - 
H

ea
dq

ua
rt

er
s 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ity

 o
f A

lh
am

br
a 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

72
 - 

So
ut

he
as

t D
is

tr
ic

t 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f A
lh

am
br

a 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
73

 - 
N

or
th

w
es

t 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f A
lh

am
br

a 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
74

 - 
So

ut
hw

es
t 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ity

 o
f A

rc
ad

ia
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
10

5 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f A
rc

ad
ia

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

10
6 

- 
H

ea
dq

ua
rt

er
s 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ity

 o
f A

rc
ad

ia
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
10

7 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f A
va

lo
n 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1 
  

  
C

ity
 o

f B
ev

er
ly

 H
ill

s 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

1 
- H

ea
dq

ua
rt

er
s 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ity

 o
f B

ev
er

ly
 H

ill
s 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
2 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

C
ity

 o
f B

ev
er

ly
 H

ill
s 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
3 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Ta
bl

e 
C

-3
: F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Fa

ci
lit

y 
H

az
ar

d 
Im

pa
ct

s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

 

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
 

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

 

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
C

ity
 o

f B
ur

ba
nk

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

11
 - 

H
ea

dq
ua

rt
er

s 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f B
ur

ba
nk

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

12
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ity

 o
f B

ur
ba

nk
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
13

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f B
ur

ba
nk

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

14
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ity

 o
f B

ur
ba

nk
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
15

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f B
ur

ba
nk

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

16
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

C
ity

 o
f C

om
pt

on
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
1 

- 
H

ea
dq

ua
rt

er
s 

  
  

  
1 

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ity

 o
f C

om
pt

on
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
2 

  
  

  
1 

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ity

 o
f C

om
pt

on
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
3 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ity

 o
f C

om
pt

on
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
4 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ity

 o
f D

ow
ne

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
1 

- 
H

ea
dq

ua
rt

er
s 

  
  

  
1 

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ity

 o
f D

ow
ne

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
2 

  
  

  
1 

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ity

 o
f D

ow
ne

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
3 

  
  

  
1 

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ity

 o
f D

ow
ne

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
4 

  
  

  
1 

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

Ta
bl

e 
C

-3
: F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Fa

ci
lit

y 
H

az
ar

d 
Im

pa
ct

s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

 

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
 

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

 

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
C

ity
 o

f G
le

nd
al

e 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
21

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f G
le

nd
al

e 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
22

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f G
le

nd
al

e 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
23

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

1 
  

  
C

ity
 o

f G
le

nd
al

e 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
24

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

1 
  

  
C

ity
 o

f G
le

nd
al

e 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
25

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f G
le

nd
al

e 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
26

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f G
le

nd
al

e 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
27

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f G
le

nd
al

e 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
28

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f L
on

g 
B

ea
ch

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t -
 B

ea
ch

 
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f L
on

g 
B

ea
ch

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t -
 

H
ea

dq
ua

rt
er

s 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f L
on

g 
B

ea
ch

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

1 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f L
on

g 
B

ea
ch

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

10
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ity

 o
f L

on
g 

B
ea

ch
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
11

 
  

  
  

1 
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f L
on

g 
B

ea
ch

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

12
 

  
  

  
1 

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Ta
bl

e 
C

-3
: F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Fa

ci
lit

y 
H

az
ar

d 
Im

pa
ct

s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

 

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
 

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

 

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
C

ity
 o

f L
on

g 
B

ea
ch

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

13
 

  
  

  
1 

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ity

 o
f L

on
g 

B
ea

ch
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
14

 
  

1 
  

1 
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f L
on

g 
B

ea
ch

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

15
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

C
ity

 o
f L

on
g 

B
ea

ch
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
16

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f L
on

g 
B

ea
ch

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

17
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ity

 o
f L

on
g 

B
ea

ch
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
18

 
  

  
  

1 
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f L
on

g 
B

ea
ch

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

19
 

  
  

  
1 

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ity

 o
f L

on
g 

B
ea

ch
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
2 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ity

 o
f L

on
g 

B
ea

ch
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
20

 
  

1 
  

1 
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f L
on

g 
B

ea
ch

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

21
 

  
1 

  
1 

  
1 

  
  

1 
  

  
  

C
ity

 o
f L

on
g 

B
ea

ch
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
22

 
  

  
  

1 
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f L
on

g 
B

ea
ch

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

24
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

C
ity

 o
f L

on
g 

B
ea

ch
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
3 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ity

 o
f L

on
g 

B
ea

ch
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
4 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ity

 o
f L

on
g 

B
ea

ch
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
5 

  
  

  
1 

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

Ta
bl

e 
C

-3
: F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Fa

ci
lit

y 
H

az
ar

d 
Im

pa
ct

s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

 

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
 

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

 

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
C

ity
 o

f L
on

g 
B

ea
ch

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

6 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f L
on

g 
B

ea
ch

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

7 
  

  
  

1 
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f L
on

g 
B

ea
ch

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

8 
1 

1 
  

1 
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f L
on

g 
B

ea
ch

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

9 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

1 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

10
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
10

8 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

1 
  

  
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

10
9 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
11

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

12
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
13

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

14
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
15

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

16
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
17

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Ta
bl

e 
C

-3
: F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Fa

ci
lit

y 
H

az
ar

d 
Im

pa
ct

s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

 

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
 

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

 

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

19
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
2 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
20

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

21
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
25

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

26
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
27

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

29
 

  
  

  
1 

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
3 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
33

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

34
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
35

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

37
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
4 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
41

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

Ta
bl

e 
C

-3
: F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Fa

ci
lit

y 
H

az
ar

d 
Im

pa
ct

s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

 

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
 

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

 

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

42
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
43

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

44
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
46

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

47
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
5 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
50

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

51
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
52

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

56
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
57

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

58
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
59

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

6 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

61
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Ta
bl

e 
C

-3
: F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Fa

ci
lit

y 
H

az
ar

d 
Im

pa
ct

s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

 

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
 

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

 

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

62
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
64

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

65
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
66

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

67
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
68

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

7 
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

71
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
76

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

1 
  

  
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

80
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
82

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

9 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

92
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
94

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

95
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Ta
bl

e 
C

-3
: F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Fa

ci
lit

y 
H

az
ar

d 
Im

pa
ct

s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

 

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
 

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

 

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

97
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
99

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

1 
  

  
C

ity
 o

f M
on

te
re

y 
Pa

rk
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
61

 - 
H

ea
dq

ua
rt

er
s 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ity

 o
f M

on
te

re
y 

Pa
rk

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

62
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ity

 o
f M

on
te

re
y 

Pa
rk

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

63
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ity

 o
f S

an
ta

 F
e 

Sp
rin

gs
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
1 

- H
ea

dq
ua

rt
er

s 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f S
an

ta
 F

e 
Sp

rin
gs

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

2 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f S
an

ta
 F

e 
Sp

rin
gs

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

3 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f S
an

ta
 F

e 
Sp

rin
gs

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

4 
  

  
  

1 
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f S
an

ta
 M

on
ic

a 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t -
 

T
ra

in
in

g 
Fa

ci
lit

y 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f S
an

ta
 M

on
ic

a 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

1 
- H

ea
dq

ua
rt

er
s 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ity

 o
f S

an
ta

 M
on

ic
a 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
2 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Ta
bl

e 
C

-3
: F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Fa

ci
lit

y 
H

az
ar

d 
Im

pa
ct

s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

 

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
 

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

 

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
C

ity
 o

f S
an

ta
 M

on
ic

a 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

3 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f S
an

ta
 M

on
ic

a 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

5 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f V
er

no
n 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

2 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f V
er

no
n 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

3 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f V
er

no
n 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

4 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f W
es

t C
ov

in
a 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

1 
  

  
  

1 
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f W
es

t C
ov

in
a 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

2 
  

  
  

1 
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f W
es

t C
ov

in
a 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

3 
  

  
  

1 
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 o

f W
es

t C
ov

in
a 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

4 
  

  
  

1 
  

1 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
C

ity
 o

f W
es

t C
ov

in
a 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

5 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ul
ve

r 
C

ity
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
1 

- 
H

ea
dq

ua
rt

er
s 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ul

ve
r 

C
ity

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

2 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ul
ve

r 
C

ity
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
3 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

La
 V

er
ne

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

1 
- 

H
ea

dq
ua

rt
er

s 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

Ta
bl

e 
C

-3
: F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Fa

ci
lit

y 
H

az
ar

d 
Im

pa
ct

s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

 

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
 

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

 

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
La

 V
er

ne
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
2 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t -
 

H
q/

H
el

ip
or

t/T
ra

in
in

g 
Fa

ci
lit

y 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
1 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

10
 

  
  

  
1 

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

10
1 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

10
2 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

10
3 

  
  

  
1 

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

10
4 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

10
5 

  
  

  
1 

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

10
6 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
1 

  
1 

  
  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

10
7 

  
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

11
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

11
0 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

11
1 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Ta
bl

e 
C

-3
: F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Fa

ci
lit

y 
H

az
ar

d 
Im

pa
ct

s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

 

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
 

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

 

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
11

2 
  

  
  

1 
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
11

4 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
11

5 
  

  
  

1 
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
11

6 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
11

7 
  

  
  

1 
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
11

8 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
11

9 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
12

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
12

0 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
12

1 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
12

2 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
12

3 
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

1 
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
12

4 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
12

5 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

1 
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
12

6 
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

Ta
bl

e 
C

-3
: F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Fa

ci
lit

y 
H

az
ar

d 
Im

pa
ct

s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

 

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
 

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

 

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
12

7 
  

  
  

1 
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
12

9 
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
13

0 
  

  
  

1 
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
13

1 
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
13

2 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

1 
  

1 
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
13

4 
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
13

5 
  

  
  

1 
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
14

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
14

0 
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

1 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
14

1 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
14

4 
  

  
1 

1 
  

  
  

  
  

1 
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
14

5 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
14

6 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
14

7 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
14

8 
  

  
  

1 
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Ta
bl

e 
C

-3
: F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Fa

ci
lit

y 
H

az
ar

d 
Im

pa
ct

s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

 

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
 

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

 

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
14

9 
  

  
1 

1 
  

  
  

  
  

1 
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
15

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
15

1 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
15

2 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
15

3 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
15

4 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
15

5 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
15

6 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

1 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
15

7 
  

  
  

  
1 

1 
  

  
  

  
  

1 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
15

8 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
15

9 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
16

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
16

0 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
16

1 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
16

2 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

Ta
bl

e 
C

-3
: F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Fa

ci
lit

y 
H

az
ar

d 
Im

pa
ct

s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

 

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
 

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

 

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
16

3 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
16

4 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
16

5 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
16

6 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
16

7 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
16

8 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
16

9 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
17

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
17

0 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
17

1 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
17

2 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
17

3 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
18

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
18

1 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
18

2 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Ta
bl

e 
C

-3
: F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Fa

ci
lit

y 
H

az
ar

d 
Im

pa
ct

s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

 

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
 

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

 

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
18

3 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
18

4 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
18

5 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
18

6 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
18

7 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
18

8 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
19

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

1 
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
2 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

20
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

21
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

22
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

23
 

  
  

  
1 

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

24
 

  
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

25
 

  
  

  
1 

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

26
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Ta
bl

e 
C

-3
: F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Fa

ci
lit

y 
H

az
ar

d 
Im

pa
ct

s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

 

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
 

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

 

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
27

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
28

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
29

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
3 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

30
 

  
  

  
1 

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

31
 

  
  

  
1 

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

32
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

33
 

  
  

  
1 

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

34
 

  
  

  
1 

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

35
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

36
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

37
 

  
  

  
  

1 
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

38
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

39
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

4 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Ta
bl

e 
C

-3
: F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Fa

ci
lit

y 
H

az
ar

d 
Im

pa
ct

s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

 

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
 

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

 

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
40

 
  

  
  

1 
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
41

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
42

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
43

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
44

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
45

 
  

  
  

1 
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
47

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
48

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
49

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
5 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

50
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

51
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

53
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

54
 

  
  

  
1 

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

55
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

Ta
bl

e 
C

-3
: F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Fa

ci
lit

y 
H

az
ar

d 
Im

pa
ct

s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

 

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
 

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

 

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
56

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

1 
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
57

 
  

  
  

1 
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
58

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
59

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
6 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

60
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

61
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

62
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

63
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

64
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

65
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

66
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

67
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

68
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

69
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Ta
bl

e 
C

-3
: F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Fa

ci
lit

y 
H

az
ar

d 
Im

pa
ct

s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

 

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
 

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

 

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
7 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

70
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

71
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

72
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

73
 

  
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

74
 

  
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
1 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

75
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

76
 

  
  

1 
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

1 
  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

77
 

  
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
1 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

78
 

  
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
1 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

79
 

  
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

8 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
80

 
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

1 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
81

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
82

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

1 
  

  

Ta
bl

e 
C

-3
: F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Fa

ci
lit

y 
H

az
ar

d 
Im

pa
ct

s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

 

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
 

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

 

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
83

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

1 
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
84

 
  

  
  

  
1 

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
85

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
86

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
87

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
88

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
1 

1 
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
89

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
90

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
91

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
92

 
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
94

 
  

  
  

1 
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
95

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
96

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
97

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

1 
  

  
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
98

 
  

  
  

1 
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Ta
bl

e 
C

-3
: F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Fa

ci
lit

y 
H

az
ar

d 
Im

pa
ct

s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

 

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
 

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

 

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
99

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

1 
  

  
M

an
ha

tt
an

 B
ea

ch
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
1 

- 
H

ea
dq

ua
rt

er
s 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

M
an

ha
tt

an
 B

ea
ch

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

2 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
M

on
te

be
llo

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

1 
- 

H
ea

dq
ua

rt
er

s 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
M

on
te

be
llo

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

2 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
M

on
te

be
llo

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

3 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Pa

sa
de

na
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
31

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Pa

sa
de

na
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
32

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Pa

sa
de

na
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
33

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Pa

sa
de

na
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
34

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Pa

sa
de

na
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
36

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Pa

sa
de

na
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
37

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Pa

sa
de

na
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
38

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

1 
  

  
Pa

sa
de

na
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
tio

n 
39

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

1 
  

  

Ta
bl

e 
C

-3
: F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Fa

ci
lit

y 
H

az
ar

d 
Im

pa
ct

s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

 

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
 

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

 

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
R

ed
on

do
 B

ea
ch

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

1 
- 

H
ea

dq
ua

rt
er

s 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
R

ed
on

do
 B

ea
ch

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

2 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
R

ed
on

do
 B

ea
ch

 F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

3 
  

1 
  

1 
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
Sa

n 
G

ab
rie

l F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

1 
- 

H
ea

dq
ua

rt
er

s 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Sa

n 
G

ab
rie

l F
ire

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

2 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Sa

n 
M

ar
in

o 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Si
er

ra
 M

ad
re

 V
ol

un
te

er
 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

So
ut

h 
Pa

sa
de

na
 F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

T
he

 C
ity

 o
f E

l S
eg

un
do

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

1 
- H

ea
dq

ua
rt

er
s 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

T
he

 C
ity

 o
f E

l S
eg

un
do

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
ta

tio
n 

2 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
T

or
ra

nc
e 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t F
ire

 S
ta

tio
n 

1 
- H

ea
dq

ua
rt

er
s 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

T
or

ra
nc

e 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t F

ire
 S

ta
tio

n 
2 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

T
or

ra
nc

e 
Fi

re
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t F

ire
 S

ta
tio

n 
3 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Ta
bl

e 
C

-3
: F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Fa

ci
lit

y 
H

az
ar

d 
Im

pa
ct

s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

 

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
 

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

 

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
T

or
ra

nc
e 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t F
ire

 S
ta

tio
n 

4 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
T

or
ra

nc
e 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t F
ire

 S
ta

tio
n 

5 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
T

or
ra

nc
e 

Fi
re

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t F
ire

 S
ta

tio
n 

6 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
V

er
no

n 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

Ta
bl

e 
C

-4
: H

ea
lth

 S
er

vi
ce

s F
ac

ili
ty

 H
az

ar
d 

Im
pa

ct
s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

 

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
 

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

 

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
A

nt
el

op
e V

al
le

y 
H

ea
lth

 
C

en
te

r  
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
B

el
lfl

ow
er

 H
ea

lth
 C

en
te

r 
 

 
 

1 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
C

en
tr

al
 P

ub
lic

 H
ea

lth
 

C
en

te
r 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
ur

tis
 R

. T
uc

ke
r H

ea
lth

 
C

en
te

r 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
D

ol
la

rh
id

e 
H

ea
lth

 C
en

te
r 

 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ea
st

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 H
ea

lth
 

C
en

te
r 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ea
st

 S
an

 G
ab

rie
l V

al
le

y 
H

ea
lth

 C
en

te
r 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ed
w

ar
d 

R
. R

oy
ba

l 
C

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 H
el

at
h 

C
en

te
r 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

El
 M

on
te

 C
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 

H
ea

lth
 C

en
te

r 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
G

le
nd

al
e 

H
ea

lth
 C

en
te

r 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
H

. C
la

ud
e 

H
ud

so
n 

C
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 H

ea
lth

 
C

en
te

r 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
H

ar
bo

r-
U

C
LA

 M
ed

ic
al

 
C

en
te

r  
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
H

ig
h 

D
es

er
t R

eg
io

na
l 

H
ea

lth
 C

en
te

r 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
H

ub
er

t H
. H

um
ph

re
y 

C
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 H

ea
lth

 
C

en
te

r 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
La

 P
ue

nt
e H

ea
lth

 C
en

te
r 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

LA
C

 +
 U

SC
 M

ed
ic

al
 

C
en

te
r 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Ta
bl

e 
C

-4
: H

ea
lth

 S
er

vi
ce

s F
ac

ili
ty

 H
az

ar
d 

Im
pa

ct
s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

 

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
 

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

 

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
La

ke
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 C

lin
ic

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Li

tt
le

ro
ck

 C
om

m
un

ity
 

C
lin

ic
 

 
 

 
 

1 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Lo
ng

 B
ea

ch
 

C
om

ph
re

he
ns

iv
e 

H
ea

lth
 

C
en

te
r 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
ar

tin
 L

ut
he

r K
in

g,
 J

r. 
O

ut
pa

tie
nt

 C
en

te
r 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
id

 V
al

le
y 

C
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 

H
ea

lth
 C

en
te

r 
 

 
1 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
O

liv
e 

V
ie

w
-U

C
LA

 M
ed

ic
al

 
C

en
te

r 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
R

an
ch

o 
Lo

s 
A

m
ig

os
 

N
at

io
na

l R
eh

ab
ili

ta
tio

n 
C

en
te

r 
 

 
 

1 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Sa

n 
Fe

rn
an

do
 H

ea
lth

 
C

en
te

r 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
So

ut
h 

V
al

le
y 

H
ea

lth
 C

en
te

r 
 

 
1 

 
1 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
T

or
ra

nc
e 

H
ea

lth
 C

en
te

r 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
V

au
gh

n 
Sc

ho
ol

 B
as

ed
 

H
ea

lth
 C

en
te

r 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
W

es
t V

al
le

y 
H

ea
lth

 C
en

te
r 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

W
ilm

in
gt

on
 H

ea
lth

 C
en

te
r 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ta
bl

e 
C

-5
: L

ib
ra

ry
 H

az
ar

d 
Im

pa
ct

s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

  

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
  

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

  

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
A

 C
 B

ilb
re

w
 

Li
br

ar
y 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
ct

on
 A

gu
a 

D
ul

ce
 

Li
br

ar
y 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1 

A
go

ur
a 

H
ill

s 
Li

br
ar

y 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
A

lo
nd

ra
 L

ib
ra

ry
 

 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
ng

el
o 

M
. 

Ia
co

bo
ni

 L
ib

ra
ry

 
 

 
 

1 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

nt
ho

ny
 Q

ui
nn

 
Li

br
ar

y 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

rt
es

ia
 L

ib
ra

ry
 

 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
va

lo
n 

Li
br

ar
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

B
al

dw
in

 P
ar

k 
Li

br
ar

y 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
B

el
l G

ar
de

ns
 

Li
br

ar
y 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

B
el

l L
ib

ra
ry

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
C

ar
so

n 
Li

br
ar

y 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
C

as
ta

ic
 L

ib
ra

ry
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

C
ha

rt
er

 O
ak

 
Li

br
ar

y 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
C

he
t H

ol
ifi

el
d 

Li
br

ar
y 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
ity

 T
er

ra
ce

 
Li

br
ar

y 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
C

la
re

m
on

t 
H

el
en

 
R

en
w

ic
k 

Li
br

ar
y 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
lif

to
n 

M
. 

B
ra

ke
ns

ie
k 

Li
br

ar
y 

 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
om

pt
on

 L
ib

ra
ry

 
 

 
 

1 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
C

ud
ah

y 
Li

br
ar

y 
 

 
 

1 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Ta
bl

e 
C

-5
: L

ib
ra

ry
 H

az
ar

d 
Im

pa
ct

s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

  

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
  

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

  

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
C

ul
ve

r 
C

ity
 Ju

lia
n 

D
ix

on
 L

ib
ra

ry
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

D
ia

m
on

d 
B

ar
 

Li
br

ar
y 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

D
r. 

M
ar

tin
 L

ut
he

r 
K

in
g,

 J
r. 

Li
br

ar
y 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

D
ua

rt
e 

Li
br

ar
y 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ea
st

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 
Li

br
ar

y 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Ea

st
 R

an
ch

o 
D

om
in

gu
ez

 
Li

br
ar

y 
 

 
 

1 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
El

 C
am

in
o 

R
ea

l 
Li

br
ar

y 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
El

 M
on

te
 L

ib
ra

ry
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Fl
or

en
ce

 E
xp

re
ss

 
Li

br
ar

y 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
G

ar
de

na
 M

ay
m

e 
D

ea
r L

ib
ra

ry
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

G
eo

rg
e 

N
ye

 Jr
. 

Li
br

ar
y 

 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

G
ra

ha
m

 L
ib

ra
ry

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
H

ac
ie

nd
a 

H
ei

gh
ts

 
Li

br
ar

y 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
H

aw
ai

ia
n 

G
ar

de
ns

 
Li

br
ar

y 
 

 
 

1 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
H

aw
th

or
ne

 
Li

br
ar

y 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
H

er
m

os
a 

B
ea

ch
 

Li
br

ar
y 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

H
ol

ly
da

le
 L

ib
ra

ry
 

 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

H
un

tin
gt

on
 P

ar
k 

Li
br

ar
y 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ta
bl

e 
C

-5
: L

ib
ra

ry
 H

az
ar

d 
Im

pa
ct

s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

  

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
  

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

  

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
La

 C
an

ad
a 

Fl
in

tr
id

ge
 L

ib
ra

ry
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

La
 C

re
sc

en
ta

 
Li

br
ar

y 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
La

 M
ira

da
 L

ib
ra

ry
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

La
 P

ue
nt

e L
ib

ra
ry

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
La

 V
er

ne
 L

ib
ra

ry
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

La
ke

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 
Li

br
ar

y 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
La

nc
as

te
r 

Li
br

ar
y 

 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

La
w

nd
al

e 
Li

br
ar

y 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Le

la
nd

 R
. W

ea
ve

r 
Li

br
ar

y 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Le

nn
ox

 L
ib

ra
ry

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Li

tt
le

ro
ck

 L
ib

ra
ry

 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
Li

ve
 O

ak
 L

ib
ra

ry
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ll
oy

d 
T

ab
er

-
M

ar
in

a 
de

l R
ey

 
Li

br
ar

y 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
Lo

m
ita

 L
ib

ra
ry

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Lo

s 
N

ie
to

s L
ib

ra
ry

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Ly

nw
oo

d 
Li

br
ar

y 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

al
ib

u 
Li

br
ar

y 
 

 
1 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
M

an
ha

tt
an

 B
ea

ch
 

Li
br

ar
y 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
as

ao
 W

. S
at

ow
 

Li
br

ar
y 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
ay

w
oo

d 
C

es
ar

 
C

ha
ve

z 
Li

br
ar

y 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

on
te

be
llo

 
Li

br
ar

y 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Ta
bl

e 
C

-5
: L

ib
ra

ry
 H

az
ar

d 
Im

pa
ct

s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

  

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
  

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

  

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
N

or
w

al
k 

Li
br

ar
y 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
or

w
oo

d 
Li

br
ar

y 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Pa

ra
m

ou
nt

 L
ib

ra
ry

 
 

 
 

1 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Pi

co
 R

iv
er

a 
Li

br
ar

y 
 

 
 

1 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Q

ua
rt

z 
H

ill
 

Li
br

ar
y 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

R
iv

er
a 

Li
br

ar
y 

 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

R
os

em
ea

d 
Li

br
ar

y 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
R

ow
la

nd
 H

ei
gh

ts
 

Li
br

ar
y 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Sa
n 

D
im

as
 L

ib
ra

ry
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Sa
n 

Fe
rn

an
do

 
Li

br
ar

y 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Sa

n 
G

ab
rie

l 
Li

br
ar

y 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
So

re
ns

en
 L

ib
ra

ry
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

So
ut

h 
El

 M
on

te
 

Li
br

ar
y 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

So
ut

h 
W

hi
tt

ie
r 

Li
br

ar
y 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

St
ev

en
so

n 
R

an
ch

 
Li

br
ar

y 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
Su

nk
is

t L
ib

ra
ry

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
T

em
pl

e 
C

ity
 

Li
br

ar
y 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
op

an
ga

 L
ib

ra
ry

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1 
V

ie
w

 P
ar

k 
B

eb
e 

M
oo

re
 C

am
pb

el
l 

Li
br

ar
y 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

W
al

nu
t L

ib
ra

ry
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

W
es

t C
ov

in
a 

Li
br

ar
y 

 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ta
bl

e 
C

-5
: L

ib
ra

ry
 H

az
ar

d 
Im

pa
ct

s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

  

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
  

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

  

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
W

es
t H

ol
ly

w
oo

d 
Li

br
ar

y 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
W

es
tla

ke
 V

ill
ag

e 
Li

br
ar

y 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
W

ill
ow

br
oo

k 
Li

br
ar

y 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
W

is
eb

ur
n 

Li
br

ar
y 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

W
oo

dc
re

st
 L

ib
ra

ry
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Ta
bl

e 
C

-6
: L

A
C

M
A

+M
N

H
 H

az
ar

d 
Im

pa
ct

s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

6 
Ft

 S
ea

 
Le

ve
l 

R
is

e 
 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

  

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
  

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

  

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
La

 B
re

a 
T

ar
pi

ts 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 

C
ou

nt
y 

M
us

eu
m

 o
f A

rt
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
at

ur
al

 H
is

to
ry

 
M

us
eu

m
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

W
ill

ia
m

 S
. 

H
ar

t M
us

eu
m

 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 

Ta
bl

e 
C

-7
: O

ffi
ce

 o
f E

du
ca

tio
n 

H
az

ar
d 

Im
pa

ct
s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 S
ea

 
Le

ve
l 

R
is

e 
 

6 
Ft

 S
ea

 
Le

ve
l 

R
is

e 
 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

  

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
  

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

  

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
A

ff
le

rb
au

gh
-P

ai
ge

 
C

am
p 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1 

A
lm

a 
Fu

er
te

 P
ub

lic
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
ni

m
o 

C
ity

 o
f 

C
ha

m
pi

on
s 

C
ha

rt
er

 
H

ig
h 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
sp

ire
 A

nt
on

io
 M

ar
ia

 
Lu

go
 A

ca
de

m
y 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
sp

ire
 O

lli
n 

U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 

Pr
ep

ar
at

or
y 

A
ca

de
m

y 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
C

en
tr

al
 J

uv
en

ile
 H

al
l 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

D
a 

V
in

ci
 R

IS
E 

H
ig

h 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l 

C
ha

rt
er

 M
id

dl
e 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l 
C

ha
rt

er
 M

id
dl

e 
- 

In
gl

ew
oo

d 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
In

te
lle

ct
ua

l V
irt

ue
s 

A
ca

de
m

y 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l 

Po
ly

te
ch

ni
c 

H
ig

h 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Ja

rd
in

 d
e 

la
 In

fa
nc

ia
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

K
irb

y,
 D

or
ot

hy
 C

am
p 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

L.
A

. C
ou

nt
y 

H
ig

h 
Sc

ho
ol

 f
or

 th
e 

A
rt

s 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
LA

's 
Pr

om
is

e 
C

ha
rt

er
 

H
ig

h 
#1

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
LA

's 
Pr

om
is

e 
C

ha
rt

er
 

M
id

dl
e 

#1
 

 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

La
sh

on
 A

ca
de

m
y 

 
 

1 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

du
ca

tio
n 

 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Ta
bl

e 
C

-7
: O

ffi
ce

 o
f E

du
ca

tio
n 

H
az

ar
d 

Im
pa

ct
s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 S
ea

 
Le

ve
l 

R
is

e 
 

6 
Ft

 S
ea

 
Le

ve
l 

R
is

e 
 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

  

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
  

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

  

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l C
ha

rt
er

 
H

ig
h 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

Lo
s 

Pa
dr

in
os

 J
uv

en
ile

 
H

al
l 

 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
ag

no
lia

 S
ci

en
ce

 
A

ca
de

m
y 

 
 

1 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
ag

no
lia

 S
ci

en
ce

 
A

ca
de

m
y 

2 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ag
no

lia
 S

ci
en

ce
 

A
ca

de
m

y 
3 

 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
ag

no
lia

 S
ci

en
ce

 
A

ca
de

m
y 

5 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

cN
ai

r C
am

p 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
N

id
or

f, 
B

ar
ry

 J.
 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
or

th
 V

al
le

y 
M

ili
ta

ry
 

In
st

itu
te

 C
ol

le
ge

 
Pr

ep
ar

at
or

y 
A

ca
de

m
y 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

O
dy

ss
ey

 C
ha

rt
er

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
O

ni
zu

ka
 C

am
p 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

O
pt

im
is

t C
ha

rt
er

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
Ph

oe
ni

x 
A

ca
de

m
y 

R
es

id
en

tia
l E

du
ca

tio
n 

C
en

te
r 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

R
en

ai
ss

an
ce

 C
ou

nt
y 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

R
oa

d 
to

 S
uc

ce
ss

 
A

ca
de

m
y 

at
 C

am
pu

s 
K

ilp
at

ric
k 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1 

R
oc

ke
y,

 G
le

nn
 C

am
p 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
 

Sc
ot

t, 
Jo

se
ph

 C
am

p 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1 
So

le
il 

A
ca

de
m

y 
C

ha
rt

er
 

 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
al

ie
nt

e 
C

ol
le

ge
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ta
bl

e 
C

-7
: O

ffi
ce

 o
f E

du
ca

tio
n 

H
az

ar
d 

Im
pa

ct
s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 S
ea

 
Le

ve
l 

R
is

e 
 

6 
Ft

 S
ea

 
Le

ve
l 

R
is

e 
 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

  

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
  

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

  

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
Pr

ep
ar

at
or

y 
C

ha
rt

er
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Ta
bl

e 
C

-7
: O

th
er

 (
O

ffi
ce

) 
Fa

ci
lit

y 
H

az
ar

d 
Im

pa
ct

s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 S
ea

 
Le

ve
l 

R
is

e 
 

6 
Ft

 S
ea

 
Le

ve
l 

R
is

e 
 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

  

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
  

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

  

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
10

00
 S

. F
re

m
on

t 
A

ve
. 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

10
55

 W
ils

hi
re

 
B

lv
d.

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
11

00
 N

or
th

 
Ea

st
er

n 
A

ve
. 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

11
04

 N
. M

is
si

on
 

R
d.

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
12

30
0 

Lo
w

er
 

A
zu

sa
 R

d.
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

12
40

0 
Im

pe
ria

l 
H

ig
hw

ay
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

12
86

0 
C

ro
ss

ro
ad

s 
Pa

rk
w

ay
 S

ou
th

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
13

20
 N

or
th

 
Ea

st
er

n 
A

ve
. 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

13
83

7 
Fi

ji 
W

ay
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

18
16

 S
. F

ig
ue

ro
a 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

21
0 

W
. T

em
pl

e 
St

. 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
21

1 
W

. T
em

pl
e 

St
. 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

31
3 

N
 F

ig
ue

ro
a 

St
. 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

31
75

 W
es

t S
ix

th
 

St
. 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

32
0 

W
es

t 
T

em
pl

e 
St

. 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
42

5 
Sh

at
to

 P
la

ce
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

55
0 

So
ut

h 
V

er
m

on
t 

A
ve

. 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
57

70
 S

. E
as

te
rn

 
A

ve
. 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ta
bl

e 
C

-7
: O

th
er

 (
O

ffi
ce

) 
Fa

ci
lit

y 
H

az
ar

d 
Im

pa
ct

s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 S
ea

 
Le

ve
l 

R
is

e 
 

6 
Ft

 S
ea

 
Le

ve
l 

R
is

e 
 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

  

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
  

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

  

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
58

98
 C

he
rr

y 
A

ve
. 

 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

59
05

 W
ils

hi
re

 
B

lv
d.

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
70

0 
W

. M
ai

n 
St

. 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
74

00
 E

as
t 

Im
pe

ria
l 

H
ig

hw
ay

 
 

 
 

1 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
90

0 
So

ut
h 

Fr
em

on
t A

ve
. 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

K
en

ne
th

 H
ah

n 
H

al
l o

f 
A

dm
in

is
tr

at
io

n 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Ta
bl

e 
C

-8
: P

ar
ks

 &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
Fa

ci
lit

y 
H

az
ar

d 
Im

pa
ct

s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

  

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
  

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

  

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
A

ct
on

 P
ar

k 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1 
A

dv
en

tu
re

 P
ar

k 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
A

dv
en

tu
re

 P
ar

k 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
A

lle
n 

J.
 M

ar
tin

 P
ar

k 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
A

lo
nd

ra
 C

om
m

un
ity

 
R

eg
io

na
l 

Pa
rk

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
A

lo
nd

ra
 C

om
m

un
ity

 
R

eg
io

na
l 

Pa
rk

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
A

m
el

ia
 M

ay
be

rr
y 

Pa
rk

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
A

m
el

ia
 M

ay
be

rr
y 

Pa
rk

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
A

m
ig

o 
Pa

rk
 

  
  

  
1 

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

A
rc

ad
ia

 C
om

m
un

ity
 

R
eg

io
na

l 
Pa

rk
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

A
rc

ad
ia

 C
om

m
un

ity
 

R
eg

io
na

l 
Pa

rk
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

A
th

en
s P

ar
k 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

A
th

en
s P

ar
k 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

B
as

se
tt

 P
ar

k 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
B

as
se

tt
 P

ar
k 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

B
as

se
tt

 P
ar

k 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
B

el
ve

de
re

 C
om

m
un

ity
 

R
eg

io
na

l 
Pa

rk
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

B
el

ve
de

re
 C

om
m

un
ity

 
R

eg
io

na
l 

Pa
rk

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
B

od
ge

r 
Pa

rk
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ar

ol
yn

 R
os

as
 P

ar
k 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
as

ta
ic

 R
eg

io
na

l 
Sp

or
ts

 
C

om
pl

ex
 

  
  

1 
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1 

C
as

ta
ic

 R
eg

io
na

l 
Sp

or
ts

 
C

om
pl

ex
 

  
  

1 
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1 

Ta
bl

e 
C

-8
: P

ar
ks

 &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
Fa

ci
lit

y 
H

az
ar

d 
Im

pa
ct

s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

  

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
  

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

  

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
C

ha
rle

s 
S.

 F
ar

ns
w

or
th

 
Pa

rk
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

C
ha

rle
s 

S.
 F

ar
ns

w
or

th
 

Pa
rk

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ha
rle

s 
S.

 F
ar

ns
w

or
th

 
Pa

rk
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ha

rle
s 

S.
 F

ar
ns

w
or

th
 

Pa
rk

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ha
rt

er
 O

ak
 P

ar
k 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ity

 T
er

ra
ce

 P
ar

k 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

ity
 T

er
ra

ce
 P

ar
k 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ol

. L
eo

n 
H

. 
W

as
hi

ng
to

n 
Pa

rk
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ol

. L
eo

n 
H

. 
W

as
hi

ng
to

n 
Pa

rk
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
re

sc
en

ta
 V

al
le

y 
C

om
m

un
ity

 R
eg

io
na

l 
Pa

rk
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

C
re

sc
en

ta
 V

al
le

y 
C

om
m

un
ity

 R
eg

io
na

l 
Pa

rk
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

D
al

to
n 

Pa
rk

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
D

el
 A

ire
 P

ar
k 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

D
el

 A
ire

 P
ar

k 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
D

ev
il'

s 
Pu

nc
hb

ow
l 

N
at

ur
al

 A
re

a 
an

d 
N

at
ur

e 
C

en
te

r 
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
1 

  
D

ex
te

r 
Pa

rk
 

  
  

  
  

1 
  

  
1 

  
  

  
1 

D
ex

te
r 

Pa
rk

 
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

1 
  

  
  

1 
D

on
 K

na
be

 C
om

m
un

ity
 

R
eg

io
na

l 
Pa

rk
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Ta
bl

e 
C

-8
: P

ar
ks

 &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
Fa

ci
lit

y 
H

az
ar

d 
Im

pa
ct

s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

  

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
  

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

  

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
D

on
 K

na
be

 C
om

m
un

ity
 

R
eg

io
na

l 
Pa

rk
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

D
on

 K
na

be
 C

om
m

un
ity

 
R

eg
io

na
l 

Pa
rk

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Ea

st
 R

an
ch

o 
D

om
in

gu
ez

 P
ar

k 
  

  
  

1 
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
Ea

st
 R

an
ch

o 
D

om
in

gu
ez

 P
ar

k 
  

  
  

1 
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
Ea

st
 R

an
ch

o 
D

om
in

gu
ez

 P
ar

k 
  

  
  

1 
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
El

 C
ar

is
o 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

R
eg

io
na

l 
Pa

rk
 

  
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

El
 C

ar
is

o 
C

om
m

un
ity

 
R

eg
io

na
l 

Pa
rk

 
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
El

 C
ar

is
o 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

R
eg

io
na

l 
Pa

rk
 

  
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

En
te

rp
ris

e P
ar

k 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Eu

ge
ne

 A
. O

br
eg

on
 

Pa
rk

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Eu

ge
ne

 A
. O

br
eg

on
 

Pa
rk

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Fr

an
kl

in
 D

. R
oo

se
ve

lt 
Pa

rk
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Fr
an

kl
in

 D
. R

oo
se

ve
lt 

Pa
rk

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
G

eo
rg

e 
La

ne
 P

ar
k 

  
  

  
  

1 
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

G
eo

rg
e 

La
ne

 P
ar

k 
  

  
  

  
1 

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
G

eo
rg

e 
W

as
hi

ng
to

n 
C

ar
ve

r 
Pa

rk
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Ta
bl

e 
C

-8
: P

ar
ks

 &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
Fa

ci
lit

y 
H

az
ar

d 
Im

pa
ct

s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

  

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
  

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

  

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 

H
ac

ie
nd

a 
H

ei
gh

ts
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 an

d 
R

ec
 

C
en

te
r 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

H
ac

ie
nd

a 
H

ei
gh

ts
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 an

d 
R

ec
 

C
en

te
r 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

H
ac

ie
nd

a 
H

ei
gh

ts
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 an

d 
R

ec
 

C
en

te
r 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

H
el

en
 K

el
le

r 
Pa

rk
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

H
ol

ly
w

oo
d 

B
ow

l 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

1 
  

  
Ja

ck
ie

 R
ob

in
so

n 
Pa

rk
 

  
  

  
  

1 
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

Ja
ck

ie
 R

ob
in

so
n 

Pa
rk

 
  

  
  

  
1 

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
Je

ss
e 

O
w

en
s 

C
om

m
un

ity
 R

eg
io

na
l 

Pa
rk

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Je

ss
e 

O
w

en
s 

C
om

m
un

ity
 R

eg
io

na
l 

Pa
rk

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Jo

hn
 A

ns
on

 F
or

d 
A

m
ph

ith
ea

tr
e 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

Jo
hn

 A
ns

on
 F

or
d 

A
m

ph
ith

ea
tr

e 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

1 
  

  
K

en
ne

th
 H

ah
n 

St
at

e 
R

ec
re

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

La
de

ra
 P

ar
k 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

La
de

ra
 P

ar
k 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

La
de

ra
 P

ar
k 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Le
nn

ox
 P

ar
k 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Le
nn

ox
 P

ar
k 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Le
nn

ox
 P

ar
k 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Ta
bl

e 
C

-8
: P

ar
ks

 &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
Fa

ci
lit

y 
H

az
ar

d 
Im

pa
ct

s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

  

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
  

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

  

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
Lo

m
a 

A
lta

 P
ar

k 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1 
Lo

m
a 

A
lta

 P
ar

k 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

A
rb

or
et

um
 a

nd
 B

ot
an

ic
 

G
ar

de
n 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

M
an

za
ni

ta
 P

ar
k 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

M
ar

y 
M

. B
et

hu
ne

 P
ar

k 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
M

ar
y 

M
. B

et
hu

ne
 P

ar
k 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

M
on

a P
ar

k 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
M

on
a P

ar
k 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Pa
m

el
a 

C
ou

nt
y 

Pa
rk

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Pa

m
el

a 
C

ou
nt

y 
Pa

rk
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Pa
th

fin
de

r C
om

m
un

ity
 

R
eg

io
na

l 
Pa

rk
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
1 

  
1 

Pe
ar

bl
os

so
m

 C
ou

nt
y 

Pa
rk

 
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Pe

te
r F

 S
ch

ab
ar

um
 

R
eg

io
na

l 
C

ou
nt

y 
Pa

rk
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

R
im

gr
ov

e 
Pa

rk
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

R
ow

la
nd

 H
ei

gh
ts

 P
ar

k 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
R

oy
 C

am
pa

ne
lla

 P
ar

k 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
R

ub
en

 F
 S

al
az

ar
 P

ar
k 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

R
ub

en
 F

 S
al

az
ar

 P
ar

k 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
R

ub
en

 F
 S

al
az

ar
 P

ar
k 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Sa
n 

A
ng

el
o 

Pa
rk

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Sa

n 
Fe

rn
an

do
 

R
ec

re
at

io
n 

Pa
rk

 a
nd

 
A

qu
at

ic
 C

en
te

r 
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Sa

yb
ro

ok
 P

ar
k 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

So
re

ns
en

 P
ar

k 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

Ta
bl

e 
C

-8
: P

ar
ks

 &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
Fa

ci
lit

y 
H

az
ar

d 
Im

pa
ct

s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

  

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
  

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

  

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
So

ut
h 

C
oa

st
 B

ot
an

ic
 

G
ar

de
n 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

St
ep

he
n 

So
re

ns
en

 P
ar

k 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Su

ns
hi

ne
 P

ar
k 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

T
ed

 W
at

ki
ns

 M
em

or
ia

l 
Pa

rk
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

T
ed

 W
at

ki
ns

 M
em

or
ia

l 
Pa

rk
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

T
es

or
o 

A
do

be
 H

is
to

ric
 

Pa
rk

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

1 
  

1 
V

al
 V

er
de

 C
om

m
un

ity
 

R
eg

io
na

l 
Pa

rk
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1 

V
al

 V
er

de
 C

om
m

un
ity

 
R

eg
io

na
l 

Pa
rk

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1 
V

al
le

yd
al

e 
Pa

rk
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

V
al

le
yd

al
e 

Pa
rk

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
V

as
qu

ez
 R

oc
ks

 N
at

ur
al

 
A

re
a 

an
d 

N
at

ur
e C

en
te

r 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1 
V

et
er

an
s 

M
em

or
ia

l 
C

om
m

un
ity

 R
eg

io
na

l 
Pa

rk
 

  
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

V
ic

to
ria

 C
om

m
un

ity
 

R
eg

io
na

l 
Pa

rk
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

V
ic

to
ria

 C
om

m
un

ity
 

R
eg

io
na

l 
Pa

rk
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

W
al

nu
t N

at
ur

e 
Pa

rk
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

W
hi

tt
ie

r N
ar

ro
w

s 
R

ec
re

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

W
ill

ia
m

 S
. H

ar
t 

R
eg

io
na

l 
Pa

rk
 

  
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

W
ill

ia
m

 S
te

in
m

et
z 

Pa
rk

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Ta
bl

e 
C

-8
: P

ar
ks

 &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
Fa

ci
lit

y 
H

az
ar

d 
Im

pa
ct

s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

  

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
  

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

  

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
W

ill
ia

m
 S

te
in

m
et

z 
Pa

rk
 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

W
ill

ia
m

 S
te

in
m

et
z 

Pa
rk

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

Ta
bl

e 
C

-9
: P

ub
lic

 H
ea

lth
 F

ac
ili

ty
 H

az
ar

d 
Im

pa
ct

s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

  

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
  

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

  

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
A

nt
el

op
e V

al
le

y 
H

ea
lth

 
C

en
te

r  
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
C

en
tr

al
 P

ub
lic

 H
ea

lth
 C

en
te

r 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
C

ur
tis

 R
. T

uc
ke

r H
ea

lth
 

C
en

te
r 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

G
le

nd
al

e 
H

ea
lth

 C
en

te
r 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

H
ol

ly
w

oo
d/

W
ils

hi
re

 P
ub

lic
 

H
ea

lth
 C

en
te

r 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ar
tin

 L
ut

he
r K

in
g,

 J
r. 

C
en

te
r 

fo
r P

ub
lic

 H
ea

lth
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
on

ro
vi

a P
ub

lic
 H

ea
lth

 
C

en
te

r 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
N

or
th

 H
ol

ly
w

oo
d 

Pu
bl

ic
 

H
ea

lth
 C

en
te

r 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Pa

co
im

a 
Pu

bl
ic

 H
el

at
h 

C
en

te
r 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Po
m

on
a 

Pu
bl

ic
 H

ea
lth

 C
en

te
r 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

R
ut

h-
T

em
pl

e P
ub

lic
 H

ea
lth

 
C

en
te

r 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Si

m
m

s/
M

an
n 

H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 

W
el

ln
es

s 
C

en
te

r 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
T

or
ra

nc
e 

Pu
bl

ic
 H

el
at

h 
C

en
te

r 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
W

hi
tt

ie
r P

ub
lic

 H
ea

lth
 C

en
te

r 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Ta
bl

e 
C

-1
0:

 P
ub

lic
 W

or
ks

 F
ac

ili
ty

 H
az

ar
d 

Im
pa

ct
s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

  

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
  

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

  

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
B

ra
ck

et
t F

ie
ld

 A
irp

or
t 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
om

pt
on

/W
oo

dl
ey

 
A

irp
or

t 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Sa

n 
G

ab
rie

l V
al

le
y 

A
irp

or
t 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

G
en

er
al

 W
m

. J
. F

ox
 

A
irf

ie
ld

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
W

hi
te

m
an

 A
irp

or
t 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

B
ig

 D
al

to
n 

D
am

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

1 
 

 
B

ig
 T

uj
un

ga
 D

am
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

C
og

sw
el

l D
am

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
D

ev
il'

s 
G

at
e D

am
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

Ea
to

n 
W

as
h 

D
am

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Li

ve
 O

ak
 D

am
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1 

M
or

ris
 D

am
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
1 

Pa
co

im
a 

D
am

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

1 
Pu

dd
in

gs
to

ne
 D

am
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pu
dd

in
gs

to
ne

 
D

iv
er

si
on

 D
am

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Sa

n 
D

im
as

 D
am

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1 
Sa

n 
G

ab
rie

l D
am

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Sa

nt
a 

A
ni

ta
 D

am
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

T
ho

m
ps

on
 C

re
ek

 D
am

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
PW

 IT
D

 –
 M

ou
nt

 
W

ils
on

 R
ad

io
 A

nt
en

na
 

T
ow

er
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 IT

D
 –

 M
ou

nt
 

W
ils

on
 R

ad
io

 F
ac

ili
ty

 
B

ld
g.

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
PW

 W
W

D
 - 

37
-1

 W
el

l 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1 
PW

 W
W

D
 - 

37
-3

 W
el

l 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1 

Ta
bl

e 
C

-1
0:

 P
ub

lic
 W

or
ks

 F
ac

ili
ty

 H
az

ar
d 

Im
pa

ct
s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

  

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
  

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

  

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
PW

 W
W

D
 - 

37
-4

 W
el

l 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1 
PW

 H
ea

dq
ua

rt
er

s 
B

ui
ld

in
g 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 R

M
D

 –
 D

iv
. #

11
6 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 Y
ar

d 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
PW

 R
M

D
 –

 D
iv

. #
14

2 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 Y

ar
d 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
PW

 R
M

D
 –

 D
iv

. #
41

7 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 Y

ar
d 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 R

M
D

 –
 B

al
dw

in
 

Pa
rk

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 
Y

ar
d 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 R

M
D

 - 
Lo

w
er

 
C

en
tr

al
 Y

ar
d 

– 
D

iv
is

io
n 

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 R

M
D

 - 
U

pp
er

 
C

en
tr

al
 Y

ar
d 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 R

M
D

 –
 V

an
 P

el
t 

B
rid

ge
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 

Y
ar

d 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 –
 Im

pe
ria

l 
Y

ar
d 

 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 –

 
Lo

ng
de

n 
Y

ar
d 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 –

 R
io

 
H

on
do

 Y
ar

d 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 –
 

R
iv

er
vi

ew
 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 Y
ar

d 
 

 
 

1 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
PW

 R
M

D
 –

 D
iv

. 
#1

41
/2

41
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 

Y
ar

d 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Ta
bl

e 
C

-1
0:

 P
ub

lic
 W

or
ks

 F
ac

ili
ty

 H
az

ar
d 

Im
pa

ct
s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

  

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
  

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

  

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
PW

 R
M

D
 –

 D
iv

. #
23

2 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 Y

ar
d 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 R

M
D

 –
 M

ai
nt

. 
D

is
tr

ic
t 3

 Y
ar

d 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 –
 8

3r
d 

St
. 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 Y
ar

d 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
PW

 R
M

D
 –

 D
iv

. #
33

6 
M

ai
nt

. Y
d.

  
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
PW

 R
M

D
 –

 D
iv

. 
#3

39
/5

39
 A

go
ur

a 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 Y

ar
d 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 –

 S
at

ic
oy

 
Y

ar
d 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
20

85
8 

R
eg

ul
at

in
g 

St
at

io
n 

 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
B

ig
 

R
oc

k 
90

0 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
1 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
B

ig
 

R
oc

k 
10

10
 T

an
k 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
1 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
B

ig
 

R
oc

k 
12

00
 T

an
k 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
1 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
B

ro
ad

 B
ea

ch
 

R
eg

ul
at

in
g 

St
at

io
n 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
C

ar
bo

n 
M

es
a T

an
k 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
En

tr
ad

a 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
1 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
En

tr
ad

a 
T

an
k 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
1 

Ta
bl

e 
C

-1
0:

 P
ub

lic
 W

or
ks

 F
ac

ili
ty

 H
az

ar
d 

Im
pa

ct
s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

  

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
  

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

  

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
PW

 W
W

D
 #

29
 - 

Fe
rn

w
oo

d 
T

an
k 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
1 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
G

ue
rn

se
y 

R
eg

ul
at

in
g 

St
at

io
n 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
H

ea
th

er
 C

lif
f 

R
eg

ul
at

in
g 

St
at

io
n 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
H

or
iz

on
 T

an
k 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
H

um
e 

T
an

k 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1 
PW

 W
W

D
 #

29
 - 

La
 

C
hu

sa
 F

ee
de

r 
R

eg
ul

at
in

g 
St

at
io

n 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
PW

 W
W

D
 #

29
 - 

La
 

C
os

ta
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
La

 
C

os
ta

 R
eg

ul
at

in
g 

St
at

io
n 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
La

s 
Fl

or
es

 P
um

p 
St

at
io

n 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
PW

 W
W

D
 #

29
 - 

La
s 

Fl
or

es
 T

an
k 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
La

tig
o 

T
an

k 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

1 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
Lo

w
er

 B
ig

 R
oc

k 
19

5 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
LV

M
W

D
, H

um
e 

C
on

ne
ct

io
n 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
1 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Ta
bl

e 
C

-1
0:

 P
ub

lic
 W

or
ks

 F
ac

ili
ty

 H
az

ar
d 

Im
pa

ct
s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

  

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
  

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

  

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
LV

M
W

D
, L

at
ig

o 
C

on
ne

ct
io

n 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

1 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
LV

M
W

D
 , 

Sa
dd

le
 

Pe
ak

 In
te

rc
on

ne
ct

io
n 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
Lo

w
er

 B
us

ch
 P

um
p 

St
at

io
n 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
M

al
ib

u 
B

ea
ch

 P
um

p 
St

at
io

n 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
PW

 W
W

D
 #

29
 - 

M
al

ib
u 

K
no

lls
 T

an
k 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
N

ew
 

Su
m

m
it 

T
an

k 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1 
PW

 W
W

D
 #

29
 - 

N
ic

ho
la

s 
B

ea
ch

 T
an

k 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

1 
 

1 
 

 
PW

 W
W

D
 #

29
 - 

O
ld

 
Su

m
m

it 
T

an
k 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
O

w
en

 P
um

p 
St

at
io

n 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
Pe

pp
er

di
ne

 5
45

 P
um

p 
St

at
io

n 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
PW

 W
W

D
 #

29
 - 

Pe
pp

er
di

ne
 8

12
 T

an
k 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
Pe

pp
er

di
ne

 9
07

 T
an

k 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

1 
PW

 W
W

D
 #

29
 - 

Ph
ili

p 
T

an
k 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

Ta
bl

e 
C

-1
0:

 P
ub

lic
 W

or
ks

 F
ac

ili
ty

 H
az

ar
d 

Im
pa

ct
s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

  

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
  

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

  

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
Po

in
t 

D
um

e 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

an
d 

T
an

k 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
PW

 W
W

D
 #

29
 - 

Po
rt

sh
ea

d 
T

an
k 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
Sa

dd
le

 P
ea

k 
T

an
k 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
1 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
Sa

nt
a 

M
ar

ia
 T

an
k 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
Se

rr
a 

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
PW

 W
W

D
 #

29
 - 

Su
m

ac
 R

id
ge

 T
an

k 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
PW

 W
W

D
 #

29
 - 

Sw
ee

tw
at

er
 H

yd
ro

 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
Sw

ee
tw

at
er

 M
es

a 
T

an
k 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
T

op
an

ga
 B

ea
ch

 P
um

p 
St

at
io

n 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

1 
PW

 W
W

D
 #

29
 - 

T
op

an
ga

 B
ea

ch
 T

an
k 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
T

op
an

ga
 F

or
ks

 T
an

k 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

1 
PW

 W
W

D
 #

29
 - 

T
op

an
ga

 O
ak

s 
T

an
k 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
1 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
T

op
an

ga
 P

ar
k 

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Ta
bl

e 
C

-1
0:

 P
ub

lic
 W

or
ks

 F
ac

ili
ty

 H
az

ar
d 

Im
pa

ct
s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

  

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
  

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

  

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
PW

 W
W

D
 #

29
 - 

T
ra

nc
as

 T
an

k 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
PW

 W
W

D
 #

29
 - 

U
pp

er
 B

ig
 R

oc
k 

73
0 

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

1 
 

1 
 

 
PW

 W
W

D
 #

29
 - 

U
pp

er
 E

nc
in

al
 T

an
k 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 - 
W

in
di

ng
 W

y 
T

an
k 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
1 

PW
 R

M
D

 - 
D

iv
 4

46
 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 Y
ar

d 
 

 
 

1 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
PW

 R
M

D
 –

 D
iv

. #
44

6 
Su

b 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 Y

ar
d 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 R

M
D

 –
 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
N

o.
4 

Y
ar

d 
 

 
 

1 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 –
 

A
la

m
ito

s 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 

Y
ar

d 
 

 
 

1 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 –
 E

l 
Se

gu
nd

o 
Y

ar
d 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 –

 
R

ed
on

do
 Y

ar
d 

O
ff

ic
e 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
29

 
LA

D
W

P 
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

V
ia

 D
ol

ce
 C

on
ne

ct
io

n 
 

 
 

1 
 

1 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
PW

 W
W

D
 #

29
 –

 
LA

D
W

P 
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

M
in

da
na

o 
C

on
ne

ct
io

n 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
PW

 O
SD

 - 
Ea

to
n 

Y
ar

d 
– 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 O
ff

ic
e 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

Ta
bl

e 
C

-1
0:

 P
ub

lic
 W

or
ks

 F
ac

ili
ty

 H
az

ar
d 

Im
pa

ct
s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

  

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
  

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

  

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
PW

 R
M

D
 –

 5
18

-B
 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 Y
ar

d 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
PW

 R
M

D
 –

 D
iv

. #
52

3 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 Y

ar
d 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
PW

 R
M

D
 –

 D
iv

. #
52

4 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 Y

ar
d 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

PW
 R

M
D

 –
 D

iv
. #

51
8 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 Y
ar

d 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
PW

 R
M

D
 –

 D
iv

. #
51

9 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 Y

ar
d 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 R

M
D

 –
 D

iv
. #

52
6 

M
ai

nt
. Y

d.
  

 
 

1 
1 

 
1 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

PW
 R

M
D

 –
 D

iv
. #

55
1 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 Y
ar

d 
 

 
 

 
1 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
PW

 R
M

D
 –

 D
iv

. #
55

5 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 Y

ar
d 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
PW

 R
M

D
 –

 D
iv

. #
55

8 
M

ai
nt

. Y
ar

d 
 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 R

M
D

 –
 D

iv
. 

#5
58

a 
Ja

ck
so

n 
La

ke
 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 Y
d.

 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
PW

 R
M

D
 –

 D
iv

. 
#5

59
b 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 
Y

ar
d 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 R

M
D

 –
 P

al
m

da
le

 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 D

is
t. 

N
o.

 
5 

B
ld

g.
 Y

ar
d 

 
 

 
 

1 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 –

 E
at

on
 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 Y
ar

d 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 –
 P

ic
ke

ns
 

Y
ar

d 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Ta
bl

e 
C

-1
0:

 P
ub

lic
 W

or
ks

 F
ac

ili
ty

 H
az

ar
d 

Im
pa

ct
s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

  

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
  

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

  

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 –
 R

ub
io

 
Y

ar
d 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 –

 S
an

ta
 

C
la

ra
 F

lo
od

 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 Y

ar
d 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
04

 –
 

N
or

th
 A

dm
in

is
tr

at
io

n 
B

ui
ld

in
g 

 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 –

 S
an

 
D

im
as

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 
Y

ar
d 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 S

M
D

 - 
B

al
fo

ur
 

 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 S

M
D

 - 
B

ra
dh

ur
st

 
 

 
 

1 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
PW

 S
M

D
 - 

B
ro

ad
w

ay
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 S

M
D

 - 
M

us
ca

te
l 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 S

M
D

 - 
Pa

in
te

r 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
PW

 S
M

D
 - 

Su
rr

ey
 

D
riv

e 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

1 
 

1 
 

 
PW

 S
M

D
 - 

13
2N

D
 

ST
R

EE
T

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
PW

 S
M

D
 - 

C
en

tin
el

a 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
PW

 S
M

D
 - 

D
av

id
s 

R
oa

d 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
PW

 S
M

D
 - 

U
lm

us
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
 

PW
 S

M
D

 - 
V

ie
w

rid
ge

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

1 
 

1 
 

 
PW

 S
M

D
 - 

21
3T

H
 

ST
R

EE
T

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
PW

 S
M

D
 - 

A
G

A
V

E 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
PW

 S
M

D
 - 

H
EA

T
H

ER
FI

EL
D

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

1 
 

1 
 

 
PW

 S
M

D
 - 

M
A

Y
B

R
O

O
K

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Ta
bl

e 
C

-1
0:

 P
ub

lic
 W

or
ks

 F
ac

ili
ty

 H
az

ar
d 

Im
pa

ct
s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

  

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
  

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

  

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
PW

 W
W

D
 - 

11
6t

h 
st

re
et

 p
um

p 
st

at
io

n 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
PW

 W
W

D
 - 

P-
10

 
Pu

m
p 

st
at

io
n 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 W

W
D

 - 
T

ie
rr

a 
Su

bi
da

 P
um

p 
St

at
io

n 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
PW

 S
M

D
 - 

C
A

PA
LL

ER
O

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1 
PW

 S
M

D
 - 

C
O

M
M

ER
C

E 
C

EN
T

ER
 D

R
IV

E 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
PW

 S
M

D
 - 

LA
K

E 
H

U
G

H
ES

 - 
N

EW
V

A
LE

 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1 
PW

 S
M

D
 - 

LA
K

E 
H

U
G

H
ES

 - 
T

R
A

IL
 K

 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1 
PW

 S
M

D
 - 

LO
W

R
ID

G
E 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

PW
 S

M
D

 - 
M

A
R

IN
A

 
D

EL
 R

EY
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

PW
 S

M
D

 - 
T

Y
LE

R
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 W

W
D

 - 
C

ro
w

n 
V

al
le

y 
Pu

m
p 

st
at

io
n 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1 

PW
 W

W
D

 - 
H

as
le

y 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 - 

12
0t

h 
St

. P
um

p 
St

at
io

n 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 - 
A

la
m

ed
a 

St
re

et
 3

B
 

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n 
 

 
 

1 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 - 
A

la
m

ed
a 

St
re

et
 3

C
 

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n 
 

 
 

1 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Ta
bl

e 
C

-1
0:

 P
ub

lic
 W

or
ks

 F
ac

ili
ty

 H
az

ar
d 

Im
pa

ct
s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

  

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
  

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

  

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 - 
A

va
lo

n 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 - 

C
om

pt
on

 C
re

ek
 P

um
p 

St
at

io
n 

#1
 

 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 - 

C
om

pt
on

 C
re

ek
 P

um
p 

St
at

io
n 

#2
 

 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 - 

D
om

in
ge

r 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 - 

Le
nn

ox
 

B
lv

d 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 - 

O
xf

or
d 

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 - 
R

ed
on

do
 B

ea
ch

 B
lv

d 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 - 

B
oo

ne
 

O
liv

e 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 - 

El
ec

tr
ic

 
A

ve
 P

um
p 

St
at

io
n 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 - 

17
th

 S
t 

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 - 
A

la
m

ito
s 

B
ay

 P
um

p 
St

at
io

n 
 

1 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 - 
A

lo
nd

ra
 

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n 
 

 
 

1 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 - 
A

na
he

im
 S

t. 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

 
1 

 
1 

 
1 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

Ta
bl

e 
C

-1
0:

 P
ub

lic
 W

or
ks

 F
ac

ili
ty

 H
az

ar
d 

Im
pa

ct
s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

  

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
  

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

  

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 - 
A

pp
ia

n 
W

ay
 P

um
p 

St
at

io
n 

 
1 

 
1 

 
1 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 - 

A
re

na
 

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 - 
B

el
m

on
t 

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n 
1 

1 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 - 
C

en
tu

ry
 

Fr
w

y 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 - 

C
er

rit
os

 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 - 

C
la

re
tt

a 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 - 

C
or

do
va

 
W

al
k 

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 - 
D

om
in

gu
ez

 P
um

p 
St

at
io

n 
 

 
 

1 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 - 
D

or
is

 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 - 

Ea
st

 
T

ol
ed

o 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 - 

El
 

D
or

ad
o 

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n 
 

 
 

1 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 - 
El

 
Se

gu
nd

o 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 - 

G
ar

ne
t 

A
ve

nu
e 

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n 
 

 
 

1 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 - 
H

am
ilt

on
 B

ow
l S

ou
th

 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 - 

H
am

ilt
on

 B
ow

l W
es

t 
 

 
 

1 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Ta
bl

e 
C

-1
0:

 P
ub

lic
 W

or
ks

 F
ac

ili
ty

 H
az

ar
d 

Im
pa

ct
s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

  

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
  

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

  

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 - 

H
ill

 S
t. 

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n 
 

 
 

1 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 - 
Jo

hn
so

n 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 - 

La
ke

w
oo

d 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 - 

Lo
s 

A
lto

s P
um

p 
St

at
io

n 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 - 
Ly

nw
oo

d 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 - 

M
an

ha
tt

an
 B

ea
ch

 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 - 

M
ar

ke
t 

St
. P

um
p 

St
at

io
n 

 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 - 

N
ap

le
s 

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 - 
Pa

ra
m

ou
nt

 P
um

p 
St

at
io

n 
 

 
 

1 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 - 
Se

as
id

e 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 - 

W
al

te
ria

 
La

ke
 P

um
p 

St
at

io
n 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 S

W
M

D
 - 

W
es

t 
Lo

ng
 B

ea
ch

 P
um

p 
St

at
io

n 
1 

1 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 - 
W

es
t 

N
ea

po
lit

an
 P

um
p 

St
at

io
n 

1 
1 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

Ta
bl

e 
C

-1
0:

 P
ub

lic
 W

or
ks

 F
ac

ili
ty

 H
az

ar
d 

Im
pa

ct
s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

  

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
  

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

  

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 - 
W

es
t 

T
ol

ed
o 

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
PW

 S
W

M
D

 - 
W

ilm
in

gt
on

 U
ni

t 2
 

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
PW

 S
M

D
 –

 M
al

ib
u 

M
es

a W
W

T
P 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

PW
 S

M
D

 –
 M

al
ib

u 
T

P 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
PW

 S
M

D
 - 

T
ra

nc
as

 
W

W
T

P 
 

 
 

1 
 

1 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
PW

 S
M

D
 –

 L
A

K
E 

H
U

G
H

ES
 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 W

W
D

 - 
27

 T
an

k 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
PW

 W
W

D
 - 

39
 T

an
k 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

PW
 W

W
D

 - 
11

6t
h 

st
re

et
 T

an
k 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

PW
 W

W
D

 - 
A

do
be

 
T

an
k 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 W

W
D

 - 
B

lu
e 

R
oc

k 
T

an
k 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 W

W
D

 - 
B

ut
te

’s
 

T
an

k 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
PW

 W
W

D
 - 

C
ity

 
R

an
ch

 T
an

ks
 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 W

W
D

 - 
Ft

. T
ej

on
 

T
an

k 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
PW

 W
W

D
 - 

Jo
sh

ua
 

R
an

ch
 T

an
k 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

PW
 W

W
D

 - 
K

oh
l’s

 
ta

nk
 

 
 

 
 

1 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 W

W
D

 - 
M

 &
 7

th
 

w
es

t T
an

k 
si

te
 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Ta
bl

e 
C

-1
0:

 P
ub

lic
 W

or
ks

 F
ac

ili
ty

 H
az

ar
d 

Im
pa

ct
s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

  

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
  

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

  

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
PW

 W
W

D
 - 

Q
-9

 
T

an
ks

 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
PW

 W
W

D
 - 

R
an

ch
o 

V
is

ta
 ta

nk
s 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
 

PW
 W

W
D

 - 
T

ie
rr

a 
Su

bi
da

 T
an

ks
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
04

 –
 M

/5
e 

W
at

er
 T

an
k 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 W

W
D

 #
04

-
M

8/
75

w
 W

at
er

 T
an

k 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
PW

 W
W

D
 - 

C
uy

am
a 

T
an

k 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

1 
PW

 W
W

D
 - 

H
as

le
y 

T
an

k 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1 
PW

 W
W

D
 - 

N
or

th
 

T
an

k 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1 
PW

 W
W

D
 - 

M
cC

en
ne

ry
 T

an
k 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
1 

PW
 W

W
D

 - 
So

ut
h 

T
an

k 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1 
PW

 W
W

D
 - 

16
8t

h 
an

d 
G

 P
um

p 
st

at
io

n 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
PW

 W
W

D
 - 

A
na

ve
rd

e 
T

an
ks

 an
d 

pu
m

p 
st

at
io

n 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
PW

 W
W

D
 - 

O
ld

 
tim

er
s 

ta
nk

 a
nd

 p
um

p 
st

at
io

n 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
PW

 W
W

D
 - 

Lo
s 

V
al

le
s 

Pu
m

p 
st

at
io

n 
an

d 
W

el
l 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1 

PW
 W

W
D

 - 
V

in
ce

nt
 

Pu
m

p 
st

at
io

n 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1 

Ta
bl

e 
C

-1
0:

 P
ub

lic
 W

or
ks

 F
ac

ili
ty

 H
az

ar
d 

Im
pa

ct
s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

  

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
  

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

  

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
PW

 W
W

D
 - 

B
ev

 
m

ar
tin

 ta
nk

 a
nd

 P
um

p 
St

at
io

n 
 

 
 

1 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
PW

 S
M

D
 –

 E
as

t Y
ar

d 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
PW

 S
M

D
 - 

La
w

nd
al

e 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
PW

 S
M

D
 –

 S
ou

th
 

Y
ar

d 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
PW

 S
M

D
 –

 C
en

tr
al

 
Y

ar
d 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PW
 S

M
D

 –
 N

or
th

 
Y

ar
d 

 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Ta
bl

e 
C

-1
1:

 S
he

rif
f’s

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Fa
ci

lit
y 

H
az

ar
d 

Im
pa

ct
s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

  

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
  

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

  

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
A

lta
de

na
 S

he
rif

f's
 S

ta
tio

n 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

va
lo

n 
Sh

er
iff

's 
St

at
io

n 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
C

ar
so

n 
Sh

er
iff

's 
St

at
io

n 
 

 
 

1 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
C

en
tu

ry
 R

eg
io

na
l 

D
et

en
tio

n 
Fa

ci
lit

y 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

C
en

tu
ry

 S
he

rif
f's

 S
ta

tio
n 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
er

rit
os

 S
he

rif
f's

 S
ta

tio
n 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
om

pt
on

 S
he

rif
f's

 S
ta

tio
n 

 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
re

sc
en

ta
 V

al
le

y 
Sh

er
iff

's 
St

at
io

n 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
Ea

st
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 S

he
rif

f's
 

St
at

io
n 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

In
du

st
ry

 S
he

rif
f's

 S
ta

tio
n 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

In
m

at
e 

R
ec

ep
tio

n 
C

en
te

r 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
La

ke
w

oo
d 

Sh
er

iff
’s

 S
ta

tio
n 

 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

La
nc

as
te

r 
Sh

er
iff

's 
St

at
io

n 
 

 
 

1 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Lo

m
ita

 S
he

rif
f's

 S
ta

tio
n 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
al

ib
u/

Lo
st

 H
ill

s 
Sh

er
iff

's 
St

at
io

n 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
M

ar
in

a 
D

el
 R

ey
 S

he
rif

f's
 

St
at

io
n 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

M
en

's 
C

en
tr

al
 J

ai
l 

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

N
or

th
 C

ou
nt

y 
C

or
re

ct
io

na
l 

Fa
ci

lit
y 

  
  

1 
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

1 
  

N
or

w
al

k 
Sh

er
iff

's 
St

at
io

n 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Pa

lm
da

le
 S

he
rif

f's
 S

ta
tio

n 
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Pi

co
 R

iv
er

a 
Sh

er
iff

's 
St

at
io

n 
 

 
 

1 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Pi

tc
he

ss
 D

et
en

tio
n 

C
en

te
r 

Ea
st

 F
ac

ili
ty

 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

1 

Ta
bl

e 
C

-1
1:

 S
he

rif
f’s

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Fa
ci

lit
y 

H
az

ar
d 

Im
pa

ct
s 

Fa
ci

li
ty

 N
am

e 

3 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

6 
Ft

 
S

ea
 

Le
ve

l 
R

is
e 

 

D
am

 
Fa

il
ur

e 
In

un
da

ti
on

  

V
io

le
nt

 
EQ

 
S

ha
ki

ng
  

Ex
tr

em
e 

EQ
 

S
ha

ki
ng

  

0.
2%

 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ha
nc

e 
Fl

oo
di

ng
 

1%
 

A
nn

ua
l 

C
ha

nc
e 

Fl
oo

di
ng

 

D
ee

p 
S

ea
te

d 
La

nd
sl

id
e 

C
la

ss
 IX

 
&

 X
 

M
ax

 
T

su
na

m
i 

In
un

da
ti

on
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
LR

A
 

H
ig

h 
W

il
df

ir
e 

S
R

A
 

V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

W
il

df
ir

e 
S

R
A

 
Pi

tc
he

ss
 D

et
en

tio
n 

C
en

te
r 

N
or

th
 F

ac
ili

ty
 

  
  

1 
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1 

Pi
tc

he
ss

 D
et

en
tio

n 
C

en
te

r 
So

ut
h 

Fa
ci

lit
y 

  
  

1 
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1 

Sa
n 

D
im

as
 S

he
rif

f's
 S

ta
tio

n 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Sa

nt
a 

C
la

rit
a 

V
al

le
y 

Sh
er

iff
's 

St
at

io
n 

 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

So
ut

h 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 S

he
rif

f's
 

St
at

io
n 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
em

pl
e 

Sh
er

iff
's 

St
at

io
n 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
w

in
 T

ow
er

s C
or

re
ct

io
na

l 
Fa

ci
lit

y 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
W

al
nu

t/D
ia

m
on

d 
B

ar
 

Sh
er

iff
's 

St
at

io
n 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

W
es

t H
ol

ly
w

oo
d 

Sh
er

iff
's 

St
at

io
n 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



 
APPENDIX I 

 
 

WATER CONSERVATION AND WATER SHORTAGE PROGRAM AND 
REGULATIONS 

 
 
  

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



ORDINANCE NO. 09-06-16

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE THREE VALLEYS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

ESTABLISHING A WATER CONSERVATION AND
WATER SUPPLY SHORTAGE PROGRAM AND REGULATIONS

FOR ITS DIRECT END SERVICE

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Three Valleys Municipal Water District finds as follows:

A. The Three Valleys Municipal Water District (“District”) is a Municipal Water District 
organized and operating pursuant to California Water Code Section 71000 et seq., and is also a 
member agency of the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California.

B. The District provides wholesale water service to various retail water purveyors within its 
jurisdictional boundaries located in the eastern portion of the County of Los Angeles, State of 
California, and also currently furnishes direct end water service to California State Polytechnic 
University at Pomona, Mt. San Antonio College, and the Boy Scouts – Firestone Reservation.

C. A reliable minimum supply of potable water is essential to the public health, safety and welfare 
of the people and economy of the Southern California region.  

D. Southern California is a semi-arid region and largely dependent upon imported water supplies.  
A growing population, climate change, environmental concerns, and other factors in within the 
State and western United States, make the region highly susceptible to water supply reliability 
issues. 

E. Careful water management that includes active water conservation measures not only in times 
of drought, but at all times, is essential to ensure a reliable minimum supply of water to meet 
current and future water supply needs.

F. Article X, Section 2 of the California Constitution declares that the general welfare requires that 
water resources be put to beneficial use, waste or unreasonable use or unreasonable method of 
use of water be prevented, and conservation of water be fully exercised with a view to the 
reasonable and beneficial use thereof.  

G. California Water Code Section 374 authorizes water suppliers to adopt and enforce a 
comprehensive water conservation program to reduce water consumption and conserve 
supplies.

H. California Water Code Section 71610.5 authorizes the District to undertake a water 
conservation program to reduce water use.

I. On September 18, 2008, the District’s Board of Directors adopted Resolution No. 08-09-609 
declaring the existence of drought conditions in the San Gabriel Valley and urging greater water 
conservation and water efficiency by the retail water providers served by the District.

J. The adoption and enforcement of a water conservation and supply shortage program for the 
District’s direct end water service is necessary to manage the District’s potable water supply in 
the short and long-term and to avoid or minimize the effects of drought and shortage within the 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



2

District’s service area.  Such a program is essential to ensure a reliable and sustainable 
minimum supply of water for the public health, safety and welfare.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the Three Valleys Municipal 
Water District as follows:

Section I. Declaration of Purpose and Intent. 

a. The purpose of this Ordinance is to establish a water conservation and supply shortage program
for the District’s direct end water use that will reduce water consumption within the District’s 
service area through conservation, enable effective water supply planning, assure reasonable 
and beneficial use of water, prevent waste of water, and maximize the efficient use of water 
within the District’s service area to avoid and minimize the effect and hardship of water 
shortage to the greatest extent possible.   

b. This Ordinance establishes water conservation standards intended to maximize direct end water 
use efficiency at all times and further establishes three levels of water supply shortage response 
actions to be implemented during times of declared water shortage or declared water shortage 
emergency, with increasing restrictions on water use in response to worsening drought or 
emergency conditions and decreasing supplies. 

Section II. Definitions.

The following words and phrases whenever used in this Ordinance have the meaning defined in this 
section:

a. “Direct end user” means any corporation, public or private entity, governmental agency or 
institution, or any other recipient of water directly from the District that is not primarily in the 
business of reselling such water and/or providing retail water service to any customer.

b. “Landscape irrigation system” means an irrigation system with pipes, hoses, spray heads, or 
sprinkling devices that are operated by hand or through an automated system. 

c. “Large landscape areas” means a lawn, landscape, or other vegetated area, or combination 
thereof, equal to more than one (1) acre of irrigable land.

d. “Single pass cooling systems” means equipment where water is circulated only once to cool 
equipment before being disposed.

e. “Potable water” means water which is suitable for drinking.

f. “Recycled water” means the reclamation and reuse of non-potable water for beneficial use as 
defined in Title 22 of the California Code of Regulations.

g. “Billing unit” means the unit of water used to apply the water rates for purposes of calculating 
water charges to a direct end user.  In this case billing units are equal to acre-feet, or 325,851 
gallons.

Section III. Application

a. The provisions of this Ordinance apply only to a direct end user of any potable water provided 
by the District.

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



3

b. The provisions of this Ordinance do not apply to uses of water necessary to protect public health 
and safety or for essential government services, such as police, fire and other similar emergency 
services.  

c. The provisions of this Ordinance do not apply to the use of recycled water, with the exception 
of Section IV(a).

d. The provisions of this Ordinance do not apply to the use of water by commercial nurseries and 
commercial growers to sustain plants, trees, shrubs, crops or other vegetation intended for 
commercial sale.

e. This Ordinance is intended solely to further the conservation of water.  It is not intended to 
implement any provision of federal, State, or local statutes, ordinances, or regulations relating to 
protection of water quality or control of drainage or runoff.  Refer to the local jurisdiction or
Regional Water Quality Control Board for information on any stormwater ordinances and 
stormwater management plans. 

Section IV. Permanent Water Conservation Requirements – Prohibition Against Waste

The following water conservation requirements are effective and apply to a direct end user at all times
during the existence of this Ordinance.  Violations of this section will be considered waste and an 
unreasonable use of water. 

a. Limits on Watering Hours: Watering or irrigating of lawn, landscape or other vegetated area 
with potable water by a direct end user is prohibited between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 6:00 
p.m. Pacific Standard Time on any day, except by use of a hand-held bucket or similar 
container, a hand-held hose equipped with a positive self-closing water shut-off nozzle or 
device, or for very short periods of time for the express purpose of adjusting or repairing an 
irrigation system.

b. Limit on Watering Duration:  Watering or irrigating of lawn, landscape or other vegetated 
area with potable water by a direct end user using a landscape irrigation system or a watering 
device that is not continuously attended is limited to no more than fifteen (15) minutes watering 
per day per station.  This subsection does not apply to landscape irrigation systems that 
exclusively use very low-flow drip type irrigation systems.

c. No Excessive Water Flow or Runoff: Watering or irrigating of any lawn, landscape or other 
vegetated area by a direct end user in a manner that causes or allows excessive water flow or 
runoff onto an adjoining sidewalk, driveway, street, alley, gutter or ditch is prohibited.

d. No Washing Down Hard or Paved Surfaces: Washing down hard or paved surfaces, 
including but not limited to sidewalks, walkways, driveways, parking areas, tennis courts, patios 
or alleys, by a direct end user is prohibited except when necessary to alleviate safety or sanitary 
hazards, and then only by use of a hand-held bucket or similar container, a hand-held hose 
equipped with a positive self-closing water shut-off device, a low-volume, high-pressure 
cleaning machine equipped to recycle any water used, or a low-volume high-pressure water 
broom.   

e. Obligation to Fix Leaks, Breaks or Malfunctions:  Excessive use, loss or escape of water 
through breaks, leaks or other malfunctions in the direct end user’s plumbing or distribution 
system for any period of time after such escape of water should have reasonably been 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



4

discovered and corrected and in no event more than seven (7) days of receiving notice from the 
District is prohibited.  

f. Re-circulating Water Required for Water Fountains and Decorative Water Features:
Operating a water fountain or other decorative water feature that does not use re-circulated 
water by a direct end user is prohibited. 

g. Limits on Washing Vehicles:  Using water to wash or clean a vehicle, including but not 
limited to any automobile, truck, van, bus, motorcycle, boat or trailer, whether motorized or not,
by a direct end user is prohibited, except by use of a hand-held bucket or similar container or a 
hand-held hose equipped with a positive self-closing water shut-off nozzle or device.  

h. Drinking Water Served Upon Request Only: Eating or drinking establishments of a direct 
end user, including but not limited to a restaurant, hotel, cafe, cafeteria, bar, or other public 
place where food or drinks are sold, served, or offered for sale, are prohibited from providing 
drinking water to any person unless expressly requested.  

i. Commercial Lodging Establishments Must Provide Guests Option to Decline Daily Linen 
Services:  Hotels, motels, and other commercial lodging establishments and similar facilities of 
a direct end user must provide customers the option of not having towels and linen laundered 
daily.  Commercial lodging establishments must prominently display notice of this option in 
each bathroom using clear and easily understood language.

j. No Installation of Single Pass Cooling Systems:  Installation of single pass cooling systems by
a direct end user is prohibited in buildings requesting new water service.  

k. Restaurants Required to Use Water Conserving Dish Wash Spray Valves: Food preparation 
establishments of a direct end user, such as restaurants or cafes, are prohibited from using non-
water conserving dish wash spray valves.  

l. Reporting Mechanism - Hotline:  The District will encourage visitors, students, staff, and 
faculty of a direct end user to call the District’s main telephone number to report violations of 
this Ordinance.

Section V. Level 1 Water Supply Shortage 

a. A Level 1 Water Supply Shortage exists when the District determines, in its sole discretion, that 
due to drought or other water supply conditions, a water supply shortage or threatened shortage 
exists and a direct end user consumer demand reduction is necessary to make more efficient use 
of water and appropriately respond to existing water conditions. Upon the declaration by the 
District of a Level 1 Water Supply Shortage condition, the District will implement the 
mandatory Level 1 conservation measures identified in this section.    

b. Additional Water Conservation Measures:  In addition to the prohibited uses of water 
identified in Section IV of this Ordinance, the following water conservation requirements apply 
to a direct end user during a declared Level 1 Water Supply Shortage:

1. Limits on Watering Days:  Watering or irrigating of lawn, landscape or other 
vegetated area with potable water by a direct end user is limited to three days per week.
During the months of November through March, watering or irrigating of lawn, 
landscape or other vegetated area with potable water is limited to no more than one day 
per week. This provision does not apply to landscape irrigation zones that exclusively 
use very low flow drip type irrigation systems. This provision also does not apply to 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



5

watering or irrigating by use of a hand-held bucket or similar container, a hand-held 
hose equipped with a positive self-closing water shut-off nozzle or device, or for very 
short periods of time for the express purpose of adjusting or repairing an irrigation 
system. 

2. Obligation to Fix Leaks, Breaks or Malfunctions:  All leaks, breaks, or other 
malfunctions in the direct end user’s plumbing or distribution system must be repaired 
within seventy-two (72) hours of notification by the District unless other arrangements 
are made which will include a written plan to address the repairs.

Section VI. Level 2 Water Supply Shortage

a. A  Level 2 Water Supply Shortage exists when the District determines, in its sole discretion, 
that due to drought or other water supply conditions, a water supply shortage or threatened 
shortage exists and a direct end user consumer demand reduction is necessary to make more 
efficient use of water and appropriately respond to existing water conditions.   Upon the 
declaration by the District of a Level 2 Water Supply Shortage condition, the District will 
implement the mandatory Level 2 conservation measures identified in this section.  

b. Additional Conservation Measures:  In addition to the prohibited uses of water identified in 
Sections IV and V of this Ordinance, the following additional water conservation requirements 
apply to a direct end user during a declared Level 2 Water Supply Shortage:

1. Watering Days:  Watering or irrigating of lawn, landscape or other vegetated area with 
potable water by a direct end user is limited to two days per week. During the months 
of November through March, watering or irrigating of lawn, landscape or other 
vegetated area with potable water is limited to no more than one day per week.  This 
provision does not apply to landscape irrigation zones that exclusively use very low 
flow drip type irrigation systems.  This provision also does not apply to watering or 
irrigating by use of a hand-held bucket or similar container, a hand-held hose equipped 
with a positive self-closing water shut-off nozzle or device, or for very short periods of 
time for the express purpose of adjusting or repairing an irrigation system.

2. Obligation to Fix Leaks, Breaks or Malfunctions:  All leaks, breaks, or other 
malfunctions in the direct end user’s plumbing or distribution system must be repaired 
within forty-eight (48) hours of notification by the District unless other arrangements 
are made with the District which will include a written notification by the direct end 
user of a timeline of repairs.

3. Limits on Filling Ornamental Lakes or Ponds:  Filling or re-filling ornamental lakes 
or ponds by a direct end user is prohibited, except to the extent needed to sustain 
aquatic life, provided that such animals are of significant value and have been actively 
managed within the water feature prior to declaration of a supply shortage level under 
this Ordinance.

4. Limits on Washing Vehicles:  Using water to wash or clean a vehicle, including but 
not limited to, any automobile, truck, van, bus, motorcycle, boat or trailer, whether 
motorized or not, by a direct end user is prohibited except by use of a hand-held bucket 
or similar container, a hand-held hose equipped with a positive self-closing water shut-
off nozzle or device, by high pressure/low volume wash systems, or at a commercial car 
washing facility that utilizes a re-circulating water  system to capture or reuse water.

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



6

5. Limits on Filling Residential Swimming Pools & Spas: Re-filling of more than one 
foot and initial filling of residential swimming pools or outdoor spas with potable water 
by a direct end user is prohibited.  

Section VII. Level 3 Water Supply Shortage – Emergency Condition

a. A Level 3 Water Supply Shortage condition is also referred to as an “Emergency” condition.  A 
Level 3 condition exists when the District declares a water shortage emergency pursuant to the 
requirements of California Water Code Sections 71640-71644 and notifies its member agencies, 
including a direct end user, that a significant reduction in consumer demand is necessary to 
maintain sufficient water supplies for public health and safety. Upon the declaration of a Level 
3 Water Supply Shortage condition, the District will implement the mandatory Level 3 
conservation measures identified in this section, in addition to any other restrictions, 
prohibitions, and/or exclusions adopted by the District’s Board of Directors in any separate 
ordinance declaring such emergency.

b. Additional Conservation Measures:  In addition to the prohibited uses of water identified in 
Sections IV, V, and VI of this Ordinance, the following water conservation requirements apply 
to a direct end user during a declared Level 3 Water Supply Shortage Emergency:

1. No Watering or Irrigating: Watering or irrigating of lawn, landscape or other 
vegetated area with potable water by a direct end user is prohibited.  This restriction 
does not apply to the following categories of use, unless recycled water is available and
may be applied to the use:

i. Maintenance of vegetation, including trees and shrubs, that are watered using a 
hand-held bucket or similar container, hand-held hose equipped with a positive 
self–closing water shut-off nozzle or device;    

ii. Maintenance of existing landscape necessary for fire protection;

iii. Maintenance of existing landscape for soil erosion control;

iv. Maintenance of plant materials identified to be rare or essential to the well-
being of protected species;

v. Maintenance of landscape within active public parks and playing fields, day 
care centers, and golf course greens, provided that such irrigation does not 
exceed two (2) days per week according to the schedule established in Section 
VI(b)(1) and time restrictions in Section IV(a) and (b)(1);  

vi. Actively irrigated environmental mitigation projects.  

2. Obligation to Fix Leaks, Breaks or Malfunctions:  All leaks, breaks, or other 
malfunctions in the direct end user’s plumbing or distribution system must be repaired
within twenty four (24) hours of notification by the District unless other arrangements 
are made with the District which will include written plans that include a timeline of 
repairs.

3. No New Potable Water Service:  Upon declaration of a Level 3 Water Supply 
Shortage Emergency condition, no new potable water service will be provided, no new 
temporary meters or permanent meters will be provided, and no statements of 
immediate ability to serve or provide potable water service (such as, will-serve letters, 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



7

certificates, or letters of availability) will be issued to a direct end user, except under the 
following circumstances:

i. A valid, unexpired building permit has been issued for the project; or

ii. The project is necessary to protect the public health, safety, and welfare; or

iii. The applicant provides substantial evidence of an enforceable commitment that 
water demands for the project will be offset prior to the provision of a new 
water meter(s) to the satisfaction of the District.

This provision does not preclude the resetting of turn-on of meters to provide 
continuation of water service of the restoration of service that has been interrupted for a 
period of one year or less.

4. Water Allocations and Mandatory Reductions:  The District will activate a water 
allocation process using a method that does not in effect penalize direct end users for 
prior implementation of conservation methods or installation of water-saving devices. 
The District will provide notice of activation of the allocation process to a direct end 
user pursuant to Section VIII of this Ordinance.  Following the effective date of the 
water allocation, any direct end user using water in excess of the allocation will be 
subject to a penalty in the amount of double the Tier 2 rate should the water use as 
allocated for such direct end user fall between 101% to 115% of its individual 
allocations; and if the water use falls between 116% or higher, the rate will be four (4) 
times the Tier 2 rate for each billing unit of water in excess of the allocation.  

5. Large Landscape Areas – Rain Sensors:  Large landscape areas of a direct end user,
such as parks, cemeteries, golf course, school grounds, and playing fields, that use 
landscape irrigation systems to water or irrigate, must use landscape irrigation systems 
with rain sensors that automatically shut off such systems during periods of rain or 
irrigation timers which automatically use information such as evapotranspiration 
sensors to set an efficient water use schedule.

Section VIII. Procedures for Determination / Notification of Water Supply Shortage 

The existence of Level 1, Level 2, or Level 3 Water Supply Shortage conditions may be declared by 
resolution of the District’s Board of Directors, adopted at a regular or special public meeting held in 
accordance with State law.  The mandatory conservation requirements applicable to Level 1, Level 2, or 
Level 3 conditions will take effect on the tenth day after the date the shortage level is declared.  Within 
five (5) days following the declaration of the shortage level, the District must publish a notice of the 
adoption of the resolution in a newspaper used for publication of official notices that serves the 
District’s area.  If the District activates a water allocation process, the District will provide notice of the 
activation by including it in the regular billing statement or by any other mailing to the address to which 
the District customarily mails the billing statement for fees or charges for on-going water service.  A 
water allocation will be effective on the fifth day following the date of mailing or at such later date as 
specified in the notice.  

Section IX. Hardship Waiver

a. Undue and Disproportionate Hardship:  If, due to unique circumstances, a specific 
requirement of this Ordinance would result in undue hardship to a direct end user that is 
disproportionate to the impacts to other direct end users generally, then the direct end user may 
apply for a waiver to the requirements as provided in this section.

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



8

b. Written Finding:  The waiver may be granted or conditionally granted only upon a written 
finding of the existence of facts demonstrating an undue hardship to property upon which water 
is used, that is disproportionate to the impacts to other direct end users generally.

1. Application:  Application for a waiver must be on a form prescribed by the District and 
accompanied by statement describing all of the potential, irreversible impacts limiting 
water use will create.

2. Supporting Documentation:  The application must be accompanied by photographs, 
maps, drawings, and other information, including a signed statement of the applicant.

3. Required Findings for Waiver: An application for a waiver will be denied unless the 
information provided in the application, supporting documents, or such additional 
information as may be requested, and on water use information for the property as 
shown by the records of the District, all of the following:

i. That the waiver does not constitute a grant of special privilege inconsistent with 
the limitations upon other similar direct end users;

ii. That because of special circumstances applicable to the property or its use, the 
strict application of this Ordinance would have a disproportionate impact on the 
direct end user that exceeds the impacts to other direct end users generally;

iii. That the authorizing of such waiver will not be of substantial detriment to 
adjacent properties, and will not materially affect the ability of the District to 
effectuate the purpose of this Ordinance and will not be detrimental to the 
public interest; and

iv. That the condition or situation of the subject property or the intended use of the 
property for which the waiver is sought is not common, recurrent or general in 
nature.

4. Approval Authority:  The General Manager of the District must act upon any 
completed application no later than fifteen (15) working days after submittal and may 
approve, conditionally approve, or deny the waiver.  The applicant requesting the 
waiver must be promptly notified in writing of any action taken.  Unless specified 
otherwise at the time a waiver is approved, the waiver will apply to the subject property 
during the period of the mandatory water supply shortage condition.  The decision of 
the District’s General Manager will be final.

Section X. Penalties and Violations

a. Enforcement: In order to enforce the provisions of this Ordinance, the District may exercise 
any and all of the rights and remedies available under the law, including but not limited to those 
expressly authorized under California Water Code Section 71601.

b. Penalties:  In addition to all of the means of District enforcement of this Ordinance authorized 
herein, the penalties for failure to comply with any provisions of the Ordinance are as follows:

1. First Violation: The District will issue a written warning and deliver a copy of this 
Ordinance by mail.

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



9

2. Second Violation: A second violation within the preceding twelve (12) calendar 
months will be subject to prosecution.  Every person convicted of an infraction for a 
violation of this Ordinance shall be punished upon a first conviction by a fine not 
exceeding fifty dollars ($50).

3. Third Violation: A third violation within the preceding twelve (12) calendar months 
will be subject to prosecution.  Every person convicted of an infraction for a violation 
of this Ordinance shall be punished upon a second conviction within a period of one 
year by a fine not exceeding one hundred dollars ($100).

4. Fourth Violation: A fourth and any subsequent violation will be subject to 
prosecution.  Every person convicted of an infraction for a violation of this Ordinance 
shall be punished upon a third or any subsequent conviction within a period of one year 
by a fine not exceeding two hundred fifty dollars ($250).

c. Separate Offenses:  Each day that a violation of this Ordinance occurs is a separate offense.

Section XI. Severability

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase in this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid, the 
validity of the remainder of the Ordinance will not be affected.  The District’s Board of Directors hereby 
declares it would have passed this chapter and each section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase 
thereof, irrespective of the fact that one or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses, or phrases or 
is declared invalid. 

ADOPTED this 24th day of June, 2009.

ROLL CALL
Ayes: Bowcock, De Jesus, Horan, Kuhn, Mendoza, Ruzicka
Noes: Alvarez
Abstain:
Absent:

__________________________________
Bob G. Kuhn
President, Board of Directors

ATTEST:

____________________________________
Brian Bowcock
Secretary, Board of Directors

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



 
APPENDIX J 

 
 

WATER SUPPLY WATCH 
 
 
  

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



RESOLUTION NO. 17-06-801 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THREE VALLEYS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

DECLARING A WATER SUPPLY WATCH 
 

WHEREAS, the state of California is experiencing record wet conditions, with 
snowpack at approximately 160% of normal in Northern California, and water year 2017 is 
the wettest year on record over the past several years; and 

 
WHEREAS, the California Department of Water Resources current State Water 

Project allocation is 85% of contract amounts; and 
 
WHEREAS, despite precipitation, the state of California has endured a severe multi-

year drought that continues to impact storage levels of major supplies; and 
 
WHEREAS, Three Valleys Municipal Water District has relied on the guidelines 

provided through its Resolution No. 14-04-729 in support of a Water Supply Alert; and 
 
WHEREAS, Governor Edmund G. Brown, Jr. declared the drought over on April 4, 

2017, and signed Executive Order B-37-16 encouraging water use efficiency and 
conservation as a way of life in California; and 

 
WHEREAS, Three Valleys MWD relies on the actions of its 14 member agencies to 

enact and implement local water use efficiency measures; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Directors of Three Valleys 

Municipal Water District, declares that its service area is in a Water Supply Watch condition; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that Three Valleys MWD encourages its member 

agencies to implement water use efficiency measures to preserve regional storage 
reserves; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that Three Valleys MWD will work with its member 

agencies to identify mechanisms that will encourage and facilitate the adoption of rate 
structures to promote water use efficiency; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that Three Valleys MWD will coordinate with its 

member agencies in the development of a unified regional message to communicate the 
need for continued water use efficiency to the public, businesses, stakeholder industries 
and public officials; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that Three Valleys MWD will work with and assist its 

member agencies to help ensure a reliable near-term and long-term water supply, and to 
inform its retail water users of the Water Supply Watch conditions, and the need for 
sustained water use efficiency practices. 

 
  

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that adoption of this resolution will supersede 
Resolution No. 14-04-729 in support of a Water Supply Alert. 
 

ADOPTED and PASSED at a meeting of the Three Valleys Municipal Water District’s 
Board of Directors, on this 21st day of June 2017 by the following vote: 

 
AYES:               
NOES:       
ABSTAIN:       
ABSENT:       
 
 
 

       Bob G. Kuhn, President 
      
ATTEST: 
 
 
 

Brian Bowcock, Secretary 
      SEAL:  

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



 
APPENDIX K 

 
 

WATER SUPPLY ALLOCATION PLAN 
 
 
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Three Valleys MWD 
 

Water Supply Allocation Plan 
 

July 2015 
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



Introduction 
The State of California and the Southern California Region is in the midst of a fourth consecutive 
year of drought.  The average runoff in eight out of the last ten years has been below average 
and water levels in all of the state’s major reservoirs are well below normal.  On April 1, 2015, 
Governor Brown announced the signing of an Executive Order that will establish mandatory 
water use reductions throughout the state. The executive order directs the State Water 
Resources Control Board to impose a 25-percent reduction on water use by local water supply 
agencies. 
 
Critically dry conditions are affecting all of the Metropolitan Water District of Southern 
California (MWD) water supply sources, and continued legal and regulatory limits further 
impact the water supplies from the State Water Project.  In addition to voluntary efforts already 
instituted, MWD seeks to manage its current allocations and water reserves to maximize supply 
reliability for its entire service area.  To do this, MWD is instituting an allocation of water to its 
member agencies, including Three Valleys Municipal Water District (TVMWD). 
 
In 2008, MWD developed the Water Supply Allocation Plan (WSAP) to establish a method of 
allocating water to its member agencies during periods of supply shortage.  The WSAP was 
implemented during FY 2009-10 and subsequently lifted in the latter part of FY 2010-11.  With 
input from MWD’s member agencies, MWD refined the WSAP over the ensuing period, and in 
December 2014, the MWD Board of Directors adopted a revised WSAP.  In April 2015, MWD 
has again decided to implement the WSAP effective July 1, 2015. 
 
In response to this action by MWD, the TVMWD Water Supply Allocation Plan (“The Plan”) was 
developed for the purpose of implementing the MWD-WSAP within the TVMWD service area in 
a manner that is fair and equitable to TVMWD’s member agencies. The original Plan was 
adopted in 2009 and its implementation coincided with the implementation of the MWD-
WSAP. 
 
The Plan is an extension of the current MWD-WSAP.  All WSAP definitions, policies, principles 
and program provisions are incorporated herein by reference and are considered to be a part of 
this Plan. A complete copy of the MWD-adopted WSAP is available for reference from TVMWD. 
 
The Plan is consistent with and contributes to the existing TVMWD policies and programs. For 
example, the Plan’s principles encourage development and full utilization of local water 
resources and extraordinary conservation measures. 
 
Water Supply Allocation Plan Preparation 
The process to prepare this Plan has involved the TVMWD member agencies. TVWMD used a 
consensus-based approach which included monthly member agency manager meetings to 
discuss the development of a plan as well as several presentations by MWD and industry 
consultants related to conservation efforts and water supply conditions. The following 
principles were used to provide guidance for the development and implementation of the 
TVMWD Plan. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



TVMWD Water Supply Allocation Plan - July 2015 (DRAFT) Page 3 

Overall Plan - The Plan was developed in cooperation with the TVMWD member agencies and 
includes all aspects of drought planning such as allocation planning and methodology, pricing 
and a conservation communications strategy. 
 
Drought Response – The Plan is consistent with the MWD-adopted WSAP. TVMWD will 
continue to work with its member agencies in an effort to coordinate the administration of the 
WSAP to minimize its impact on the member agencies. 
 
Allocation Methodology – The allocation methodology is equitable and contains financial and 
pricing signals to ensure that member agencies are informed and understand the need to 
conserve and utilize local water supplies when possible. 
 
Communication Strategy 
The preparation of a regional communication strategy is included as a part of the Plan. TVMWD 
has been coordinating with MWD and its member agencies to develop a unified message to 
strengthen communication with the public about the serious nature of the ongoing drought and 
the actions that are needed to manage water demands and ensure a safe and reliable water 
supply during drought conditions.  
 
The continuance of an ongoing, coordinated and regional public outreach program will serve to 
provide a clear and consistent message to the public regarding water supplies and specific 
conservation measures. An outreach program will recognize and support member agency 
communication efforts that address specific retail level allocations. 
 
Along with the member agencies, TVMWD seeks to establish and coordinate the information 
that will be provided to the media, public officials and the general public. The communication 
message should include clear solutions – including easy and inexpensive ways to conserve. It is 
essential that local print and news media are fully committed to covering the current drought 
situation. 
 
The communication strategy includes the following components: 

 Regular meetings with member agencies and conservation partners to develop and 
coordinate a regional conservation message. 

 Feature advertising on water conservation and conservation tips in the local newspapers.  

 Utilization of MWD-funded outreach efforts and coordination of the use of graphics and 
outreach media buys. 

 Participation in forums providing an education of the drought and what lies ahead at the 
State and local levels. 

 
MWD / TVMWD Water Supply Allocation Quantities 
TVWMD is a MWD member agency and will receive a reduced allocation of its normal water 
supply based on the regional shortage level implemented by the MWD Board in accordance 
with its adopted WSAP.  The allocation methodology is based on the guiding principles and 
considerations described in MWD’s Drought Plan. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



TVMWD Water Supply Allocation Plan - July 2015 (DRAFT) Page 4 

MWD uses a two-year (FY 2012-13 and FY 2013-14) average from actual water demand data as 
the baseline for its calculation of the water supply allocation for its member agencies. 
TVMWD’s Plan uses the same two-year base period for its retail member agencies’ allocations.  
The following table shows the allocation for each corresponding Regional Shortage Level. 
 

TABLE 1 
MEMER AGENCY SUPPLY ALLOCATIONS SHOWN AS PERCENTAGE 

OF TVMWD ALLOCATION FROM MWD 

REGIONAL 
SHORTAGE 

LEVEL 

B
o

y 
Sc

o
u

ts
 

C
al

 P
o

ly
 

C
o

vi
n

a 

G
le

n
d

o
ra

 

G
SW

C
 

(C
lr

m
n

t)
 

G
SW

C
 

(S
D

) 

La
V

er
n

e
 

M
t.

 S
A

C
 

P
o

m
o

n
a 

R
W

D
 

SW
S 

V
H

W
C

 

W
V

W
D

 

1 0.05% 0.33% 1.52% 3.45% 6.42% 13.07% 9.71% 0.54% 8.34% 17.92% 5.89% 0.07% 32.69% 

2 0.05% 0.32% 1.51% 3.39% 6.34% 13.03% 9.70% 0.54% 8.21% 18.04% 5.88% 0.07% 32.91% 

3 0.06% 0.32% 1.49% 3.31% 6.26% 12.99% 9.70% 0.55% 8.05% 18.18% 5.87% 0.06% 33.17% 

4 0.06% 0.31% 1.47% 3.23% 6.15% 12.94% 9.69% 0.55% 7.88% 18.34% 5.86% 0.06% 33.46% 

5 0.06% 0.30% 1.45% 3.14% 6.03% 12.88% 9.68% 0.56% 7.68% 18.52% 5.84% 0.06% 33.79% 

6 0.06% 0.29% 1.42% 3.03% 5.90% 12.82% 9.67% 0.56% 7.44% 18.74% 5.82% 0.06% 34.18% 

7 0.06% 0.28% 1.39% 2.90% 5.73% 12.74% 9.66% 0.57% 7.17% 18.99% 5.80% 0.05% 34.65% 

8 0.06% 0.27% 1.36% 2.75% 5.54% 12.65% 9.65% 0.58% 6.83% 19.30% 5.77% 0.05% 35.20% 

9 0.06% 0.25% 1.31% 2.56% 5.30% 12.54% 9.63% 0.59% 6.43% 19.67% 5.74% 0.05% 35.88% 

10 0.06% 0.23% 1.25% 2.32% 4.99% 12.40% 9.61% 0.61% 5.91% 20.14% 5.70% 0.04% 36.74% 

 
 
In its currently-adopted WSAP, MWD includes a methodology to calculate a Conservation 
Demand Hardening Credit for each member agency.  The credit’s concept suggests that 
“member agencies whose customers have implemented conservation savings devices and 
programs have ‘harder’ demands than those that have not.”  Accordingly, an additional supply 
allocation to such agencies that have conserved may be provided to account for hardened 
demands resulting from conservation savings.  TVMWD’s Plan will utilize the methodology 
within the MWD-WSAP to calculate the Conservation Demand Hardening Credit for each of its 
retail member agencies that request such credit.  This reconciliation is performed at the end of 
the allocation (fiscal) year.  Therefore, an agency will not know if an additional allocation 
(credit) is due until the allocation year is completed.  The Conservation Demand Hardening 
Credits will be allocated using the same percentages shown in Table 1 above.  If TVMWD does 
not qualify for any Conservation Demand Hardening Credit for the allocation period, no 
additional allocation will be given to any retail member agency even if it can be shown that they 
would qualify for the credit. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



TVMWD Water Supply Allocation Plan - July 2015 (DRAFT) Page 5 

The MWD-WSAP also provides the ability for certain member agencies to increase its allocation 
of water based on a justified need to sustain a groundwater basin adversely impacted by 
drought conditions.  If TVMWD is able to secure an additional allocation under this provision of 
the MWD-WSAP, the total additional amount will be allocated in a manner to be determined 
later by consensus of the retail member agencies. 
 
Table 2 below shows the estimated quantities of TVMWD’s allocation from MWD for each 
regional shortage level.  The values in Table 2 are subject to change based on final calculations 
established by MWD. 
 

TABLE 2 
TVMWD ALLOCATION FROM MWD 

BASED ON REGIONAL SHORTAGE LEVEL 
(in Acre-Feet) 

REGIONAL 
SHORTAGE 

LEVEL 
ALLOCATION 

DEMAND 
HARDENING 

CREDIT 

REPLENISH 
ALLOCATION 

TOTAL 

1 60,708 1,159 4,845 66,712 

2 56,796 1,545 4,590 62,931 

3 52,884 1,932 4,335 59,151 

4 48,972 2,318 4,080 55,370 

5 45,060 2,704 3,825 51,589 

6 41,148 3,090 3,570 47,809 

7 37,236 3,477 3,315 44,028 

8 33,324 3,863 3,060 40,247 

9 29,412 4,249 2,805 36,467 

10 25,500 4,636 2,550 32,686 

The quantities shown are preliminary and subject to change based on final calculations 
by MWD. 

 
  

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



TVMWD Water Supply Allocation Plan - July 2015 (DRAFT) Page 6 

Allocation Penalty Rates 
TVMWD will pass through MWD’s penalty rates for usage in excess of the shortage allocation at 
each level. These penalty rates are shown in Table 3 below: 
 

TABLE 3 
TVMWD PENALTY RATES ($/AF) 

Water Demand  Base Water Rate Penalty Rate Total Rate 

Demand ≤ 100% of Allocation 
Tier 1 $918 

None 
$918 

Tier 2 $1,052 $1,052 

100% Alloc < Demand ≤ 115% Alloc 
Tier 1 $918 

$1,480 
$2,398 

Tier 2 $1,052 $2,532 

115% Alloc < Demand 
Tier 1 $918 

$2,960 
$3,878 

Tier 2 $1,052 $4,012 

 
Once the WSAP is implemented by MWD, TVMWD’s billing process is expected to remain the 
same. At the end of any 12-month allocation period (June 30th), TVMWD will receive an invoice 
from MWD that includes an assessment of penalties if TVMWD’s allocation has been exceeded. 
TVMWD will then look at the total imported water purchases based upon the monthly MWD 
invoices to TVMWD and determine which agencies have exceeded their individually assigned 
allocation. Based upon this determination, TVMWD will assess penalties in accordance with its 
policy on penalty rates and charges. If penalties are incurred, penalty charges will be reflected 
during the following monthly billing period.   Conversely, if no penalties are assessed to 
TVMWD from MWD after a 12-month allocation period, no penalties will be assessed to any 
individual retail member agency even if that agency exceeded its individual allocation. 
 
Consistent with current TVMWD practice and the requirements of the WSAP, imported water 
purchases will be summarized and reported to the retail member agencies and the TVMWD 
Board on a monthly basis. This information will help TVMWD and its retail member agencies 
monitor and evaluate water use demands, project annual usage and avoid WSAP penalties 
where possible. TVMWD will rely on the full cooperation of its retail member agencies to collect 
monthly water demand and supply information in a timely manner. 
 
Water Supply Allocation Plan Conclusion 
The principal objectives in the development of this Plan were to ensure equity and fairness 
throughout the TVMWD service area. However, due to the complexity of these issues and the 
possibility that unforeseen circumstances may occur at the MWD and/or local level, TVWMD 
reserves the right to review and revise the components of this Plan as appropriate. 
 
TVMWD and its member agencies will continue to meet monthly to monitor WSAP 
performance. After each 12-month period of Plan implementation, TVMWD and its member 
agencies shall have the opportunity to review and revise the Plan, as needed, in order to 
correct any merited inequities or to refine any administrative procedures. 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D



 
APPENDIX L 

 
 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING 2020 UWMP AND WSCP 
 
 
 
 

Item 8.E - Exhibit D


	June 2, 2021 Regular Board Meeting Agenda
	Item 8.A - Public Meeting - Standby Charge - Staff Report
	Resolution No. 21-06-DRAFT - Exhibit A

	Item 8.B - GFOA Award - Staff Report
	Financial Report Award - Exhibit A

	Item 8.C - General Manager FY 21-22 Work Plan - Staff Report
	GM Workplan - Exhibit A

	Item 8.D - Miragrand Well Equipping (Project No. 58463) - Staff Report
	Item 8.E - Draft 2020 UWMP and WSCP Review - Staff Report
	Resolution No. 21-06-DRAFT - Exhibit A
	Resolution No. 21-06-DRAFT - Exhibit B
	DRAFT 2020 UWMP - Exhibit C
	DRAFT 2020 UWMP Appendices - Exhibit D




